### University of San Diego

## **Digital USD**

**Undergraduate Course Catalogs** 

University of San Diego Course Catalogs

2018

# Undergraduate Course Catalog of the University of San Diego 2018-2019

University of San Diego

Follow this and additional works at: https://digital.sandiego.edu/coursecatalogs-undergrad

#### **Digital USD Citation**

University of San Diego, "Undergraduate Course Catalog of the University of San Diego 2018-2019" (2018). *Undergraduate Course Catalogs*. 27.

https://digital.sandiego.edu/coursecatalogs-undergrad/27

This Catalog is brought to you for free and open access by the University of San Diego Course Catalogs at Digital USD. It has been accepted for inclusion in Undergraduate Course Catalogs by an authorized administrator of Digital USD. For more information, please contact digital@sandiego.edu.



# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Undergraduate	ļ
2018-2019 Academic Calendar 5	j
About the University of San Diego	,
Mission and Core Values	,
The Campus	,
Accreditation	}
Memberships	3
Policies	)
Honor Societies	j
University-Wide Centers	j
Campus Life	3
Campus Recreation and Sports	}
Child Development Center	)
Dining Services	)
Mail Center	)
One Stop Student Center	)
Parking Services and Transportation	)
Public Safety	)
Residential Life	)
Student Government and Organizations	)
Student Wellness	;
Torero ID Card	ļ
Torero Store	ļ
University Center and Student Life Pavilion	j
United Front Multicultural Center	j
University Copy	j
University Ministry	j
Writing Center	ó
Academic Programs	,
Bachelor's Degree	,
Requirements for Major and Minor Concentrations	3
General Requirements for Bachelor's Degree	)
Core Curriculum	)
Honors Program	)
First Year Experience	
Second Year Experience	
Preparation for Law School and Health Profession Programs	
Study Abroad Opportunities	
ROTC Programs	;
Military Science	j

	Intersession and Summer Sessions	37
Acad	lemic Regulations	39
	Academic Integrity Policy	39
	Credit and Grading System	39
	Declaring the Major	41
	Email Accounts	42
	General Information	42
	Graduation and Commencement	42
	Honors	43
	Leave of Absence and Withdrawal	43
	Registration	44
	Residence Requirement	44
	Scholastic Probation and Disqualification	44
	Student Load	45
	Unit and Grade Point Requirements	45
Adm	issions	46
	Admission to Freshman Standing	46
	Advanced Placement	46
	International Baccalaureate	46
	College-Level Examination Program	46
	Advanced Standing	46
	Application Procedure	46
	International Students	47
	Veterans Benefits	47
Expe	enses	48
	Application Fee	48
	Deposit Fees	48
	Other Fees	48
	Payment Plans	48
	Refund Policies	49
	Registration/Fee Payment Policy	49
	Room and Meal Plans	50
	Tuition	50
Fina	ncial Aid	51
	Scholarships and Grants	51
	Loans	55
	Student Employment	55
	Deadlines	56
Acad	lemic Services	57
	Academic Support	57
	International Students and Scholars	57

Black Student Resource Center	57	Women's and Gender Studies	144
Veterans Center	58	International Relations	144
Career Development Center	58	Languages, Cultures and Literatures	144
Community Service-Learning	58	Arabic	145
Information Resources and Facilities	58	Chinese	146
Institute of College Initiatives	59	Classical Greek	148
College and Schools	60	French	149
College of Arts and Sciences	60	German	152
Anthropology	61	Italian Studies	154
Art, Architecture + Art History	64	Japanese	157
Architecture	65	Latin	159
Art History	68	Spanish	160
Visual Arts	74	Latin American Studies	164
Asian Studies	79	Liberal Studies	166
Behavioral Neuroscience	80	Mathematics	172
Biochemistry	80	Medieval and Renaissance Studies	178
Biology	80	Music	179
Biomedical Ethics	89	Performing Arts Entrepreneurship	192
Biophysics	89	Philosophy	192
Changemaking	89	Philosophy, Politics and Economics	199
Chemistry and Biochemistry	90	Physics and Biophysics	201
Biochemistry	91	Biophysics	202
Chemistry	96	Physics	206
Classical Studies	102	Political Science and International Relations	212
Communication Studies	102	International Relations	213
Education Recreation	109	Political Science	217
English	111	Psychological Sciences	224
Environmental and Ocean Sciences	116	Behavioral Neuroscience	224
Ethnic Studies	128	Psychology	227
Film Studies	132	Sociology	234
History	133	Theatre Arts and Performance Studies	238
Interdisciplinary Humanities	142	Theology and Religious Studies	242
Interdisciplinary Minors	143	Visual Arts	249
Asian Studies	143	Women's and Gender Studies	249
Biomedical Ethics	143	School of Business	250
Changemaking	143	Accountancy	254
Classical Studies	143	Business Administration	257
Film Studies	143	Business Economics	259
Latin American Studies	143	Economics	259
Medieval and Renaissance Studies	143	Finance	260
Performing Arts Entrepreneurship	143	International Business	261

Real Estate	264
School of Business Minors	265
Accounting Minor	265
Business Analytics Minor	265
Business Administration Minor	265
Economics Minor	265
Entrepreneurship Minor	266
Finance Minor	266
Information Technology Management Minor	266
International Business Minor	267
Law and Ethics Minor	267
Management Minor	267
Marketing Minor	267
Real Estate Minor	268
Supply Chain Management Minor	268
School of Business Courses	268
School of Leadership and Education Sciences	282
Leadership Studies	284
Leadership Studies Minor	287
Nonprofit Social Enterprise and Philanthropy Minor	290
Nonprofit Leadership and Management Certificate Program	293
Leadership Studies Minor and Nonprofit Leadership and Management Certificate	296
Learning and Teaching	296
Combined BA/MEd Teacher Education Program (CTEP)	302
Preliminary Multiple Subject	302
Preliminary Single Subject	303
Preliminary Education Specialist	303
Counseling & Marital and Family Therapy	304
Shiley-Marcos School of Engineering	304
Computer Science	306
Electrical Engineering	312
Engineering	316
General Engineering	317
Industrial & Systems Engineering	323
Mechanical Engineering	326
Joan B. Kroc School of Peace Studies	331
Peacebuilding and Social Innovation	
Library Science	332
Faculty	334
Index	349

# **UNDERGRADUATE**

This 2018-2019 Undergraduate Online Catalog site contains the most up-to-date information for students, faculty and staff.

Students entering the University of San Diego and/or declaring a major during 2018-2019, should follow information contained in the published course catalog (also known as the "catalog of record") available early summer 2018. The updated undergraduate core curriculum requirements are included as part of the 2018-2019 catalog.

PDF files require Adobe Reader to view; get Adobe Reader from http://get.adobe.com/reader/.

# 2018-2019 ACADEMIC CALENDAR

(Please send any corrections to Annie O'Brien (aobrien@sandiego.edu).)

## Fall Semester 2018

## August

14	Tues.	Second Language Competency Exam fee deadline for Languages
		taught at USD (Languages not taught at USD-check http://
		www.sandiego.edu/cas/languages/)
29	Wed.	Final Registration/Fee Payment Without Penalty

30 Thurs. Late Charges Begin

## September

Aug. 31- Sept. 4	Fri Tues.	Olé Weekend (New Student Orientation)
3	Mon.	Labor Day Holiday (No Classes, Offices Closed)
TBD	TBD	Competency Exam: Second Language
5	Wed.	Classes Begin
13	Thurs.	Mass of the Holy Spirit
14	Fri.	Last Day to Enroll in Classes and to Drop a Class Without a 'W'
		Deadline 100 Percent Tuition Refund
21	Fri.	Deadline 90 Percent Tuition Refund
28	Fri.	Deadline 80 Percent Tuition Refund

#### October

1	Mon.	Financial Aid applications for Intersession 2019 Available
		2019/2020 Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) available
2-30	Tues Tues.	Online Class Reservation for Intersession 2019
5	Fri.	Deadline 70 Percent Tuition Refund
TBD	TBD	Competency Exams fee deadline
12	Fri.	Deadline 60 Percent Tuition Refund
TBD	TBD	Competency Exam: Logic
19	Fri.	Fall Holiday (no classes)
22	Mon.	Deadline 50 percent tuition refund
		Mid-Term Grades Due
TBD	TBD	Competency Exam: Lower-Division and Upper-Division English

#### November

1	Thurs.	Priority deadline for Intersession 2019 Financial Aid Applications
		Class reservation begins for Spring 2019
		Walk-In Registration Begins for Intersession 2019 at the One Stop Student Center
		Deadline to Petition for May or August 2019 Graduation
2	Fri.	Deadline to Select Grade or Pass/Fail Option
3	Sat.	Competency Exam: Mathematics
13	Tues.	Last Day to withdraw from classes with a "W"
		Deadline for removal of Incompletes from prior semester/ Summer Sessions

21-23 Wed.- Thanksgiving Holiday (No Classes; Offices Closed Thursday Fri. and Friday)

#### December

1	Sat.	Intersession 2019 tuition/fee due date
14	Fri.	Last day of classes
15-16	Sat Sun.	Study Days
17-21	Mon Fri.	Final Examinations

## Intersession 2019 (optional)

## Thursday, January 3–Wednesday, January 23 January

3	Thurs.	First day of Intersession classes
21	Mon.	Martin Luther King Jr. holiday (no classes, offices closed)
23	Wed.	Last day of Intersession classes

For specific courses, dates and registration procedures for Intersession visit www.sandiego.edu/sio

# Spring Semester 2019

### **January**

2	Wed.	Fall 2018 Final Grades Due
21	Mon.	Martin Luther King Jr. Holiday (No Classes, Offices Closed)
TBD	TBD	Second Language Competency Exam fee deadline for Languages taught at USD (Languages not taught at USD-check http://www.sandiego.edu/cas/languages/)
24	Thurs.	Final registration and final fee payment deadline without penalty
TBD	TBD	New Student Spring Orientation
TBD	TBD	Competency Exam: Second Language
25	Fri.	Late Charges Begin
28	Mon.	Classes Begin
31	Thurs.	All-Faith Service

## **February**

1	Fri.	Financial Aid Applications for Summer 2019 Available
6	Wed.	Last Day to Enroll in Classes and to Drop a Class without a 'W'
		Deadline 100 Percent Tuition Refund
13	Wed.	Deadline 90 Percent Tuition Refund
20	Wed.	Deadline 80 Percent Tuition Refund
27	Wed.	Deadline 70 Percent Tuition Refund

#### March

1-29	Fri Fri.	Online Class Reservation for Summer Sessions 2019
2	Sat.	Priority Deadline for Undergraduate Fall 2019 and Spring 2020 Financial Aid Applications
4-8	Mon Fri.	Spring Break (No Classes)
13	Wed.	Deadline 60 Percent Tuition Refund
TBD	TBD	Competency Exam: Logic
17	Sun	Priority Deadline for Summer 2019 Financial Aid Applications
20	Mon.	Mid-term grades due

		Deadline 50 Percent Tuition Refund
23	Sat.	Competency Exam: Mathematics
April		
2	Tues.	Walk-in registration begins for Summer Sessions 2019 at the One Stop Student Center
		Class Reservation Begins for Fall 2019
9	Tues.	Deadline to Select Grade or Pass/Fail Option
11	Thurs.	Last day to withdraw from classes with "W"
		Deadline for Removal of Incompletes from Prior Semester and Intersession
TBD	TBD	$Competency\ Exam:\ Lower-Division\ and\ Upper-Division\ English$
18-22	Thurs Mon.	Easter Break (No Classes)

## May

1	Wed.	Summer 2019 tuition/fee due date
7	Tues.	Honors Convocation
15	Wed.	Last Day of Classes
16	Thurs.	Study Day
17-23	Fri	Final Examinations
	Thurs.	
21	Fri.	Last day to petition for August 2019 graduation.
24	Fri.	NROTC Commissioning Ceremony
26	Sun.	Undergraduate Commencement Ceremonies
31	Fri.	Spring 2019 Final Grades Due

# Summer 2019 (optional)

# Monday, June 3–Friday, August 23 June, July, August

		_
June		
3	Mon.	First day of Summer Sessions
July		
4	Thurs.	Independence Day Holiday (no classes, offices closed)
August		
23	Fri.	Last day of Summer Sessions

For specific courses, dates and registration procedures for Summer Sessions visit www.sandiego.edu/sio  $\,$ 

# ABOUT THE UNIVERSITY OF SAN DIEGO

For more than six decades, the University of San Diego has been dedicated to advancing academic excellence with a mission grounded in the Catholic intellectual tradition. Students are encouraged to explore how faith and reason are compatible in education and to develop strong moral convictions.

The University of San Diego which, like our city, took its name from San Diego de Alcalá, a Franciscan friar from Alcalá de Henares, a monastery near Madrid, Spain. The university's 180-acre campus is called Alcalá Park, and the Spanish Renaissance architecture that characterizes Spain's 500-year-old University of Alcalá serves as the inspiration for buildings on the university campus.

The university was founded under the leadership of Mother Rosalie Clifton Hill of the Society of the Sacred Heart and Bishop Charles Francis Buddy of the Diocese of San Diego. The University of San Diego began as separate colleges for men and women. The founding charter of the San Diego College for Women and San Diego University – comprising the San Diego College for Men and the School of Law – was granted in 1949. The College for Women began classes in 1952. The College for Men and the School of Law, the first professional division of the university, began classes in 1954. In 1972, the academic institutions merged into the University of San Diego.

Now governed by an independent Board of Trustees, the university remains dedicated to the values originally articulated by Mother Hill and Bishop Buddy. Students choose from dozens of undergraduate and graduate degree programs in academic divisions including the College of Arts and Sciences; the School of Business; the School of Law; the School of Leadership and Education Sciences; the Joan B. Kroc School of Peace Studies; the Shiley-Marcos School of Engineering; the Hahn School of Nursing and Health Science; and Professional and Continuing Education.

In 2006, USD was reclassified by the Carnegie Foundation for the Advancement of Teaching as a Doctoral/Research University. This reclassification recognizes the strides the university had made in graduate studies and research. In September 2011, USD was named an Ashoka U Changemaker Campus, recognizing the university' commitment to finding sustainable solutions to the worlds' most pressing problems. The university is dedicated to preparing students to be able to make a difference in the world.

As a Roman Catholic institution, the university promotes a dialogue between faith and reason, and it pursues the cultivation of knowledge in a community that values intellectual freedom, holistic personal development and mutual respect. The university embraces the ecumenical and interfaith teaching of the Second Vatican Council and is committed to creating a diverse and inclusive community of students, faculty and staff of every faith tradition, as well as those who identify with no particular faith tradition.

## **Mission and Core Values**

## **Mission Statement**

The University of San Diego is a Roman Catholic institution committed to advancing academic excellence, expanding liberal and professional knowledge, creating a diverse and inclusive community, and preparing leaders dedicated to ethical conduct and compassionate service.

## Core Values

The University of San Diego expresses its Catholic identity by witnessing and probing the Christian message as proclaimed by the Roman Catholic Church. The

university promotes the intellectual exploration of religious faith, recruits persons and develops programs supporting the university's mission, and cultivates an active faith community. It is committed to the dignity and fullest development of the whole person. The Catholic tradition of the university provides the foundation upon which the core values listed below support the mission.

## Academic Excellence

The university pursues academic excellence in its teaching, learning and research to serve the local, national and international communities. The university possesses that institutional autonomy and integrity necessary to uphold the highest standards of intellectual inquiry and academic freedom.

## Knowledge

The university advances intellectual development; promotes democratic and global citizenship; cultivates an appreciation for beauty, goodness and truth; and provides opportunities for the physical, spiritual, emotional, social and cultural development of students. The university provides professional education grounded in these foundations of liberal learning while preparing students to understand complex issues and express informed opinions with courage and conviction.

## Community

The university is committed to creating a welcoming, inclusive and collaborative community accentuated by a spirit of freedom and charity and marked by protection of the rights and dignity of the individual. The university values students, faculty and staff from different backgrounds and faith traditions and is committed to creating an atmosphere of trust, safety and respect in a community characterized by a rich diversity of people and ideas.

## **Ethical Conduct**

The university provides a values-based education that informs the development of ethical judgment and behavior. The university seeks to develop ethical and responsible leaders committed to the common good who are empowered to engage a diverse and changing world.

## Compassionate Service

The university embraces the Catholic moral and social tradition by its commitment to serve with compassion, to foster peace and to work for justice. The university regards peace as inseparable from justice and advances education, scholarship and service to fashion a more humane world.

# **The Campus**

The campus name, Alcalá Park, refers to Alcalá de Henares, a town near Madrid, Spain, founded by the Greeks. The Moslems renamed the town Al Kala, "the castle," and it later became the site of San Ildefonso university. Like its namesake, USD is on a prominent hilltop where it attains landmark status in the city. The USD campus, consisting of 182 acres, is at the western end of Kearny Mesa, commanding views of the Pacific Ocean, Mission Bay, San Diego Bay and the surrounding mountains. The campus is in America's seventh largest urban area, ideally close to the business, research, cultural, residential and recreational centers of California's birthplace and second largest city.

Appropriate to its classical origins, the academic and administrative buildings are situated on the highest mesa within the campus. Alcalá Park's buildings include: The Immaculata parish church; the School of Law (Warren Hall); the Katherine M. and George M. Pardee, Jr. Legal Research Center; the Helen K. and James S. Copley Library; the School of Business (Olin Hall); the Hahn School of Nursing and Health Science; the Shiley-Marcos School of Engineering (Loma Hall); the Author E. and Marjorie A. Hughes Administration Center; the Ernest and Jean

Hahn University Center; the Student Life Pavilion, the Manchester Executive Conference Center; Founders Hall; Camino Hall, including the Shiley Theatre; The Joan B. Kroc School of Peace Studies; The Donald P. Shiley Center for Science and Technology; Mother Rosalie Hill Hall; the Degheri Alumni Center; several other administrative and classroom buildings; and residential areas.

Located near the east end of campus are the Alcalá Vista Apartments; Mission Housing Complex; University Terrace Apartments; Presidio Terrace Apartments; Manchester Village; the Manchester Family Child Development Center; the Jenny Craig Pavilion; and the university Student Sports Center. Located near the west end of campus are the Avila, Barcelona, Coronado and Durango buildings.

Here in Southern California, students find a truly fascinating variety of leisure-time activities, including visits to the city's outstanding zoo, the museums, the old Spanish mission, the theater, swimming, boating, surfing, tennis, golf and much more. Proximity to Mexico provides an excellent opportunity for gaining a first-hand insight into Mexican culture.

## A Nonprofit Corporation

The University of San Diego is a California nonprofit corporation. Subject to any limitations contained in the general nonprofit corporation law of the State of California, the powers of the USD corporation are exercised, its property controlled and its affairs conducted by a Board of Trustees.

## **Accreditation**

# Official Recognition and Accreditation

The University of San Diego (USD) is incorporated under the laws of the State of California and is invested with full power to confer degrees. USD has been accredited by the Accrediting Commission for Senior Colleges and Universities of the Western Association of Schools and Colleges (533 Airport Boulevard, Suite 200, Burlingame, CA 94010-2009; (650) 696-1060) and is approved for veterans.

The USD Department of Chemistry is on the list of colleges and universities approved by the American Chemical Society (1155 Sixteenth St., N.W., Washington, D.C. 20036; (202) 872-6066).

The undergraduate and graduate programs of the School of Business are accredited by the AACSB International – The Association to Advance Collegiate Schools of Business (777 South Harbour Island Blvd., Suite 750, Tampa, FL 33602-5730; (813) 769-6500). The dual BS/BA degree programs in Electrical Engineering, Industrial and Systems Engineering and Mechanical Engineering are accredited by the Engineering Accreditation Commission of ABET (111 Market Place, Suite 1050, Baltimore, MD 21202-4012; (410) 347-7700).

The Marital and Family Therapy program in the School of Leadership and Education Sciences is accredited by the Commission on Accreditation for Marriage and Family Therapy Education (COAMFTE) (112 South Alfred St., Alexandria, VA 22314; (703) 838-9808).

The Professional Education Unit (PEU) in the School of Leadership and Education Sciences is accredited by the National Council for Accreditation of Teacher Education (NCATE) (2010 Massachusetts Ave., NW, Suite 500, Washington, D.C. 20036; (202) 466-7496). This accreditation includes Learning and Teaching, School Counseling, Special Education and School Leadership programs. NCATE is a subsidiary of the Council for Accreditation of Education Preparation (CAEP) and is maintaining its recognition by the U.S. Department of Education and the Council for Higher Education Accreditation.

The Counseling program in the School of Leadership and Education Sciences is accredited by the Council for Accreditation of Counseling and Related Educational Programs (CACREP) (Council for Accreditation of Counseling and

Related Educational Programs, 1001 North Fairfax Street, Suite 510, Alexandria, VA 22314).

The university is authorized by the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) (1900 Capitol Ave., Sacramento, CA 95814; (916) 445-7254) to recommend candidates for the Multiple Subject and Single Subject teaching credentials, the Education Specialist Credential (Special Education), the Administrative Services Credential and the Pupil Personnel Service Credential.

The Special Education program in the School of Leadership and Education Sciences is nationally recognized by The Council for Exceptional Children (CEC) (1110 North Glebe Rd., Suite 300, Arlington, VA 22201; (703) 620-3660).

The School of Law is accredited by the American Bar Association (750 N. Lake Shore Dr., Chicago, IL 60611) and is a member of The Order of the Coif and the Association of American Law Schools.

# Memberships

The University of San Diego holds membership in the following:

AACSB International-The Association to Advance Collegiate Schools of Business

ACCED-I Membership (Meeting Excellence on Campus)

Air and Waste Management Association

Accreditation Board for Engineering & Technology, Inc.

American Assembly of Collegiate Schools of Business

American Association for Paralegal Education

American Association of Affirmative Action

American Association of Colleges for Teacher Education

American Association of Colleges of Nursing

American Association of Collegiate Registrars and Admissions Officers

American Association of Hispanics in Higher Education, Inc.

American Association of University Women (AAUW)

American Bar Association

American Camping Association

American College Health Association (ACHA)

American College Personnel Association (ACPA)

American Council of Learned Societies

American Council on Education (ACE)

American Football Coaches Association

American Institute of Architects

American Payroll Association

American Society of Comparative Law

American Society for Engineering Education

American Society of Engineers

American Society Training and Development

American Volleyball Coaches Association

ASIA Network

Association for College & University Auditors (ACUA)

Association for Financial Professionals

Association for the Advancement of Sustainability in Higher Education

Association of American Colleges and Universities

Association of American Law Schools

Association of Borderlands Studies

Association of Catholic Colleges and Universities (ACCU)

Association of College Administration Professionals (ACAP)

Association of College and University Housing Officers-International

Association of College Unions International

Association of Collegiate Conference and Events Directors

Association of Continuity Planners

Association of Corporate Counsel

Association of Governing Boards of Universities and Colleges

Association of Graduate Schools in Catholic Colleges and Universities

Association of Higher Education Facilities Officers

Association of Independent California Colleges and Universities (AICCU)

Association of International Education Administrators Association of NROTC Colleges and Universities

Association of Rocky Mountain College and University Mail Services

(ARMCUMS)

Association of Student Affairs at Catholic Colleges and Universities

Association of the U.S. Army Balboa Art Conversion Center Better Business Bureau

**BIOCOM** 

California Association of College Stores California Association of Colleges of Nursing

California Campus Compact

California College and University Police Chief's Association (CCUPCA) California Council of Cultural Centers in Higher Education (CaCCCHE)

California Restaurant Association

California Teachers of English to Speakers of Other Languages (CATESOL)

Campus Computer Resellers Alliance

Campus Safety Health and Environmental Management (CSHEMA)

Catholic Campus Ministry Association (CCMA)

Center for Academic Integrity

Charter 100

College and University Professional Association (CUPA)

College Board (College Entrance Examination Board and Scholarship Service)

Collegiate Athletic Business Management Association

Collegiate Rowing Coaches Association

Collegium

Commission on Accreditation for Marriage and Family Therapy Education

Commission on Collegiate Nursing Education

CONNECT Connect 2 One

Consejo Latinoamericana de Escuela de Administracion

Consorcio para la Colaboración en la Educación Superior en América del Norte Consortium for North American Higher Education Collaboration (CONAHEC)

Corporate Directors Forum

Council for Accreditation of Counseling and Related Educational Programs

(CACREP)

Council for Advancement and Support of Education (CASE)

Council for Exceptional Children (CEC)

Council for Higher Education Accreditation (WASC)

Council for Opportunity in Education Council on Undergraduate Research

Educause

Family Firm Institute (FFI)

Greater San Diego Employers Association

**Higher Education Publications** 

Higher Education Recruitment Consortium (HERC) Hispanic Association of Colleges and Universities (HACU)

Hispanic Summer Program

Independent College Bookstore Association Independent Colleges of Southern California (ICSC)

Info Ed International

Information Systems Audit and Control Association

Institute of Internal Auditors Intercollegiate Tennis Association

International Association of Assembly Managers

International Association of Chiefs of Police (IACP)

International Association of Campus Law Enforcement Administrators (IACLEA)

International Association of University Presidents International Federation of Catholic Universities International Leadership Association

International Parking Institute

International Special Events Society San Diego Chapter (ISES San Diego)

Japan Society of San Diego Leadership Alliance

Lern

Meeting Planners International San Diego Chapter (SDMPI) Mountain Pacific Association of Colleges and Employers

NAFSA: Association of International Educators

National Alliance of Business

National Association for Campus Activities (NACA)

National Association for Law Placement

National Association for President's Assistants in Higher Education

National Association of Athletic Development Directors

National Association of Basketball Coaches

National Association for Campus Activities (NACA)

National Association of Campus Card Users

National Association of College Admission Counselors National Association of College and University Attorneys

National Association of College and University Business Officers (NACUBO)

National Association of College and University Food Service National Association of College and University Mail Services

National Association of College Stores and Campus Computer Resellers Alliance

National Association of Colleges and Employers National Association of Collegiate Concessionaires National Association of Collegiate Directors of Athletics National Association of Collegiate Marketing Administrators

National Association of Convenience Stores National Association of Educational Procurement National Association of Foreign Student Affairs (NAFSA)

National Association of Independent Colleges and Universities (NAICU)

National Association of Student Financial Aid Administrators National Association of Student Personnel Administrators (NASPA)

National Association of Women in Higher Education

National Athletic Training Association National Collegiate Athletic Association National Collegiate Honors Council National Communication Association

National Council for Accreditation of Teacher Education

National Council for Research on Women National Fastpitch Coaches Association National Fire Protection Association

National Intramural-Recreation Sports Association

National Letter of Intent Program National Restaurant Association

National Soccer Coaches Association of America National Strength and Conditioning Association North American Association of Summer Sessions

Order of the Coif

Otay Mesa Chamber of Commerce

Pacific Association of Collegiate Registrars and Admissions Officers

Phi Beta Kappa Society
Pacific Coast Softball Conference

Phi Delta Kappa Pioneer Football League

Professional and Organizational Development Network in Higher Education

Risk & Insurance Management Society

Rotary Club of San Diego San Diego Business Journal

San Diego City Schools University & College Police Chiefs Association

San Diego Convention and Visitors Bureau San Diego County Alcohol Policy Panel San Diego Economic Development Corporation

San Diego Law Enforcement Training Managers Association (SDTMA)

San Diego Regional Chamber of Commerce

San Diego Regional Economic Development Corporation

San Diego World Affairs Council

Society for College and University Planning

Society for Collegiate Travel Management

Society of Human Resource Management

South California Higher Education Recruitment Consortium

Southern California Consortium on International Studies

Student & Youth Travel Association (SYTA)

Teachers of English to Speakers of Other Languages (TESOL)

The Trusteeship

**Tuition Exchange** 

Unique Venues

United States Naval Institute

University Risk Management and Insurance Association

Urban League

Used Book Association

West Coast Conference

Western Association of College and University Business Officers (NACUBO)

Western Association of College and University Housing Officers

Western Association of Graduate Schools

Western Association of Schools and Colleges

Western College Association and Western Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC)

Western Athletic Conference

Western Economic Association International

Western Institute of Nursing

Western Intercollegiate Rowing Association

Women's Basketball Coaches Association

## **Policies**

# State of California Formal Complaint Procedure

An individual may contact the Bureau for Private Postsecondary Education for review of a complaint. The bureau may be contacted at: 2535 Capitol Oaks Drive, Suite 400 Sacramento, CA 95833; http://bppe.ca.gov; (916) 431-6924; (Phone) (916) 263-1897 (FAX)

## **Equal Opportunity**

The University of San Diego is dedicated to advancing academic excellence and creating a diverse and inclusive community. As an institution with a Catholic identity, the university is committed to creating and maintaining a work and educational environment that recognizes the dignity of each university community member.

The university is an equal opportunity educational institution. All student-related programs and services, including but not limited to admissions, financial aid, academic programs, housing, athletics and other extracurricular activities, will be administered without regard to the student's or applicant's race, color, religion, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, marital status, pregnancy, age, physical disability, mental disability, or other characteristic protected by federal or state law. Reasonable accommodations will be made for qualified individuals with disabilities in all such programs and services, unless the accommodation would create an undue hardship for the university.

Similarly, the university is an equal opportunity employer. All employmentrelated decisions, including but not limited to decisions relating to recruitment, hiring, promotion, transfers, benefits and any other terms and conditions of employment, will be made without regard to the employee's or applicant's race, color, religion, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, marital status, pregnancy, age, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, covered veteran status, genetic information or other characteristic protected by federal or state law, unless a particular characteristic is a bona fide requirement of the position. Reasonable accommodations will be made for qualified individuals with disabilities, unless the accommodation would create an undue hardship for the university.

The university may take affirmative steps in a manner consistent with applicable law to advance its mission and to promote equal opportunities for its students, faculty, staff and applicants. The university does not by this equal opportunity statement disclaim any right it might otherwise lawfully have to maintain its commitment to its Catholic identity or the teachings of the Catholic Church.

Student inquiries regarding the university's equal opportunity policy should be directed to the Vice President for Student Affairs (619) 260-4590. Employee inquiries regarding the university's equal opportunity policy should be directed to the Chief Human Resources Officer (619) 260-4594).

# Policy Prohibiting Discrimination and Harassment

The University of San Diego is committed to upholding standards that promote respect and human dignity in an environment that fosters academic excellence and professionalism. It is the policy of the university to maintain an educational and work environment free from all forms of unlawful discrimination and harassment.

To that end, the university prohibits and does not tolerate unlawful discrimination against or harassment of its employees, students or applicants for employment or admission on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, marital status, pregnancy, age, physical disability, mental disability, or other characteristic protected by federal or state law, unless a particular characteristic is a bona fide requirement of the position.

All members of the university community are expected to uphold this policy. Engaging in unlawful discrimination or harassment will result in appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal from the university.

## **Definitions**

#### Discrimination

Unlawful discrimination may occur when an individual is treated less favorably with respect to the terms and conditions of employment or education, or with respect to the individual's receipt of employment or educational benefits, because of his or her membership in a protected class. Accordingly, all employmentrelated decisions, including but not limited to decisions relating to recruitment, hiring, promotion, transfers, benefits and any other terms and conditions of employment, will be made without regard to the employee's or applicant's race, color, religion, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, marital status, pregnancy, age, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, covered veteran status, genetic information, or other characteristic protected by federal or state law. Similarly, all educationrelated programs and activities, including but not limited to admissions, financial aid, academic programs, research, housing, athletics and other extracurricular activities, will be administered without regard to the student's or applicant's race, color, religion, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, marital status, pregnancy, age, physical disability, mental disability, or other characteristic protected by federal or state law.

The university does not by this non-discrimination statement disclaim any right it might otherwise lawfully have to maintain its commitment to its Catholic identity or the teachings of the Catholic Church.

#### Harassment

Harassment includes verbal, physical or visual conduct when the conduct creates an intimidating, offensive or hostile working or educational environment, or unreasonably interferes with job or academic performance. Verbal harassment may include but is not limited to epithets, derogatory comments or slurs based upon one of the individual's characteristics noted above. Physical harassment may include but is not limited to assault, impeding or blocking movement, or any physical interference with normal work or movement, when directed at an individual because of the individual's protected characteristic. Visual forms of harassment may include but are not limited to derogatory posters, cartoons or drawings based on an individual's protected characteristic.

In addition, prohibited sex discrimination covers sexual harassment, including sexual violence. Sexual harassment includes any request or demand for sexual favors that is implicitly or expressly a condition of employment, continued employment, receipt of an employment benefit, admission to the university, participation in educational programs or activities, or evaluation of academic performance. Examples of conduct that could give rise to sexual harassment, include but are not limited to: sexual advances or suggestions; unwelcome sexually-oriented remarks; dirty jokes; the display or distribution of offensive photographs, e-mails, posters or cartoons; any unwelcome, intentional touching of the intimate areas of another person's body; or physical sexual acts perpetrated against a person's will or where a person is unable to give consent.

# Harassment (Sexual Misconduct and Relationship Violence)

Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972 prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in education programs and activities operated by recipients of federal financial aid assistance. Sex harassment, including sexual violence, is a form of prohibited sex discrimination. The Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act of 2013, including the Campus Sexual Violence Elimination Act, requires colleges and universities to have procedures in place to respond to incidents of sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, and stalking.

In order to address its responsibilities under these laws, the university has implemented standards, reporting procedures, and response protocols that apply to incidents of sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence, stalking, and sexual exploitation. For more information, please see the university's Sexual Misconduct and Relationship Violence Reporting and Response Standards and Protocols (http://www.sandiego.edu/conduct/the-code/university-policies/sexual-assault-standards.php).

# Complaint Procedure

The university encourages any person who feels that he or she has been unlawfully discriminated against or harassed, or observes or is otherwise aware of an incident of unlawful discrimination or harassment, to report the incident promptly. To assist in the investigation, the university may request that a complaint be made in writing with a detailed description of the facts giving rise to the complaint, the names of any individuals involved, including any witnesses, and copies of any documents that support or relate to the complaint. Although the university may request the submission of a written complaint, an oral complaint is sufficient to initiate the procedures set forth under this policy.

Complaints should be made to any of the following people who are the university's designated officers for handling the complaints and implementing the university's policy against unlawful discrimination and harassment:

### Complaints Against Administrators or Staff:

Director of Title IX, EEO and Employee Relations Maher Hall, Room 101 5998 Alcalá Park San Diego, CA 92110 (619) 260-4594

### **Complaints Against Students:**

Vice President for Student Affairs Hahn University Center 232 5998 Alcalá Park San Diego, CA 92110 (619) 260-4588

Dean of Students Hahn University Center 232 5998 Alcalá Park San Diego, CA 92110 (619) 260-4588

#### **Complaints Against Faculty:**

Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost Hughes Administration Center 214 5998 Alcalá Park San Diego, CA 92110 (619) 260-4553

Dean, College of Arts and Sciences Founders Hall 114 5998 Alcalá Park San Diego, CA 92110 (619) 260-4545

Dean, School of Business Olin Hall 341 5998 Alcalá Park San Diego, CA 92110 (619) 260-4886

Dean, School of Leadership and Education Sciences Mother Rosalie Hill Hall 205 5998 Alcalá Park San Diego, CA 92110 (619) 260-4540

Dean, School of Law Warren Hall 200 5998 Alcalá Park San Diego, CA 92110 (619) 260-4527

Dean, School of Nursing and Health Science Hahn School of Nursing 5998 Alcalá Park San Diego, CA 92110 (619) 260-4550

Dean, Joan B. Kroc School of Peace Studies KIPJ 123 5998 Alcalá Park San Diego, CA 92110 (619) 260-7919 Dean, Shiley-Marcos School of Engineering Loma Hall 336 5998 Alcala Park San Diego, CA 92110 (619) 260-4627

If for any reason the person making the complaint does not feel comfortable directly reporting the incident to the appropriate individual identified above, the complaint may be reported through alternative channels. In the case of a complaint by a university employee, the complaint may be made to the employee's supervisor, manager, the Human Resources department, a dean, a vice president, or the president. If the complaint involves the employee's supervisor, the employee is not required to report the complaint to the supervisor. In the case of a complaint by a student, the complaint may be made to the Department of Public Safety, a dean, the vice president and provost, or the president.

A supervisor or manager who receives a complaint of unlawful discrimination or harassment, or observes or is otherwise aware of an incident of unlawful discrimination or harassment, shall promptly inform the appropriate university's designated officer, as set forth above.

In cases involving potential criminal conduct, the university will determine whether appropriate law enforcement or other authorities should be notified.

# Investigation and Corrective Action

The university will investigate every reported complaint of unlawful discrimination or harassment. The investigation will be conducted in a thorough, prompt and professional manner.

If the conclusion of the investigation is that unlawful discrimination or harassment occurred, the university will initiate corrective action, as appropriate under the circumstances. For employees, the corrective action may range from verbal warnings up to and including termination from employment. For students, the corrective action will be imposed in a manner consistent with the university's Student Code or other applicable procedures. If the individual found to have engaged in the unlawful discrimination or harassment is not an employee or student of the university, corrective action within the reasonable control of the university, and as appropriate under the circumstances, will be initiated.

If termination of a faculty member is contemplated, the applicable rules governing dismissal for serious cause will be followed.

The employee or student who raised the complaint will be advised of the results of the investigation, unless doing so is prohibited by FERPA or other applicable law. Similarly, an employee or student who is accused of the unlawful discrimination or harassment will be advised of the results of the investigation.

## Retaliation Prohibited

The university prohibits and does not tolerate retaliation against any individual who in good faith files a complaint of unlawful discrimination or harassment or is involved as a witness or participant in the complaint or investigation process. Engaging in unlawful retaliation can result in disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal from the university.

The university encourages any individual who believes he or she has been subject to unlawful retaliation, or observes or is otherwise aware of an incident of unlawful retaliation in violation of this policy, to report the incident promptly pursuant to the complaint procedure identified above. The investigation and corrective action procedures set forth above will similarly apply in the case of a complaint of unlawful retaliation in violation of this policy.

## Right to Appeal

An employee or student who is found to have engaged in unlawful discrimination, harassment or retaliation in violation of this policy shall have the right to appeal the decision. Similarly, a complainant may appeal the decision.

If a vice president was the university's designated officer responsible for handling the complaint, the appeal must be made to the president or the president's designee. If someone other than a vice president was the university's designated officer responsible for handling the complaint, the appeal must be made to the vice president to whom that designated officer reports. The appeal may address the decision of whether unlawful discrimination, harassment or retaliation occurred, and it also may address the corrective action imposed.

The appeal must be submitted in writing within ten (10) working days after written notification of the results of the investigation. The appeal should describe with specificity why the findings or corrective action imposed were not reasonably based upon the evidence and information made available to the investigator and/or the university official who made the decision regarding the corrective action.

The president or vice president who is deciding the appeal may receive or consider additional information if he or she believes such information would aid in the review of the appeal. This right to appeal shall not entitle the appellant to a new or second investigation. The appeal should be granted only if the president or the vice president who is deciding the appeal concludes that the findings were not reasonably based upon the evidence and information available to the investigator, or that the corrective action imposed was not reasonably based upon the evidence and information available to the university official who made the decision regarding the corrective action.

The president or the vice president who is deciding the appeal will provide the decision to the individual who submitted the appeal within 45 days of receipt of the written appeal. The decision of the president or the vice president who is deciding the appeal is final.

During the time of the appeal and review, any corrective action taken as a result of the original complaint may be implemented and enforced.

If the decision was made pursuant to the procedures identified in the Student Code of Rights and Responsibilities, the appeal procedures identified in the Student Code shall apply.

### Other Resources

In addition to the internal resources described above, individuals may pursue complaints with the government agencies that enforce the laws prohibiting discrimination, harassment and retaliation, including the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing (www.dfeh.ca.gov), the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (www.eeoc.gov), or the United States Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights (www2.ed.gov/ocr).

## Acts of Intolerance

The University of San Diego's mission statement affirms the institution's commitment to advancing academic excellence and creating a diverse and inclusive community. An act of intolerance is an affront to a community that values diversity and strives to create an inclusive environment.

USD expects all members of the university community to comply with the law and applicable university policies, including those that set forth the standards of behavior expected of community members, such as the Student Code of Rights and Responsibilities and the Policy Prohibiting Discrimination and Harassment.

USD adopts these Response Procedures in furtherance of the university's existing policies and applicable law.

For the purpose of these Response Procedures, an act of intolerance is conduct that adversely and unfairly targets an individual or group on the basis of one or more of the following actual or perceived characteristics: (1) gender or gender identity; (2) race or ethnicity; (3) disability; (4) religion; (5) sexual orientation; (6) nationality; or (7) age.

Some acts of intolerance rise to the level of a hate crime. Under California law, a hate crime means a criminal act committed, in whole or in part, because of one or more of the following actual or perceived characteristics of the victim(s).

Hate crimes are not separate distinct crimes, but rather are traditional offenses motivated by the offender's bias. Hate crimes may include crimes involving not only offenses against persons but also offenses involving damage to property, such as breaking windows of religious institutions, spray painting walls with offensive words and/or symbols, or defacing or burning property. It is a violation of both California law and university policy to commit a hate crime.

The conduct underlying some acts of intolerance may violate university policy, even if the conduct does not rise to the level of a hate crime. Some acts of intolerance may involve protected speech, but still are inconsistent with the university's community values and in those circumstances the university may elect to respond through education and/or through other corrective or responsive action. Acts of intolerance will be addressed by the university on a case-by-case basis.

Promptly report all acts of intolerance. Acts of intolerance should never be written off as "pranks" or "bad behavior." This type of behavior should not be tolerated in classrooms, residence halls, in offices, study areas, social gatherings or elsewhere on campus or as part of any university activities. A person who commits an act of intolerance cannot be held accountable for his or her actions if the incident is not reported. The university encourages the prompt reporting of all acts of intolerance. A supervisor or manager who receives a complaint related to an act of intolerance, or observes or is otherwise aware of an incident involving an act of intolerance, shall promptly inform the appropriate university's designated officer as described below.

- Preserve any evidence related to the incident (e.g. graffiti, phone call recording, e-mail message, letter, photo, flyer) and make that evidence available when the report is made.
- Be aware of your reporting options.

To make a report of a hate crime, contact:

Department of Public Safety Hughes Administration Center, Room 150 Phone: (619) 260-2222 (24-hour emergency line).

To make a report of any other act of intolerance by a student(s), contact:

Dean of Students or designee Hahn University Center, Room 232 Phone: (619) 260-4588

To make a report of any other act of intolerance by an administrator or staff member, contact:

Director of Title IX and Equal Employment Opportunity Programs Department of Human Resources

Maher Hall, Room 101 Phone: (619) 260-7408

To make a report of any other act of intolerance by a faculty member, contact:

Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost

Hughes Administration Center 214

Phone: (619) 260-4553

Dean, College of Arts and Sciences

Founders Hall 114 Phone: (619) 260-4545

Dean, School of Business

Olin Hall 341

Phone: (619) 260-4886

Dean, School of Leadership and Education Sciences

Mother Rosalie Hall 205 Phone: (619) 260-4540

Dean, School of Law Warren Hall 200 Phone: (619) 260-4527

Dean, Hahn School of Nursing and Health Science

Hahn School of Nursing Phone: (619) 260-4550

Dean, Joan B. Kroc School of Peace Studies

KIPJ 123

Phone: (619) 260-7919

Dean, Shiley-Marcos School of Engineering

Loma Hall 336 Phone: (619) 260-4627

**Note:** Complaints that fall within the scope of the Policy Prohibiting Discrimination and Harassment (http://www.sandiego.edu/legal/policies/community/institutional/Policy% 202.2.2.pdf) also may be reported in the manner described by that policy.

If you are a student and you are unsure of whether to report, and would like to obtain assistance and/or explore options in a confidential setting, contact:

Counseling Center Serra Hall 300 Phone (619) 260-4655

Counselors are also available after hours by calling 619-260-2222.

# What will USD do when it receives a report of an alleged act of intolerance?

The university will respond to reported acts of intolerance in a professional and appropriate manner. The response will take into consideration the impact on the target and the USD community.

The university will investigate all reported acts of intolerance. The investigation will be conducted in a thorough, prompt, and professional manner. Reported acts of intolerance that may rise to the level of a hate crime will be investigated by Public Safety. Where the reported conduct does not rise to the level of a hate crime, the investigation will be conducted or overseen by the Dean of Students or designee (in the case of a complaint against a student) or Human Resources (in the case of a complaint against an employee). The Office of the Provost or the appropriate Dean's Office will conduct or oversee the investigation of a complaint against a faculty member.

The university will take appropriate corrective or other responsive action, consistent with current policies and procedures, based upon the findings of the investigation. The employee or student who made the complaint will be advised of the results of the investigation, unless doing so is prohibited by FERPA

or other applicable law. Similarly, an employee or student who is accused of engaging in the conduct that resulted in the report will be advised of the results of the investigation.

The university will consider the facts and circumstances of each reported act of intolerance to determine whether a communication to the campus community about the incident is appropriate, taking into consideration various interests such as safety and confidentiality. The university's Sensitive Issues Team or Critical Incident Response Team may be involved in evaluating the appropriate type of communication in a particular case.

No. The university prohibits and does not tolerate retaliation against any individual who in good faith files a complaint of an act of intolerance or is involved as a witness or participant in the complaint or investigation process. Engaging in retaliation can result in disciplinary action, up to and including separation from the university.

#### What can I do to make a difference?

To learn more about how to get involved in promoting awareness and openness, and USD's efforts to educate our community, please visitwww.sandiego.edu/unitedfront/

# Responsibility of Students

Students enrolled at USD are responsible for adhering to all regulations, schedules and deadlines outlined in this course catalog and in any handbooks, contracts, or guideline sheets pertinent to their program. Students have the further responsibility of ensuring that all graduation requirements are met. Questions on these matters should be directed to the student's faculty advisor.

### **Student Conduct**

Students attending USD are accountable to the Student Code of Rights and Responsibilities, which is published online at <a href="www.sandiego.edu/conduct">www.sandiego.edu/conduct</a>. The purpose of the code is to maintain a safe environment for the campus community, support the academic goals of the university and to foster the personal development of students. Included in the code are the rules of conduct, disciplinary process and sanctions, university policies and procedures and the academic integrity policy. Parking regulations are available at parking services.

# Smoking and Tobacco-Free Policy

The university is dedicated to providing a healthy, comfortable and productive environment for its employees, students and guests. The Surgeon General of the United States has determined that cigarette smoking is the leading preventable cause of illness and premature death in the nation. Moreover, research indicates that non-smokers who are regularly exposed to passive (secondhand) tobacco smoke are also at increased risk of illness. Passive smoke appears to be especially deleterious to the health of certain populations, including the elderly, children and individuals with allergies, asthma, respiratory disease, or cardiovascular disease. For these reasons, the Surgeon General has urged employers to implement broadly-based health promotion programs with special emphasis on smoking cessation. The response to the Surgeon General's advice and the medical evidence has been an overwhelming trend toward protection of the health and safety of non-smokers.

Therefore, as an institution committed to providing a safe and healthful environment, the University of San Diego prohibits smoking and the use of any smoking or tobacco products at all times on or in any USD-owned or USD-leased property or facility, either indoor or outdoor. Effective August 18, 2015, all USD property shall be smoking and tobacco free.

This policy applies to all employees, students, contractors, vendors, guests, organizers and attendees at any on-campus programs or events, and other visitors.

No Smoking signs will be posted and maintained in public areas by the appropriate authority, with additional signs available for departments and administrative units to post within their areas as needed.

Additionally, smoking and tobacco products may not be sold, distributed or promoted on university property. The university will not accept smoking or tobacco related advertising on university property or within any university published materials.

For the purpose of this policy:

- "Smoking" means smoking any substance, including but not limited to tobacco, cloves or marijuana.
- "Smoking products" include, but are not limited to, all cigarette products (cigarettes, cigars, hookahs, pipes, etc.)
- "Tobacco products" means any substance containing tobacco leaf, including but not limited to cigarettes, cigars, pipe tobacco, snuff, e-cigarettes, chewing tobacco, dipping tobacco, or any other preparation of tobacco, whether or not such product is smoke-producing.
- "Smoking or Tobacco related" applies to the use of a smoking or tobacco brand or corporate name, trademark, logo, symbol, motto, selling message, etc. identical to or similar to those used for any brand of smoking or tobacco products or manufacturer of smoking or tobacco products.
- "USD-owned or USD-leased property or facility" includes, but is not limited
  to: all indoor and outdoor spaces on the USD campus or at off-campus
  locations owned or leased by USD, including all residence halls, buildings,
  classrooms, outdoor common and educational areas, recreational areas,
  athletic venues, dining areas, and university-owned and university-leased
  vehicles (regardless of location).

The only exceptions to the policy include:

- Smoking and/or tobacco use may be permitted for traditional ceremonial activities of recognized cultural and/or religious groups.
- Research involving tobacco or tobacco products, or tobacco use for educational or clinical purposes upon review and written preapproval as specified by campus procedures.

The university community is encouraged to take responsibility for communication and enforcement of this policy. Enforcement should be primarily educational with an emphasis on cessation resources.

Where this is not possible, does not occur or otherwise fails, then responsibility for enforcement of the policy shall be as follows:

- Employees: Appropriate Supervisor or Manager
- Students: Dean of Students or Designee (Violations may be reported to residence hall staff and public safety officers.)
- · Visitors: Department of Public Safety

The consequences for a failure to comply with this policy will be determined as appropriate under the circumstances. Those consequences may include without limitation a request to refrain from the activities prohibited by this policy; a request to leave campus; in the case of a student, disciplinary action in accordance with the Student Code of Rights and Responsibilities, or, in the case of a university employee, disciplinary action in accordance with the university's disciplinary process.

This policy shall be included in the Student Code of Rights and Responsibilities and the university's policy manual. Information and services related to smoking and/or tobacco use, prevention and cessation are available for students and

employees. Contact the Student Health Center or Human Resources for more information.

## **Honor Societies**

## Phi Beta Kappa

Phi Beta Kappa is the oldest and most prestigious academic honor society in the United States. Phi Beta Kappa was established in 1776 and has evolved to become the nation's leading advocate for the liberal arts and sciences at the undergraduate level. The society's distinctive emblem, the golden key, is widely recognized as a symbol of academic achievement. USD received its Phi Beta Kappa charter in 2003. To be eligible for membership, students must be majoring in an area of the liberal arts or sciences, hold senior standing, and have attained a GPA that places them in the top 10 percent of their class. Additional criteria for selection include intellectual integrity, tolerance, and a broad range of intellectual interests. Each spring a campus committee composed of Phi Beta Kappa faculty invites a select group of students to become members in the Society. Students who accept the invitation are then initiated into the Phi Beta Kappa Society in a formal ceremony.

## Kappa Gamma Pi

Kappa Gamma Pi is the national Catholic college graduate honor society. Members are graduates who have demonstrated academic excellence and outstanding service and leadership during their college years. As candidates, they pledge to continue to provide examples of scholarship, leadership, and service in their personal and professional lives. This commitment is the difference that distinguishes nomination to Kappa Gamma Pi as one of the most relevant and prestigious awards on campus. Kappa Gamma Pi was founded in 1926 at the National Catholic Educational Association Conference of Catholic Colleges. Today, more than 41,000 graduates of 139 Catholic colleges are Kappa Gamma Pi members. They live throughout the United States and in many foreign countries. Their successful lives and careers exemplify outstanding leadership and service in church, profession, and community. Kappa Gamma Pi has members from the first graduating classes of USD to the present. These members are Catholic men and women as well as men and women of other faith communities. In January, graduating seniors who have a GPA of 3.5 or above receive a letter from the Provost informing them that they are qualified by reason of their academic achievement to apply for membership in Kappa Gamma Pi. If they have exemplified outstanding leadership and service during their years at USD, they are encouraged to submit a letter of recommendation and an essay to the selection committee. Kappa Gamma Pi sponsors the St. Catherine Medal, awarded at the Honors Convocation, for outstanding leadership and service as well as the Cornaro Scholarship for members of Kappa Gamma Pi pursuing graduate studies.

### **Mortar Board**

Mortar Board is a national honor society for college seniors which was founded in 1918 and chartered on the USD campus in the fall of 2000. The society recognizes in its members the qualities of scholastic achievement, outstanding leadership, and dedicated service to the university and the community. There are over 200 active chapters of Mortar Board at colleges throughout the country. To be eligible for membership, students must have junior standing in the spring semester with an overall GPA that places them in the top 35 percent of their class. Moreover, students must have participated and excelled in leadership and service activities during their college years. They must submit an information sheet, a resume, a letter of recommendation from a USD faculty member, and a personal essay for review by the current Mortar Board members. Admission to Mortar Board at USD is highly competitive and is restricted to approximately 30 students each year. USD's Mortar Board chapter is an active student organization and expects full participation from its members. Chapter members participate in bi-weekly meetings, an annual Faculty Appreciation Dinner, tutoring and other service activities, interaction with San Diego's Mortar Board Alumni Chapter, social

events, and fundraising for the STRIVE scholarship, which chapter members established for college bound seniors at Kearny High School who have excelled in scholarship, leadership, and service. Mortar Board members have the opportunity to apply for local and national Mortar Board scholarships and fellowships to be used for graduate study. Each year in February a letter is mailed to juniors who are in the top 35 percent of their class. The letter invites those students to submit their essay, letter of recommendation, and other required information for consideration for Mortar Board membership. Selected students are "tapped" in one of their classes by USD Mortar Board members. The Mortar Board Initiation ceremony occurs in April.

# **University-Wide Centers**

## **Academic Centers and Institutes**

The university's academic centers and institutes bring faculty and students together to pursue research, service and outreach on scholarly and social topics that provide direct benefits and services to the San Diego, national and international communities.

#### School of Business

For centers and institutes within the School of Business, see here (catalogs.sandiego.edu/graduate/colleges-schools/business-administration).

## School of Leadership and Education Sciences

For centers and institutes within the School of Leadership and Education Sciences, see here (catalogs.sandiego.edu/graduate/colleges-schools/leadership-education-sciences).

### *Institute of College Initiatives*

The Institute of College Initiatives (ICI) oversees the USD TRiO programs funded by the U.S. Department of Education: Upward Bound, McNair Scholars and Student Support Services. ICI also collaborate with local educational institutions that include Expanding Your Horizons (science, math and technology conference for 6th through 10th grade girls), Botball and Global Leadership Connection (for high school juniors) among other programs and liaisons. The USD TRiO Upward Bound program supports low-income, first-generation college students from Kearny High School in Linda Vista in their preparation for college entrance education through academic advising, tutoring, SAT preparation, college admissions and financial aid guidance and a five-week summer residential academic program on USD's campus. The USD McNair Scholars program prepares high-achieving undergraduate students for doctoral study through research and scholarly activities with faculty mentors in their discipline. Student Support Services (SSS) serves over 300 USD students from low-income and/or first generation backgrounds and/or who have documented disabilities through advising, financial aid and personal counseling, instructional support, peer networking, mentoring and post-BA planning.

# Study Abroad Opportunities Ahlers Center for International Business

 $\label{eq:Gardings} G\ (catalogs.sandiego.edu/graduate/colleges-schools/business-administration) oto (catalogs.sandiego.edu/graduate/colleges-schools/business-administration) for full details.$ 

#### Global Center

Go to (http://www.sandiego.edu/soles/global-center) for full details.

# Institute on International and Comparative Law

The School of Law offers international law courses in Barcelona, Florence, London and Paris. Each course is conducted in English by a full-time law professor with guest lectures by local officials, faculty and lawyers.

The programs provide intensive training in international law while introducing American students to the legal institutions of another country. Students from around the world attend and benefit from exposure to different cultural milieus, guest faculty viewpoints, foreign legal institutions and international history through tours and simulated legal proceedings. Graduate students in international relations or international business may be accepted into this program. Contact the program coordinator at (619) 260-7460, fax (619) 260-2230, or go to www.sandiego.edu/lawabroad.

### International Center

The University of San Diego is committed to actively promoting awareness, appreciation and respect for the complexity of cultural, political, environmental and social issues worldwide while creating a campus environment that builds theoretical and practical skills needed to interact effectively in today's global society. To that end, the USD International Center houses both the Office of International Studies Abroad and the Office of International Students and Scholars, which collaborate with various units across campus to help internationalize the USD campus.

#### Office of International Studies Abroad

USD students in good standing may apply for a variety of international study abroad programs affiliated with the university. Each of the individual schools and colleges offer graduate level study abroad opportunities. For more information about these opportunities, please see above. To contact the Office of International Studies Abroad, please call (619) 260-4598 or go to www.sandiego/edu/international.

#### Office of International Students and Scholars

The Office of International Students and Scholars is responsible for all immigration matters that affect international students and exchange visitors attending USD on non-immigrant visas. It serves as the liaison between USD, the Department of Homeland Security, the Bureau of Citizenship and Immigration Services and the Department of State. It also monitors USD and its international students' and exchange visitors' compliance with federal and state immigration laws and regulations and the academic progress of all international students on F-1 and J-1 visas.

The Office of International Students and Scholars is in close contact with foreign governments, embassies and international organizations. The office provides immigration advising for international students, exchange visitors and all departments at USD that engage in research and academic exchanges with institutions outside the United States.

The Office of International Students and Scholars is also responsible for the welfare of all its international students and scholars. The office acts as a resource and support to international students and scholars in the transition to a new culture and environment. Assistance and advising is provided regarding the procedures, expectations and requirements of the U.S. academic system and the opportunity for the entire campus community to interact in order to promote and encourage globalization. The Office of International Students and Scholars provides a myriad of educational, informational and social programs that include but are not limited to:

• International Student/Scholar Orientation

- · Health care issues in the U.S. and health insurance enrollment
- Career planning and employment issues in the U.S. as a non-immigrant
- · Opportunities for Community Service
- · International Coffee Hours
- · International Dinners
- · International Movies
- · Holidays Celebrations

The Office of International Students and Scholars is housed in the International Center located in Serra Hall, Room 315;(619) 260-4598; go to www.sandiego.edu/oiss

### **International Student Applicants**

See here (https://www.sandiego.edu/admissions/undergraduate/international-applicants).

## International Study Resources

- · Ahlers Center for International Business
- · Hahn School of Nursing International Programs
- · Joan B. Kroc School of Peace Studies
- · School of Leadership and Education Sciences Global Center

## **English Language Academy**

The USD Division of Continuing Education, English Language Academy (ELA) offers an intensive English language proficiency and cross-cultural program.

The ELA courses for undergraduate or graduate students include language skills for academic and professional purposes. The program currently offers five levels of academic and TOEFL preparation courses. It is a year-round program with small class sizes and a cultural component. Students will be tested and placed in courses appropriate to their skill level, needs and goals. For more information, contact the English Language Academy at (619) 260-8887.

## **United Front Multicultural Center**

The United Front Multicultural Center plays an important role in the university's plan for developing a community that is culturally diverse and responsive to changing local, regional and national demographics. For over ten years, the United Front Multicultural Center has raised awareness of issues of diversity and inclusion, successfully advocating for policy change and securing the university's commitment to an ethnic studies program. There are currently ten multicultural student organizations housed in the center. Each of these groups present programs that celebrate their culture and serve to educate the campus. The offices for the director and assistant director of the multicultural center are located in this area.

For more information about the United Front Multicultural Center go to the Student Life Pavilion, Room 418, call 619-260-2395 or go to www.sandiego.edu/unitedfront.

The university's three university-wide centers are described below. In addition, the university has academic centers and institutes that are offered within the College and schools that bring faculty and students together to pursue research, service, and outreach on scholarly and social topics. The academic centers and institutes can be viewed at Centers and Institutes (http://www.sandiego.edu/academics/centers-and-institutes.php).

## Center for Inclusion and Diversity

The Center for Inclusion and Diversity (CID) at the University of San Diego serves the campus by coordinating, advocating, and assessing diversity and inclusion efforts across the institution. As a community of inquiry, the CID cultivates questions of difference and mutuality across curricular and co-curricular

contexts. The University of San Diego holds deep commitment to developing and sustaining a diverse campus community in the broadest sense, including differences in gender, race, ethnicity, generational history, culture, socioeconomic class, religion, sexual orientation, national origin, citizenship status, political perspectives, geographic origin, and physical ability. The center is located in the University Center, Room 225 or go to Center for Inclusion and Diversity (http://www.sandiego.edu/inclusion).

## Center for Christian Spirituality

The USD Center for Christian Spirituality (CCS) fosters the exploration and the development of Christian spirituality in dialogue with other spiritual traditions in four areas: personal enrichment, professional life, academic life and social justice. Center activities include:

- · workshops and seminars in spirituality and professional life;
- · courses in spirituality and spiritual direction preparation; and,
- collaborative initiatives in social justice both within and outside the USD community.

Open to all. Student participation is welcome. For information, contact the Center for Christian Spirituality, Maher Hall, Room 253, or (619) 260-4784.

# Frances G. Harpst Center for Catholic Thought and Culture

In essence, the CCTC's mission is concerned with helping USD and its neighbors to explore, understand and celebrate everything it means to participate in a university community that calls itself Catholic in the twenty-first century.

#### The Role of the Center

In its mission to enable and foster the engagement between USD's Catholic identity and its academic mission, the Center for Catholic Thought and Culture seeks to:

- Develop thought-provoking programs that will engage the university and local community in critical dialogue with the Catholic intellectual and cultural traditions
- Promote Catholic Social Teaching and its integration into the academic and institutional life of the university community
- Organize conferences, liturgical and cultural events and exhibits that showcase the Catholic Church's rich heritage and its contributions to the arts, letters and sciences and to all which ennobles humans to pursue what is right and just
- Provide faculty with opportunities and support for development and to create quality courses that expose students to the Catholic intellectual and cultural traditions
- Showcase and Facilitate the many exciting and important areas of USD
  life that embody the foundational ethos, vision and ongoing mission of the
  University through collaborative and bridge-building ventures across campus
  and beyond
- Contribute to key discussions pertaining to the Christian cultural, ecclesial, intellectual and social life at local, national and international level through research initiatives, projects and the ongoing core activities of the Center

From its inception, the Church has been a community of faith and service. Historically, Catholicism has also always been a community of inquiry, learning and reasoned discourse. The catholicity of the University of San Diego is aptly captured in the gospel-inspired principle 'all are welcome'. Though the focus of CCTC's programs and cultural events is Catholic, people of all faith traditions and

people of none, are most welcome to attend CCTC sponsored events and benefit from the exchange of ideas.

# **CAMPUS LIFE**

### Get Involved

As a recognized Changemaker campus, USD offers a wide variety of ways for you to get involved and make a difference. Join a student organization or Associated Students, or simply be active in our community.

The University of San Diego offers many ways to get involved with our student, local and global communities.

Many students say it can help you:

- connect with fellow students and faculty who share your passion for learning and life and who will support you on your journey;
- · find your voice and lead by example;
- · feel good about yourself by helping others who are in need;
- · explore different subjects, topics and perspectives.

Explore the possibilities provided by our dynamic campus environment!

# **Campus Recreation and Sports**

Campus Recreation offers members of the university community many opportunities to use their leisure time constructively to complement USD's academic experience. Students are encouraged to use the facilities of the Sports Center at the east end of campus. Facilities include a heated swimming pool, a six-basket gym, two indoor volleyball courts, four tennis courts and exercise rooms. Other on-campus facilities include the Jenny Craig Pavilion McNamara Fitness Center, Mission Café and Fitness Center, Manchester multi-use field and the Valley soccer/multi-use field by the Mission Crossroads. In addition, sailing, water-skiing and surfing facilities and equipment at the Mission Bay Aquatic Center are available on a fee basis for use by the USD community. Students may also participate in the many recreation classes (as for-credit or non-credit) offered by the Campus Recreation department. Some of the classes include: golf, scuba, martial arts, yoga, dance, tennis, swimming, fitness and many additional leisure activity courses. In addition, students are encouraged to sign up as free agents or organize teams to participate in the more than 20 intramural leagues. Other leisure programs available throughout the year include a master's swim training program, injury rehabilitation, specialized weekend fitness classes and Group Ex Fitness. For more information, please visit Campus Recreation (http://www.sandiego.edu/ campusrecreation).

## Special Events

The Special Events program brings together many organizations and departments within the university to offer social events and activities that enhance the campus community. Some of the events may include: Family Weekend golf tournament, Extramural Beach Volleyball, wellness workshops and specialty classes and many other engaging events.

## **Intramural Sports**

With a full schedule of men's, women's, co-recreational teams and individual sports activities, the intramural program offers every community member the opportunity to participate in competitive as well as recreational sports. Activities include softball, football, basketball, tennis, soccer, golf, running events, volleyball, dodge ball, table tennis, inner tube water polo and more. Additionally, Campus Recreation has a Grad/Law Recreation program designed specifically for graduate and law students. This program includes intramural leagues and community special events for graduate students only.

## Sports Clubs

Sports Clubs are student-registered organizations administered through the Campus Recreation department. USD community members may register to join a competitive and/or recreational sports club on campus. Competitive Sports Clubs include: Baseball, Equestrian, Men's and Women's Lacrosse, Men's Rugby, Men's and Women's Soccer, Men's and Women's Volleyball, Surf, Men's Water Polo, Water Ski, Ultimate Frisbee, Climbing, Tennis, Golf, Cross Country and Ice Hockey. These clubs compete in local and national collegiate leagues plus host tryouts. Recreational Sports Clubs such as Dance Company may compete in competitions; however they tend to sponsor recreational activities as their primary function. For more information, please visit the Campus Recreation Sport Clubs (http://www.sandiego.edu/campusrecreation/sports-clubs) website.

## **University Fitness**

University Fitness (USD FIT) is a branch of Campus Recreation and is dedicated to developing the minds, bodies and souls of the campus community. Services are centered in the Bradford Lee Bosley Mission Café and Fitness Center, a wellness focused facility located in the heart of Mission housing. Supporting the mission and values of USD, the center promotes healthy lifestyle choices and social interaction to enhance the total student experience. USD FIT offers group exercise classes and personal training at nominal fees to the campus community. For more information please visit Mission Fitness Center (http://www.sandiego.edu/mfc). USD community members may also enjoy informal use of the JCP McNamara Fitness Center and the Sports Center.

### **Outdoor Adventures**

Outdoor Adventures, which is part of Campus Recreation, offers services to students, faculty, staff and alumni for a reduced price, encouraging self-growth and self-expression. The OA Trips Program offers outings such as surfing, rock climbing, kayaking, canoeing, snorkeling, backpacking, hiking and outdoor cooking, as well as a rental and retail area for people interested in planning a personal outing. Another popular program is the Customized Trip Program where private outings for groups are planned based on their specific requests. Outdoor Adventures offers guide development and facilitator training programs for students to learn to lead trips, facilitate group programs and an Orientation Adventure Freshmen wilderness program allows new students the opportunity to meet their peers in the great outdoors before the start of school. Outdoor Adventures is located in the University Center, Room 136. For more information, please call (619) 260-4709 or go visit Outdoor Adventures (http://www.sandiego.edu/oa).

### **Athletics**

As a member of the National Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA), the University of San Diego Department of Intercollegiate Athletics maintains a full program of sports for men and women. Sanctioned men's and women's athletic teams represent the university in Division I National Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA) competition as members of the eight-team West Coast Conference. (The football team competes in the NCAA Division IA Pioneer Football League, the swimming and diving team competes in the Western Athletic Conference and the women's softball team is in the Pacific Coast Softball Conference). The university is represented in the following Division I sports: baseball, basketball, rowing, cross country, football, men's golf, soccer, rowing, cross country, softball, swimming and diving, tennis, track and field and women's volleyball.

# Athletic Eligibility

Admission to the university does not imply eligibility to compete in intercollegiate athletics, particularly in the case of students transferring from another college or university. Concerns about athletic eligibility should be

directed to the appropriate coach or to the Assistant Director of Athletics for Compliance.

# Manchester Family Child Development Center

The primary goal of the Manchester Family Child Development Center (MFCDC) is to offer a safe and enriching environment in which children can grow and learn. It offers a rich, stimulating, family friendly setting that is welcoming and supportive of each child's individual learning pace.

Affiliated with USD's School of Leadership and Education Sciences, the center serves as a practicum and research site for members of the university community. The center accepts all children between the ages of 2-1/2 and 5 years, with the availability of both full- and part-time enrollment. Each class of 12-14 mixed-age children is led by two full time teachers and student support staff.

The center operates from 7:15 a.m.-5:45 p.m., Monday-Friday, 48 weeks per year. Volunteers are welcome and encouraged to inquire. For additional information, including current tuition rates, please contact the center at (619) 260-4620 or visit MFCDC (http://www.sandiego.edu/soles/mfcdc).

# **Dining Services**

Students enjoy excellent value and maximum flexibility when dining on campus. Our Dining Services is ranked #18 nationwide for Best Campus Food – Princeton Review 2016.

We offers several different meal plans suitable for every student. Let us do the shopping, cooking and clean up while you focus on school! All plans offer high quality, fresh foods created by an award-winning team of culinarians. Most plans also include complimentary guest meals and meal equivalencies to dine anywhere on campus. Our dining locations provide much more than sustenance — we are proud to provide attractive, comfortable settings where students may gather to study and socialize.

Campus dining locations: Pavilion Dining (six micro restaurants), Tu Mercado (market/deli), Bert's Bistro, Blue Spoon, La Paloma, Missions Café, Aromas (coffeehouse), Torero Tu Go (food truck), La Gran Terraza restaurant and O'Toole's Pub.

For additional information on campus dining and meal plans, please visit Dining Services (http://www.sandiego.edu/dining).

## **Mail Center**

The Mail Center is located in the Maher Annex with University Copy and Procurement Services on the north side of campus. Manchester Village residents have mailboxes located down the hall from the lobby in Building II.

Service window hours at the Maher Annex are 8 a.m.-5 p.m., Monday-Friday. Stamps may be purchased as well as postage for domestic parcels. UPS and Federal Express services are also available. For more information: (619) 260-2204 or visit Mail Center (http://www.sandiego.edu/mailcenter).

# **One Stop Student Center**

The One Stop Student Center provides specially trained counselors to help students with all questions related to financial aid, billing and payment, and registration.

Additionally, students can access many services through their MySanDiego portal. These can be found under the Torero Hub tab and include My Academics, My Financial Aid and My Student Account.

To see a One Stop counselor:

- Text univsandiego to (619) 356-2275 or;
- Go to One Stop (http://www.sandiego.edu/onestop)

The One Stop Student Center is located in the University Center, Room 126. For more information, call (619) 260-2700 or email (onestop@sandiego.edu).

# Parking Services and Transportation

# **Parking Services**

Parking Services is committed to creating a helpful and welcoming environment through the delivery of excellent service. A valid USD parking permit must be displayed Monday-Friday, between 7 a.m.-7 p.m. All vehicles must be parked in the area appropriate to the permit issued. Parking permits and additional parking information are available at the Parking Services website (http://www.sandiego.edu/parking).

Parking Services is located in the Hahn University Center, Room 102, and can be reached by phone at (619) 260-4518 or by emailing parking@sandiego.edu.

### Tram Service

USD provides an on-campus shuttle service that moves students, faculty, staff and visitors to various stops on the campus. The Tram Service also provides morning and evening service to Old Town Trolley Station. The Tram Service operates full time during the fall and spring semesters and on a limited basis during intersession and summer. For more information on the tram service go to Tram Services (http://www.sandiego.edu/safety/tram\_services). Tram service is operated under Public Safety.

# **Public Safety**

The Department of Public Safety is open 24 hours a day, 7 days a week and provides a full range of community-oriented crime prevention and crime control services to contribute to the safety and security of the campus community. Public safety officers patrol the campus around the clock, seven days a week. The department also offers a dusk-to-dawn public safety escort for community members walking to any location on campus or within a one-mile radius. Emergencies on campus should be reported directly to Public Safety calling x2222 from any on-campus phone or (619) 260-2222 from an off-campus phone. Non-emergency situations can be reported at x7777.

Public Safety complies with the Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Campus Crime Statistics Act through the Daily Crime and Fire Log available on the Public Safety (http://www.sandiego.edu/safety) website.

## **Residential Life**

The purpose of the Department of Residential Life is to enhance and support the mission of the university and facilitate student learning. Resident students can expect to find supportive faculty, students, and staff, in addition to a variety of resources and programs, all focused on the university's core values. Residence halls are not only a place to sleep and study, but they also provide an environment in which students are able to experience personal growth and development with a strong sense of community.

Resident living accommodations house approximately 2,600 undergraduate students. First-year students live in themed living learning communities, while second-year students live in apartment-style housing communities. Juniors and seniors are also able to choose to live in on-campus apartments, as space allows. Rooms are available in traditional dormitory style, suite-style living areas and apartment units. Residence hall and University Ministry staff are present in each living area to serve as a resource for students.

All unmarried students with credits defining them as either a first-year or second-year student who are under 20 years of age at the initial start date of their first agreement period of occupancy at the University and who do not commute from the permanent (i.e. primary and not a secondary) San Diego County home of their parent(s) or court appointed legal guardian are required to live in University housing. A Resident who becomes 20 years of age following the Resident's initial matriculation at the University will still be subject to and required to fulfill the two-year residency requirement.

Residence halls will be open for occupancy a few days prior to the first day of classes each semester. Exact dates are stated in the terms and conditions of the Housing and Dining Services Agreement. Each room must be vacated 24 hours after the student's last final examination, or by noon on the day following the last day of final examinations, whichever comes first. The residence halls are closed during Christmas, intersession and spring break. The academic year housing contract does not include housing during these vacation periods, except for residents of Manchester Village, San Antonio de Padua, Presidio and University Terrace Apartments, although students may leave personal belongings in their rooms. Students have the option of contracting for housing during Intersession or spring break at published rates. Summer housing is also available in Manchester Village, San Antonio de Padua, Presidio and University Terrace Apartments, which requires an additional cost and application. Specific terms and conditions regarding student housing are included in the Housing and Dining Services Agreement that is provided to all resident students.

For more information, please visit Residential Life (http://www.sandiego.edu/residentiallife).

# Student Government and Organizations

## Student Leadership and Involvement

For those interested in getting involved, making meaningful connections, and learning about leadership, the Student Leadership, Involvement and Changemaking area (SLIC) is the place for you. Located on the 3rd floor of the Student Life Pavilion, SLIC is home to the areas of student activities, leadership development, student organizations, Welcome Week, Fraternity and Sorority Life and the Changemaker Hub. Through the SLIC, students can get connected to over 150 Student Organizations, Associated Students, Torero Program Board and Fraternity and Sorority Life. The SLIC also provides resources for event planning and leadership trainings on how to better lead a group and affect change. The Creative Zone and our Involvement Consultants can help with marketing, team building, event planning support and involvement opportunities. Finally, all faculty/staff/administrator advisors use the SLIC's Advisor Resources to help enhance and enrich the student leader experience.

## Student Government

All undergraduate students belong to the Associated Students of USD, a self-governing student group. Officers of the Associated Students (AS) and members of its governing board are elected or appointed by the students. The AS Leadership Team serves the University of San Diego undergraduates as official representatives, who promote opportunities for growth and expression, address student issues, and enrich a diverse, inclusive, and engaged community.

The Leadership Team is comprised of a president, vice president, speaker, directors and coordinators. The Student Senate is composed of a Speaker, Parliamentarian, Speaker Pro-Tem and Senators (Academic, Residential and Commuter). Associated Students receives funding from the Student Activity Fee and financially supports campus programming and campus services, facilitates communication between student organizations and serves as the official student voice to administration.

## Torero Program Board

The Torero Program Board (TPB) is charged with coordinating all of the events and programs sponsored by the AS. They coordinate a variety of programs including concerts, class programming, off-campus events, school spirit, special events, multicultural and after-dark. The Torero Program Board is lead by the TPB Chair.

## **Student Organizations**

The following is a list of registered undergraduate student organizations as of Spring 2017. New organizations are always being formed. For more information about a specific organization or to express interest in joining, contact the SLIC Involvement Consultants (http://www.sandiego.edu/student-leadership/involvement-consultants) at usdinvolvement@gmail.com; (619) 260-4802. Complete descriptions of the student organizations are available on Torero Orgs (https://sandiego.collegiatelink.net).

### Academic/Professional Organizations

**Accounting Society** 

African Student Union

Alcala Club

Alpha Chi Omega

Alpha Delta Pi

Alpha Kappa Psi

Alpha Pi Sigma

Alpha Psi Omega

American Indian and Indigenous Student Organization

American Marketing Association

American Medical Students Association

American Society of Heating, Refrigerating, and Air-Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE)

American Society of Mechanical Engineers

Anthropology Club

Asian Student Association

Associated Students

Association for Computing Machinery

**Basement Society** 

Be Blue Go Green

Beta Alpha Psi

Beta Theta Pi

Black Student Union

Campus Connection

Chinese Cultural and Language Association

Chinese Students and Scholars Association

Climbing Club

Club Ice Hockey

Club Surf Team

Club Tennis

Club Waterski

Coaching Corps USD

Colleges Against Cancer

Cool Kids Club

Delta Sigma Pi

Delta Tau Delta

Dental Club Panhellenic Council
Don't Be Board People of the Islands

Economics Council Phi Alpha Delta Law Fraternity International

Entrepreneurship Club Equestrian Team Eta Kappa Nu

Everthinkers: The Philosophy Club

Fair Trade Club Fashion Club

Filipino Ugnayan Student Organization Folklorico and Mariachi Association

French Club

Funky Bot (USD Improv Club)

Gamma Phi Beta

Global Engineering Brigades Habitat for Humanity USD Chapter

HERO Club History Club Honors Student Board Humanitarian Society

Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers Institute of Industrial and Systems Engineers

Interfraternity Council
International Buddy Program
International Business Club
International Student Organization
Intervarsity Christian Fellowship

iSit: Mindfulness and Meditation Club Italian Culture and Language Organization

Japan Club

Jewish Student Union Kappa Alpha Theta Kappa Delta Sorority

Kappa Kappa Gamma Korean Student Association

Lambda Chi Alpha Lambda Pi Eta

Law and Business Mediation Club Leadership Student Group Less Than Three

Let's Share the Love

Linda Vista Dollars for Scholars

Make-A-Wish Club Marine Science Club Math Club

Mathigami Men's Club Soccer Men's Club Volleyball Men's Club Water Polo Men's Lacrosse Men's Rugby

Model United Nations

Mortar Board (Alcala Chp of Mortar Brd Nat Coll Sr Honor Society)

Movimiento Estudiantil Chicanx de Aztlan

Mu Phi Epsilon

National Society of Black Engineers National Society of Collegiate Scholars

Navigators of Academics, Culture and Opportunity (NACO)

Net Impact

Nonprofit Leadership Student Association

Order of Omega Outdoor Adventures Phi Alaba Dalta Lavy Fratamity Inter

Phi Alpha Theta Phi Delta Epsilon Phi Gamma Delta Phi Kappa Theta Pi Sigma Alpha Photography Club

Photography Cl Pi Beta Phi Pi Kappa Phi Pi Phi Pi Tau Sigma Polyglot Club

Pre-Nursing Society
Pre-Optometry Club
Pre-Pharmacy Club
Pre-Vet Club
PRIDE
Psychology Club

Psychology Journal Club Real Estate Society Red Cross Club Rotaract Club Sales Club

Saudi Students Association

Sigma Alpha Phi, The National Society of Leadership and Success

Sigma Phi Epsilon Sigma Pi Sigma Tau Delta Sigma Theta Psi SLIC

Social Dance Club

Society for Collegiate Leadership and Achievement

Society of Automotive Engineers Society of Physics Students

Society of Professional Hispanic Engineers (SHPE)

Society of Women Engineers Sociology Honors Society Soup Kitchen Club

South Asian Student Alliance

Spanish Club

Speech Pathology Club Spoon University STEM Outreach Club Student Alumni Association Student Finance Association

Student International Business Council Student Outreach and Recruitment

Student Vegans United Student Veteran Organization Students of Color in STEM/M

Students for Life

Students Making Initiatives to Love Everyone Supply Chain Management Association

Tau Beta Pi

TEDx University of San Diego

The Alcala Review

Theta Tau

The Expansion Club
The Investment Club
Torero Dance Marathon

Torero Gaming Torero Program Board Ultimate Frisbee

United Front Multicultural Center

University Ministry
USD 3D Printing Club
USD Angling Society

USD Bikes USD Biology Club USD Border Angels

USD Chemistry and Biochemistry Club

USD Club Baseball USD Club Cross Country USD Club Swim

USD College Republicans USD Colony of Theta Tau USD Dance Company USD Democrats

USD Global Medical Brigades

USD Golf Club

USD Health Occupations Students of America

USD HOST Homeless Outreach Student Transition Program

USD Jiu-Jitsu and Contact Sports

USD Pataka USD Pep Band

USD Pre-Physical/Occupational Therapy Club

USD Pre-Physician Assistant Club

USD Radio USD Vista USDtv Vigor Garden

Vigor Gardening Club Women's Center Women's Club Soccer Women's Club Volleyball Women's Lacrosse YALLA Sunday Soccer

Yoga Club

#### Fraternity and Sorority Life

Interfraternity Council

Beta Theta Pi Delta Tau Delta Lambda Chi Alpha

Phi Beta Sigma Fraternity, Inc.

Phi Gamma Delta Phi Kappa Theta Pi Kappa Phi Sigma Phi Epsilon Sigma Pi

Panhellenic Council
Alpha Chi Omega

Alpha Chi Omega Alpha Delta Pi Alpha Pi Sigma Gamma Phi Beta Kappa Alpha Theta Kappa Delta

Kappa Kappa Gamma

Pi Beta Phi Sigma Theta Psi

Recreational and Sports Clubs

Baseball Basketball

Brazilian Jiu-Jitsu and Combat Sports

Climbing
Cross Country
Dance Company
Equestrian
Golf
Ice Hockey
Lacrosse-Men
Lacrosse-Women
Rugby-Men
Running Club
Ski Club
Soccer-Men

Soccer-Women

Surf Swim Tennis Ultimate Frisbee Volleyball-Men Volleyball-Women Water Polo-Men Water Polo-Women Waterski

#### **Religious Affiliated Organizations**

Intervarsity Christian Fellowship

Jewish Student Union

Operation Christmas Child at USD

Students for Life

## **Special Interest Organizations**

Active Minds at University of San Diego

Associated Students

**ASTRA** 

Basement Society
Be Blue Go Green
Campus Connections
CASA (ToreroOrgs)
Chi Gamma Sigma
Colleges Against Cancer

Funky Bot

Global Engineering Brigades Habitat for Humanity USD Chapter

HERO Club

Less Than 3 Dance Crew Linda Vista Dollars for Scholars

Marine Science Club

Pep Band
Photography Club
Spanish Club
Spoon University
Student Vegans United
Student Veteran Organization
Students for a Democratic Society

The Alcalá Review
The Investment Club
The Stargazing Club
Torero Dance Marathon

Torero Gaming USD Bikes

USD College Democrats

USD College Republicans

USD Global Medical Brigades

USD Pre-Physical/Occupational Therapy Club

USD Social Dance Club

USD Student Media

### Changemaker

Active Shooter Awareness Club

Founders Club

Gather for Girls

iSit: Mindfulness and Meditation Club

**Knitting Club** 

Rotaract Club of the University of San Diego

Students Making Initiatives to Love Everyone

TEDx University of San Diego

The Expansion Club

University of San Diego HOST Homeless Outreach Student Transition Program

## **Student Wellness**

If you or someone you care about is in need of assistance, or could benefit from our services, please visit Student Wellness (http://www.sandiego.edu/wellness) for information on how to access services, or call us to discuss your concerns. All of the wellness services are confidential and available to enrolled students free of charge.

# Center for Health and Wellness Promotion

The Center for Health and Wellness Promotion (CHWP) serves the USD student community through educational opportunities, prevention campaigns, campuswide programs, assessment initiatives and individualized interventions. CHWP empowers students to make healthy choices and create a university climate conducive to the overall success and well being of the individual student and campus community.

Individual consultations and assessments leading to personalized recommendations and support are available on a variety of wellness matters (e.g. problematic drinking, smoking cessation, nutrition). Group services provide opportunities for students to obtain important wellness information, seek support from peers and enhance one's ability to make healthy choices. CHWP also provides 12-step support services for students seeking to address substance dependence. A variety of student leadership opportunities are available through CHWP. Peer education groups serve the USD community by sponsoring education and outreach activities to promote healthy choices. Peer education efforts are focused on raising awareness of wellness issues affecting today's college student. Peer outreach programs address sexual assault and the risks associated with problematic drinking, substance abuse and other related health behaviors and concerns.

CHWP provides students with access to web-based assessment tools that provide personalized information to students about risks associated with their individual health and wellness behaviors.

CHWP sponsors College Cab, a safe ride program that is funded through USD Associated Students. This program provides a safe ride to students who find themselves in any situation that places them at risk (e.g. being stranded for any reason, car trouble, wanting to leave an uncomfortable situation). For further details and regulations please visit the CHWP website.

CHWP Hours and Staffing: To schedule an individual appointment, workshop or training and/or for additional information about our programs and services, please

call (619) 260-4618, stop by UC 161, or visit CHWP (http://www.sandiego.edu/chwp).

## **Counseling Center**

During their time at the university, students navigate significant personal developments that can be intellectually, socially and emotionally taxing. Consistent with the university's mission of holistic education, the University of San Diego Counseling Center (USDCC) engages in a broad range of services designed to support the personal and academic development of students. Professional psychologists, psychologists-in-training and a consulting psychiatrist employ brief treatment modalities to address students' emotional and psychological needs as students work to realize their academic potential.

Counseling Services: Many students experience difficulties as they adjust to university life; stress, loneliness, anxiety, depression, body image concerns and relationship issues are common. Currently enrolled students may receive an assessment with recommendations for appropriate treatment and services. Depending on student needs and counselor availability, recommendations may include services provided by USDCC, services provided by other professionals on campus, or services provided by psychiatrists, drug/alcohol abuse specialists, psychologists, nutritionists or other professionals in the community. USDCC services are offered at no cost to students and may include individual or group counseling and psychiatric consultations.

**Prevention and Education:** The USDCC also stresses the importance of preventive educational interventions. In coordination with the Center for Health and Wellness Promotion, USDCC staff provides interactive presentations, workshops and other forms of educational outreach to students, parents, staff and faculty. These programs help maintain a campus climate that supports the optimal functioning of the diverse student population.

**Psychological Consultation:** Counselors are available to students, parents, staff and faculty for consultation on mental health issues. These consultations can occur by telephone or in person and can address any number of concerns, but often serve to help members of the campus community determine whether and how to make a referral to the USDCC.

Academic Consultation: Academic consultation is available to all students desiring to improve their academic performance. Counselors provide a variety of assessments and recommendations, including academic counseling, screenings for possible learning disabilities (coordinated through Disability Services), personal counseling and referrals for tutoring or peer academic support services. Help with test-taking strategies, time management, stress management and other coping skills are also available. Students on academic probation are particularly encouraged to use these services.

**Hours and Staffing:** The Counseling Center is located in Serra Hall, Suite 300. The hours of operation are Monday-Friday, 8:30 a.m.-5 p.m.; with extended hours on Wednesdays until 6 p.m. when classes are in session during the fall and spring semesters

Walk-in hours are from 11 a.m.-3 p.m., Mondays-Fridays, with extended walk-in hours on Wednesdays until 5 p.m. when classes are in session during the fall and spring semesters. The Counseling Center can be reached at (619) 260-4655, or for more information visit USDCC (http://www.sandiego.edu/usdcc). For after-hour emergencies, the counselor on-call can be reached by calling the Department of Public Safety at (619) 260-2222.

## Disability and Learning Differences Resource Center

The Disability and Learning Differences Resource Center (DLDRC) provides specialized resources and services to enrolled students with documented

disabilities and/or learning differences. These services include academic accommodations, disability management counseling and coordinating with other departments (e.g. housing, parking, public safety) to provide assistance.

To receive support from DLDRC, students must first contact our office and submit valid documentation. For each type of disability, there are specific requirements that must be met for documentation to be considered valid. These requirements are described at Disability Services (http://www.sandiego.edu/disability).

Once the disability has been verified by DLDRC, each request and/or recommendation for an accommodation is examined on a case-by-case basis and is implemented with consideration of the student's present needs, supporting documentation and the core requirements of each class. It is the goal of Disability Services to promote maximum student independence.

Our office also offers consultation to students with temporary disabilities (e.g. physical injuries such as broken limbs, etc.) and to students who have health-related dietary restrictions.

If you are a student who would like to be considered for academic accommodations, please follow the instructions under Requesting Services (http://www.sandiego.edu/disability/services).

## Student Health Insurance Plan

All University of San Diego undergraduate and graduate full-time students are required to carry health insurance. This requirement ensures that students in need of health and/or mental health care beyond the scope of services provided at USD by the on-campus Wellness Units, can access the appropriate resources in the community.

When students access their Student Bill for the Fall semester they will notice a charge for the USD sponsored Student Health Insurance Plan on their Student Account. Students will have the option of accepting coverage or waiving the charge if they are already have health insurance. To waive coverage students just have to answer a few simple questions online regarding their current insurance to remove this charge.

For more information about the USD sponsored Student Health Insurance Plan and how to waive or accept, visit Student Health Insurance Plan (http://www.sandiego.edu/healthinsurance).

## Student Health Center

Hours: Monday, Tuesday, Thursday, Friday, 8:30 a.m.-4:30 p.m.; Wednesday; 8:30 a.m.-6:30 p.m. (closed 11 a.m.-1:30 p.m.).

The Student Health Center (SHC) is available for all students attending the University of San Diego. High-quality and convenient outpatient medical care is provided for acute illness, minor injuries and other on-going medical problems. Preventive care, including well-woman and well-man check-ups, study abroad physicals, immunizations and health education is also available. The clinic staff includes physicians, nurse practitioners, a physician assistant, nurses, medical assistants and administrative support staff. Students may make advance appointments for preventive care. Students may make same-day or advance appointments, or may be "triaged" by a registered nurse, who will assess the student's condition and determine the need for urgent attention by our medical staff. A nurse practitioner/physician assistant/physician is available to answer urgent health questions after hours, weekend and holidays and can be reached via Public Safety at (619) 260-2222. Emergency Care is not within the scope of services offered by the Student Health Center. For medical emergencies off-campus, dial 911. For on-campus emergencies, call public safety at (619) 260-2222.

If you are a student, there is no fee to be seen by a healthcare provider at the Student Health Center. However, diagnostic exams and minor procedures, such as electrocardiography (ECG), cryotherapy, suturing or laboratory work, require a minimal fee that is payable by check, credit card, or CampusCash directly to the Health Center at the time of service. In addition, many low-cost prescription and over-the-counter medications are available for purchase at the Health Center. Students have the option of obtaining and paying for these services at the Health Center, or being referred to other facilities or pharmacies in the community. Students that need X-rays or lab work that are not available at the Health Center will be referred to nearby off-site locations. Student Health Center providers can also make referrals to specialists in the community. Students enrolled in the USD sponsored Student Health Insurance Plan reduce their out-of pocket costs when seeking care at the Student Health Center (http://www.sandiego.edu/healthcenter) and obtaining a referral before seeking care from a community provider.

All students are encouraged to have medical insurance coverage that has a minimum benefit for emergency care, as this is NOT provided via student fees. Students should also be aware of whether they have a pharmacy benefit. Although the SHC does not provide insurance billing, a receipt for services can be provided for the student to submit. The university is not responsible for provision or cost of medical care rendered off campus. The Student Health Center is located in Maher Hall, Room 140. For more information, please call (619) 260-4595, or visit Student Health Center (http://www.sandiego.edu/health-center).

## **Torero ID Card**

The Campus Card Services Office is responsible for the Torero ID Card, CampusCash, maintenance of meal plans and the student telephone system. The Torero Card is a campus ID card that has a wide range of services: Campus Cash, meal plans, library privileges, athletic center, dining facilities, Student Health Center, Media Center, Residential Life (Door Access), pay-for-printing and copying, Torero Store, US Bank ATM/debit card and some off-campus vendors.

CampusCash is a prepaid declining balance account managed through your USD ID card and is the key to all your purchases and campus services at USD. Lost or stolen ID cards must be reported immediately to the Campus Card Services Office or (619) 260-5999. If not reported within 24 hours, you will be responsible for any charges accrued, or loss of funds. Students may also flag their ID cards as lost at Campus Cash (http://campuscash.sandiego.edu). After logging into your account select the 'Report Lost Card' option.

Campus Card Services is located in the University Center, Room 127. The office is open Monday-Friday. For more information call (619) 260-5999, email campuscard@sandiego.edu or visit C (http://www.sandiego.edu/campuscard)ampus Card (http://www.sandiego.edu/campuscard).

## **Torero Store**

The Torero Store stocks all required textbooks (new, used, rental and e-books) and school supplies – order online or in store. In addition, you will find a selection of office supplies, USD clothing and Toreros merchandise and gift items. The campus store also carries computers, tablets, software, tech supplies and accessories. Services such as custom t-shirt printing and special orders are also available. All major credit cards are accepted and you may charge all required course materials to your student account.

The Torero Store is located in the Hahn University Center. For more information, please (619) 260-4551 or visit USD Torero Store (http://www.usdtorerostores.com).

# **University Center and Student Life Pavilion**

The Hahn University Center and the Student Life Pavilion function as the focal point of student life on campus and provides Toreros with the experiences, resources and amenities they need to succeed — both in and out of the classroom. Our focus is to provide a heightened sense of community for undergraduate students, graduate and law students, faculty, staff, alumni and visitors through state-of-the-art service, innovative technological resources and first-rate dining and hospitality options.

## **University Center**

The Hahn University Center (UC) provides facilities and related support services for a wide range of educational and social activities. The Office of the Vice President for Student Affairs, Dean of Students and Student Life offices are located in the UC. Student Affairs has overall responsibility for residential life, student government, student activities and student organizations, multicultural and women's centers, health and wellness, recreation and fitness, student conduct and campus dining and hospitality services.

#### 1st Floor:

- · Auxiliary Services
- · Black Student Resource Center,
- · Campus Card Services
- · Center for Health and Wellness Promotions
- · Center for Student Success
- Commuter Lounge
- · ITS Help Desk
- Office of Ethical Development and Restorative Practices
- One Stop Student Center
- Outdoor Adventures
- · Parking Services
- · Student Computer and Printing Station
- US Bank branch

#### 2nd Floor:

- Frank's Lounge and Blue Spoon
- La Gran Terraza restaurant
- · Office of Student Affairs
- O'Toole's Lounge; and the Forum Ballrooms.
- Student Support Services
- Torero Store
- Veteran Student Services
- · University Centers Scheduling and Operations
- · University Ministry

#### Student Life Pavilion

The Student Life Pavilion (SLP) is an extension of the UC and the first gold LEED building on campus. The SLP features a wide-range of dining options, an organic market and numerous spaces for student government, student activities and and student organizations. The first floor offers eleven unique dining options encompassing an array of international cuisine.

- 1st Floor: Pavilion Dining with 11 unique dining options.
- 2nd Floor: Tu Mercado grocery store; L'atelier deli; and Nike shop.

- 3rd Floor: Creative Zone; Student Leadership, Involvement, and Changemaking that brings together Associated Students, Student Organizations and Fraternity and Sorority Life; Mulvaney Center for Community, Awareness and Social Action; and Changemaker Hub.
- 4th Floor: Graduate and Law Commons; Honors Program Office and Lounge; International Student Lounge; United Front Muliticultural Center; USD TV; USD Radio Station; Vista Newspaper; Women's Center with Mother's Room; and a Single-Use restroom.

# **United Front Multicultural Center**

The United Front Multicultural Center (UFMC) engages the University of San Diego community in exploring and affirming the unique identity of each person. The Center fosters an environment where student leaders feel empowered to become change agents for social justice and builds relationships with faculty, staff, students and community members to develop a foundation that honors and values diversity. The UFMC serves as an educational resource, working to contest the dominance of prejudice and intolerance, and works to enact the values of the University as "a welcoming, inclusive and collaborative community...marked by protection of the rights and dignity of the individual."

The United Front Multicultural Center supports USD's 18 multicultural student organizations. The center's work focuses on social justice, identity development and student leadership.

# **University Copy**

USD's full-service copy shop is located in the Maher Annex, on the north perimeter road, behind Maher Hall. We share the building with the Mail Center and Procurement. Output services include printing from digital files, B/W, full color photocopying on a wide variety of paper stock and large format poster printing. Bindery services include coil, tape and comb binding, cutting, folding, perforating, padding, collating, stapling, laminating and shrink wrapping. Notary services are also available by appointment.

All of our current copier papers are recycled and/or SFI-Certified. University Copy hours are 8 a.m.-5 p.m., Monday-Friday. For more information, call (619) 260-4890 or visit University Copy (http://www.sandiego.edu/copy).

# **University Ministry**

## A Place to Belong, Believe and Become

University Ministry supports all members of the USD community — including people from all faith traditions as well as those still searching for their religious identity — to grow spiritually during their time on campus. Committed to the truth that we are better when we are together in community, all are welcome to participate in the vibrant, inclusive and joyous faith community on campus.

In addition to a variety of retreats, immersion trips, local service opportunities, faith-sharing communities, Masses and other programs, University Ministry helps students ask and answer the big questions of life: What do I believe? Where and when do I experience God most powerfully? Where does my deep gladness meet the world's great hungers? What is my life's purpose? How can I live most joyfully and generously?

All of our activities are designed to empower students, staff, faculty and alumni to:

- · build a faith community
- · develop a mature faith

- · educate and work for justice
- · nurture personal development
- · cultivate leadership for Church and society
- form Christian conscience

In particular, we invite you to join us for one of the 7 p.m. or 9 p.m. Sunday evening Eucharistic liturgies in Founders Chapel. During these vibrant celebrations of our faith the campus community is renewed and refreshed for the on-going work of finding God in the midst of our study, work and play.

For more information about our center, please visit us in the Hahn University Center, Room 238. For more information, call (619) 260-4735 or visit University Ministry (http://www.sandiego.edu/um).

# **The Writing Center**

The Jack and Helene Drown Writing Center, administered by the Department of English, offers help to USD students from all disciplines and class levels. The Writing Center is staffed by trained, faculty-recommended peer tutors. Students and tutors work one-on-one in relaxed but structured sessions. The tutoring hour may address any step in the writing process, including understanding a text, brainstorming, expanding or refining ideas and organizing the work. Writing references and computers are available.

The Writing Center is located in Founders Hall, Room 190B. Students may make an appointment or call (619) 260-4581. For the current schedule and additional information visit The Writing Center (http://www.sandiego.edu/cas/writing/writing-center).

# ACADEMIC PROGRAMS

The University of San Diego offers 42 undergraduate degrees, several with areas of specialization, 50 minors, which can be taken in conjunction with various majors, graduate degrees with many areas of specialization, several certificate programs, and teacher credential programs recognized by the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing.

A USD education combines the vibrancy of the liberal arts with academic rigor in a supportive learning community. Our professors are distinguished scholars and devoted teachers.

Our students are challenged to question and expand their knowledge in the classroom and to extend their learning through research, community engagement and global education in an environment of interdisciplinary collaboration.

# **Bachelor's Degree**

The University of San Diego is committed to a program designed to acquaint every student with the intellectual, cultural and moral life of our civilization, while providing at the same time the opportunity to add to this knowledge special career-centered competencies. Normally, the student is in residence through eight semesters, during which he or she is enrolled in approximately 44 courses, carrying minimum credit of 124 units.

Students who wish to earn a second bachelor's degree (as opposed to one degree with two majors) are required to complete a minimum of 30 units beyond the first USD degree (thus, at least 154 units are needed), to be seeking a different degree (for example, a BBA for a student who has already earned a BA degree).

Transfer students who already have a bachelor's degree and wish to earn a USD baccalaureate degree in another major must meet all of USD's core curriculum requirements, meet USD's residency requirement of a minimum of 30 units, and meet all requirements (including prerequisites) for the degree and major sought.

Each student is responsible for his or her own academic program, and for satisfying requirements listed in this course catalog.

# Undergraduate Majors College of Arts and Sciences

BA in Anthropology

BA in Architecture

BA in Art History

BA in Behavioral Neuroscience

BA in Biochemistry

BA in Biology

BA in Biophysics

BA in Chemistry

**BA** in Communication Studies

BA in English

BA in Environmental and Ocean Sciences

BA in Ethnic Studies

BA in French

**BA** in History

BA in Interdisciplinary Humanities

**BA** in International Relations

BA in Italian Studies

BA in Liberal Studies

BA in Mathematics

BA in Music

BA in Philosophy

**BA** in Physics

BA in Political Science

BA in Psychology

BA in Sociology

BA in Spanish

BA in Theatre

BA in Theology and Religious Studies

BA in Visual Arts

#### School of Business

Bachelor of Accountancy

**BA** in Economics

**BBA** in Business Administration

**BBA** in Business Economics

BBA in Finance

**BBA** in International Business

**BBA** in Marketing

BBA in Real Estate

### Shiley-Marcos School of Engineering

BA in Computer Science

BS/BA in Electrical Engineering

BS/BA in Engineering

BS/BA in Industrial and Systems Engineering

BS/BA in Mechanical Engineering

# Undergraduate Minors College of Arts and Sciences

Anthropology

Architecture

Art History

Asian Studies

Biology

Biomedical Ethics

Changemaking

Chemistry

Chinese

Classical Studies

**Communication Studies** 

English

Environmental and Ocean Sciences

**Environmental Studies and Policy** 

Ethnic Studies

Film Sudies

French

German

History

International Relations

Italian Studies

Latin American Studies

Mathematics

Medieval and Renaissance Studies

Music

Performing Arts Entrepreneurship

Philosophy

Philosophy, Politics and Economics

Physics

Political Science

Psychology

Sociology

Spanish

Theatre

Theology and Religious Studies

Visual Arts

Women's and Gender Studies

#### Joan B. Kroc School of Peace Studies

Peacebuilding and Social Innovation

#### School of Business

Accountancy

**Business Administration** 

Economics

Entrepreneurship

Finance

Information Technology Management

International Business

Law and Ethics

Management

Marketing

Real Estate

Supply Chain Management

#### School of Leadership and Education Sciences

Army ROTC

Education

Leadership Studies

Nonprofit Social Enterprise and Philanthropy

## Shiley-Marcos School of Engineering

Computer Science

# Requirements for Major and Minor

The professional schools and the departments of the College of Arts and Sciences may designate specific courses for majors or minors or both, and may prescribe certain lower-division prerequisites.

#### Core Curriculum

Forty to 50 percent of the courses needed for the bachelor's degree are in the area of the core curriculum (CC). These are in academic areas considered by the faculty to be indispensable to a liberal education, and therefore not to be left wholly to student election. The student must demonstrate competency in fundamental academic skills and must fulfill distribution requirements in the major areas of knowledge.

## Majors

Twenty-five to thirty percent of the courses a student takes are designed to fulfill the major concentration requirements. The faculties of the various departments have prescribed these courses to insure that each student will do intensive work in one special area (the "major") so as to gain a useful command of its facts, interpretations, insights, and methods. Such concentration requirements are usually met in the junior and senior years, although certain preparatory courses are commonly taken earlier.

Students exceptionally well qualified may fulfill the requirements of a double major. Students are permitted the counting of upper-division courses to more than one major. Departments retain the option of restricting students from double-counting departmental courses to separate majors offered by that department. Double counting of courses toward two majors is not permitted

for interdisciplinary majors (e.g., Ethnic Studies, Environmental Studies, Interdisciplinary Humanities, International Relations and Liberal Studies).

The College of Arts and Sciences requires that a minimum of 50 percent of upper division work in a major must be taken at USD. Engineering programs require that a minimum of 24 units of upper division engineering classes be taken at USD.

Those intending to pursue graduate studies are advised to familiarize themselves with the requirements of the graduate school of their choice.

Undergraduate students who are readmitted to USD must complete the degree requirements in place at the time of their readmission. However, students originally admitted prior to fall 2017 and readmitted fall 2017 or later who have substantially completed the core requirements in the undergraduate course catalog under which they were declared prior to the break in attendance, may petition their dean's office to allow them to complete the degree requirements in the catalog under which they were previously declared.

## **Minors**

The student may specialize to a lesser extent in another area (the "minor") ordinarily related to the area of primary interest. The minor is optional, although most departments urge their students to earn credit in such a concentration. Courses in the minor may not be counted toward the major, but may be used to satisfy preparation for the major and core curriculum requirements.

### **Electives**

The remaining courses which students take are electives and may or may not be in areas related to the major subject. Electives allow students to choose courses either to satisfy their intellectual curiosity or to enlighten themselves in areas largely unfamiliar to them.

# Faculty Advisor Program and Preceptorials

In order to assist students in maximizing their collegiate experience, an academic advising program exists that specifically suits the needs of the USD community. The program is consistent with the university's desire to foster a supportive, interactive environment that regards all students as individuals. In academic advising, each student works individually with an advisor both on procedures for completion of the degree and on development of the skills needed to make informed decisions. Therefore, advisors assist with information about academic policies, course selection, class reservation and registration procedures, and graduation requirements, as well as facilitating decision making about educational goals, alternatives, and career needs. This program initially involves faculty advisors for incoming freshmen in a small class called the preceptorial. The preceptorial class provides an opportunity for first semester freshmen to meet with their faculty advisor frequently to exchange thoughts on the student's intellectual and academic progress.

After the first year, all students who have declared their majors are assigned to a faculty member in that discipline. Advisors in the major can offer the depth of knowledge about their field needed to crystallize ideas about internships, independent study courses, application to graduate or professional schools and career opportunities.

Transfer students often arrive at USD with intentions to major in a given area, and are therefore assigned advisors in that major. For transfer students who have not decided upon a major, advising will be done for a period of time by the academic deans in the College of Arts and Sciences, Founders Hall, Room 114. Prior to their first semester, they meet with a dean to initiate the advising process and to register for their classes. All students need to declare their major on a Declaration

of Major form, which is available in the Registrar's Office, Founders Hall, Room 113.

Junior and senior students who have not yet declared a major are advised by the Dean's Office of the College of Arts and Sciences. Appointments can be arranged. The hours of operation are Monday-Friday, 8:30 a.m.-5 p.m. The telephone number is (619) 260-4545.

Faculty advisors and students can consult the Counseling Center, Serra Hall, Room 300, and Career Services, Hughes Administration Center, Room 110, for interest assessment, major and career planning, special workshops, and other related services.

All advisors are available to students on a regular basis for assistance; however, each student is ultimately responsible for initiating advising meetings and for his or her academic progress.

# General Requirements for Bachelor's Degree

The university will confer the bachelor's degree upon candidates who satisfactorily complete the following:

- 1. 124 semester units of credit, with at least 48 units in upper-division courses;
- 2. the core curriculum program;
- 3. a major concentration including at least 24 units of upper-division work, and satisfying the requirements of the department/school in question;
- 4. a minor field, if one is required by the department/ school in which one takes a major; a minor field includes 18 or more units. At least 6 units in the minor must be in upper-division courses, and these units require a grade point average of 2.0 with C- or better;
- 5. maintain a grade point average of 2.0 or better in courses at USD and in upper-division courses in the major, and a grade of C- or better in a minimum of 24 upper-division units in fulfillment of the requirements for the major. Courses transferred to USD in which the student earned a grade of C or better may be counted toward this requirement, subject to possible limitation by a department/school as to the number of units from such courses which may be accepted for this purpose;
- the residence requirement (completion of the final 30 semester units at the University of San Diego);
- 7. settlement of all financial obligations to the university.

# Applicability of New Academic Requirements

### **Lower-Division Requirements**

Changes in lower-division requirements, including prerequisites for a major, are not applicable to students already enrolled at USD.

#### Upper-Division Requirements

Changes in upper-division requirements, including requirements for a major, are:

- applicable to freshmen, and to sophomores who have not yet enrolled in upper-division courses in their major, provided that the new academic requirements do not affect prerequisites for the major;
- 2. not applicable to juniors and seniors.

A student who so chooses may elect to fulfill new rather than previous requirements, except that the student may not intermingle previous and new requirements.

When a department/school deletes one course and substitutes a new one, only those students who have not completed the deleted course will be required to take the replacement course.

If new requirements are favorable to the student, the university may make them immediately applicable, unless the student objects.

## **Core Curriculum**

The University of San Diego's core curriculum fosters the pursuit of knowledge through active student and faculty participation in core courses throughout a student's academic program. The core promotes critical appreciation of beauty, truth and goodness in the context of engagement with the Catholic intellectual tradition and diverse faith communities. The high academic standards of the core curriculum will sharpen student learning in critical thinking and analytical thinking, and increase competency skills in writing, oral communication and cognitive reasoning. Students will be well equipped to creatively envision, articulate and apply new solutions to the problems of today and be prepared to confront humanity's urgent challenges.

Only courses approved as meeting core curriculum student learning outcomes can be applied to core curriculum requirements.

## Integrative Learning

Goal: Integrate knowledge, insights and skills gained through scholarly inquiry and strong community into the quest for truth as a continuous process of making connections. Students complete two integration experiences, one during their first year at USD and another as they are completing their degree requirements.

- First year students participate in the two-semester Living Learning Community (LLC) program by taking two courses that will satisfy core and/ or major/minor requirements.
- Transfer students participate in the one-semester Transfer Learning Community (TLC) program by taking one course that will satisfy core and/or major/minor requirements.

Students complete an advanced integration experience and/or project in which they synthesize and apply knowledge and/or skills from multiple disciplines or perspectives. These courses will satisfy core and/or major or minor requirements.

## Competencies

Goal: Learn essential skills of written communication, mathematical reasoning and problem solving, second language, oral communication, critical thinking, information literacy and quantitative reasoning in order to become effective leaders.

#### Written Communication

Successfully complete the First Year Writing course (FYW 150) or demonstrate competency by passing a composition exam.

Successfully complete an Advanced Writing course, which is writing intensive and instructive, focusing on writing as a process. Advanced Writing courses are offered by a variety of departments and will be clearly identified with an "Advanced Writing" attribute.

#### Mathematical Reasoning and Problem Solving

Students must demonstrate competency either by successfully completing one of the approved mathematics core curriculum courses or by passing an examination in mathematics.

#### Second Language

Third semester competency in a second language is required for students seeking the bachelor's degree. Students are encouraged to fulfill this requirement during their first two years at USD. This can be done by successfully completing the third-semester course (201); by taking a course beyond this level in any of the nine languages offered in the Department of Languages, Cultures and Literatures; or through alternate credit.

#### **Oral Communication**

Students successfully complete a course in the core or in the major/minor that includes an oral communication component. Courses that include oral communication will be clearly identified with an "Oral Communication" attribute.

### **Quantitative Reasoning**

Students successfully complete a course in the core or in the major/minor that includes a quantitative reasoning component. Courses that include quantitative reasoning will be clearly identified with a "Quantitative Reasoning" attribute.

### Critical Thinking and Information Literacy

Students demonstrate Critical Thinking and Information Literacy by satisfying outcomes in Historical Inquiry courses (see below).

### **Foundations**

Goal: Become individuals who, through the search for truth and goodness, uphold the dignity and aspirations of all people; and who critically and creatively explore the "big questions" about God, personal identity and social identity.

### Theological and Religious Inquiry

Students successfully complete two courses in the study of religion. One course must include the study of Catholic Christianity and one course must be upper division.

#### Philosophical Inquiry

Students successfully complete one approved course in the study of Philosophy.

#### **Ethical Inquiry**

Students successfully complete one course in the study of ethics.

#### Diversity, Inclusion and Social Justice

Students successfully complete two courses that are identified with a "DISJ" attribute. Courses are developmental, and the level 1 course must be completed prior to enrolling in the level 2 course. At least one course must be domestically focused.

## **Explorations**

Goal: Critically and creatively explore the breadth of the liberal arts, focusing on social identity, scientific literacy and personal expression through varied modes of inquiry.

#### Scientific and Technological Inquiry

Students successfully complete one science or technology course that includes a laboratory experience.

#### **Historical Inquiry**

Students successfully complete one course that analyzes historical evidence using critical thinking and information literacy skills.

#### Social and Behavioral Inquiry

Students successfully complete one course that examines the human condition.

#### **Literary Inquiry**

Students successfully complete one course that examines text and language from a literary perspective. This requirement may be completed in languages other than English.

### **Artistic Inquiry**

Students successfully complete three units of course work that examines an art form.

# **Honors Program**

The Honors Program is designed to provide smart, passionate and engaged students with challenges and opportunities that will allow them to achieve their intellectual goals. The program emphasizes teaching excellence, small seminar-style classes and a core curriculum of innovative courses. Honors students have numerous opportunities for interaction with faculty, specialized course work, undergraduate research and focused academic advising.

### Curriculum

In their first year, Honors students enroll in an Honors Fall LLC Course, followed by a linked Honors Spring LLC Course. As they transition into their second year, students begin taking single instructor Honors courses (rooted in the Core), as well as upper-division team-taught courses. They must take at least two of the team-taught interdisciplinary courses, which change yearly and represent the honors core curriculum. Students may also have four units of Honors credit waived for a semester-long study abroad experience.

The culmination of the Honors Program is the participation of all students in the Honors Thesis Seminar, in which they share the results of their independent scholarly work with fellow honors students and the honors faculty. Working with a faculty mentor, students pursue scholarly work in their major that will result in an Honors Thesis. In preparation for the Thesis, students are encouraged to pursue an independent study or enroll in a required capstone courses in their major. Please consult your academic adviser to choose the most appropriate class for this research experience. Students are strongly encouraged to begin this research at least one year prior to their intended graduation date. This work is then presented in the Honors Thesis Seminar (HNRS 495) in the student's final year in residence at USD.

#### **Admissions**

In evaluating the records of high-school seniors, the Office of Admissions and the Director of the Honors Program will invite those students who have the ability and motivation to succed in the Honors Program. Involvement in community, school and leadership activities, and evidence of a sustained desire to do excellent academic work are the most important indicators of a potential Honors student's ability to succeed in the program. Students who do not enter the program at the beginning of their undergraduate career may apply for admission at the end of the fall semester of their first year.

## Requirements

Students in the Honors Program must complete a minimum of 25 Honors units and maintain a GPA of 3.4 or above for graduation with the Honors Diploma.

# Recommended Program of Study

First Year

Semester I Units

Honors Fall LLC Course

4

Semester II

Honors Spring LLC Course

**Second Year** 

Semester I

Team-Taught Course or Single-Taught Course

Semester II

Team-Taught or Single-Taught Course

Third Year

Semester I

Team-Taught or Single-Taught Course

Semester II

Team-Taught or Single-Taught Course

**Fourth Year** 

Semester I

Independent Study/Capstone

Semester II

Honor Thesis Seminar

# **First Year Experience**

The First Year Experience (FYE) strives to build a community of engaged student learners who value academic excellence, intellectual, personal and spiritual development, inclusion, ethical conduct and compassionate service. It integrates two core components: the Scholastic Assistant Program and the Residential Life Living Learning Communities.

The first year of college at the University of San Diego begins at the point of an undergraduate student's admission and concludes at the beginning of the following academic year.

We assign a high priority to a student's first year of college because the first year establishes an essential foundation for a successful educational and developmental experience. During the first year, students learn about the university's mission, core values and expectations. As a result, students begin to practice the habits and skills of higher learning, thus helping shape the academic and social climate on campus.

# The objectives of the First Year Experience are to:

- Introduce students to the core curriculum as the foundation of USD's liberal arts undergraduate education.
- 2. Assist student's transition to college life by learning about multiple resources available to them.
- Introduce students to the mission and core values that form the identity of USD as a Catholic university.
- 4. Encourage students to think about, and begin to develop, values for living with diversity and adopting a healthy lifestyle.

# What Students Can Expect:

#### OLÉ! Weekend (Orientation)

The days before classes begin are designed to introduce students to USD and fellow students. Activities and experiences are facilitated by student leaders and faculty that will help new students become more comfortable in their new living environment, better understand the demands and expectations of college life, and begin to connect with fellow students, faculty and staff.

#### 3 Fall LLC Course

3-4

1-3

This program is a core component of FYE. The program involves faculty advisors for incoming first-year students in a small class called the "Fall LLC Course." The content of the Fall LLC Course depends on the course title and description. Fall LLC courses fulfill a core curriculum requirement and will be part of your first year integration component requirement.

#### Scholastic Assistant

As part of each Fall LLC Course, there will be a "Scholastic Assistant" or "SA."

The SA is a successful continuing student who services as a liaison between the students and the professor, mentor to new students, and a general resource. SAs also plan and implement activities outside of class to assist students with the

3-4 transition to college.

#### You Succeed @ USD Video Series

The You Succeed @ USD video series is designed specifically to help students reach their academic potential. Each brief video consists of tips and recommendations from highly successful USD students who have excelled in and outside the classroom. Video topics cover important issues that new students are likely to encounter including time management, study strategies, test preparation and overcoming setbacks.

# **Second Year Experience**

The university assigns a high priority to a student's second year of college because the second year fleshes out and solidifies the foundation begun in the first year. During the second year, students are focused on establishing personal and educational identities. As a result, students engage in activities in and outside of the classroom moving them towards establishing future directions of study and growth.

The Second Year Experience (SYE) at USD consists of a variety of programs and opportunities designed specifically for second-year students. The goal is to help students be successful, have fun and get the most out of their USD experience.

# **Featured Programs**

#### SYE Abroad Program

This unique study abroad program offers second-year students the opportunity to earn core curriculum credit in one of two exceptional locations during Intersession of 2016: Guatemala or Italy! Students can earn credit in a variety of disciplines:

- Art History
- Chemistry
- Ethics
- History
- · Language, Culture and Literatures
- · Theology

Students travel with USD faculty and staff to their chosen destination and engage in the local community. If you are a new first-year student and interested in studying abroad during Intersession of your second year, please visit the <a href="SYE Abroad Program">SYE</a>
<a href="Abroad Program">Abroad Program</a> website for details on how to apply.

#### SYE Welcome Back BBO

Residential Life kicks off the year right with a Welcome Back BBQ exclusively for second-year students. This is a chance for all second-year students (including transfers and commuters) to come enjoy some free food, good music and great company. Look for details on this event in your SYE Program mailing near the end of summer.

### Second Year Housing

On-campus living at USD only gets better the second time around! Spend your sophomore year living with your classmates in the Alcalá Vista Apartments (aka "The Vistas") or the San Buenaventura Apartments, which house the Second-Year Experience (SYE) program. You'll have the opportunity to participate in programs and utilize services that are geared to the unique needs of sophomore students, both returning and transfer. Additionally, housing is available for second-year students in Manchester Village and the San Antonio de Padua apartments.

For more information on housing for second-year students, please visit Residential Life's <u>Second Year Housing</u> website.

### Second Year Torero Experiential Program (STEP)

One of the major benefits of living on campus is the fully furnished apartments that offer convenient access to resident assistants and University Ministry members who are more than just residence staff. With such a wide range of resources, services and personal support offered, it's no wonder why so many Toreros choose to stay on campus after their first-year living experience. Campus apartments are available for sophomore students, and the STEP program is housed in the Vistas and San Buenaventura. Within the Alcalá Vistas and San Buenaventura there are special programmatic offerings, geared toward sophomores and the unique House Cup program!

For questions about the second year housing requirement, please contact Residential Life at (619) 260-4777 or email housing@sandiego.edu.

# **Preparation for Law School and Health Profession Programs**

# Preparation for Health Profession Programs

For students planning a career in medicine, dentistry, pharmacy, optometry, veterinary medicine or other health professions such as physical therapy or nursing (including our accelerated BA/BS to MEPN track), the Health Professions Advising Office guides students toward preparation for the professional or graduate school degree. Health Professions students seeking to further their education in a professional or graduate school program, complete the course requirements for their USD degree as well as the prerequisites for their health professions program. The services offered by the Health Professions Advising Office include assisting students with prerequisite information, clinical and internship opportunities and the professional school application process.

The Health Professions Advising Office is located in Founders Hall 114. For more information, visit Pre-Health Advising (http://www.sandiego.edu/cas/prehealth).

# Preparation for Law School

The Pre-Law advising office provides students with information on preparing for and applying to law school through one on one advising. For more information, visit Pre-Law Advising (http://www.sandiego.edu/cas/academics/advising/prelaw.php).

# **Study Abroad Opportunities**

# University of San Diego International Center

The University of San Diego is committed to actively promoting awareness, appreciation and respect for the complexity of cultural, political, environmental

and social issues worldwide while creating a campus environment that builds theoretical and practical skills needed to interact effectively in today's global society. To that end, the International Center houses both the Office of International Studies Abroad and the Office of International Students and Scholars, which collaborate with various units across campus to help internationalize the USD campus.

## Office of International Studies Abroad

The University of San Diego has consistently ranked within the top three in the nation in terms of the percentage of undergraduate students who participate in study abroad programs! USD undergraduates in good standing may apply for a variety of international study abroad programs affiliated with the university. USD grants academic credit and grades for these affiliated programs. To ensure the proper recording of units, USD students may not enroll independently, or through another institution, in a USD-affiliated program.

There are many exciting opportunities to study abroad while at USD. Programs include short-term (intersession or summer) options as well as semester and year-long opportunities.

USD students in good standing may apply for a variety of international study abroad programs affiliated with the university. Each of the individual schools and colleges offer graduate level study abroad opportunities. For more information, contact the Office of International Studies Abroad, (619) 260-4598 or go to International Center (http://www.sandiego.edu/international).

## Short-Term Study Abroad Opportunities

The following programs are available for students during intersession or summer terms:

#### Second Year Experience Abroad

This unique program designed specifically for students in their sophomore year. This program is very comprehensive and students must register during their freshman year to go abroad in intersession of their sophomore year. While abroad, students take one, three-unit, core curriculum course and engage in many cultural and social activities with their fellow sophomore students. Current locations include: Florence, Italy; and Antigua, Guatemala.

#### Faculty-Led Programs

Spend three to four weeks abroad with a USD faculty member while gaining academic credit and a unique international experience. These programs are open to all students (Freshmen to Seniors) as well as non-USD students. Depending on the length of the program, students can complete one or two courses and may even combine two locations based on program calendars. Tuition is discounted for these programs and financial aid is available. Currently, programs are offered in Argentina, Australia, Austria, China, England, France, Indonesia, Jamaica, South Africa, Spain and Turkey.

# Semester Abroad Opportunities USD Madrid Center

USD's very own Madrid Center opened in Fall 2014 in the heart of Spain's capital city. Students have the opportunity to immerse themselves in Spanish culture while completing courses in business, humanities and social sciences. Students live in home-stays with local families and each student participates in a 10-day travel seminar which visits different regions of Spain. Please visit the Madrid Center (http://www.sandiego.edu/international/madrid-center) website for more information.

#### **USD Partner Programs**

Studying abroad for a semester or year is possible through the over 80 USD partner programs coordinated by the Office of International Studies Abroad. These programs vary in size and scope and are located all throughout the world. USD Financial Aid packages travel with a student for up to one semester abroad. Please be sure to visit the Office of International Studies Abroad (http://www.sandiego.edu/international/study-abroad) to learn more about these options as well as to learn more about financing a semester or year abroad.

### Semester Exchanges

USD has exchange partnerships with very prestigious, highly ranked universities in South America, Asia, Europe and Latin America. Students who wish to participate in one of these programs will have the unique opportunity to be engaged in an independent, cultural immersion experience as they will enroll directly at the host university and take the majority of their courses with local students.

## **Additional Information**

### Project-Based Learning While Abroad

Some study abroad programs offer students hands-on experience within their area of study. For example, the School for Field Studies Programs offers students the opportunity to work in the field collecting data related to environmental-based projects such as rainforest ecosystems, marine biodiversity, wildlife management and the effects of global climate change. The SEA Semester program offers students the opportunity to learn about marine life while living on board and navigating a sailing vessel. Business students also have the option to participate in a consulting project for local companies in certain international locations. Discipline specific internships are offered in many program locations as well.

## Community-Service While Abroad

Students who wish to engage with the local community while abroad can do so through various service-based programs. Opportunities in semester long programs will vary by site. Be sure to check with a study abroad advisor about this option. Several short-term programs offer community service opportunities that are a central part of the program. Locations in which community service is infused within the academic program are: China, Jamaica and South Africa.

#### **Special Topics Course**

A Special Topics course offered in USD's affiliated study abroad programs coordinated by the USD International Center that do not correspond directly to a USD academic department. The course will be identified on the student's transcript as either ABRD 294 or ABRD 494, and USD will maintain a description of the course and outcomes. Course content and structure will differ depending on instructor, program and country. Consult the Office of International Studies Abroad (http://www.sandiego.edu/international/study-abroad) for course description for any given semester.

# **Application Deadlines**

In general terms, application deadlines are as follows:

Fall semester: Mid-Late March
Intersession: Mid-October
Spring: Mid-October
Summer: Mid-December

For program information, deadline information or to meet with a study abroad advisor, contact the Office of International Studies Abroad at (619) 260-4598 or in Serra Hall 315 or go to USD Abroad (http://gointernational.sandiego.edu).

# Ahlers Center Study Abroad Programs Ahlers Center for International Business

The John M. Ahlers Center for International Business was founded in 1994 with an endowment from the estate of John and Carolyn Ahlers to enhance international business education at USD. Given a lifetime of international business and service, the Ahlers believed that globalization had increased the need for business leaders to be developed with special skills and knowledge in order to embrace the challenges and opportunities of an international marketplace. Through numerous programs, the Ahlers Center is devoted to this mission of its founding donors by helping faculty, students and the community develop significant international business acumen.

The Ahlers Center, along with the International Center at USD, develops and coordinates both short-term study abroad programs and semester exchanges. Offered during the Intersession and Summer Sessions, the short-term programs provide business students the opportunity, over a relatively short time period, to gain valuable business-oriented international experience. Students wishing to spend more time abroad and gain a deeper cultural understanding may participate in semester exchange programs at leading business schools around the world. For more information on study abroad opportunities for undergraduate business students, please go to Study Abroad (http://www.sandiego.edu/international/study-abroad).

In addition to study abroad opportunities, the Ahlers Center annually sponsors International Executives-in-Residence, bringing business leaders to campus and the classroom. International visiting faculty are also invited by the Ahlers Center to provide guest lectures or offer courses at USD. The Ahlers Center continues to cultivate its strong portfolio of offerings, including the hosting of international business leaders, conferences, events, and speakers, which enhance our undergraduate business students' exposure to the global mindset that inspired the generosity of John and Carolyn Ahlers. For more information about the Ahlers Center for International Business, please go to Ahlers Center (http://www.sandiego.edu/ahlers).

## **ROTC Programs**

## **Army ROTC**

The Army Reserve Officers' Training Corps offers a four-year or twoyear program designed to develop future officers in the areas of leadership, management, military history and critical thinking skills.

The Army ROTC program consists of one course per semester along with one leadership laboratory period per week. The four-year program is divided into two parts. The basic course is taken in the freshman and sophomore years, and no military commitment is incurred during this time. After completing the basic course, students who have demonstrated officer potential and have met physical and scholastic standards are eligible to enroll in the Advanced Course taken in the final two years of college and consisting of outlined military science and designated enrichment courses. Some students who have previous military service can waive the basic course. Another two-year ROTC program consists of completion of a five-week Cadet Training Course (CTC) at Fort Knox, Kentucky during the summer, following enrollment in the advance course. Another ROTC program is the Simultaneous Membership Program in which cadets will gain invaluable leadership experience through participation with the National Guard and Army Reserve. Upon graduation, students can enter the Army on Active duty, Reserves, or the National Guard status.

USD cadets enrolled in the advanced course enroll through the SDSU College of Extended Studies. There is no advance application needed for the freshman or sophomore classes. Scholarship money is available, including four-, three-and two-year merit scholarships to qualified students. Scholarships awarded

include: full tuition, books, fees and partial room and board. Additional grants are available to cover room and board.

See Military Science course descriptions (catalogs.sandiego.edu/undergraduate/courses/mils) or call Army ROTC, (619) 260-7920.

### Naval ROTC

The Naval Reserve Officers Training Corps (NROTC) Unit is hosted by the University of San Diego and San Diego State University. Primary administration of and support for the NROTC Unit is provided by USD. Cross-town agreements exist with the University of California San Diego, California State University San Marcos, and Point Loma Nazarene University. Students enrolled in these institutions are authorized to participate in the NROTC program at the University of San Diego, and may attend Naval Science classes there or at San Diego State University.

#### **Programs**

There are two types of NROTC programs: the scholarship program and the college program. They differ primarily in their benefits to the student. The scholarship program provides four years of university study, followed by a commission in the Navy or Marine Corps.

#### Scholarship Students

Four-year scholarship program students are selected on the basis of a highly competitive annual national selection. Selectees are appointed Midshipmen in the United States Naval Reserve (USNR) and provided tuition, a monthly stipend, uniforms and an allowance for books at government expense. In addition, they receive subsistence pay and summer active duty pay. Navy Option students in the NROTC scholarship program are encouraged to pursue majors in engineering or in specific science fields (mathematics, chemistry, physics or computer science), but any other field of study leading to a baccalaureate degree is permitted. Marine Corps option students may normally enroll in any four-year course of study leading to a bachelor's degree. All scholarship students participate in three summer cruise and training programs. Upon graduation, students receive commissions as Ensigns in the United States Navy or as Second Lieutenants in the United States Marine Corps, after which they serve with the respective service. For students completing the program after October 1, 2013, the minimum period of active duty is five years, followed by three years of inactive reserve status.

Two-year scholarship program students are selected through national competition. Applicants must be in their second year of college and in good standing. Selectees for enrollment in this program attend the Naval Science Institute at Newport, Rhode Island, receiving instruction in naval science and drill, during July and August after their selection. Successful completion of the Naval Science Institute program qualifies students for enrollment in the advanced course of the NROTC program. They are provided tuition, fees, textbook stipend, uniforms and subsistence allowance at government expense during their junior and senior years. Two-year scholarship students participate in a summer cruise between their junior and senior years. Upon graduation, commission and service requirements are the same as for four-year scholarship students.

Applications for the scholarship program may be obtained from any NROTC unit or Navy-Marine Corps Recruiting Office, or go to NROTC (http://www.nrotc.navy.mil).

#### College Program Students

- Applicants selected from students already attending or accepted by colleges with NROTC programs
- Pays for uniforms and instructional fees for naval science courses
- College Program students selected for "advanced standing" receive a stipend for maximum of 20 months. Advance standing is only available starting the

- junior year of college. Stipend per academic month is \$350 junior year and \$400 senior year.
- Students will complete naval science and other university courses, a few specific university courses, and attend one summer training session
- · Normally at sea for Navy midshipmen
- · Normally at Quantico, VA for Marine Corps midshipmen
- When accepted, two-year applicants will attend six-and-a-half week Naval Science Institute program in Newport, RI during summer between sophomore and junior years
- On graduation, two- and four-year College Program midshipmen may be commissioned ensigns in the Naval Service or second lieutenants in the Marine Corps.Further information on the College Program may be obtained from any NROTC unit or Navy-Marine Corps Recruiting Office, or go to NROTC (http://www.nrotc.navy.mil).

### Academic Requirements for Scholarship Students

To receive a commission, the NROTC scholarship student must complete all requirements for a bachelor's degree in accordance with university rules and regulations, as well as complete certain courses specified by the Navy. General requirements fall into two categories:

Naval Science requirements (Participants who complete a minimum of 18
units from this program (nine of which must be upper division) are eligible to
receive a minor in Naval Science.

Code	Title	Units
Freshman Year		
NAVS 101	Introduction to Naval Science	3
NAVS 102	Seapower	3
Sophomore Year	r	
NAVS 201	Leadership and Management	3
NAVS 202	Navigation (Navy option only)	3
Junior Year		
NAVS 301	Naval Engineering	3
NAVS 302	Naval Weapons (Navy option only)	3
NAVS 310	Evolution of Warfare (Marine option only)	3
Senior Year		
NAVS 401	Naval Operations (Navy option only)	3
NAVS 402	Leadership and Ethics	3
NAVS 412	Fundamentals of Maneuver Warfare	3

2. Other courses required by the U.S. Navy:

Code	Title	Units
Calculus (one year	ar) <sup>1</sup>	
Regional Studies	World Cultures (one semester) <sup>1</sup>	
Physics (calculus	-based) (one year) <sup>1</sup>	
English (one year	r) <sup>1</sup>	
National Security	Policy or American Military History (	one semester)

Navy Option only

See Naval Science course descriptions (catalogs.sandiego.edu/undergraduate/courses/navs).

#### Air Force ROTC

The Air Force Reserve Officer Training Corps (AFROTC) is a three- or four-year program designed to equip students with leadership skills and commission officers for tomorrow's Air Force. Required coursework includes lectures, a leadership

laboratory practical component, panel discussions, dialogues, problem solving, and physical training. All coursework is completed on site at or near SDSU, with the exception of a four-week summer field training encampment conducted on a military base between the second and third year. The four-year program is divided into the General Military Course (first two years), and the Professional Officer Course (last two years). During the first two years, non-scholarship cadets may take classes with no military commitment, and may withdraw at any time.

Scholarships are available for qualified cadets, and may be applied towards tuition, lab fees, and other required items. In addition, scholarship students receive a non-taxable book allowance and monthly stipend. Upon successful completion of the AFROTC program and all requirements for a bachelor's degree, cadets are commissioned as second lieutenants and serve a minimum of four years in the active duty Air Force.

The University of San Diego does not have an Air Force Reserve Officer Training Corps (AFROTC) program on campus; however, through an agreement with San Diego State University, students may participate in Air Force ROTC through the SDSU College of Extended Studies. Credits earned in these classes may be transferred as electives to meet the degree requirements of USD.

There is no advance application needed to participate in the freshman or sophomore level course; however, an orientation program, held just prior to the start of the semester, is recommended. Interested students should contact the AFROTC Detachment 075 Unit Admissions Officer at (619) 594-5545.

### **Military Science**

Military Science offers a two, three and four-year Army Reserve Officers
Training Corps (ROTC) program designed to develop future officers in the areas
of leadership, management, foreign policy, national security, military history
and military skills. The Army ROTC program also offers a series of optional
adventure outings and on-campus activities during the school year. These include
orienteering, rappelling, sports programs and social activities. Enrollment in the
Army ROTC program is not a requirement for taking military science courses.
Military Science offers a varied class schedule to meet students' requirements.
The Army ROTC program consists of one course per semester along with
scheduled leadership laboratories and field training.

### Four-Year Commissioning Program

The four-year program is divided into two parts: the basic course and the advanced course. The basic course is usually taken in the freshman and sophomore years. No military commitment is incurred during this time, and students may withdraw at any time through the end of the second year. The first year consists of 2-unit introductory courses each semester. The second year consists of 2-unit courses with instruction on organizational leadership theories. Uniforms, necessary military science textbooks and materials are furnished without cost.

After completing the basic course, students who have demonstrated officer potential, have met physical and scholastic standards and agree to contract are eligible to enroll in the advanced course. This course is normally taken in the final two years of college and consists of outlined military science and designated enrichment courses that include communication skills, military history and computer literacy.

In addition, the advanced course consists of a paid five-week leadership assessment course held during the summer between the junior and senior years. This course permits students to put into practice the leadership principles and theories acquired in the classroom. All students in the advanced course receive uniforms, necessary military science textbooks, pay for the leadership assessment course, and a living allowance of up to \$4,000 each school year.

Upon completion of the advanced course, students are commissioned Second Lieutenants in the U.S. Army. The available options after commissioning are active duty for a minimum of three years or three months active duty for training followed by part-time participation in the U.S. Army Reserve or U.S. Army National Guard.

Several special programs are available for students who have previous ROTC training or active military service. These programs allow for part- or full-placement credit for the basic course. In addition, a program is available for simultaneous participation in both Army ROTC and the Army Reserve or Army National Guard.

### Two-Year Commissioning Program

This program offers students the opportunity to be commissioned officers after two years of Army ROTC instead of four years. The two year program is designed for community and junior college graduates and students who did not take Army ROTC during their first two years or who have prior military experience. The five-week summer Cadet Training Course (CTC), Military Science 221, provides the military skills and leadership training normally taught during the freshman and sophomore on-campus courses. CTC is conducted at Fort Knox, Kentucky, and a paid salary, transportation, meals and lodging will be furnished. CTC graduates enroll in Military Science 301 to enter the advanced course and complete the advanced program at the San Diego State University campus as described above.

### Applying for the Program

USD students enroll in military science courses by signing up during registration in the same manner as for other university classes. There is no advance application needed for the freshman or sophomore classes. However, students enrolling in Military Science courses need to contact USD Military Science to receive information on lab schedules, equipment, materials and activities.

### MILS 101 | INTRODUCTION TO LEADERSHIP I Units: 3

This course introduces cadets to the personal challenges and competencies that are critical for effective leadership. Cadets learn how the personal development of life skills such as critical thinking, goal setting, time management, physical fitness, and stress management relate to leadership, officership, and the Army profession. The focus is on developing basic knowledge and comprehension of Army leadership dimensions while gaining a big-picture understanding of ROTC, its purpose in the Army, and its advantages for the student. Relative examples and discussions are used to relate leadership to not only the military, but also to Corporate America.

## MILS 102 | INTRODUCTION TO LEADERSHIP II Units: 3

This course overviews leadership fundamentals such as setting direction, problem-solving, listening, presenting briefs, providing feedback, and using effective writing skills. Cadets explore dimensions of leadership values, attributes, skills, and actions in the context of practical, hands-on, and interactive exercises. The principles discussed in this curriculum can be used to prepare managers for Corporate America by building a solid foundation for the understanding of leadership.

#### MILS 201 | FOUNDATIONS OF LEADERSHIP I

#### Units: 3

This course explores the dimensions of creative and innovative tactical leadership strategies and styles by examining team dynamics and two historical leadership theories that form the basis of the Army leadership framework (trait and behavior theories). Cadets practice aspects of personal motivation and team building in the context of planning, executing, and assessing team exercises and participating in Leadership Labs. Focus is on continued development of the knowledge of leadership values and attributes through an understanding of Army rank, structure and duties, and basic aspects of land navigation and squad tactics. Case studies provide tangible context for learning the Soldier's Creed and Warrior Ethos as they apply in the Contemporary Operating Environment (COE).

#### MILS 202 | FOUNDATIONS OF LEADERSHIP II

#### Units: 3

This course examines the challenges of leading tactical teams in the complex Contemporary Operating Environment (COE). The course highlights dimensions of terrain analysis, patrolling, and operations orders. Further study of the theoretical basis of the Army leadership framework explores the dynamics of adaptive leadership in the context of military operations. Cadets develop greater self-awareness as they assess their own leadership styles and practice communication and team building skills. COE case studies give insight into the importance and practice of teamwork and tactics in real-world scenarios.

#### MILS 301 | ADAPTIVE TACTICAL LEADERSHIP

#### Units: 3

Military Science 301 will develop leadership and organizational skills, time management, and technical competence in military-related subjects. Students concentrate on the practical application of the leadership fundamentals and techniques learned in the ROTC Basic Course and prepare for success at the Leader Development and Assessment Course at Fort Lewis, Washington, and as future commissioned officers in the U.S. Army. The course consists of both classroom instruction and practical field application where cadets are placed in leadership roles.

#### MILS 302 | APPLIED TEAM LEADERSHIP

#### Units: 3

MSL 302 uses increasingly challenging situational leadership challenges to build Cadet proficiency and skills in leading tactical operations. Having learned squad-level tactics in MSL 301, cadets will now learn to effectively lead up to platoon level. Cadets will review aspects of combat, stability and support operations. They will also conduct military briefings and develop proficiency in garrison operations orders. The focus is on exploring, evaluating and developing skills in decision making, persuading and motivating members of a team to accomplish a common mission. MSL 302 Cadets are evaluated on what they know and do as leaders as they prepare to attend the Leadership Development and Assessment Course (LDAC)

#### MILS 401 | ADAPTIVE TEAM LEADERSHIP

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MILS 301 and MILS 302

This course 401 transitions the focus of student learning from being trained, mentored, and evaluated as an MSL III Cadet to learning how to train, mentor, and evaluate underclass Cadets. MSL IV Cadets learn the duties and responsibilities of an Army staff officer and apply the Military Decision Making Process, Army Writing Style, the Army's Training Management Cycle and METL Development processes during weekly Training Meetings. Cadets learn to safely conduct training by understanding and employing the Deliberate Risk Management Process. Cadets learn how to use the Comprehensive Soldier Fitness (CSF) program to reduce and manage stress. At the conclusion of this course, you will be capable of planning, coordinating, navigating, motivating, and leading a cadet platoon, company, and/or battalion in the execution of a Leadership Lab, Ranger Challenge Exercise, and a Leadership Development Exercise (LDX).

#### MILS 402 | COMPANY GRADE LEADERSHIP

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MILS 301 and MILS 302 and MILS 401

This is an academically challenging course were you will study, practice, develop, and apply critical thinking skills pertaining to Army leadership, officer skills, Army Values and ethics, personal development, and small unit tactics at platoon level. This course includes reading assignments, homework assignments, small group assignments, briefings, case studies, practical exercises, mid-term exam, and a Capstone Exercise in place of the final exam. For the Capstone Exercise, you will be required to complete an Oral Practicum that you will be evaluated on your knowledge of the 20 Army War fighting Challenges (AWFC) covered throughout MILS401 and 402 coursework. In addition, you could be assessed on leadership abilities during classroom PE, Leadership Labs, or Leader Training Exercises (LTX). You will receive systematic and specific feedback on your leader attributes, values, and core leader competencies from your cadre, PMS and other MSL IV Cadets.

### **Naval Science**

The purpose of the Naval Science program is to provide college students desiring to become Naval or Marine Corps officers a basic professional background in the following areas: introduction to naval sciences; leadership, ethics and management; piloting and navigation; nautical rules of the road; ship characteristics, design and propulsion; theory and employment of weapon systems; amphibious operations and history of warfare. This curriculum is open to all university students. A graduate will be able to assume, through development of mind and character, the highest responsibilities of command, citizenship and government. Participants who complete a minimum of 18 units from this program (9 of which must be upper division) are eligible to receive a minor in Naval Science.

### **Program Objectives**

The primary objectives of the Naval Science department curriculum are to provide:

- 1. an understanding of the fundamental concepts and principles of Naval Science
- 2. a basic understanding of associated professional knowledge
- 3. an appreciation of the requirements for national security
- 4. a strong sense of personal integrity, honor and individual responsibility
- an educational background which will allow Naval Science students to undertake successfully, in later periods in their careers, advanced/continuing education in a field of application and interest to the Navy or Marine Corps.

### NAVS 101 | INTRODUCTION TO NAVAL SCIENCE Units: 3

A general introduction to the naval profession and to concepts of seapower. Instruction emphasizes the mission, organization, and warfare components of the Navy and Marine Corps. Included is an overview of officer and enlisted ranks, training and education, and career patterns. The course also covers ethics, basic leadership skills, naval courtesies and customs, military justice, and nomenclature. This course exposes the student to the professional competencies required to become a naval officer.

#### NAVS 102 | SEAPOWER

#### Units: 3

A historical survey of United States naval history from the American Revolution to the present with emphasis on major developments. The course also treats present-day concerns in seapower and maritime affairs including the economic and political issues of merchant marine commerce, the law of the sea, and a comparison of United States and other foreign naval strategies. Each era covered will be analyzed by evaluating the significance of the following: 1) strategy and tactics; 2) leadership; 3) technological advancements; 4) inter-service relations; 5) naval doctrine, 6) foreign policy; and, 7) Congressional relations.

#### NAVS 201 | LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT

#### Units: 3

The theme of the course is the "Naval officer as a leader, manager, and organizational decision-maker." The course will begin with modules on ethics and integrity, progress through management theory and practical functions of management, and culminate with a module on leadership. Lectures, reading assignments, films, discussions, exercises, interviews, and student presentations provide students with an excellent opportunity to wrestle with complex ethical, managerial, and leadership issues. The goal of this course is for students to begin to develop a sound personal leadership philosophy that will enable them to more effectively accomplish both personal and professional goals.

#### NAVS 202 | NAVIGATION

#### Units: 3

An in-depth study in the theory, principles, and procedures of ship navigation and maneuvering. Students learn piloting, navigation, and maneuvering to include the use of charts, visual and electronic aids, theory and operation of magnetic and gyro compasses, relative-motion vector analysis theory, formation tactics, and ship employment. Practical skills in plotting and piloting are stressed. International and inland rules of the nautical road, naval operations and operations analysis, applied aspects of ship handling, and afloat communications are also studied. Additionally, leadership traits in the themes of communication, counseling, and conflict resolution as they relate to safe navigation and ship movement will be developed. Other topics include tides, currents, effects of wind and weather, use of navigation instruments, celestial navigation, and the characteristics of electronic navigation.

#### NAVS 301 | NAVAL ENGINEERING

#### Units: 3

A detailed study of ship characteristics and types including hull, electrical, and auxiliary systems. Principles of stability and damage control are also covered. Advantages and disadvantages of steam, gas turbine, and diesel propulsion engines and their operation receive in-depth study. Leadership topics as they apply in an engineering setting are discussed.

#### NAVS 302 | NAVAL WEAPONS

#### Units: 3

This course outlines the theory and employment of naval weapons systems. Topics of discussion include radars, gun and missile systems, underwater direction and tracking, and basic naval ordinance. Case studies of weapon systems employment are covered, with emphasis on accountability.

#### NAVS 310 | EVOLUTION OF WARFARE

#### Units: 3

This course traces the development of warfare from the dawn of recorded history to the present, focusing on the impact of major military theorists, strategies, tacticians, and technological developments. The student acquires a basic sense of strategy, develops an understanding of military alternatives, and sees the impact of historical precedent on military thought and actions.

#### NAVS 401 | NAVAL OPERATIONS

#### Units: 3

An in-depth study of inland and international laws and systems of regulations that govern conduct of vessels in national waters and on the high seas. The basic forms of naval communications will be covered, as well as the basic terms and procedures associated with replenishment at sea (UNREP). Extensive discussions on the interrelationship between authority, responsibility, and accountability within an organization. Students will be challenged with demonstrating, in officer leadership situations, an understanding of the influence on a leader's ability to achieve organizational goals.

#### NAVS 402 | LEADERSHIP AND ETHICS

#### Units: 3

Leadership and Ethics is the capstone course of the NROTC academic curriculum and provides senior midshipmen and officer candidates with some of the tools necessary to be effective junior officers. We emphasize values and the ethical foundations of leadership. Philosophical interpretation and dialog will be used extensively throughout the course. The course is organized into two modules of study. The first module is about ethical foundations and philosophies. The second module explores military law and moral/religious issues. Recommend taking NAVS 201 – Leadership and Management prior to this course.

## NAVS 412 | FUNDAMENTALS OF MANEUVER WARFARE Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

This course prepares future military officers and other leaders for service by studying modern tactical principles, current military developments, and other aspects of warfare. The interaction between modern tactical principles as well as current military developments and their influence on maneuver warfare doctrine are discussed. There is a specific focus on the United States Marine Corps as the premier maneuver warfighting organization. Study also includes historical influences on tactical, operational, and strategic levels of maneuver warfare practices in the current and future operating environments.

## **Intersession and Summer Sessions**

#### Intersession

The University of San Diego follows the 4-1-4 academic calendar: fall and spring semesters of approximately four months each and a January Intersession of three weeks. Although students are not required to attend Intersession, many students are able to move more quickly through their program or to lighten their load in the regular semester by taking a course during January. One 3- or 4-unit course is the maximum allowed during Intersession; USD will not accept units taken concurrently at another college or university. A maximum of four units may be transferred from another college or university to USD if a student is not concurrently enrolled at USD.

### Summer Sessions

Academic courses are offered in sessions of various lengths over the 12-week summer period. Students may take one more unit than the number of weeks of the session (i.e., four units in a 3-week session) for a total of 13 units over the 12-week period. These limits apply to any combination of courses taken concurrently at USD and another institution.

August graduates who wish to participate in the May Commencement ceremony must register and pay for their remaining classes by May 1, and take all their remaining courses in USD's Summer Sessions. Withdrawing from summer course(s) after having participated in the commencement ceremony will result in being charged a forfeit fee equal to 100% of the tuition charges for the enrolled summer classes. The summer sessions class schedule may be obtained at the

Summer and Intersession Office located in Founders Hall, Room 117 or on the Summer and Intersession (http://www.sandiego.edu/summer-intersession) site.

Please visit the Summer and Intersession (http://www.sandiego.edu/summer-intersession) website for detailed listing of summer courses, enrollment information, fee payment options and deadlines.

### **ACADEMIC REGULATIONS**

### Responsibility of Students

Students are responsible for adhering to all regulations, schedules and deadlines outlined in this course catalog and in any handbooks, contracts or guideline sheets pertinent to their program. Students have the further responsibility of ensuring that all graduation requirements are met. Questions on these matters should be directed to the student's faculty advisor.

### **Academic Integrity Policy**

The University of San Diego is an academic institution, an instrument of learning. As such, the university is predicated on the principles of scholastic honesty. It is an academic community all of whose members are expected to abide by ethical standards both in their conduct and in their exercise of responsibility toward other members of the community.

Academic dishonesty is an affront to the integrity of scholarship at USD and a threat to the quality of learning. To maintain its credibility and uphold its reputation, the university has procedures to deal with academic dishonesty which are uniform and which should be understood by all. Violations of academic integrity include:

- 1. unauthorized assistance on an examination;
- 2. falsification or invention of data;
- 3. unauthorized collaboration on an academic exercise;
- 4. plagiarism;
- 5. misappropriation of research materials;
- 6. any unauthorized access to an instructor's files or computer account; or
- any other serious violation of academic integrity as established by the instructor.

An act of dishonesty can lead to penalties in a course such as: reduction of grade; withdrawal from the course; a requirement that all or part of a course be retaken; and a requirement that additional work be undertaken in connection with the course.

Because of the seriousness of academic dishonesty, further penalties at the level of the university community may be applied; such penalties include but are not limited to probation, a letter of censure, suspension, or expulsion. Copies of the full policy on Academic Integrity are available at the offices of the Provost, Vice President for Student Affairs, academic deans and in the USD Policies and Procedures Manual. Instructors also explain other specific expectations regarding academic integrity in their classes.

In the event the Hearing Committee determines that expulsion or rescission of a degree is the appropriate sanction, or in the event of two dissenting votes on the Hearing Committee, the person who is adversely affected by the Hearing Committee's decision may appeal that decision to the Provost, who may finally determine the matter in the exercise of sound discretion.

The complete Academic Integrity policy can be found in the Honor Code (http://www.sandiego.edu/conduct/documents/Honor-Code.pdf).

## **Credit and Grading System**

At the end of each semester or session, a student's grade and credit in semester-hours for each course taken is recorded on the transcript and the grade report, accessible through the MySanDiego portal. Each course is recorded with one of the following grades: A, superior; B, very good; C, average; D, inferior; F, failure;

P, credit awarded, but units do not enter into computation of grade point average; W, withdrawal; I, incomplete.

Professors may not change final grades unless there is a computational error.

### Transfer of Credit

The following principles apply to transfer of undergraduate credit to the university:

- Credit must be from an accredited, USD-approved university. However, students should note that USD has full discretion concerning which credits are applicable to its curricula and are therefore transferable.
- 2. Credit must be at the undergraduate level at the university of origin. The student is responsible for submitting acceptable supporting documentation.
- Transfer courses cannot repeat essentially the same content of work taken at USD, except in the cases where a grade of D or F was received in the USD course.
- 4. A grade of "C-" or higher must have been earned (grade of "pass" or "satisfactory" ordinarily is not acceptable).
- All courses transferred to USD are transferred for unit credit only and are not calculated into the GPA.
- 6. The number of credit hours transferred will be based on USD's semester credit system (multiply the number of quarter hours by 2/3). For example, 4 quarter-hours x 2/3 = 2.67. It is the student's responsibility to make up the difference if the total number of degree credits falls short of the requirement for the degree. The amount of USD credit awarded may not exceed the equivalent amount on the originating transcript.

Quarter Hours Converted to Semester:

1 quarter unit	0.67 semester units
2 quarter unit	1.33 semester units
3 quarter unit	2.00 semester units
4 quarter unit	2.67 semester units
5 quarter unit	3.33 semester units
6 quarter unit	4.00 semester units

### Procedure for Transfer of Credit

Students of the university who wish to take courses at other institutions should obtain advance written approval on a Petition to Transfer Credit form, which can be found online at Office of the Registrar (http://www.sandiego.edu/registrar). The student will get the signature of their advisor, the department chair in the comparable department in which the course is being taken, and the dean if they expect such courses to be accepted in fulfillment of degree requirements at USD. Coursework taken at another university after a student leaves USD is not posted to the official transcript unless the student is readmitted to the university.

### Policy for International Studies Abroad

The University of San Diego recognizes full academic credit toward an undergraduate degree for students choosing to participate in an international experience when the chosen program is directly affiliated with USD and approved by the International Studies Abroad Committee. Students who wish to take courses in unaffiliated international programs and receive academic credit must obtain advance written approval, for sound academic reasons, at the discretion of their Academic Dean in concert with the Office of International Affairs. USD transfer of credit policies will apply for any such approved course. No academic credit will be transferred without advance written approval as described above. This policy applies to all programs: short-term, semester-long and year-long programs.

### Repetition of Courses

Only courses for which grades D or F were received may be repeated for credit. Only one repetition is permitted unless authorized in writing by the dean. On course repetitions, the units are applied toward a degree only once, but the grade assigned at each enrollment shall be permanently recorded. A course in which grades D or F were assigned may not be repeated on a pass/fail basis.

In computing the grade point average of an undergraduate student who repeats courses in which a D or F was received, only the most recently earned grades and grade points shall be used for the first 10 units repeated. When courses are repeated by transfer work, the lower grade will be removed from the USD grade point average and credit for the course will be given without grade points. In the case of further repetitions, the grade point average shall be based on all grades assigned and total units attempted. The student should notify the registrar when a course is repeated so that adjustment of the cumulative grade point average, if necessary, may be done promptly.

Students who earn a grade other than D or F that is unacceptable, for legal reasons, in a specific course or program may also repeat that course as outlined above.

### **Duplication of Credit**

Each of the academic courses counted toward the 124 units required for graduation must represent an increment in the student's knowledge. Consequently, courses which duplicate previous work, either in high school (for example, foreign language) or in college, cannot be counted toward graduation, nor can elementary courses which are prerequisite to advanced courses if they are taken concurrently with or after the more advanced work.

### **Experiential Education Credit**

A maximum of 6 units of combined practicum, field experience and/or internship taken within the College of Arts and Sciences can be applied to the 124 unit degree requirement, 48 unit upper division requirement, and/or Upper-Division Requirements in the student's major. Only students eligible for upper division credit (second semester sophomore standing) will be allowed to register in these courses. The university neither gives nor accepts transfer credit for prior experiential learning. Other restrictions (that is, junior and/or senior standing) are at the discretion of the department.

### Pass/Fail Option

Students in good academic standing, that is, with a grade point average of 2.0 at USD, may elect to enroll for courses on the pass/fail plan. All students who wish to exercise the pass/fail option must have prior authorization from their advisor. Courses taken at other institutions and transferred to USD for unit credit only are not considered to fall under the pass/fail option. Note the deadline announced in the academic calendar for changing a course to the pass/fail option or vice-versa. No changes will be made after this date. The following regulations apply:

- Lower-division students must have successfully completed at least 12 units at this university.
- 2. If the course is part of a regular semester, the student must be enrolled in at least nine other units on a regular grading basis.
- 3. Students may take no more than one course per academic term and no more than two courses per academic year on a pass/fail basis. (Courses offered exclusively on a pass/fail basis for all students are not counted in arriving at the limit.).
- 4. Major courses (and courses in the preparation for the major) are excluded unless the course is only offered on a pass/fail basis and the major requires at least 24 upper-division units that must be taken on a regular grading basis. A

- maximum of 6 units of such pass/fail coursework may be applied to a major, including both preparation and major courses.
- 5. Courses required for any state teaching credential are excluded.
- Certain advanced or highly specialized courses may be excluded by departments acting in concert.
- Research and reading courses, performance and independent study courses, and courses not lending themselves to specific grading practices may, by determination of the faculty, be included.
- 8. All courses designated as "activity" courses may be pass/fail (at faculty determination, not students).
- There will be no change from pass/fail to grade or vice-versa after the deadline listed in the academic calendar.
- 10. The course, quiz, paper, examination and attendance requirements for pass/ fail students will be the same as for students receiving a letter grade.
- 11. Pass requires a grade of C- grade or better.
- 12. Pass does not affect grade point average; Fail does affect grade point average.
- 13. A course taken on a pass/fail basis may only be repeated as a pass/fail course.
- 14. A course in which a grade of D or F is received may not be repeated on pass/ fail basis, but may be repeated for a grade.
- 15. For first honors or second honors consideration, 12 semester units must be earned in fall or spring semesters in which traditional grades are issued.
- 16. A student wishing to major in a field in which he or she previously earned pass/fail credit may, with departmental permission, select another course to fulfill the requirement.
- 17. A maximum of 15 pass/fail units at USD is applicable to the fulfillment of degree requirements. However, in the Electrical Engineering (EE), Industrial & Systems Engineering (ISyE) and Mechanical Engineering (ME) majors, pass/fail is not permitted in any required (by title) course.

### **Grade Grievance Procedures**

The instructor's/professor's judgment is presumed to be correct. Therefore, the burden of qualifying a grievance rests with the student. Thus, at every level in the proposed grievance procedures this "presumption" should be understood by all participants.

It is assumed that grievances will be resolved by the instructor and student.

Grading criteria, requirements, content, etc. are established by the instructor. The presumption is that students have been given ample opportunity for clarification of class requirements at the beginning of a given course.

The procedure for a grade grievance is as follows:

- 1. Initial grade/grievance must be addressed to the instructor in the course.
- 2. In those rare circumstances when no agreement is reached in number 1 (above), the student may seek advice from the department chair.
- 3. If the matter is not satisfactorily settled at number 2 (above), the student then may seek advice from the dean who will refer the matter to a standing faculty committee (e.g. academic affairs).
- 4. The committee will hear the student's grievance and make its recommendations to the parties involved. At every level in this grievance procedure, the instructor must be apprised of the situation.

### Credit by Examination

A number of the Subject Examinations of the College Level Examination Program (CLEP) have received approval by the university faculty, so that in certain specified subjects students may qualify for college credit by satisfactory performance in the CLEP tests. Inquiries may be made at the Office of the Dean of the College of Arts and Sciences, Founders Hall, Room 114 or visit Exam

Credits (http://www.sandiego.edu/cas/documents/\_main/advising/clepapproved.pdf).

### *Grade Point Average (GPA)*

The grade point average is computed by first multiplying the number of units for each course under consideration by the number of grade points assigned to the grade received for the course; the total number of grade points earned in the period is then divided by the total number of applicable units attempted. Grade points and attempted credit units for courses with a grade of Incomplete or I (unless the deadline for completion has passed), Pass, or W are not included in the GPA calculation.

Grade points are assigned as follows:

A	4.00
A-	3.67
B+	3.33
В	3.00
B-	2.67
C+	2.33
C	2.00
C-	1.67
D+	1.33
D	1.00
D-	0.67
F	0.00

## Post-Baccalaureate Undergraduate Study

Once an undergraduate student graduates, that student's courses and GPA for the first degree are fixed and will not change if the student returns to USD for additional undergraduate work.

If a student returns for a second undergraduate degree then the student must take at least 30 units and fulfill at USD all of the major requirements of the second degree current at the time of reenrollment, but as the student has previously completed all other requirements for a USD undergraduate degree no further requirements (e.g. core) apply even if these have changed. A new GPA for these additional units will be calculated as well as an overall GPA that combines all undergraduate work at USD. The total number of units that may be repeated between both undergraduate degrees is 10. Since such students are degree-seeking they are eligible for Title IV financial aid.

If a student returns for a second major in the same degree that the student previously earned, then the student will be assigned to a post-bacc program at the undergraduate level. The student must complete at USD the major requirements for the second major current at the time of reenrollment, but as the student has completed all other degree requirements previously when earning the degree with the first major no further requirements (e.g. core) apply even if these have changed. A new GPA will be calculated for the additional units taken to complete the second major as well as an overall GPA that combines all undergraduate work at USD. The total number of units that may be repeated for the degree is 10. Such students are not degree-seeking so they are not eligible for Title IV financial aid. However, if the student is enrolled in at least six units she/he is eligible for an inschool loan deferment. Such students will not receive a new diploma but when the second major is completed that fact will be noted on their transcript and, upon request, the Registrar will produce a letter certifying the completion of the second major.

If a student wants to add a minor to an already completed undergraduate degree, all of the same rules apply as for returning for a second major, i.e. the then current requirements of the minor are the only requirements that must be fulfilled.

### Grade of Incomplete

The grade of Incomplete (I) may be recorded to indicate:

- that the requirements of a course have been substantially completed, but, for a legitimate reason, a small fraction of the work remains to be completed;
- that the record of the student in the course justifies the expectation that he or she will complete the work and obtain a passing grade by the deadline.

It is the student's responsibility to explain to the instructor the reasons for noncompletion of the work and to request an incomplete grade prior to the posting of final grades. The incomplete grade is not counted in the computation of the grade point average, nor is credit earned for the semester or session for which the grade was authorized.

The instructor should discuss with the student the conditions and deadline for completion, whenever possible. In addition, the instructor must document the conditions and deadline using the Petition for Grade of Incomplete. The form must be signed by the dean of the appropriate school or college and submitted to the Registrar's Office at the time final grades are submitted. Students who receive a grade of incomplete must submit all missing work no later than the end of the tenth week of the next regular semester; otherwise, the I grade will be counted as an F. This applies only to regular class work.

Students receiving financial aid should be aware that taking an incomplete grade may affect their eligibility for financial aid by their failure to earn the appropriate amount of credit within a year.

### **Grade Reports**

Grade reports are available on the MySanDiego portal in the Torero Hub tab – My Academics page. Students must have a USD e-mail account to access MySanDiego portal.

### **Declaring the Major**

The entering student may declare a major at any time after the beginning of the first semester of attendance by completing the Declaration of Major form, which is available at the Office of the Registrar (http://www.sandiego.edu/registrar). Go to "Forms," then select "Declaration of Major." The same form is used to declare a minor, a certificate program, a second major, etc. As with the major, all these other programs must be declared formally. In addition, the same form is used to officially change advisors. Students must obtain the necessary signatures on the form and return it to the Office of the Registrar. Students must declare a major before selecting a minor. Forms are available at the One Stop Student Center (http://www.sandiego.edu/onestop) (http://www.sandiego.edu/registrar)website.

The selection of a major has important and long-lasting consequences. Students who make their choice hastily and thoughtlessly run the risk either of finding themselves in an unsatisfying career or of making a subsequent costly adjustment to their program. Those who needlessly postpone their decision beyond a reasonable time also make a potentially costly error. Students should declare their major as early as possible so that their advisors can guide them in the selection of appropriate courses. Students choosing to major in engineering, liberal studies, the sciences, or in business administration should select those majors early in their academic career.

The university's Career Development Center is prepared to offer its services to students who face this difficult decision. Through personal interviews and

extensive standardized testing, its counselors help students to assess their academic assets, dominant interest patterns and potential for success.

When a decision to change a major concentration has been reached the student must complete the Change of Major form. Juniors and seniors who contemplate a change of major should be aware that a change is likely to necessitate taking additional courses in order to complete their requirements.

### **Email Accounts**

All USD students are required to have a MySanDiego email account. The university may conduct official business by sending notices or other information to the student's USD email address. It is the student's responsibility to check regularly his or her account and to respond to any notices or information in a timely manner. Failure to do so will not be considered a legitimate reason for a policy exception.

### **General Information**

#### **Attendance**

Regular and prompt attendance at class is deemed essential for the optimal educational progress of the student, and for the orderly conduct of academic life. There is no generally specified number of allowed absences. Each instructor will publish attendance regulations at the beginning of the course and will state what penalties will be imposed for excessive absences.

### Course Numbering System

Courses offered by the university are listed in alphabetical order by discipline within each school or college.

Course numbers are three digits in the following ranges:

100-299	Lower-Division Courses
300-499	Upper-Division Courses
500-599	Graduate/Master's/Law Courses
600-699	Doctoral/Law Courses

Course types are indicated by the following characters:

Н	Honors
L	Laboratory
P	Practicum
R	Recitation
S	Seminar

Some courses without this letter designation may still carry credit for lab, writing, diversity, etc. at the section level. Check the course notes contained in the schedule of classes for more information.

The semester in which a course is offered is indicated in parentheses at the end of the course description.

The numbers in parentheses after the title of the course indicate the number of semester units.

### Class Standing

Students reach sophomore standing after satisfactory completion of 30 units. Junior class and Upper-Division Standing are reached upon completion of 60 units. For senior class standing, 90 units must be completed.

### **Examinations**

Final examinations are held in all courses at the end of each semester. Dates and schedules for the final examinations are not to be changed without the approval of the appropriate dean. Permission to take a make-up examination necessitated by serious illness or other legitimate reason may be granted by the dean.

In fall and spring semesters, examinations are limited during the week prior to final examinations. There may be no major examinations; minor quizzes are permitted as long as they are listed on syllabi at the beginning of a semester and do not count for more than 10 percent of the course grade. Laboratory practica, papers, oral reports and make-up examinations are permitted. Students are responsible for class attendance and material presented during the week before final examinations.

Students who wish to fulfill specific competency requirements for graduation by examination may petition the Dean of the College of Arts and Sciences for permission to take such examinations. The dates for these examinations are announced in the academic calendar (found at the beginning of this course catalog). Students should check with the dean for fees and locations for the examinations. No academic credit will be given for these examinations.

## Transcripts, Academic Records and Diplomas

The transcript is the official, chronological record of the student's credit and grades. It is maintained and distributed by the Registrar in Founders Hall, Room 117. See table of fees for transcript cost. Instructions for requesting transcripts can be found at Transcripts (https://www.sandiego.edu/registrar/transcripts-diplomas/transcripts.php).

Any student may request official transcripts of his or her academic work. A fee of \$10 is charged for each transcript. Applications for official transcripts should be made in writing to Student Financial Services in the Hughes Administration Center. Unofficial transcript requests may be made in person or by writing directly to the One Stop office at USD.

DegreeWorks lists the requirements for each student's major and the courses that have been taken to meet the requirements. It is designed to keep students updated on their academic progress and to let them know if waived or transferred courses have been approved and processed. Students may access their degree audit using their email login at USD's MySanDiego portal.

The diploma is issued by the Office of the Registrar to students who have petitioned to graduate and have been cleared for degree completion by the program, by the Registrar's Office and by other pertinent offices on campus. The diploma will be sent after the term in which requirements are completed. Diplomas for January and August graduates will be ordered at the end of the month of their respective terms (e.g. Jan. 31 and Aug. 31) and only after final requirements have been submitted. Additionally, students must be cleared to graduate by their program directors.

Transcripts and diplomas will not be released to students who have an outstanding balance with student accounts.

### **Graduation and Commencement**

## Completion of Degree Requirements — The Petition to Graduate

In order to be cleared for degree completion, students must file a Petition to Graduate on the student portal by the deadlines outlined in the Academic Calendar in the front of this course catalog. There are three graduation dates: Jan. 31,

May 31 and Aug. 31. The effective degree date for students who complete their program requirements by the posted deadline for the fall semester and Intersession will be Jan. 31. Those who meet the deadline for May graduation will receive their degree at that time and students who fulfill all requisites for their degree in the summer will have their degree recorded in their transcript effective Aug. 31.

## Participation in Commencement Ceremonies

Commencement participation and program listing at the annual May ceremony are limited to graduates who have completed the degree in the previous summer, fall, or Intersession and to May candidates who met the graduation petition deadline and have completed all work for the degree prior to Commencement.

There is the following exception: Seniors graduating in August may participate in the previous May ceremony provided that they:

- 1. take their remaining courses in USD's summer sessions; and
- 2. have registered (including payment) in USD's summer sessions for their remaining courses by May 1 and have given to the registrar's office written evidence of such completed registration. Seniors graduating in August may not take an independent study course during the summer sessions.

Exceptions to this policy may be approved by the student's dean when there are circumstances beyond the student's control. August graduates who wish to take courses elsewhere (after procuring the appropriate waivers) may do so, but they may not participate in the May ceremony. (Note: Summer courses taken in USD sponsored summer study abroad programs will meet the requirement for courses taken at USD.)

August graduates who wish to participate in the May Commencement ceremony should register in the spring semester prior to the May ceremony for any needed courses that are being offered at USD in the Summer Sessions immediately following Commencement. To facilitate the process of looking at the spring and summer courses together, the courses, dates, and times of USD spring semester and summer sessions offerings are made available each fall on the university's website. Unavailability of a needed course in USD's Summer Sessions will not be grounds for an exception to the policy on Commencement participation. All information is made available to students the previous fall to anticipate and avoid any such problems.

### **Honors**

At the end of each semester, each dean receives the names of full-time (12 units or more) honor students. Those with a GPA of 3.65 or higher receive First Honors; those with 3.40 to 3.64 receive Second Honors. All honor students receive a personal commendation letter from the appropriate dean.

Students of outstanding academic merit receive special honors at graduation. Eligibility for these special honors is based upon USD GPA: a) for summa cum laude, 3.90 or higher; b) for magna cum laude, 3.70 to 3.89; and c) for cum laude 3.50 to 3.69. The senior with the highest USD GPA within each commencement group will give the valedictory address at his/her respective ceremony. At least half of the degree work must be completed at USD. In the event of ties, the student with the most coursework completed at USD will give the valedictory address at his/her respective ceremony. Also presented at graduation are the Alcalá Leadership Awards to two outstanding seniors.

At the annual University of San Diego Honors Convocation, a formal yearend assembly, awards are presented to a number of students who have shown exceptional attainment in academic and other areas of university life. Departmental honors are awarded to seniors who have petitioned to graduate and have maintained a USD grade point average of 3.5 in upper division courses in their major, provided that a minimum of 12 such units have been completed at USD prior to February 1 of the year of graduation. However, a student may lose eligibility for special honors and departmental honors if the student has been found to have committed a serious violation of the academic integrity policy.

## Leave of Absence and Withdrawal

### Leave of Absence

An official leave of absence is an approved, limited suspension of participation in an undergraduate program during the fall and/or spring semester. A leave allows students to take time off and return to the university without applying for readmission. Under ordinary circumstances, leaves will be granted for up to one calendar year. Students who fail to return (or obtain permission to extend their leave at the end of the approved term) and who later wish to return to the university, will be required to reapply for admission under the admission and degree requirements in effect at the later date.

Because students are not registered during a leave, they may not be eligible for the campus privileges for which a current ID card is necessary. Financial aid and international student visas are typically suspended for students on leave of absence. In addition, the leave may trigger the beginning of the loan repayment period for students with loan deferments.

A student who will not be registered at the university during a regular semester, but would like to return without applying for readmission, must request a leave of absence by the last day to enroll in classes for that semester. Students must file the official Undergraduate Student Leave of Absence form with the Center for Student Success located in the University Center, room 114. To incur no tuition charges, students should request a leave of absence before the first day of classes. The request must state the reason for which the leave is requested and the semester in which the student will again register at the university. Requests for leaves of absence must be approved by the Center for Student Success. Leaves of absence are granted for a maximum of two consecutive semesters.

### Withdrawal from the University

A student withdrawing from the university during a semester or for a future semester must file an official Undergraduate Student Withdrawal Form with the Center for Student Success located in the University Center, room 114. Failure to do so before leaving the campus or, in the case of illness or other emergency, as soon as the decision not to continue has been made, will result in non-passing grades in all courses, thereby jeopardizing eligibility to re-enter USD or acceptance in another institution. After the last day to enroll in classes, and continuing through the end of the 10th week of the semester (the last day to withdraw from classes), students may process a withdrawal to drop all their classes with grades recorded as Ws. After the last day to withdraw from classes, the withdrawal will be effective at the end of the current term and will result in the posting of grades for the term. Students forced to discontinue enrollment after the withdrawal deadline due to a documented emergency may petition their respective dean for an exception to this policy; however, the petition must be filed prior to the last day of classes and is subject to review. International students must follow the same procedures and, in addition, obtain clearance from the Office of International Students and Scholars located in Serra Hall, Room 316.

A student whose registration at the university is interrupted for one or more semesters must apply for readmission though the Office of the Registrar, unless a leave of absence has been granted in writing.

### Registration

Only students who have been officially admitted to USD's undergraduate degree program, or as a special student taking a maximum of six units, are permitted to register. Registration takes place only when the student completes and submits all appropriate forms and pays all required tuition and fees. No credit will be granted for courses in which a student is not officially admitted and registered.

### Registration Deadlines

Students are responsible for adhering to the deadlines for registration, payment, withdrawal and change of registration listed in the Academic Calendar, published in the Undergraduate Course Catalog, on the Summer and Intersessions website and in registration instructions distributed subsequently.

### New Undergraduate Students

Information regarding registering for classes will be e-mailed to students and will be also be available in the MySanDiego portal after receipt of their enrollment deposit, beginning in late May. A freshman advising questionnaire will be provided, which includes information about courses and schedules. Completing this questionnaire begins the registration process and the matching of students to an academic advisor. Upon arrival at USD, all international students must report promptly to the Office of International Students and Scholars.

### **Continuous Registration**

Upon matriculation, students are expected to register every fall and spring semester until all degree requirements have been completed. Exceptions to this policy will be made for students who have been approved for a leave of absence (see Leave of Absence).

### Change of Course Registration - Dropping or Adding Courses

In the regular fall and spring semesters, courses may be added during the first eight days of class and may be dropped until the 10th week of the semester, without risk of academic penalty. Withdrawal within that time limit will be recorded as W. After that date there is no possibility of withdrawal; the student will receive a grade for the course. A grade of W does not enter into the computation of the GPA. Unofficial withdrawal from a course results in a grade of F. For deadlines during Summer Sessions and Intersession, go to Summer and Intersession Office (http://www.sandiego.edu/sio). Students who discontinue class attendance and neglect to withdraw officially from the course are subject to failing the class. Courses dropped before the last day to add a class will not be included on the transcript. Courses officially dropped between the last day to add classes and the last day to withdraw from classes will receive a grade of 'W' (not included in the GPA). After the drop deadline, a grade will be reported for all courses. Freshman students must have the approval of the preceptor to add or drop a course.

Students who receive any form of financial aid must consult with the One Stop Student Center if their registered units drop below the required number of units for continuation of aid. Registered students who withdraw from the university (e.g. terminate all courses in progress) must officially drop their courses by filing an Undergraduate Student Withdrawal Form with the Center for Student Success. The same drop policies and deadlines apply to students who withdraw from the university as for those who drop only one course (see also Withdrawal from the University).

### **Auditing**

Auditing a course means attending a class without credit, without the obligation of regular attendance and without the right to have tests and examinations scored or corrected.

Students register for audit in the same manner as for credit. Those who audit courses are not eligible for credit by examination in such courses, nor are they eligible for financial aid, nor may auditors register for credit after the last official day to register in a class. Switching from credit to audit or audit to credit is not allowed after the last official day to register in a class. Each course audited is entered on the student's permanent record. Auditing of laboratory courses or education recreation courses is not permitted.

Students wishing to register for credit have priority over those who desire to audit. The fee is \$160 per credit hour.

### Change of Address

Students are responsible for informing the Registrar's Office in writing of any change in either their permanent or local address so that they will receive all information vital to their enrollment. Failure to receive instructions due to an incorrect address will not be considered a legitimate reason for a policy exception if the student did not file a Change of Address form in the One Stop Student Center prior to the mailing of the information.

### **Residence Requirement**

Students are expected to complete the preponderance of their baccalaureate work at the university, especially in their junior and senior years. Leaves of absence for foreign study or transfer of courses to USD from other universities are permitted to meet legitimate educational goals of students prior to their senior year.

To satisfy the requirements for a degree, students must earn a minimum of the final 30 semester units of credit at USD. This residence requirement may be partially waived. Waiver is at the discretion of the student's dean. Waiver is possible only if the preponderance of academic work has been at USD and if there are valid educational reasons.

# Scholastic Probation and Disqualification

A student will be placed on scholastic probation if:

- the semester GPA falls below a C average (GPA 2.0) for coursework in a given semester
- the GPA falls below 2.0 for all work attempted at USD. In either case, the student will be placed on probation for the next semester (or portion thereof if the resolution of incomplete grades leads to a semester GPA of less than 2.0).

The probationary status of a student can be ended only at the close of the probationary semester when the following conditions are met:

- C average (GPA 2.0) for all college work attempted at USD, and for all coursework attempted during the semester of probation
- 2. there are no grades of incomplete for the probationary semester.

If the student does not end probationary status at the conclusion of the probationary semester, he or she will be disqualified scholastically.

An extension of scholastic probation for one semester only may be considered if a student appeals in writing to the dean of his or her school or college within 10 days of the postmark date on the notice of disqualification. The appeal should

set forth the reasons which would justify an extension and the specific plans for raising the GPA.

### **Student Load**

For a student to qualify as full time, 12 units minimum are required. However, the normal student load is 15-16 units. To exceed 18 units, the authorization of the student's advisor and of the pertinent dean must be obtained in writing. Ordinarily, no enrollment beyond 18 units will be approved unless the applicant has maintained a GPA of 3.0 cumulatively and in the immediate past semester. These restrictions on student load also apply to courses taken concurrently at another college or university for transfer to USD.

The maximum student load during Intersession is four units, and the maximum student load for the summer sessions is 13 units in a 12-week period. These maxima also apply to any combination of courses taken concurrently at USD and another college or university.

### Undergraduate unit requirement for fulltime and part-time enrollment:

Full Time: 12+ units3/4 Time: 9-11.5 unitsHalf-Time: 6-8.5 units

• Less than Half-Time: 1-5.5 units

# Unit and Grade Point Requirements

To qualify for a degree, the student must earn a minimum of 124 semester units of credit. A unit is defined as the amount of credit awarded for satisfactory performance in one lecture period or one laboratory period for one semester. A minimum grade point average of C (GPA 2.0) is required in the total work attempted at USD.

Of the 124 units required for graduation, 48 must be in upper division courses, that is, those numbered 300 or higher. In order to register in courses which carry upper division credit, the student is normally required to have a combination of completed and in progress units totaling at least 45 units for the College of Arts and Sciences and 60 units for the School of Business.

In the College of Arts and Sciences, where, in the judgment of the instructor of record or department chair, the student has acquired the necessary basic proficiency, the student may be permitted to enroll in upper division courses for upper division credit even though he or she may still have only freshman or first semester sophomore standing. In such cases, the approval from the instructor of record or department chair is required.

In the School of Business, a student is permitted to enroll in upper division business courses when he or she has earned 60 credit units, attended the School of Business Orientation and successfully completed MATH 130 or 150 with a grade of C— or better. The one exception to taking upper division business classes is Fundamentals of Marketing, in which a student may enroll with 45 credit units presuming all other requirements are met.

Students with junior or senior status and valid academic justification may take up to six units of graduate numbered courses and apply those units to their undergraduate degree as upper division units. Permission must be obtained from the student's advisor, the course instructor, the dean of the student's major field and the dean of the School/College that is offering the graduate course.

Students enrolled in a combined degree program at USD may take up to 12 units of courses that satisfy requirements for both an undergraduate and graduate degree in such a program. These courses may be numbered at the graduate or undergraduate levels. Graduate numbered courses will count as upper-division courses toward the undergraduate degree requirements. Undergraduate numbered courses must be taken at the upper-division level in order to satisfy graduate degree requirements. Permission to count specific courses toward degree requirements must be obtained from the student's academic advisor(s), the chairs/directors of both degree programs, and the deans of any school/college that is conferring a degree to the student. For courses that have been approved for the combined degree program, only the approval of the student's academic advisor(s) is required.

### **ADMISSIONS**

Admission to USD is based upon evidence of the applicant's fitness to succeed in, benefit from, and contribute to the university community. Consideration is given to past academic performance, test scores, recommendations, a personal essay and other information the candidate provides on the application for admission.

# Admission to Freshman Standing

- Graduation from secondary school, completion of a General Education Diploma (GED) or State High School Proficiency Examination.
- 2. Performance in secondary school. Applicants are expected to present a well-balanced secondary school program of at least four academic subjects each year (including college preparatory courses in English, foreign language, mathematics, laboratory science, history and social science). Both the content of the program and the quality of the performance will be considered.
- 3. Scores on the SAT Reasoning Test or ACT. Students should plan to take this test in their junior year, early in their senior year or at least nine months prior to their planned university enrollment. For both tests, students are required to take the writing section.
- 4. Academic letter of recommendation.
- 5. Personal essay.
- Evidence of leadership, talent, service or other qualities which will lead to success and meaningful participation in college and the larger community.

Additional prior preparation is strongly recommended for students planning to pursue a major in engineering. For further information, please review the Shiley-Marcos School of Engineering (p. 304) portion of this course catalog.

### **Advanced Placement**

## Advanced Placement (AP) and Credit for Advanced Work

The purpose of advanced placement and credit is to recognize advanced work of quality already accomplished by certain students, to preclude duplication of courses, and to provide increased opportunity for the exceptional student to take elective work in his or her undergraduate program.

Advanced placement college credit may be granted for advanced placement courses taken in secondary schools when such courses are completed with scores of 3, 4 or 5 on appropriate Advanced Placement Tests given by the College Entrance Examination Board. Score requirements vary for each test. See Exam Credits (http://www.sandiego.edu/cas/academics/approved\_exam\_credits.php) for a current listing.

Students who have been given the opportunity by their secondary schools to take college courses prior to high school graduation will be given college credit if such courses were taken after the sophomore year.

### **International Baccalaureate**

The University of San Diego recognizes the International Baccalaureate (IB) as a rigorous college preparatory program. The university will award credits to students having successfully passed the individual IB higher level examinations with scores of 5 or higher. Satisfaction of specific university requirements by IB credit is decided in consultation with individual departments. Credit is also awarded to students who have successfully passed selected IB SL examinations with scores of 5 or higher. See Approved Exam Credits (http://

www.sandiego.edu/cas/academics/approved\_exam\_credits.php) for a current listing of credits awarded.

# **College-Level Examination Program (CLEP)**

College credit may be granted, within certain limitations, for the subject examinations offered through the College-Level Examination Program (CLEP) of the College Entrance Examination Board when satisfactory scores have been earned. Units earned in this manner require extra payment. See Approved Exam Credits (http://www.sandiego.edu/cas/advising/core-curriculum/approved-examcredits.php) for a current listing of credits awarded.

### **Advanced Standing**

### Admission to Advanced Standing

The university normally accepts transfer students from other colleges and universities who were admissible to the university as freshmen and present a strong record in their previous college work.

Candidates who were not eligible for admission to the university as freshmen will be considered if they present a balanced academic program of at least 24 semester units of transferable academic work with a strong record.

Students who did not graduate high school, complete the GED or State High School Proficiency Examination should have successfully completed an AA degree before applying.

Students who have left the university without an approved leave of absence should seek readmission through the Office of the Registrar.

Candidates for advanced standing, in addition to the application procedures listed, must present official transcripts of all college work attempted and a letter of recommendation from the previous college.

Transfer credit is officially evaluated by the Office of the Dean of the College of Arts and Sciences following the student's acceptance and submission of the commitment deposit. No official evaluation can be made before that time.

### **Application Procedure**

The University of San Diego is a member of the National Association for College Admission Counseling and subscribes to the Statement of Principles of Good Practice of that organization.

- A candidate should obtain the Application for Admission from the Undergraduate Admissions website and submit electronically the completed form with the fee of \$55 (non-refundable).
- A candidate should ask the registrar of his/her high school (and colleges, if any) to send the official transcripts to the university. Definitive acceptance depends on the report of the final examinations of the secondary school and the statement of graduation from high school.
- Reports of the SAT Reasoning Test (including writing), of the College Entrance Examination Board and/or the ACT with writing results should be forwarded to the university at the request of the student.
- 4. The applicant should arrange to have sent directly to the university the recommendation as indicated on the Application for Admission form.
- 5. When the above data are filed, the Office of Undergraduate Admissions will inform the student of the action taken on the application according to the calendar published on the Undergraduate Admissions website.

- Admitted candidates are required to send a commitment deposit before the deadline noted in their letter of acceptance. Commuting students should send a \$300 deposit, and resident students should send a \$500 deposit/room reservation fee.
- 7. The university observes the announced national candidate's reply date. This means that candidates who have been informed of their acceptance to the university are not required to make any non-refundable deposit prior to May 1.

### **International Students**

The University of San Diego welcomes international students who can demonstrate their ability to undertake college work successfully in the United States.

Applicants for admission from other countries must give evidence of eligibility for college entrance by furnishing official records covering all secondary and collegiate work and academic and personal recommendations. All non-English records must be translated into English and certified as accurate by the school, a consulate official or an official translator. Evaluation of international transcripts often requires several weeks. Students presenting such transcripts are therefore urged to have them forwarded as early as possible.

Students from non-English-speaking countries are required to take the Test of English as a Foreign Language (TOEFL) administered by the Educational Testing Service or the International English Language Testing System (IELTS). The SAT Reasoning Test or ACT with writing is optional for international freshman applicants. The SAT is administered throughout the year worldwide. To obtain SAT registration materials, go to College Board (http://www.collegeboard.com).

All international students accepted by the university who require an F-1 or J-1 Visa must provide for their financial support from non-university sources. They must submit adequate proof of financial responsibility for all obligations for the full period of time for which they are making application. Accepted resident students should send a tuition deposit/room reservation fee of \$500, and commuting students should send a tuition deposit of \$300 when accepted. These non-refundable deposits are credited to the student's account. No evaluation of a student's academic status or registration information can be sent until receipt of the deposit.

USD is authorized under federal law to enroll non-immigrant alien students. The applicant must be accepted as a full-time student working toward a degree before he or she is eligible for a Certificate of Eligibility Form I-20. The Form I-20 will be sent to the student after submitting a deposit and upon receipt of the Certification of Finances form indicating the amount and source(s) of finances.

### **Veterans Benefits**

The University of San Diego welcomes veterans, dependents and members of the U.S. Armed Forces. All eligible veterans, service members and dependents may now apply for benefits online at U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs (http://www.gibill.va.gov). For more information, contact the USD Veterans Affairs Coordinator at the Registrar's Office, Founders Hall, Room 117.

### Yellow Ribbon Program

The University of San Diego is a participant in the Department of Veterans Affairs: Yellow Ribbon GI Education Enhancement Program. This program provides contributions to eligible veterans, spouses and/or children with unmet tuition costs. In addition, the VA will match the USD Yellow Ribbon scholarship funds offered by USD. For additional information regarding application for the

program, contact USD's Veterans Affairs Coordinator at the Registrar's Office, Founders Hall, Room 117.

### **EXPENSES**

### 2018-2019 Expenses for Undergraduate Students

All students are expected to become familiar with the financial obligations they incur by registering at the university. The following information provides the essential data; if in doubt, however, students should go to Student Accounts (http://www.sandiego.edu/studentaccounts) or make inquiries at the One Stop Services Center, Hahn University Center Room 126, prior to the registration/fee payment date. Tuition and fees listed here are for the fall and spring terms of the academic year 2018-2019; amounts for the 2019-2020 academic year have not been determined as of the date of publication.

### **Application Fee**

All students are expected to become familiar with the financial obligations they incur by registering at the university. The following information provides the essential data; if in doubt, however, students should go to Student Accounts (http://www.sandiego.edu/studentaccounts) or make inquiries at the One Stop Services Center, Hahn University Center Room 126, prior to the registration/fee payment date. Tuition and fees listed her are for the fall and spring terms of the academic year 2018-2019; amounts for the 2019-2020 academic year have not been determined as of the date of publication. The fees below take effect with the beginning of Summer Session 2018.

Application Fee \$55

### **Deposit Fees**

### 2018-2019

Advance tuition deposit for new commuter students (non-refundable)	\$300
Advance tuition and room deposit for new resident students (non-refundable)	\$500
Housing Cancellation Fee (minimum)	\$250*
(During the spring semester, returning students are able to contract for their upcoming academic year housing. Please contact the Office of Residential Life for additional information concerning application/payment deadlines and refund policies.)	
Combination damage, cleaning and room checkout deposit is held as long as the Resident remains on the list for assignment or lives in a university residence hall.	\$100

### Other Required Fees

#### **Associated Student Fees**

Tabbetate Butter 1 tes			
12 or more units, per semester	\$117		
7-11.5 units, per semester	\$43		
3-6.5 units, per semester	\$10		
Other Required Fees			
Student Health Services Fee, per semester	\$110		
Student Life Pavilion			
Full-Time	\$70		

Part-Time	\$35
Transcripts (each)	\$10
Media Fee (per semester)	\$7
Miscellaneous Fees*	
Credit by Examination (per credit hour)	\$160
Competency Exam Fee	\$25
ID Replacement Fee	\$15
Returned Check Charge	\$25
Parking Fees	
Resident Permit	\$290
Commuter Permit	\$280
Motorcycle Permit	\$45

<sup>\*</sup> Please refer to Student Accounts website for information on late charges and

Note: Transcripts and diploma will not be released to students who have an outstanding balance owing to the university.

### **Payment Plans**

### Monthly Installment Plan

The Monthly Installment Plan allows for payment in five (per semester) installments covering actual expenses per semester. The five-payment per semester installment plan has a \$50 non-refundable administrative charge each semester which is payable when signing up for the plan.

The Monthly Installment Plan operates according to the following guidelines:

- 1. The student account balance with the university must not be delinquent and prior semester charges must have been paid on a current basis to be considered for the Installment Contract.
- 2. Payments begin on August 1 for the fall semester plan and on January 1 for the spring semester plan.
- 3. To enroll in the monthly installment plan, login to the MySanDiego (https://myauth.sandiego.edu/cas-web/login?service=https%3A%2F %2Fmy.sandiego.edu%2Fc%2Fportal%2Flogin) portal, under the Torero Hub tab select "My Student Account" page.
- 4. Adjustments are made to monthly installment plan payments as charges and/ or credits occur.
- 5. In the event of a contract default, USD may refuse the student or contract buyer a subsequent installment contract.
- 6. All payments, which are due on the first of the month throughout the contract life, must be current. If a student's installment plan is not kept current, the university reserves the right to cancel the student's current and future class reservations and room and meal plan arrangements. If installment payments are not current at the time of fall and/or spring semester fee payment/ registration deadlines, a late registration fee must be paid.
- 7. A \$50 processing fee is required upon execution of the monthly installment plan per semester.
- 8. Automatic deduction from a checking or savings account is available.
- 9. Tuition, and room and meal plan payments received are refundable in accordance with the university's published refund policy.
- 10. Installment payments are not available for study abroad programs, summer or intersession.

<sup>\*</sup> Subject to additional late cancellation fees (http://www.sandiego.edu/ residentiallife/documents/2017-18%20Terms%20and%20Conditions%20Campus %20Housing%20and%20Dining%20Services%20Agreement.pdf).

Additional information on payment plans is available from the One Stop Services Center, located in Hahn University Center, room 126 or by phone at (619) 260#2700.

To establish a payment plan or monthly installment contract: Log into the MySanDiego portal, under the Torero Hub tab select "My Student Account" page, then click "My Online Student Account". If you are eligible, you will see the installment plan option under the installment payment plans channel. In order to effectively initiate an installment plan contract, you must pay the exact amount indicated in the installment amount due line.

### Refunds

### **Tuition Refund Policy**

- 1. Fees and deposits are non-refundable.
- 2. Tuition is fully or partially refundable only when a student withdraws officially during the published refund withdrawal schedule (see academic calendar (catalogs.sandiego.edu/undergraduate/academic-calendar)). An Official Withdrawal Form must be obtained from the Center for Student Success. Informing a course instructor or academic department does not constitute withdrawal from the course or the university.

#### Refund Schedule

Fees and deposits are non-refundable, except as expressly stated. Tuition is fully or partially refundable only when students officially withdraw by completing and submitting withdrawal forms to the Center for Student Success.

To receive a 100% refund, student must withdraw or drop course(s) by the 8th day of classes for the regular academic semester.

Please refer to the academic calendar through the MySanDiego portal for specific dates and future changes to the "Refund Schedule." Updates to the "Refund Schedule" will be made prior to the first day of semester classes and without written notice (see academic calendar (catalogs.sandiego.edu/undergraduate/academic-calendar)).

A student receiving financial aid should consult the One Stop Student Center for refund policies regarding his or her financial aid funds.

Please note that all refund checks will be issued in the student's name, regardless of who remitted payment (unless the funds were received via Parent/PLUS loan).

Any student who feels that his or her individual case warrants an exception to the Tuition Refund Policy should consult the dean of the appropriate school/college.

Note: The tuition refund policy for Intersession and Summer Sessions is published in the appropriate course catalog and on the Summer and Intersession (http://www.sandiego.edu/summer-intersession) website. For calendaring reasons, it differs from the above. For details please contact the One Stop Student Center, Hahn University Center, Room 126, (619) 260-2700.

### Room and Meal Plan Refund Policy

The room prepayment becomes immediately non-refundable upon submission for all residents regardless of the reason for cancellation.

Cancellations become effective as of the date written notification is received by the Office of Residential Life or the U.S. Post Office postmark date.

Residents who cancel after July 31 shall forfeit the full room prepayment plus be subject to additional pro-rated fees. Details of these fees are available in the housing and dining services terms and conditions.

For the first eight weeks of the contract period for occupancy each semester, the university will adhere to a daily pro-rated schedule of housing fees for contracted residents (whether or not they have checked into a room) who are officially withdrawing from the university during either academic term regardless of reason. No refunds will be made to residents who withdraw after the first eight weeks of a semester. In addition to the pro-rated charges noted, all residents officially withdrawing from the university subsequent to the first day of the contract period for occupancy shall forfeit an amount equal to the room prepayment (plus the late cancellation fees noted in the housing and dining services terms and conditions). The effective date for any housing and dining service refund will be the latest date of either semester when the following requirements are completed: the resident officially submits a withdrawal notice, removes all personal belongings, checks out of his/her room, has the ONITY room access privileges deleted from his/her ID card and surrenders his/her meal plan.

The refund policy for Intersession and summer sessions is published in the appropriate course catalog on the Summer and Intersession (http://www.sandiego.edu/summer-intersession) website.

At the end of the academic year, the damage/cleaning deposit may be refunded in full if no damage/cleaning charges have been charged against it, or in part according to the amount of damage/cleaning charged; it will be carried over to the next year if the student will return to the residence hall the following September. A student who feels that his or her individual case warrants an exception to this policy should contact the Director of Housing.

### **Registration/Fee Payment Policy**

Class registration is not officially completed until all tuition, room, meal plan charges and fees are paid, except for those students who have formally enrolled in the university's monthly installment plan described below. Each student is financially responsible for payment of fees and charges assessed to his\her student account. Students receive bill notification electronically via their USD e-mail address. Payment of fees is due by the specified published due dates. Account must be kept current In order to maintain enrollment eligibility and receipt of official University documents and services. Please note that students who have not paid their account in full (or are not current with installment plan payments) on or before the published payment deadline will be subject to the assessment of late charges, cancellation of course enrollment and housing assignment and the application of holds preventing transcript release and registration privileges. In addition, delinquent student accounts may be referred to an external agency for collection. Delinquent account information may also be disclosed to credit reporting agencies, which could endanger the student's credit rating. Reserved classes and current registration may be canceled by the university if the student does not complete fee payment by the assigned fee payment dates in August and January for the respective fall and spring semesters respectively. (See Academic Calendar). A late registration fee may be charged to students who do not complete fee payment by the deadline in the academic calendar. A monthly interest late payment penalty of .8333% will be imposed on all students who do not complete fee payment by the deadline in the Academic Calendar. The monthly percentage of .833 is calculated by dividing the 10% APR by 12 months. Students who have an unpaid account may not register for subsequent semesters; receive grades or transcripts of academic credit or their diplomas. Accounts paid with a check that is returned by the bank and remains uncollected are not considered paid.

There is a \$25 service charge for returned checks. A monthly interest late penalty, if applicable, may be assessed to the student account if a check is returned. This fee is in addition to the \$25 service charge. Any benefit derived from, or deadline met by, remitting a check which is later returned by the bank, will become void. If a returned check transaction has been posted to a student account, USD reserves the right to refuse future payment in the form of a personal check from any

individual for that student's USD account. Courses added after the published payment deadline must be paid in full at the time of registration.

Note: Students on the monthly installment plan: Installment payments must be current throughout the contract life; if not current, the university reserves the right to cancel current and future class reservations and room and meal plan arrangements. If scheduled installment payments are not current by the assigned registration/fee payment days, a \$150 late payment fee must be paid.

### Registration/Fee Payment Procedure

To complete the official registration process, the following steps are required by the student:

- Dates, times and location of class reservation are announced in advance on the USD website each semester.
- 2. Students may choose to complete the fee payment portion of registration conveniently by paying their student account online on My Student Account page, under the Torero Hub tab of the MySanDiego (https://myauth.sandiego.edu/cas-web/login?service=https%3A%2F%2Fmy.sandiego.edu%2Fc%2Fportal%2Flogin) portal. Students may also pay the required tuition, fees, room and meal plan at the One Stop Student Center, Hahn University Center, Room 126. Students enrolled in the university's monthly installment plan should remit their payment online on or before the first of the month.
- 3. If the student plans to use estimated financial aid (including federal, state and/ or USD loans, grants and scholarships) to cover his/her balance, the student must ensure all of the requirements of the award are met. You may check the requirements by logging on the MySanDiego (https://myauth.sandiego.edu/ cas-web/login?service=https%3A%2F%2Fmy.sandiego.edu%2Fc%2Fportal %2Flogin) portal and clicking on the Financial Aid page, under the Torero Hub tab of the MySanDiego (https://myauth.sandiego.edu/cas-web/login? service=https%3A%2F%2Fmy.sandiego.edu%2Fc%2Fportal%2Flogin) portal. Failure to do so will subject the student to incur monthly interest late charges.

Note: Please read the Intersession and Summer Sessions' course catalog for specific information regarding the registration/fee payment procedure for those academic periods.

### **Room and Meal Plans**

Residential life is a vital part of the USD experience, so we require that students live on campus for their first and second years. All unmarried first and second year students must live in university housing (with exceptions possible based upon age) unless they will be commuting from the primary, full-time home of their parent(s) or legal guardian in San Diego County. Residents must be currently enrolled full-time students at USD (and making normal progress toward completion of a degree) during the period of occupancy.

First-year students live in themed living learning communities, while our secondyear students live in apartment-style housing communities. Juniors and seniors are also able to choose to live in our on-campus apartments.

There are several different room and meal plans available. The cost may vary between approximately \$5,800 and \$8,000 per semester depending upon type of accommodations and/or meal plan.

Exceptions to these policies will be considered by the Director of Residential Life, but must be requested in writing and approved prior to the start of the agreement period for occupancy (i.e. prior to checking into the residence hall or to making permanent plans to live off-campus).

### **Tuition**

#### Tuition 2018 - 2019

\$1,680/unit
\$24,375/
semester
\$1,680/per
additional unit
\$160/unit

Note: Tuition for 2019-2020 has not been determined. It is expected to increase.

### **FINANCIAL AID**

The primary purpose of the financial aid program at USD is to provide financial assistance to students who, without such aid, would be unable to attend the university. Financial assistance consists of scholarships, grants, loans and employment.

Primary responsibility for financing an education rests upon the student and the student's family. Financial aid from the university is viewed as a supplement to funds which can be provided by the student, the student's family and other sources. Students requesting financial assistance may be expected to meet a portion of their educational expenses by accepting employment, loan(s), or both. Because financial aid funds are limited, need is the primary factor in awarding most financial aid. For USD scholarships and grants, consideration is given to the applicant's academic achievement, character and potential. Students requesting financial assistance from USD resources must also apply for scholarships and grants funded by their home states for which they may be eligible.

A financial aid package is designed to meet the financial need of each individual student. Each package may consist of funding from one or more programs and can vary depending on established need and/or merit.

### Eligibility Requirements

- The student must be accepted officially by the Office of Undergraduate
   Admissions to pursue a degree or certificate, and maintain satisfactory
   academic progress as defined in the USD Guide to Financial Aid Consumer
   Information. The guide is available on the Office of Financial Aid website
   (http://www.sandiego.edu/financialaid).
- 2. The student must complete the appropriate application(s) see application procedure below.
- 3. The student must be a United States citizen or eligible non-citizen.
- 4. The student must not be in default on any federal loan or owe a refund on any federal grant.
- 5. Financial aid applicants must be aware that certain financial aid programs are designed to assist students who complete their degree work in a normal fouryear period. Those who elect or require additional time may have to rely more heavily on self-help assistance in the form of work and loans.
- 6. Certain USD funds require full-time enrollment.

### **Application Procedure**

- 1. Each student must complete the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) available at www.fafsa.gov. Students who do not wish to submit their FAFSA on line can print a blank FAFSA from the FAFSA website or can request a blank copy be mailed to them by calling 1 (800) 4-FEDAID. All students are expected to read and follow the instructions and deadlines in the Guide to Applying for Financial Aid at USD available on the OFA website.
- When required by federal law, and upon request from the Office of Financial Aid, it will be necessary for the student to provide their/their parents' most recent tax information and/or respond to other requests for information by the Office of Financial Aid.
- 3. All financial aid applications must be submitted or postmarked on or before the priority deadline dates listed in the academic calendar in order to receive priority consideration. Additionally, all follow-up information must be received by the USD Office of Financial Aid by the deadlines specified on the follow-up requests. Non-priority applicants are considered for any remaining funds and are processed after priority applicants.
- Students must follow these procedures each year in reapplying for financial aid.

### **Scholarships and Grants**

#### Merit Awards

The University of San Diego has established the following merit-based scholarship programs for which all freshmen applicants are considered. The Office of Undergraduate Admissions selects merit scholarship recipients. Consideration is given to high academic achievement, test scores, leadership, service, talent, and other personal qualities, irrespective of financial circumstances. These awards may be combined with other forms of university and outside financial aid for students with demonstrated need.

#### Alcalá Scholars

This award is offered to small number of incoming freshman who have demonstrated academic excellence through their outstanding grades, rigorous curriculum, and high test scores. These four year awards must be applied to university expenses. Renewal is contingent upon maintenance of the GPA specified on the information received with initial notification of the award from the Office of Undergraduate Admissions.

#### **Trustee Scholars**

Trustee Scholars are designated in the name of the University of San Diego Trustees. These four-year awards must be applied to university expenses. Renewal is contingent upon maintenance of the GPA specified on the information received with initial notification of the award from the Office of Undergraduate Admissions.

#### **Presidential Scholars**

Presidential Scholars are designated in the name of the President of the University of San Diego. These four-year awards must be applied to university expenses. Renewal is contingent upon maintenance of the GPA specified on the information received with initial notification of the award from the Office of Undergraduate Admissions.

#### Torero Pride Awards

This award is offered to those students who possess a combination of academic achievement and personal qualities that support our Mission and Core Values. These four year awards must be applied to university expenses. Renewal is contingent upon maintenance of the GPA specified on the information received with initial notification of the award from the Office of Undergraduate Admissions.

#### Diversity "Circle of Excellence" Scholarships

"Circle of Excellence" Scholarships recognize students who possess the unique combination of academic excellence, personal qualities of leadership and perseverance, and the potential to advance the university's goal of creating a diverse and inclusive community. A limited number of "Circle" scholarships are granted each year and are designed to cover the full cost of tuition for up to four years. Renewal of these scholarships is continued upon maintenance of good academic standing, attendance at "Circle" events, and representation of the university in a manner consistent with its mission.

#### **Choral Scholars**

Choral scholars are selected on the basis of audition through the Department of Music. While the amount of the scholarship is determined annually, it typically covers a portion of tuition and is renewable for up to four years for an undergraduate student, subject to a student maintaining a 3.0 GPA, participating in a specific program curriculum, and sustaining involvement in the choral scholars singing group. Students are encouraged to apply for needbased aid before the priority deadline and, if eligible, will receive an offer which coordinates the choral scholarship with other assistance. Students should contact the Department of Music for further information. Note: Eligibility for renewal of

need-based scholarships is based on the cumulative GPA provided to the Office of Financial Aid by the registrar, calculated through the end of the previous January Intersession. Students who fail to meet the GPA requirements in January may be reconsidered at the end of the Spring semester.

### University of San Diego Scholarships

These scholarships are awarded to new, full-time students. Awards are generally based on academic factors, the family's financial circumstances, and the student's potential to contribute to the university. Scholarships range from several hundred to several thousand dollars. Eligible continuing USD students must have documented need, meet the renewal criteria for USD funds, and make satisfactory academic progress.

#### University of San Diego Grants

These grants are offered to new, full-time students with documented need. Grants range from several hundred to several thousand dollars. Eligible continuing USD students must have documented need, meet the renewal criteria for USD funds, and make satisfactory academic progress.

#### University Ministry Scholarship

The USD University Ministry Scholarship is designed to encourage and support students to grow in their faith, discern their vocation, explore ways of being in solidarity with those in need and to be prepared to help address humanity's urgent challenges. The annual renewable scholarship is available to Catholic students who have demonstrated consistent engagement and servant leadership in their parish, school and community. Those who receive the award will be expected to continue their engagement and servant leadership at USD through the programs offered by our University Ministry Center. The scholarship is \$5,000 per year and approximately 20 students each year are selected. To be eligible, students must be admitted to the university and complete a short scholarship application. They must also have a completed Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) on file with the Office of Financial Aid.

#### Duchesne Scholarship Program

The University of San Diego, through the School of Leadership and Education Sciences, offers this scholarship for culturally diverse graduate students pursuing a teaching career in public and private elementary and secondary schools. The scholarship program is designed to recognize qualified minority students pursuing a teaching career. The scholarships assist graduate students seeking their teaching credential. USD awards Duchesne Scholarships annually to incoming and continuing students. The amount of the scholarship varies depending on the financial need of the student. Eligible applicants must have a cumulative GPA of at least 3.0. Duchesne Scholarship applications are available upon request from the USD School of Leadership and Education Sciences.

#### Cal Grants

Each year the State of California awards a number of Cal Grants to assist with tuition and fees to students who are residents of the State of California and have demonstrated academic achievement and financial need.

The University of San Diego advises all students who are California residents to apply for this State grant. To be considered, the student must complete the FAFSA, as listed above, and also provide other information as requested (for example, submit the GPA Verification Form to the California Student Aid Commission). The deadline for submitting all the necessary forms is announced each year by the California Student Aid Commission.

#### Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant

This federal program is designated for highly needy undergraduate students with priority given to recipients of Federal Pell Grants (see below). Funding is based on federal allocations and varies each year.

#### Federal Pell Grant

The Federal Pell Grant Program assists undergraduate students with substantial financial need. The student will receive a Student Aid Report (SAR) from the federal processor which will indicate whether or not the student is eligible for the grant.

Interested Native American students should contact the area or agency office having records of their tribal membership. That office will provide the necessary application forms. The amount of the award varies and is based on unmet financial need.

### Private Scholarships and Grants

The University of San Diego receives donations from private sources to provide scholarships and grants to selected students in the name of the donor. In addition to meeting the USD scholarship criteria, additional qualifications and requirements may be stipulated by the donor.

Current students are automatically considered for any of the scholarships listed below for which they are eligible when they apply for financial aid at USD (see application procedure on page 36). For some scholarships with specific requirements, a USD scholarship questionnaire is used to determine eligibility, and only the students who complete the questionnaire will be considered for those scholarships.

### Annual Scholarships/Awards

Accountancy Program Scholarship

Ahmanson Foundation Scholarship

Appraisal Institute

AMN Healthcare Scholarship

ARCS® (Achievement Rewards for College Scientists) Scholarship

Arizona Alumnae of the Sacred Heart Scholarship

Donna Lee Arledge Memorial Scholarship

Baker & McKenzie Scholarship

\*Allen and Donna Baytop Scholarship Award

Blystone NROTC Scholarship

Blystone Nursing Scholarship

The Burnham Foundation Scholarship

C.E. & S. Summer Abroad Program Scholarship

California Building Industry Foundation

Ernest W. Hahn Scholarship

Fieldstone Foundation Scholarship

Harry L. Summers Endowment

California Association of Realtors

Bob and Betty Cahan Scholarship

Casner Family Scholarship

CCIM (Certified Commercial Investment Members) Nursing Scholarship

Chapin Dissertation Award

Mary Jane Charlton Nursing Scholarship

Colorado Alumnae of the Sacred Heart Scholarship

Leo C. Curley Trust Scholarship

Danvera Foundation English Scholarship

Danvera Foundation Nursing Scholarship

Carrie Estelle Doheny Foundation Scholarship (Science Research)

Sister Duchesne Scholarship

Duncan Theatre Arts Scholarship

Carr Ferguson Graduate Tax Research Fellowship

William Foster Outstanding Dissertation Award

Eris McCoy Gallagher Scholarship for Education

Hal H. Gardner Memorial Scholarship

Catherine B. Ghio Scholarship

Michael Ghio Memorial Scholarship

Max and Gussie Gonick Memorial Prize for Academic Excellence in the First

Gilligan-Spiritan Scholarship in Peace and Justice Studies

Bill Hannon Foundation Scholarship in Peace and Justice Studies

Marion Hubbard Loan Scholarship

Harold and Catherine Johnson Family Memorial Trust Scholarship

Johnston-Schoell Engineering Scholarship

Johnston-Schoell History Scholarship

\*Helen and Webster Kinnaird Law Scholarship

Joan B. Kroc Scholarship in Peace and Justice Studies

Kiwanis of San Diego Foundation Scholarship

Kroha Family Law Scholarship

Law Alumni Scholarship

Law Dean's Scholarship

Law Faculty Fund

Lawyers Club of San Diego - Lynn Schenk Scholarship

Lone Mountain Scholarship

James McIntyre Foundation Scholarship

W. Scott McIntyre Memorial Scholarship

\*Irene M. Carames de Middlebrooks Scholarship

Janice Nalley Memorial Scholarship

Nonprofit Leadership & Management Scholarship

Other Esteem Scholarship

Chester Pagni Outstanding Student Service Award

\*Dr. Judy Rauner Scholarship

Real Estate Alumni Scholarship

Remembrance Fund Scholarship

Lina C. Romero Memorial Scholarship

Sister M. Aimee Rossi Music Scholarship

Rotary Ambassadorial Scholarships:

Master of Arts in Peace and Justice Studies Upward Bound High School Students Go to College

San Diego Alumnae of the Sacred Heart Scholarship

San Diego Foundation Scholarships

\*School of Business Student Scholarship

Bernard H. Siegan Scholarship

Jean Sidorick Philosophy Award

Darlene Shiley Veterans Scholarship

\*Shurko Family Scholarship

SIOR/Majestic Realty Foundation Scholarship

Patricia Della (Stahl) Spinosa Memorial Scholarship

Vessela Zaykova-Smolin Memorial Scholarship

S.A. Sutterfield Memorial Book Scholarship

USD Mortar Board STRIVE (Seeking To Recognize

Individual Visions of Excellence) Scholarship

USD Opportunity Scholarship

Bernard H. Van Der Steen Scholarship

Vincent C. Walsh Trust Scholarship

Meg Whitman Scholarship (MSEL)

Julie I. Wilkinson Nursing Scholarship

Dr. Sheila Quinlan Williams Scholarship

Viterbi Family Foundation Scholarship for Nonprofit Leadership and

Management Program

\*Richard and Kay Woltman Law School Scholarship Elizabeth Baker Woods Education Scholarship ADM Elmo R. Zumwalt, Jr. Leadership Award

\* New Scholarships

### **Endowed Scholarships**

Donors have endowed the University of San Diego with the following funds for scholarships to be awarded annually for the life of the university.

Jack L. Adams Scholarship Fund (which includes the following)

The General and Mrs. Lemuel C. Sheperd Jr. Scholarship

The General Wesley H. Rice Scholarship

The General James L. Day Scholarship

The General Robert H. Barrow Scholarship

The General and Mrs. Hugh T. Kerr Scholarship

The General and Mrs. John S. Grinalds Scholarship The General and Mrs. J.A. Studds Scholarship

The Author E. Hughes Scholarship in Music

Thomas Ackerman Scholarship for the Nonprofit Leadership and Management

Program Fund

Alfred F. Antonicelli Scholarship Fund

Eileen and Carlton Appleby Scholarship Fund

Arcaro Scholarship Fund

Kathryn Grady Atwood Memorial Fund

Ernest Backhaus Memorial Scholarship Fund

Dr. and Mrs. Manuel Barba Scholarship Fund

Barnhart Scholars Scholarship Fund

\*Andrea M. Basque Scholarship Fund

\*Richard A. Bayer Scholarship Fund

Aloysius J. Bedell Scholarship Fund

H.N. and Frances Berger Scholarship Fund

The Bosley Family Scholarship Fund Boyce Family Scholarship Fund

Braille Transcribers Guild of San Diego Scholarship Fund

Brennan & Gaffrey Nurse Educator Scholarship Fund

Loretta Breyer Nursing Scholarship Fund

Thomas Breitling Scholarship Fund

Bridges Scholarship Fund

Brindle-Erion Scholarship Fund

Kevin Briscoe Memorial Scholarship Fund

Dr. Gilbert Brown Scholarship Fund

Sandra Brue Scholarship Fund

Sandra Brue Scholarship for Catholic Educators Fund

Brue Carstens Scholarship Fund

Bishop Buddy Scholarship Fund

Daniel Burkett Memorial Scholarship Fund

Martin and Florence Bursiek Student Aid Fund

BusinessLink USD Scholarship Fund

Edward and Gretchen Cairns Memorial Scholarship Fund

Catholic Heritage Scholarship Fund

Sister Susan Campbell Scholarship Fund

Mickey Carhart Memorial Scholarship Fund/ NAIOP San Diego Chapter

Mary Delafield Carter Scholarship Fund

Yvonne E. Chiesi Carteron Nursing Scholarship Fund

Theia Cascio Scholarship Fund

David S. Casey Trial Advocacy Scholarship Fund

Choral Scholars Program Fund

Ralph F. Claric and Russell Kamstead Memorial Scholarship Fund

Phyllis McArdle Clause Scholarship Fund

James W. and Kathryn S. Colachis Scholarship Fund

Harry A. Collins Memorial Scholarship Fund

John F. Connolly Perpetual Scholarship Fund \*Michael A. Connor-Horizon Scholarship Fund

Helen S. Corcoran Scholarship Fund

Fiorenza and Hernando Courtright Scholarship Fund

Emmet J. Culligan Scholarship Fund Murphy Dalton Scholarship Fund

Donald C. and Elizabeth M. Dickinson Foundation (MEPN) Fund

Duda Family Foundation Scholarship Fund

James O. and Stella Powell Eagen Scholarship Fund

Fieldstone Foundation Scholarship Fun Walter Fitch Trust Scholarship Fund Paul Fitzpatrick Memorial Award Fund

\*Founders Scholarship Fund French Scholarship Fund

C. Hugh Friedman Scholarship Fund Sr. Sally M. Furay Scholarship Fund German Language Scholarship Fund Emil Ghio Scholarship Fund W.R. Grace Scholarship Fund

Mary Gresko Nursing Scholarship Fund

Ernest W. and Jean E. Hahn Foundation Scholarship Fund

Eugenie B. Hannon Scholarship Fund Alice B. Hayes Science Scholarship Fund Alice B. Hayes Mortar Board Scholarship Fund William Randolph Hearst Scholarship Fund Conrad N. Hilton Minority Scholarship Fund Roseann Gerold Hoffman Scholarship Fund W. Roy and Marion I. Holleman Scholarship Fund

Bob Hope Leadership Scholarship Fund Ethel M. Horsch Nursing Scholarship Fund Author E. Hughes Scholarship Fund Irvine Keiller Scholarship Fund

Dr. Kathy James Nursing Scholarship Fund

Jane P. Johnson Scholarship Fund Lou Kerig Scholarship Fund

Michael Konz Memorial Scholarship Fund Kristopher Krohne Memorial Scholarship Fund

The LASH Foundation Scholarship Fund for the Nonprofit Leadership and

Management Program Fund Las Vegas Scholarship Fund Law Endowed Scholarship Lawrence Family Scholarship Fund

Albert J. and Mae Lee Memorial Scholarship Fund

\*Lee Family Memorial Scholarship Fund Elsie Leith Memorial Scholarship Fund Faye N. Lewis Scholarship Fund Laura McDonald Lewis Scholarship Fund

Bishop Maher Catholic Leadership Scholarship Fund Lawrence Mahlum Memorial Scholarship Fund

Manchester Nursing Scholarship Fund

Doug & Betsy Manchester Athletic Scholarship Fund LTJG Laura J. Mankey Memorial Scholarship Fund

Marasco Family Scholarship Fund

Mazzo Family Scholarship Fund

Marine Studies Graduate Scholarship Fund (which includes the following)

Stephen Sullivan Memorial Scholarship Sister Dale Brown Science Scholarship Ronald Maudsley Memorial Scholarship Fund David Maurier Law Scholarship Fund George H. Mayr Scholarship Fund

Christopher McCallister Memorial Scholarship Fund

Dorothea McKinney Scholarship Fund Gerald & Donna McMahon Scholarship Fund Louise H. McNally Scholarship Fund

Edward J. and Grace W. Mehren Scholarship Fund

Michael Mohr Memorial Scholarship Fund William A. Moller Memorial Scholarship Fund

Grant Morris Scholarship Fund

Elizabeth Ann Mottet Nursing Scholarship Fund

Music Endowment Fund Nielsen Family Scholarship Fund Notchev Scholarship Fund

James B. Orwig, M.D. Nursing Scholarship Fund Kyle O'Connell Memorial Scholarship Fund

\*Robert E. and Darci M. O'Connell Scholarship for the Arts The ORCA Foundation Scholarship Fund at the San Diego Foundation for Nonprofit Leadership and Management Program

Theresa and Edward O'Toole Scholarship Fund

Oxford Scholarship Fund

Irene Sabelberg Palmer Nursing Research Scholarship Fund

Pardee Scholars Endowment Fund

Parent Fund Scholarship

Kenneth & Virginia Piper Arizona Scholarship Fund
Procopio International Tax Scholarship Fund
Pulitzer Foundation Scholarship Fund
Kay Ravenel Scholarship Fund
Reardon/Goode Scholarship Fund
Delroy Richardson Scholarship Fund
Janet A. Rodgers Nursing Scholarship Fund
Frank and Dimitra Rogozienski Scholarship Fund
John R. Ronchetto Memorial Scholarship Fund

Leo Roon Scholarship Fund Rose Pre-Med Fund

Joseph Rost Scholarship Fund for Leadership Studies Tim C. Rothans Public Service Scholarship Fund Irving Salomon Political Science Scholarship Fund Jeffrey A. Sardina Memorial Scholarship Fund

School of Leadership and Education Sciences Scholarship Fund

Vern D. Schooley Scholarship Fund Mary and Alan Schulman Scholarship Fund W. H. Scripps Athletic Scholarship Fund

Senior Emergency Law Fund Richard A. Shaw Graduate Tax Scholarship Fund

Martin L. Sheehan Scholarship Fund

Donald P. and Darlene V. Shiley Engineering & Theater Scholarship Fund

Donald P. and Darlene V. Shiley MFA Scholarship Fund

Gary Shoemaker and Richard T. Mulvey Disabled Student Scholarship Fund

Forrest N. and Patricia K. Shumway Scholarship Fund Sven & Tove Simonsen Scholarship Fund James E. Spain Family Law Scholarship Fund

James E. Spain Family THRS Majors Scholarship Fund

Stallard Family Nursing Scholarship Fund Susanne Stanford Scholarship Fund

Luisa A. & Harold N. Stoflet Memorial Scholarship Fund

Pearl and Natalie Surkin Scholarship Fund Anne Swanke Memorial Scholarship Fund Jane R. Tedmon Scholarship Fund John Trifiletti Scholarship Fund USD Alumni Scholarship Fund

USD Law Scholarship Fund (which includes the following)

Dr. Lee Gerlach Honorary Scholarship Robert J. Keys Honorary Scholarship Warren Family Law Student Aid Fund

The Honorable Louis M. Welsh Scholarship Fund

Whalen Family Scholarship Fund

Terry Whitcomb '53 Alumni Scholarship Fund

Therese T. Whitcomb and E. Ann McFarland Decorative Arts Study Fund

Cathleen K. Wilson, R.N., Ph.D., Memorial Scholarship Fund for Leaders in Nursing

Donald O. and Rosemary Wilson Scholarship Fund John Winters Memorial Scholarship Fund Richard and Kay Woltman Nursing Scholarship Fund Erion Knickerbocker Wood Scholarship Fund Daniel B. Woodruff Memorial Scholarship Fund \*New Scholarship Endowment Fund

### Other Scholarships Available

The following scholarships are made available to USD students from other donors. Additional applications and/or interviews may be required for consideration. For more specific information contact the Office of Financial Aid.

Colorado Alumnae of the Sacred Heart Scholarship Kiwanis of San Diego Foundation Scholarship Sister M. Aimee Rossi Music Scholarship San Diego County Citizen's Scholarship Foundation Award Additional Sources of Funding

In addition to the above-named University of San Diego scholarships, additional sources of funds are available. Many companies offer scholarships to the sons and daughters of their employees. Fraternal organizations, such as the Elks and Rotary International, assist students in meeting the cost of education. The Copley Library has reference books and Internet access to scholarship search programs listing funds available from private organizations and A Guide to Outside Resources of Financial Aid is available on the USD Office of Financial Aid website. USD students have received over \$2 million in private scholarships for an academic year. Private scholarships can usually be used to replace loans in a student's financial aid "package."

#### Loans

Note: Congress may change the eligibility criteria and terms of federal loans. All federal loan information in this course catalog is subject to change. Please obtain current information from the Office of Financial Aid website.

### The Federal Direct Student Loan Program

There are two types of Federal Direct Loans: Subsidized and Unsubsidized. Eligibility for the Subsidized Federal Direct Loan is based on documented need; eligibility for the Unsubsidized Federal Direct Loan is not based on need.

Students must complete a Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) to determine eligibility for a Federal Direct Loan (subsidized or unsubsidized).

### The Federal Direct PLUS Loan Program

A Federal Direct PLUS Loan is available for parents to borrow a long-term, low-interest loan on behalf of their dependent children. Graduate students may also utilize the Direct PLUS loan program once they have exceeded their annual eligibility under the Direct Student loan program. Details regarding maximum loan amounts, current interest rates and repayment terms are described on the Office of Financial Aid website. Undergraduate and graduate students must complete a Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) to determine eligibility for a Federal PLUS Loan.

### Federal Perkins Loan Program

This federal loan program provides a limited number of long-term, low-interest (5 percent) loans to undergraduate and graduate students who have demonstrated substantial financial need. Details regarding maximum loan amounts, interest rates and repayment terms are described in information available on the Office of Financial Aid website. Amounts offered depend on fund availability each year.

Students must complete a Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) to determine eligibility for a Federal Perkins Loan.

### Emergency Student Loan Program

Short-term emergency loans are available from the Office of Financial Aid for students during the fall and spring semesters. These small loans are to assist students with unforeseen emergencies and must be repaid within 30 days.

### Kathryn Desmond Loan Fund

This loan fund has been established to provide financial assistance to students enrolled full time at the Hahn School of Nursing and Health Science. Information is available at the school of nursing.

#### Marion Hubbard Loan Fund

The late Mrs. Marion Hubbard established this low-interest loan fund to benefit students enrolled at the Hahn School of Nursing and Health Science. Information is available at the school of nursing.

### **USD Trust Loan Program**

The Weingart Foundation, together with private donor matching funds, has provided USD funding for zero-interest, long-term loans to help students meet the cost of education at USD. A recipient must be a graduate of a California high school and have demonstrated substantial financial need. Amounts offered depend on fund availability each year. Students must complete a Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) to determine eligibility for a USD Trust Loan Loan.

### **Student Employment**

### Federal Work-Study Program

Funds for this program are provided by the federal government and USD. Employment, both on and off campus including community service, such as tutoring of elementary school children, is provided for students with documented need and is related, whenever possible, to the student's educational objectives. Employment averages 15 hours per academic week, with as many as 40 hours per week during vacation periods. Students must complete a Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) to determine eligibility for the Federal Work-Study program.

### Other On-Campus Student Employment

In addition to the Federal Work-Study Program, the university offers a limited number of job opportunities to students who do not otherwise qualify for federally-subsidized programs. Over 400 students are employed part time in areas such as dining services, banquets and catering, the bookstore, and the athletic department. Students may obtain contact information for these departments at the Student Employment Center, which is a part of the Office of Financial Aid, located in Hughes Administration Center, Room 313.

### Off-Campus Employment Service

The University of San Diego also assists students in finding off-campus employment. Information regarding weekend or part-time employment within the San Diego metropolitan area is made available. There is also information for Intersession and summer sessions. Job descriptions are posted in the hallway across from the Student Employment Center and contact information is available in the SEC.

### Veterans Assistance

Information is available in the Office of the Registrar, Founders Hall, Room 113.

#### Vocational Rehabilitation Services

Students with disabilities may be eligible for the services of the State Department of Rehabilitation. The services provided must result in an employment outcome. These services may include vocational counseling and guidance, training (with payment of costs such as partial tuition, fees, books, transportation, etc.), and job placement. Contact the State Department of Rehabilitation at (619) 767-2100 for further information.

For more information, see Student Employment (http://www.sandiego.edu/financialaid/student-employment).

### **Deadlines**

Most financial aid packages consist of funds drawn from several sources – federal, state and institutional. Application forms and deadlines may change each year. Students can access current information on the USD OFA website; the Office of Financial Aid or the One Stop Student Center. Students should apply for everything for which they may be eligible.

### **Important Deadlines**

March 2 is the date by which a valid Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) must be postmarked or submitted on line in order to receive priority consideration for available federal and USD funds for all freshmen, transfer and continuing undergraduate students.

March 2 is also the deadline to apply for California State Grants (Cal Grants). Both the FAFSA and the GPA Verification Form must be postmarked or submitted on line by this date.

### Student Budgets

Please refer to the Guide to Financial Aid Consumer Information at USD on the OFA website for information on how student budgets are constructed and how they are used in determining a student's financial aid eligibility. USD costs may be viewed on the Student Financial Services website (http://www.sandiego.edu/finance/student-financial-services).

### **ACADEMIC SERVICES**

USD offers tutoring and support services through a number of areas on campus to help students thrive and succeed. From tutoring to achieve your academic potential, to supporting a diverse community, and fostering extensive career services for success in a chosen career path after graduation, USD provides the personal and technology resources for students to engage in a diverse and changing world.

### **Academic Support**

### Center for Student Success

The Center for Student Success offers Student Success Coaching where professional staff and peer coaches are available to meet with undergraduate students experiencing challenges at USD that impact academic performance and persistence. Workshops are offered to assist first-year students with the transition to college. Session topics cover issues that new first-year students are likely to encounter, including faculty expectations, time management, study skills, choosing a major, health and safety at college, and the unique history and character of USD. The center also processes undergraduate leaves of absence requests as well as undergraduate withdrawals. The Center for Student Success is located in the University Center, Room 114. More information is available at USDCSS (http://www.sandiego.edu/usdcss) or (619) 260-5995.

#### **Mathematics Center**

The Mathematics Center provides peer tutoring to students in their lower-level mathematics courses. The goal of the Mathematics Center is to provide short-term assistance while helping students become independent learners. The Mathematics Center is located in Serra Hall, Room 310, and is available to USD students on a walk-in basis and for scheduled group tutoring sessions. Our tutors are selected through recommendations by faculty members. Although the tutors have been asked to give priority to students in lower-level classes, those tutors with advanced training will help with other mathematics questions whenever they have time to do so. Information about the Mathematics Center, including its schedule, is available through the Mathematics Department (https://www.sandiego.edu/cas/math/resources/math-center) website.

### Student Support Services

Student Support Services (SSS) helps to meet the "success beyond college" needs of 320 eligible students who enroll at USD from low-income and/or first generation backgrounds, and/or who have documented disabilities. Admitted students transition to USD during a one-week Bridge program. Services are provided in the academic year and summer through the senior year: advising, financial aid and personal counseling, instructional support, peer networking, mentoring, and post-BA planning. SSS strengthens its participants' abilities through academic foundations, values and support systems. It provides services to retain and graduate students, helping them to begin careers and pursue graduate education. Student Support Services is located in Barcelona, Room 301. More information is available at Student Support Services (http://www.sandiego.edu/sss) or (619) 260-7580.

### Writing Center

The Jack and Helene Drown Writing Center, administered by the Department of English, offers help to USD students from all disciplines and class levels. The Writing Center is staffed by trained, faculty-recommended peer tutors. Students and tutors work one-on-one in relaxed but structured sessions. The tutoring hour may address any step in the writing process, including understanding a text, brainstorming, expanding or refining ideas, and organizing the work. Writing references and computers are available. The Writing Center is located in Founders

Hall, Room 190B. Students may make an appointment or call (619) 260-4581. For the current schedule and further information, please visit Writing Center (https://www.sandiego.edu/cas/math/resources/math-center).

## International Students and Scholars

The Office of International Students and Scholars (OISS) is responsible for all immigration matters that affect international degree-seeking students, exchange students and international visiting scholars and faculty attending or visiting USD on non-immigrant visas. The office is a centralized immigration advising office for all international students and scholars on campus.

In addition, OISS is also responsible for the welfare of USD's international students and scholars and acts as a resource and support to these individuals in the transition to a new culture and environment. Student advising includes assistance with procedures, expectations and requirements of the U.S. academic system.

- Immigration Advising
- · International Orientation Program
- International Student Orientation Leadership Program
- · Health Insurance Enrollment Advising
- · Career planning workshops
- · Community Service
- International and US cultural & social events:
  - · Weekly International Coffee Hours
  - · Training and outreach to USD faculty on international student issues
  - · International Education Week events
  - International Expo/Cultural Fashion Show
  - International Holiday Celebrations

Finally, the office fosters opportunities to promote and encourage cross-cultural understanding.

The Office of International Students and Scholars is housed in the International Center located in Serra Hall, Room 201. For more information, call (619) 260-4598 or visit OISS (http://www.sandiego.edu/oiss).

### **Black Student Resource Center**

The Black Student Resource Center (BSRC) provides support services to black students at all levels of recruitment, retention and graduation. The BSRC provides regular opportunities for the black community -- prospective and current students, parents, student organizations, faculty, staff and alumni -- to develop relationships, and to gather and share successes and challenges. The BSRC also specifically offers support services to black students who are the first generation to college, income-eligible (as determined by federal TRiO guidelines), and/or who have been diagnosed with a documented disability through the Disability Resource Center at USD.

The BSRC coordinates with other USD offices to ensure that effective strategic short-range and long-range planning goals are constructed and achieved for black students on campus. The BSRC services include an orientation to USD and its services, peer mentoring, leadership development through the BSRC Ambassador program, community building, academic support, educational and cultural workshops, collaboration with the preceptorial program, Living Learning Communities (LLCs), academic advising and the Black Graduate Recognition Ceremony.

The Black Student Resource Center is located in the Hahn University Center (UC), Room 113. For more information contact Ashley Barton, EdD at acbarton@sandiego.edu

### **Veterans Center**

The University of San Diego has a long history of welcoming active duty and veteran students to our campus that predates the establishment of a NROTC unit here in 1982 (since expanded by cross-town agreements to include Army ROTC and AFROTC units as well). USD is committed to providing support services that will help such students succeed. Active duty and veteran students should contact these individuals for answers to any specific questions. Those with general questions or who wish to comment on the experience at USD may send an e-mail message to Derek Abbey, Veteran Student Services Coordinator, at derekabbey@sandiego.edu.

### **Career Development Center**

The Career Development Center supports and guides students to develop and achieve career goals that lead to meaningful lives.

### **Explore**

Guiding students as they explore majors and define purposeful career paths.

#### Learn

Teaching students how to articulate their strengths.

#### Connect

Providing opportunities to build professional networks.

The Career Development Center is located in Room 101 of Manchester Hall. It is open Monday-Friday, 8:30 a.m.-5 p.m. For more information, contact the office at (619) 260-4654, careers@sandiego.edu or visit the Career D (http://www.sandiego.edu/careers)evelopment Center (http://www.sandiego.edu/careers) website.

### **Community Service-Learning**

As part of the USD Changemaker Hub the Center for Community Service Learning engages students to learn in partnership with the community and make life-long commitments to promote social change and justice. For over 25 years the Center for Community Service-Learning has worked with the San Diego and global community. From direct service, addressing real needs identified by the community, to advocacy/activism, the center provides students with valuable experiential education opportunities.

CASA (Center for Awareness, Service and Action) gives any student the opportunity to serve at any time. Located in the Hahn University Center, Room 113, CASA sponsors a wide range of meaningful student-led community service projects.

Through course-based service-learning, students are able to serve and learn in the context of the classroom. The community becomes part of the classroom and students are able to see and experience first hand what they are learning from their professors.

Many service projects address a variety of social issues which are brought to light and examined by the Social Issues Committee (SIC). Providing learning opportunities through an annual conference with major speakers, team-taught classes and cultural events, SIC bridges the gap between service and activism.

The Center for Community Service-Learning is located in Maher Hall, Room 218. It is open Monday-Friday, 8:30 a.m.-5 p.m., For more information, call (619) 260-4798 or visit the Center for Community Service-Learning (http://www.sandiego.edu/csl) website.

## **Information Resources and Facilities**

### **Copley Library**

The Helen K. and James S. Copley Library contains over 500,000 books and approximately 6,000 media items. The Library subscribes to 125 online databases that provide access to over 63,000 electronic journals. The library also maintains subscriptions to over 2,500 print journals that are housed in our journal stacks.

Our online catalog offers access to all of the library's book, journal and media collections. USD students, faculty, and staff can access most databases and other electronic resources when off-campus by using their MySanDiego login via our authentication system.

Copley Library is open 114 hours each week and its resources are organized in accessible, open stacks. Library faculty, additional professional and support staff, and student workers make the collections available to the university community. Copley also offers access to course materials via traditional print reserves as well as electronic reserves.

Library faculty provide extensive reference service and spend time working individually with students as they complete assignments and prepare papers, speeches and research reports of all kinds. In addition to traditional reference desk service, the library also offers online reference through our Ask a Librarian service. Library patrons can ask questions and receive assistance via email, chat, text message and a searchable 24/7 knowledge base of frequently asked questions. Library faculty members also offer assistance by providing course-integrated library instruction sessions and preparing online guides in their subject specialties. Additionally, the library offers workshops on topics such as citation styles and database searching to assist users with developing better research skills.

The libraries at USD are members of the San Diego Library Circuit Consortium, which maintains a database linking four university libraries (UCSD, SDSU, CS San Marcos, USD) and the San Diego County and Public Library systems. Through this consortium, USD students and faculty can easily access library materials from other campuses. A delivery system enables timely movement of materials from one campus to another.

Study spaces are available for over 700 students and include group study areas, quiet carrels and pleasant reading rooms furnished with antiques and contemporary art. Group study rooms can now be easily reserved via our online booking system.

The library has over 80 computer workstations and 30 laptops for checkout. Other available equipment includes photocopy machines, microform reader/printers, and media hardware.

For more information, please visit Copey Library (http://www.sandiego.edu/library).

### Pardee Legal Research Center

The Pardee Legal Research Center, located on the east end of campus, provides access to print and digital legal materials, including judicial, statutory, and administrative sources and an assortment of secondary materials on Anglo-American, foreign and international law. Special concentrations include taxation, jurisprudence, human rights, intellectual property, environmental law and Mexican law. A full array of electronic resources is accessible through the Legal

Research Center (http://www.sandiego.edu/law/lrc) website. The library is a federal and state government depository. The Legal Research Center is a partner in The San Diego Circuit library consortium, which provides access to the research collections of other San Diego libraries.

The law library is normally open 112 hours a week, and reference librarians are normally available 70 hours a week. The collection is maintained to support the study and research of students and faculty of the School of Law and is available to any member of the USD community needing to conduct legal research

### **Academic Technology Services**

As a division of Information Technology Services (ITS), Academic Technology Services (ATS) is dedicated to cultivating teaching, learning, and research through the judicious exploration, implementation and support of educational technologies. The broad range of services ATS offers to students, faculty, and staff strategically align the ITS mission and selected technologies with academic and institutional objectives.

The seven units within ATS are organized to provide specific academic technology services across our community's myriad learning environments and spaces. ATS Client Support Services includes Desktop Support Services, which distributes technical support technicians across the campus; the Help Desk, the first line of response for all hardware and software inquiries; and Student Computing Services who respond to all student computing needs (ext. 7900, help@sandiego.edu. ATS also manages the several Academic Computing Labs (ext. 2765) across campus that provide students and faculty with Windows, Macintosh and Linux computers, access to specialized programs and laptop check-out privileges. The Instructional Support Team (iTeam) is specifically dedicated to curriculum support in the classrooms, online and mobile devices. The iTeam implements and supports USD's Learning Management System (Blackboard) and the integrated plagiarism detection, collaboration, assessment and communication tools. The iTeam offers faculty instructional design services and consulting, and free training workshops to faculty/staff and students on Blackboard, Adobe, Google, Qualtrics, Microsoft and more. The iTeam also manages the implementation, piloting and adoption of emerging technologies such as the iPad Classroom Project and hires and trains talented students for the Student Technology Assistant (STA) program iteam@sandiego.edu.

Instructional Media Services (IMS) provides a digital graphic design and multimedia editing lab, audio/video production, repair and installation, media duplications, graphics design support, large poster printing and instructional media equipment checkout ims@sandiego.edu. This team is also responsible for the Campus Learning Spaces and provide classroom SMARTboards and podiums, document cameras, Apple TVs, projectors and training (ext. 4567).

Academic Technology Services is at the intersection of technology and academics at USD and continuously explores, expands and improves its service offerings to reflect the array emergent educational technologies relevant to students' teaching and learning and research and an increasingly mobile campus.

### Instructional Media Services

Instructional Media Services (IMS) is comprised of media/video production, digital graphic design and multimedia editing lab, instructional repair and installation, and instructional media equipment checkout. The department is located on the ground floor of Maher Hall, Room 186. Semester hours of operation are Monday-Thursday from 8 a.m.-7 p.m.; Fridays to 6 p.m. Call (619) 260-4567 for information.

We provide a wide range of resources including instructional equipment lending, digital graphic services, audio/video/multimedia production for instructional use, media duplication, video/multimedia workstations, technical assistance, classroom technology support and repair, consultation/installation services and limited

multimedia related software training. IMS can provide support for graphics design, video production, digitizing and other related services for your web-based activities in consultation with Academic Technology Services.

### **Institute of College Initiatives**

The Institute of College Initiatives (ICI) oversees the USD TRiO programs funded by the U.S. Department of Education: Upward Bound, McNair Scholars and Student Support Services. ICI also collaborate with local educational institutions that include Expanding Your Horizons (science, math and technology conference for 6th through 10th grade girls), Botball and Global Leadership Connection (for high school juniors) among other programs and liaisons. The USD TRiO Upward Bound program supports low-income, first-generation college students from Kearny High School in Linda Vista in their preparation for college entrance education through academic advising, tutoring, SAT preparation, college admissions and financial aid guidance and a five-week summer residential academic program on USD's campus. The USD McNair Scholars program prepares high-achieving undergraduate students for doctoral study through research and scholarly activities with faculty mentors in their discipline. Student Support Services (SSS) serves over 300 USD students from low-income and/or first generation backgrounds and/or who have documented disabilities through advising, financial aid and personal counseling, instructional support, peer networking, mentoring and post-BA planning.

For more information, please Institute of College Initiatives (http://www.sandiego.edu/ici).

### **COLLEGE AND SCHOOLS**

The University of San Diego offers 42 undergraduate degrees, several with areas of specialization, 50 minors, which can be taken in conjunction with various majors, several certificate programs and teacher credential programs recognized by the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing.

Explore USD's various academic degree programs by choosing the links for:

- · College of Arts and Sciences
- · School of Business
- · School of Leadership and Education Sciences
- · Shiley-Marcos School of Engineering
- Joan B. Kroc School of Peace Studies

### **College of Arts and Sciences**

#### **Administration**

Noelle Norton, PhD, Dean

Neena Din, PhD, Interim Associate Dean

Ashley N. Gisiger, MA, Interim Assistant Dean

Ron Kaufmann, PhD, Associate Dean

Kristin C. Moran, PhD, Associate Dean

Pauline Berryman Powell, MS, Assistant Dean

### **Faculty**

Rae Anderson, PhD, Chair, Department of Physics and Biophysics

Emily Edmonds-Poli, PhD, Chair, Department of Political Science and International Relations

Colin Fisher, PhD, Chair, Department of History

May Fu, PhD, Chair, Department of Ethnic Studies

Sarah Gray, PhD, Chair, Department of Environmental and Ocean Sciences

David Harnish, PhD, Chair, Department of Music

Rebecca Ingram, PhD, Chair, Department of Languages, Cultures and Literatures

Anne Koenig, PhD, Chair, Department of Psychological Sciences

Sue Lowery, PhD, Chair, Department of Biology

Lynn McGrath, PhD, Chair, Department of Mathematics

Angelo Orona, PhD, Chair, Department of Anthropology

Roger Pace, PhD, Chair, Department of Communication Studies

Jessica Patterson, PhD, Chair, Department of Art, Architecture + Art History

Joseph Provost, PhD, Chair, Department of Chemistry and Biochemistry

Thomas E. Reifer, PhD, Chair, Department of Sociology

Emily Reimer-Barry, PhD, Chair, Department of Theology and Religious Studies

Scott Ripley, PhD, Chair, Department of Theatre

Abraham Stoll, PhD, Chair, Department of English

Lori Watson, PhD, Chair, Department of Philosophy

The College of Arts and Sciences is a liberal arts college that is both historically and educationally the core of USD. The intellectual disciplines within Arts and Sciences assist students in developing a coherent, integrated and rich world view. Students in the college spend their undergraduate years discovering themselves as individuals, probing the commonalities of our lives on this planet, and deepening their appreciation of the sacred. In all disciplines in the college, the meanings of life in all its forms and processes are explored. Likewise, each intellectual discipline in the college reflects a sense of community by involving students in a network of scholars. Many areas in Arts and Sciences immerse students in intensive study of the patterns of human, social and cultural organization. In addition, all curricula in the college emphasize higher order cognition and the centrality, precision and integrity of written and oral communication.

The intellectual vitality of arts and sciences is manifested at three levels:

- Exposure to the most current information on our complex social and physical worlds
- 2. Cross-disciplinary integration of methods and perspectives
- Rigorous application through writing, research, oral communication, creative expression and personal-career development.

Arts and sciences faculty, then, are dedicated to a cooperative effort with students to construct knowledge from information, to shape wisdom from knowledge, and to secure competence that is united with conscience and a sense of values. Success will be evidenced in a renewed wonder at life, increased self-discipline and a more refined sense of the potential of community.

### Compass Career Readiness Program

In addition to satisfying the university requirements for the bachelor's degree, each student with a major in the College of Arts and Sciences must complete the Compass Career Readiness Program. The Compass Program is designed to support students as they navigate the transition to their post-graduate life. Through the program, students will learn to recognize the connections between their interests and academic choices. They will also explore how academic experiences can be translated into career opportunities, valuable skills and professional networks. In short, Compass will enhance the student's understanding of a USD degree by emphasizing the value of their liberal arts education and its application to their future goals.

## Program Requirements: Complete 10 Compass Points

Four Core Points, which can be satisfied by:

- 1. Participating in an orientation after declaring the major (1 pt)
- 2. Attending a networking event (1 pt)
- 3. Attending an Articulating the Value of your Liberal Arts session (1 pt)
- 4. Completing the Senior Survey during the final semester at USD (1 pt)

<u>Six Flexible Points</u>, which can be satisfied by attending Compass Program events and/or participating in experiential education, for example, internships, research.

### Student Participation in the Compass **Program**

- · A student declares a major in the College of Arts and Sciences. After declaration, the student receives an email from the Career Development Center and the Dean's Office, welcoming them to the College and letting them know that they can complete an orientation that explains the Compass program. Transfer students may attend a Compass orientation as part of the Transfer Orientation process.
- After declaring their major, a student must complete the Compass Program requirements at least 30 days before their graduation. A student can earn up to three of the flexible points prior to declaring a major.
- · Students can track their progress toward completion of the Compass Program through the MySanDiego portal.
- · Students who double major only complete one USD career readiness program. Students who switch majors to a new academic unit may take their points with them.

For more information visit, Compass Career Readiness Program (http:// www.sandiego.edu/cas/student-opportunities/careers).

### **Anthropology**

#### Chair

Angelo R. Orona, PhD

### **Faculty**

Jerome L. Hall, PhD

Jennifer Parkinson, PhD

Anthropology is the study of being human, culturally and biologically, currently and in the past. The objectives of the anthropology program demonstrate a global perspective and focus on the concept of culture and the fact of human biology. Analytical studies of human behavior contribute temporal and cross-cultural comparative perspectives to the larger body of scientific inquiry, thus grounding the student in fundamental concepts. As the holistic discipline of being human, anthropology has application for all fields of endeavor. Courses in anthropology are particularly suitable for students interested in international business, resource management, environmental concerns, teaching, educational administration, libraries, public service, government programs and archaeology.

The major program in anthropology will (1) prepare the interested undergraduate for graduate studies in anthropology and, (2) provide a sound background for all humanistically-related vocations.

Upon completion of 12 semester units of anthropology with a 3.0 or better GPA, students are eligible to join the Gamma Chapter of Lambda Alpha, the National Collegiate Honor Society for anthropology.

Resources of the anthropology program include the Anthropology Museum, the David W. May American Indian Collection & Gallery, Archaeological Field Schools, the Anthropology Laboratory and the Research Associates.

### The Social Science Teaching Credential

Students wishing to earn a Social Science Teaching Credential may do so while completing a major in anthropology. The specific requirements for the teaching credential differ from general requirements for the anthropology major. Students should consult the department chair.

### The Anthropology Major

### Recommended Preparation for the Major

Code	Title	Units
ANTH 101	Introduction to Biological Anthropology	3
ANTH 102	Introduction to Cultural Anthropology	3
ANTH 103	Introduction to Archaeology	3

#### **Maior Reauirements**

Coursework chose	en in consultation with the advisor, including:	
Code	Title	Unit
ANTH 349W	Writing Anthropology (satisfies core curriculum writing requirement)	3
<b>Biological Anthro</b>	opology	
Select one of the f	following:	3
ANTH 310	Human Evolution	
ANTH 311	Primatology	
ANTH 312	Paleopathology	
ANTH 313	Forensic Anthropology	
ANTH 314	Bones: Human Osteology	
ANTH 315	Modern Human Variation	
ANTH 343	The Ancient Dead: Bioarchaelogy	
Cultural Anthrop	pology	
Select one of the f	following:	3
ANTH 320	North American Indian Cultures	
ANTH 321D	California and Great Basin Indian Cultures	
ANTH 323D	Southwest Indian Cultures	
ANTH 327	South American Indian Cultures	
4 NITTH 220	0.71 0.1	

#### **ANTH 328** Caribbean Cultures **ANTH 360** Nautical Anthropology of California **ANTH 362** Piracy in the new World **ANTH 364** Surf Culture And History **ANTH 370** Indigenous Religions **ANTH 380** Cultural Diversity

Archaeology		
Select one of the f	following:	3
ANTH 330D	North American Archaeology	
ANTH 331D	Southwestern Archaeology	
ANTH 334	South American Archaeology	
ANTH 335	Nautical Archaeology	
ANTH 339	Post Medieval Seafaring and Empire	
ANTH 343	The Ancient Dead: Bioarchaelogy	
ANTH 350	Peopling of the Americas	
ANTH 385	Native Peoples of Northwest Europe	
ANTH 390	Archaeology of the Bible	
ANTH 391	Bethsaida Archaeological Field School	
ANTH 463	Antiquities: Who Owns the Past?	
ANTH 300	Research Seminar	3
ANTH 460	Ethnographic Field Methods	3
ANTH elective co	purses	6
Total Units		24

### The Anthropology Minor

Code	Title	Unit
ANTH 101	Introduction to Biological Anthropology	3
ANTH 102	Introduction to Cultural Anthropology	3
ANTH 103	Introduction to Archaeology	3
Nine upper-division	on units	9

### ANTH 101 | INTRODUCTION TO BIOLOGICAL ANTHROPOLOGY Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Social Science-Pre F17 CORE

An investigation of the nature of humankind, including the history of evolutionary theory, the fossil record, dating techniques, primate evolution and behavior, and human heredity, variation, and adaptation. Every semester.

#### ANTH 102 | INTRODUCTION TO CULTURAL ANTHROPOLOGY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Social/Behavioral Inquiry area

An introduction to the nature of culture, techniques of fieldwork, linguistics, components of cultural systems, such as subsistence patterns, socio-political organization, religion, worldview, diversity, change, and current problems. Every semester.

#### ANTH 103 | INTRODUCTION TO ARCHAEOLOGY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Social/Behavioral Inquiry area

A discussion of the techniques and concepts used by archaeologists to understand humankind through material culture. Every semester.

#### ANTH 300 | RESEARCH SEMINAR

#### Units: 3

A course wherein students develop a special topic that contributes new knowledge in the discipline. Research includes laboratory, field, or library investigation.

#### **ANTH 310 | HUMAN EVOLUTION**

#### Units: 3

An examination of early developments and current knowledge about hominid origins. New scientific discoveries which are shedding light on early hominids will be investigated, as will evidence of human biological and cultural adaptation, and the theories surrounding modern humans and, among others, Neandertals and Denisovans.

#### **ANTH 311 | PRIMATOLOGY**

#### Units: 3

An introduction to the study of non-human primates: prosimians, New World monkeys, Old World monkeys, and apes. The course focuses on primate behavior and how it relates to the study of human biocultural evolution. Of special concern are the relationships and adaptations of the primates to varied environments. The primate collection at the San Diego Zoo will be an integral part of the course. Various observational and data collecting techniques will be employed in zoo projects.

#### **ANTH 312 | PALEOPATHOLOGY**

#### Units: 3

An introduction to the study of ancient human pathologies through the study of bones and mummies. The course will focus on how the human skeletal system adapts to trauma, disease organisms, and environmental conditions, such as diet, climate, temperature, soil, and water. Basic skeletal anatomy and other osteological techniques such as age and sex determination will be an essential part of the course. Current problems in epidemiology will be examined in relation to diseases of the past.

#### **ANTH 313 | FORENSIC ANTHROPOLOGY**

#### Units: 3

A survey of the techniques used by forensic anthropologists to assist in the identification of human skeletal remains. The course will focus on learning how to tell human from animal bones, sex identification from the skeleton, age estimation from bone and teeth, stature estimation from measurements of limb bones, and occupational inferences from stress marks on bones.

#### ANTH 314 | BONES: HUMAN OSTEOLOGY

#### Units:

The study of the human skeleton in two main areas: identification of recently deceased individuals in a legal context, and historic or prehistoric remains as a contribution to human history. This hands-on course will include bone biology, development, growth, variation, and repair. Students will identify all parts of the skeletal system and dentition and learn how to measure bones and identify nonmetric features and stress markers.

#### **ANTH 315 | MODERN HUMAN VARIATION**

#### Units: 3

The course surveys the biological variation within and among human populations. After covering the basic principles of genetics and evolutionary theory, the course examines the genetic, physical, and behavioral traits found in our species, including adaptations to disease, temperature, altitude, and nutritional needs. These traits will be considered from a cultural and scientific perspective, and the evolutionary and cultural processes that have shaped these traits will be discussed. The course will also explore how culture can influence our understanding of human biology, and how studies of human variation have impacted society in the past and present. Strongly recommend ANTH 101 as preparation.

#### ANTH 316 | PRIMATE EVOLUTIONARY ANATOMY

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

The course will: a) survey the anatomy of the living primates and review different anatomical systems and behaviors across species from a structural, functional, and evolutionary perspective; b) examine aspects of the primate fossil record, including adaptations unique to our own lineage: the hominins; and c) make use of primate skeletal casts to link aspects of skeletal structure with soft tissue anatomy. Emphasis will be given to understanding the ways in which anatomy is correlated with behavior.

### ANTH 320 | NORTH AMERICAN INDIAN CULTURES

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: ANTH 102

A survey of prehistory, history, social organization, economy, worldview, and contemporary issues of American Indian and Inuit groups across North America (north of Mexico) from ethnohistorical and applied anthropology perspectives. Regional adaptations stemming from environmental and intercultural linkages are highlighted.

### ANTH 321D | CALIFORNIA AND GREAT BASIN INDIAN CULTURES Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

An overview of the environment and cultural history of native California and the neighboring Great Basin region. Close examination of Southern California groups: Gabrileño, Serrano, Cahuilla, Cupeño, Luiseño, and Kumeyaay cultures and contemporary issues. Lecture-discussions, ethnographies, biographies, and California Indian guest lecturers. Field trips may be included.

#### ANTH 323D | SOUTHWEST INDIAN CULTURES

#### Units: 3

A survey of the ethnography of Native Americans in the Greater Southwest (the American Southwest and the Mexican Northwest). Emphasis on the interplay of each culture with its ecological environment and surrounding cultures, particularly the historically dominant colonial European settlers.

#### ANTH 327 | SOUTH AMERICAN INDIAN CULTURES

#### Units: 3

A survey of the aboriginal populations of South America; origins and development of culture types as revealed by archaeology, biological anthropology, colonial writings, and modern ethnographic studies.

#### **ANTH 328 | CARIBBEAN CULTURES**

#### Units: 3

A survey of the environments, ethnohistory, cultures, and current concerns of the peoples of the Caribbean region, including the Greater and Lesser Antilles and the east coast of Central America.

## ANTH 330D | NORTH AMERICAN ARCHAEOLOGY Units: 3

An examination of the development of the prehistoric cultures of North America from the earliest occupations to the historic period. This course examines the evidence for the first migrations into the North America and subsequent development of the diversity of Native American cultures. The culture area approach (i.e., the Arctic, Subarctic, Northwest, Midwest, Great Plains, Northeast, Southeast, Southwest, Great Basin, and California) will be used to organize the class discussions. The primary emphasis will be the culture areas north of Mexico, but developments in Mesoamerica will be discussed where relevant.

#### ANTH 331 | SOUTHWESTERN ARCHAEOLOGY

#### Units: 3

An examination of the development and changing face of human adaptation in the southwestern part of North America since the earliest human occupations. Views based on archaeological evidence are emphasized. The course highlights the diversity of environmental zones and shifting strategies of resource utilization seen in the region that date from prehistoric times to the end of the 19th century.

#### ANTH 331D | SOUTHWESTERN ARCHAEOLOGY

#### Units: 3

An examination of the development and changing face of human adaptation in the southwestern part of North America since the earliest human occupations. Views based on archaeological evidence are emphasized. The course highlights the diversity of environmental zones and shifting strategies of resource utilization seen in the region that date from prehistoric times to the end of the 19th century.

### ANTH 334 | SOUTH AMERICAN ARCHAEOLOGY Units: 3

An introductory survey of the prehistoric cultures of Peru, Bolivia, Ecuador, and Chile. The focus of the course is upon the artistic, ideological, social, and economic aspects of the Cupisnique, Moche, Nasca, Inca, and other cultures. The development and evolution of prehispanic Andean society are examined from a

#### ANTH 335 | NAUTICAL ARCHAEOLOGY

#### Units: 3

processual viewpoint.

An introduction to the practice of archaeology underwater. This course examines maritime-based civilizations and their impact on society. Emphasis is placed on the role of the ship in exploration, discovery, contact, empire, trade, and warfare.

### ANTH 339 | POST MEDIEVAL SEAFARING AND EMPIRE Units: 3

A survey course that examines the advents of shipbuilding and seafaring to promote Empire in the New World. Beginning with Columbus' voyages at the close of the fifteenth century and concluding with the American Civil War, students will utilize archaeological and historical sources to better understand colonization, waterborne commerce, and naval warfare.

#### ANTH 341 | MUSEOLOGY

#### Units: 3

An introduction to museum work combining theory, critique, and practice. The course presents the history of museums, the development of curation and conservation practices, and focuses on the educational role of modern museums through exhibit design and installation. Field trips to local museums and galleries are requisite.

### ANTH 343 | THE ANCIENT DEAD: BIOARCHAELOGY

An examination of how archaeologists and biological anthropologists excavate and analyze the remains of past societies. Students are introduced to the theories, methods, and techniques of fieldwork and laboratory analysis. Basic skeletal and artifact analysis is the core of the course. Lectures, readings, group discussions, digital presentations, and guest speakers are also included. Field trips may supplement the core material.

#### ANTH 349 | WRITING ANTHROPOLOGY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency

A practicum in anthropological writing including professional publication (books and journals), grant proposals (both for funds and fellowships), popular journals, museum exhibition catalogs, and electronic media. Students in this course will learn to communicate effectively in various formats following guidelines established by the American Anthropological Association, American Association of Museums, and funding agencies such as the National Science Foundation.

#### ANTH 349W | WRITING ANTHROPOLOGY

#### Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE**

A practicum in anthropological writing including professional publication (books and journals), grant proposals (both for funds and fellowships), popular journals, museum exhibition catalogs, and electronic media. Students in this course will learn to communicate effectively in various formats following guidelines established by the American Anthropological Association, American Association of Museums, and funding agencies such as the National Science Foundation.

### ANTH 350 | PEOPLING OF THE AMERICAS

#### Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

When 16th century Europeans arrived in the New World they found it densely inhabited. Speculation then began as to who the people were, where they had come from, and when they had arrived. From the Ten Lost Tribes of Israel to the ancestors of the Ainu, no group seems to have been exempt from consideration. In this survey course we examine various claims for places of origin and times of arrival. We investigate the level and weight of available evidence, and learn how to scientifically evaluate it. Archaeological, geological, bioanthropological, linguistic, genetic, and maritime data are brought to bear on the question.

### ANTH 360 | NAUTICAL ANTHROPOLOGY OF CALIFORNIA Units: 3

A survey course that examines the advent of seafaring in California, from the Paleolithic to Modern Ages. Students will utilize archaeological and historical sources to explore a variety of strategies for resource utilization, water-borne commerce, and the burgeoning naval defense industry, beginning with early coastal settlers and ending in the 21st century. Emphasis will be placed on San Diego's maritime history.

### ANTH 362 | PIRACY IN THE NEW WORLD

#### Units: 3

An examination of the sociology of seafaring communities through the historical record of piratical activity, the economic impact of piracy on contemporary societies, the archaeological evidence of pirate ventures, the sensationalism of pirate legend, and the cultural responses to the influences of the pirate phenomenon.

#### **ANTH 364 | SURF CULTURE AND HISTORY**

#### Units: 3

This course examines the historical and socio-cultural components of one of Southern California's fastest growing leisure activities. Successful participation in this sport and membership in its local subcultures are contingent upon specialized knowledge of geography, wave physics, weather patterns, ocean biota, board design, and the often complex yet subtle intricacies of regional customs. Emphasis is placed on surfing's Polynesian roots and their transmission — via the Hawaiian Islands — to Southern California, whence surf music, literature, art, and movies have become ambassadors for an international phenomenon.

#### **ANTH 370 | INDIGENOUS RELIGIONS**

#### Units: 3

An examination of the elements, forms, and symbolism of religion among indigenous peoples; role of religion in society; anthropological theories of belief systems.

#### ANTH 380 | CULTURAL DIVERSITY

#### Units: 3

A cross-cultural study of social systems; principles of organization and relationships of society to ecological conditions; methodology of comparisons; and ethnographic materials.

### ANTH 385 | NATIVE PEOPLES OF NORTHWEST EUROPE

#### Units: 3

A survey of the origins and migrations of the indigenous people of northwest Europe from Paleolithic times into the historic period, with a focus on the peoples who became known as the "Anglos." The methodologies of archaeology, history, and the bioanthropology are used to understand these native populations.

#### ANTH 390 | ARCHAEOLOGY OF THE BIBLE

#### Units: 3

A two-fold broad-based survey emphasizing historical contexts, archaeological sites, and material culture from the Early Bronze through Iron Ages in the Eastern Mediterranean world, corresponding to historical and literary references in the 1) Bible ("Tanakh") and 2) Christian New Testament.

### ANTH 391 | BETHSAIDA ARCHAEOLOGICAL FIELD SCHOOL

The course introduces students to field archaeology through excavation of the biblical kingdom of Geshur (Bethsaida in the Christian New Testament). Students will excavate, conduct laboratory analyses, attend evening lectures, and travel to and study other archaeological sites in Israel. Prereq: consent of instructor. Offered Summers only.

## ANTH 410 | SOCIAL CHANGE: GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Using sociological perspectives on the roles of cultural beliefs and social practices in shaping people's lives, this course offers an overview of the organizing principles of society that resulted in the transition of pre-industrial societies to modern industrial states. The goals of the course are to make students aware of the power that social and cultural structures hold over them, of the fact that different societies will necessarily hold disparate views on how societies should be organized, and of the means to assess social/cultural differences in a nonjudgmental way. Topics covered include the technological bases of social organization, sex and gender stratification, demography, nationalism, religion, and civil society.

## ANTH 420 | METHOD AND THEORY IN ARCHAEOLOGY Units: 3 Repeatability: No

The purpose of the course is to study the theory, methods, and techniques of archaeological studies in detail. Emphasis will be on theory and analytical methods (particularly dating) but will include discussions on survey and excavation. The scientific method, including research design, will also be emphasized.

#### ANTH 430 | CULTURAL ECOLOGY

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

The course examines the basic relationships between people and both the natural and cultural environment. An understanding of biological adaptation and the role of culture in interacting and adapting to the environment is emphasized. A focus of the course is on extant traditional societies but the concepts apply to all societies. The application of an understanding of traditional practices in the modern world is also considered.

### ANTH 460 | ETHNOGRAPHIC FIELD METHODS

A fieldwork course that applies standard ethnographic methods of participant/ observation and interviewing techniques, life history studies, demographic method, genealogical method, and etic-emic distinctions. No library work required. Student initiates individual field research projects using ethnographic techniques. Every spring semester.

### ANTH 463 | ANTIQUITIES: WHO OWNS THE PAST? Units: 3

An anthropological investigation of ethical ownership of the past. The black-market in antiquities is a multi-million dollar a year business despite the attempt of most countries to stake legal claim to such objects as national patrimony. This course examines the current chain of events in antiquities trafficking, from the peasant digging in his field to sales in the world's premier auction houses. It also examines the means by which most of the world's museums came by their antiquities collections and the controversy concerning their continued ownership.

#### ANTH 470 | SHAMANS, ART AND CREATIVITY

#### Units: 3

An investigation of the phenomenon of art in human society from earliest times to the present. The course considers art as an integral part of culture and examines the role of the shaman in art's origins. The course samples a wide range of art traditions in their cultural context, such as that of the Huichols of northwestern Mexico, the Shipibo of eastern Peru, and the Tungus reindeer herders of Siberia.

#### **ANTH 494 | ISSUES IN ANTHROPOLOGY**

#### Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Critical discussions with regard to major issues confronting the various subdisciplines of anthropology. May be repeated for anthropology elective credit if topic differs.

#### ANTH 496 | RESEARCH

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### ANTH 498 | INTERNSHIP

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

An apprenticeship to be undertaken within the San Diego anthropological community (that is, San Diego Museum of Man, the San Diego Archaeological Center, the Office of the San Diego County Archaeologist, CALTRANS, Mingei International Museum, etc.). The apprenticeship will be developed by the student, his or her mentor, and the Department of Anthropology. Prereq: consent of department chair. Every semester.

#### ANTH 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

#### **Units: 1-3**

A project developed by the student in coordination with an instructor that investigates a field of interest to the student not normally covered by established anthropology courses. Prereq: consent of instructor and department chair. Every semester.

### **Art, Architecture + Art History**

### Chair

Jessica Lee Patterson, PhD

### **Faculty**

Can Bilsel, PhD

Derrick Cartwright, PhD

Victoria Fu, MFA

John Halaka, MFA

Daniel López-Pérez, PhD

Juliana Maxim, PhD

Saba Oskoui, MFA

Matthew Rich, MFA

Shannon Starkey, MA

Allison Wiese, MFA

Sally E. Yard, PhD

### The Majors

The Department of Art, Architecture + Art History is home to visual arts, architecture and art history majors. Our students are introduced to a great variety of artistic practices, both traditional and emerging, before concentrating in one of these disciplines. Dedicated to exploring the creative practices at the forefront of our disciplines, we believe that art and architecture not only mirror the society in which they are produced, but also shape it: we are most interested in art's potential to offer a critique of culture and help envision a better environment for the future.

### **Architecture**

The architecture major is a pre-professional program leading to a BA degree within the four-year curriculum of the College of Arts and Sciences. Its primary goal is to introduce students to architecture as a cultural practice that structures both the physical and social environment. In addition to core courses in architectural history, analysis and design, architecture majors will be introduced to a wide range of disciplines and creative studio practices that contribute to an architect's breadth of knowledge and problem-solving skills.

The architecture major also prepares students for graduate programs in architecture and the allied fields such as landscape architecture, interior design, urban design, urban planning, historic preservation, art and architectural history. Students interested in moving to careers in civil engineering, real estate, or working for international, public or non-governmental development agencies are encouraged to amplify the architecture major with courses in engineering and/ or a second major or a minor in environmental studies, business administration, sociology, ethnic studies or international relations.

### The Architecture Major

### Preparation for the Major

Lower-Division Courses

Code	Title	Units	
ARCH 101	Introduction to Architecture Studio	4	
ARCH 201	Architectural Design Studio I	4	
Foundations in the History and Theory of Architecture			
ARCH 121	Introduction to Modern Architecture	3	
ARCH 221	Architecture and Theory since 1945	3	

Lower-division course in Studio Arts			
Select one of the	following:	3	
ARTV 101	Fundamentals of Drawing		
ARTV 103	Design Foundations		
ARTV 105	Introduction to Sculpture		
ARTV 108	Introduction to Video Art		
ARTV 160	Photography		
THEA 220	Fundamentals of Theatrical Design		
Total Units		17	

#### **Upper-Division Requirements** Title

**Architectural Research and Thesis** 

Senior Project Studio Seminar

ARCH 495

	•	
Code	Title	Units
Architectural Desi	gn	
ARCH 301	Architectural Design Studio II	4
ARCH 302	Architectural Design Vertical Studio (may be repeated for credit)	4
<b>History and Theor</b>	ry of Architecture and the City	
Select three of the f	following:	9
ARCH 320	Money By Design: Architecture and Political Economy	
ARCH 321	City and Utopia: Introduction to History of Urbanism	
ARCH 323	Memory, Monument, Museum: Studies in Historic Preservation	
ARCH 330	Special Topics in the History of Architecture and Design	
ARCH 340	Biographies of World Cities	
Elective from outsi	ide the Architecture Major	
Select one of the fol	llowing:	3
ARTH 354	Art Since 1960	
ARTH 360	Asia Modern	
ARTH 393	Critical Methods in the Analysis of Visual Culture	
ARTH 494	Seminar (Formerly 394)	
ARTV 304	Introduction to Printmaking	
ARTV 369	Intermediate / Advanced Sculpture	
ARTV 370	Designing for Social Space	
ARTV 371	Sculpture / Landscape	
ARTV 424	Art and the Soundscape	
EOSC 313	Geospatial Information Systems for Organizations	
EOSC 314	Introduction to Maps and Spatial Data Analysis	
EOSC 415	Geographic Information Systems	
EOSC 420	Introduction to Remote Sensing	
EOSC 485	Environmental Geology	
ETHN 361	Immigration at US-Mexico Border: Ethnicity, Race & Gender	
HIST 343	History of Germany Since 1945	
HIST 347	Topics in Modern Europe	
HIST 390	Art and Architecture in California	
POLS 342	Public Policy	
THEA 320	Scenic Design	
<b>Upper-Division El</b>	ectives in Architecture, Visual Arts, Art History	
Select at least six ur	nits from ARCH, ARTV, ARTH 301 or higher	6

ARCH 496	Senior Thesis in Architecture	4
Total Units		34

### Architecture Study Abroad

No more than a total of two ARCH 275 and/or ARCH 375 can be counted toward Architecture major credit. ARCH 275 or ARCH 375 can be repeated once for credit. Two sections of ARCH 275 or ARCH 375 can be taken concurrently during a study abroad semester or summer.

### Recommended Program of Study, Architecture

#### Freshman Year

Semester I Units

ARCH 101 Introduction to Architecture Studio 4

Core curriculum or electives

Semester II

ARCH 121 Introduction to Modern Architecture 3

ARTV 101 Fundamentals of Drawing
ARTV 103 Design Foundations
ARTV 105 Introduction to Sculpture
ARTV 108 Introduction to Video Art
ARTV 160 Photography (Studio Arts elective)

Core curriculum or electives

Select one of the following courses:

#### Sophomore Year

#### Semester I

ARCH 201 Architectural Design Studio I

Core curriculum or electives

#### Semester II

ARCH 221 Architecture and Theory since 1945

Core curriculum or electives

#### Semester III (Summer)

ARCH 340 Biographies of World Cities (Study Abroad course recommended but not required)

#### Junior Year

#### Semester I

ARCH 301 Architectural Design Studio II

Select one of the following courses:

ARCH 320 Money By Design: Architecture and Political Economy

ARCH 321 City and Utopia: Introduction to History of Urbanism

ARCH 323 Memory, Monument, Museum: Studies in Historic Preservation

ARCH 330 Special Topics in the History of Architecture and Design

ARCH 340 Biographies of World Cities

#### Electives

#### Semester II

ARCH 302 Architectural Design Vertical Studio

Select one of the following courses:

ARCH 320	Money By Design: Architecture and Political Economy
ARCH 321	City and Utopia: Introduction to History of Urbanism
ARCH 323	Memory, Monument, Museum: Studies in Historic Preservation
ARCH 330	Special Topics in the History of Architecture and Design
ARCH 340	Biographies of World Cities
Upper-division elective electives	e in ENVI, ETHN, HIST, SOCI, THEA (see list)

#### Senior Year

#### Semester I

3

3

3

4

3

•	ARCH 495	Senior Project Studio Seminar	4
ŀ	Select one of the follo	wing:	3
	ARCH 301	Architectural Design Studio II	
	Upper-Division Department Elective		
3	Electives		
3	Semester II		
	ARCH 496	Senior Thesis in Architecture	4
	Select one of the following:		3
	ARCH 301	Architectural Design Studio II (or higher)	

### The Architecture Minor

Upper-Division Department Elective

The architecture minor provides students a foundation in the history and theory of architecture and the city in addition to basic design skills.

The minor requires the completion of 6 courses with a total of 21 units as listed below:

Code	Title	Uni
Architectural Desi	gn	
ARCH 101	Introduction to Architecture Studio	4
ARCH 201	Architectural Design Studio I	4
Select one of the fo	llowing:	4
ARCH 301	Architectural Design Studio II	
or		
ARCH 302	Architectural Design Vertical Studio	
History and Theor	ry of Architecture and the City	
ARCH 121	Introduction to Modern Architecture	3
Select 6 units from	the following:	6
ARCH 221	Architecture and Theory since 1945	
ARCH 320	Money By Design: Architecture and Political Economy	
ARCH 321	City and Utopia: Introduction to History of Urbanism	
ARCH 323	Memory, Monument, Museum: Studies in Historic	
	Preservation	
ARCH 330	Special Topics in the History of Architecture and Design	
ARCH 340	Biographies of World Cities	
Total Units		21

#### ARCH 101 | INTRODUCTION TO ARCHITECTURE STUDIO

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Artistic Inquiry area

An introduction to the fundamentals of the discipline of architecture. The purpose of this course is to offer, to any student, an introduction to the basic steps of design as it is done in architecture. Through a series of assignments of increasing complexity and scale, the studio explores the skills of drawing, sketching, and model building, and introduces a range of architectural ideas and issues that form the foundation of the discipline. Methods of instruction include studio work, desk critiques, tutorials and lectures.

#### ARCH 121 | INTRODUCTION TO MODERN ARCHITECTURE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

A survey of the intellectual origins, artistic concerns and utopian programs of the Modern Movement in architecture. The course examines how modern architecture responded to the social, political, and technological changes in the years between 1750 and 1960. Topics include a wide range of debates on class, race, gender, nationalism, and colonialism, linking them to the questions of housing, domesticity, privacy, and standardization, as well as to the formal vocabularies of modern architecture.

#### ARCH 201 | ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN STUDIO I

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ARCH 101

In this studio, students explore and design housing types at different densities through the basic representational techniques of architecture: plan, section, elevation, axonometric projection and model-making. Under the theme of the house, a series of assignments introduce the students to the various scales of architectural intervention, from the dimensions of the human body all the way to the territory of the city. (3 hours lecture, 3 hours studio/lab weekly. Additional special workshop hours in the computer lab or woodshop may also be scheduled as needed.).

#### ARCH 221 | ARCHITECTURE AND THEORY SINCE 1945

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This course aims at a synoptic view of architecture and the debates surrounding it from 1945 to the present. In addition to foundational readings in architectural history and theory, this course examines design projects by some of the most influential architects of the second half of the 20th century. Cross-listed as ARTH 221. Prior completion of ARCH /ARTH 121 recommended.

#### ARCH 275 | STUDY ABROAD IN ARCHITECTURE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

An investigation of site-specific issues or topics in architecture and urbanism, offered by a USD affiliated program abroad. Can be repeated once for credit. Two sections of ARCH 275 can be taken concurrently during a study abroad semester or summer.

### ARCH 301 | ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN STUDIO II

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: ARCH 101 or ARCH 102 or ARCH 201

This design studio course explores architecture as a cultural practice that structures both the physical and the social environment. A number of exercises will introduce the students to questions surrounding a wide range of scales of inhabitation, from the scale of the body to that of the campus, city and region. The design studio will address the inherent material, environmental, cultural and social issues that form these questions. Students can also expect to reach technical competency in a full range of design media, including drawing, model-making and computer aided design. (3 hours of lecture, 3 hours of studio/lab weekly. Additional special workshop hours in the computer lab, metal or woodshop may also be scheduled as needed.).

#### ARCH 302 | ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN VERTICAL STUDIO

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: ARCH 101 or ARCH 102 or ARCH 201

This is a thematic and thesis-driven studio that allows students of various levels and design skills to work together and learn from each other's experiences. Interested Sophomores may be admitted to this course, along with Juniors and Seniors, provided that they have successfully completed ARCH 101 or 102 and obtained the instructor's permission. The studio assignments will encourage teamwork, independent thinking and accelerated learning. (3 hours of lecture or faculty-led seminar, 3 hours of studio/lab weekly. Additional special workshop hours in the computer lab, metal or woodshop may also be scheduled as needed.).

#### ARCH 320 | MONEY BY DESIGN: ARCHITECTURE AND POLITICAL **ECONOMY**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Advanced Integration, Artistic Inquiry area

The course articulates the ways in which architecture as a physical object and a cultural practice influences and is influenced by political economy since the mid-16th century to today. The outline mashes up two conventionally disparate bodies of literature: architectural history and economic history. When architecture no longer operates in a direct, unmediated relationship between individuals, it meets economic forces and the pressures of the market. The course illustrates the cycle of creative destruction that characterizes the spread of capitalism, tuning into the architectural opportunities that occur periodically in each step capital takes backward before taking two steps forward.

#### ARCH 321 | CITY AND UTOPIA: INTRODUCTION TO HISTORY OF **URBANISM**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This course surveys the relation between social and physical space in the formation of modern cities, as well as in the formation of modern disciplines, city planning and urban design. It examines how the projects of social reform and political control shaped the grand urban projects and the "master plans" of the 19th and 20th century. This course is intended to introduce students to a history of ideas in modern urbanism and enhance their understanding of the city as a symbolic form. Cross-listed as ARTH 321.

#### ARCH 322 | CONTEMPORARY ARCHITECTURE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Artistic Inquiry area

This course aims at a synoptic view of architecture and the debates surrounding it from 1945 to the present. In addition to foundational readings in architectural history and theory, this course examines design projects by some of the most influential architects of the second half of the 20th century. Cross-listed as ARTH 322.

#### ARCH 323 | MEMORY, MONUMENT, MUSEUM: STUDIES IN HISTORIC PRESERVATION

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Artistic Inquiry area

This class introduces students to the contemporary debates and practices in art, museology, and historic preservation by focusing on the changing definitions of the monument, the souvenir, collecting, collective memory and the museum. Cross-listed as ARTH 323.

#### ARCH 330 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN THE HISTORY OF ARCHITECTURE AND DESIGN

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

A focused investigation of select issues in architectural and design history. Topics vary. May be repeated for credit. Cross-listed as ARTH 330.

#### **ARCH 340 | BIOGRAPHIES OF WORLD CITIES**

#### Units: 3

This course is a focused survey of the arts and architecture of a great city throughout history. It examines how shifting social contexts and patronage shaped the monuments of art and architecture; how the function and meaning of these monuments have changed in subsequent stages of the city's history; how the traces of past architecture—the archaeological strata—structure the city's present form; and how the monuments record the individual experiences and collective memory of a city's inhabitants. Students will learn to analyze art and architecture based on firsthand experience, field surveys, and faculty-guided research. Offered mainly as a study abroad course by the USD faculty during winter Intercession or summer programs. Cities may include Rome, Istanbul, Madrid, Paris, London, Mexico City, and Los Angeles, among others. Cross-listed as ARTH 340.

#### ARCH 375 | STUDY ABROAD IN ARCHITECTURE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

An investigation of site-specific issues or topics in architecture and urbanism, offered by a USD affiliated program abroad. Can be repeated once for credit. Two sections of ARCH 375 can be taken concurrently during a study abroad semester or summer

#### ARCH 494 | TOPICS IN ARCHITECTURE

#### **Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)**

A focused investigation of select issues in architecture, architectural design or urbanism. May be repeated for credit.

#### ARCH 495 | SENIOR PROJECT STUDIO SEMINAR

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Oral communication competency

Prerequisites: ARCH 301 or ARCH 302

A research studio-seminar course designed for architecture majors in their Senior year to help them prepare for ARCH 496 Senior Thesis. Students will acquire the necessary skills for architectural research and analysis, and formulate critical positions through readings, lectures, design studio research, and cross-disciplinary discussions. ARCH 495 requires participation in shared research, studying several methodologies as the foundation upon which a student will formulate a thesis question. At the end of the semester, students are required to develop a Senior Thesis Proposal, which includes a clear itinerary for further research, and to participate in a final oral defense of the Thesis Proposal. 3 hours faculty-led seminar, 3 hours of studio/lab weekly. Offered in Fall only.

#### ARCH 496 | SENIOR THESIS IN ARCHITECTURE

#### Units: 4

Prerequisites: ARCH 495

The Senior Thesis in Architecture is a studio seminar course, leading to a capstone project, which demonstrates a student's technical competencies, knowledge, critical thinking and creative synthesis skills. Architecture Majors who have successfully defended a Senior Thesis Proposal in ARCH 495 are admitted to ARCH 496, and are expected to develop their capstone projects during a research studio seminar under the supervision of a primary faculty advisor. The thesis is an opportunity for each student to define an individual position with regard to a specific aspect of the discipline of architecture. Students are expected to incorporate research, programming, and site definition within their design process, and present a written essay that discusses the development of their work. Students are also required to participate in a midterm and a final oral defense of the thesis project. ARCH 496 should be taken in the Spring semester of the senior year. 3 hours faculty-led seminar, 3 hours of studio/lab weekly.

#### **ARCH 498 | INTERNSHIP**

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### **Core Attributes: Law - Experiential**

Students who are interested in pursuing internship in a professional architecture office or design studio, or attending the summer design program of an accredited professional school in architecture, are required to submit a written proposal to the faculty internship coordinator, describing their expected duties, the workload and the corresponding units, the beginning and the end of the internship period and the name and the contact information of the senior staff who agreed to supervise their work. The faculty coordinator will approve the course units (1-3) after reviewing the proposal. Upon the completion of the internship or the summer program, students are required to promptly submit a portfolio, clearly delineating their individual contribution. The faculty internship coordinator will assign the course grade after reviewing each student's portfolio.

#### ARCH 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

A project developed by the student in coordination with an instructor. The project should investigate in-depth a field of interest to the student not covered by established architecture courses.

### **Art History**

Courses in art history examine art and visual culture in their contexts: probing the intertwining of form, content and meaning; and investigating the theoretical lenses that have been enlisted to discern the import of art, architecture and material culture.

Art History majors choose one of four emphases:

- 1. History of Art
- 2. Museum and Curatorial Practice
- 3. History and Theory of Architecture
- 4. Global History of Modern and Contemporary Art and Architecture

### The Art History Major

### Preparation for the Major

Code	Title	Units
<b>Required Cours</b>	es	
ARTH 101	Introduction to the History of Art	3
Select one of the	following:	3
ARTH 121	Introduction to Modern Architecture (formerly ARTH 135) <sup>1</sup>	
ARTH 133	Introduction to Art History I	
ARTH 134	Introduction to Art History II	
ARTH 136	The Year 1500: A Global History of Art and Architecture	
ARTH 138	Art and Visual Culture	
ARTH 140	The Buddhist Temple	
ARTH 144	Introduction to Cinema	
Two Visual Arts	(ARTV) courses	6
Total Units		12

Students considering the History and Theory of Architecture emphasis are encouraged to take ARTH 121.

### History of Art

Art History, as Donald Preziosi has written, makes 'the visible legible.' Over the course of their college careers, students of art history are equipped to think and write with precision about art, architecture and visual culture. Attuned to perceptual process and alert to the power of images and objects, students reason with the evidence and investigate theoretical lenses, imagining and analyzing the intertwining of form, context and content.

Prerequisites are as in the major. Students must complete 28 Upper-Division Units in art history, including:

Code	Title	Units
ARTH 395	Methods in Art History	3
ARTH 495	Image World/Written Word: Senior Thesis Seminar	3
ARTH 496	Senior Thesis	1
Total Units		7

### Museum and Curatorial Practice

This path prepares students to think critically and pro-actively about the ways that art is positioned-in the museum and in the larger arena of public space - shaping viewers' perceptions of the past and sense of the future. Mindful of the politics of representation and display, students will examine the shifting ground that reaches from the early museums of the mid-18th century to the urban interventions and cyber-exhibitions of the 21st century.

This concentration prepares students to pursue graduate work and careers in museums, galleries, artists' spaces, art in public places programs, and emerging on-line venues. Enlisting the robust resources of San Diego, students gather first-hand experience through internships in USD's Hoehn Print Study Collection and University Galleries, together with the city's major museums and public art programs. Recent student internships have included: Hoehn Print Study Collection; Museum of Contemporary Art San Diego; San Diego Museum of Art; Timken Museum; Museum of Photographic Arts; Lux Art Institute; New Children's Museum; ARTS: A Reason to Survive; Quint Contemporary Art. Internships further afield have included: Corcoran Gallery, Washington, DC; Freer Gallery, Washington, DC.

Prerequisites are as in the major. Students must complete 28 Upper-Division Units in art history, including:

Code	Title	Units
ARTH 395	Methods in Art History	3
ARTH 495	Image World/Written Word: Senior Thesis Seminar	3
ARTH 496	Senior Thesis (formerly 495)	1
Select at least four	of the following courses, planned in consultation with the	12
advisor:		
ARTH 323	Memory, Monument, Museum: Politics of Display	
ARTH 331	Art in Public Spaces	
ARTH 334	Art of the Twentieth and Twenty First Centuries in	
	Europe and the Americas	
ARTH 345	The Avant-Garde and Mass Culture: Art and Politics	
ARTH 354	Art Since 1960	
ARTH 360	Asia Modern	
ARTH 361	Chinoiserie and Japonisme	
ARTH 370	Museum Studies	
ARTH 371	Curatorial Practice	
ARTH 372	Exhibition Design	
ARTH 494	Seminar (formerly 394)	
ARTH 498	Museum Internship <sup>1</sup>	

Select 3 additional Upper-Division Art History courses	9
Total Units	28

ARTH 498 Museum Internship is required and is typically taken during the junior or senior year. May be repeated once.

Students are encouraged to meet with their advisor to select pertinent electives from such fields as Communication Studies, Sociology, Business, and Leadership.

## History and Theory of Architecture and the City

This path encourages students to address contemporary social/cultural circumstances in the light of an historically grounded sense of visual expression and material culture. Courses in the history and theory of art, architecture and the city will be augmented by studies in other fields appropriate to each student's interests. History and Theory of Architecture is conceived for students who intend to move into fields such as architecture, architectural history and historic preservation or public arts programs, and who will work toward creative strategies of urban intervention.

Prerequisites are as in the major. Students must complete 28 Upper-Division Units in art history, including:

C	ode	Title	Unit
Al	RTH 395	Methods in Art History	3
Al	RTH 495	Image World/Written Word: Senior Thesis Seminar	3
Al	RTH 496	Senior Thesis (formerly 495)	1
Se	elect at least 6 cou	rrses from the following:	18
	ARTH/ARCH 321	City and Utopia: Introduction to History of Urbanism (formerly 338)	
	ARTH/ARCH 322	Contemporary Architecture (formerly 342)	
	ARTH/ARCH 323	Memory, Monument, Museum: Politics of Display (formerly 343)	
	ARTH 330	Special Topics in the History of Architecture and Design	
	ARTH 331	Art in Public Spaces	
	ARTH 334	Art of the Twentieth and Twenty First Centuries in Europe and the Americas	
	ARTH/ARCH 340	Biographies of World Cities (formerly 344)	
	ARTH 345	The Avant-Garde and Mass Culture: Art and Politics	
	ARTH 354	Art Since 1960	
	ARTH 355	The City in Art and Film	
	ARTH 356	Race, Ethnicity, Art and Film	
	ARTH 382	Public Art Studio Seminar	
	ARTH 393	Critical Methods in the Analysis of Visual Culture	
Se	lect one additiona	al Upper-Division Art History course	3
To	otal Units		28

(Please note that four courses are cross-listed: ARTH 321/ARCH 321, ARTH 322/ARCH 322, ARTH 323/ARCH 323, ARTH 340/ARCH 340 may be taken under either code.)

## Global History of Modern and Contemporary Art and Architecture

This path focuses on the unfolding of modern and contemporary art and architecture across a broad geographical reach. Students develop depth and

breadth of knowledge as they probe the ways that art and architecture at once reflect and shape the societies in which they are produced. This concentration draws on the strength of our faculty in the history and theory of modern and contemporary art and architecture in the United States, Latin America, Eastern and Western Europe, and Asia.

Prerequisites are as in the major. Students must complete 28 Upper-Division Units in art history, including:

Code	Title	Unit
ARTH 395	Methods in Art History	3
ARTH 495	Image World/Written Word: Senior Thesis Seminar	3
ARTH 496	Senior Thesis (formerly 495)	1
Select at least 5 cou	arses from the following:	15
ARTH/ARCH 321	City and Utopia: Introduction to History of Urbanism (formerly 338)	
ARTH/ARCH 322	Contemporary Architecture (formerly 342)	
ARTH/ARCH 323	Memory, Monument, Museum: Politics of Display (formerly 343)	
ARTH 330	Special Topics in the History of Architecture and Design	
ARTH 331	Art in Public Spaces	
ARTH 333	Modern Art: 1780-1920	
ARTH 334	Art of the Twentieth and Twenty First Centuries in Europe and the Americas	
ARTH 336	History and Theory of Photography	
ARTH 370	Museum Studies	
ARTH/ARCH 340	Biographies of World Cities (formerly 344)	
ARTH 345	The Avant-Garde and Mass Culture: Art and Politics	
ARTH 354	Art Since 1960	
ARTH 355	The City in Art and Film	
ARTH 356	Race, Ethnicity, Art and Film	
ARTH 360	Asia Modern	
ARTH 361	Chinoiserie and Japonisme	
ARTH 494	Seminar (formerly 394)	
ARTH 498	Museum Internship	
Select two addition	al Art History courses to complete the 28 Upper-Division	6
Units		

(Please note that four courses are cross-listed: ARTH 321/ARCH 321, ARTH 322/ARCH 322, ARTH 323/ARCH 323, ARTH 340/ARCH 340 may be taken under either code.)

### Art History Study Abroad

No more than a total of two ARTH 275 and/or ARTH 375, can be counted toward Art History major credit. ARTH 275 or ARTH 375 can be repeated once for credit. Two sections of ARTH 275 or ARTH 375 can be taken concurrently during a study abroad semester or summer.

### **Honors Courses**

**Total Units** 

Honors Seminars focused on the history of art and architecture are open to all Art History majors as space allows, and count toward the major. Recent topics have included several team-taught courses: Trash: Modernity and Evacuation;

Images of Enlightenment; Modern Palestinian Art and Literature; and Modern Latin American Art and Literature.

### The Double Major in Visual Arts and Art History; and the Double Major in **Architecture and Art History**

Each year a number of students double-major in Visual Arts and Art History; or ts in Architecture and Art History. The double major requires a total of at least 48 upper-division units in the two majors. Interested students should meet with an academic advisor to plan a course of study.

### Recommended Program of Study, Art **History**

•		
Freshman Year		
Semester I		Units
ARTH 101	Introduction to the History of Art	
or select one of the following:		3
ARTH 121	Introduction to Modern Architecture	
ARTH 136	The Year 1500: A Global History of Art and Architecture	
ARTH 138	Art and Visual Culture	
ARTH 140	The Buddhist Temple	
ARTH 144	Introduction to Cinema	
Core curriculum or ele	ectives	
Semester II		
ARTH 101	Introduction to the History of Art	
or select one of the fol	llowing:	3
ARTH 121	Introduction to Modern Architecture	
ARTH 136	The Year 1500: A Global History of Art and Architecture	
ARTH 138	Art and Visual Culture	
ARTH 140	The Buddhist Temple	
ARTH 144	Introduction to Cinema	
Core curriculum or ele	ectives	
Sophomore Year		
Semester I		
One or two 300-level	ARTH courses	3-6
One lower-division vi	sual arts course	3
Core curriculum or ele	ectives	
Semester II		
One or two 300-level	ARTH courses	3-6

28

One of two 300-level ARTH courses	3-6
One lower-division visual arts course	3
Core curriculum or electives	
Semester II	
One or two 300-level ARTH courses	3-6
Core curriculum or electives	
Semester III	

Study Abroad course recommen	nded but not required
Junior Year	

One or two 300-level ARTH courses <sup>1</sup>	3-6
One upper- or lower- division ARTV course	3
Electives	

#### Semester II

ARTH 395 Methods in Art History (required)	
--	--

One additional 300-level ARTH course

Electives

#### **Senior Year**

#### Semester I

ARTH 495 Image World/Written Word: Senior Thesis

Seminar (required)

One or two 300-level ARTH courses<sup>1</sup>

Electives

#### Semester II

ARTH 496 Senior Thesis (formerly ARTV 495 (required))

One or two 300-level ARTH courses

Electives

ARTH 498 Museum Internship recommended for students interested in museum work or pursuing an emphasis in Museum and Curatorial Practice

### The Art History Minor

The minor in Art History consists of a total of 18 units in art history including:

Code	Title	Uni
Select two of the fo	ollowing:	6
ARTH 101	Introduction to the History of Art	
ARTH 121	Introduction to Modern Architecture (formerly 135) <sup>1</sup>	
ARTH 133	Introduction to Art History I	
ARTH 134	Introduction to Art History II	
ARTH 136	The Year 1500: A Global History of Art and Architecture	
ARTH 138	Art and Visual Culture	
ARTH 140	The Buddhist Temple	
Select 9 Upper-Div	rision Art History units	9
Select 1 additional	Upper or Lower-Division art history or visual arts course	3
Total Units		18

ARCH 121 Introduction to Modern Architecture can be substituted for ARTH 121 Introduction to Modern Architecture

# ARTH 101 | INTRODUCTION TO THE HISTORY OF ART

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This course is an introduction to many of the theories and methods that have been used by art historians. The visual foci will include conventional works of art as well as a variety of other visual media, including the museum setting and its strategies of display.

### ARTH 109 | INTRODUCTION TO SOUND ART

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

A survey of the natural, cultural, historical and artistic experience of sound with an emphasis on the use of sound in artistic and critical engagements with the world. Topics include: acoustic ecology; philosophy of music; musical instrument technology; scientific and mathematical application of sound; radical challenges to musical traditions in the 20th century including electronic, experimental and improvised musics, installations and sound sculpture; technologies of sound reproduction; copyright and technological change; sampling; and DJ culture. Cross-listed as MUSC 109.

#### ARTH 121 | INTRODUCTION TO MODERN ARCHITECTURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

A survey of the intellectual origins, artistic concerns and utopian programs of the Modern Movement in architecture. The course examines how modern architecture responded to the social, political, and technological changes in the years between 1750 and 1960. Topics include a wide range of debates on class, race, gender, nationalism, and colonialism, linking them to the questions of housing, domesticity, privacy, and standardization, as well as to the formal vocabularies of modern architecture. Cross-listed as ARCH 121.

#### ARTH 133 | INTRODUCTION TO ART HISTORY I

Units: 3

3-6

3-6 A critical survey of western art history from prehistory through the Middle Ages.

#### ARTH 134 | INTRODUCTION TO ART HISTORY II

Units: 3

A critical survey of western art history from the Renaissance to the present.

# ARTH 136 | THE YEAR 1500: A GLOBAL HISTORY OF ART AND ARCHITECTURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This survey introduces students to the art and architecture of some of the many cultures that flourished around the year 1500: Italy and the Netherlands, the Ottoman empire, the Safavid dynasty in Iran, the rising Mughals in India, the Ming dynasty in China, and the Muromachi shogunate in Japan. The class discusses these artistic traditions in their own right, while at the same time emphasizing thematic and stylistic relationships and cross-cultural influences. The survey challenges the primacy of European artistic norms, and invites students to experience the diversity and complexity of the definition of art in the age of exploration.

#### ARTH 138 | ART AND VISUAL CULTURE

Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This introductory seminar is designed to introduce students to the questions and debates that propel art history and the methodologies that have shaped its unfolding shifts in strategy. While topics will vary from year to year, the central focus of the course will be constant: to equip students to look purposefully, critically, and contextually at images, mindful of the ways that meaning is produced and perceived.

#### ARTH 140 | THE BUDDHIST TEMPLE

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This course considers the forms and roles taken by temples as they followed the spread of Buddhism from ancient India throughout the world. We will pay close attention to the roles played by visual and material culture in how Buddhist communities in Asia and the United States have sought balance between tradition and adaptation.

#### **ARTH 144 | INTRODUCTION TO CINEMA**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This course is an introduction to film form and the historical, industrial, and cultural contexts that make form significant for analysis. This class aims to equip students to look purposefully, critically and contextually at the moving image, mindful of the ways that meaning is produced and received.

#### **ARTH 221 | ARCHITECTURE AND THEORY SINCE 1945**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This course aims at a synoptic view of architecture and the debates surrounding it from 1945 to the present. In addition to foundational readings in architectural history and theory, this course examines design projects by some of the most influential architects of the second half of the 20th century. Cross-listed as ARTH 221. Prior completion of ARCH /ARTH 121 recommended.

#### ARTH 275 | STUDY ABROAD IN ART HISTORY

#### **Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)**

An investigation of site-specific issues or topics in art history, offered by a USD affiliated program abroad. Can be repeated once for credit. Two sections of ARTH 275 can be taken concurrently during a study abroad semester or summer.

# ARTH 321 $\mid$ CITY AND UTOPIA: INTRODUCTION TO HISTORY OF URBANISM

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This course surveys the relation between social and physical space in the formation of modern cities, as well as in the formation of modern disciplines, city planning, and urban design. It examines how the projects of social reform and political control shaped the grand urban projects and the "master plans" of the 19th and 20th centuries. This course is intended to introduce students to a history of ideas in modern urbanism and enhance their understanding of the city as a symbolic form. Cross-listed as ARCH 321.

#### ARTH 322 | CONTEMPORARY ARCHITECTURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Artistic Inquiry area

This course aims at a synoptic view of architecture and the debates surrounding it from 1945 to the present. In addition to foundational readings in architectural history and theory, this course examines design projects by some of the most influential architects of the second half of the 20th century. Cross-listed as ARCH 322.

# ARTH 323 | MEMORY, MONUMENT, MUSEUM: POLITICS OF DISPLAY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Artistic Inquiry area

This course examines museums, monuments, and other sites of cultural memory, understood both as powerful institutions and distinct architectural spaces. We will begin with a critical investigation of the legacy of Europe's and America's great museums, which epitomize the political aspirations of the colonial empires and nation states that built them. Central to this discussion are the problems that come along with the representations of identity and difference—cultural, racial, class-based and gendered—in the museum. In this course we will tackle the cultural heritage, and symbolic violence of colonialism today, as expressed in the current debates of cultural repatriation and restitution.

# ARTH 330 $\mid$ SPECIAL TOPICS IN THE HISTORY OF ARCHITECTURE AND DESIGN

Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE**

A focused investigation of select issues in architectural and design history. Topics vary. Cross-listed as ARCH 330.

#### ARTH 331 | ART IN PUBLIC SPACES

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Artistic Inquiry area

A consideration of the expressive import and historical context of art in public places, with emphasis on work since World War II.

#### ARTH 333 | MODERN ART: 1780-1920

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Artistic Inquiry area

This course will examine the emergence of modern art in Western Europe during the years of radical transformation bracketed by the French Revolution and the First World War: from Jacques-Louis David's images of Revolution and Empire, and Goya's dissonant revelations of human irrationality, to the fragmentation of Cubism, irony of Dada, and subjectivity of Surrealism.

# ARTH 334 | ART OF THE TWENTIETH AND TWENTY FIRST CENTURIES IN EUROPE AND THE AMERICAS

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Artistic Inquiry area

From World War I to the close of the Cold War, from the advent of the movies to the electronic promiscuities of the Web, the unities of the modern world have dissolved into the multiplicities of postmodernity. The ways that art has intersected with the momentous shifts in life will be considered. In the utopian dreams of Constructivism, philosophical reveries of Cubism, subversions of Dada, and introversions of Surrealism and Expressionism, and in the low-brow allusion of pop art, unboundedness of performance art, and media-mimicking interventions of the 1990s, artists have probed the meaning of human experience and action in the 20th and 21st centuries.

# ARTH 336 | HISTORY AND THEORY OF PHOTOGRAPHY Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 1**

This course surveys the history of photography from its origins in the early 19th century to the present. Students will explore historical debates about photography's status as a fine art, as well as current issues in photographic theory.

### ARTH 340 | BIOGRAPHIES OF WORLD CITIES

Units: 3

This course is a focused survey of the arts and architecture of a great city throughout history. It examines how shifting social contexts and patronage shaped the monuments of art and architecture; how the function and meaning of these monuments have changed in subsequent stages of the city's history; how the traces of past architecture - the archaeological strata - structure the city's present form; and how the monuments record the individual experiences and collective memory of a city's inhabitants. Students will learn to analyze art and architecture based on firsthand experience, field surveys, and faculty-guided research. Offered mainly as a study abroad course by the USD faculty during the winter Intersession or summer programs. Cities may include Rome, Istanbul, Madrid, Paris, London, Mexico City and Los Angeles, among others. Cross-listed as ARCH 340.

# ARTH 345 | THE AVANT-GARDE AND MASS CULTURE: ART AND POLITICS

Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE**

This course will examine the intersections between mass culture and the artistic movements in the first decades of the 20th century which came to be known as the "historical avant-garde." Class discussions will focus on the question of aesthetic autonomy versus the social/political engagement of art. We will investigate the way the technologies of modern communication and mass media which made art available to a larger public at the beginning of the century — photographic reproduction, cinema, and, more recently, television — have transformed the production and reception of art.

#### **ARTH 354 | ART SINCE 1960**

Units: 3

#### ${\bf Core\ Attributes:\ Advanced\ writing\ competency,\ Artistic\ Inquiry\ area}$

This course examines art of the past half century in the United States, Europe and Asia. Moving from Pop, Conceptual and Performance art of the 1960s to installation, public intervention, and the dematerialized arena of the world wide web, the class will consider the ways that artistic strategies forge meaning within the frame of historical circumstance.

#### ARTH 355 | THE CITY IN ART AND FILM

#### Units: 3

This course will examine representations of the city in 20th- and 21st-century art and film. From the science fiction presentiments of Metropolis, Alphaville, and Blade Runner, to the suburban dystopia of American Beauty, the rhapsodic romanticism of Manhattan, and the engulfing megalopolis of Salaam Bombay, the city has figured as a powerful force and subject within film. So, too, artists have tackled the city not only as subject matter but as an arena in which to act. From the frenetic manifestations of the futurists and the pointed interventions of Krzysztof Wodiczko, Jenny Holzer, and Robert Irwin, to the populist strategies of Banksy and Rick Lowe, artists have moved into the real space of the world.

#### ARTH 356 | RACE, ETHNICITY, ART AND FILM

#### Units: 3

# Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Artistic Inquiry area, Domestic Diversity level 1

This course examines representations of race and ethnicity in art and film. Focusing on work of the 20th and 21st centuries in the United States, students will consider the ways that theoretical perspectives and lived experience are articulated in art and film

#### ARTH 360 | ASIA MODERN

#### Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

The study of modernism in art often dwells on developments in Europe and America. What was the Asian experience of modernism, and how did it affect the course of the visual arts? This course examines the contributions to modern art by Asians and Asian-Americans.

#### ARTH 361 | CHINOISERIE AND JAPONISME

#### Units: 3

"Chinoiserie" and "Japonisme" were two movements in European art that drew inspiration from the art and material culture of the Far East. This course challenges students to synthesize a balanced and historically informed understanding of the ways that images and objects can acquire new contexts and meanings when they travel cross-culturally.

#### **ARTH 370 | MUSEUM STUDIES**

#### Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This course exams the history, theory, structure, and roles of museums, alternative spaces, and art in public places programs. The class will meet with a number of southern California museum professionals.

#### **ARTH 371 | CURATORIAL PRACTICE**

#### **Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)**

This course considers the dynamics of curatorial work and delves into the ways that collections and exhibitions are shaped. Students gain direct experience working with objects and exhibition planning in USD's Hoehn Galleries and Print Study Collection. May be repeated for credit.

### **ARTH 372 | EXHIBITION DESIGN**

#### Units: 3

A hands-on course in the design of museum and gallery exhibition installations. Students will deal with all aspects of presentation in the Hoehn Galleries, and will make use of local museum opportunities.

#### ARTH 375 | STUDY ABROAD IN ART HISTORY

#### Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

An investigation of site-specific issues or topics in art history, offered by a USD affiliated program abroad. Can be repeated once for credit. Two sections of ARTH 375 can be taken concurrently during a study abroad semester or summer.

#### ARTH 376 | ART AT EL PRADO MUSEUM, MADRID, SPAIN

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area, International

This course is designed to equip students to analyze and reflect on works of art, enlisting some of the theories and methods that have been used by art historians. The class is structured around art in the collection of the Prado Museum in Madrid, Spain, with emphasis on works from the sixteenth through the early nineteenth centuries. Students will also consider the museum setting and its strategies of display. Offered as a study abroad course in Madrid.

#### ARTH 382 | PUBLIC ART STUDIO SEMINAR

#### Units: 3

This course focuses on the role of the artist outside of the gallery/museum context. Tangential to this investigation will be discussions that engage social, political, and urban issues relevant to this expanded public context. Traditional approaches of enhancement and commemoration will be examined in light of more temporal and critical methodologies. Historical examples will be studied and discussed, including the Soviet constructivist experiments, the situationists, conceptual art, and more recent interventionist strategies. Cross-listed as ARTV 382.

# ARTH 393 | CRITICAL METHODS IN THE ANALYSIS OF VISUAL CULTURE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

An advanced seminar exploring current art historical debates, with special emphasis on the impact of critical theories (e.g. feminism, psychoanalysis, Marxism, deconstruction) on the practices of creating, looking at, and writing about works of art. Topics vary. May be repeated for credit.

#### ARTH 395 | METHODS IN ART HISTORY

#### Units: 3

Advanced seminar on the methods and theories that shape the interpretation of works of art. The course is based on the close reading and discussion of art historical texts that have influenced the development, aims, and practice of the discipline. Through a series of reading and writing assignments, students will gain familiarity with various interpretative and analytical strategies, and be able to distinguish between different kinds of readings of artworks. Required for all Art History Majors. Prereq: Nine units in Art History. Art History students are strongly advised to enroll in this course during their junior year.

#### ARTH 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN ART HISTORY

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

**Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Artistic Inquiry area** A focused investigation of select issues in art history.

# ARTH 495 | IMAGE WORLD/WRITTEN WORD: SENIOR THESIS SEMINAR

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### **Core Attributes: Oral communication competency**

This course offers the possibility of pursuing an independent writing project in a supportive group setting. Art History majors will develop a preparatory draft for their senior thesis. Other majors will have the opportunity to craft a writing project of their choice connected with the history or theory of images.

#### ARTH 496 | SENIOR THESIS

#### Units: 1

Each senior will conceive a research project drawing on historical, theoretical, and critical strategies. Every semester.

#### **ARTH 498 | MUSEUM INTERNSHIP**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Working firsthand with curators, exhibition designers, and registrars, in education programs, and in outreach and development offices at area museums, students gather crucial practical experience in the field. Students in recent years have done internships with USD's Hoehn Print Study Collection, the Museum of Contemporary Art San Diego, the San Diego Museum of Art, the Timken Museum, the New Children's Museum, the Museum of Photographic Arts, Lux Art Institute, and Quint Contemporary Art.

#### **ARTH 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY**

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

A project developed by the student in coordination with an instructor. The project should investigate in-depth a field of interest to the student not covered by established art history courses.

### Visual Arts

A primary objective of the visual arts program is to guide the student, major and non-major alike, to a practical understanding of many of the languages and traditions of visual expression. The program encourages a holistic exploration of the arts, while simultaneously requiring art majors to develop advanced skills in at least one of the following sub-disciplines: art + intermedia, drawing, video, painting, photography, printmaking, sculpture or visual communications." Visual arts majors who are considering graduate study are encouraged to complete a minor in art history.

### The Visual Arts Major

Students choosing an emphasis in Art + Intermedia must complete a different set of degree requirements (see below for section titled, "Emphasis: Art + Intermedia").

#### Preparation for the Major

Code	Title	Units
ARTH 101	Introduction to the History of Art	3
Select four of the	following:	12
ARTV 101	Fundamentals of Drawing	
ARTV 103	Design Foundations	
ARTV 105	Introduction to Sculpture	
ARTV 108	Introduction to Video Art	
ARTV 160	Photography	
Total Units		15

**Total Units** 

Visual arts students are strongly encouraged to complete the above five courses by the end of their sophomore year.

#### The Major

- 1. Select at least one area of specialization from the sub-disciplines of visual
- 2. Complete 28 Upper-Division Units of visual arts (ARTV) including ARTV 495 and ARTV 496. At least nine of the total 28 Upper-Division Units in visual arts need to be in the selected area of specialization.
- 3. Complete ARTH 334 or ARTH 360, as well as one additional upper-division art history course.

#### Additional Requirements

1. Students must participate in a junior review during the second semester of the junior year.

- 2. ARTV 495 (formerly 478) must be completed during the first semester of the senior year.
- 3. ARTV 496 (formerly 495) must be completed during the second semester of the senior year.
- 4. Students must take at least one upper division course in their selected area of specialization during their senior year.
- 5. Students selecting drawing or painting as an area of specialization must take

### Emphasis: Art + Intermedia

Art + Intermedia focuses on the interdisciplinary study of art, technology and culture, supporting a wide range of projects and practices. It is structured to encourage students to apply multiple media and integrate disciplines into new forms of expression. Students prepare to be independent artists and cultural producers in a world of new media representations and strategies. Integrating the production of art and critical studies, the lower- and upper-division requirements are drawn from equal amounts of studio art and art history courses. It is designed specifically for creative uses of media beyond singular discipline areas of study in photography, film, video, sound, music, sculpture, performance or theater. Students choosing a concentration in Art + Intermedia must complete the following requirements:

#### Preparation for the Major (Art + Intermedia)

Treparation for the Major (Art Timermedia)			
Code	Title	Units	
<b>Lower-Division R</b>	equirements		
ARTV 105	Introduction to Sculpture	3	
ARTV 108	Introduction to Video Art	3	
ARTV 160	Photography	3	
ARTH 101	Introduction to the History of Art	3	
ARTH 109	Introduction to Sound Art	3	
Select one of the fo	ollowing:	3	
ARTH 138	Art and Visual Culture		
THEA 111	Theatre and Society		
ARTH 121	Introduction to Modern Architecture (formerly 135)		
Total Units		18	

## The Major (Art + Intermedia)

Code	Title	Units
Upper-Division R	equirements	
Select five upper-d	livision visual arts courses (15 units) from the following:	15
ARTV 308	Video Art: Site and Screen	
ARTV 320	Video Art: The Cinematic	
ARTV 324	Intermediate/Advanced Video Art	
ARTV 353	Color Photography	
ARTV 354	Photo Strategies	
ARTV 361	Advanced Photography	
ARTV 369	Intermediate / Advanced Sculpture	
ARTV 370	Designing for Social Space	
ARTV 371	Sculpture / Landscape	
ARTV 420	Digital Audio Composition	
ARTV 421	Interactive Digital Music and Arts	
ARTV 424	Art and the Soundscape	
Select four upper-o	livision art history courses (12 units) from the following:	12
ARTH 321	City and Utopia: Introduction to History of Urbanism	

(formerly ARTH 338)

A DELL 202	C 4 124 4	
ARTH 322	Contemporary Architecture	
ARTH 331	Art in Public Spaces	
ARTH 333	Modern Art: 1780-1920	
ARTH 334	Art of the Twentieth and Twenty First Centuries in	
	Europe and the Americas	
ARTH 336	History and Theory of Photography	
ARTH 345	The Avant-Garde and Mass Culture: Art and Politics	
ARTH 354	Art Since 1960	
ARTH 356	Race, Ethnicity, Art and Film	
ARTH 382	Public Art Studio Seminar	
ARTH 393	Critical Methods in the Analysis of Visual Culture	
ARTH 395	Methods in Art History	
ARTH 494	Seminar	
THEA 369	Contemporary Theatre	
THEA 370	Performance Studies	
Participate in Junior	Review during the second semester of Junior year.	
ARTV 495	Senior Thesis Studio Seminar	3
Senior Thesis Str	adio Seminar (3) during first semester of Senior year.	
ARTV 496	Senior Thesis	1
Senior Exhibition	n Project (1) during final semester of Senior year.	
Total Units		31

Please note that some courses may be taken more than once for course credit and that under certain circumstances substitution of classes will be allowed with advisor approval.

#### Recommended Elective Courses for Visual Arts Majors

Visual Arts majors and minors are encouraged to consider some of the following courses for fulfillment of core curriculum and elective requirements:

Code	Title	Units
For students se	lecting a specialization in drawing or painting:	
ARTH 333	Modern Art: 1780-1920	3
ENGL 385	Topics in Creative Writing	3
For students se	lecting a specialization in visual communications:	
COMM 300	Communication Theory	3
COMM 475	Intercultural Communication	3
COMM 435	Principles of Video Production	3
PHIL 338	Environmental Ethics	3
PHIL 274	Twentieth Century Continental Philosophy	3
For students se	lecting a specialization in photography:	
ARTH 333	Modern Art: 1780-1920 (and other upper division art history courses)	3
ARTH 336	History and Theory of Photography	3
For students se	lecting a specialization in sculpture:	
ENGL 222	Poetry	3
ARTV 424	Art and the Soundscape	3
Total Units		33

# Visual Arts Study Abroad

No more than a total of two ARTV 275 and/or ARTV 375, can be counted toward Visual Arts major credit. ARTV 275 or ARTV 375 can be repeated once for credit. Two sections of ARTV 275 or ARTV 375 can be taken concurrently during a study abroad semester or summer.

### Recommended Program of Study, Visual Arts Majors

#### Freshman Year

Tresiminar rear		
Semester I		Units
Preceptorial		3
ARTV 101	Fundamentals of Drawing	3
CC or electives		9-10
Semester II		
ARTV 103	Design Foundations	3
or 108	Introduction to Video Art	
ARTH 101	Introduction to the History of Art	3
CC or electives		9-10
Sophomore Year		
Semester I		
ARTV 105	Introduction to Sculpture	3
ARTV 160	Photography	3
CC or electives		9
Semester II		
ARTH 334	Art of the Twentieth and Twenty First Centuries	3
or 360	in Europe and the Americas	
	Asia Modern	
ARTV 302	Intermediate Drawing	3
CC or electives		9
Junior Year		
Semester I		
ARTV electives		9
CC or electives		6-7
Semester II		
Upper Division ARTH	Elective	3
ARTV electives		6
CC electives		6
Junior Review		
Senior Year		
Semester I		
ARTV 495	Senior Thesis Studio Seminar (formerly 478)	3
ARTV electives		6
Electives		6
Semester II		
ARTV 496	Senior Thesis (formerly 495)	1
ARTV Electives		9
Electives		6

### The Visual Arts Minor

The minor in visual arts requires the following:

Code	Title	Hours
Select four from t	the following:	12
ARTV 101	Fundamentals of Drawing	
ARTV 103	Design Foundations	
ARTV 105	Introduction to Sculpture	
ARTV 108	Introduction to Video Art	
ARTV 160	Photography	
Select two from t	he following:	6

ARTH 101	Introduction to the History of Art	
ARTH 121	Introduction to Modern Architecture (formerly 135) <sup>1</sup>	
ARTH 133	Introduction to Art History I	
ARTH 134	Introduction to Art History II	
ARTH 136	The Year 1500: A Global History of Art and Architecture	
ARTH 138	Art and Visual Culture	
ARTH 140	The Buddhist Temple	
12 upper division v	isual arts units	12

ARCH 121 can be substituted for ARTH 121

#### ARTV 101 | FUNDAMENTALS OF DRAWING

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

Introduction to the fundamental elements and principles of drawing. Exploration of a variety of dry and wet media. Primary emphasis on developing the student's perceptual capabilities and representational skills. Every semester.

#### ARTV 102 | COLOR

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

In this studio course, students create color-based art projects in a variety of media through directed assignments. Studio projects are supplemented by lectures, readings, and discussions on the theory and history of color and its applied uses in contemporary art and design. Topics may include the science of color and its industrial production; cultural connotations of color; strategies and color techniques used by artists.

#### **ARTV 103 | DESIGN FOUNDATIONS**

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

Study of two-dimensional design principles stressing the dynamics of line, shape, value, texture, color, spatial relationships, and composition. This course introduces students to the basics of visual communications. Every semester.

#### ARTV 105 | INTRODUCTION TO SCULPTURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This studio course is an introductory exploration of the media and methods (traditional and experimental) that form the basis of an ongoing dialogue between object and artist. Students will investigate sculptural form as a means of cultural production through technical exercises, studio projects, critiques, slide lectures, readings, and discussions. Every semester.

#### ARTV 108 | INTRODUCTION TO VIDEO ART

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This course examines the concept of time in contemporary art. Examples of experimental films and video art are screened and discussed, along with related texts. Students create video projects through directed assignments using department equipment and software. Every semester.

#### ARTV 160 | PHOTOGRAPHY

**Units: 3-4** 

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

A lecture and laboratory course designed to provide a foundation for students majoring or minoring in Visual Arts with an emphasis in photography. Working from documentary perspectives this class investigates the world realistically stressing the historical, cultural and intellectual challenges of the medium. We will be making pictures that are faithful to experience and cognizant of art historical traditions. Processing and printing takes place in traditional darkrooms and computer labs. Students will need access to both film and digital cameras, and purchase materials as required. Lab fee required.

#### ARTV 275 | STUDY ABROAD IN VISUAL ARTS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

An investigation of site-specific issues or topics in visual arts, offered by a USDaffiliated program abroad. Can be repeated once for credit. Two sections of ARTV 275 can be taken concurrently during a study abroad semester or summer.

#### ARTV 300 | VISUAL COMMUNICATIONS

#### Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: ARTV 103

Study of design concepts, form analysis, and development of visual thinking for creative problem solving. Lectures, discussions, and class presentations explore historical, cultural and contemporary issues and practices in visual communications. May be repeated for credit. Fall semester.

#### ARTV 302 | INTERMEDIATE DRAWING

Units: 3

Prerequisites: ARTV 101

The primary objective of this course is to investigate the intimate relationship between form and content in the creation of images. Drawing projects, lectures, and critiques will stress the organization of the pictorial field and the technical manipulation of the material as means for identifying and articulating the artist's intentions. Students will be guided through the process of developing visually compelling drawings that are technically and conceptually sophisticated. Required for art majors selecting a specialization in drawing or painting. Spring semester.

#### **ARTV 304 | INTRODUCTION TO PRINTMAKING**

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

Prerequisites: ARTV 101

Basic techniques and expressive possibilities of intaglio and relief printmaking including etching, drypoint, aquatint, soft ground, and woodcut. Various methods of printmaking will be introduced. Equal emphasis will be placed on creative image making and craftsmanship. May be repeated for credit.

#### ARTV 306 | INTRODUCTION TO BOOK ARTS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

Terminology, tools, materials, and reproduction processes related to the making of books; multi cultural, historical, and contemporary book structures; and development of content in the form of image and text. This course is designed as an interdisciplinary exploration for students in graphic, fine, and applied art disciplines, and students from other departments such as creative writing, history, and the sciences. Each artist will be encouraged to apply her/his own particular skills to this time-based, interactive, and multifaceted form. In this context, we will converse about issues and techniques that expand our current knowledge and expressive concerns.

#### ARTV 308 | VIDEO ART: SITE AND SCREEN

Units: 3

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

Prerequisites: ARTV 108

This course considers the body in new media art. Texts and screenings relate to how artists craft a physical experience of video art installations, and how they render the disembodied space of virtual realms. Students produce moving image projects along these themes.

#### ARTV 320 | VIDEO ART: THE CINEMATIC

Units: 3

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

Prerequisites: ARTV 108

This course focuses on specific strategies of the cinematic moving image; screenings and texts explore film theory, art and media scholarship. Assignments highlight the production of individual video projects with unique consideration of time and narrative.

#### ARTV 324 | INTERMEDIATE/ADVANCED VIDEO ART

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable once for Credit)** 

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

Prerequisites: ARTV 108

Advanced studies in selected themes and strategies of film and video art through texts, screenings and individual projects. May be repeated for credit.

#### ARTV 328 | FUNDAMENTALS OF PAINTING

Units: 3

Prerequisites: ARTV 101

Introduction to the fundamental principles, tools, and techniques necessary for successful expression through the language of painting. The primary emphasis throughout the semester will be on developing the student's technical proficiency with the medium of painting and enhancing eye/hand coordination. The majority of paintings will be developed from direct observation, with a few projects exploring the artist's subjective interests. May be repeated for credit when ARTV 429 is not offered.

#### ARTV 344 | FIGURE DRAWING

Units: 3

Prerequisites: ARTV 101

A studio course emphasizing the structure and anatomy of the human figure. A variety of drawing techniques and media will be utilized to depict the live model. May be repeated for credit.

#### ARTV 350 | ART FUNDAMENTALS

Units: 3

A study of the fundamentals of art as they relate to creative and cognitive growth. Emphasis is placed on the stages of development from preschool through junior high school. Hands-on experience with appropriate media and techniques, combined with motivational topics that help in establishing the creative atmosphere, which stimulates growth of visual expression. Intended for liberal studies majors or with permission of instructor.

#### ARTV 353 | COLOR PHOTOGRAPHY

Units: 3

An introduction to the aesthetic and technical considerations of color photography. The course covers basic camera operations, appropriate exposure and processing strategies, and the development of critical issues of color photography. The class includes an introduction to digital imaging, including image scanning and storage strategies, image manipulation, color correction, and digital photographic printing. All prints will be made digitally in the computer lab. Materials not included.

#### **ARTV 354 | PHOTO STRATEGIES**

Units: 3

In this course photographs are made in an attempt to discover the student's singular voice by building upon the foundation laid by exemplary photographers. The study of artists selected by the student is encouraged through assigned readings, discussions, lectures, and writing assignments. Photographs are made in color and black and white, with both digital and traditional media. Materials not included.

#### ARTV 355 | DIGITAL PHOTOGRAPHY: THEORY AND PRACTICE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

We will make color images with the digital camera, editing the results and making prints with Adobe Photoshop software. Directed projects are designed to encourage visual thinking and to assist us in seeking to understand the world as seen through a camera. All pictures will be understood within fine art traditions, and examined against the background of selected photographers who have contributed to the medium's history since its 19th century beginnings. Bold old and new traditions of picture making will inform discussions and we will read and comment about its artistic, historical and social roles.

#### ARTV 361 | ADVANCED PHOTOGRAPHY

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: ARTV 160

Advanced lecture and laboratory course that develops technical skills and encourages the growth of the student's personal aesthetic in photography. Advanced topics include analog and digital approaches to documentary projects, synthetic imagery, non-silver printing, and special topics of student interest. Materials not included.

#### ARTV 362 | PORTRAITS IN PHOTOGRAPHY

Units: 3

This course engages the student in making analog and digital portraits in color and black and white photographic media. Students make environmental and formal portraits utilizing both natural and artificial light, including electronic strobe. Students are required to complete a body of work reflecting the concerns of portraiture within a fine arts context. Materials not included.

#### ARTV 369 | INTERMEDIATE / ADVANCED SCULPTURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

Prerequisites: ARTV 104 or ARTV 105

A multi-level studio course designed to advance students' technical and conceptual skills through a series of sculptural problems beyond the introductory level. Studio projects, technical demonstrations, lectures, readings and field trips create context within the history and practice of contemporary sculpture, expanding students' knowledge of traditional and experimental approaches to sculpture, while aiding the development (particularly at the advanced level) of a personal body of work.

#### ARTV 370 | DESIGNING FOR SOCIAL SPACE

Units: 3

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This studio seminar considers a constellation of artistic developments of the last 40 years that employ social space and activity as important artistic venues or materials. The class will examine the impulse towards social engagement in art: the desire to make art beyond the gallery, to facilitate collective change, to practice a form of creativity beyond individual authorship, or to avoid the market's hold on art. Through experiments, exercises and art projects, readings and lectures students will explore site-specific sculpture and installation, social sculpture, collaborations and artistic interactivity.

#### ARTV 371 | SCULPTURE / LANDSCAPE

#### Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

A studio seminar course organized around the overlapping topics of landscape, sculpture and land art, Sculpture/Landscape is designed to offer intermediate and advanced Visual Arts students an opportunity to continue developing technical and conceptual skills in sculpture while also providing motivated students without experience an exciting entry to the discipline. Through technical exercises, studio projects, field trips, lectures, readings and discussions we will explore contemporary sculpture and installation practice in relation to the land and historical and contemporary ideas about land, all while taking advantage of San Diego's year-round growing season, diverse micro-climates and post-modern botanical vocabulary.

#### ARTV 375 | STUDY ABROAD IN VISUAL ARTS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

An investigation of site-specific issues or topics in visual arts, offered by a USD affiliated program abroad. Can be repeated once for credit. Two sections of ARTV 375 can be taken concurrently during a study abroad semester or summer.

### ARTV 382 | PUBLIC ART STUDIO SEMINAR

#### Units: 3

This course focuses on the role of the artist outside of the gallery/museum context. Tangential to this investigation will be discussions that engage social, political, and urban issues relevant to this expanded public context. Traditional approaches of enhancement and commemoration will be examined in light of more temporal and critical methodologies. Historical examples will be studied and discussed, including the Soviet Constructivist experiments, the Situationists, Conceptual art and more recent interventionist strategies. Cross-listed as ARTH 382.

#### **ARTV 395 | JUNIOR SEMINAR**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Junior Seminar is an association (or blending) of methods and discourse to further the advancing art major's understanding of how research and 'making things' are key components to a working discipline. Further, the course material will be used to help develop work in their chosen areas, or to help establish a work ethic as an enrichment of their personal "voice" and potential growth in their conceptual awareness. This course may be considered as a perspective in their ongoing development and research with a deep emphasis on experimentation. Using a mixture of art historical research, cross-disciplinary investigation, a deeper understanding of what our department of art offers and a wide range of experimental exercises in various mediums we will focus on theme development, research techniques, and studio practice.

# ARTV 401 | ADVANCED VISUAL COMMUNICATIONS Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: ARTV 103 and ARTV 300

Advanced problem-solving, further analysis of form and meaning, and continued exploration of the historical and cultural issues in contemporary visual communications. Projects emphasize creative thinking and require the students to place greater emphasis on research, exploration, and preparation of work for final presentation. May be repeated for credit. Spring semester.

#### ARTV 403 | ADVANCED DRAWING/PAINTING SEMINAR

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: ARTV 101 and ARTV 302

This course is designed to challenge students who have already demonstrated an intermediate level of proficiency in drawing. Lectures, reading discussions, and drawing projects will unfold throughout the semester around a single unified topic, resulting in a cohesive portfolio for the student. The course's central topic will change every semester, enabling students to repeat the course without repeating its content. The following is a partial list of the topics that will be explored: representation, identity, and the narrative portrait; informed by nature: The landscape from the panoramic to the microscopic; the expressionist voice; techniques of the old masters; drawing the artists' book. May be repeated for credit.

#### ARTV 420 | DIGITAL AUDIO COMPOSITION

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ARTH 109

Analysis of historical and contemporary experimental music and sound provides the foundation for structured and creative composition using digitized sound. Includes an introduction to sampling, recording techniques, digital audio editing, effects processing, and mixing using Digital Performer and related software. Workshop format includes critique of work-in-progress and opportunities for public performance. Cross-listed as MUSC 420. ARTH 109/MUSC 109 recommended, but not required. Prior musical experience not required.

# ARTV 421 | INTERACTIVE DIGITAL MUSIC AND ARTS Units: 3

Prerequisites: ARTV 420 or MUSC 420

A workshop on the creation of interactive digital works of sound art or music using state-of-the-art hardware and software, focusing on Mas/MSP/Jitter. Includes study of the theoretical, aesthetic, philosophical and historical background in computer-human interaction and the arts, basic tenets of programming, and practical exercises in programming interactive computer multimedia art. Cross-listed as MUSC 421.

#### ARTV 424 | ART AND THE SOUNDSCAPE

#### Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Advanced Integration**

Prerequisites: ARTH 109 or MUSC 109

Artistic and scholarly investigation into the soundscape—the totality of the sonic environment invested with significance by human imagination. Creative work in media of the students choice, including new and cross-disciplinary media such as sound art, installation art, electronic music, phonography, instrument construction and the internet. Critical writing about creative work and its social and historical situation. Cross-listed as MUSC 424.

#### ARTV 429 | INTERMEDIATE/ADVANCED PAINTING

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: ARTV 328

A multi-level course designed to refine the technical skills of intermediate and advanced students, while developing their individual concerns through a cohesive series of paintings. Assignments, presentations, and readings will challenge the student to consider a variety of thematic and stylistic approaches to the art of painting. May be repeated for credit.

### ARTV 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN VISUAL ARTS

#### **Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)**

An in-depth investigation in a studio setting of selected topics in the visual arts. Issues of current and historical interests, methods, and techniques are addressed. May be repeated when topic changes. Two sections may be enrolled in concurrently if topic differs.

#### ARTV 495 | SENIOR THESIS STUDIO SEMINAR

#### Units: 3

A studio-seminar course designed for Visual Art majors in their senior year to help prepare them for ARTV 496 – Senior Exhibition Project. Students will develop a mature body of work in their selected discipline(s) and formulate critical positions on their work through readings, lectures and cross-disciplinary discussions pertaining to a range of creative practices. Required for all Visual Art majors in their senior year. Fall semester.

#### **ARTV 496 | SENIOR THESIS**

#### Units: 1

This course requires the student to mount an exhibition of his or her most significant art work carried out during undergraduate education; present a written thesis that analyzes the development of, and influences on, his/her work; and participate in an oral defense of that thesis with the art faculty and their peers. Senior Exhibition Project should be taken in the final semester of the senior year. Every semester.

#### ARTV 498 | STUDIO INTERNSHIP

### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### **Core Attributes: Law - Experiential**

The practice of the specialized skills, tools, basic materials and production techniques at local professional art and design studios under the direct supervision of their senior staff. Students will present a written report to the faculty.

#### ARTV 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

A project developed by the student in coordination with an instructor. The project should investigate in-depth a field of interest to the student not covered by established visual arts courses.

### **Asian Studies**

## **Program Director**

Yi Sun, PhD, History

# **Affiliated Faculty**

Christopher Adler, PhD, Music

Bahar Davary, PhD, Theology and Religious Studies

Kokila Doshi, PhD, Economics

David Harnish, PhD, Music

Koonyong Kim, PhD, English

Louis Komjathy, PhD, Theology and Religious Studies

Judith Liu, PhD, Sociology

Lance Nelson, PhD, Theology and Religious Studies

Lee Ann Otto, PhD, Political Science and International Relations

Jessica Patterson, PhD, Art, Architecture + Art History

Ann Pirruccello, PhD, Philosophy

Hiroko Takagi, PhD, Languages, Cultures and Literatures

Karma Lekshe Tsomo, PhD, Theology and Religious Studies

Mei Yang, PhD, Languages, Cultures and Literatures

### The Asian Studies Minor

The Asian studies minor is an interdisciplinary academic program that provides students an opportunity to supplement their major with a structured and directed program of study in Asian histories, religions, cultures, politics and societies. It is designed to help students develop a nuanced and sophisticated understanding of Asian countries and their peoples, and to enhance the students' awareness of themselves and their role in an increasingly globalized world.

# Minor Requirements

### Option I

Four semesters (12 units) of Asian language study at the college or university level and three courses (nine units), including a minimum of two disciplines, from the upper-division Asian studies courses listed under option III.

#### Option II

Fourth semester competency in an Asian language and four courses (12 units), including a minimum of two disciplines, from the upper-division Asian studies courses listed under option III.

#### Option III

Code	Title	Unit
18 units, including t	wo lower-division courses (six units), from	6
ARTH 140	The Buddhist Temple	
ASIA 194	Topics in Asian Studies	
HIST 130	East Asia in Transformation	
PHIL 175	Asian Philosophy	
THRS 112	Introduction to World Religions	
and four upper-divis	sion courses (12 units), from a minimum of two academic	12

and four upper-division courses (12 units), from a minimum of two academic 12 disciplines, from

disciplines, from	
ARTH 360	Asia Modern
ASIA 494	Topics in Asian Studies
ECON 337	Economic Development of Asia
HIST 364	Topics in Asian History
HIST 365	China: Rise to Global Power
HIST 366	Japan: Samurai to Subaru
HIST 367	Women's Lives in East Asia
HIST 372	United States-East Asia Relations
MUSC 340	Topics in World Music
MUSC 357	Gamelan Ensemble
PHIL 476	Studies in Asian Philosophy
POLS 358	Politics in South Asia
POLS 367	Politics in Japan
POLS 368	Politics in China
THRS 312	The Hindu Tradition
THRS 314	Buddhist Thought and Culture
THRS 315	Islamic Faith and Practice
THRS 316	The Daoist Tradition
THRS 317	Religions of China
Total Units	18

Total Units 18

Other courses related to Asia, including study abroad courses, may also qualify for the minor under any of these options. Please contact the director for approval. Under all three options, a minimum of six upper-division units must be taken on the USD campus.

ASIA 194 | TOPICS IN ASIAN STUDIES

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

ASIA 494 | TOPICS IN ASIAN STUDIES

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

### **Behavioral Neuroscience**

See Psychological Sciences (p. 224).

# **Biochemistry**

See Chemistry and Biochemistry (p. 91).

# **Biology**

### Chair

Michael S. Mayer, PhD

## **Faculty**

Lisa A.M. Baird, PhD

Terry H. Bird, PhD

Kate S. Boersma, PhD

Nicole Danos, PhD

Hugh I. Ellis, PhD

Arietta Fleming-Davies, PhD

Richard J. Gonzalez, PhD

Adam S. Haberman, PhD

Valerie S. Hohman, PhD

Curtis M. Loer, PhD

Mary Sue Lowery, PhD

Geoffrey E. Morse, PhD

Marjorie L. Patrick, PhD

Curt W. Spanis, PhD

The Department of Biology offers a program that provides a thorough preparation for graduate or professional school, the laboratory training necessary for entry into advanced programs in biotechnology, or a supplement to other major studies needing a broad background in biology. A strong emphasis is placed on laboratory and field experience, not only to acquaint the student with the working methods of science, but also to foster inquiry and creativity. Moreover, in recognition that all biological understanding has its origin in research, and this fundamental activity is as exciting as it is enlightening, all biology majors are required to include a Research Experience in their program of study. The Research Experience can be fulfilled in several ways, including research on campus under faculty supervision (see Undergraduate Research) or off-campus through our internship program. The following high school preparation is strongly recommended for students planning a major in biology at USD: elementary algebra, plane geometry, intermediate algebra, trigonometry, chemistry, physics and biology.

Students are urged to consult departmental advisors early in their college career in order to select a program of courses most suitable to their future goals. The high

faculty-to-student ratio allows each student to receive individualized assistance in course selection and career planning. The flexible structure of the biology major allows each student to focus his or her studies in one or more areas of interest. To assist those students preparing for careers in the health sciences, the university offers a Pre-Health Advising office within the Dean's office of the College of Arts and Sciences. By working together with the Pre-Health advisor and their academic advisor within the Biology Department, pre-health students can design a course of study that best prepares them for their chosen professional school.

# The Life Science Teaching Credential

The California Life Science Teaching Credential requires a major in biology. Students seeking this credential should consult a biology faculty advisor.

### **Undergraduate Research**

Deeper exposure to the research process can be a valuable component of the undergraduate experience. All biology students are invited to participate in the research programs of our faculty members. Alternatively, a student may wish to design a project of his/her own with faculty supervision. Either of these options can earn upper division biology units (BIOL 496) and fulfill the Research Experience requirement of the biology major. Students interested in graduate school will find the research experience an instructive preview of what lies ahead, and students applying to professional schools will find it a significant asset. USD students often publish their findings and/or present them at scientific meetings, including the annual USD undergraduate research conference "Creative Collaborations."

# Special Emphases within the Biology Major

Several model programs of study are listed below and should serve to illustrate the adaptable nature of the biology curriculum. Specific programs of study other than those listed below can be designed with the aid of an advisor from the biology faculty.

#### Pre-Health Sciences Emphasis

The biology major provides an excellent preparation for those students interested in pursuing future studies in one of the health professional programs (medicine, dentistry, veterinary medicine, pharmacy, optometry, podiatry, nursing, physical therapy, etc.). Our curriculum provides students with a strong foundation in biological concepts as well as the analytical and communication skills needed by health professionals. To assist students preparing for a career in the health sciences, the university's Pre-Health Advising Office can provide students with specific graduate program prerequisites, help locate volunteer and community service opportunities, and help students understand the professional school application process.

Most of the prerequisite courses for the pre-health programs are included in the preparatory courses required for the biology major. In addition, many programs now strongly recommend or require additional courses in genetics (BIOL 300), cell/molecular biology (BIOL 480, BIOL 482), statistics (BIOL 301), and biochemistry (CHEM 331); an increasing number of dental, pharmacy, optometry, nursing, and physical therapy programs require human anatomy & physiology (BIOL 212, BIOL 213). Additional biology courses that would likely be of interest to those students planning to pursue a career in the medical field include Comparative Anatomy of Vertebrates (BIOL 320), Microbiology (BIOL 342), Animal Development (BIOL 376), Vertebrate Physiology (BIOL 478), and Immunology (BIOL 484). By working together with the pre-health advisor and their academic advisors within the biology department, pre-health students can design a course of study within the Biology major that best prepares them for their chosen professional school.

#### Molecular and Cellular Biology Emphasis

An emphasis in molecular and cellular biology (MCB) provides a student with a broad understanding of biological principles while focusing on cellular and subcellular biology. An emphasis in MCB can prepare students for entry-level careers or graduate/professional studies in the health professions, biotechnology and pharmaceutical industry, higher education, government, and many other areas. These include traditional graduate programs in the biological sciences as well as Professional Science Masters degree (PSM) programs for those interested in leadership roles in biotech/pharma companies. Recommended upperdivision biology courses include Molecular Biology (BIOL 482), Techniques in Molecular Biology (BIOL 330), Cell Physiology with Lab (BIOL 480 & BIOL 480L), Immunology (BIOL 484), Microbiology (BIOL 342), Electron Microscopy (BIOL 432), Animal Development (BIOL 376), and Biostatistics (BIOL 301). Addition of Biochemistry (CHEM 331) and Biochemistry Laboratory (CHEM 335) should also be considered. Students with an interest in physiology should also consider taking Plant Physiology (BIOL 472), Invertebrate Physiology (BIOL 477), and/or Vertebrate Physiology (BIOL 478). MCB students should also consider taking additional mathematics and a basic computer programming course. Biology majors pursuing this emphasis can meet their Research Experience requirement by participating in research in the lab of a Biology or Biochemistry faculty member with a research program in these areas, or in the lab of an off-campus researcher through our internship program.

#### Ecology and Evolutionary Biology Emphasis

A specialization in ecology and evolution (EE) provides a broad understanding of biological principles that can be applied to a variety of career paths. Graduates may take positions with local, state and federal government agencies (wildlife and fisheries management, natural resource management, park rangers, and game wardens), enter consulting firms (environmental consulting or environmental law), or continue with graduate studies for an academic career at colleges, universities, museums, or other research organizations such as zoological parks and aquariums. Students will have the option of tailoring their course and lab requirements to emphasize animal, plant, or ecological studies with an emphasis on field studies. Recommended upper-level division course include: Plant Systematics and Evolution (BIOL 344), Vertebrate Natural History (BIOL 346), Insect Biology (BIOL 348), Conservation Biology (BIOL 364), Desert Biology (BIOL 340), Ecological Communities of San Diego BIOL 361), Insect Biology (BIOL 348), Population Biology (BIOL 416), and Biological Oceanography (BIOL 451W). Students with a particular interest in comparative physiology should take courses in Invertebrate Physiology (BIOL 477), Plant Physiology (BIOL 472), and Vertebrate Physiology (BIOL 478). Students interested in environmental consulting should consider taking courses in Geographic Information Systems (EOSC 314) and (EOSC 415). All students pursuing an EE path should take Biostatistics (BIOL 301). Biology majors pursuing this emphasis can meet their Research Experience requirement by engaging in research in the lab of a Biology or Marine Science faculty member with a research program in these areas, or in the lab of an off-campus researcher through our internship

#### Marine Biology Emphasis

Developing an emphasis in marine biology is ideal for those planning to focus on the biological dimension of life in the sea, either in preparation for graduate school or for a career in the care or study of marine life. In addition to the general program, Biostatistics (BIOL 301), Vertebrate Natural History (BIOL 346), Invertebrate Zoology (BIOL 350), and Biological Oceanography (BIOL 451W) are recommended. Students with an interest in marine biology should also consider including courses from the Environmental and Ocean Sciences (EOSC) Department to complement their foundation in general biology. This program also offers a major in Environmental and Ocean Sciences, with a pathway in Marine Ecology. A minor in Environmental and Ocean Sciences is recommended for those students interested in field applications in biology that include a

marine element. Biology majors pursuing this emphasis can meet their Research Experience requirement by engaging in research in the lab of a Biology or EOSC faculty member with a research program in this area, or in the lab of an off-campus researcher through our internship program.

# The Biology Major

### Preparation for the Major

Code	Title	Units
BIOL 240	Bioenergetics and Systems	4
& 240L	and Bioenergetics and Systems Laboratory	
BIOL 242	Genomes and Evolution	4
& 242L	and Genomes and Evolution Laboratory	
CHEM 151	General Chemistry I	4
& 151L	and General Chemistry I Laboratory	
CHEM 152	General Chemistry II	4
& 152L	and General Chemistry II Laboratory	
CHEM 301	Organic Chemistry I	4
& 301L	and Organic Chemistry I Laboratory	
MATH 130	Survey of Calculus	3-4
or MATH 150	Calculus I	
or MATH 151	Calculus II	
PHYS 136	General Physics I	4
& 136L	and General Physics I Lab	
PHYS 137	General Physics II	4
& 137L	and General Physics II Lab	
Total Units		31-32

M : D : .

#### **Major Requirements**

A minimum of 28 Upper-Division Units in biology is required. These must include:

Code	Title	Units
Required Cours	ses	
BIOL 300	Genetics	3
BIOL 305	Ecology	3
BIOL 309	Research Methods	2
BIOL 495	Biology Capstone Seminar <sup>1</sup>	2
Research Exper	rience	
Select one of the	e following:	3-4
BIOL 490	Research Project	
BIOL 491	Science in the Public Domain	
BIOL 496	Research <sup>2</sup>	
BIOL 498	Research Internship <sup>2</sup>	
<b>Upper Division</b>	Units	14
Total Units		27-28

- following completion of the Research Experience
- BIOL 496 Research for three units over at least two semesters or BIOL 498 Research Internship for three units over at least two semesters

Students may choose elective courses according to their interests for the remainder of their upper-division units, but these must include a minimum of three laboratory classes (the Research Experience does not count as one of the three). At least 16 of the upper-division units for the major must be completed at USD.

& 136L CC or electives

	ed Program of Study, Biology		Semester II BIOL electives		4-8
Freshman Year			PHYS 137	General Physics II	4-6
Semester I		Units	& 137L	Seneral Lilysies II	
Preceptorial		3	CC or electives		3-6
Select one of the followers	•	4	Senior Year		
BIOL 240 & 240L	Bioenergetics and Systems		Semester I		
BIOL 242	Genomes and Evolution		Select one or bo	th of the following:	2-8
& 242L	Genomes and Evolution		BIOL 495	Biology Capstone Seminar	
Select one of the fo	llowing:	3-4	BIOL electiv	*	
CHEM 151	General Chemistry I		CC or electives		3-6
& 151L	•		Semester II		
MATH 130	Survey of Calculus			th of the following:	2-8
or 150	Calculus I		BIOL 495	Biology Capstone Seminar	2 0
CC or electives		3-4	BIOL electiv		
Semester II			CC or electives		3-6
Select one of the fo	llowing:	4	CC of electives		5 0
BIOL 240	Bioenergetics and Systems		Recomm	nended Program of	
& 240L				tegrated Teacher Preparation	2
BIOL 242	Genomes and Evolution		Dua ayan	(ITOD) Dathing	,
& 242L			Program	n (ITPP) Pathway	
Select one of the fo	· ·	3-4		eacher Preparation Program (ITPP) provides paths to 4-year	
CHEM 152 & 152L	General Chemistry II			n degrees that include a teaching credential and preparation abject Examination for Teachers (CSET). Students who are	
MATH 130	Survey of Calculus			Idle or secondary education (grades 6-12) in California ma	
or 150	Calculus I			biology while simultaneously completing requirements for	
CC or electives		3-6		ial. The degree integrates content knowledge and laborato liscipline, evidence-based teaching/learning theories, teach	
Sophomore Year			•	pectations, and pre-student teaching clinical practice while	_
Semester I				aureate degree requirements and CTC single subject crede	
Select one or two of	f the following:	3		ds. There is some flexibility to meet individual needs. Stud	
BIOL 300	Genetics		_	o consult the ITPP website (http://www.sandiego.edu/itpp	
BIOL 305	Ecology		advisors (itpp@s	sandiego.edu) to ensure that their needs and interests will be	oe met.
BIOL 309	Research Methods		In addition to all	courses for the biology major, students completing the IT	PP
Select one of the fo	llowing:	4	pathway must al	so take the following:	
CHEM 151	General Chemistry I		Code	Title	Uni
& 151L			EOSC 110	Introduction to Geosciences	4
CHEM 301	Organic Chemistry I		EDUC 332P	Curriculum and Methods of Teaching in Today's Glol	
& 301L			EDUC 332F	Secondary Classrooms	uai 3
CC or electives		6-9	EDUC 334P	Methods of Teaching Literacy in Secondary Schools	ina 3
Semester II				Global Society	
Select two of the fo	llowing:	5-6	EDUC 337P	Foundations in Curriculum and Instruction Theory:	3
BIOL 300	Genetics			Secondary Praxis in Historical Context	
BIOL 305	Ecology		EDUC 381C	Multicultural and Philosophical Foundations in a Glo	bal 3
BIOL 309	Research Methods			Society	
CHEM 152 & 152L	General Chemistry II	4	EDUC 382	Psychological Foundations of Education in a Diverse Society	3
CC or electives		3-6	EDUC 384C	Methods of Teaching English Language and Academi	ic 3
Junior Year				Development in Crosscultural Contexts	
Semester I			EDUC 491P	Student Teaching for the Single Subject Credential	9
BIOL electives		4-8	EDUC 491S	Student Teaching Seminar for the Single Subject	3
PHYS 136	General Physics I	4		Credential	
₽- 126I	V =	•			

3-6

Units 4

BIOL 498 is limited to three units. Courses for the minor should be selected with

EDSP 389P	Healthy Environments and Inclusive Education in a Global Society	3	Junior Year		
Total Units	Global Society	37	Semester I		
Total Clits		31	BIOL electives		4-8
in a rigid sense. E	adigm is included as a guide only, and should not be inter Elective courses may be taken at any time as long as the co	_	PHYS 136 & 136L	General Physics I	4
prerequisites have	been satisfied.		CC or Electives		3-6
Freshman Year			Semester II BIOL electives		4.0
Semester I		Units	PHYS 137	General Physics II	4-8 4
Select one of the	following:	4	& 137L	General Physics II	4
BIOL 240 & 240L	Bioenergetics and Systems		EDUC 332P	Curriculum and Methods of Teaching in Today's Global Secondary Classrooms	3
BIOL 242 & 242L	Genomes and Evolution		EDUC 384C	Methods of Teaching English Language and Academic Development in Crosscultural	3
Select one of the	following:	4		Contexts	
CHEM 151	General Chemistry I		CC or Electives		3-6
& 151L			Semester III (S	ummer)	
CC or Electives		6-9	CC or Electives		6
Semester II			Senior Year		
Select one of the	following:	4	Semester I		
BIOL 240 & 240L	Bioenergetics and Systems		EDUC 334P	Methods of Teaching Literacy in Secondary Schools in a Global Society	3
BIOL 242 & 242L	Genomes and Evolution		EDUC 491P	Student Teaching for the Single Subject Credential	9
Select one of the	following:	4	EDUC 491S	Student Teaching Seminar for the Single Subject	3
CHEM 152	General Chemistry II			Credential	
& 152L			Semester II		
CC or Electives		6-9	Select one or bo	th of the following:	2-8
Semester III (Su	mmer)		BIOL 495	Biology Capstone Seminar	
EOSC 110	Introduction to Geosciences	4	BIOL elective	es	
MATH 130 or 150	Survey of Calculus Calculus I	3-4	CC or Electives		6-8
Sophomore Year	r		1 Students mu	st complete the full year of General Biology with lab at	
Semester I			`	OL 240/240L/242/242L) or at SDCCD (as BIOL 210AB. Pa	
Select one of the	following:	3-4		will not be permitted (taking Bio 210A at SDCCD and either 40L or 242/242L at USD).	r
BIOL 300	Genetics		BIOL 240/2	40L 01 242/242L at 03D).	
BIOL 305	Ecology		The Biolo	ogy Minor	
CHEM 301	Organic Chemistry I			Requirements	
& 301L	Multicultural and Dhilosophical Foundations in a	2	Code	Title	Units
EDUC 381C	Multicultural and Philosophical Foundations in a Global Society	3	BIOL 240	Bioenergetics and Systems	4
CC or Electives	•	6-9	& 240L	and Bioenergetics and Systems Laboratory	
Semester II			BIOL 242	Genomes and Evolution	4
Select one of the	following:	3	& 242L	and Genomes and Evolution Laboratory	
BIOL 300	Genetics		10 units of upper	r division Biology that must include:	
BIOL 305	Ecology		BIOL 300	Genetics	3
EDUC 382	Psychological Foundations of Education in a Diverse Society	3	and/or BIOL 305	Ecology	3
CC or Electives		6-9	Note: All upper-	division biology courses require BIOL 300 or BIOL 305 or	
Semester III (Su	mmer)			sites; CHEM 301 is a prerequisite for some upper-division	
EDSP 389P	Healthy Environments and Inclusive Education	3	biology courses.	For the biology minor, total credit for BIOL 496, BIOL 497 ited to three units. Courses for the minor should be selected	

3

in a Global Society

CC or Electives

the aid of a biology faculty advisor. At least four units of upper-division biology must be taken at USD.

#### **BIOL 101 | SURVEY OF BIOLOGY**

**Units: 3-4** 

#### Core Attributes: Life Science-Pre F17 CORE

A one-semester course in the general concepts of biology providing the non-major with an overview of the living world and the principles of life processes. BIOL 101 is lecture only, 111 is two hours of lecture per week and one laboratory every other week.

# BIOL 102 | ECOLOGY AND ENVIRONMENTAL BIOLOGY Units: 3

Investigation of the natural environment and the relationship of its biotic and abiotic components. Topics will include the ecosystem concept, population growth and regulation, and our modification of the environment. BIOL 102 is lecture only, 112 is two hours of lecture per week and one laboratory every other week. Laboratory will include field trips, one of which will be an all-day weekend trip to the desert. Cross-listed as ENVI 102.

#### **BIOL 103 | PLANTS AND PEOPLE**

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Life Science-Pre F17 CORE

A one-semester course about humans and their knowledge, uses, and abuses of plants. The biology of plants, selected protists, and fungi are considered from a scientific viewpoint; included are ecology, anatomy, morphology, physiology, taxonomy, and biotechnology. These organisms are also considered with regard to resource utilization and agriculture: the uses and abuses of plants for fibers; foods; beverages; medicinals and other ends occupy the majority of the course. BIOL 103 is lecture only, 113 is two hours of lecture per week and one laboratory every other week.

#### BIOL 104 | TOPICS IN HUMAN BIOLOGY

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Life Science-Pre F17 CORE

This is a course in general biology with a human emphasis for non-majors. The general principles of evolution, genetics, biochemistry, and physiology are illustrated by reference to normal and abnormal human body function. Behavioral biology and ecology are also treated from a primarily human viewpoint. BIOL 104 is lecture only, 114 is two hours of lecture per week and one laboratory every other week.

#### **BIOL 108 | BIOLOGY OF BIRDS**

#### Units: 3

This integrated lab and lecture course covers a wide variety of subjects related to birds. The lecture addresses their evolution and ecology, their anatomy and physiology, and their behavior, especially during reproduction. The laboratory portion of the course illustrates the unique anatomy of birds and explains how they are classified, but most of the laboratories comprise a series of field trips to different local habitats to identify the large variety of avian species in San Diego. One field trip may be overnight to the desert. Two hours of lecture and one hour of laboratory weekly.

#### **BIOL 110 | LIFE SCIENCE FOR EDUCATORS**

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Life Science-Pre F17 CORE

A one-semester course in the general concepts of biology tailored for the liberal studies major. The course is designed to meet the subject matter requirement in life science for the Multiple Subject Teaching Credential. Topics covered include an overview of the scientific method, biochemical molecules, cell structure and function, anatomy and physiology of animals and plants, genetics, evolution, and ecology. Field trips and laboratory assignments will provide experience with selected biological principles and practices. Students majoring in liberal studies cannot take this course pass/fail. Two hours of lecture and one laboratory weekly.

#### **BIOL 111 | SURVEY OF BIOLOGY WITH LAB**

**Units: 3-4** 

#### Core Attributes: Lab, Life Science-Pre F17 CORE

A one-semester course in the general concepts of biology providing the non-major with an overview of the living world and the principles of life processes. BIOL 101 is lecture only, 111 is two hours of lecture per week and one laboratory every other week.

# BIOL 112 | ECOLOGY AND ENVIRONMENTAL BIOLOGY WITH LAB Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area, Lab

Investigation of the natural environment and the relationship of its biotic and abiotic components. Topics will include the ecosystem concept, population growth and regulation, and our modification of the environment. Laboratory will include field trips, including a possible overnight trip to the desert.

#### **BIOL 113 | PLANTS AND PEOPLE**

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Science/Tech Inquiry area

What are the major ways that plants and plant products contribute to human life and how have humans modified plants and their environments? Biology 113, Plants and People, is a one-semester course (Science and Technological Inquiry Core Area) that endeavors to answer these questions. It is about humans and their knowledge, uses, and abuses of plants. The biology of plants is considered from a scientific viewpoint; drawing on topics of anatomy, morphology, physiology, ecology, evolution, taxonomy, and biotechnology. The basis of this course is science literacy, defined as citizen-level fluency for comprehending the process through which science's way of knowing brings understanding of the natural world. 4 units: 3 hours of lecture and one 4-hour lab, weekly.

### BIOL 114 | TOPICS IN HUMAN BIOLOGY WITH LAB

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Life Science-Pre F17 CORE

This is a course in general biology with a human emphasis for non-majors. The general principles of evolution, genetics, biochemistry, and physiology are illustrated by reference to normal and abnormal human body function. Behavioral biology and ecology are also treated from a primarily human viewpoint. 104 is lecture only, 114 is two hours of lecture per week and one laboratory every other week

#### BIOL 115 | PHYSIOLOGY OF EXERCISE WITH LAB

Units: 4

#### Core Attributes: Life Science-Pre F17 CORE

A study of human physiology and how the body accommodates physical exercise. Training procedures, health, and importance of nutrition and ergogenic aids are emphasized. PHYS 105 is lecture only for 3 units, 115 is three hours of lecture and one laboratory weekly.

# BIOL 116 | EARTH AND LIFE SCIENCE FOR EDUCATORS Units: 3

A laboratory/lecture/discussion class in the general concepts of earth science and life science for Liberal Studies majors. The course topics are selected to satisfy the earth and life science specifications for the science content standards for California Public Schools and the Multiple Subject Teaching Credential. Laboratory activities and field trips will provide experience with selected principles and relate them to suggested teaching practice at the K-8 grade level. Two two-hour laboratory sessions per week. Spring semester.

#### **BIOL 118 | PEOPLES, PLAGUES AND MICROBES**

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Science/Tech Inquiry area

An introduction to the infectious microbes that have caused major plagues throughout human history. This non-majors course will examine epidemics that have decimated populations across entire continents and consider the resulting reverberations that continue to shape modern society. Special attention will be devoted to the evolution of pathogenic microbes that cause infectious disease. The laboratory experience will train students in microscopy and aseptic techniques while providing an opportunity to apply the scientific method in a study of microorganisms.

#### **BIOL 190 | INTRODUCTION TO EVOLUTION**

**Units: 3-4** 

#### Core Attributes: Life Science-Pre F17 CORE

This one semester foundation course for biology majors provides an introduction to the mechanisms of inheritance, evolution, and ecology. Three hours of lecture weekly. No prerequisite. Offered every semester.

### BIOL 212 | ANATOMY AND PHYSIOLOGY I

#### Units: 4

A two-semester course on the fundamentals of human anatomy and physiology. The biological function and structure of the cells, tissues, and major organ systems in the body will be covered, along with basic concepts of chemistry and physics. The course will also cover the pathological conditions that are most often seen by medical personnel, and will discuss how the loss of homeostasis leads to pathology or disease. BIOL 212 is the prerequisite for BIOL 213, and this combination is intended to meet the requirements of students preparing for allied health occupations. This course will not satisfy Core Life Science requirement or requirements for a major or minor in biology. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory weekly.

#### BIOL 213 | ANATOMY AND PHYSIOLOGY II

Units: 4

Prerequisites: BIOL 212

A two-semester course on the fundamentals of human anatomy and physiology. The biological function and structure of the cells, tissues, and major organ systems in the body will be covered, along with basic concepts of chemistry and physics. The course will also cover the pathological conditions that are most often seen by medical personnel, and will discuss how the loss of homeostasis leads to pathology or disease. BIOL 212 is the prerequisite for BIOL 213, and this combination is intended to meet the requirements of students preparing for allied health occupations. This course will not satisfy Core Life Science requirement or requirements for a major or minor in biology. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory weekly.

#### **BIOL 221 | INTRODUCTION TO ORGANISMAL DIVERSITY**

**Units: 3-4** 

Core Attributes: Life Science-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: BIOL 190

This one-semester foundation course for biology majors provides an introduction to the major groups of organisms with an emphasis on their structure, function, and evolutionary relationships. Three hours of lecture weekly. Concurrent registration in BIOL 221L is strongly recommended.

#### BIOL 221L | INTRODUCTION TO ORGANISMAL DIVERSITY LAB

Units: 1

Core Attributes: Lab Prerequisites: BIOL 190

A laboratory course to complement the lecture material presented in BIOL 221.

#### **BIOL 225 | INTRODUCTION TO CELL PROCESSES**

**Units: 3-4** 

#### Core Attributes: Life Science-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: BIOL 190 and CHEM 151 (Can be taken Concurrently) and CHEM 151L (Can be taken Concurrently)

This one-semester foundation course for biology majors provides an introduction to the concepts of structure and function in biological systems at the molecular and cellular level. The topics of cell structure and function, biological macromolecules, respiration, photosynthesis, molecular biology, and selected areas of physiology are covered with emphasis on regulatory mechanisms. Three hours of lecture weekly. Concurrent registration in BIOL 225L is strongly recommended.

#### BIOL 225L | INTRODUCTION TO CELL PROCESSES LABORATORY

Units: 1

Core Attributes: Lab

Prerequisites: BIOL 190 and BIOL 225 (Can be taken Concurrently) and CHEM 151 (Can be taken Concurrently) and CHEM 151L (Can be taken Concurrently)

A laboratory course to complement the lecture material presented in BIOL 225.

#### **BIOL 240 | BIOENERGETICS AND SYSTEMS**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Science/Tech Inquiry area

This one-semester course for biology majors provides an introduction to the mechanisms of energy flow within cells and between organisms and the environment. Lecture topics will include cellular respiration and photosynthesis, organismal physiology and locomotion, and ecological interactions. Concurrent registration in 240L is strongly recommended, and required for Core credit. Offered every semester.

#### BIOL 240L | BIOENERGETICS AND SYSTEMS LABORATORY

Units: 1 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area

This one-semester course for biology majors provides an introduction to the mechanisms of energy flow within cells and between organisms and the environment. The laboratory will include inquiry into the mechanisms of physiology, including testing novel hypotheses concerning bioenergetics. Concurrent registration in 240 is strongly recommended, and required for Core credit. Offered every semester.

#### **BIOL 242 | GENOMES AND EVOLUTION**

Units: 3-4 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area

This one-semester course for biology majors provides an introduction to the mechanisms of information flow through organisms and their lineages. Lecture topics will include the use and change of hereditary information in DNA, the mechanisms of evolution, and the relationships among major groups of organisms. Concurrent registration in 242L is strongly recommended, and required for Core credit. Offered every semester.

#### BIOL 242L | GENOMES AND EVOLUTION LABORATORY

Units: 1 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area

This one-semester course for biology majors provides an introduction to the mechanisms of information flow through organisms and their lineages. The laboratory will include inquiry into the structure and function of DNA, and testing hypotheses of evolution and phylogeny. Concurrent registration in 242 is strongly recommended, and is required for Core credit. Offered every semester.

#### BIOL 294 | HEREDITY AND GENE ACTION

**Units: 1-4 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

#### **BIOL 300 | GENETICS**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (BIOL 225 and BIOL 225L) or (BIOL 240 and BIOL 240L and BIOL 242 and BIOL 242L) and (CHEM 151 and CHEM 151L)

A general course covering the mechanisms of inheritance at the molecular, organismal, and populational levels. Elementary probability and statistical methodology appropriate for the analysis of various genetic systems are introduced. Three hours of lecture weekly.

#### **BIOL 301 | BIOSTATISTICS**

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (BIOL 221 and BIOL 221L and BIOL 225 and BIOL 225L) or (BIOL 240 and BIOL 240L and BIOL 242 and BIOL 242L)

An introduction to data analysis and statistical testing. This course will prepare students for their upper division courses and independent research by teaching them the basics of hypothesis testing and the most common statistical tests used in biology. It will also cover basic experimental design, teach students how to use modern computer software for data management, graphical presentation, and statistical tests. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory weekly.

#### **BIOL 305 | ECOLOGY**

#### Units: 3-4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 240 and BIOL 240L and (BIOL 242 and BIOL 242L or BIOL 225 and BIOL 225L)

A study of the distribution and abundance of organisms. This survey course will include a discussion of the physical environment, biogeography, and ecosystems. Community and population ecology will also be addressed, and quantitative approaches will be emphasized. Field trips may be required. Environmental and Ocean Science majors may substitute EOSC 301W for BIOL 305.

#### **BIOL 309 | RESEARCH METHODS**

#### Units: 2 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (BIOL 221 and BIOL 221L and BIOL 225 and BIOL 225L) or (BIOL 240 and BIOL 240L and BIOL 242 and BIOL 242L)

Development of basic methods and skills common to all research in Biology. Topics include use of literature, hypothesis formation and hypothesis testing with statistical inference, and critical evaluation of data. Offered every semester.

#### **BIOL 310 | EVOLUTION**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 300 and (BIOL 305 or EOSC 301W)

A study of the fundamental concepts of evolution. The nature of variation, isolation, natural selection, and speciation will be discussed. Special topics include molecular, behavioral, developmental, and human evolution. Three hours of lecture per week.

# BIOL 320 | COMPARATIVE ANATOMY OF VERTEBRATES Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 305 or EOSC 301W

The evolution of vertebrates is one of the most compelling stories in comparative biology. For millions of years vertebrates have flourished in the seas and on land by employing a variety of morphological specializations for feeding, locomotion, and reproduction. Yet, all vertebrates retain similarities in their design regardless of how structural components function in different lineages and environments. This course examines the shared and transformed anatomical attributes among vertebrates in the context of function and phylogenetic history. We pursue that objective by integrating lecture discussions with laboratory observations and directions. Two hours of lecture and two laboratories weekly.

#### BIOL 330 | TECHNIQUES IN MOLECULAR BIOLOGY

#### Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Community Service Learning**

Prerequisites: BIOL 190 and BIOL 225 and BIOL 225L

An introduction to recombinant DNA techniques including bacterial culture, transformation, nucleic acid purification, restriction analysis, DNA cloning, polymerase chain reaction, etc. Computer-based sequence analyses include database accession, BLAST, alignments, restriction analysis, gene-finding, and genomics. A cloning project generating new molecular reagents will be undertaken. 80 min of lecture and one 4-hour laboratory weekly. Completion of CHEM 301/301L is recommended.

#### **BIOL 332 | BIOCHEMISTRY II**

#### Units: 3

# Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE, Writing-Pre F17 CORE, Life Science-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: CHEM 331

This course advances the fundamental concepts of macromolecules, structure/ function paradigms, enzyme mechanism & activity and metabolism gained in CHEM 331. We will study metabolic homeostasis, integrating anabolic/catabolic pathways and energy flux with nutrition/nutrient intake of essential and non-essential molecules. Regulatory control through allosteric, transcriptional/ translational, and post-translational mechanisms will be examined as part of maintaining metabolic homeostasis. Where relevant, disease and pathology will be used to highlight these concepts. We will study signal transduction to address the flow of information within a system. As a capstone to our indepth study of biochemistry, we will examine cross-disciplinary applications of core biochemical concepts (structure/function, homeostasis, energy flow and information flow) in the context of systems biology, chemical biology and synthetic biology.

#### **BIOL 340 | DESERT BIOLOGY**

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 305 or EOSC 301W

This course provides an introduction to the formation and climate of the local Colorado Desert and the evolution, ecology, physiological adaptations, and relationships of the organisms found there. The lab portion includes five days hiking and camping in Anza Borrego Desert State Park during Spring Break, where the floral and faunal communities of several habitat types will be studied through trapping, tracking, and experiment. Two hours of lecture and two laboratories weekly.

#### **BIOL 342 | MICROBIOLOGY**

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 300

An introduction to the microbial world, with emphasis given to bacteria, archaea and viruses. The diversity of prokaryotes is surveyed with particular attention devoted to differences in cell physiology, energy metabolism and ecology. Interactions between humans and microbial pathogens are also examined. The laboratory stresses techniques in light microscopy and procedures used to culture and characterize microorganisms. Two hours of lecture and two laboratories weekly.

#### BIOL 344 | PLANT SYSTEMATICS AND EVOLUTION

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 305 or EOSC 301W

An introduction to the study of plant diversity. The evolution and relationships of plants are examined from the perspective of geological and ecological history. Significant plant groups will be discussed, with special emphasis on the flowering plants. Field identification of plant families will be emphasized in the laboratory sessions. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory weekly.

#### **BIOL 346 | VERTEBRATE NATURAL HISTORY**

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 305 or EOSC 301W

A course in the biology of vertebrates. Although vertebrate structure, function, and development are studied, emphasis is on the behavior, evolution, and interaction of the vertebrate organism as a whole, or at the population level. Techniques of identification and study are covered in the laboratory and field. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory or field trip weekly.

#### BIOL 347 | AVIAN BIOLOGY Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Lab

Prerequisites: BIOL 305 or EOSC 301W

An introduction to the biology of birds, including their evolution, physiology (particularly those areas associated with flight), vocalizations, navigation, reproduction, and ecology including conservation. The laboratory will include several field trips (including one overnight trip to the mountains and desert) for bird identification and will include a project designed by the student. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory weekly.

#### **BIOL 348 | INSECT BIOLOGY**

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 305 or EOSC 301W

An introduction to the biology of insects, including their identification, evolution, structure, function, physiology, ecology, behavior, and conservation. The course includes compilation of an extensive insect collection and an overnight field trip to the desert. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory weekly.

#### **BIOL 350 | INVERTEBRATE ZOOLOGY**

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 305 or EOSC 301W

A survey of the invertebrate animals with emphasis on evolutionary relationships among the groups as expressed by their morphology and physiology. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory weekly.

# BIOL 361 | ECOLOGICAL COMMUNITIES OF SAN DIEGO COUNTY Units: 2 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 305 or EOSC 301W

A general survey of the ecological communities of San Diego County will acquaint students with local marine, freshwater, chaparral, and desert habitats. The course is primarily field study, and one overnight trip to the desert will be included. Identification of organisms and their ecological relationships will be stressed. One laboratory weekly.

#### **BIOL 364 | CONSERVATION BIOLOGY**

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 305 or EOSC 301W

Lectures address conservation topics from historical, legal, theoretical, and practical perspectives. The laboratory includes discussions of classic and current literature, student presentations, computer simulations of biological phenomena, analysis of data, and field trips to biological preserves, habitat restoration sites, and captive breeding facilities. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory weekly.

#### BIOL 376 | ANIMAL DEVELOPMENT

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 300

This course explores embryonic development emphasizing mechanisms of differential gene expression and pattern formation at a cellular, molecular, and genetic level. Vertebrate and invertebrate model organisms (e.g., Xenopus, Drosophila, Caenorhabditis) that illustrate common developmental mechanisms will be examined in detail. In laboratory, living embryos and prepared slides will be studied, and molecular techniques will be employed to identify genes and examine gene expression. Three hours lecture and one laboratory weekly.

#### **BIOL 416 | POPULATION BIOLOGY**

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (BIOL 305 or EOSC 301W) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

The mechanisms of evolution and the dynamics of ecosystems are studied through the development of mathematical and computer models. The mathematics and computer programming experience required in this course beyond the level of MATH 130 (Survey of Calculus) will be introduced as needed. Research techniques used in investigating population phenomena are emphasized. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory weekly. Biostatistics is highly recommended. Fall semester.

#### **BIOL 432 | ELECTRON MICROSCOPY**

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 300 and (BIOL 309 or EOSC 301W)

An introduction to the theory, development, and operation of the electron microscope, with emphasis on development of knowledge of cellular fine structure. The laboratory portion of the course will focus on tissue preparation, microscope operation, and evaluation and presentation of electron microscopic data. Two hours of lecture and two laboratories weekly.

#### BIOL 438 | ANIMAL BEHAVIORAL ECOLOGY WITH LAB Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 300 or BIOL 305 or EOSC 300 (Can be taken Concurrently) This course examines the evolution of animal behavior in an ecological context. Topics include economic decision making, co-evolutionary arms races, competition, aggression, biological rhythms, group living, sexual and family conflict, parental care, mating systems, cooperation, and communication. This course explores questions in behavioral ecology using basic concepts and theory, as well as model-based, comparative, and experimental approaches. The inquiry-based lab introduces methods commonly used in behavioral ecology and allows students to test their own hypotheses within the framework of prescribed field and laboratory exercises. Cross-listed as EOSC 438. Students may not receive credit for taking both BIOL 438 and BIOL 439 or for taking both BIOL 438 and PSYC 344.

#### **BIOL 439 | ANIMAL BEHAVIORAL ECOLOGY**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 300 or BIOL 305 or EOSC 300 (Can be taken Concurrently) This course examines the evolution of animal behavior in an ecological context. Topics include economic decision making, co-evolutionary arms races, competition, aggression, biological rhythms, group living, sexual and family conflict, parental care, mating systems, cooperation, and communication. This course explores questions in behavioral ecology using basic concepts and theory, as well as model-based, comparative, and experimental approaches. Cross-listed as EOSC 439. Students may not receive credit for taking both BIOL 439 and BIOL 438 or BIOL 439 and PSYC 344.

#### BIOL 451W | BIOLOGICAL OCEANOGRAPHY

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

#### **Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE**

Prerequisites: BIOL 309 or EOSC 301W

An integrated study of marine organisms and their environments, stressing ecological, behavioral, and physiological relationships. Nearshore, deep sea, and open ocean environments will be covered. A weekend field trip may be required. Cross-listed as EOSC 451W.

#### **BIOL 462 | BIOLOGY OF FISHES**

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (EOSC 300 (Can be taken Concurrently) and EOSC 301W (Can be taken Concurrently)) or BIOL 305  $\,$ 

This course examines the various aspects of ichthyology encompassing the anatomy, physiology, ecology, evolution, ethology, and natural history of fishes. Lab includes techniques of identification and a general survey of fish systematics and zoogeography. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory per week. Crosslisted with EOSC 462.

#### **BIOL 465 | MARINE MAMMALS**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: EOSC 300 (Can be taken Concurrently) or BIOL 305

An examination of the biology of whales, pinnipeds and other marine mammals.

Topics will include general adaptations to a marine existence; systematics and biogeography; reproduction; diving physiology; communication and echolocation; feeding and migratory behavior; and marine mammal-human interactions.

Some emphasis will be placed on species occurring in the North Pacific Ocean.

Necropsies of a beach-stranded marine mammal may occur. Special projects will

also be assigned. Cross-listed with EOSC 465.

#### **BIOL 472 | PLANT PHYSIOLOGY**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 300 and CHEM 151 and CHEM 152

Corequisites: BIOL 472L

An introduction to the basic processes occurring in vascular plants. Movement of water and solutes; photosynthesis and respiration; plant growth and development, including plant hormones and growth regulators; and plant reactions to environmental stress will be studied. Three hours of lecture weekly.

#### BIOL 472L | PLANT PHYSIOLOGY LAB

#### Units: 1 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 300 and CHEM 151 and CHEM 152

Corequisites: BIOL 472

A laboratory investigation of the topics introduced in the Plant Physiology lecture. Coregistration in BIOL 472 is required.

#### **BIOL 477 | INVERTEBRATE PHYSIOLOGY**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 300

The study of key physiological systems of invertebrate organisms with an emphasis on metabolism, respiration, osmoregulation, thermal relations, membrane, and neural physiology. The function of these systems will be examined by comparing invertebrates from various taxonomic groups and diverse habitats. Three hours of lecture weekly.

#### BIOL 477L | INVERTEBRATE PHYSIOLOGY LAB

Units: 1 Repeatability: No Core Attributes: Lab Prerequisites: BIOL 300 Corequisites: BIOL 477

Laboratory-based study of several physiological systems of invertebrate organisms. Both traditional and recently developed techniques will be employed to demonstrate the functioning and integrative nature of these systems. One laboratory weekly. Concurrent registration in BIOL 477 is required. Offered every Fall semester.

#### **BIOL 478 | VERTEBRATE PHYSIOLOGY**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No Prerequisites: BIOL 300

A detailed comparative examination of life processes in animals. Particular focus will be upon energy utilization, gas transport, kidney function, and muscle function of organisms from diverse habitats. Three hours of lecture weekly.

#### BIOL 478L | VERTEBRATE PHYSIOLOGY LAB

Units: 1 Repeatability: No Core Attributes: Lab Prerequisites: BIOL 300 Corequisites: BIOL 478

An intensive exploration in a research setting of metabolic pathways, temperature acclimation, gas exchange, and ion regulation in a variety of vertebrate animals. One laboratory weekly. Concurrent registration in BIOL 478 is required. Offered every Spring semester.

#### BIOL 478W | VERTEBRATE PHYSIOLOGY WITH LAB

Units: 4

#### **Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE**

Prerequisites: BIOL 190 and BIOL 225 and BIOL 225L and BIOL 221 and BIOL 221L and BIOL 300  $\,$ 

#### **BIOL 480 | CELL PHYSIOLOGY**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 300 and CHEM 301

Mechanisms of cell functions are emphasized. Topics covered include: membrane structure, membrane transport, endoplasmic reticulum and Golgi functions, cell motility, energetics, mechanisms of hormone action, and control of the cell cycle. Three hours of lecture weekly.

#### BIOL 480L | CELL PHYSIOLOGY LAB

Units: 1 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Lab

Prerequisites: BIOL 300 Corequisites: BIOL 480

The laboratory exercises introduce the student to some of the modern methods used to study cell function. One laboratory weekly. Concurrent registration in BIOL 480 is required. Offered every Spring semester.

#### **BIOL 480W | CELL PHYSIOLOGY**

Units: 4

#### **Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE**

Prerequisites: BIOL 190 and BIOL 225 and BIOL 225L and BIOL 221 and BIOL 221L and BIOL 300 and CHEM 301  $\,$ 

#### **BIOL 482 | MOLECULAR BIOLOGY**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 300 and CHEM 301

A study of the structure and function of genes, emphasizing the understanding of gene regulation at many levels. The course will examine DNA structure and mechanics of replication, repair, transcription, and translation in prokaryotes and eukaryotes. Critical experiments will be studied to examine the development of concepts in molecular biology. Other special topics may include the molecular biology of development, cancer, HIV, and whole genome analysis. Three hours of lecture weekly.

#### **BIOL 484 | IMMUNOLOGY**

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 300

A comprehensive introduction to immunology, focusing on vertebrate immunity. Topics covered include molecular and cellular components of the immune system and their regulation, long-term protection from disease, immune response to cancer, autoimmunity, hypersensitivity, immunodeficiencies, and transplants. Laboratory exercises will introduce students to immunological techniques and their applications. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory weekly.

#### BIOL 490 | RESEARCH PROJECT

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 300 and BIOL 305 and BIOL 309

Students work on individual research projects that apply appropriate research techniques to test hypotheses. Completion of course will require oral presentation of results.

#### **BIOL 491 | SCIENCE IN THE PUBLIC DOMAIN**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 309

Students will design and implement science projects that demonstrate a basic scientific concept for elementary school students in an after school program. Students explore methods of pedagogy and the role of outreach and community service learning in communicating science. Tasks include practice grant-writing, hypothesis testing and assessment.

#### **BIOL 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN BIOLOGY**

#### **Units: 1-4 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)**

Prerequisites: BIOL 300 or BIOL 305

An in-depth evaluation of selected topics in the biological sciences. Issues of current or historical interest are addressed. May be repeated when topic changes.

#### **BIOL 495 | BIOLOGY CAPSTONE SEMINAR**

#### Units: 2 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 490 or BIOL 491 or BIOL 496 or BIOL 498

The techniques of seminar preparation, presentation, and critique will be refined through collaboration with faculty and peers, culminating with each student presenting a public seminar on their Research Experience. Enrollment for credit is limited to seniors.

#### **BIOL 496 | RESEARCH**

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Students develop and/or assist in research projects in various fields of biology working with a Biology Department faculty member. The study may involve literature searching, on and off campus research, and attendance at seminars at other leading universities and scientific institutions. Total credit in BIOL 496 is normally limited to three units.

#### **BIOL 497 | TECHNIQUES IN BIOLOGY**

#### Units: 1-2 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Training and practice in those areas of biological science of practical importance to the technician, teacher, and researcher. To include, but not be limited to: technical methodology, preparation and technique in the teaching laboratory, and routine tasks supportive to research. Total credit in BIOL 497 is limited to two units.

#### **BIOL 498 | RESEARCH INTERNSHIP**

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

This course offers experience in the practical and experimental application of biological principles. Students will be involved in research projects conducted by agencies and institutions outside the university, such as state parks, zoos, and biological industries. Enrollment is arranged on an individual basis according to a student's interest and background, and is dependent on positions available and faculty approval. A maximum of 3 upper Division Units can be earned toward fulfillment of the requirements of the major.

# **Biomedical Ethics**

## **Program Director**

Gary Jones, PhD, Philosopohy

The minor in Biomedical Ethics is designed to introduce students to ethical issues that arise in health care and health care research. The minor is an interdisciplinary program that consolidates course offerings from the Departments of Biology, Ethnic Studies, Philosophy, Psychological Sciences, and Sociology in the College of Arts and Sciences, and from the School of Business and School of Nursing.

Biomedical Ethics is a relatively new and fast-growing discipline. Students electing the minor are required to have a basic background of biology coursework, and will take a curriculum that includes 18 credit hours, beginning with a course on basic ideas and concepts in Biomedical Ethics, followed by a choice of other relevant humanities courses. The minor will be suitable for students in almost any

major, especially students pursuing further academic work or careers in medicine, law, the health or life sciences, health policy and administration, informatics or forensics.

### The Biomedical Ethics Minor

18 Units - Including 6 upper division units with GPA 2.0 or higher and grade of C- or better, 4 upper division units must be taken at USD. Courses taken in the minor may not be counted toward the major but may be used to satisfy preparation for the major and CORE Curriculum requirements.

Code	Title	Unit
Needs:		
PHIL 331	Biomedical Ethics	3
Select 3 units fro	m:	3
BIOL 101	Survey of Biology	
BIOL 104	Topics in Human Biology	
BIOL 111	Survey of Biology with Lab	
BIOL 114	Topics in Human Biology with Lab	
BIOL 190	Introduction to Evolution	
BIOL 240	Bioenergetics and Systems	
BIOL 242	Genomes and Evolution	
Select 12 upper-o	division units from:	12
COMM 340	Health Communication	
ETHN 332	American Indian Health and Spirituality	
PHIL 335	Death and Dying	
PSYC 355	Abnormal Psychology	
PSYC 357	Health Psychology	
PSYC 359D	Health Psychology of Women and Ethnic Groups	
Total Units		18

Additional courses may be used to satisfy the elective requirement in the Biomedical Ethics minor, if the focus is biomedical in nature. Examples include: BIOL 494, COMM 494, MKTG 494, PHIL 334. Consult the Program Director for information about these courses.

# **Biophysics**

See Physics and Biophysics (p. 202).

# **Changemaking**

### **Program Director**

J. Michael Williams, JD, PhD, Political Science and International Relations

## **Affiliated Faculty**

Julia Miller Cantzler, JD, PhD, Sociology

Austin Fitzpatrick, PhD, Peace Studies

Cheryl Getz, EdD, Leadership Studies

Ronald S. Kaufmann, PhD, Environmental and Ocean Sciences

Moriah Meyskens, PhD, Management

Lisa Nunn, PhD, Sociology

Emily Reimer-Barry, PhD, Theology and Religious Studies

Code

Necla Tschirgi, PhD, Peace Studies

The Changemaking minor provides students with a range of knowledge, perspectives, methodologies, and skills that will equip them well to make positive social change and to be engaged, active members of their communities. One of the goals of the minor is to provide a curriculum for students to critically understand and implement social change projects. We want our students to not only develop innovative approaches to existing problems but we also want them to develop a deep understanding of the systemic roots of these issues, as well as the ability to empathize with others. In addition, we want our students to recognize that the most urgent challenges facing our communities today are ones that impact all of us and that we are all interconnected not only with respect to the challenges but with respect to the ways of addressing them as well. Because the most important and complex issues in the 21st century will require an interdisciplinary approach in order to effectively address them, this minor provides students with classroom and practical experiences that span different schools, units, and departments at the University of San Diego.

# The Changemaking Minor

Title

Couc	Title	CIII
9 Lower Division	Units	
CHNG 101	Introduction to Changemaking	3
LEAD 160	Personal Leadership, Self-inquiry and Discovery	3
Select one of:		3
SOCI 210D	Social Justice	
SOCI 270	Law and Social Justice	
THRS 231	Christian Changemakers	
9-10 Upper Divisio	on Units	
MGMT 312	Global Social Entrepreneurship	3
Elective		3
Consult Program	n Director for course options.	
CHNG 495	Changemaking Capstone	3
Total Units		18

#### CHNG 101 | INTRODUCTION TO CHANGEMAKING

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 1

This course introduces students to ways in which individuals all over the world address social and environmental issues and their attempts to create solutions that are "more sustainable and just" than what existed. Students will gain knowledge of social innovations led by a variety of changemakers, who have sought to catalyze positive social transformations in different spheres of action across the world. The focus lies on individuals and groups with innovative endeavors and on the process for the implementation of their vision. It explores the passion, courage, empathy, and flexibility of changemakers. Questions addressed are: What motivates changemakers to pursue their visions, sometimes with relentless energy and refusing to take no for an answer? How do they navigate the process of social innovation in their own culture and in other cultures? Who do they involve in the process of achieving transformative and systematic social change? What is their personal journey?.

#### CHNG 495 | CHANGEMAKING CAPSTONE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Advanced Integration** 

Prerequisites: CHNG 101 and LEAD 160 and (SOCI 210D or SOCI 270 or THRS 231) and MGMT 312

The purpose of this course is to provide students with the opportunity to create a specific course of action to address a challenging social issue. There are four objectives of the Changemaking Capstone course. First, it provides students with the opportunity to gain practical experience with changemaking in a real-world setting. Second, it provides an opportunity for students to synthesize, integrate and apply the knowledge and skills they have acquired while pursuing the minor. Third, it offers students the opportunity to collaborate with other students, faculty, and changemakers outside of USD on their projects. And fourth, it requires students to create an original project that addresses a social issue at USD or in another community.

# **Chemistry and Biochemistry**

### Chair

Units Joseph J. Provost, PhD

### **Associate Chair**

Jeremy Kua, PhD

## **Faculty**

Anthony J. Bell, PhD

Jessica K. Bell, PhD

Lauren B. Benz, PhD

James P. Bolender, PhD

Timothy B. Clark, PhD

Christopher J. A. Daley, PhD

Tammy J. Dwyer, PhD

Eleanor I. Gillette, PhD

David O. De Haan, PhD

Thomas R. Herrinton, PhD

Peter M. Iovine, PhD

Mitchell R. Malachowski, PhD

Joan G. Schellinger, PhD

The Department of Chemistry and Biochemistry enjoys a solid reputation for providing high quality education, conducting outstanding research with faculty who strive to be the best teachers mentors for our students.

Chemistry is the study of matter and energy and the changes they undergo. It plays a key role in understanding the natural universe and in the scientific and technological revolution that has shaped modern society. Biochemistry is the study of the chemical nature and processes that occur in biological systems.

The programs offered in chemistry and biochemistry provide a strong foundation in the principles and practices of modern chemistry and biochemistry within the framework of a liberal arts education. The majors are designed to give students

both the theoretical bases of the disciplines and extensive hands-on experience testing theories in the laboratory.

We also offer courses that fulfill the science and technology portion of the core curriculum requirements. These courses are designed to acquaint students majoring outside the natural sciences with the basic principles and methods of modern science and with the history and development of scientific thought.

The American Chemical Society (ACS), a national organization that develops and administers guidelines defining high quality undergraduate chemistry and biochemistry programs, has approved USD's curriculum. This allows majors the option of enhancing their career choices by earning an ACS-certified degree.

Another professional scientific society, the American Society for Biochemistry and Molecular Biology (ASBMB) has also recognized our biochemistry program accrediting the department and the biochemistry major. Students who wish can have their degree certified by the ASBMB with a national test.

The department is distinguished by its dedication to undergraduate research and teaching. All full-time faculty members have active research programs in which undergraduates fully participate. These activities lead, in many cases, to new discoveries and publications in major scientific journals with students as coauthors.

Our students are the main users of the department's scientific instrument holdings, which include over \$2 million in state-of-the-art equipment. We regularly upgrade and add new instruments to keep abreast with new technologies, thus preparing our students for their future professional needs. Current instrumentation used in the department includes an atomic absorption facility, an NMR facility including two spectrometers (400 MHz and 500 MHz), a molecular modeling facility with dedicated workstations and software for computational chemistry, a thermogravimetric suite including a differential scanning calorimeter and gravimetric analyzer, and a laser facility. In addition, we have a single crystal x-ray diffraction system, and a spacious spectrometer facility housing UV-Vis, IR, fluorescence, circular dichroism, and gas chromatograph mass spectrometers.

A major in chemistry or biochemistry prepares a student for a variety of different career possibilities. Professional chemists and biochemists may select careers in areas such as basic or applied research, production and marketing, consulting, testing and analysis, administration, management, business enterprise, and teaching. They are employed in the chemical, pharmaceutical, petroleum, energy, engineering, and "biotech" industries; by government laboratories and agencies working on health, energy, and the environment; in consulting firms; and by educational institutions at all levels. Undergraduate training in chemistry and biochemistry provides a solid foundation for many other areas such as medicine, dentistry, veterinary medicine, pharmacy, oceanography, geochemistry, chemical engineering, forensics, environmental studies, molecular biology, and law.

Our students continue their education at prestigious graduate and medical programs throughout the country. Recent graduates have entered doctoral programs at universities such as University of California, Los Angeles, Cal Tech, MIT, Vanderbilt, Johns Hopkins, Yale and Scripps Research Institute. Other recent graduates have entered medical or pharmacy programs at institutions such as Creighton University, Thomas Jefferson University and many in the University of California system. Many of our graduates enter the workforce starting interesting and exciting careers in chemistry and biochemistry. Some of the recent companies include organizations like Pfizer, Proctor and Gamble, Pharmatek and Genomics Foundation of Novartis, to name just a few.

Two programs of study are available, differing in their focus: The chemistry major is designed to qualify students for admission to graduate school in chemistry; positions as chemists; admission to medical, dental, and pharmacy schools; or secondary teaching. The biochemistry major is designed to prepare students for graduate work in biochemistry, molecular biology, biomedical

programs, pharmacology, pharmaceutical and clinical chemistry; positions as biochemists; admission to medical, dental, and pharmacy schools; or secondary teaching.

# **Other Programs**

Several professional options are open to the chemistry major in addition to the pursuit of a career in chemistry or biochemistry.

#### Pre-Medicine/Pre-Dentistry/Pre-Pharmacy

The liberal arts curriculum provides an excellent background for graduate education in the health professions. Students planning to apply for admission to medical, dental or pharmacy schools may elect to major in any of the academic disciplines within the college, but in most cases it is advantageous to major in one of the sciences. Students may select either the chemistry or biochemistry major as preparation. The specific science courses recommended for undergraduates differ for different professional schools but should include BIOL 240, BIOL 240L, BIOL 242L. The current MCAT requires additional courses recommended by the Director of Pre-Health Advising.

# **Biochemistry**

Students who study biochemistry will experience the chemistry and molecular nature of living things. Biochemistry majors will learn the information and energy flow of cells and organisms, structure and function of biological molecules and how cells do their business.

The Biochemistry major is a dynamic mixture of foundational chemistry and biology courses and a unique mixture of advanced specialized biochemistry classes to give our students a chance to experiment in biochemistry and learn about the chemical properties of biological molecules and systems. Students in the biochemistry major are well prepared for careers in biochemistry, entry into the top graduate programs across the nation and are ready for medical school and other health professions. The biochemistry program is recognized by both the American Chemical Society (ACS) and the American Society for Biochemistry and Molecular Biology (ASBMB). Students earning a biochemistry major can have their degree certified by both the ACS and the ASBMB with the appropriate coursework.

Because biochemistry is a diverse field, students in this major are exposed to advanced biochemistry topics with additional options in chemistry, biology, biochemistry or physics. Our new hybrid laboratory course, Molecular Biology Techniques and other courses ensure our students are ready for jobs, graduate research and careers in the medical field.

# The Biochemistry Major Preparation for the Major

Code	Title	Units
CHEM 151 & 151L	General Chemistry I and General Chemistry I Laboratory	4
CHEM 152 & 152L	General Chemistry II and General Chemistry II Laboratory	4
CHEM 220	Analytical Chemistry	3
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
BIOL 240 & 240L	Bioenergetics and Systems and Bioenergetics and Systems Laboratory	4
BIOL 242 & 242L	Genomes and Evolution and Genomes and Evolution Laboratory	4

PHYS 270	Introduction to Mechanics	4
& 270L	and Mechanics Lab	
PHYS 271	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism	4
& 271L	and Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism Lab	
Total Units		35

#### Major Requirements

Code	Title	Units
BIOL 300	Genetics	3
CHEM 301 & 301L	Organic Chemistry I and Organic Chemistry I Laboratory	4
CHEM 302 & 302L	Organic Chemistry II and Organic Chemistry II Laboratory	4
CHEM 330	Techniques in Molecular Biology	3
CHEM 311 or CHEM 312	Physical Chemistry I Physical Chemistry II	3
CHEM 331	Biochemistry	3
CHEM 332	Biochemistry II	3
CHEM 396	Methods of Chemical Research	1.5
Select one elective	- see note below for list	3
CHEM 435	Biochemistry Laboratory	4
Total Units	·	31.5

Electives may be chosen upper-division chemistry courses or Biology restricted electives: BIOL 342, BIOL 376, BIOL 480, BIOL 482 or BIOL 484 or PHYS 340.

Majors must complete 31.5 units of upper division coursework in chemistry or the approved restricted electives. CHEM 496 or CHEM 498 may not be applied toward the 31.5 unit requirement. Those planning for graduate work are recommended to take additional Upper-Division Electives in chemistry, biochemistry or biology depending on the area of interest.

As written the student will earn an ASBMB certified bachelor's degree. To obtain a second certification from the ACS, biochemistry majors must complete CHEM 440, select one upper division chemistry course (as either the elective or an additional course) and complete a research report with their research mentor.

# Recommended Program of Study: Biochemistry

The following paradigm is included as a guide only, and should not be interpreted in a rigid sense. The major will is recognized and certified by the American Biochemistry and Molecular Biology Society (ASBMB) as described. Students intending to obtain an ACS-certified degree must take CHEM 440 and submit a final research report. Elective courses in chemistry and biology may be taken at any time as long as the course prerequisites have been satisfied. Students are encouraged to consult with their academic advisor to ensure that their needs and interests will be met.

#### Freshman Year

Semester I		Units
CHEM 151	General Chemistry I	4
& 151L		
MATH 150 <sup>1</sup>	Calculus I	4
BIOL 240	Bioenergetics and Systems (Or BIOL 242 with	4
& 240L	lab)	
Core or electives		4-5

Semester II		
CHEM 152	General Chemistry II	4
& 152L		
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
BIOL 242	Genomes and Evolution (Or BIOL 240 with lab)	4
& 242L		
Core or electives		3-4
Sophomore Year		
Semester I		
CHEM 301 & 301L	Organic Chemistry I	4
CHEM 220	Analytical Chemistry	3
CHEM 396	Methods of Chemical Research	1.5
Core or electives	Wethous of Chemical Research	4-5
		4-3
Semester II CHEM 302	Organia Chamiatan II	4
& 302L	Organic Chemistry II	4
PHYS 270	Introduction to Mechanics	4
& 270L		
BIOL 300	Genetics	3
Core or electives		4-5
Junior Year		
Semester I		
CHEM 331	Biochemistry	3
PHYS 271	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism	4
& 271L		
Core or electives		6-9
Semester II		
CHEM 330	Techniques in Molecular Biology	3
CHEM 312	Physical Chemistry II (or CHEM 311 in Fall Senior Year)	3
CHEM 332	Biochemistry II	3
Core or electives		6-9
Senior Year		
Semester I		
CHEM 311	Physical Chemistry I (Or CHEM 312 in Spring Junior Year)	3
CHEM 435	Biochemistry Laboratory	4
Core or electives		6-9
Semester II		
UD CHEM, BIOL of P	HYS elective	3-4
Core or electives		8-12

# Recommended Program of Study: Integrated Teacher Preparation Program (ITPP) Pathway

The Integrated Teacher Preparation Program (ITPP) provides paths to 4-year science and math degrees that include a teaching credential and preparation for the California Subject Examination for Teachers (CSET). Students who are interested in middle or secondary education (grades 6-12) in California may earn a degree in biochemistry while simultaneously completing requirements for a teaching credential. The degree integrates content knowledge and laboratory practices in the discipline, evidence-based teaching/learning theories, teaching

performance expectations, and pre-student teaching clinical practice while satisfying baccalaureate degree requirements and CTC single subject credential program standards. There is some flexibility to meet individual needs. Students are encouraged to consult the ITPP website (http://www.sandiego.edu/itpp) and advisors (itpp@sandiego.edu) to ensure that their needs and interests will be met.

In addition to all courses for the biochemistry major, students completing the ITPP pathway must also take the following:

Code	Title	Units
EOSC 110	Introduction to Geosciences	4
EDUC 332P	Curriculum and Methods of Teaching in Today's Global Secondary Classrooms	3
EDUC 334P	Methods of Teaching Literacy in Secondary Schools in a Global Society	3
EDUC 337P	Foundations in Curriculum and Instruction Theory: Secondary Praxis in Historical Context	3
EDUC 381C	Multicultural and Philosophical Foundations in a Global Society	3
EDUC 382	Psychological Foundations of Education in a Diverse Society	3
EDUC 384C	Methods of Teaching English Language and Academic Development in Crosscultural Contexts	3
EDUC 491P	Student Teaching for the Single Subject Credential	9
EDUC 491S	Student Teaching Seminar for the Single Subject Credential	3
EDSP 389P	Healthy Environments and Inclusive Education in a Global Society	3
Total Units		37

The following paradigm is included as a guide only, and should not be interpreted in a rigid sense. Elective courses in chemistry may be taken at any time as long as the course prerequisites have been satisfied.

#### Freshman Year

Semester I		Units
CHEM 151	General Chemistry I	4
& 151L		
MATH 150 <sup>1</sup>	Calculus I	4
CC or Electives		6-8
Semester II		
CHEM 152 & 152L	General Chemistry II	4
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
CC or Electives		6-8
Semester III (Summer	)	
BIOL 240 & 240L	Bioenergetics and Systems	4
EOSC 110	Introduction to Geosciences	4
Sophomore Year		
Semester I		
CHEM 301	Organic Chemistry I	4
& 301L		
CHEM 396	Methods of Chemical Research	1.5
PHYS 270 & 270L	Introduction to Mechanics	4

EDUC 381C	Multicultural and Philosophical Foundations in a Global Society	3
CC or Electives		3-4
Semester II		
CHEM 302	Organic Chemistry II	4
& 302L		
CHEM 220	Analytical Chemistry	3
PHYS 271	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism	4
& 271L		
EDUC 382	Psychological Foundations of Education in a Diverse Society	3
Semester III (Summer	r)	
EDSP 389P	Healthy Environments and Inclusive Education in a Global Society	3
BIOL 242	Genomes and Evolution	4
& 242L		
Junior Year		
Semester I		
CHEM 331	Biochemistry	3
CHEM 311	Physical Chemistry I	3
BIOL 300	Genetics	3
PHIL 341	Ethics and Education	3
Semester II		
CHEM 330	Techniques in Molecular Biology	3
CHEM 332	Biochemistry II	3
EDUC 332P	Curriculum and Methods of Teaching in Today's Global Secondary Classrooms	3
EDUC 384C	Methods of Teaching English Language and Academic Development in Crosscultural Contexts	3
CC or Electives		6-8
Semester III (Summer	r)	
CC or Electives	• /	6
Senior Year		
Semester I		
EDUC 334P	Methods of Teaching Literacy in Secondary	3
2200001	Schools in a Global Society	
EDUC 491P	Student Teaching for the Single Subject Credential	9
EDUC 491S	Student Teaching Seminar for the Single Subject Credential	3
Semester II		
UD CHEM, BIOL or P	HYS elective	3-4
CHEM 435	Biochemistry Laboratory	4
CC or Electives		9-12
	n mathematics should take MATH 115, followed by	
MATH 150 and M.		
CHEM 396 may be	e completed in either semester of the second or third	year

of study. This requirement is independent of completing research hours. Students must complete 100 hours of research. This can be accomplished by taking CHEM 496, CHEM 498, or other options during the summer. Check

with your advisor as soon as possible to create the optimal plan.

Students must complete the full year of General Biology with lab at USD (as BIOL 240/240L/242/242L) or at SDCCD (as BIOL 210AB. Partial articulation will not be permitted (taking Bio 210A at SDCCD and either BIOL 240/240L or 242/242L at USD).

#### CHEM 101 | CHEMISTRY AND SOCIETY

#### Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Physical Science-Pre F17 CORE

A course designed for the non-science major that focuses on the major ideas of modern chemistry and the role that chemistry plays in a technological society. The evolution of our understanding of atomic and molecular structure and chemical reactivity will be examined as examples of the scientific method and the very human nature of the scientific endeavor. The role of modern chemistry in both the creation and the solution of societal problems will also receive considerable attention. The problems examined, which may vary in different sections, include: the energy crisis, air and water pollution, global warming, nutrition and food additives, household chemicals, pesticides and agrochemicals, and nuclear power. Two lectures weekly. Every semester.

#### CHEM 102 | SCIENCE OF FOOD & COOKING

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area, Lab, Physical Science-Pre F17 CORE

Course Description: This course is designed for the non-science major with a focus on food, cooking and baking while introducing foundational concepts in chemistry and biochemistry. Using a variety of approaches including hands-on activities, students will learn the chemical and biochemical principles of food and cooking. Students will investigate the molecular structure and changes that take place in food and drink while cooking and baking. Topics may include: making cheese and ice cream, spices and hot sauces, caramelization and food browning reactions, molecular gastronomy, taste and smell, cakes and cookies and chocolate. Students will participate in inquiry-based laboratories integrated throughout the semester while designing and performing scientific experiments to investigate the nature of food and cooking. Two hours of lecture per week and one four hour lab every other week. No prerequisites.

# CHEM 103 | DNA SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Physical Science-Pre F17 CORE

A course designed for the non-science major that covers basic physical science concepts and how they apply to the discovery and study of DNA as the genetic material, the simplicity of the three-dimensional structure of DNA and the many implications to be drawn from this structure. It explores the concepts involved in recombinant DNA technology and its applications to the pharmaceutical industry, agriculture, forensics, gene therapy and AIDS research. Two lectures weekly. Every semester.

# CHEM 105 | PHYSICAL SCIENCES FOR K-8 TEACHERS Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area, Lab

A laboratory/lecture/discussion class designed to lead students toward an understanding of selected topics in chemistry and physics. The course topics are selected to satisfy the physical science specifications of the science content standards for California Public Schools (K-12). Enrollment is limited to liberal studies majors. Two two-hour class meetings per week. Fall semester. This course is cross-listed with PHYS 105.

#### CHEM 111 | CHEMISTRY AND SOCIETY

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area, Lab

A course designed for the non-science major that focuses on the major ideas of modern chemistry and the role that chemistry plays in a technological society. The evolution of our understanding of atomic and molecular structure and chemical reactivity will be examined as examples of the scientific method and the very human nature of the scientific endeavor. The role of modern chemistry in both the creation and the solution of societal problems will also receive considerable attention. The problems examined, which may vary in different sections, include: the energy crisis, air and water pollution, global warming, nutrition and food additives, household chemicals, pesticides and agrochemicals, and nuclear power. This course includes a laboratory that will satisfy the Core requirement for Science and Technology Inquiry. Two hours of lecture per week and one four hour lab every other week.

#### CHEM 151 | GENERAL CHEMISTRY I

#### **Units: 3-4**

#### Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area

Prerequisites: (Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year or MATH 115 (Can be taken Concurrently) or MATH 130 (Can be taken Concurrently) or MATH 150 (Can be taken Concurrently)) and CHEM 151L (Can be taken Concurrently)

Part 1 of a two semester lecture course which introduces the fundamental principles of modern chemistry. These principles, which include atomic and molecular structure, periodicity, reactivity, stoichiometry, equilibrium, kinetics, thermodynamics, bonding, acid-base chemistry, redox chemistry, and states of matter, will be used in and expanded upon in more advanced courses. Three lectures weekly.

#### CHEM 151L | GENERAL CHEMISTRY I LABORATORY

#### Units: 1 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Quantitative reasoning comp, Science/Tech Inquiry area,

Corequisites: CHEM 151

Part 1 of a two-semester laboratory course which introduces the concepts and techniques of experimental chemistry. CHEM 151L has one laboratory period that meets biweekly.

#### CHEM 152 | GENERAL CHEMISTRY II

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### **Core Attributes: First year Integration**

Prerequisites: CHEM 151 and CHEM 151L and CHEM 152L (Can be taken Concurrently)

Part 2 of a two semester lecture course which introduces the fundamental principles of modern chemistry. These principles, which include atomic and molecular structure, periodicity, reactivity, stoichiometry, equilibrium, kinetics, thermodynamics, bonding, acid-base chemistry, redox chemistry, and states of matter, will be used in and expanded upon in more advanced courses. Three lectures weekly.

#### CHEM 152L | GENERAL CHEMISTRY II LABORATORY

Units: 1

#### Core Attributes: Lab

Prerequisites: CHEM 151 and CHEM 151L

Part 2 of a two-semester laboratory course which introduces the concepts and techniques of experimental chemistry. One laboratory period weekly.

#### CHEM 220 | ANALYTICAL CHEMISTRY

Units: 3

Prerequisites: CHEM 152 and CHEM 152L

An introduction to the principles and practices of analytical chemistry with an emphasis on quantitative methods. Classical methods such as titrimetric and volumetric analyses as well as basic instrumental methods involving spectroscopy, electrochemistry, and chromatography will be performed. Some experiments will be of the project type. One laboratory and one lecture weekly.

# CHEM 296 | INTRODUCTION TO UNDERGRADUATE RESEARCH Units: 1-2

Collaborative student-faculty research in the research laboratory of a faculty member in the Department of Chemistry and Biochemistry. The course is taught on a pass/fail basis only.

#### CHEM 301 | ORGANIC CHEMISTRY I

Units: 3

Prerequisites: CHEM 152 and CHEM 152L and CHEM 301L (Can be taken Concurrently)

Part 1 of a two semester introduction to basic organic chemistry. The relationship of structure and bonding in organic compounds to reactivity will be emphasized. Reactions will be discussed from mechanistic and synthetic perspectives. Three lectures weekly. Fall Semester.

#### CHEM 301L | ORGANIC CHEMISTRY I LABORATORY

Units: 1

**Core Attributes: Lab** 

Prerequisites: CHEM 152L and CHEM 301 (Can be taken Concurrently) This lab is the first semester of a two-semester sequence. It introduces common organic lab techniques (including chromatography, extraction, recrystallization, distillation) used for separating and analyzing organic compounds. One laboratory period weekly. Fall semester.

#### CHEM 302 | ORGANIC CHEMISTRY II

Units: 3

Prerequisites: CHEM 301 and CHEM 301L and CHEM 302L (Can be taken Concurrently)

Part 2 of a two semester introduction to basic organic chemistry. The relationship of structure and bonding in organic compounds to reactivity will be emphasized. Reactions will be discussed from mechanistic and synthetic perspectives. Three lectures weekly. Spring semester.

#### CHEM 302L | ORGANIC CHEMISTRY II LABORATORY

Units: 1

Core Attributes: Lab

Prerequisites: CHEM 301 and CHEM 301L

This lab is the second semester of a two-semester sequence. Common organic lab techniques and spectroscopy are used to carry out and analyze multi-step organic syntheses One laboratory period weekly. Spring semester.

#### CHEM 311 | PHYSICAL CHEMISTRY I

Units: 3

Prerequisites: CHEM 152 and MATH 151 and PHYS 270 and PHYS 271 (Can be taken Concurrently)

This course covers modern physical chemistry, including atomic and molecular structure, and spectroscopy. Three lectures weekly. Fall semester.

#### CHEM 312 | PHYSICAL CHEMISTRY II

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 151 and CHEM 152 and PHYS 270 and PHYS 271 (Can be taken Concurrently)

This course focuses on the classical principles of thermodynamics, kinetics, and statistical mechanics. Three lectures weekly. Spring semester.

#### CHEM 330 | TECHNIQUES IN MOLECULAR BIOLOGY

Units: 3

Prerequisites: BIOL 190 and BIOL 225 and BIOL 225L

An introduction to recombinant DNA techniques including bacterial culture, transformation, nucleic acid purification, restriction analysis, DNA cloning, polymerase chain reaction, etc. Computer-based sequence analyses include database accession, BLAST, alignments, restriction analysis, gene-finding, and genomics. A cloning project generating new molecular reagents will be undertaken. 80 min of lecture and one 4-hour laboratory weekly. Completion of CHEM 301/301L is recommended.

#### CHEM 331 | BIOCHEMISTRY

Units: 3

Prerequisites: CHEM 302 and CHEM 302L

The structure, function, and metabolism of biomolecules. Structure and function of proteins, carbohydrates, lipids, nucleic acids, and important accessory molecules (cofactors and metal ions) are covered, as well as enzyme kinetics and mechanism, thermodynamics, metabolism, and the regulation of metabolism. Three lectures weekly.

#### CHEM 332 | BIOCHEMISTRY II

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: CHEM 331

This course advances the fundamental concepts of macromolecules, structure/ function paradigms, enzyme mechanism & activity and metabolism gained in CHEM 331. We will study metabolic homeostasis, integrating anabolic/catabolic pathways and energy flux with nutrition/nutrient intake of essential and non-essential molecules. Regulatory control through allosteric, transcriptional/ translational, and post-translational mechanisms will be examined as part of maintaining metabolic homeostasis. Where relevant, disease and pathology will be used to highlight these concepts. We will study signal transduction to address the flow of information within a system. As a capstone to our indepth study of biochemistry, we will examine cross-disciplinary applications of core biochemical concepts (structure/function, homeostasis, energy flow and information flow) in the context of systems biology, chemical biology and synthetic biology.

#### CHEM 335 | BIOCHEMISTRY LABORATORY

Units: 3

**Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: CHEM 220 and CHEM 331 (Can be taken Concurrently)
An advanced laboratory course that focuses on techniques for the preparation and quantitative analysis of proteins and other biomolecules. Experiments will include preparation of buffers, production and purification of proteins, and analysis of protein structure and function. Two laboratory periods weekly.

#### CHEM 355 | ENVIRONMENTAL CHEMISTRY

Units: 3

Prerequisites: CHEM 152 and CHEM 152L

A survey of the natural environment from a chemist's point of view and the evaluation of chemicals from an environmental point of view. This course is concerned with the chemistry of air, water, soil and the biosphere in both pristine and polluted states. Pollution prevention and mitigation schemes are considered. Lab experiments include local fieldwork. Two 3-hour laboratory periods weekly.

#### CHEM 396 | METHODS OF CHEMICAL RESEARCH

Units: 1.5 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Advanced Integration** 

Prerequisites: (CHEM 152 and CHEM 152L)

Introduction to the principles, methods, and communication of chemical and biochemical research. Techniques for searching the chemical literature, research ethics integrity and professional development are included. One 80 minute lecture per week. Every semester.

#### CHEM 396W | RESEARCH METHODS

Units: 3

Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: CHEM 220

Introduction to the principles, methods, and communication of chemical and biochemical research. Lab work includes general and advanced techniques with considerable hands-on use of modern instruments, proper record-keeping, data management, and consideration of laboratory safety. Techniques for searching the chemical literature, peer review and research ethics are included. This course fulfills the upper division writing requirement. Students will write and edit a report in a format suitable for journal publication. May be taken either semester of junior year or fall semester of senior year. One lecture and eight hours of laboratory research weekly. Prereq: CHEM 220 and approval by department chair.

#### **CHEM 422 | PHYSICAL METHODS**

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Lab

Prerequisites: CHEM 220 and CHEM 302 and CHEM 302L and CHEM 311 (Can be taken Concurrently)

An advanced laboratory course which probes concepts in physical chemistry using instrumental techniques including spectroscopy, chromatography and microscopy. Modern topics in physical chemistry, new technology in instrumentation, and computational data analysis will be integral parts of the laboratory in addition to some classical experiments and methods.

#### CHEM 424 | ADVANCED SYNTHESIS LABORATORY

Units: 4 Repeatability: No Core Attributes: Lab

Prerequisites: CHEM 220 and CHEM 302 and CHEM 302L and CHEM 440 (Can be taken Concurrently)

An advanced laboratory course which integrates theory and experimental techniques from organic and inorganic chemistry. The course will focus on advanced topics of organic and inorganic chemistry (such as bioinorganic chemistry and organic materials) that are not included in CHEM 301, 301L, 302, 302L and 440. Emphasis will be placed on applications to the sub-fields of organic and inorganic chemistry. Two lectures and two laboratory periods weekly. Spring semester.

#### CHEM 427 | BIOPHYSICAL CHEMISTRY

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE, Writing-Pre F17 CORE, Physical Science-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: CHEM 331 and CHEM 335

This is an advanced lecture and laboratory course applying fundamental theories of physical chemistry in the context of thermodynamic, kinetic and quantum chemistry to understand the behavior of biological molecules and systems. Topics and experiments include spectroscopy, kinetics, thermodynamic of macromolecules, structure and function of protein, lipids, RNA and DNA as well as multimeric complex systems.

#### CHEM 435 | BIOCHEMISTRY LABORATORY

**Units: 4 Repeatability: No** 

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Lab

Prerequisites: CHEM 220

An advanced laboratory course that focuses on techniques for the preparation and quantitative analysis of proteins, DNA and other biomolecules. Experiments will include preparation of buffers, production and purification of proteins, and analysis of protein structure and function. Two laboratory periods weekly.

#### CHEM 440 | INORGANIC CHEMISTRY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: CHEM 302

The principles of inorganic chemistry, such as atomic and molecular structure, bonding, acid-base theory, and crystal field theory, are examined. Utilizing these principles, the chemistry of the elements of the periodic table is discussed, including the kinetics and mechanisms of reactions. The various fields within inorganic chemistry, including solid-state, coordination and organometallic chemistry are introduced. Three lectures weekly. Fall semester.

### CHEM 489 | MAJOR FIELD TEST IN CHEMISTRY

Units: 0

As a part of the department's assessment program, each graduating senior is required to take the major field test in chemistry. A student who fails to take the major field test may be restricted from graduating. Every year.

# CHEM 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN CHEMISTRY/BIOCHEMISTRY Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Rotating in-depth courses focused on various chemical and biochemical topics based primarily on the expertise of faculty. Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for credit when topic changes.) Prereq: Varied.

#### CHEM 496 | UNDERGRADUATE RESEARCH

Units: 0.5-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Collaborative student-faculty research in the research laboratory of a faculty member in the Department of Chemistry and Biochemistry. The course is taught on a pass/fail basis only. Prereq: Approval by department chair.

#### CHEM 496H | HONORS UNDERGRADUATE RESEARCH (1-3) Units: 1-3

Collaborative student-faculty research in the research laboratory of a faculty member in the Department of Chemistry and Biochemistry. The course is taught on a pass/fail basis only. Prereq: Approval by department chair, membership in the Honors Program.

#### CHEM 498 | RESEARCH INTERNSHIP

**Units: 1-2** 

Prerequisites: CHEM 151 and CHEM 151L

This course offers experience in the practical and experimental application of chemical or biochemical principles. Students will be involved in research projects conducted by agencies and institutions outside the University, such as chemical/biochemical, pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries. Enrollment is arranged on an individual basis according to a student's interest and background, and is dependent on positions available and faculty approval. A maximum of 2 upperdivision units can be earned toward fulfillment of the requirements of the major.

# **Chemistry**

Chemistry is the study of matter and energy and the changes they undergo. It plays a key role in understanding the natural universe and in the scientific and technological revolution that has shaped modern society.

## Program

The chemistry program provides a strong foundation in the principles and practices of modern chemistry within the framework of a liberal arts education. The major is designed to give students both the theoretical bases of the discipline and extensive hands-on experience testing theories in the laboratory. We also offer courses that fulfill the science and technology portion of the core curriculum requirements. These courses are designed to acquaint students majoring outside the natural sciences with the basic principles and methods of modern science and with the history and development of scientific thought.

The American Chemical Society (ACS), a national organization that develops and administers guidelines defining high quality undergraduate programs, has

approved USD's chemistry curriculum. All chemistry majors earn an ACS-certified degree.

Our faculty provide dynamic classroom and teaching laboratory experiences, embrace student-learning approaches using active learning techniques to give our new scientists a mix of unique student-centered teaching opportunities. From your first experience in general chemistry to your last semester in upper-division course and laboratory work our faculty continuously improve how to provide a meaningful and rigorous delivery of interesting and challenging chemistry courses.

Upper division courses are a sequence of integrated laboratory/lecture courses in organic/physical chemistry, inorganic/physical chemistry, biophysical chemistry, instrumental methods and biochemistry. This allows each student to be exposed to an interesting mix of chemistry concepts and techniques making them competitive for professional school and qualified candidates in the job market.

USD's chemistry program is designed to qualify students for: admission to graduate school in chemistry; positions as chemists in the workforce; admission to medical, dental and pharmacy schools; or secondary teaching.

## The Chemistry Major

The chemistry major is designed to qualify students for admission to graduate school in chemistry, positions as chemists; admission to medical, dental, and pharmacy schools; or secondary teaching.

#### The Major

In addition to 32.5 units of upper-division work in chemistry, students must complete of 100 hours of faculty-directed research and CHEM 396. Electives may be chosen from other chemistry and biochemistry courses for which prerequisites have been met. Students completing the chemistry major curriculum also earn an American Chemical Society-certified degree.

CHEM 496 or CHEM 498 may not be applied toward the 32.5 unit requirement. Those planning for graduate work in chemistry are recommended to complete the ACS-certified degree and to take additional upper-division Electives in chemistry, mathematics or physics depending on the area of interest.

#### *Preparation for the Major*

Code	Title	Units
CHEM 151	General Chemistry I	3
CHEM 151L	General Chemistry I Laboratory	1
CHEM 152	General Chemistry II	3
CHEM 152L	General Chemistry II Laboratory	1
CHEM 220	Analytical Chemistry	3
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
PHYS 270 & 270L	Introduction to Mechanics and Mechanics Lab	4
PHYS 271 & 271L	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism and Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism Lab	4
Total Units		27

### **Major Requirements**

Code	Title	Units
CHEM 301 & 301L	Organic Chemistry I and Organic Chemistry I Laboratory	4
CHEM 302 & 302L	Organic Chemistry II and Organic Chemistry II Laboratory	4

CHEM 311	Physical Chemistry I	3
CHEM 312	Physical Chemistry II	3
CHEM 331	Biochemistry	3
CHEM 396	Methods of Chemical Research	1.5
CHEM 422	Physical Methods	4
CHEM 424	Advanced Synthesis Laboratory	4
CHEM 440	Inorganic Chemistry	3
CHEM 489	Major Field Test in Chemistry	0
Select One Upp	per Division Chemistry Elective	3
Total Units		32.5

#### Recommended Program of Study

The following paradigm is included as a guide only, and should not be interpreted in a rigid sense. It is designed for students intending to obtain an ACS-certified degree. There is some flexibility to meet individual needs. Elective courses in chemistry may be taken at any time as long as the course prerequisites have been satisfied. Students are encouraged to consult with their academic advisor to ensure that their needs and interests will be met. Students who are pre-professional should contact their advisor and the health professions advisor early in their studies to ensure all prerequisites are met.

#### Freshman Year

Semester II

Semester I		Units
CHEM 151	General Chemistry I	4
& 151L		
MATH 150 <sup>1</sup>	Calculus I	4
Core or electives		7-8
Semester II		
CHEM 152	General Chemistry II	4
& 152L		
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
Core or electives		7-8
Sophomore Year		
Semester I		
CHEM 301	Organic Chemistry I	4
& 301L		
CHEM 220	Analytical Chemistry	3
Core or electives		8-9
Semester II		
CHEM 302	Organic Chemistry II	4
& 302L		
CHEM 396	Methods of Chemical Research	1.5
PHYS 270	Introduction to Mechanics	4
& 270L		
Core or electives		7-8
Junior Year		
Semester I		
CHEM 311	Physical Chemistry I	3
CHEM 331	Biochemistry	3
or 440	Inorganic Chemistry	
PHYS 271	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism	4
& 271L		
Core or electives		5-6

CHEM 312	Physical Chemistry II	3
Core or electives		6-9
Senior Year		
Semester I		
CHEM 422	Physical Methods	4
CHEM 331	Biochemistry	3
or 440	Inorganic Chemistry	
Core or electives		6-9
Semester II		
CHEM 424	Advanced Synthesis Laboratory	4
UD CHEM elective		3
Core or electives		9-12

# Recommended Program of Study: Integrated Teacher Preparation Program (ITPP) Pathway

The Integrated Teacher Preparation Program (ITPP) provides paths to 4-year science and math degrees that include a teaching credential and preparation for the California Subject Examination for Teachers (CSET). Students who are interested in middle or secondary education (grades 6-12) in California may earn a degree in chemistry while simultaneously completing requirements for a teaching credential. The degree integrates content knowledge and laboratory practices in the discipline, evidence-based teaching/learning theories, teaching performance expectations, and pre-student teaching clinical practice while satisfying baccalaureate degree requirements and CTC single subject credential program standards. There is some flexibility to meet individual needs. Students are encouraged to consult the ITPP website (http://www.sandiego.edu/itpp) and advisors (itpp@sandiego.edu) to ensure that their needs and interests will be met.

In addition to all courses for the chemistry major, students completing the ITPP pathway must also take the following:

Code	Title	Units
BIOL 240 & 240L	Bioenergetics and Systems and Bioenergetics and Systems Laboratory	4
BIOL 242 & 242L	Genomes and Evolution and Genomes and Evolution Laboratory	4
EOSC 110	Introduction to Geosciences	4
EDUC 332P	Curriculum and Methods of Teaching in Today's Global Secondary Classrooms	3
EDUC 334P	Methods of Teaching Literacy in Secondary Schools in a Global Society	. 3
EDUC 337P	Foundations in Curriculum and Instruction Theory: Secondary Praxis in Historical Context	3
EDUC 381C	Multicultural and Philosophical Foundations in a Global Society	3
EDUC 382	Psychological Foundations of Education in a Diverse Society	3
EDUC 384C	Methods of Teaching English Language and Academic Development in Crosscultural Contexts	3
EDUC 491P	Student Teaching for the Single Subject Credential	9
EDUC 491S	Student Teaching Seminar for the Single Subject Credential	3
EDSP 389P	Healthy Environments and Inclusive Education in a Global Society	3

The following paradigm is included as a guide only, and should not be interpreted in a rigid sense. Elective courses in chemistry may be taken at any time as long as the course prerequisites have been satisfied.

General Chemistry I

Calculus I

**Units** 

4

4

6-8

#### Freshman Year

Semester I

**CHEM 151** 

MATH 150<sup>1</sup>

CC or Electives

& 151L

Semester II		
CHEM 152 & 152L	General Chemistry II	4
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
CC or Electives		7-8
Semester III (Summer	•)	
BIOL 240 & 240L	Bioenergetics and Systems	4
EOSC 110	Introduction to Geosciences	4
Sophomore Year		
Semester I		
CHEM 301 & 301L	Organic Chemistry I	4
CHEM 396	Methods of Chemical Research	1.5
PHYS 270 & 270L	Introduction to Mechanics	4
EDUC 381C	Multicultural and Philosophical Foundations in a Global Society	3
CC or Electives		3-4
Semester II		
CHEM 302 & 302L	Organic Chemistry II	4
CHEM 220	Analytical Chemistry	3
PHYS 271 & 271L	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism	4
EDUC 382	Psychological Foundations of Education in a Diverse Society	3
CC or Electives		3-4
Semester III (Summer	•)	
BIOL 242 & 242L	Genomes and Evolution	4
EDSP 389P	Healthy Environments and Inclusive Education in a Global Society	3
Junior Year		
Semester I		
CHEM 311	Physical Chemistry I	3
CHEM 440	Inorganic Chemistry	3
CHEM 422	Physical Methods	4
EDUC 337P	Foundations in Curriculum and Instruction Theory: Secondary Praxis in Historical Context	3
PHIL 341	Ethics and Education	3
Semester II		
CHEM 312	Physical Chemistry II	3
CHEM 331	Biochemistry	3

EDUC 332P	Curriculum and Methods of Teaching in Today's
	Global Secondary Classrooms
EDUC 384C	Methods of Teaching English Language and
	Academic Development in Crosscultural
	Contexts
CC or Electives	
Semester III (Summer	•)
CC or Electives	
Senior Year	
Semester I	
EDUC 334P	Methods of Teaching Literacy in Secondary
	Schools in a Global Society
EDUC 491P	Student Teaching for the Single Subject
	Credential
EDUC 491S	Student Teaching Seminar for the Single Subject
	Credential
Semester II	
CHEM 424	Advanced Synthesis Laboratory
UD CHEM elective	
CC or Electives	

- Students deficient in mathematics should take MATH 115 instead of MATH 150, followed by MATH 150 and MATH 151.
- <sup>2</sup> CHEM 396 may be completed in either semester of the second or third year of study. This requirement is independent of completing research hours.
- Students must complete 100 hours of research. This can be accomplished by taking CHEM 496, CHEM 498, or other options during the summer. Check with your advisor as soon as possible to create the optimal plan.
- Students must complete the full year of General Biology with lab at USD (as BIOL 240/240L/242/242L) or at SDCCD (as BIOL 210AB. Partial articulation will not be permitted (taking Bio 210A at SDCCD and either BIOL 240/240L or 242/242L at USD).

# The Chemistry Minor

Code	Title	Uni
CHEM 151 & 151L	General Chemistry I and General Chemistry I Laboratory	4
CHEM 152 & 152L	General Chemistry II and General Chemistry II Laboratory	4
10 units of upper d	ivision chemistry	10

Students taking the minor to enhance employment possibilities in biotechnology, pharmaceutical industry or pharmacy school are advised to take CHEM 220.

#### CHEM 101 | CHEMISTRY AND SOCIETY

#### Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Physical Science-Pre F17 CORE**

A course designed for the non-science major that focuses on the major ideas of modern chemistry and the role that chemistry plays in a technological society. The evolution of our understanding of atomic and molecular structure and chemical reactivity will be examined as examples of the scientific method and the very human nature of the scientific endeavor. The role of modern chemistry in both the creation and the solution of societal problems will also receive considerable attention. The problems examined, which may vary in different sections, include: the energy crisis, air and water pollution, global warming, nutrition and food additives, household chemicals, pesticides and agrochemicals, and nuclear power. Two lectures weekly. Every semester.

#### CHEM 102 | SCIENCE OF FOOD & COOKING

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

3 Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area, Lab, Physical Science-Pre F17 CORE

Course Description: This course is designed for the non-science major with a focus on food, cooking and baking while introducing foundational concepts in chemistry and biochemistry. Using a variety of approaches including hands-on activities, students will learn the chemical and biochemical principles of food and cooking. Students will investigate the molecular structure and changes that take place in food and drink while cooking and baking. Topics may include: making cheese and ice cream, spices and hot sauces, caramelization and food browning reactions, molecular gastronomy, taste and smell, cakes and cookies and chocolate. Students will participate in inquiry-based laboratories integrated throughout the semester while designing and performing scientific experiments to investigate the nature of food and cooking. Two hours of lecture per week and one four hour lab every other week. No prerequisites.

#### 3 CHEM 103 | DNA SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Physical Science-Pre F17 CORE

A course designed for the non-science major that covers basic physical science concepts and how they apply to the discovery and study of DNA as the genetic material, the simplicity of the three-dimensional structure of DNA and the many implications to be drawn from this structure. It explores the concepts involved in recombinant DNA technology and its applications to the pharmaceutical industry, agriculture, forensics, gene therapy and AIDS research. Two lectures weekly. Every semester.

# CHEM 105 | PHYSICAL SCIENCES FOR K-8 TEACHERS Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area, Lab

A laboratory/lecture/discussion class designed to lead students toward an understanding of selected topics in chemistry and physics. The course topics are selected to satisfy the physical science specifications of the science content standards for California Public Schools (K-12). Enrollment is limited to liberal studies majors. Two two-hour class meetings per week. Fall semester. This course is cross-listed with PHYS 105.

#### CHEM 111 | CHEMISTRY AND SOCIETY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

9-12

#### its Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area, Lab

A course designed for the non-science major that focuses on the major ideas of modern chemistry and the role that chemistry plays in a technological society. The evolution of our understanding of atomic and molecular structure and chemical reactivity will be examined as examples of the scientific method and the very human nature of the scientific endeavor. The role of modern chemistry in both the creation and the solution of societal problems will also receive considerable attention. The problems examined, which may vary in different sections, include: the energy crisis, air and water pollution, global warming, nutrition and food additives, household chemicals, pesticides and agrochemicals, and nuclear power. This course includes a laboratory that will satisfy the Core requirement for Science and Technology Inquiry. Two hours of lecture per week and one four hour lab every other week.

#### CHEM 151 | GENERAL CHEMISTRY I

**Units: 3-4** 

#### Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area

Prerequisites: (Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year or MATH 115 (Can be taken Concurrently) or MATH 130 (Can be taken Concurrently) and CHEM 151L (Can be taken Concurrently)

Part 1 of a two semester lecture course which introduces the fundamental principles of modern chemistry. These principles, which include atomic and molecular structure, periodicity, reactivity, stoichiometry, equilibrium, kinetics, thermodynamics, bonding, acid-base chemistry, redox chemistry, and states of matter, will be used in and expanded upon in more advanced courses. Three lectures weekly.

#### CHEM 151L | GENERAL CHEMISTRY I LABORATORY

Units: 1 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Quantitative reasoning comp, Science/Tech Inquiry area, Lab

Corequisites: CHEM 151

Part 1 of a two-semester laboratory course which introduces the concepts and techniques of experimental chemistry. CHEM 151L has one laboratory period that meets biweekly.

#### CHEM 152 | GENERAL CHEMISTRY II

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### **Core Attributes: First year Integration**

Prerequisites: CHEM 151 and CHEM 151L and CHEM 152L (Can be taken Concurrently)

Part 2 of a two semester lecture course which introduces the fundamental principles of modern chemistry. These principles, which include atomic and molecular structure, periodicity, reactivity, stoichiometry, equilibrium, kinetics, thermodynamics, bonding, acid-base chemistry, redox chemistry, and states of matter, will be used in and expanded upon in more advanced courses. Three lectures weekly.

#### CHEM 152L | GENERAL CHEMISTRY II LABORATORY

Units: 1

Core Attributes: Lab

Prerequisites: CHEM 151 and CHEM 151L

Part 2 of a two-semester laboratory course which introduces the concepts and techniques of experimental chemistry. One laboratory period weekly.

#### CHEM 220 | ANALYTICAL CHEMISTRY

Units: 3

Prerequisites: CHEM 152 and CHEM 152L

An introduction to the principles and practices of analytical chemistry with an emphasis on quantitative methods. Classical methods such as titrimetric and volumetric analyses as well as basic instrumental methods involving spectroscopy, electrochemistry, and chromatography will be performed. Some experiments will be of the project type. One laboratory and one lecture weekly.

# CHEM 296 | INTRODUCTION TO UNDERGRADUATE RESEARCH Units: 1-2

Collaborative student-faculty research in the research laboratory of a faculty member in the Department of Chemistry and Biochemistry. The course is taught on a pass/fail basis only.

#### CHEM 301 | ORGANIC CHEMISTRY I

Units: 3

Prerequisites: CHEM 152 and CHEM 152L and CHEM 301L (Can be taken Concurrently)

Part 1 of a two semester introduction to basic organic chemistry. The relationship of structure and bonding in organic compounds to reactivity will be emphasized. Reactions will be discussed from mechanistic and synthetic perspectives. Three lectures weekly. Fall Semester.

#### CHEM 301L | ORGANIC CHEMISTRY I LABORATORY

Units: 1

Core Attributes: Lab

Prerequisites: CHEM 152L and CHEM 301 (Can be taken Concurrently)
This lab is the first semester of a two-semester sequence. It introduces common organic lab techniques (including chromatography, extraction, recrystallization, distillation) used for separating and analyzing organic compounds. One laboratory period weekly. Fall semester.

#### CHEM 302 | ORGANIC CHEMISTRY II

Units: 3

Prerequisites: CHEM 301 and CHEM 301L and CHEM 302L (Can be taken Concurrently)

Part 2 of a two semester introduction to basic organic chemistry. The relationship of structure and bonding in organic compounds to reactivity will be emphasized. Reactions will be discussed from mechanistic and synthetic perspectives. Three lectures weekly. Spring semester.

#### CHEM 302L | ORGANIC CHEMISTRY II LABORATORY

Units: 1

Core Attributes: Lab

Prerequisites: CHEM 301 and CHEM 301L

This lab is the second semester of a two-semester sequence. Common organic lab techniques and spectroscopy are used to carry out and analyze multi-step organic syntheses One laboratory period weekly. Spring semester.

#### CHEM 311 | PHYSICAL CHEMISTRY I

Units: 3

Prerequisites: CHEM 152 and MATH 151 and PHYS 270 and PHYS 271 (Can be taken Concurrently)

This course covers modern physical chemistry, including atomic and molecular structure, and spectroscopy. Three lectures weekly. Fall semester.

#### CHEM 312 | PHYSICAL CHEMISTRY II

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 151 and CHEM 152 and PHYS 270 and PHYS 271 (Can be taken Concurrently)

This course focuses on the classical principles of thermodynamics, kinetics, and statistical mechanics. Three lectures weekly. Spring semester.

# CHEM 330 | TECHNIQUES IN MOLECULAR BIOLOGY Units: 3

Prerequisites: BIOL 190 and BIOL 225 and BIOL 225L

An introduction to recombinant DNA techniques including bacterial culture, transformation, nucleic acid purification, restriction analysis, DNA cloning, polymerase chain reaction, etc. Computer-based sequence analyses include database accession, BLAST, alignments, restriction analysis, gene-finding, and genomics. A cloning project generating new molecular reagents will be undertaken. 80 min of lecture and one 4-hour laboratory weekly. Completion of CHEM 301/301L is recommended.

#### **CHEM 331 | BIOCHEMISTRY**

Units: 3

Prerequisites: CHEM 302 and CHEM 302L

The structure, function, and metabolism of biomolecules. Structure and function of proteins, carbohydrates, lipids, nucleic acids, and important accessory molecules (cofactors and metal ions) are covered, as well as enzyme kinetics and mechanism, thermodynamics, metabolism, and the regulation of metabolism. Three lectures weekly.

#### CHEM 332 | BIOCHEMISTRY II

Units: 3 Repeatability: No Prerequisites: CHEM 331

This course advances the fundamental concepts of macromolecules, structure/function paradigms, enzyme mechanism & activity and metabolism gained in CHEM 331. We will study metabolic homeostasis, integrating anabolic/catabolic pathways and energy flux with nutrition/nutrient intake of essential and non-essential molecules. Regulatory control through allosteric, transcriptional/translational, and post-translational mechanisms will be examined as part of maintaining metabolic homeostasis. Where relevant, disease and pathology will be used to highlight these concepts. We will study signal transduction to address the flow of information within a system. As a capstone to our indepth study of biochemistry, we will examine cross-disciplinary applications of core biochemical concepts (structure/function, homeostasis, energy flow and information flow) in the context of systems biology, chemical biology and synthetic biology.

#### CHEM 335 | BIOCHEMISTRY LABORATORY

Units: 3

**Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: CHEM 220 and CHEM 331 (Can be taken Concurrently) An advanced laboratory course that focuses on techniques for the preparation and quantitative analysis of proteins and other biomolecules. Experiments will include preparation of buffers, production and purification of proteins, and analysis of protein structure and function. Two laboratory periods weekly.

#### CHEM 355 | ENVIRONMENTAL CHEMISTRY

Units: 3

Prerequisites: CHEM 152 and CHEM 152L

A survey of the natural environment from a chemist's point of view and the evaluation of chemicals from an environmental point of view. This course is concerned with the chemistry of air, water, soil and the biosphere in both pristine and polluted states. Pollution prevention and mitigation schemes are considered. Lab experiments include local fieldwork. Two 3-hour laboratory periods weekly.

#### CHEM 396 | METHODS OF CHEMICAL RESEARCH

Units: 1.5 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Advanced Integration**Prerequisites: (CHEM 152 and CHEM 152L)

Introduction to the principles, methods, and communication of chemical and biochemical research. Techniques for searching the chemical literature, research ethics integrity and professional development are included. One 80 minute lecture per week. Every semester.

#### CHEM 396W | RESEARCH METHODS

Units: 3

**Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: CHEM 220

Introduction to the principles, methods, and communication of chemical and biochemical research. Lab work includes general and advanced techniques with considerable hands-on use of modern instruments, proper record-keeping, data management, and consideration of laboratory safety. Techniques for searching the chemical literature, peer review and research ethics are included. This course fulfills the upper division writing requirement. Students will write and edit a report in a format suitable for journal publication. May be taken either semester of junior year or fall semester of senior year. One lecture and eight hours of laboratory research weekly. Prereq: CHEM 220 and approval by department chair.

#### **CHEM 422 | PHYSICAL METHODS**

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Lab

Prerequisites: CHEM 220 and CHEM 302 and CHEM 302L and CHEM 311 (Can be taken Concurrently)

An advanced laboratory course which probes concepts in physical chemistry using instrumental techniques including spectroscopy, chromatography and microscopy. Modern topics in physical chemistry, new technology in instrumentation, and computational data analysis will be integral parts of the laboratory in addition to some classical experiments and methods.

#### CHEM 424 | ADVANCED SYNTHESIS LABORATORY

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Lab

Prerequisites: CHEM 220 and CHEM 302 and CHEM 302L and CHEM 440 (Can be taken Concurrently)

An advanced laboratory course which integrates theory and experimental techniques from organic and inorganic chemistry. The course will focus on advanced topics of organic and inorganic chemistry (such as bioinorganic chemistry and organic materials) that are not included in CHEM 301, 301L, 302, 302L and 440. Emphasis will be placed on applications to the sub-fields of organic and inorganic chemistry. Two lectures and two laboratory periods weekly. Spring semester.

#### CHEM 427 | BIOPHYSICAL CHEMISTRY

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE, Writing-Pre F17 CORE, Physical Science-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: CHEM 331 and CHEM 335

This is an advanced lecture and laboratory course applying fundamental theories of physical chemistry in the context of thermodynamic, kinetic and quantum chemistry to understand the behavior of biological molecules and systems. Topics and experiments include spectroscopy, kinetics, thermodynamic of macromolecules, structure and function of protein, lipids, RNA and DNA as well as multimeric complex systems.

#### CHEM 435 | BIOCHEMISTRY LABORATORY

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Lab

Prerequisites: CHEM 220

An advanced laboratory course that focuses on techniques for the preparation and quantitative analysis of proteins, DNA and other biomolecules. Experiments will include preparation of buffers, production and purification of proteins, and analysis of protein structure and function. Two laboratory periods weekly.

#### CHEM 440 | INORGANIC CHEMISTRY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: CHEM 302

The principles of inorganic chemistry, such as atomic and molecular structure, bonding, acid-base theory, and crystal field theory, are examined. Utilizing these principles, the chemistry of the elements of the periodic table is discussed, including the kinetics and mechanisms of reactions. The various fields within inorganic chemistry, including solid-state, coordination and organometallic chemistry are introduced. Three lectures weekly. Fall semester.

### CHEM 489 | MAJOR FIELD TEST IN CHEMISTRY

Units: 0

As a part of the department's assessment program, each graduating senior is required to take the major field test in chemistry. A student who fails to take the major field test may be restricted from graduating. Every year.

#### CHEM 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN CHEMISTRY/BIOCHEMISTRY

#### Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Rotating in-depth courses focused on various chemical and biochemical topics based primarily on the expertise of faculty. Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for credit when topic changes.) Prereq: Varied.

#### CHEM 496 | UNDERGRADUATE RESEARCH

Units: 0.5-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Collaborative student-faculty research in the research laboratory of a faculty member in the Department of Chemistry and Biochemistry. The course is taught on a pass/fail basis only. Prereq: Approval by department chair.

# CHEM 496H | HONORS UNDERGRADUATE RESEARCH (1-3) Units: 1-3

Collaborative student-faculty research in the research laboratory of a faculty member in the Department of Chemistry and Biochemistry. The course is taught on a pass/fail basis only. Prereq: Approval by department chair, membership in the Honors Program.

#### CHEM 498 | RESEARCH INTERNSHIP

Units: 1-2

Prerequisites: CHEM 151 and CHEM 151L

This course offers experience in the practical and experimental application of chemical or biochemical principles. Students will be involved in research projects conducted by agencies and institutions outside the University, such as chemical/biochemical, pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries. Enrollment is arranged on an individual basis according to a student's interest and background, and is dependent on positions available and faculty approval. A maximum of 2 upper-division units can be earned toward fulfillment of the requirements of the major.

### **Classical Studies**

### **Program Director**

Ryan Abrecht, PhD, History

## Affiliated Faculty

Florence Gillman, PhD, STD, Theology and Religious Studies

Jerome Hall, PhD, Anthropology

Joseph McGowan, PhD, English

Santiago Rubio-Fernaz, PhD, Languages, Cultures and Literatures

Michael Wagner, PhD, Philosophy

# The Classical Studies Minor

The classical world was the crucible in which Christianity and the western artistic, literary, philosophical, and political traditions were formed. The classical studies minor is an interdisciplinary academic program that provides students with an opportunity to supplement their major with a structured and directed program of study in the histories, religions, cultures, languages, and societies of Greco-Roman antiquity. It is designed to help students develop a nuanced and sophisticated understanding of the Greek, Hellenistic, and Roman civilizations of the Mediterranean (ca. 750 BC–ca. AD 500), and in so doing to enrich their understanding of themselves, their major, and the Catholic tradition.

Requirements

#### Option I:

Twelve units in Greek or Latin and six elective units in upper-division Classical Studies courses from a minimum of two academic disciplines (listed below).

#### Option II:

18 units from the lists of courses below, including 6-9 lower-division units and 9-12 upper-division units from a minimum of two academic disciplines.

Code	Title	Units
Select 6-9 lower-	division units from: 1	9-6
ARTH 133	Introduction to Art History I	
HIST 102	The Ancient World	
PHIL 270	History of Ancient Philosophy	
Select 9-12 uppe	r-division units from: <sup>1</sup>	9-12
ANTH 390	Archaeology of the Bible	
ANTH 391	Bethsaida Archaeological Field School	
GREK 499	Independent Study	
HIST 311	Greek Civilization	
HIST 312	Roman Civilization	
HIST 321	The Fall of the Roman Empire	
LATN 499	Independent Study	
PHIL 470	Studies in Ancient Philosophy	
POLS 301	Political Thought:Ancient to Modern	
THRS 353	Early Christianities	
THRS 385	Paul, the Man & his Message	
THRS 388	The World of the Bible	
Total Units		18

Additional courses may be used to satisfy requirements in the Classical Studies minor, if the focus is appropriate. Examples include: ENGL 220, ENGL 228 and ENGL 494. Consult the Program Director for information about these courses.

## **Communication Studies**

#### Chair

Roger C. Pace, PhD

## **Faculty**

Bradley J. Bond, PhD

Jonathan M. Bowman, PhD

Mary Brinson, PhD

Leeva C. Chung, PhD

Kristin C. Moran, PhD

Esteban del Río, PhD

Gregory Ghio, MA

Carole L. Huston, PhD

Diane M Keeling, PhD

Gina Lew, MA

Antonieta Mercado, PhD

Eric C. Pierson, PhD

Susannah R. Stern, PhD

David B. Sullivan, PhD

Jillian Tullis, PhD

Larry A. Williamson, PhD

Communication Studies is firmly committed to academic excellence through promoting a rigorous and relevant curriculum grounded in the liberal arts tradition. We approach communication as the primary social process: the various modes of human communication forge and maintain individual identity and collective organization. Our curriculum offers an integrated approach to communication, providing depth and breadth of knowledge, and experience for undergraduate students competent in the construction, reception, and analysis of messages, which give shape to our world. Communication studies prepare students to participate in the professional, social, and civic life in an ethical, intellectually curious, and engaged manner.

Students who complete the major will have knowledge of foundational theories of communication; prevailing communication research paradigms; media industry structure and practices; prevailing criticism of media practice and performance; media influence on individuals and groups; the interplay of media systems in a global context; roles and functions of communication in interpersonal, group, organizational, and public contexts; conventions of public address and advocacy; and the impact and ethics of persuasion. Students will also have the ability to think critically; develop and present an argument; conduct and evaluate social scientific, interpretive, and critical research; communicate effectively in interpersonal, group, organizational, and public contexts; and invent, arrange, and deliver effective and ethical messages via oral, print, and electronic modes.

All students in the communication studies major must complete 39 units of coursework in the major, including 15 units of lower-division core courses, 6 units of upper-division core courses, and an additional 18 units divided into 6 units of Human Communication course, 6 units of Media Studies courses, and 6 elective units from upper-division offerings.

Practical experience is a valuable addition to the undergraduate major. The department offers opportunities for students to participate in an outstanding internship program and in student media (The Vista, USD-tv, and USD Radio) providing the opportunity to receive academic credit for these experiences. No more than three practicum units may be applied toward the major or minor. No more than six units combined of practicum may be applied to the BA degree.

Students are encouraged to participate in study abroad to complement the major with global learning opportunities. No more than six units from a non-USD faculty led study abroad course can be applied to the major or minor.

# The Communication Studies Major Preparation for the Major

Code	Title	Units
Required Lowe	er-Division Core	
COMM 101	Introduction to Human Communication	3
COMM 130	Introduction to Media Studies	3
COMM 203	Public Speaking	3
COMM 220	Introduction to Media Writing	3
COMM 265	Introduction To Research	3
Total Units		15
Major Requ	uirements	
Code	Title	Units
Required Uppe	r-Division Core	
COMM 300	Communication Theory	3

COMM 336	Communication Criticism	3
Required Upper-I	Division Human Communication	
Select 6 units from	the following:	6
COMM 325	Interpersonal Communication	
COMM 326	Nonverbal Communication	
COMM 340	Health Communication	
COMM 350	Small Group Communication	
COMM 353	Organizational Communication	
COMM 370	Rhetorical Theory	
COMM 403	Advanced Public Speaking	
COMM 422W	Family Business Communication	
COMM 445	Gender Communication	
COMM 455	Interviewing and Negotiating: Principles and Practices	
COMM 460	Persuasion and Propaganda	
COMM 475	Intercultural Communication	
COMM 488	Global Team Development	
Required Upper-I	Division Media Studies	
Select 6 Units from	the following:	6
COMM 330	Media Processes And Effects	
COMM 338	Media and Conflict	
COMM 380	International Media	
COMM 421	Advanced Journalism	
COMM 432	Film and Cultural Politics	
COMM 433	American Independent Cinema	
COMM 434	Documentary Film	
COMM 435	Principles of Video Production	
COMM 462	Political Communication	
COMM 463	Communication and Sports	
COMM 480	Advanced Topics in International Media	
COMM 482	Children and Media	
COMM 483	Teens and Popular Culture	
COMM 485	Writing for Media	
rr	1 4	

#### **Upper-Division Electives**

Select Any 6 Units of Upper-Division Communication courses including	6
COMM courses not listed above	
Total Units	24

COMM 101, COMM 130, and COMM 203 satisfy the core curriculum requirement in the social sciences.

#### Recommended Program of Study

#### Freshman Year

Semester I		Units
Preceptorial		3
COMM 101 or 130	Introduction to Human Communication Introduction to Media Studies	3
CC		9
Semester II		
COMM 130 or 203	Introduction to Media Studies Public Speaking	3
COMM 265	Introduction To Research	3
CC		9
Sophomore Year		

#### Semester I

**COMM 203** Public Speaking

Introduction to Media Writing or 220

**COMM 300** Communication Theory

CC

#### Semester II

**COMM 336** Communication Criticism

Upper-Division COMM

#### **Junior Year**

#### Semester I

Upper-Division COMM

CC or electives

#### Semester II

Upper-Division COMM

CC or electives

#### Senior Year

#### Semester I

Upper-Division COMM

Upper-Division electives

#### Semester II

Upper-Division COMM

Upper-Division electives

### The Communication Studies Minor

The communication studies minor consists of 6 lower-division units and 12 upperdivision units to be selected in consultation with an advisor.

#### Code Title Units **Required Lower-Division Core** Introduction to Human Communication **COMM 101** Select one of the following: 3 **COMM 130** Introduction to Media Studies **COMM 203** Public Speaking **COMM 220** Introduction to Media Writing **Required Upper-Division Core** COMM 300 Communication Theory or COMM 336 Communication Criticism **Upper-Division Electives** Select from any upper-division communication course 18

### COMM 101 | INTRODUCTION TO HUMAN COMMUNICATION

Units: 3-4

#### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Oral communication competency, Social/Behavioral Inquiry area

An examination of the principles and contexts of human communication. Some of the principles surveyed are perception, listening, nonverbal communication, and persuasion. The primary contexts examined include interpersonal, group, organizational, and public communication. This course is a prerequisite for all upper division communication studies courses, and fulfills a core curriculum requirement in the social sciences.

#### **COMM 130 | INTRODUCTION TO MEDIA STUDIES**

Units: 3 3

#### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Social/Behavioral Inquiry area

- This course offers an introduction to the examination of media and media literacy.
- Students learn about the origins, history, and development of mass media.
- Additionally, the present structure, characteristics, and challenges in the areas of radio, television, and cable are addressed. Fulfills a core curriculum requirement
- in the social sciences. 3

#### **COMM 203 | PUBLIC SPEAKING**

Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Oral communication competency**

An introduction to several forms of public communication. Emphasis is placed on the development and practice of public speaking about salient political,

- 6-9 cultural, and social issues. Students are taught an audience-sensitive approach
  - to the invention, arrangement, and delivery of public messages. Fulfills a core curriculum requirement in the social sciences.

#### COMM 220 | INTRODUCTION TO MEDIA WRITING

6-9

A general introduction to the skills and strategies associated with print and electronic journalism. Students are exposed to methods of news gathering, reporting, writing, and editing. The elements of the news story, interviewing, and the news conference are among the topics covered.

### **COMM 265 | INTRODUCTION TO RESEARCH**

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Quantitative reasoning comp

An introduction to communication research methodologies. Students are exposed to the prevailing paradigms of qualitative and quantitative research. The interpretive, descriptive, and explanatory foundations of research methodologies will be examined. Ethical principles governing the process of research will also be explored.

#### **COMM 294 | SPECIAL TOPICS**

#### Units: 0.5-3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

The course will introduce students to various topics within the field of communication. Course may be repeated as topics vary.

#### **COMM 298 | FIELD EXPERIENCE**

#### Units: 0.5 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

The course offers students credit for participating in a professional communication related field or taking a short course related to professional communication skills. It is appropriate for students who are interested in learning new skills and gaining professional experience to complement their coursework. To qualify, students must have completed at least one lower division communication course and be a Communication Studies major. This course is offered Pass/Fail.

### COMM 300 | COMMUNICATION THEORY

Units: 3

Prerequisites: COMM 101

This course provides a comprehensive survey of the various theories that comprise the communication studies discipline. Students are exposed to the dominant philosophical, conceptual, and critical perspectives germane to communication as a distinct academic pursuit. This class is intended as an overview of both speech communication and media studies traditions and is a recommended prerequisite to all upper division courses in Communication Studies.

#### **COMM 325 | INTERPERSONAL COMMUNICATION**

Units: 3

Prerequisites: COMM 101

This course examines the dynamics of relational communication. Humanistic and social scientific theories of interpersonal relationship development will be emphasized. Topics include impression management, attraction, love, conflict, and the dark side.

#### **COMM 326 | NONVERBAL COMMUNICATION**

Units: 3

Prerequisites: COMM 101

This course draws upon and scrutinizes the intersection of nonverbal and verbal communication channels, with an emphasis on the influence of nonverbal channels on communicator competence in interpersonal, media, organization, intercultural, and group contexts. Examples of specific topics include scholarship on the theory and application of nonverbal codes (and subsequent functions) vocal variation, nonverbal channels, and context-specific communication style.

#### COMM 330 | MEDIA PROCESSES AND EFFECTS

Units: 3

Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: COMM 130

This course examines the process of media production and the theories related to the effects media have on audiences. A historical approach is used to analyze and explain the development of the field of mass communication. Other topics include the functions media perform for individuals and society. Analysis and application of media theory is emphasized.

#### COMM 330W | MEDIA PROCESSES AND EFFECTS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: COMM 130

This course examines the process of media production and the theories related to the effects media have on audiences. A historical approach is used to analyze and explain the development of the field of mass communication. Other topics include the functions media perform for individuals and society. Analysis and application of media theory is emphasized.

#### **COMM 336 | COMMUNICATION CRITICISM**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, First year Integration

Prerequisites: COMM 101

This course introduces students to the art and discipline of communication criticism as the interpretive method of analysis within the field of communication studies, exploring popular and scholarly criticism of public messages by examining the functions of criticism and by paying particular attention to the relationships among critical interpretations of texts, critical evaluation of media performance, and audience assessment. Students will enhance their understanding of these relationships by applying communication criticism methods to a variety of texts in a series of written assignments.

#### COMM 336W | COMMUNICATION CRITICISM

Units: 3

Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: COMM 101

This course introduces students to critical analytic methods used to understand the symbolic nature of communication messages. Students will be introduced to the nature of communication criticism, learn to distinguish between popular and scholarly criticism and employ criticism as a means of making ethical judgments.

#### **COMM 338 | MEDIA AND CONFLICT**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 2** 

This course examines the role media play in the progression and public perceptions of conflict. Relevant topics will include media and military intervention, portrayals of protest movements, and news and entertainment coverage of crime, rumors, domestic politics, violence, and ethnicity. It is recommended that students complete COMM 130 before enrolling in this course.

#### **COMM 340 | HEALTH COMMUNICATION**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course explores communication issues relevant to health, disease, and illness. Topics covered include the role of language, provider-patient communication, social support, diversity, culture, and spirituality in health, information processing, health care teams, public health campaigns, and mass media. The course explores how communication shapes and is shaped by personal, institutional, and cultural constructions of health and how such concepts are created, maintained, and transformed in communication. Course content includes critiques of Western perspectives on health, illness, disease, and wellness and their influence on communication by investigating issues of race, class, gender, and sexism that exist in health practice, policy, and institutional structures. COMM 101 or COMM 300 are recommended, but not required.

#### COMM 350 | SMALL GROUP COMMUNICATION

Units: 3

Prerequisites: COMM 101

An examination of theories and principles of group communication. Students study interactional and attitudinal variables which influence the nature of group dynamics. Topics include group norms and roles, leadership, motivation, coalition formation, communication networks, and decision making.

# COMM 353 | ORGANIZATIONAL COMMUNICATION

**Units: 3-4** 

Prerequisites: COMM 101

This course examines the form and function of messages within organizations, with special emphasis on business communication. The course will focus on the role of communication in developing productive work relationships, human-resource practices, and organizational cultures. Topics include past and current management practices, communication networks and technologies, interpersonal relationships in organizations, public communication, and organizational communication assessment.

### COMM 360 | PUBLIC RELATIONS AND COMMUNITY ADVOCACY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Community Service Learning** 

Prerequisites: COMM 130 (Can be taken Concurrently)

This is a critical PR class. Usually, Public Relations classes reflect an instrumental view of the profession, without drawing larger structural implications about how the public relations industry shapes and affects discourse in the public sphere. The course offers a critical, historical, and practical perspective in the US and global PR industries. It examines the current and historical dependency of news media outlets on the PR world as sources of information. While the course has a critical view of corporate Public Relations, it also offers concrete skill-building opportunities for students interested in working to promote diversity, inclusion and social justice through critical public relations. The practical side of the class focuses on the use of communication and public relations strategies for advancing causes such as fair representation of minorities in media, economic justice, community development, workers rights, environmental justice, and other pressing social issues. Students taking this class will spend one hour per week working for a local community organization helping to either design or enhance their communication and public outreach programs.

#### COMM 365 | COMMUNICATION RESEARCH METHODS

Units: 3

Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: COMM 265

A survey of contemporary quantitative methods in communication research. This course will help students understand how to measure and explain communication behaviors and beliefs from a quantitative perspective. Students will be exposed to methods such as experimentation, structured observation, and survey design, including the analysis and interpretation of results.

#### COMM 366W | INTERPRETIVE RESEARCH METHODS

Units: 3

**Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: COMM 265

A survey of contemporary interpretive methods in communication research. This course will help students understand bases of knowledge and value of communication from a qualitative perspective. Students will be exposed to methods such as field observation, ethnography, and content analysis.

#### COMM 370 | RHETORICAL THEORY

Units: 3

Prerequisites: COMM 101

An examination of rhetorical thinking from its birth in Athens to the present time covering basic rhetorical principals and tenets. Students explore issues such as rhetoric as a humane discipline, the place of rhetoric in democracies, and the worth of rhetoric as a means of inducing change.

#### COMM 370W | RHETORICAL THEORY

Units: 3

**Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: COMM 101

An examination of rhetorical thinking from its birth in Athens to the present time covering basic rhetorical principals and tenets. Students explore issues such as rhetoric as a humane discipline, the place of rhetoric in democracies, and the worth of rhetoric as a means of inducing change.

#### COMM 380 | INTERNATIONAL MEDIA

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Global Diversity level 2** 

This course examines media systems, uses, and social impact around the world, with an emphasis on trans-national comparisons of media development. Topics to be addressed include globalization of the media environment, media and national identity, communication for social change, and the influence of U.S. media on cultures around the world. It is recommended that students complete COMM 130 before enrolling in this course.

#### COMM 403 | ADVANCED PUBLIC SPEAKING

Units: 3

Prerequisites: COMM 203

This course offers intensive training in the types of public speaking that are germane to social, political, and business communication. Through instructor and peer critique, students will gain proficiency in extemporaneous and impromptu speaking, and debate. Special attention is given to the critique and engagement of public controversy.

#### COMM 421 | ADVANCED JOURNALISM

Units: 3

Prerequisites: COMM 220

This course combines instruction in contemporary theories about press performance with advanced newsroom skills. The course advances students' understanding of newsroom management, news gathering, press ethics, and the organizational norms that drive journalistic styles. Students develop advanced reporting and editing skills in completing various news assignments.

#### COMM 421W | ADVANCED JOURNALISM

Units: 3

**Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: COMM 220

This course combines instruction in contemporary theories about press performance with advanced newsroom skills. The course introduces students to newsroom management, advanced news gathering, press ethics, and the organizational norms that drive journalistic styles. Students develop advanced reporting and editing skills in completing print and electronic news assignments.

#### **COMM 422 | FAMILY COMMUNICATION**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE

This course provides an examination of family communication theory as it applies to interaction and cognition within the rich context of our earliest group membership. Role formation, identity development and a range of family structures across the life span will be emphasized in both a modern and historical contexts. Students will apply theory to understand and analyze their own and others' familial communication experiencesal portfolio of their work.

# COMM 422W | FAMILY BUSINESS COMMUNICATION Units: 3

This course provides an examination of family communication theory as it applies to interaction and cognition within the rich context of our earliest group membership. Role formation, identity development and a range of family structures across the life span will be emphasized in both a modern and historical contexts. Students will apply theory to understand and analyze their own and others' familial communication experiencesal portfolio of their work.

#### **COMM 432 | FILM AND CULTURAL POLITICS**

Units: 3

This course looks at the role of film in responding to and defining culture and politics. It focuses on mainstream, commercial, and narrative film, and includes a focus on historical and ideological approaches to film criticism. Students will be encouraged to appreciate historically significant movies, learn sophisticated methods of film criticism, and assess the contributions contemporary films make to students' understanding of themselves and others. It is recommended that students complete COMM 336 before enrolling in this course.

#### COMM 432W | FILM AND CULTURAL POLITICS

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE

This course looks at the role of film in responding to and defining culture and politics. It focuses on mainstream, commercial, and narrative film, and includes a focus on historical and ideological approaches to film criticism. Students will be encouraged to appreciate historically significant movies, learn sophisticated methods of film criticism, and assess the contributions contemporary films make to students' understanding of themselves and others. It is recommended that students complete COMM 336 before enrolling in this course.

# COMM 433 | AMERICAN INDEPENDENT CINEMA Units: 3

This course is an examination of the history, forms, and functions of American independent cinema. The course will introduce students to important films and filmmakers instrumental in the independent genre while comparing and contrasting the aesthetic and content of independent cinema with the traditional practices of Hollywood studios. The course will also focus on independent cinema as a vehicle of social and political change including representations lacking in mainstream film production and inclusion of a wider spectrum of voices and experiences.

#### **COMM 434 | DOCUMENTARY FILM**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course is an examination of the form and content of documentary film. The course will focus on American documentaries but will include some exposure to international films as well. Students will develop a critical approach to documentary film viewing and expand their appreciation of nonfiction film.

## COMM 435 | PRINCIPLES OF VIDEO PRODUCTION

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: COMM 130

This course provides students an opportunity to learn production skills while incorporating discussions of aesthetics, film theory, and ethics. Students are introduced to three phases of broadcast production: writing and planning (storyboarding, scripting); audio (actualities, sound effects, music); and visual production (composition, lighting, editing). By the end of the course, students will produce a short video and/or audio presentation.

### **COMM 445 | GENDER COMMUNICATION**

#### Units: 3

This course provides an overview of the relevant research on gender issues and the construction of gender through mediated forms. Communicator styles of women and men are discussed. Attitudes and beliefs concerning female and male cultural stereotypes as they are manifested through communication are investigated. It is recommended that students complete COMM 101 and COMM 130 before enrolling in this course. Course may be offered to fulfill the core upper division writing requirement. Check the Schedule of Classes.

### **COMM 445W | GENDER COMMUNICATION**

#### Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE**

This course provides an overview of the relevant research on gender issues and the construction of gender through mediated forms. Communicator styles of women and men are discussed. Attitudes and beliefs concerning female and male cultural stereotypes as they are manifested through communication are investigated. It is recommended that students complete COMM 101 and COMM 130 before enrolling in this course.

# COMM 455 | INTERVIEWING AND NEGOTIATING: PRINCIPLES AND PRACTICES $% \left( 1\right) =\left( 1\right) \left( 1\right) \left$

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: COMM 101

This course is an examination of methods and techniques applicable to a variety of interviews and negotiations. Students prepare, participate in, and critique employment, journalistic, and appraisal interviews. Students also learn techniques and principles of negotiating, including alternative dispute resolution, distributive bargaining, and principled negotiations.

#### COMM 460 | PERSUASION AND PROPAGANDA

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Social/Behavioral Inquiry area

This course is an examination of various forms of persuasion and propaganda. Through understanding rhetorical, behavioral, and cognitive theories of persuasion students will learn to both create and ethically critique persuasive messages.

### COMM 462 | POLITICAL COMMUNICATION

#### Units: 3

A survey of the centrality of communication processes in substantive areas of political activity. Areas of study include political speeches, election campaigns, debates, government and media relations, advertising and propaganda, and political movements. Special emphasis is placed on the relationship between public opinion and the use of rhetorical strategies, imagery, and symbolism.

#### **COMM 463 | COMMUNICATION AND SPORTS**

#### Units: 3

This course examines the numerous aspects of communication and sports in the U.S., where many of the global trends and developments in sports communication have occurred. Drawing perspectives from popular criticism and scholarly research, the course surveys the development of sports media, the coverage and business of sports media, sports media audiences and fanship, and contemporary issues in sports media, the overage and business of sports communication, sports media audiences and fanship, and contemporary issues in sports communication.

#### COMM 463W | COMMUNICATION AND SPORTS

#### Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE**

This course examines the numerous aspects of communication and sports in the U.S., where many of the global trends and developments in sports communication have occurred. Drawing perspectives from popular criticism and scholarly research, the course surveys the development of sports media, the coverage and business of sports media, sports media audiences and fanship, and contemporary issues in sports media, the overage and business of sports communication, sports media audiences and fanship, and contemporary issues in sports communication.

# COMM 475 | INTERCULTURAL COMMUNICATION Units: 3

This course allows students to explore intercultural communication theory and research within both broad and interpersonal contexts. Topics include similarities and differences in values, language, , interethnic/intergroup communication, identity and adaptation. Students will enhance flexibility with such encounters. It is recommended that students complete COMM 300 before enrolling in this course. Course may be offered to fulfill the core upper division writing requirement. Check the Schedule of Classes.

# COMM 475W | INTERCULTURAL COMMUNICATION Units: 3

This course allows students to explore intercultural communication theory and research within both broad and interpersonal contexts. Topics include similarities and differences in values, language, , interethnic/intergroup communication, identity and adaptation. Students will enhance flexibility with such encounters. It is recommended that students complete COMM 300 before enrolling in this course.

# COMM 480 | ADVANCED TOPICS IN INTERNATIONAL MEDIA Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

This upper division elective provides students an opportunity for an in-depth analysis and examination of media systems in a particular region of the world and/or transnational connections around a particular international cultural practice. Topics will vary according to the instructor and interest. General themes may include Latin American Media Systems, British Media Systems, Asian Cinema or Global Youth Culture. Course may be repeated as topics vary. It is recommended that students complete COMM 130 and COMM 380 before enrolling in this course. Course may be offered to fulfill the core upper division writing requirement. Check the Schedule of Classes.

# COMM 480W | ADVANCED TOPICS IN INTERNATIONAL MEDIA Units: 3

### **Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE**

This upper division elective provides students an opportunity for an in-depth analysis and examination of media systems in a particular region of the world and/or transnational connections around a particular international cultural practice. Topics will vary according to the instructor and interest. General themes may include Latin American Media Systems, British Media Systems, Asian Cinema or Global Youth Culture. Course may be repeated as topics vary. It is recommended that students complete COMM 130 and COMM 380 before enrolling in this course. Course may be offered to fulfill the core upper division writing requirement. Check the Schedule of Classes.

#### **COMM 482 | CHILDREN AND MEDIA**

#### Units: 3

This course is an overview of the relevant research on the role of electronic media in the lives of children. Some topics include: sex role stereotypes; violence; advertising; relationships, body image; and materialism. Students will also explore the positive influence of electronic media including its use for pro-social and educational purposes. It is recommended that students complete COMM 130 and COMM 330 before enrolling in this course. Course may be offered to fulfill the core upper division writing requirement. Check the Schedule of Classes.

#### COMM 482W | CHILDREN AND MEDIA

#### Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE**

This course is an overview of the relevant research on the role of electronic media in the lives of children. Some topics include: sex role stereotypes; violence; advertising; relationships, body image; and materialism. Students will also explore the positive influence of electronic media including its use for pro-social and educational purposes. It is recommended that students complete COMM 130 and COMM 330 before enrolling in this course. Course may be offered to fulfill the core upper division writing requirement. Check the Schedule of Classes.

#### COMM 483 | TEENS AND POPULAR CULTURE

#### Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE

This course aims to examine the complex relationship between teenagers and the popular media. Focusing primarily on American teens, various important issues we be considered, such as: how media portray teens, how corporations target teens as a market, how teens make active choices about which media they attend to and how, and how teens themselves actively create their own media and culture. Our goal is to resist simple speculation about media's effects on youth, and to instead engage with why media use is pleasurable and meaningful to young people, and how it operates in their lives. It is recommended that students complete COMM 130 and COMM 330 before enrolling in this course. Course may be offered to fulfill the core upper division writing requirement. Check the Schedule of Classes.

#### **COMM 485 | WRITING FOR MEDIA**

#### Units: 3

This course introduces students to the skills and strategies associated with writing and production in various electronic media industries. Course material surveys the industry standards media professionals bring to their work, as well as academic criticism of these practices. Students will learn how to create and criticize a variety of electronic media texts, including news packages, television narratives, and advertisements.

### COMM 485W | WRITING FOR MEDIA

#### Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE**

This course provides students an opportunity to learn skills and strategies associated with writing and production in various media forms. Course material surveys the industry standards media professionals bring to their work, as well as academic criticism of these practices. Students will learn how to create and criticize a variety of media texts, including screenplays, television narratives, and/or advertisements. It is recommended that students complete COMM 130 before enrolling in this course.

#### COMM 488 | GLOBAL TEAM DEVELOPMENT

#### Units: 3

This course is designed to further students' understanding of intercultural and small group theory, development, and research and explore how groups develop into teams. Students will have the opportunity to work in multicultural and virtual teams providing basic diversity training and development, and research. The course emphasizes a wide range and scope of topics related to teams and teamwork by addressing issues such as finding alternative solutions to problems, reaching decisions, making recommendations, and understanding the process of team and organizational development as a whole.

#### COMM 491 | VISTA STAFF

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Students interested in receiving journalism experience may participate in the publication of the USD student newspaper The Vista by serving as staff writers, editors, or working in other available positions. Enrollment is by consent of instructor

#### **COMM 493 | USD MEDIA PRACTICUM**

#### Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: COMM 220

Student media participants can register to receive credit and work in a multimedia environment. The lab will facilitate collaboration between USD's media outlets as student learn to navigate the convergent media environment. The lab will emphasize industry best practices. Student may retake course for up to a total of 3 units.

# COMM 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN COMMUNICATION STUDIES Units: 0.5-4 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Selected topics in Communication Studies will be examined. The course may be repeated as topics vary.

#### **COMM 495 | SENIOR PROJECT**

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: No

This seminar is a capstone course in which seniors produce an original research or creative project. The course addresses research methods, critical thinking, and the writing process. Students will present the results of their work. Recommended for students planning on pursuing graduate studies.

#### COMM 496 | RESEARCH EXPERIENCE

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: COMM 265

The goal of the advanced Research Experience is to provide communication studies majors with an applied experience in the conduct of original academic research by assisting on a faculty-led scholarly project. The experience is designed to build expressly on the knowledge students gain in COMM 265 or a more advanced research methods courses. Students will meet with a faculty member, with whom a research relationship is established, on an on-going basis to discuss the research project, assess the student's role and responsibilities, and to discuss the process of conducting scholarly research. Students may participate in a range of research activities, including but not limited to: survey construction and design, project management, participant solicitation, experimental research, qualitative interviewing, focus group moderation, fieldwork, literature searches, data entry, data analysis, critical analysis, political economy inquiries, and writing of instruments and manuscripts. Students must register with a specific faculty member with whom they complete a contract outlining the roles and responsibilities of the student and faculty member.

#### **COMM 498 | COMMUNICATION STUDIES INTERNSHIP**

Units: 2-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Prerequisites: COMM 300 (Can be taken Concurrently)

An experiential education course in which students participate as interns in either radio or television, public relations, advertising, or some facet of organizational communication. Open only to communication studies majors or minors of second-semester junior status or higher. No more than 3 internship units may be applied toward the major or minor. Students should consult the communication studies Internship Director or go to www.sandiego.edu/commstudies/interns for details about enrollment and qualification.

#### **COMM 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY**

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Students interested in completing an independent research project with guidance from a faculty member may consider independent study. Students should consult a faculty member who has expertise in their interest area and be prepared to explain their intended project or research question(s). The student and instructor agree upon specific requirements. Registration is by consent of instructor and requires the completion of the independent study form.

## **Education Recreation**

The university offers a variety of educational recreation courses to students. One-half to one units of credit per semester is available to students for participating in recreation courses. A total not to exceed four recreation units is applicable toward graduation requirements. Courses may be repeated for credit. No more than two recreation courses may be taken in a semester. Courses may be taken on a pass/fail basis only.

Recreation courses cover the subject areas of aquatics, martial arts, dance, fitness, health/safety/wellness, leisure time activities, Mission Bay Aquatic Center courses, recreation sports, and sports clubs. Specific classes are announced each semester. Go to Campus Recreation (http://www.sandiego.edu/campusrecreation) for course descriptions. Courses may be repeated each semester. See also Intercollegiate Athletics (http://www.usdtoreros.com).

EDRC 100 | SCUBA DIVING

Units: 0.5-1

**EDRC 101 | SWIMMIMG CONDITIONING** 

**Units: 0.5** 

**EDRC 102 | WATER POLO COED** 

**Units: 0.5** 

EDRC 103 | LIFEGUARDING/WATER SAFETY INSTRUCTOR

Units: 0.5

EDRC 104 | SWIMMING

Units: 0.5

EDRC 105 | ADAPTIVE AQUATICS/WATER FITNESS

Units: 0.5

EDRC 106 | SWIM TRAINING

**Units: 0.5** 

EDRC 107 | MIXED MARTIAL ARTS

Units: 0.5

EDRC 108 | ESCRIMA

**Units: 0.5** 

EDRC 109 | KENDO

**Units: 0.5** 

EDRC 110 | KARATE

Units: 0.5

**EDRC 111 | SELF DEFENSE** 

Units: 0.5

EDRC 112 | TAI KWON DO

**Units: 0.5** 

EDRC 113 | TAI CHI

**Units: 0.5** 

EDRC 114 | AIKEDO

**Units: 0.5** 

EDRC 115 | JUDO

**Units: 0.5** 

EDRC 116 | KUNG FU

**Units: 0.5** 

EDRC 117 | JAPANESE SAMURAI MARTIAL ARTS

**Units: 0.5** 

EDRC 118 | BRAZILIAN JIU-JITSU

**Units: 0.5** 

**EDRC 119 | MEXICAN DANCE** 

Units: 0.5-1

EDRC 120 | BALLET

**Units: 0.5** 

**EDRC 121 | BALLROOM DANCE** 

**Units: 0.5** 

**EDRC 122 | TAP** 

Units: 0.5

**EDRC 123 | JAZZ BEGINNING** 

**Units: 0.5** 

EDRC 124 | JAZZ/CONTEMORARY DANCE

**Units: 0.5** 

EDRC 125 | DANCE PERFORMANCE WORKSHOP/MUSICAL

THEATRE DANCE

Units: 0.5-1

EDRC 126 | STRETCH AND YOGA FOR FLEXIBILITY AND

RELAXATION

Units: 0.5

EDRC 127 | SALSA/TANGO

Units: 0.5-1

EDRC 128 | SWING DANCING/COUNTRY WESTERN DANCE/LATIN

BALLROOM

**Units: 0.5** 

EDRC 129 | POLYNESIAN DANCE/BELLY DANCING/HAWAIIAN

DANCE Units: 0.5

**EDRC 130 | FITNESS WEIGHT TRAINING** 

**Units: 0.5** 

EDRC 131 | POWER DEVELOPMENT FOR SPORTS PERFORMANCE

Units: 0.5

EDRC 132 | FITNESS HIP HOP/ZUMBA CARDIO DANCE

**Units: 0.5** 

**EDRC 133 | FITNESS BOXING** 

**Units: 0.5** 

EDRC 134 | FITNESS AEROBICS/ABS AND TONING TRAINING

**Units: 0.5** 

**EDRC 159 | INFORMAL RECREATION** 

Units: 0.5 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

includes games such as com hole, bocce ball, spike ball and more.

Relax and have fun in this informal yet instructional "team lawn games" class that

**EDRC 135 | FITNESS POLYNESIAN AEROBICS** EDRC 160 | BEGINNING ROCK CLIMBING/VERTICAL WORLD Units: 0.5 **Units: 0.5** EDRC 136 | FITNESS PILATES/SCULPT **EDRC 161 | BACKPACKING** Units: 0.5 Units: 0.5 EDRC 137 | RUNNING FOR FUN AND FITNESS/BOOT CAMP **EDRC 162 | KAYAKING** Units: 0.5 **Units: 0.5 EDRC 163 | FISHING** EDRC 138 | FITNESS TRIATHLON MULTI-LEVEL **Units: 0.5 Units: 0.5 EDRC 139 | FITNESS AQUA AEROBICS EDRC 164 | SNOW SKIING** Units: 0.5 **Units: 0.5 EDRC 140 | CYCLING EDRC 165 | LEAVE NO TRACE** Units: 0.5 Units: 0.5 **EDRC 141 | MOUNTAIN BIKING MULTI-LEVEL EDRC 166 | KAYAK/CANOE BASICS Units: 0.5** Units: 0.5 **EDRC 142 | MEN'S CREW** EDRC 167 | CHALLENGE COURSE FACILITATION/NEW GUIDE **Units: 0.5** DEVELOPMENT **Units: 0.5 EDRC 143 | FITNESS SPINNING Units: 0.5 EDRC 168 | SAN DIEGO OUTDOORS Units: 0.5** EDRC 144 | FITNESS 101 **Units: 0.5 EDRC 169 | FLOWBOARDING** Units: 0.5 EDRC 145 | COMMUNITY SAFETY AND CPR Units: 0.5 EDRC 170 | SAILING BASIC TO ADVANCED Units: 0.5-1 EDRC 146 | ADVANCED FIRST AID/CPR/AED/OXYGEN **EDRC 171 | SURFING Units: 0.5** Units: 0.5 EDRC 147 | FIRST AID RESPONDING TO EMERGENCIES EDRC 172 | WATER SKI MULTI-LEVEL Units: 1 Units: 0.5 EDRC 148 | WELLNESS AND PERSONAL FITNESS/PRACTICE OF MINDFUL HAPPINESS/SPORTS AND NUTRITION **EDRC 173 | WAKEBOARDING** Units: 0.5 Units: 0.5 EDRC 149 | PERSONAL/GROUP/ATHLETIC/STRENGTH TRAINING EDRC 174 | KAYAKING (SEA) PREP COURSES **Units: 0.5** Units: 0.5 **EDRC 175 | WIND SURFING EDRC 150 | HORSEMANSHIP ENGLISH Units: 0.5** Units: 0.5 **EDRC 176 | MBAC MULTI WATER SPORTS EDRC 151 | HORSEMANSHIP WESTERN** Units: 0.5 **Units: 0.5 EDRC 177 | STAND UP PADDLE BOARDING EDRC 152 | HORSE POLO** Units: 0.5 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit) **Units: 0.5** EDRC 180 | ARCHERY **EDRC 153 | MASSAGE Units: 0.5 Units: 0.5** EDRC 181 | BADMINTON/BASKET BALL/VOLLEYBALL/SOCCER/ **BEACH VOLLEYBALL** EDRC 154 | YOGA **Units: 0.5** Units: 0.5 EDRC 182 | GOLF **EDRC 155 | SAN DIEGO ATTRACTIONS** Units: 0.5-1 **Units: 0.5 EDRC 156 | SAN DIEGO CULTURE EDRC 183 | TENNIS Units: 0.5** Units: 0.5 EDRC 157 | COOKING FOR FUN/AUTOMOTIVE BASICS **EDRC 184 | ICE SKATING** Units: 0.5 **Units: 0.5** 

**EDRC 185 | RACQUETBALL BEGINNING** 

**EDRC 186 | BOWLING COED** 

Units: 0.5

EDRC 187 | FENCING FOIL I AND II

Units: 0.5

**EDRC 188 | BASEBALL THEORY** 

**Units: 0.5** 

**EDRC 189 | SPORTS OFFICIATING** 

**Units: 0.5** 

EDRC 190 | CLUB SOCCER/RUGBY TEAM

**Units: 0.5** 

EDRC 191 | CLUB LACROSSE TEAM

**Units: 0.5** 

**EDRC 192 | CLUB VOLLEYBALL TEAM** 

**Units: 0.5** 

EDRC 193 | CLUB TEAM I

Units: 0.5

**EDRC 194 | CLUB SURF TEAM** 

Units: 0.5

**EDRC 195 | CLUB WATER POLO** 

Units: 0.5

EDRC 196 | CLUB EQUESTRIAN/ROLLER HOCKEY CLUB

**Units: 0.5** 

**EDRC 197 | RECREATION ACTIVITES - VARIOUS** 

**Units: 0.5** 

**EDRC 198 | CLUB ACTIVITES II** 

**Units: 0.5-1** 

# **English**

### Chair

Abraham Stoll, PhD

# **Faculty**

Malachi Black, PhD

Cynthia Caywood, PhD

Dennis M. Clausen, PhD

Halina Duraj, PhD

Carlton D. Floyd, PhD

Maura Giles-Watson, PhD

Mary Hotz, RSCJ, PhD

Koonyong Kim, PhD

Marcelle Maese-Cohen, PhD

Joseph McGowan, PhD

Brad Melekian, MFA

Amanda Moulder, PhD

Ivan Ortiz, PhD

Atreyee Phukan, PhD

Fred Miller Robinson, PhD

Stefan Vander Elst, PhD

Irene Williams, PhD

Why Major in English? Why not?—if you love to read, write and think critically and imaginatively. As a major in the University of San Diego's English Department, you will have the opportunity to explore a wide range of genres—poems, plays, novels, essays, letters, films and new media—from a variety of historical contexts, medieval to contemporary, illuminated by timely theoretical and philosophical questions. Early in your major, you are invited to study literary texts that serve as a foundation for various traditions and cultures and to hone critical reading and writing skills necessary for success at the upper-division level. There, through expansive offerings in creative writing, literary histories, cultures and theories, you explore and discover the complexities of the human experience and come to appreciate the power of language to shape thought.

Frightened to pursue the impractical? Think again. Your practical skills of close reading and analysis, your clear writing, your sense of narrative and the power of argument, your creativity, and your capacity to communicate effectively will make you an attractive candidate for a number of positions. The English major develops proficiencies of considerable value to employers, from business, communications, politics, public service and education. It also prepares you for graduate work in a range of fields, including law and business. Lessons learned and fostered in the English major will serve you well throughout your personal and professional lives.

# Preparation for the Major

Code	Title	Unit
<b>Lower-Division</b>		
ENGL 250	Literary Foundations	3
ENGL 260	Critical Reading	3
Select 6 units fro	m the following:	6
ENGL 220	Studies in Genre	
ENGL 226	Studies in Literary Traditions	
ENGL 230	Studies in United States Literature	
ENGL 236	Studies in World Literature	
ENGL 240	Shakespeare	
Total Units		12

# Major Requirements

Students majoring in English must satisfy the core curriculum requirements as set forth in this course catalog and complete all major requirements as presented in the following schedule:

Code	Title	Units
<b>Upper-Division</b> <sup>1</sup>		
ENGL 410	Advanced Writing in the English Major	3
Literary Histories -	- Select two of the following courses:	6
ENGL 311	Genres and Traditions	
ENGL 315	Literary Periods	
ENGL 319	Topics in Literary Histories	
Literary Cultures a	and Theories - Select two of the following courses:	6
ENGL 321	Literature of Race, Gender and Sexuality	
ENGL 323	Perspectives on US Society	
ENGL 325	Literary Theory	
ENGL 329	Topics in Literary Cultures and Theories	
Upper-Division Ur	nits	33

Upper-Division Electives (18 units, including at least two Literature courses)

Upper-Division Literature courses <sup>2</sup> 6

Additional Upper-Division electives <sup>3</sup> 12

Total Units 33

- The department recommends that majors and minors complete the lowerdivision Literary Foundations and Critical Readings requirement before beginning upper-division work. We also recommend that the Advanced Writing course be taken in the junior year.
- Literature courses include ENGL 300, ENGL 311, ENGL 315, ENGL 319, ENGL 321, ENGL 323, ENGL 325, ENGL 329, ENGL 330, ENGL 331, ENGL 333, ENGL 335, ENGL 337, ENGL 338, ENGL 340, ENGL 341, ENGL 342, ENGL 343, ENGL 344, ENGL 348, ENGL 352, ENGL 355, ENGL 356, ENGL 357, ENGL 358, ENGL 359, ENGL 360, ENGL 362, ENGL 364, ENGL 366, ENGL 367, ENGL 368, ENGL 370, ENGL 372, ENGL 374, ENGL 377, ENGL 420, ENGL 495.
- Additional upper-division electives may be fulfilled with any literature course or creative writing course. Up to six units may be Southeast San Diego Tutoring Program (ENGL 492), Writing Center Tutors (ENGL 493), or Internship (ENGL 498).

# The Emphasis in Creative Writing

The creative writing emphasis in poetry, fiction or creative non-fiction builds upon the foundation established in ENGL 301 and prepares students for courses in the genre they choose to explore. More specifically, the creative writing courses help students realize the daily discipline, diligence, and concentrated attention required of the serious writer. They promote writing as an art, craft, and ultimately a vocation—one not to be entered into lightly. All students who continue from the introductory to intermediate and advanced levels also become more discerning readers.

Code	Title	Unit
Emphasis Require	ment	
ENGL 301	Introduction to Creative Writing	3
Intermediate and A	Advanced courses in a single genre	6
ENGL 381 & ENGL 401	Intermediate Poetry Writing and Advanced Poetry Writing	
OR		
ENGL 382 & ENGL 402	Intermediate Fiction Writing and Advanced Fiction Writing	
OR		
ENGL 383 & ENGL 403	Intermediate Creative Nonfiction Writing and Advanced Creative Nonfiction Writing	
Select 1 "crossover from the following	r" course in a genre other than the student's specified genre choices*:	3
ENGL 381	Intermediate Poetry Writing	
ENGL 382	Intermediate Fiction Writing	
ENGL 383	Intermediate Creative Nonfiction Writing	
ENGL 385	Topics in Creative Writing	
ENGL 304W	Advanced Composition	
THEA 365W	Playwriting	
Total Units		12

\*Other upper-division creative writing courses students wish to substitute for their "crossover" course must be approved by the program director and English department chair.

# Recommended Program of Study

Fulfill the lower-division requirements in your first and second years. The lower-division introduces you to foundational works (ENGL 250) and to critical approaches (ENGL 260), and allows you to explore among electives. In the upper-division, it is recommended that you take ENGL 410 early on, as preparation for advanced work. You will study Literary Histories and Literary Cultures and Theories, and in the rest of your upper-division studies you may pursue your interests among a variety of literature courses, creative writing courses, and internships and research opportunities. All students should consider taking the English capstone, Senior Project.

Distributional requirements can also be fulfilled by certain sections of ENGL 494. See the department chair.

# **Upper-Division Electives**

English majors take a total of 18 units of upper-division electives. Any course in the 300s or 400s counts as an elective - students are encouraged to explore. In the Creative Writing Emphasis, 12 units will be in creative writing, and the remaining six units must be in literature courses (see list above). Majors may take a maximum of six units in tutoring and internships (ENGL 492, ENGL 493, ENGL 498).

# **Advanced Writing Courses**

All English majors must take ENGL 410, which fulfills the core requirement for Advanced Writing. Majors may not fulfill the Core Advanced Writing requirement with ENGL 304, although they may take this course as an upper-division elective.

# The English Minor

Minor Requirements (18 units)

Code	Title	Hours
<b>Lower Division</b>		
ENGL 260	Critical Reading	3
Select one Lower-l	Division Elective Course	3
ENGL 220	Studies in Genre	
ENGL 226	Studies in Literary Traditions	
ENGL 230	Studies in United States Literature	
ENGL 236	Studies in World Literature	
ENGL 240	Shakespeare	
ENGL 250	Literary Foundations	
<b>Upper Division</b>		
Select one upper-d	ivision Literary Histories or Literary Cultures and	3
Theories course		
ENGL 311	Genres and Traditions	
ENGL 315	Literary Periods	
ENGL 319	Topics in Literary Histories	
ENGL 321	Literature of Race, Gender and Sexuality	
ENGL 325	Literary Theory	
ENGL 329	Topics in Literary Cultures and Theories	
Upper-Division Ele	ectives (nine units, including at least one Literature course)	
Upper-Division Li	terature course 1	3
Additional Upper-	Division Electives <sup>2</sup>	6

- Literature courses include ENGL 300, ENGL 311, ENGL 315, ENGL 319, ENGL 321, ENGL 325, ENGL 329, ENGL 330, ENGL 331, ENGL 333, ENGL 335, ENGL 337, ENGL 338, ENGL 340, ENGL 341, ENGL 342, ENGL 343, ENGL 344, ENGL 348, ENGL 352, ENGL 355, ENGL 356, ENGL 357, ENGL 358, ENGL 359, ENGL 360, ENGL 362, ENGL 364, ENGL 366, ENGL 367, ENGL 368, ENGL 370, ENGL 372, ENGL 374, ENGL 377, ENGL 420, ENGL 495.
- Additional Upper-Division Electives may be fulfilled with any literature course or creative writing course. Up to 3 units may be Southeast San Diego Tutoring Program (ENGL 492), Writing Center Tutors (ENGL 493), or Internship (ENGL 498).

#### ENGL 000 | TOPICS

**Units: 2-4** 

# ENGL 110 $\mid$ INTRODUCTION TO COLLEGE WRITING FOR ESL STUDENTS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

A writing workshop designed for non-native speakers of English to prepare them to take ENGL 121. Instruction in the fundamentals of various modes of written expression, including English grammar, sentence structure, understanding the importance of audience, editing and revision. Readings selected from non-fictional prose works and film documentaries. Students are encouraged to use the Writing Center, staffed by trained peer-tutors. Every semester.

## ENGL 115 | INTRODUCTION TO COLLEGE WRITING

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

A writing workshop to prepare students to take ENGL 121. Instruction in the fundamentals of various modes of written expression, including sentence work, understanding the importance of audience, editing, and revision. Readings from non-fictional prose works. Students are encouraged to use the Writing Center, staffed by trained peer-tutors. Every semester.

#### ENGL 121 | COMPOSITION AND LITERATURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

### **Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE**

Fulfills the core curriculum requirement in lower division written literacy, and should be taken within the first four semesters. Practice in developing skills of close observation, investigation, critical analysis, and informed judgment in response to literary texts. Students are encouraged to use the Writing Center, staffed by trained peer-tutors. Every semester.

#### ENGL 215 | CHILDREN'S LITERATURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

### Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Reserved for students in credential programs. Literary and popular texts produced for children. Emphasis on analysis of how children's texts construct gender, sex, race, class, family structure, power relations, and violence, for example. Includes phonemic awareness, word analysis, and field experience.

### ENGL 220 | STUDIES IN GENRE

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

### Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Readings in a type of literature, ranging through periods and nationalities. May include drama, narrative, epic, tragedy, comedy, biography, autobiography, or others. Every semester.

#### **ENGL 222 | POETRY**

Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE**

An introduction to the study of poetry. Readings include a variety of poetic forms and range across literary periods and nationalities. Every semester.

#### ENGL 225 | STUDIES IN UNITED STATES LITERATURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

Readings in some period or aspect of the literature of the United States, including that of underrepresented groups. Every semester.

#### **ENGL 226 | STUDIES IN LITERARY TRADITIONS**

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Literary Inquiry area

Readings in a particular body of literature, which may be defined formally, topically, ethnically, or otherwise, as it develops over a period of time. Every semester

#### **ENGL 228 | STUDIES IN WORLD LITERATURE**

**Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Readings in some period or aspect of literature outside England and the United States. Works not originally in English will be read in translation. Every semester.

### ENGL 230 | STUDIES IN UNITED STATES LITERATURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Core Attributes: First year Integration, Literary Inquiry area, Domestic Diversity level 1

Readings in some period or aspect of the literature of the United States, including that of underrepresented groups. Every semester.

#### **ENGL 236 | STUDIES IN WORLD LITERATURE**

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Core Attributes: First year Integration, Literary Inquiry area

Readings in some period or aspect of literature outside England and the United States. Works not originally in English will be read in translation. Every semester.

#### **ENGL 240 | SHAKESPEARE**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Studies in the plays and poems of William Shakespeare, including the major genres (tragedies, comedies, histories, and romances). Every semester.

### **ENGL 250 | LITERARY FOUNDATIONS**

**Units: 3 Repeatability: No** 

#### Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Focuses on texts that have provided a foundation for literature written in English and have a current presence in literary studies. Topics might include the Bible, British Literature to 1800, Ovid, Dante, etc.

#### ENGL 260 | CRITICAL READING

### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Focuses on developing skills essential to the major or minor, including close reading, contextualized study via basic criticism and theory, literary devices and genres (at least 2), and fundamentals of literary research. Enrollment restricted to English majors and minors only.

#### ENGL 292 | SOUTHEAST SAN DIEGO TUTORING PROGRAM

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Practical experience tutoring students in low-income schools, grades K-8. Open to all USD students, regardless of major. Offered every semester for one to three units.

#### **ENGL 294 | SPECIAL TOPICS**

#### **Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)**

Lower division courses that treat a special topic, genre, or author. See departmental list of offerings each semester.

#### **ENGL 298 | INTERNSHIP**

**Units: 1-3** 

#### Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Practical experience tutoring students in low-income schools, grades K-8. Open to all USD students, regardless of major. Offered for one to three units of upper or lower division credit. Every semester.

#### ENGL 300 | BRITISH LITERATURE TO 1800

#### Units: 3

This course presents a survey of English literature from the seventh century (Caedmon) to 1800, including texts representative of the Old English and Medieval periods, the Renaissance, and the 18th century. Topics will include the evolution of the language and the development of literary/poetic form as well as historical and cultural contexts. Texts and writers usually include Beowulf, Chaucer, Spenser, Shakespeare, Donne, Milton, Pope, Swift, and others. Every semester.

#### **ENGL 301 | INTRODUCTION TO CREATIVE WRITING**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

A workshop on imaginative writing, with examples drawn from literature.

#### ENGL 304W | ADVANCED COMPOSITION

**Units: 3-4** 

#### Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency

A workshop course in the writing of expository, descriptive, and critical prose. This course is designed to fulfill the upper division written literacy requirement for non-English majors; it will fulfill an upper division elective for English majors. Every semester.

#### **ENGL 311 | GENRES AND TRADITIONS**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Focuses on a literary genre or tradition within a historical or developmental context. Emphasis on literature across time and foundational texts in conversation with contemporary works; attention given to diversity.

#### **ENGL 312 | MEDIEVAL STUDIES**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

This course considers literary texts composed from late antiquity through to the 15th century that may be drawn from European and other traditions of the period (Persian, Arabic, Indian, Slavic, Chinese, others). The course may include such topics as: the Heroic age; the Arthurian cycle; the age of chivalry; the Crusades. Texts are generally read in translation. May be repeated when topic changes.

#### **ENGL 315 | LITERARY PERIODS**

### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Focuses on literary periods and movements. Emphasis on: literature across time; literature in historical contexts; foundational texts in conversation with past or contemporary works. Attention given to diversity.

#### **ENGL 319 | TOPICS IN LITERARY HISTORIES**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Treats a special topic or theme within literary history.

#### ENGL 321 | LITERATURE OF RACE, GENDER AND SEXUALITY

### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Focuses on ways of reading literature, cultural formation and theory with a focus on race, gender and/or sexuality. Will include close reading, contextualized study via basic criticism and theory, and literary devices. Will include at least two genres.

#### **ENGL 323 | PERSPECTIVES ON US SOCIETY**

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

**Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 2** 

Focuses on ways of understanding society in the United States, as formed by cultural and literary texts. Attention to the dynamics of race, ethnicity, gender, sexuality, disability, and other critical forms of diversity.

#### **ENGL 325 | LITERARY THEORY**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Investigation of the values and assumptions that inform literature and literary criticism through readings in important theorists.

#### **ENGL 329 | TOPICS IN LITERARY CULTURES AND THEORIES**

### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

A special topic that focuses on ways of reading literature, cultural formations, and literary theories. Includes close reading, contextualized study via basic criticism and theory, literary devices. Includes at least two genres.

#### ENGL 330 | DANTE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Dante's Divine Comedy, Vita Nuova, and selected other works in their literary and historical contexts. Texts will be read in English translation.

#### **ENGL 331 | MEDIEVAL STUDIES**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

This course considers literary texts composed from late antiquity through to the 15th century that may be drawn from European and other traditions of the period (Persian, Arabic, Indian, Slavic, Chinese, others). The course may include such topics as: the Heroic age; the Arthurian cycle; the age of chivalry; the Crusades. Texts are generally read in translation. May be repeated when topic changes.

#### **ENGL 333 | CHAUCER**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

The life and work of Geoffrey Chaucer, set in the historical and cultural context of late 14th-century England. The course gives particular attention to The Canterbury Tales, as well as to some of Chaucer's shorter poems. Readings will be in Middle English.

#### **ENGL 335 | RENAISSANCE DRAMA**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Studies in the English drama of the 16th and 17th centuries, focusing on such contemporaries of Shakespeare as Marlowe, Jonson, Webster, and others.

### **ENGL 336 | EARLY NOVEL**

#### **Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)**

A study of the novel as a literary art form from its origins to the mid-nineteenth century. Focus on the poetics of the novel as a literary genre; may include specialized concentration on the development of form, mode (e.g., epistolary) or a single writer. All novels will be in English or English translation.

#### **ENGL 337 | RENAISSANCE STUDIES**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Studies in the literature and culture of early-modern England. Readings may include poetry, drama, and prose, fiction and non-fiction.

### ENGL 338 | MILTON

### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Studies in the poetry and prose of John Milton, with emphasis on Paradise Lost.

#### **ENGL 340 | RESTORATION STUDIES**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Studies in British literature written between 1640 and 1700. A multi-genre course that may include male and female writers such as Phillips, Milton, Behn, Congreve, Wycherley, Dryden, Pepys, Astell and others. Readings are grounded in the social, intellectual, political, and cultural history of the period.

#### **ENGL 341 | EIGHTEENTH CENTURY STUDIES**

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

#### Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Studies in British and American literature written between 1680 and 1820. A multi-genre course that may include may and female writers such as Pope, Swift, Haywood, Montagu, Franklin, Johnson, Burney, Jefferson, Burney, Wheatley, Cowper, Burke, Radcliffe. Readings are grounded in the social, intellectual, political and cultural history of the period.

#### **ENGL 342 | ROMANTICISM**

#### **Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)**

Poetry and prose of first- and second-generation Romantic writers. May include Blake, the Wordsworths, Coleridge, Byron, the Shelleys, and Keats, as well as European and American Romantic writers.

#### **ENGL 343 | EARLY NOVEL**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

#### Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

A study of the novel as a literary art form from its origins to the mid-nineteenth century. Focus on the poetics of the novel as a literary genre; may include specialized concentration on the development of form, mode (e.g., epistolary) or a single writer. All novels will be in English or English translation.

#### **ENGL 344 | VICTORIAN STUDIES**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Poetry and prose of the Victorian period. May include works by Carlyle, Tennyson, the Brownings, the Pre-Raphaelites, Arnold, Wilde, Ruskin, Newman, Mill, and letters, journals, and diaries of the period.

#### **ENGL 348 | NINETEENTH CENTURY NOVEL**

#### **Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)**

Readings in Austen, Dickens, the Brontës, George Eliot, Hardy, Conrad, and others. May also include letters, essays, and verse of the period.

#### ENGL 352 | UNITED STATES LITERATURE TO 1900

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Readings will include works by Bradstreet, Hawthorne, Cooper, Poe, Twain, Dickinson, James, Whitman, Melville, and others.

#### ENGL 355 | EARLY UNITED STATES LITERATURE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Readings may include works by Franklin, Poe, Dickinson, Melville, Hawthorne, Fuller, Douglass, Emerson, Peabody, Thoreau, Whitman, or others.

### ENGL 356 | UNITED STATES FICTION 1900-1940

#### Units: 3

Readings will include works by Crane, Robinson, Dreiser, Wharton, James, Cather, Frost, Fitzgerald, Hemingway, and others.

#### ENGL 357 | MODERN UNITED STATES LITERATURE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

### Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE

Readings may include works by James, Adams, Gilman, DuBois, Stein, Wright, W.C. Williams, T. Williams, Baldwin, Rich, Sexton, Lorde, Faulkner, Fitzgerald, Ginsberg, Stevens, or others.

#### ENGL 358 | UNITED STATES ETHNIC LITERATURE

### **Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)**

# Core Attributes: First year Integration, Literary Inquiry area, Domestic Diversity level 1

Studies in African-American, Asian-American/Pacific Islander, Chicano/Latino, and Native-American literatures. May be taught from a comparatist perspective and include other U.S. ethnic groups. Historical, political, and cultural material may be provided as context.

#### **ENGL 359 | MODERN UNITED STATES FICTION**

#### **Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)**

Major works in relation to issues in 20th-century U.S. literature and culture. May include novels or short stories by Wharton, Stein, Hemingway, Faulkner, Fitzgerald, Wright, Morrison, or others.

#### ENGL 360 | MODERN AND CONTEMPORARY POETRY

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

A selection of poets from early modernists to the present. May include works by Yeats, Stein, Eliot, Stevens, Hughes, Brooks, Rukeyser, Sexton, Yau, or others.

#### ENGL 362 | MODERN AND CONTEMPORARY DRAMA

#### **Units: 3 Repeatability: No**

A study of selected plays from the past 125 years. Playwrights may include Ibsen, Chekhov, Shaw, Brecht, O'Neill, Churchill, Mamet, August Wilson, or others.

#### **ENGL 363 | GLOBAL STUDIES**

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: First year Integration, Literary Inquiry area, Global Diversity level 1

Studies in literatures from across the globe, with a focus on political and social contexts.

#### ENGL 364 | GLOBAL LITERATURE AND CULTURE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area, Global Diversity level 2

Engaging with issues of diversity and social justice in a global context, this course examines literature and other cultural forms and media from various geographic regions, including Africa, South Asia, the Asia-Pacific, Latin America, and the Caribbean.

# ENGL 366 | MODERN AND CONTEMPORARY EUROPEAN LITERATURE

#### **Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)**

Readings may include works in translation by Chekhov, Dostoevsky, Kafka, Colette, Tsvetayeva, Camus, Levi, Duras, Handke, Bernhard, Perec, Jelinek, Drndic or others.

#### **ENGL 367 | LONDON PLAYS IN PRODUCTION**

**Units: 3 Repeatability: No** 

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area, Literary Inquiry area

A study abroad course, which immerses students in London theater. Students study and read a range of work that may include classical, modern, multicultural, and experimental plays and musicals, and visit venues ranging from the Royal National Theatre to abandoned warehouses. This course is cross-listed between English and Theatre, and can fulfill the Literary or Artistic Inquiry Core requirement, and major or minor upper division requirements in English or Theatre Arts.

### ENGL 368 | MODERN AND CONTEMPORARY BRITISH LITERATURE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Major works in relation to issues in 20th-century British literature and culture. Writers may include Conrad, Lawrence, Joyce, Forster, Woolf, Shaw, Auden, Lessing, or others.

#### ENGL 370 | MODERN AND CONTEMPORARY FICTION

### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Studies in selected works of recent fiction from around the world.

#### **ENGL 372 | FILM STUDIES**

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

#### Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Aspects of film as narrative are considered. Topics may include film genres (the silents and early talkies, historical dramas, film noir, cinéma vérité), cinematic adaptation of literary texts, film theory, and the history of film.

#### **ENGL 374 | GENDER AND LITERATURE**

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

Studies in the social and cultural construction of gender in literature and literary theory, as well as the impact of gender on the formation of literary canons.

#### **ENGL 375 | INTRODUCTION TO CREATIVE WRITING**

Units: 3

A workshop on imaginative writing, with examples drawn from literature.

### ENGL 377 | DEVELOPMENT OF THE ENGLISH LANGUAGE

**Units: 3 Repeatability: No** 

Studies in the phonology, morphology, syntax, semantics, and pragmatics of the English language; synchronic and diachronic variation; current theories of the grammar of English; theories of language acquisition and contact. Required of teacher credential candidates.

#### **ENGL 381 | INTERMEDIATE POETRY WRITING**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: ENGL 375

Workshop in poetry writing with examples drawn from literature.

#### **ENGL 382 | INTERMEDIATE FICTION WRITING**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No Prerequisites: ENGL 375

Workshop in fiction writing, especially the short story, with examples drawn from  $% \left( 1\right) =\left( 1\right) \left( 1\right)$ 

literature.

### ENGL 383 | INTERMEDIATE CREATIVE NONFICTION WRITING

Units: 3 Repeatability: No Prerequisites: ENGL 375

Workshop in creative nonfiction writing, with examples drawn from literature.

#### **ENGL 385 | TOPICS IN CREATIVE WRITING**

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Prerequisites: ENGL 301

Workshop discussion and analysis of student poetry, fiction, or drama (including

screenwriting).

#### ENGL 401 | ADVANCED POETRY WRITING

**Units: 3 Repeatability: No** Prerequisites: ENGL 381

Investigates and hones the craft of poetry.

#### **ENGL 402 | ADVANCED FICTION WRITING**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No Prerequisites: ENGL 382

Workshop to discuss recently published short fiction and students' stories.

#### **ENGL 403 | ADVANCED CREATIVE NONFICTION WRITING**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No Prerequisites: ENGL 383

Workshop to discuss published creative nonfiction writing and students' own

work.

#### ENGL 410 | ADVANCED WRITING IN THE ENGLISH MAJOR

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency

Prerequisites: ENGL 260

Fulfills the Core requirement for Advanced Writing, with attention to the literary and scholarly skills needed in the English Major. Students practice all phases of writing, including research, invention, drafting, revision and editing. Topics vary. Required for English Majors.

#### ENGL 420 | ADVANCED STUDIES IN SHAKESPEARE

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: ENGL 240 (Can be taken Concurrently)

Further study of some aspect of Shakespeare's work: particular plays, genres, themes, etc. Topic varies. Spring semester.

#### ENGL 492 | SOUTHEAST SAN DIEGO TUTORING PROGRAM

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Practical experience tutoring students in low-income schools, grades K-8. Open to all USD students, regardless of major. Offered every semester for one to three units

#### **ENGL 493 | WRITING CENTER TUTORS**

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

**Core Attributes: Law - Experiential** 

Theory and practice for Writing Center tutors. Consent of Writing Center director required. Every semester.

#### **ENGL 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS**

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Courses that treat a special topic, genre, or author. See departmental list of course offerings each semester.

#### **ENGL 495 | SENIOR PROJECT**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

A capstone course designed to help seniors produce an original research project. Addresses research methods, critical thinking, and writing process. Recommended for students planning on graduate work.

#### ENGL 496 | RESEARCH

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Students participate in ongoing research projects and publications, under the guidance of English faculty. Current projects include: The Tudor Plays Project and The Alcalá Review. See faculty for more information.

#### **ENGL 498 | INTERNSHIP**

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Internship opportunities in the workplace or community involving writing or reading may taken for credit, with the oversight of English faculty. For more information, and for assistance finding an internship, see the English Department website.

### ENGL 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Arranged with the consent of a faculty advisor and the department chair. Restricted to upper division English majors or students who have completed at least one upper division literature course.

# **Environmental and Ocean Sciences**

### Chair

Sarah C. Gray, PhD

# **Faculty**

Elizabeth D. Baker Treloar, MS

Michel A. Boudrias, PhD

Eric Cathcart, MS

Ronald S. Kaufmann, PhD

Bethany O'Shea, PhD

Jennifer C. Prairie, PhD

Nathalie B. Reyns, PhD

Steven P. Searcy, PhD

Drew M. Talley, PhD

Suzanne C. Walther, PhD

Zhi-Yong Yin, PhD

# Affiliated Faculty

Julia Miller Cantzler, JD, PhD

Hugh I. Ellis, PhD

Mary Sue Lowery, PhD

Andrew Tirrell, JD, MALD, PhD

Mark Woods, PhD

### Introduction

The environmental and ocean sciences major, offered by the Department of Environmental and Ocean Sciences, is intended for students interested in the natural world, with three distinct pathways that focus on marine ecology, environmental sciences or environmental studies. All pathways are designed with an interdisciplinary approach, either within the natural sciences (marine ecology and environmental science pathways) or across the natural sciences, social sciences and humanities (environmental studies pathway). The curriculum trains students to apply the scientific method to study critical environmental issues while promoting ethical judgment and behavior as it relates to the scientific process, environmental awareness, and the role humans play within the dynamic earth system. The environmental and ocean sciences major offers students intellectually challenging conceptual training coupled with practical hands-on experience in the field and lab to prepare them for graduate school and diverse environmental career opportunities.

### Structure

The environmental and ocean sciences major offers a common preparatory curriculum for all three pathways, designed to prepare students for both the core upper division environmental science classes and the suite of electives they will take as part of the major. Several of the courses in the preparation for the major satisfy core curriculum requirements. Following the common preparatory courses, all students take two gateway courses into the major: a) an in-depth analysis of contemporary environmental issues, and b) an introduction to field and research applications, in which students conduct interdisciplinary marine research in local ecosystems. During the junior and senior years, students take courses in one of three pathways and complete a capstone experience involving undergraduate research with faculty or experiential internships that culminate in a presentation of their findings. Faculty-student research collaborations may involve summer research programs, local or international field work, and the opportunity to participate in professional conferences or publications. In addition to research with faculty, certain courses offered through study abroad programs (such as the School for Field Studies or the Sea Education Association) may satisfy some requirements of the major, including the experiential portion of the capstone.

# **Pathways**

Depending on their interests and goals, environmental and ocean sciences majors choose one of three pathways: marine ecology (which includes a biology minor), environmental science, or environmental studies. Students are encouraged to select an advisor as soon as possible. A list of advisors is available from the chair of the Department of Environmental and Ocean Sciences.

The marine ecology and environmental science pathways provide students with a rigorous science-based curriculum that is intended to prepare them to go on to either graduate studies or directly into any area in the rapidly developing industries related to environmental issues facing the world today. The marine ecology pathway requires a biology minor, which provides additional breadth and depth in aspects of biology that complement the ecology and marine focus of the major. The environmental studies pathway is intended to provide students with a background in the natural sciences balanced by breadth in the social sciences and humanities. Students majoring in environmental studies will be well prepared to pursue graduate studies in environmental science, environmental policy, resource management, or law, or careers in a range of businesses and government agencies that deal with environmental assessment, planning, development and sustainability.

# Marine Ecology Pathway

Code	Title	Units
Prep for Major (3	35 units)	
EOSC 123	Organisms and Ecosystems	4
EOSC 110	Introduction to Geosciences	4
or EOSC 104	Natural Disasters	
& 104L	and Natural Disasters Lab	
or EOSC 105	Natural Disasters with Lab	
EOSC 220	Introduction to Atmospheric and Ocean Sciences	4
EOSC 222	Environmental Data Analysis	3
CHEM 151	General Chemistry I	4
& 151L	and General Chemistry I Laboratory	
CHEM 152	General Chemistry II	4
& 152L	and General Chemistry II Laboratory	
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
PHYS 136	General Physics I	4
& 136L	and General Physics I Lab	
CHEM 301	Organic Chemistry I	4
& 301L	and Organic Chemistry I Laboratory	

Additional recommended courses for students going to graduate school include: MATH 151, PHYS 137/PHYS 137L and CHEM 302/CHEM 302L

Code	Title	Units
<b>Upper Division Co</b>	ore (10 units)	
EOSC 300	Environmental Issues	3
or EOSC 303	Environmental Issues Abroad	
EOSC 301	Research Applications in Environmental and Ocean Sciences	4
or EOSC 301W		
Capstone		
EOSC 495	Senior Seminar	1
At least two units f	rom:	2
EOSC 496	Research	
EOSC 498	Internship	
EOSC 499	Independent Study	

<b>Upper Division</b>	Electives (14-16 units)	
Choose four cou	rses: one from the Geo/Physical group and the other three	
from the Biologi	ical group, with at least one ecology course. At least two of	
	must include labs. One of the biological electives can be	
	between biological and geo/physical or non-science topics.	
<b>Biological Cour</b>		
EOSC 350	Invertebrate Zoology	4
EOSC 400	Topics in Ecology *	3-4
EOSC 401	Topics in Environmental Biology	3-4
EOSC 431	Human Impacts on the Coastal Environment *	4
EOSC 432	Marine Community Ecology *	4
EOSC 433	Plankton Ecology *	4
EOSC 434	Wetlands Ecology with Lab *	4
EOSC 435	Wetlands Ecology *	3
EOSC 451	Biological Oceanography *	4
EOSC 462	Biology of Fishes	4
EOSC 465	Marine Mammals	3
Geo/Physical C	ourses:	
EOSC 402	Topics in Marine Geo/Physical/Chemical Science	3-4
EOSC 450	Geological Oceanography	4
EOSC 452	Marine Geochemistry	4
EOSC 473	Climatology	4
Interdisciplinar	ry Courses with Biological Component:	
EOSC 405	Topics in Interdisciplinary Environmental Science/ Studies	3-4
EOSC 406	Topics in Interdisciplinary Environmental Science	3-4
Or approved stud	dy abroad courses.	
A Biology mino	r is required for the Marine Ecology pathway (18 units):	
BIOL 240	Bioenergetics and Systems	4
& 240L	and Bioenergetics and Systems Laboratory	
BIOL 242	Genomes and Evolution	4
& 242L	and Genomes and Evolution Laboratory	
10 units of upper	r division Biology that must include:	10
BIOL 300	Genetics	
and/or		
BIOL 305	Ecology	
* Ecology cor	urses	

Ecology courses

# *Upper Division units for Marine Ecology Pathway, 24-26 units*

Total units for Marine Ecology Pathway, 59-61 units from EOSC major + additional 18 units for Biology Minor

# Recommended Program of Study for Marine Ecology Pathway

### First Year

Semester I		Units
EOSC 123, 110,	Organisms and Ecosystems	4
or 105	Introduction to Geosciences	
	Natural Disasters with Lab	
CHEM 151 & 151L	General Chemistry I	4

MATH 150	Calculus I	4
CC or Electives		3-6
Semester II		
EOSC 110, 105, or 123	Introduction to Geosciences Natural Disasters with Lab Organisms and Ecosystems	4
CHEM 152 & 152L	General Chemistry II	4
CC or Electives		6-9
Second Year		
Semester I		
EOSC 220 or 222	Introduction to Atmospheric and Ocean Sciences Environmental Data Analysis	3-4
BIOL 240 & 240L	Bioenergetics and Systems	4
CHEM 301 & 301L	Organic Chemistry I	4
CC or Electives		3-6
Semester II		
EOSC 222 or 220	Environmental Data Analysis Introduction to Atmospheric and Ocean Sciences	3-4
BIOL 242 & 242L	Genomes and Evolution	4
PHYS 136 & 136L	General Physics I	4
CC or Electives		3-6
Junior Year		
Semester I		
EOSC 300	Environmental Issues	3
EOSC 301	Research Applications in Environmental and Ocean Sciences	4
BIOL 300	Genetics	3
or 305	Ecology Research	1
EOSC 496, 498, or 499	Internship Independent Study	1
CC or Electives		3-6
Semester II		
Pathway Electives*		7-8
EOSC 496, 498,	Research	1
or 499	Internship Independent Study	
CC or Electives	1	
~		6-9
Senior Year		6-9
Senior Year Semester I		6-9
		6-9 3-4
Semester I	v Course	
Semester I Pathway Elective*	Course Senior Seminar	3-4
Semester I Pathway Elective* Upper Division Biology		3-4 3-4
Semester I Pathway Elective* Upper Division Biology EOSC 495 CC or Electives Semester II		3-4 3-4 1
Semester I Pathway Elective* Upper Division Biology EOSC 495 CC or Electives	Senior Seminar	3-4 3-4 1

CC or Electives

\* For students enrolled in the BA/MS combined degree program, these courses can apply to both the BA and MS degree requirements (up to 12 units total), if chosen appropriately.

6-9

# **Environmental Science Pathway**

Code	Title	Units
Prep for Major (3	31 units)	
EOSC 110	Introduction to Geosciences	4
or EOSC 104	Natural Disasters	
& 104L	and Natural Disasters Lab	
or EOSC 105	Natural Disasters with Lab	
EOSC 123	Organisms and Ecosystems	4
EOSC 220	Introduction to Atmospheric and Ocean Sciences	4
EOSC 222	Environmental Data Analysis	3
CHEM 151	General Chemistry I	4
& 151L	and General Chemistry I Laboratory	
CHEM 152	General Chemistry II	4
& 152L	and General Chemistry II Laboratory	
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
PHYS 136	General Physics I	4
& 136L	and General Physics I Lab	

Additional recommended courses for students going to graduate school include: MATH 151, PHYS 137/PHYS 137L, CHEM 301/ CHEM 301L and CHEM 302/CHEM 302L.

Code	Title	Units
<b>Upper Division Co</b>	ore (14 units)	
EOSC 300	Environmental Issues	3
or EOSC 303	Environmental Issues Abroad	
EOSC 301	Research Applications in Environmental and Ocean Sciences	4
or EOSC 301W		
EOSC 314	Introduction to Maps and Spatial Data Analysis	4
Capstone		
EOSC 495	Senior Seminar	1
At least two units f	rom:	2
EOSC 496	Research	
EOSC 498	Internship	
EOSC 499	Independent Study	
Upper Division El	ectives (11-12 units)	
Choose three cours	es: One from the Ecological group and the other two	
-	ical group. At least two of the three courses must include	
· ·	o/physical electives can be interdisciplinary between geo/	
	gical or non-science topics.	
Geo/Physical Cou		2.4
EOSC 402	Topics in Marine Geo/Physical/Chemical Science	3-4
EOSC 403	Topics in Geo/Physical/Chemical Science	3-4
EOSC 415	Geographic Information Systems	4
EOSC 420	Introduction to Remote Sensing	4
EOSC 450	Geological Oceanography	4
EOSC 452	Marine Geochemistry	4
EOSC 473	Climatology	4

EOSC 474	History of the Earth and Climate	4
& 474L	and History of the Earth and Climate Laboratory <sup>1</sup>	
EOSC 485	Environmental Geology	4
EOSC 487	Surface Water Hydrology	4
EOSC 488	Geomorphology	4
<b>Ecological Course</b>	s:	
EOSC 400	Topics in Ecology	3-4
EOSC 431	Human Impacts on the Coastal Environment	4
EOSC 432	Marine Community Ecology	4
EOSC 433	Plankton Ecology	4
EOSC 434	Wetlands Ecology with Lab	4
EOSC 435	Wetlands Ecology	3
EOSC 451	Biological Oceanography	4
Interdisciplinary	Courses with Geo/physical Component:	
EOSC 406	Topics in Interdisciplinary Environmental Science	3-4
Or approved study	abroad courses.	

<sup>1</sup>EOSC 474 may be taken without EOSC 474L, so long as the requirement of at least two electives with labs is satisfied.

# Upper Division units for Environmental Science Pathway, 25-26 units

Total units for Environmental Science Pathway, 56-57 units

# Recommended Program of Study for Environmental Science Pathway

First Year		
Semester I		Units
EOSC 123, 110, or 105	Organisms and Ecosystems Introduction to Geosciences Natural Disasters with Lab	4
CHEM 151 & 151L	General Chemistry I	4
CC or Electives		4-9
Semester II		
EOSC 110, 105, or 123	Introduction to Geosciences Natural Disasters with Lab Organisms and Ecosystems	4
CHEM 152 & 152L	General Chemistry II	4
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
CC or Electives		3-6
Second Year		
Semester I		
EOSC 220 or 222	Introduction to Atmospheric and Ocean Sciences Environmental Data Analysis	3-4
PHYS 136 & 136L	General Physics I	4
CC or Electives		4-9
Semester II		

EOSC 222 or 220	Environmental Data Analysis Introduction to Atmospheric and Ocean Sciences	3-4
CC or Electives		9-12
Junior Year		
Semester I		
EOSC 300	Environmental Issues	3
EOSC 301	Research Applications in Environmental and Ocean Sciences	4
EOSC 496, 498,	Research	1
or 499	Internship	
aa ni i	Independent Study	4.0
CC or Electives		4-9
Semester II		
EOSC 314*	Introduction to Maps and Spatial Data Analysis	4
Pathway Elective*		3-4
EOSC 496, 498,	Research	1
or 499	Internship	
aa m	Independent Study	
CC or Electives		6-9
Senior Year		
Semester I		
Pathway Elective*		3-4
EOSC 495	Senior Seminar	1
CC or Electives		8-12
Semester II		
Pathway Electives*		3-4
CC or Electives		9-12

For students enrolled in the BA/MS combined degree program, these courses can apply to both the BA and MS degree requirements (up to 12 units total), if chosen appropriately.

# Recommended Program of Study for Integrated Teacher Preparation Program (ITPP) Pathway

The Integrated Teacher Preparation Program (ITPP) provides paths to 4-year science and math degrees that include a teaching credential and preparation for the California Subject Examination for Teachers (CSET). Students who are interested in middle or secondary education (grades 6-12) in California may earn a degree in environmental and ocean sciences while simultaneously completing requirements for a teaching credential. The degree integrates content knowledge and laboratory practices in the discipline, evidence-based teaching/learning theories, teaching performance expectations, and pre-student teaching clinical practice while satisfying baccalaureate degree requirements and CTC single subject credential program standards. There is some flexibility to meet individual needs. Students are encouraged to consult the ITPP website (http://www.sandiego.edu/itpp) and advisors (itpp@sandiego.edu) to ensure that their needs and interests will be met.

In addition to all courses for the environmental science pathway and BIOL 240/BIOL 240L, students completing the ITPP pathway must also take the following:

Code	Title	Units
EDUC 332P	Curriculum and Methods of Teaching in Today's Global	3

Secondary Classrooms

EDUC 334P	Methods of Teaching Literacy in Secondary Schools in a Global Society	3
EDUC 337P	Foundations in Curriculum and Instruction Theory: Secondary Praxis in Historical Context	3
EDUC 381C	Multicultural and Philosophical Foundations in a Global Society	3
EDUC 382	Psychological Foundations of Education in a Diverse Society	3
EDUC 384C	Methods of Teaching English Language and Academic Development in Crosscultural Contexts	3
EDUC 491P	Student Teaching for the Single Subject Credential	9
EDUC 491S	Student Teaching Seminar for the Single Subject Credential	3
EDSP 389P	Healthy Environments and Inclusive Education in a Global Society	3

The following paradigm is included as a guide only, and should not be interpreted in a rigid sense. Elective courses may be taken at any time as long as the course prerequisites have been satisfied.

#### Einst Voor

CC or Electives

EDSP 389P

Third Year

CC or Elective

Semester III (Summer)

First Year		
Semester I		Units
EOSC 110	Introduction to Geosciences	4
EOSC 123	Organisms and Ecosystems	4
CC or Electives		6-8
Semester II		
BIOL 240	Bioenergetics and Systems	4
& 240L		
CHEM 151	General Chemistry I	4
& 151L		
EOSC 220	Introduction to Atmospheric and Ocean	4
	Sciences	
CC or Electives		3
Semester III (Summe	r)	
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
Second Year		
Semester I		
EOSC 222	Environmental Data Analysis	3
CHEM 152	General Chemistry II	4
& 152L		
EDUC 381C	Multicultural and Philosophical Foundations in a Global Society	3
CC or Electives		6-8
Semester II		
EOSC 300	Environmental Issues	3
EOSC 314	Introduction to Maps and Spatial Data Analysis	4
EDUC 382	Psychological Foundations of Education in a	3
	D1 0 1 1	

Diverse Society

in a Global Society

Healthy Environments and Inclusive Education

6-8

3

3

Semester I			or EOSC 301V	V	
EOSC 301	Research Applications in Environmental and	4	EOSC 305	Environmental Assessment Practices	3
	Ocean Sciences		EOSC 314	Introduction to Maps and Spatial Data Analysis	4
PHYS 136	General Physics I	4	PHIL 338	Environmental Ethics	3
& 136L			or PHIL 344	Environmental Justice	
CC or Electives		3-6	Capstone		
Semester II			EOSC 495	Senior Seminar	1
EOSC Elective		3-4	At least two units	from:	2
EDUC 332P	Curriculum and Methods of Teaching in Today's	3	EOSC 496	Research	
	Global Secondary Classrooms		EOSC 498	Internship	
EDUC 384C	Methods of Teaching English Language and	3	EOSC 499	Independent Study	
	Academic Development in Crosscultural Contexts		<b>Upper Division I</b>	Electives (10-11 units)	
CC or Electives	Contexts	6	Choose three cour	rses: one science with lab, one non-science, and one from	
		U	either list or an in	terdisciplinary EOSC elective.	
Semester III (Sun	nmer)		Science Courses:		
CC or Electives		6	EOSC 350	Invertebrate Zoology	4
Senior Year			EOSC 355	Environmental Chemistry	3
Semester I			EOSC 400	Topics in Ecology	3-4
EDUC 334P	Methods of Teaching Literacy in Secondary	3	EOSC 401	Topics in Environmental Biology	3-4
EDIIC 401B	Schools in a Global Society	0	EOSC 402	Topics in Marine Geo/Physical/Chemical Science	3-4
EDUC 491P	Student Teaching for the Single Subject Credential	9	EOSC 403	Topics in Geo/Physical/Chemical Science	3-4
EDUC 491S	Student Teaching Seminar for the Single Subject	3	EOSC 415	Geographic Information Systems	4
LD0C 4715	Credential	3	EOSC 420	Introduction to Remote Sensing	4
Semester II			EOSC 431	Human Impacts on the Coastal Environment	4
EOSC Electives		7-8	EOSC 432	Marine Community Ecology	4
EOSC 495	Senior Seminar	1	EOSC 433	Plankton Ecology	4
CC or Electives	Schol Schilla	6-8	EOSC 434	Wetlands Ecology with Lab	4
CC of Licenves		0-0	EOSC 435	Wetlands Ecology	3
<b>Environm</b>	ental Studies Pathway		EOSC 450	Geological Oceanography	4
	•	<b>T</b> T **	EOSC 451	Biological Oceanography	4
Code	Title	Units	EOSC 452	Marine Geochemistry	4
	rep for the Major (31 units)	4	EOSC 462	Biology of Fishes	4
EOSC 110	Introduction to Geosciences	4	EOSC 465	Marine Mammals	3
or EOSC 104 & 104L	Natural Disasters and Natural Disasters Lab		EOSC 473	Climatology	4
or EOSC 105	Natural Disasters with Lab		EOSC 474	History of the Earth and Climate	4
EOSC 123	Organisms and Ecosystems	4	& 474L	and History of the Earth and Climate Laboratory <sup>1</sup>	4
EOSC 220	Introduction to Atmospheric and Ocean Sciences	4	EOSC 485	Environmental Geology	4
EOSC 222	Environmental Data Analysis	3	EOSC 487	Surface Water Hydrology	4
CHEM 151	General Chemistry I	4	EOSC 488	Geomorphology	4
& 151L	and General Chemistry I Laboratory		Non-Science Cou ECON 308		2
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3	EOSC 404	Environmental and Natural Resource Economics  Tonics in Environmental Studies	3-4
ECON 102	Principles of Macroeconomics	3		Topics in Environmental Studies	
POLS 120	Introduction to American Politics	3	HIST 370 POLS 329	American Environmental History  Law of the Sea	3
or POLS 170	Introduction to International Relations				
MATH 115	College Algebra	3	POLS 348 POLS 349	Indigenous Peoples and the Environment  Politics and the Environment	3
or MATH 130	Survey of Calculus		SOCI 315	Health and Society	
or MATH 150	Calculus I		SOCI 471	· ·	3
<b>Upper Division C</b>	ore (20 units)		THRS 338	Environmental Inequality and Justice Faith & Environmental Justice	
EOSC 300	Environmental Issues	3		ion courses by approval in ECON, ETHN, HIST, PHIL,	3
or EOSC 303	Environmental Issues Abroad		POLS, SOCI and	* **	
EOSC 301	Research Applications in Environmental and Ocean	4		dy abroad courses.	
	Sciences		Interdisciplinary I		

EOSC 405	Topics in Interdisciplinary Environmental Science/	3-4	EOSC 314*	Introduction to Maps and Spatial Data Analy	ysis 4
	Studies		PHIL 338	Environmental Ethics	3
EOSC 406	Topics in Interdisciplinary Environmental Science	3-4	or 344	Environmental Justice	
<sup>1</sup> FOSC 474 may be	taken without EOSC 474L, so long as the requiremen	t of at	EOSC 496, 498,	Research	1
least two electives w		t Of at	or 499	Internship	
Hanan Division		21	CC or Electives	Independent Study	6-9
upper บเงเรเดเ units	n units for Environmental Studies, 30	)-31	Senior Year		0 7
	Environmental Studies, 61-62 units		Semester I		
	its that also satisfy Core requiremen	ts. as	EOSC 305	<b>Environmental Assessment Practices</b>	3
many as 19 ui	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	15, 0.5	Pathway Elective*		3-4
	nded Program of Study for		EOSC 495	Senior Seminar	1
			CC or Electives		6-9
Environme	ental Studies Pathway		Semester II		
First Year			Pathway Electives*		6-7
Semester I		Units	CC or Electives		6-9
EOSC 123, 110,	Organisms and Ecosystems	4	* For students enro	olled in the BA/MS combined degree program, t	hese courses
or 105	Introduction to Geosciences Natural Disasters with Lab			th the BA and MS degree requirements (up to 12	
MATH 115	College Algebra	3	if chosen approp	riately.	
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3	Combined	Degree Program (BA/MS	<b>5)</b>
CC or Electives		3-6			
Semester II			•	are completing a degree in Environmental and Coor admission to the MS program before finishing	
EOSC 110, 105,	Introduction to Geosciences	4		p to 12 units of course work toward the requirem	
or 123	Natural Disasters with Lab			as are accepted during a student's junior or senior	•
	Organisms and Ecosystems			wing a process similar to the standard application	
CHEM 151 & 151L	General Chemistry I	4		Environmental and Ocean Sciences MS Program raduate status until they complete their BA degr	
ECON 102	Principles of Macroeconomics	3	_	ecome graduate students during the subsequent f	
CC or Electives	Timespies of vinerocconomics	3-6		mplete a minimum of 18 units while they have g	
Second Year			student status in orde	er to satisfy the combined degree program require	ements.
Semester I				in the combined degree program, below is a rec	
EOSC 220	Introduction to Atmospheric and Ocean	3-4		the student's first year solely in the graduate pro e years, see the recommended programs of study	
or 222	Sciences			graduate program in Environmental and Ocean S	
DOT G 420	Environmental Data Analysis	2			
POLS 120 or 170	Introduction to American Politics Introduction to International Relations	3		nded Program of Study -	
CC or Electives		6-9	Graduate		
Semester II			First Year		
EOSC 222	Environmental Data Analysis	3-4	Semester I		Units
or 220	Introduction to Atmospheric and Ocean		EOSC 500	Core Seminar I	2
CC or Electives	Sciences	0 :	Graduate Science Co	ourse or Elective	3-4
Junior Year		8+	EOSC 596	Research	3-4
			Semester II		
Semester I EOSC 300	Environmental Issues	3	EOSC 501	Core Seminar II	2
EOSC 300	Research Applications in Environmental and	4	EOSC 596	Research	2-3
LODE JUI	Ocean Sciences	7	EOSC 596 or Electiv	ve	3-4

Note: Students who will not finish by the end of their first year in the MS program should take 8 units in semester II of the first graduate year and 0.5-1 unit of EOSC 597 each semester until they finish.

Thesis

**EOSC 597** 

1

CC or Electives Semester II

or 499

EOSC 496, 498,

Ocean Sciences

Independent Study

Research

Internship

# **Environmental and Ocean Sciences** Minor

			2111110
Code	Title	Units	Code
EOSC 110	Introduction to Geosciences	4	Choos
or EOSC 104	Natural Disasters		least t
& 104L	and Natural Disasters Lab		Science
or EOSC 105	Natural Disasters with Lab		EOSC
EOSC 123	Organisms and Ecosystems	4	EOSC
EOSC 220	Introduction to Atmospheric and Ocean Sciences	4	EOSC
EOSC 300	Environmental Issues	3	EOSC
or EOSC 303	Environmental Issues Abroad		EOSC
and one upper di	vision course (3-4 units) from the following list:		EOSC
EOSC 314	Introduction to Maps and Spatial Data Analysis	4	EOSC
EOSC 350	Invertebrate Zoology	4	EOSC
EOSC 355	Environmental Chemistry	3	EOSC
EOSC 400	Topics in Ecology	3-4	EOSC
EOSC 401	Topics in Environmental Biology	3-4	EOSC
EOSC 402	Topics in Marine Geo/Physical/Chemical Science	3-4	EOSC
EOSC 403	Topics in Geo/Physical/Chemical Science	3-4	EOSC
EOSC 415	Geographic Information Systems	4	EOSC
EOSC 420	Introduction to Remote Sensing	4	EOSC
EOSC 431	Human Impacts on the Coastal Environment	4	EOSC
EOSC 432	Marine Community Ecology	4	EOSC
EOSC 433	Plankton Ecology	4	EOSC
EOSC 434	Wetlands Ecology with Lab	4	EOSC
EOSC 435	Wetlands Ecology	3	EOSC
EOSC 450	Geological Oceanography	4	EOSC
EOSC 451	Biological Oceanography	4	& 474
EOSC 452	Marine Geochemistry	4	EOSC
EOSC 462	Biology of Fishes	4	EOSC
EOSC 465	Marine Mammals	3	EOSC
EOSC 473	Climatology	4	Non-S
EOSC 474	History of the Earth and Climate	4	ECON
& 474L	and History of the Earth and Climate Laboratory 1		EOSC
EOSC 485	Environmental Geology	4	EOSC
EOSC 487	Surface Water Hydrology	4	HIST :
EOSC 488	Geomorphology	4	PHIL 3

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Students may take EOSC 474 without EOSC 474L.

# **Environmental Studies and Policy Minor**

Code	Title	Units
EOSC 110	Introduction to Geosciences	4
or EOSC 104 & 104L	Natural Disasters and Natural Disasters Lab	
or EOSC 105	Natural Disasters with Lab	
EOSC 123	Organisms and Ecosystems	4
EOSC 300	Environmental Issues	3
or EOSC 303	Environmental Issues Abroad	

Note: Environmental and Ocean Sciences majors (Marine Ecology and Environmental Science pathways only) can minor in Environmental Studies and Policy and should take EOSC 305 in place of EOSC 300 within the minor. Upper-division courses that are used to satisfy requirements in the Environmental and Ocean Sciences major may not also be used to satisfy requirements in the Environmental Studies and Policy minor.

Code	Title	Units
	er division courses (9-10 units) from the following. At	
	non-science courses.	
Science Courses:		
EOSC 314	Introduction to Maps and Spatial Data Analysis	4
EOSC 350	Invertebrate Zoology	4
EOSC 355	Environmental Chemistry	3
EOSC 400	Topics in Ecology	3-4
EOSC 401	Topics in Environmental Biology	3-4
EOSC 402	Topics in Marine Geo/Physical/Chemical Science	3-4
EOSC 403	Topics in Geo/Physical/Chemical Science	3-4
EOSC 415	Geographic Information Systems	4
EOSC 420	Introduction to Remote Sensing	4
EOSC 431	Human Impacts on the Coastal Environment	4
EOSC 432	Marine Community Ecology	4
EOSC 433	Plankton Ecology	4
EOSC 434	Wetlands Ecology with Lab	4
EOSC 435	Wetlands Ecology	3
EOSC 450	Geological Oceanography	4
EOSC 451	Biological Oceanography	4
EOSC 452	Marine Geochemistry	4
EOSC 462	Biology of Fishes	4
EOSC 465	Marine Mammals	3
EOSC 473	Climatology	4
EOSC 474	History of the Earth and Climate	4
& 474L	and History of the Earth and Climate Laboratory <sup>1</sup>	
EOSC 485	Environmental Geology	4
EOSC 487	Surface Water Hydrology	4
EOSC 488	Geomorphology	4
Non-Science Cour	ses:	
ECON 308	Environmental and Natural Resource Economics	3
EOSC 305	Environmental Assessment Practices	3
EOSC 404	Topics in Environmental Studies	3-4
HIST 370	American Environmental History	3
PHIL 338	Environmental Ethics	3
PHIL 344	Environmental Justice	3
POLS 329	Law of the Sea	3
POLS 348	Indigenous Peoples and the Environment	3
POLS 349	Politics and the Environment	3
SOCI 315	Health and Society	3
SOCI 471	Environmental Inequality and Justice	3
THRS 338	Faith & Environmental Justice	3
Interdisciplinary		
EOSC 405	Topics in Interdisciplinary Environmental Science/	3-4
	Studies	
EOSC 406	Topics in Interdisciplinary Environmental Science	3-4

Other upper division courses by approval in ECON, ETHN, HIST, PHIL, POLS, SOCI and THRS, and approved study abroad courses.

<sup>1</sup>Students may take EOSC 474 without EOSC 474L

### EOSC 101 | EXPLORING OCEANOGRAPHY

Units: 3-4 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Lab** 

The chemistry and physics of sea water, its circulation and physical properties; tides; currents; waves; and shoreline processes will be studied. The topography and geology of the ocean basin and the distribution and nature of marine sediments will also be studied. This course will not satisfy the requirements of the environmental and ocean science major or minor. Two lectures and one laboratory or field experience per week; may be taught without laboratory.

#### **EOSC 104 | NATURAL DISASTERS**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### **Core Attributes: Physical Science-Pre F17 CORE**

This course will give students an introduction to the earth and the dynamic natural processes that impact humanity and life in general. Man and nature are becoming increasingly intertwined as the human race continues to proliferate. This course will emphasize the fundamental scientific principles and processes related to natural disasters such as earthquakes, volcanic eruptions, landslides, severe weather, hurricanes, meteorite impacts, and climate change. Historic catastrophes will be emphasized. Every semester.

#### EOSC 104L | NATURAL DISASTERS LAB

Units: 1 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Quantitative reasoning comp, Science/Tech Inquiry area,

Lab

Corequisites: EOSC 104

This laboratory course will introduce students to skills and methods used to study natural disasters. Students will learn to identify rocks and minerals, employ map skills to study faults, coastal erosion, landslides, flooding, and other natural hazards, and interpret meteorological and climate data. Natural hazards in San Diego will be examined through local field trips. This course has a mandatory weekend field trip.

#### EOSC 105 | NATURAL DISASTERS WITH LAB

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Quantitative reasoning comp, Science/Tech Inquiry area

This course will give students an introduction to the earth and the dynamic natural processes that impact humanity and life in general. Man and nature are becoming increasingly intertwined as the human race continues to proliferate. This course will emphasize the fundamental scientific principles and processes related to natural disasters such as earthquakes, volcanic eruptions, landslides, severe weather, hurricanes, meteorite impacts, and climate change. Historic catastrophes will be emphasized. This course includes a weekly lab, in which students will learn to identify rocks and minerals, employ map skills to study faults, coastal erosion, landslides, flooding, and other natural hazards, and interpret meteorological and climate data. Natural hazards in San Diego will be examined through local field trips. This course has a mandatory weekend field trip.

## EOSC 109 | INTRODUCTION TO PHYSICAL GEOGRAPHY

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Physical Science-Pre F17 CORE

An introductory course to give students a comprehensive overview of the Earth and its component systems. The emphasis of this course is the interactions among the atmosphere, lithosphere, hydrosphere, and biosphere. Various global environmental issues also will be examined from the perspective of physical geography. Three lectures and one laboratory per week and some field experience, which may include an overnight trip.

#### **EOSC 110 | INTRODUCTION TO GEOSCIENCES**

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Quantitative reasoning comp, Science/Tech Inquiry area

Lecture and field investigations of geographic and geological processes. The objective of this course is to give students a comprehensive overview of the earth and its component systems. The emphasis of this course is the interactions among the atmosphere, lithosphere, and hydrosphere. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory per week and some field experience, which may include an overnight trip. Every semester.

#### EOSC 111 | GEOSCIENCES ABROAD

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area, International, Lab

Geoscience is the study of Earth's structure, its formation and evolution through time, the processes that shape its surface, and its interaction with humans. Geoscientists address critical issues such as mineral resources, water quality, natural hazards, energy, and climate. This course is a 4-unit lab course for non-majors, set outside of the United States. Students will be exposed to the fundamental concepts in geoscience, which are then applied in the field. Depending on the location of the study abroad course and the local geology, some concepts may be emphasized more than others, e.g., in Australia you may study the oldest rocks on the planet, in Nepal you may study the role of flooding in landscape formation. Students should be prepared to spend multiple hours outside, under varying weather conditions, and sometimes covering several miles of easy-moderate hiking.

#### EOSC 112 | ECOLOGY AND ENVIRONMENTAL BIOLOGY

**Units: 3-4** 

**Core Attributes: Lab** 

Investigation of the natural environment and the relationship of its biotic and abiotic components. Topics include the ecosystem concept, population growth and regulation, and our modification of the environment. Two lectures per week and one laboratory every other week. Laboratory will include field trips, one of which will be an overnight trip to the desert. This course satisfies the core curriculum requirement for a life science and a laboratory. Cross-listed as BIOL 112. Every semester.

# EOSC 116 | EARTH AND LIFE SCIENCE FOR EDUCATORS Units: 3 Repeatability: No

A laboratory/lecture/discussion class in the general concepts of earth science and life science for Liberal Studies majors. The course topics are selected to satisfy the earth and life science specifications for the science content standards for California Public Schools and the Multiple Subject Teaching Credential. Laboratory activities and field trips will provide experience with selected principles and relate them to suggested teaching practice at the K-8 grade level. Two two-hour laboratory sessions per week. Spring semester.

### EOSC 121 | LIFE IN THE OCEAN

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area, Lab

An introduction to the organisms in the ocean, including their phylogenetic and ecological interrelationships. Biological principles and processes that are basic to all forms of life in the ocean will be stressed. This course will satisfy the core curriculum requirement for science and technology inquiry area. This course will not satisfy the requirements of the environmental and ocean sciences major or minor. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory per week. Every semester.

#### **EOSC 123 | ORGANISMS AND ECOSYSTEMS**

**Units: 4 Repeatability: No** 

#### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Science/Tech Inquiry area, Lab

An introduction to organisms and environmental biology from an ecological perspective. Students will learn about fundamental principles of ecology, in addition to major groups of organisms and how the two are related. This is a required course for all Environmental and Ocean Sciences majors. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory per week.

#### **EOSC 170 | THE SCIENCE OF CLIMATE CHANGE**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

An introduction to the earth's climate system and the science of climate change. The course will first cover the following topics: introduction to earth-system science and the components of the climate system; atmospheric composition, energy balance, and circulation; the hydrologic cycle; methods to collect climate data; natural climate change in the geologic past and 20th century warming. With this foundation students will examine the scientific basis of anthropogenic global warming and the potential impacts of future climate change. This course may include a field trip outside of class time.

# EOSC 220 | INTRODUCTION TO ATMOSPHERIC AND OCEAN SCIENCES

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (MATH 115 or MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) and ((EOSC 104 (Can be taken Concurrently) and EOSC 104L (Can be taken Concurrently)) or EOSC 105 (Can be taken Concurrently) or EOSC 110 (Can be taken Concurrently)) and (CHEM 151 (Can be taken Concurrently) and CHEM 151L (Can be taken Concurrently))

An introduction to the physical and chemical processes of Earth's atmosphere and ocean. Topcis include the composition and structure of the atmosphere and ocean, chemistry and physics of seawater, atmospheric circulation, air-sea interactions, climate and weather, ocean circulation, waves, tides, and shorline processes. This course is intended for students majoring or minoring in environmental and ocean sciences. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory per week. Every semester.

### EOSC 222 | ENVIRONMENTAL DATA ANALYSIS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: EOSC 123 and ((EOSC 104 and EOSC 104L) or EOSC 105 or EOSC 110) and (MATH 115 or MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) This course will provide an introduction to the fundamentals of experimental design and quantitative analysis of data in environmental sciences. Students will learn to form and test hypotheses through the lens of Environmental and Ocean Sciences. The later class meetings will provide a conceptual overview of some of the specialized statistics (e.g., nMDS, Time Series Analysis, PCA) to prepare students for the use of these tests in 300 and 400 level EOSC courses. Students will learn the basics of using R to analyze data, leveraging the GUI-based R-Commander. This is a required course for all Environmental and Ocean Sciences majors. Three hours of lecture per week.

# EOSC 294 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN ENVIRONMENTAL AND OCEAN SCIENCES

#### Units: 2-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Topics of special interest and/or unique opportunity at the Lower-Division Level.

### EOSC 300 | ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

#### Units: 3-4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ((EOSC 104 and EOSC 104L) or EOSC 105 or EOSC 110) and EOSC 123  $\,$ 

This course is a consideration of environmental problems that confront our society today. By looking at controversial environmental issues, students will be encouraged to distinguish political interests and emotional hyperbole from scientific facts; furthermore, students will be presented examples of scientific facts that support different interpretations of an issue. Both environmental resolutions and their social implications will be considered. Three hours of lecture per week.

# EOSC 301 | RESEARCH APPLICATIONS IN ENVIRONMENTAL AND OCEAN SCIENCES

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency

Prerequisites: (EOSC 104 and EOSC 104L) or EOSC 105 or EOSC 110 and EOSC 123 and EOSC 220 and EOSC 222 (Can be taken Concurrently)

Students will be introduced to the research process and common laboratory and field sampling methods in environmental and ocean sciences, as well as the underlying principles and applications of these methods. Students will participate in hypothesis-based, interdisciplinary, hands-on research examining the spatial and temporal variability of biological, chemical, geological and physical factors within local environments. Written and oral scientific communication will be emphasized. Eight hours of combined laboratory, field and lecture per week.

#### EOSC 303 | ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES ABROAD

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### **Core Attributes: Global Diversity level 1**

Prerequisites: EOSC 104 or EOSC 105 or EOSC 110 or EOSC 123

This course is a consideration of environmental problems that confront our society today. By looking at controversial environmental issues, students will be encouraged to distinguish political interests and emotional hyperbole from scientific facts; furthermore, students will be presented examples of scientific facts that support different interpretations of an issue. Both environmental resolutions and their social implications will be considered. This course may be taught in various countries outside the US.

# EOSC 305 | ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT PRACTICES Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (EOSC 104 and EOSC 104L) or EOSC 105 or EOSC 110 and EOSC 123  $\,$ 

An interdisciplinary approach to environmental decision making. An introduction to the law relative to environmental impact reports, their contents and development. Three hours of lecture per week.

# EOSC 313 | GEOSPATIAL INFORMATION SYSTEMS FOR ORGANIZATIONS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: ITMG 100

An introduction to geographic, or geospatial, information systems (GIS) applied to business/organizational decision-making applications. The course includes conceptual knowledge that underlies the spatial dimensions of many decisions and hands-on use of desktop GIS software. Topics include concepts and techniques for managing, analyzing, visualizing, and disseminating spatial information. Application areas include entrepreneurship, marketing, real estate, planning, public safety, transportation, economic development, and international issues.

# EOSC 314 | INTRODUCTION TO MAPS AND SPATIAL DATA ANALYSIS

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (EOSC 104 or EOSC 110 or EOSC 123) and (MATH 115 or MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Introduces the use of maps as an analytical tool, together with the history, theory, and operation of Geographic Information Systems (GIS). Includes an introduction to maps, data sources, database design, data input, spatial analysis, and map production. Offers valuable preparation for careers in geology, geography, geographic information systems, urban planning, marketing, environmental science, conservation biology, engineering, and numerous other fields. Laboratory exercises will use ArcGIS software. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory per week. Every semester.

#### **EOSC 340 | MARINE ENVIRONMENT**

**Units: 3-4** 

Prerequisites: (EOSC 104 and EOSC 104L or EOSC 109 or EOSC 110) and (BIOL 221 and BIOL 221L or EOSC 112 or EOSC 121)

A study of how humans threaten the stability of our oceans. Topics include oceanclimate interactions, marine pollution, utilization of marine resources, and marine conservation. Students participate in at least one weekend community service project. Three hours of lecture per week. Fall semester.

#### EOSC 350 | INVERTEBRATE ZOOLOGY

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 305 or EOSC 301W

A survey of the invertebrate animals with emphasis on evolutionary relationships among the groups as expressed by their morphology and physiology. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory weekly.

### **EOSC 355 | ENVIRONMENTAL CHEMISTRY**

Units: 3

Prerequisites: CHEM 151 and CHEM 151L and CHEM 152 and CHEM 152L A survey of the natural environment from a chemist's point of view and the evaluation of chemicals from an environmental point of view. This course is concerned with the chemistry of air, water, soil, and the biosphere in both pristine and polluted states. Pollution prevention and mitigation schemes are considered. Two one-hour lectures and one three-hour lab per week.

# EOSC 361 | ECOLOGICAL COMMUNITIES OF SAN DIEGO COUNTY Units: 2

A general survey of the ecological communities of San Diego County will acquaint students with local marine, freshwater, chaparral, and desert habitats. The course is primarily field study, and one overnight trip to the desert will be included. Identification of organisms and their ecological relationships will be stressed. One laboratory per week. Cross-listed as BIOL 361.

#### **EOSC 364 | CONSERVATION BIOLOGY**

Units: 4

Prerequisites: BIOL 190 and BIOL 221 and BIOL 221L and BIOL 225 and BIOL 225L and BIOL 300  $\,$ 

This course focuses on the history of conservation awareness, theory, and practice. Lectures address conservation biology from a historical perspective; readings and discussion are directed toward both classic and current literature. Student presentations will be expected. Weekend field trips may be required. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory per week. Spring semester.

#### EOSC 400 | TOPICS IN ECOLOGY

Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Topics of special interest and/or unique opportunity in ecology.

#### EOSC 401 | TOPICS IN ENVIRONMENTAL BIOLOGY

Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Topics of special interest and/or unique opportunity in environmental biology.

# EOSC 402 | TOPICS IN MARINE GEO/PHYSICAL/CHEMICAL SCIENCE

Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Topics of special interest and/or unique opportunity in marine geo/physical/chemical science.

### ${\bf EOSC~403~|~TOPICS~IN~GEO/PHYSICAL/CHEMICAL~SCIENCE}$

Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Topics of special interest and/or unique opportunity in geo/physical/chemical science.

#### EOSC 404 | TOPICS IN ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES

**Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

Topics of special interest and/or unique opportunity in environmental studies.

# EOSC 405 | TOPICS IN INTERDISCIPLINARY ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE/STUDIES

Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Topics of special interest and/or unique opportunity in interdisciplinary environmental science and studies.

# EOSC 406 | TOPICS IN INTERDISCIPLINARY ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE

Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Topics of special interest and/or unique opportunity in interdisciplinary environmental science.

### EOSC 415 | GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: EOSC 313 or EOSC 314

Expands on EOSC 314 (Maps and Spatial Data) and includes more advanced GIS functions and applications using a project-based approach. Fundamental topics include spatial analysis, geostatistical analysis, 3-D modeling, and project development and implementation. Laboratory exercises will use ArcGIS software. This course combines lecture and laboratory work in two meetings per week. Every other spring semester.

## EOSC 420 | INTRODUCTION TO REMOTE SENSING

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: EOSC 313 or EOSC 314

An introduction to remote sensing technology and its applications in earth science. This course will cover principles of remote sensing, aerial photography, photogrammetry, electronic multispectral imaging, and methods of digital image processing and analysis. Applications of remote sensing in marine and terrestrial environments and integration of remote sensing and geographic information systems also will be discussed. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory per week and some field trips. Requires at least one course in physical science, or consent of the instructor.

# EOSC 431 | HUMAN IMPACTS ON THE COASTAL ENVIRONMENT Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: CHEM 151 and CHEM 151L and (EOSC 121 or EOSC 112 or BIOL 112) or (BIOL 190 and BIOL 221 and BIOL 221L)

An interdisciplinary study of physical, chemical, and biological processes in the oceans with an emphasis on coastal environments. Topics include coastal oceanography, nutrient distribution and geochemical cycles, primary productivity, food webs and fisheries, and benthic habitats. This course examines the interactions between abiotic forces in the oceans and the organisms that live in a variety of habitats. Environmental issues will be connected to major scientific themes. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory per week.

#### EOSC 432 | MARINE COMMUNITY ECOLOGY

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (EOSC 300 (Can be taken Concurrently) or EOSC 303 (Can be taken Concurrently)) and (EOSC 301W (Can be taken Concurrently)) or EOSC 301 (Can be taken Concurrently))

This course is intended to introduce students to the fundamentals of marine community ecology, provide students with field experiences so that they may become familiar with various ecological sampling designs and methods, and expose students to the diversity of coastal marine environments in the san diego area. Students will read and discuss classic marine ecology papers, and conduct marine ecological studies in field and laboratory settings. Students will also be required to participate in a semester-long research project. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory per week.

#### **EOSC 433 | PLANKTON ECOLOGY**

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (EOSC 300 (Can be taken Concurrently) or EOSC 303 (Can be taken Concurrently)) and (EOSC 301W (Can be taken Concurrently)) or EOSC 301 (Can be taken Concurrently)) and (MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course is a study of the fundamental processes in plankton ecology from the perspective of how individual plankton interact with each other and their environment. Throughout the course, students will gain intuition about life in the plankton by incorporating an understanding of both the biology of the organisms and their physical environment. In addition to lecture, the course includes lab activities, reading and discussing peer-reviewed scientific articles, and completing group and individual assignments.

### EOSC 434 | WETLANDS ECOLOGY WITH LAB

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (EOSC 300 (Can be taken Concurrently) or EOSC 303 (Can be taken Concurrently)) and (EOSC 301W (Can be taken Concurrently)) or EOSC 301 (Can be taken Concurrently))

A comprehensive look at wetland ecology and management. Focuses on physical, biogeochemical, and ecological aspects of major wetland ecosystems with an emphasis on local urban wetlands. Also includes wetland management concepts and approaches worldwide. This course includes a weekly lab. Students may not receive credit for taking both EOSC 434 and EOSC 435.

#### **EOSC 435 | WETLANDS ECOLOGY**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (EOSC 300 (Can be taken Concurrently) or EOSC 303 (Can be taken Concurrently)) and (EOSC 301W (Can be taken Concurrently)) or EOSC 301 (Can be taken Concurrently))

A comprehensive look at wetland ecology and management. Focuses on physical, biogeochemical, and ecological aspects of major wetland ecosystems with an emphasis on local urban wetlands. Also includes wetland management concepts and approaches worldwide. Students may not receive credit for taking both EOSC 434 and EOSC 435.

#### EOSC 438 | ANIMAL BEHAVIORAL ECOLOGY WITH LAB Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 300 or BIOL 305 or EOSC 300 (Can be taken Concurrently) This course examines the evolution of animal behavior in an ecological context. Topics include economic decision making, co-evolutionary arms races, competition, aggression, biological rhythms, group living, sexual and family conflict, parental care, mating systems, cooperation, and communication. This course explores questions in behavioral ecology using basic concepts and theory, as well as model-based, comparative, and experimental approaches. The inquiry-based lab introduces methods commonly used in behavioral ecology and allows students to test their own hypotheses within the framework of prescribed field and laboratory exercises. Students may not receive credit for taking both EOSC 438 and EOSC 439 or for taking both EOSC 438 and PSYC 344. Cross-listed with BIOL 438.

### EOSC 439 | ANIMAL BEHAVIORAL ECOLOGY

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: BIOL 300 or BIOL 305 or EOSC 300 (Can be taken Concurrently) This course examines the evolution of animal behavior in an ecological context. Topics include economic decision making, co-evolutionary arms races, competition, aggression, biological rhythms, group living, sexual and family conflict, parental care, mating systems, cooperation, and communication. This course explores questions in behavioral ecology using basic concepts and theory, as well as model-based, comparative, and experimental approaches. Students may not receive credit for taking both EOSC 439 and EOSC 438 or EOSC 439 and PSYC 344. Cross-listed with BIOL 439.

#### EOSC 450 | GEOLOGICAL OCEANOGRAPHY

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (EOSC 300 (Can be taken Concurrently) or EOSC 303 (Can be taken Concurrently)) and (EOSC 301W (Can be taken Concurrently)) or EOSC 301 (Can be taken Concurrently))

The origin and geologic history of the ocean basin, with a detailed investigation of the theory of plate tectonics, sedimentation processes in the oceans, and paleoceanography. Three lectures and one laboratory per week; some weekend field trips may be required. (fall semester).

#### **EOSC 451 | BIOLOGICAL OCEANOGRAPHY**

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: EOSC 301W or BIOL 309

An integrated study of marine organisms and their environments, stressing ecological, behavioral, and physiological relationships. Near shore, deep sea, and open ocean environments will be covered. A weekend field trip may be required. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory per week. Fall semester.

#### **EOSC 452 | MARINE GEOCHEMISTRY**

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (EOSC 300 (Can be taken Concurrently) or EOSC 303 (Can be taken Concurrently)) and (EOSC 301W (Can be taken Concurrently)) or EOSC 301 (Can be taken Concurrently)) and CHEM 152 and CHEM 152L and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course begins by tracing the path of material sources to the ocean reservoir; from river, groundwater, atmospheric and hydrothermal vent pathways. A significant emphasis is placed on chemical processes in the ocean reservoir, such as trace metal and carbonate equilibrium concluding with an assessment of sediment redox chemistry and diagenesis. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory per week. Spring semester.

#### **EOSC 462 | BIOLOGY OF FISHES**

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (EOSC 300 (Can be taken Concurrently) and EOSC 301W (Can be taken Concurrently)) or BIOL 305  $\,$ 

This course examines the various aspects of ichthyology encompassing the anatomy, physiology, ecology, evolution, ethology, and natural history of fishes. Lab includes techniques of identification and a general survey of fish systematics and zoogeography. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory per week.

### **EOSC 465 | MARINE MAMMALS**

#### **Units: 3 Repeatability: No**

Prerequisites: EOSC 300 (Can be taken Concurrently) or BIOL 305

An examination of the biology of whales, pinnipeds and other marine mammals.

Topics will include general adaptations to a marine existence; systematics and biogeography; reproduction; diving physiology; communication and echolocation; feeding and migratory behavior; and marine mammal-human interactions.

Some emphasis will be placed on species occurring in the North Pacific Ocean.

Necropsies of a beach-stranded marine mammal may occur. Special projects will also be assigned.

#### **EOSC 473 | CLIMATOLOGY**

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: EOSC 220 and EOSC 222 and EOSC 300 (Can be taken Concurrently)

A course to cover principles of climatology and methods of climatic data analysis. The fundamentals of climatology, methods and technologies used in acquiring and analyzing climatic data, and current issues such as human-induced climatic changes will be discussed. This course will cover the Earth's energy budget and temperature, moisture in the atmosphere and precipitation, winds and the general circulation, and climates in different regions of the world. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory per week.

#### EOSC 474 | HISTORY OF THE EARTH AND CLIMATE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: EOSC 220 and EOSC 300 (Can be taken Concurrently)

A survey of the history of the earth system focusing on ocean-atmosphere-ice sheet dynamics and their interaction on past global climate change. Topics include geologic record of past climate cycles, causal mechanisms of past climate change, and the scientific basis of global warming. Three hours of lecture per week.

# EOSC 474L | HISTORY OF THE EARTH AND CLIMATE LABORATORY

#### Units: 1 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: EOSC 474 (Can be taken Concurrently)

A laboratory course designed to introduce students to methods and techniques used in historical geology and paleoclimatology including: a) identification of depositional environments; b) identification of invertebrate fossils and modes of fossilization; correlation and sequence stratigraphy; d) radiometric dating, and e) isotopic proxies of climate. The laboratory may include field trips. Lab must be taken with concurrent registration in EOSC 474.

#### **EOSC 485 | ENVIRONMENTAL GEOLOGY**

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: CHEM 151 and CHEM 151L and EOSC 300 (Can be taken Concurrently)

This course focuses on the interaction between humans and the geologic environment. We will examine geologic processes responsible for forming a variety of Earth resources, such as ore deposits (e.g., copper minerals) and energy resources (e.g., fossil and nuclear fuels). Anthropogenic extraction, processing, and disposal of these resources, and their impact on the environment, will be investigated. Two Earth resources will be the subject of detailed study: groundwater and soils. An in-depth explanation of processes relating to both (e.g., groundwater flow, water quality, soil composition) will be developed, followed by an investigation of practices used in the monitoring and assessment of anthropogenic contamination of soil and groundwater. This course will help to prepare students for working in academia, government, or as an environmental consultant. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory per week. Some weekend field trips may be required.

### EOSC 487 | SURFACE WATER HYDROLOGY

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: EOSC 220 and EOSC 222 and EOSC 300 (Can be taken Concurrently)

A course to cover principles of surface water hydrology and methods to solve hydrologic problems related to urbanization, soil and water conservation, and water resources management. The components of the hydrologic cycle and the concept of water balance will be discussed in detail. This course also will cover various methods of hydrologic computation, the basics of watershed modeling, applications of GIS in hydrology, and issues especially relevant to Southern California. Three hours of lecture and one laboratory per week and some field trips.

### EOSC 488 | GEOMORPHOLOGY

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (EOSC 300 (Can be taken Concurrently) or EOSC 303 (Can be taken Concurrently)) and (EOSC 301W (Can be taken Concurrently)) or EOSC 301 (Can be taken Concurrently))

An introduction to geomorphology, the study of landforms and the processes that produce and modify them. Explores how landforms respond to climate change, tectonic forcing, and changes in land use. Addresses common geomorphic processes including weathering, soils, hill slope processes, fluvial processes and landforms, aeolian transport, glacial and periglacial environments, karst, and coastal processes. This course includes a weekly lab.

#### EOSC 490 | UNDERGRADUATE LABORATORY ASSISTANT

#### Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Assist laboratory instructor in all aspects of a Environmental and Ocean Sciences laboratory.

### ${\bf EOSC~493~|~METHODS~IN~ENIVRONMENTAL~AND~OCEAN~SCIENCES}$

#### Units: 1-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Training and practice in the gathering, analysis, interpretation, and communication of marine scientific data. Designed to extend and integrate the sampling and analytical procedures of marine science. Selected instrumentation and techniques, field experience, and laboratory time will be emphasized. Shipboard experiences, weekend, or extended field trips may be required. Course may be repeated for credit only upon approval of the chair of marine science and environmental studies.

# EOSC 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS: ENVIRONMENTAL AND OCEAN SCIENCES

**Units: 1-4 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

Topics of special interest and/or unique opportunity.

#### **EOSC 495 | SENIOR SEMINAR**

Units: 1 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Oral communication competency

Prerequisites: EOSC 496 or EOSC 498

The techniques of seminar presentation will be studied by preparing and presenting individual seminars on topics of interest with emphasis from the student's pathway. Enrollment for credit is limited to, and required of, all senior students majoring in environmental and ocean sciences.

#### EOSC 496 | RESEARCH

#### Units: 1-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Students develop and/or assist in research projects in various fields of environmental studies under the supervision of a faculty member in Environmental and Ocean Sciences Studies.

#### EOSC 497 | UNDERGRADUATE LABORATORY ASSISTANT

#### Units: 1

Assist laboratory instructor in all aspects of a Environmental and Ocean Sciences laboratory.

#### **EOSC 498 | INTERNSHIP**

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Experience in the practical and experimental application of environmental and ocean sciences. Students will be involved in projects conducted by researchers, agencies and institutions outside the university, such as state parks, government agencies, research facilities, or environmental industries. Enrollment is arranged on an individual basis according to a student's interest and background, and is dependent on positions available and faculty approval. The department internship coordinator should be consulted before beginning an internship. Taking one unit in two or more consecutive semesters is recommended, but variations can be arranged in advance with the Internship instructor or the chair of Environmental and Ocean Sciences. A maximum of three internship units can be earned toward fulfillment of the requirements of the major. Every semester.

### **EOSC 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY**

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit) Independent study designed for individual student needs.

# **Ethnic Studies**

## Chair

May Fu, PhD

Units

27

# Core Faculty

Josen Diaz, PhD

Persephone Lewis, MA, Tribal Liaison, Professor of Practice

Jesse Mills, PhD

Gail Perez, PhD, Emerita

Alberto López Pulido, PhD

# Affiliated Faculty

Roy Brooks, JD, School of Law

Leeva Chung, PhD, Communication Studies

Bahar Davary, PhD, Theology and Religious Studies

Michelle Madsen Camacho, PhD, Sociology

Evelyn Diaz Cruz, MFA, Theatre Arts

Colin Fisher, PhD, History

Carlton Floyd, PhD, English

Judith Liu, Sociology

Marcelle Maese-Cohen, PhD, English

Alejandro Meter, PhD, Languages, Cultures and Literatures

Atreyee Phukan, PhD, English

Thomas E. Reifer, PhD, Sociology

Sandra Sgoutas-Emch, PhD, Psychological Sciences

Leonora Simonovis-Brown, PhD, Languages, Cultures and Literatures

Karen Teel, PhD, Theology and Religious Studies

# The Ethnic Studies Major

The Department of Ethnic Studies is a vibrant, interdisciplinary program that examines the historical, cultural and social dynamics of race and ethnicity in the United States using comparative, intersectional, transnational, and decolonizing methods. We acknowledge that USD is built on Kumeyaay Indigenous homelands and are especially committed to engaging decolonizing methodologies. Our academic and community-based knowledge curriculum addresses the lives, labor, and cultures of communities of color through ethnic-specific and comparative lenses while inviting students to engage with power, equity, and social justice issues in applied ways. We aim to bridge academic and community knowledges in order to serve the needs of local, tribal, and trans/national communities. Our majors are well prepared for careers in law, education, business, social work, counseling, public health, politics, and graduate study in ethnic studies and related fields.

# Preparation for the Major

Code	Title	Units
<b>Lower-Division</b> C	ourses	
ETHN 100	Intro to Ethnic Studies	3
Select two of the fo	ollowing:	6
ETHN 220	Introduction To African-American Studies	

ETHN 230	Introduction To American Indian Studies	
ETHN 240	Introduction To Chicano/Latino Studies	
ETHN 250	Introduction To Asian American Studies	
ETHN 294	Special Topics in Ethnic Studies	
Total Units		9

# Major Requirements

The major is interdisciplinary and requires 24 units of upper-division coursework. All students must:

- take at least two courses from different ethnic-specific core course areas not covered at the Lower-Division Level.
- and at least two courses from the Comparative Ethnic Studies core course area (360-369, or 460-469),
- Coursework will culminate in the capstone course, ETHN 495, a communitybased research seminar.

Additional courses generated each semester by the department may also be applicable.

The curriculum layout is as follows:

Title

Code

**Total Units** 

Core Course Area	as	
Select at least one below:	course from each of two different ethnic-specific areas	6
African American	Studies	
ETHN 321C	African American Panethnicity	
ETHN 322	African American Civil Rights	
ETHN 323	African American Music and Culture	
American Indian S	tudies	
ETHN 331	Gender in Native America	
ETHN 332	American Indian Health and Spirituality	
ETHN 333	Indigenous Decolonization	
Chicano/Latino Stu	adies	
ETHN 343	Chicano San Diego	
Asian American St	tudies	
ETHN 355	Asian American Social Movements	
Comparative Ethni	c Studies	
Select at least two	of the following:	6
ETHN 360	Race, Religion and Social Justice	
ETHN 361	Immigration at US-Mexico Border: Ethnicity, Race & Gender	
ETHN 362	Ethnicity and Cinema	
ETHN 363	Race and U.S. Social Movements	
ETHN 364	Race, Class and Gender	
ETHN 365	U.S. Women Of Color Theory And Activism	
ETHN 366	Race and Performance	
ETHN 367	Race and Globalization	
Electives		12
Four ETHN course	es (12 units), at least nine units must be upper-division	
<b>Capstone Course</b>		
ETHN 495	Capstone Seminar	3

## The Ethnic Studies Minor

The Ethnic Studies minor is an 18-unit program, consisting of 6 Lower-Division Units and 12 Upper-Division Units, including the following:

Code	Title	Uni
ETHN 100	Intro to Ethnic Studies	3
Select one of the f	following:	3
ETHN 220	Introduction To African-American Studies	
ETHN 230	Introduction To American Indian Studies	
ETHN 240	Introduction To Chicano/Latino Studies	
ETHN 250	Introduction To Asian American Studies	
12 units of elective coursework <sup>1</sup>		12

Students must take at least one course that is comparative (ETHN 360-369, 460-469) and at least one with an ethnic-specific emphasis that is different from the course taken at the Lower-Division Level (requirement #2). One course must be a "C" community-based or community service-learning course.

# ETHN 220 | INTRODUCTION TO AFRICAN-AMERICAN STUDIES

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 2** 

A survey course on the interdisciplinary field of African-American Studies. Students will learn basics of African-American history and culture in order to understand contemporary problems and conditions facing African-Americans. Banner equivalent to ETHN 220D. Students may not receive credit for completing both ETHN 220D and 220.

### ETHN 230 | INTRODUCTION TO AMERICAN INDIAN STUDIES

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 2

This course introduces students to the field of American Indian Studies. Students engage scholarly work, film, popular press texts, and attend community events to learn about American Indian people and the current and historical forces that shape modern-day realities for American Indians. Banner equivalent to ETHN 230D. Students may not receiver credit for taking both ETHN 230D and ETHN 230.

# ETHN 240 | INTRODUCTION TO CHICANO/LATINO STUDIES Units: 3 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 2** 

This course is an introductory survey of the field of Chicano/Latino Studies. Emphasis is placed on the historical development of the Chicano/Latino people including their Mesoamerican roots, cultural identification, political activities, and their contemporary roles and influence in United States culture, society and economy. Banner equivalent to ETHN 240D. Students may not receiver credit for taking both ETHN 240D and ETHN 240.

# ETHN 250 | INTRODUCTION TO ASIAN AMERICAN STUDIES Units: 3 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 2** 

A survey course on the interdisciplinary field of Asian American Studies. Students will learn basics of Asian American history, literature, and culture to understand historical and contemporary problems and conditions facing Asian Americans. Banner equivalent to ETHN 250D. Students may not receiver credit for taking both ETHN 250D and ETHN 250.

#### ETHN 294 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN ETHNIC STUDIES

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

**Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE** 

An in-depth analysis of selected contemporary and special topics in ethnic studies at the lower division with specific course content to be determined by particular interest and expertise of instructor and students. May be repeated for credit with different course content. (Offered on demand).

# ETHN 321C | AFRICAN AMERICAN PANETHNICITY

#### Core Attributes: Community Service Learning, Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

Panethnicity in the United States is the process in which people from varying cultural backgrounds and diverse ethnicities come to occupy larger-scale group identities based on racial classification. African-American communities and identities have historically been panethnic, comprised of individuals from various ethnic groups and migration histories complete with different languages, traditions, religions, and cultures. This course examines the intra-racial dynamics of African-American panethnic communities and identities in theoretical, historical, and community-based terms. Special emphasis will be given to engagement with community members around USD through guest speakers and involvement in community events.

# ETHN 322 | AFRICAN AMERICAN CIVIL RIGHTS Units: 3

Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

This course examines African-American perspectives on civil rights in the United States foregrounding local, national, and international American cultural politics, race dynamics, and power. Utilizing interdisciplinary approaches of literature, political science, sociology, and history, we will survey the twentieth century Golden Age of civil rights and examine the state of African-American social justice activism today.

# ETHN 323 | AFRICAN AMERICAN MUSIC AND CULTURE Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE**

This course provides a historically grounded investigation of African-American music and culture with specific emphasis on the United States and African Diaspora in the Americas. Topics of study may include an overview of the study of African-American music; problems in defining, theorizing, and talking about black music; black music and the cultural politics of race, class, and gender; and exploration of the various musical genres and styles (i.e. spirituals, gospel, blues, "art" music, jazz, and hip hop) that impact other aspects of African-American expressive culture — art, religion/spirituality, aesthetics, and worldview.

# ETHN 331 | GENDER IN NATIVE AMERICA

Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

This course examines gender as a social institution and its implications at both the micro (personal) and macro (societal) levels. Social, political, and historical implications for the intersections of racialized, classed, and gendered identities will be critiqued. Special attention will be paid to gender and traditional indigenous cultures and how gender relations and formations change within a colonial (historic and contemporary) U.S. context.

# ETHN 332 | AMERICAN INDIAN HEALTH AND SPIRITUALITY Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE**

This class examines indigenous conceptions of health and spirituality. The theory of historical trauma and the concept of sound wound are especially important analytical tools. Students in this course will ask and answer the following question: how do culture, history, and social problems influence one's health and spirituality? Students will study the influence of the social institutions of education, religion, and the economy as indigenous peoples continue to shape the meaning of wellness in their lives. Varying traditions of healing will be examined, including the role of sacred foods in healing processes.

#### ETHN 333 | INDIGENOUS DECOLONIZATION

#### Units: 3

Indigenous studies scholars use the term "decolonization" to analyze the ways in which Indigenous peoples and their allies are using traditional Indigenous cultural teachings to advocate for social change within their communities and broader society. Key to this decolonizing framework is the idea that Indigenous cultural revitalization can help Indigenous communities protect their minds, bodies, and lands so that healthy Indigenous communities can be restored. In this class we will discuss definitions of decolonization and examine the ways in which Indigenous communities have used the term to guide their own cultural revitalization work across diverse settings such as: Maori and Hawaiian language nests, Indigenous museums, Indigenous cultural expression, and American Indian/Alaska Native legal studies.

#### ETHN 343 | CHICANO SAN DIEGO

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

This course explores Chicano/Latino experiences in San Diego and the U.S. Borderlands. It examines how racial and ethnic identities are shaped by historical, political, economic, cultural, sacred, and linguistic dimensions that inform Chicano/Latino cultures and communities.

### ETHN 355 | ASIAN AMERICAN SOCIAL MOVEMENTS

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

This course examines Asian American social movements from the 19th century to the present. Students will learn about the theories and practices that shaped Asian American activism and community organizing.

#### ETHN 360 | RACE, RELIGION AND SOCIAL JUSTICE

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

This course examines the relationship between issues of social justice, race, and the role of religion (the sacred) in guiding us toward a more just and humane society.

# ETHN 361 | IMMIGRATION AT US-MEXICO BORDER: ETHNICITY, RACE & GENDER

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

In this course we will look at the United States-Mexico border as a scenario for emerging and contested ethnic, racial and gender identities. Drawing on the experiences of the distinct ethnic and racial groups that came to inhabit the area -- namely Native Americans, Spaniards, Mexicans, Anglo Americans, African-Americans and Asians.

#### ETHN 362 | ETHNICITY AND CINEMA

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

This course uses a comparative, analytical, and critical approach to the study of ethnicity and to the relationship between cinematic representations and the experiences of racialized communities. The course includes examination of multiple dimensions of media stereotypes, film history and theory, and the ways filmmakers of various ethnic and national backgrounds respond to and through mainstream cinemas. Students to engage in film analysis that is informed by an understanding of the politics of representation and the historically situated conditions of cinematic production.

### ETHN 363 | RACE AND U.S. SOCIAL MOVEMENTS

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

This course examines the relationship between race and social movements in the United States. Students will learn about how communities of color have organized grassroots movements for social, economic, and political equity.

#### ETHN 364 | RACE, CLASS AND GENDER

Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE**

This course examines the intersectionality of race, class, gender, and sexuality. Students will learn how communities of color are structured by these categories of difference and how they have generated expansive identities, cultures, and epistemologies from them.

# ETHN 365 | U.S. WOMEN OF COLOR THEORY AND ACTIVISM Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE**

This interdisciplinary course traces the development of US Women of Color feminist theory and its impact on contemporary grassroots activism and social movements.

#### ETHN 366 | RACE AND PERFORMANCE

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

This course provides grounding in performance theory and comparative ethnic studies. Performance analysis offers a powerful interpretive framework for engaging the social construction, fluidity, and hybridity of identities, and the tactics and strategies of social change. Students will develop skills in decoding meanings produced by racialized bodies and acts in staged contexts, as well as the construction of race and identity through "performances" in everyday life.

### ETHN 367 | RACE AND GLOBALIZATION

Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Global Diversity level 2**

This course offers a transnational perspective to the study of race, colonialism, power, society, and social justice. Investigating issues of global migration, labor, neoliberal economics, and national security, it both contextualizes and challenges popular understandings of globalization.

#### ETHN 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN ETHNIC STUDIES

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

#### **Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE**

An in-depth analysis of selected contemporary and special topics in ethnic studies, with specific course content to be determined by particular interest and expertise of instructor and students. May be repeated for credit with different course content. (Offered on demand).

#### ETHN 495 | CAPSTONE SEMINAR

**Units: 3 Repeatability: No** 

# Core Attributes: Community Service Learning, Diversity-Pre F17 CORE, Writing-Pre F17 CORE

A seminar devoted to advanced study in the field. Students will conduct community-based research, applying theoretical perspectives to experiences with various local groups, organizations, collectives, or neighborhoods. The course is equivalent to a senior thesis project.

### ETHN 498 | INTERNSHIP IN ETHNIC STUDIES

### **Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)**

### Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Practical experience in applied ethnic studies. Students will be involved in projects conducted by agencies and institutions outside the university, such as community based organizations, grassroots leadership and organizing efforts, government agencies, and community partners of the Ethnic Studies Department. Enrollment is arranged on an individual basis according to a student's interest and background, and is dependent on positions available and faculty approval. The department internship coordinator or chair should be consulted before beginning an internship. Taking one unit in two or more consecutive semesters is recommended, but variations can be arranged in advance with the instructor or the chair of Ethnic Studies. A maximum of three internship units can be earned toward fulfillment of the requirements of the major.

**ETHN 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY** 

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

Individual study and written research.

## Film Studies

# **Program Director**

Victoria Fu, MFA, Art, Architecture + Art History

Eric Pierson, PhD, Communication Studies

# **Affiliated Faculty**

Ryan Abrecht, PhD, History

Can Bilsel, PhD, Art, Architecture + Art History

Hugh Burkhart, MA, MLS, Copley Library

Dennis N. Clausen, PhD, English

Loredana Di Martino, PhD, Languages, Cultures and Literatures

Joseph McGowan, PhD, English

David Miller, PhD, History

Sylvie Ngilla, PhD, Languages, Cultures and Literatures

Roger Pace, PhD, Communication Studies

Martin Repinecz, PhD, Languages, Cultures and Literatures

Fred Miller Robinson, PhD, English

Kenneth P. Serbin, PhD, History

Kathryn Statler, PhD, History

Yi Sun, PhD, History

Mei Yang, PhD, Languages, Cultures and Literatures

Sally Yard, PhD, Art, Architecture + Art History

The Film Studies minor includes an interdisciplinary study of film across departments. This approach is particularly apt, given film's status as a diverse and multivalent cultural and aesthetic form. The program includes multiple disciplines and is transnational in scope, giving the study of film a breadth and richness that is impossible to provide within just a single department. This approach also helps students to develop a critical literacy of many types of moving image media, as film today can no longer be singularly defined as the Hollywood feature film.

The intellectual and academic study of film is almost as old the medium itself. Early filmmakers engaged in scholarly writings about the practice and philosophy of cinema. Pioneering practitioners engaged in the public justification and legitimacy of the emerging art. Film clubs and societies developed around the world to publish film-centered discussions of the new art. As the discussions progressed and spread to university courses and programs, distinctive models of film theory and criticism emerged as well as an idiosyncratic language of film. The new study of film established paradigms able to illuminate the human condition in unique and compelling ways. The value of film studies is now widely recognized and the intellectual discussion of film is firmly embedded in curriculum of most universities.

Students are required to complete two Film Studies courses and 12 additional units from at least two different departments in the College of Arts and Sciences.

### The Film Studies Minor

18 units total, including at least 9 upper-division units. The minor requires two Film Studies courses (FILM 101, FILM 301). The other four courses must be taken from at least two of the following departments: Art, Architecture + Art History: Communication Studies: English: History

History; Commun	ication Studies; English; History; and Languages, Cultures	and
Literatures.		
Code	Title	Uni
Students are requi	ired to take the following:	
FILM 101	Introduction to Cinema	3
FILM 301	Introduction to Film Theory	3
	units from the following list. Courses must be taken from at departments. At least six units must be upper-division.	12
Art, Architecture	e + Art History	
ARTH 345	The Avant-Garde and Mass Culture: Art and Politics	
ARTH 355	The City in Art and Film	
ARTH 356	Race, Ethnicity, Art and Film	
ARTH 494	Seminar *	
ARTV 108	Introduction to Video Art	
ARTV 308	Video Art: Site and Screen	
ARTV 320	Video Art: The Cinematic	
ARTV 324	Intermediate/Advanced Video Art	
	94 courses are film courses. Students should select a film- evious offerings include Global Art Cinema. Consult with	
the FILM director	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Communication	Studies	
COMM 432	Film and Cultural Politics	
COMM 433	American Independent Cinema	
COMM 434	Documentary Film	
COMM 435	Principles of Video Production	
COMM 485	Writing for Media	
English		

the FILM director	:.
Communication	Studies
COMM 432	Film and Cultural Politics
COMM 433	American Independent Cinema
COMM 434	Documentary Film
COMM 435	Principles of Video Production
COMM 485	Writing for Media
English	
ENGL 372	Film Studies
ENGL 385	Topics in Creative Writing *
*Not all ENGL 38	85 courses are film courses. Consult with the FILM director.
History	
HIST 155	Topics in History, Literature, and Film
HIST 362	Topics in Latin America History *
HIST 375	Topics in U.S. History *
*Not all HIST 36	2 and HIST 375 courses are film courses. Consult with the
FILM director.	

Languages, Cultures and Literatures		
LANG 194	Special Topics in Language, Literature and Culture *	
CHIN 347	Chinese Cinema:Postsocialism and Modernity	
FREN 394	Topics in Language, Literature, or Culture *	
ITAL 403	Studies in Italian Film	
SPAN 427	Studies in 20th and 21st Century Peninsular Literature and Culture $^{\ast}$	
SPAN 430	Studies in Hispanic Film	

\*Not all LANG 194, FREN 394 and SPAN 427 courses are film courses. Students should select a film-related course. Consult with the FILM director.

Total Units 18

Relevant 194/294/394/494 and topics courses or Honors courses in Art History, Chinese, Communication Studies, English, Ethnic Studies, French, Italian, Spanish or Visual Arts, to be approved by the program director, may also satisfy requirements for the Film Studies minor.

#### FILM 101 | INTRODUCTION TO CINEMA

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This course is an introduction to film form and the historical, industrial, and cultural contexts that make form significant for analysis. This class aims to equip students to look purposefully, critically and contextually at the moving image, mindful of the ways that meaning is produced and received.

#### FILM 301 | INTRODUCTION TO FILM THEORY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: FILM 101 or ARTH 144

A survey of the major concepts of film theory, this course emphasizes the ways that film engages the viewer through form, social meaning and the particularities of the brain and bodily senses. Screenings, lectures and texts examine the aesthetic, social, philosophical and psychological aspects of the cinematic medium, and include examples reflecting a transnational approach.

# **History**

### Chair

Colin Fisher, PhD

# **Faculty**

Ryan Abrecht, PhD

Thomas Barton, PhD

Michael Gonzalez, PhD

James Gump, PhD

Molly McClain, PhD

Clara Oberle, PhD

Kenneth P. Serbin, PhD

Kathryn Statler, PhD

T.J. Tallie, PhD

Yi Sun, PhD

Explore the past, understand the present, and plan for the future. The Department of History is dedicated to excellent teaching and award-winning research. Students learn to work with original sources and to think and write critically about a wide variety of historical problems. The faculty offer classes in U.S., European, Latin American, Middle Eastern, African, Asian, Pacific Ocean, ancient, modern, and world history, as well as topical courses.

# The History Major

Preparation for the History Major

Code Title Units

**Lower-Division Requirements** 

HIST 200	The Historian's Craft (Should be taken during sophomore year.)	3
Select 2 of the fol	llowing lower-division history classes:	6
HIST 102	The Ancient World	
HIST 103	The Medieval World	
HIST 108	The Atlantic World 1500-1800	
HIST 109	The Pacific World, 1500-1800	
HIST 110	World History Topics	
HIST 115	Topics in War and Peace in Historical Perspective	
HIST 116	War and Peace in the Modern World	
HIST 117	U.S. History to 1870	
HIST 118	U.S. History, 1877 to the Present	
HIST 120	U.S. History Topics	
HIST 125D	Race and Ethnicity in the American Experience	
HIST 126D	American Women in History	
HIST 130	East Asia in Transformation	
HIST 135	Topics in the History of Culture and Identity	
HIST 140	Modern Europe	
HIST 145	Topics in Urban History	
HIST 150	Topics in Comparative History	
HIST 155	Topics in History, Literature, and Film	
HIST 160	Topics in History of Science and Technology	
HIST 170	Big History: From Cosmos to Cannibals	
HIST 171	Modern World History	
HIST 180	Great Moments in Time	
Lower Division U	Jnits	9
Upper-Division 1	Requirements	
Select 2 upper div	vision courses in United States history	6
HIST 349	The Vietnam Wars	
HIST 370	American Environmental History	
HIST 372	United States-East Asia Relations	
HIST 373	Armed Conflict and American Society	
HIST 374	Civil War and Reconstruction	
HIST 375	Topics in U.S. History	
HIST 376	U.S. Foreign Relations in the Long 19th Century	
HIST 377	Twentieth Century U.S. Foreign Relations	
HIST 380	History of the American West	
HIST 381	American Indian History	
HIST 382	The Spanish Southwest	
HIST 383	Chicano/a/x History	
HIST 389	History of California	
HIST 390	Art and Architecture in California	
HIST 392	History in the Community	
	vision courses in European history	6
HIST 311	Greek Civilization	
HIST 312	Roman Civilization	
HIST 321	The Fall of the Roman Empire	
HIST 322	Castles and Crusades: Medieval Europe, 1050-1450	
HIST 324	Christians, Muslims and Jews in Medieval Spain	
HIST 331	The Global Renaissance	
HIST 333	Europe 1600-1800	
HIST 340	World War I	
11101 540	HOME T	

HIST 341	World War II	
HIST 343	History of Germany Since 1945	
HIST 346	Topics in Medieval and Early Modern Europe	
HIST 347	Topics in Modern Europe	
HIST 348	France in Revolution and War	
HIST 350	History of the British Isles	
HIST 351	Modern Britain	
HIST 352	The British Imperial Experience	
HIST 354	History of Spain	
HIST 355	Imperial Russia	
HIST 356	Soviet Union and After	
HIST 357	Topics in Russian and East European History	
Select 2 upper divis	ion courses in World history	6
HIST 310	Ancient Near East	
HIST 340	World War I	
HIST 341	World War II	
HIST 342	From Subjects to Citizens: Nation Building in France and India	
HIST 349	The Vietnam Wars	
HIST 358	Topics in Modern World History	
HIST 359	Modern Middle East	
HIST 361	Modern Latin America	
HIST 362	Topics in Latin America History	
HIST 363	History of Brazil	
HIST 364	Topics in Asian History	
HIST 365	China: Rise to Global Power	
HIST 366	Japan: Samurai to Subaru	
HIST 367	Women's Lives in East Asia	
HIST 368	The African Historical Experience	
HIST 369	Topics in African History	
HIST 372	United States-East Asia Relations	
HIST 384	History of Mexico	
Select two upper-di-	vision HIST courses in any area <sup>1</sup>	6
The following cours	ses must be taken consecutively during the senior year:	
HIST 490	Introduction To Senior Seminar	1
HIST 495W	Senior Research Seminar	3
Total Units		37

<sup>1</sup> Students may choose to do a three-unit internship at one of the many museums and historical societies located in San Diego.

Students should plan their upper-division courses in consultation with their major advisor.

At least 15 of the 25 upper-division units must be taken at USD. No more than 6 non-USD units taken abroad will be accepted for credit toward the history major.

### Recommended Program of Study, History

### Freshman Year

Semester I	Units
Preceptorial	3
Lower Division HIST	3
CC or electives	9-10

em		

Lower Division HIST		3
CC or electives		12-13
Sophomore Year		
Semester I		
HIST 200	The Historian's Craft	3
Upper Division HIST	•	3
CC or electives		12-13
Semester II		
CC or electives		15-16
Junior Year		
Semester I		
Upper Division HIST	•	3
CC or electives		9-10
Semester II		
Upper Division HIST	,	6
CC or electives		9-10
Senior Year		
Semester I		
HIST 490	Introduction To Senior Seminar	1
Upper Division HIST	,	6
CC or electives		9
Semester II		
HIST 495W	Senior Research Seminar	3
Upper Division HIST	,	6
Electives		9
The History	Minor	
	Fitle	Hou
		1100

Code	Title	Hour
Choose cours	es in consultation with a faculty advisor in H	Iistory
Select 6 units	of lower-division HIST courses	6
Select 12 uni	ts of upper-division HIST courses	12

Note: For graduate courses in History, or a Master of Arts in Teaching (MAT), see the current Graduate Catalog.

### HIST 102 | THE ANCIENT WORLD

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area

This course explores the emergence and development of civilization in the Mediterranean world from the first appearance of cities around 3000 B.C.E. to the transformation of the Roman Empire in the fourth century C.E. We will examine how ancient ideas, empires, social structures, art, literature, and religious beliefs emerged in response to the challenges that confronted ancient people as their world expanded and changed. Topics include empire, religion, gender roles, barbarians, slavery, democracy, warfare, diplomacy, and inter-regional trade and

#### HIST 103 | THE MEDIEVAL WORLD

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area

This course explores the tensions and transformations in European society between A.D. 300 and 1500, as well as points of contact between medieval societies within Europe itself, across the Mediterranean, and beyond. Topics include the Fall of the Roman Empire, Byzantium, the rise of Islam, Vikings, Mongols, social crisis and disorder, plague, the Norman Conquest of England, the Crusades, troubadours, saints, the medieval Papacy, medieval Christianity and its heresies, monasticism, the revival of classical learning, and voyages of exploration and discovery.

#### HIST 108 | THE ATLANTIC WORLD 1500-1800

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area

Drawing together the histories of four continents – Europe, Africa, North America, and South America – this course explores the nature and meaning of the new Atlantic world created by the interaction of the peoples of the old and new worlds. It examines the Atlantic world through the experiences of the men and women – European, African, and Native-American – who inhabited it from the mid-15th century through about 1820. Students will learn about the often volatile and constantly shifting mixture of people and pathogens, of labor systems and crops, and of nations, empires, and subjects that contributed to the painful and unexpected emergence of this new Atlantic community. They will also explore the unique transnational and multicultural character of this region.

### HIST 109 | THE PACIFIC WORLD, 1500-1800

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area

This course focuses on the discovery and exploration of the Pacific World – including Australia and New Zealand, the Philippines, Micronesia, Melanesia, Polynesia, Hawaii, Alaska, and the Americas – from 1500 to 1820. It looks at the ways in which disease, migration, trade, and war drew together vast, diverse collections of human beings from around the globe: Russian fur traders, Spanish missionaries, Japanese fishermen, French and Spanish explorers, British naval officers, German naturalists, Tahitian translators, Aleutian hunters, Polynesian navigators, and Yankee merchants. Students will have the opportunity to explore the incorporation of this unique transnational and multicultural region into a world economy.

#### HIST 110 | WORLD HISTORY TOPICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Historical Inquiry area

This course focuses on a particular topic in world history. Students may repeat the course for credit when the topic changes.

# HIST 115 | TOPICS IN WAR AND PEACE IN HISTORICAL PERSPECTIVE

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area

This course offers students an in-depth look at the underlying causes of war, revolution, terrorism, and genocide in modern world history. Students think critically about justice and human rights, nonviolence, military necessity, and the value of political community. Topics may include "The Origins of Terrorism in the Modern World" and "The Vietnam War," among others. Students may repeat the course for credit when the topic changes.

### HIST 116 | WAR AND PEACE IN THE MODERN WORLD

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area

The ending of the Cold War seemed to promise a new world order characterized by respect for human rights, principles of democracy, and the rule of law. Instead, we enter the 21st century plagued by global conflict and burdened by spasms of terrorism, radical nationalism, ethnic cleansing, a growing gap between rich and poor, and the proliferation of nuclear and biological weapons. Where did these problems arise and why have they not gone away? Furthermore, how have societies gone about managing conflict and sustaining peace over the past two hundred years or so? This class will assist students in gaining historical perspective on these questions by exploring the underlying causes of war, revolution, terrorism, and genocide in modern world history. The course will begin with an analysis of the contemporary scene and then back up to explore the historical evolution of conflict and its resolution since the era of revolutionary France. Utilizing a global perspective, students will analyze the strengths and weaknesses of various attempts at managing and resolving conflict in the modern world. (Meets lower division requirement for the Peace and Justice Studies minor).

#### HIST 117 | U.S. HISTORY TO 1870

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area

This course is a survey of American history from pre-colonial times through Reconstruction. It explores a wide variety of factors (economic, political, social, and cultural) that shaped the formation of the United States. Core themes include the Revolution, the Constitution, the Civil War, conflicts with indigenous peoples, the emergence of a market society, racial slavery, the place of women, geographic expansion, popular protest, and elite rule. The course challenges commonly held beliefs about the past and it encourages students to examine the veracity of popular beliefs about American history.

#### HIST 118 | U.S. HISTORY, 1877 TO THE PRESENT

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### **Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area**

This course is designed to explore America's historical development from the Reconstruction era to the present. It explores a wide variety of factors (political, economic, social, and cultural) that contributed to the creation of a multicultural industrial society and that shaped America's emergence as a world power. We will analyze key issues such as the changing relationships between government and the governed; the growth of a strong central state; the creation of a modern industrial economy; the evolution of an increasingly heterogeneous society; the country's development into a world power; the Cold War at home and abroad; and the origins and consequences of the Vietnam War.

#### HIST 120 | U.S. HISTORY TOPICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area

This course focuses on a particular topic in U.S. History.

# HIST 125 | RACE AND ETHNICITY IN THE AMERICAN EXPERIENCE Units: 3 Repeatability: No

### ${\bf Core\ Attributes:\ Historical\ Inquiry\ area,\ Domestic\ Diversity\ level\ 1}$

This course provides students with a basic understanding of how race and ethnicity have influenced American society from the colonial period to the present. Students will be exposed to a variety of topics and historical events that will help explain how and why Americans' attitudes about racial and ethnic differences changed over time. They also will look at how these attitudes have affected the nation's major immigrant and racial minority populations. Finally, the course will examine how ideas and attitudes about race affected major societal institutions and social policies in the United States.

# HIST 125D | RACE AND ETHNICITY IN THE AMERICAN EXPERIENCE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE, History-Pre F17 CORE

This course provides students with a basic understanding of how race and ethnicity have influenced American society from the colonial period to the present. Students will be exposed to a variety of topics and historical events that will help explain how and why Americans' attitudes about racial and ethnic differences changed over time. They also will look at how these attitudes have affected the nation's major immigrant and racial minority populations. Finally, the course will examine how ideas and attitudes about race affected major societal institutions and social policies in the United States.

#### HIST 126 | AMERICAN WOMEN IN HISTORY

Units: 3

Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

#### HIST 126D | AMERICAN WOMEN IN HISTORY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE, History-Pre F17 CORE

This course explores the impact of historical events on the lives of American women and the varied roles women played in the shaping of American history. Topics include: witchcraft in New England; gender and family life under slavery; the impact of industrialization on women of different classes; the ideology of separate spheres; women's political activities including the antislavery movement, the suffrage movement, the 19th Amendment, and the resurgence of feminism in the 1960s; and transformations in the lives of modern women including work, politics, sexuality, consumption patterns, and leisure activities.

#### HIST 128 | AFRICAN AMERICAN HISTORY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area, Domestic Diversity level 1

This course examines the history of African Americans from the ascendance of slavery on the West African coast to black life on the contemporary racial landscape. Who are African Americans? What realities, socio-political ideologies, and cultural practices ground African-descended people? How has and does inequality unfold in the lives of African Americans and systematic mechanisms catapult their perpetual marginalization? Through what means have black communities resisted oppression and how have these methods changed overtime? How do the positionalities of African Americans evolve across gender, class, ethnic, and regional lines? What does the black experience reveal about the pronounced American values of racial transcendence, as well as master historical narratives? How have African Americans created and influenced the contours of American society? Together, we will strive to answer these questions. Together, we will concern ourselves with the fullness of black humanity.

#### HIST 130 | EAST ASIA IN TRANSFORMATION

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

### Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area

This course covers essential aspects of East Asian cultures and societies from a historical perspective, with a primary focus on China and Japan. It also analyzes the causes and consequences of the East-West contacts and conflicts, highlighting major events such as the Opium War, the U.S. iopeningî of Japan, WWII in Asia, the Korean War, the Cold War as well as the current economic and cultural relations between East Asian countries and the United States. Through this class, students are expected to understand the cultural traditions of East Asia, the causal relationships between key historical events, the complexities of East Asia - U.S. relations and the role that East Asian countries are playing in today's changing world. (Lower division requirement for the Asian Studies minor).

#### HIST 135 | TOPICS IN THE HISTORY OF CULTURE AND IDENTITY

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: History-Pre F17 CORE

This course looks at the way in which race, gender, nationality, language, religious belief, and/or aesthetic values have shaped societies and peoples in the past. Topics may include "Magic in the Middle Ages," "History of American Food," and "Victorian Women," among others. Students may repeat the course for credit when the topic changes.

#### HIST 140 | MODERN EUROPE

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Historical Inquiry area

This class explores the intellectual, social, and political changes that shaped the development of Europe from 1780 to the present. The course pays particular attention to the impact of Enlightenment ideas and questions of social justice. Topics include the French and the Industrial Revolutions; nationalism and the emergence of nation states; the rise of Marxism; high imperialism; the two world wars; totalitarian governments of the 20th century; comparative histories of everyday life; and European integration.

#### HIST 145 | TOPICS IN URBAN HISTORY

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area

In this course, students study individual cities at unique moments in their historical development. Themes include the impact of the built environment on human experience, architecture as an expression of power, and the relationship between physical space and the development of community. Topics may include "Fin de Siècle Vienna" and "History of the American City," among others. Students may repeat the course for credit when the topic changes.

### HIST 150 | TOPICS IN COMPARATIVE HISTORY Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit) Core Attributes: History-Pre F17 CORE

This course will offer a comparative perspective on a significant historical topic, which will assist students in clarifying what is and what is not unique to a particular historical experience. Special emphasis will be given to critiquing the notion of American "exceptionalism." Topics may include "Comparative Frontiers," "The Ghost Dance in Comparative Perspective," "Comparative Imperialism," and "Women under Communism." Students may repeat the course for credit when the topic changes.

### HIST 155 | TOPICS IN HISTORY, LITERATURE, AND FILM

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

### Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area

This course offers students the opportunity to evaluate literature and film as historical evidence, to understand cultural and social contexts of a given era or society, and/or to make arguments about the interpretation of important historical events. Topics may include "The American Western," "World War I and World War II through Literature and Film," "Latin America Through Film," and "Modern China in Film," among others.

### HIST $160 \mid \text{TOPICS}$ IN HISTORY OF SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

#### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Historical Inquiry area

This course will explore the various facets of the development of technology ranging from tool making among hunter-gatherers to the biotechnological revolution of the 21st century. Students will examine ongoing processes of human innovation and their impact on the individual and society. Topics may include "Science, Technology, and Medicine in the Pre-Modern Era," "The Industrial Revolutions," "History of the Brain," and "The Biotechnological Revolution." Students may repeat the course for credit when the topic changes.

#### HIST 170 | BIG HISTORY: FROM COSMOS TO CANNIBALS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area

This course focuses on major themes in the history of humanity from 100,000 B.C. to A.D. 1500. It considers the evolution of the human species, the formation of hunter-gatherer societies, and the rise of great civilizations. It looks at how authority was manifested in architecture, government, writing, religion, philosophy, arts, science, and technology. A comparative approach will illuminate how world cultures differ, what they share, how they are differentiated, and what they exchange in the making of the modern world. The emphasis is on non-Western peoples.

#### HIST 171 | MODERN WORLD HISTORY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area

This course engages students in the study of modern world history in order to achieve a more critical and integrated understanding of global societies and cultures during the past five hundred years. Students will explore developments in Africa, Asia, the Americas, and Europe; consider the rise of the West after 1750; investigate the origins and outcomes of world war, revolution, and genocide in the 20th century; trace the disintegration of western empires after World War II; and ponder the global challenges of the post-Cold War era.

#### HIST 172 | HISTORY OF AFRICA

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area

History 172 introduces students to the cultures and civilizations of Africa from earliest times to the modern era, with particular emphasis given to Africa south of the Sahara Desert. Students will examine the role of mythology in distorting our perceptions of the African experience; consider the nature of traditional African social institutions; study the processes of change in the precolonial era, taking into account the role of state formation and the long-distance slave trade; explore the circumstances under which Europe partitioned and conquered much of the African continent; analyze development and underdevelopment since the European intrusion; and study the evolution of the South African dilemma as well as that country's democratic transformation since 1994.

#### HIST 180 | GREAT MOMENTS IN TIME

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

### Core Attributes: Oral communication competency, Historical Inquiry area

In this course, students play elaborate games set at moments of great historical change and/or controversy, using texts drawn from the history of ideas. Class sessions are run entirely by students; instructors advise and guide students and grade their oral and written work. These games, part of the award-winning pedagogy "Reacting to the Past," draw students into history, promote engagement with big ideas, and improve intellectual and academic skills. Students play two to three games over the course of the semester, selected from "The Threshold of Democracy: Athens in 403 B.C.," "Confucianism and the Wanli Emperor, 1587," "Patriots, Loyalists, and Revolution in New York City, 1775-76," "Charles Darwin and the Rise of Naturalism," "Art in Paris, 1888-89," and "Greenwich Village, 1913: Suffrage, Labor, and the New Woman," among others.

### HIST 190 | TOPICS IN WORLD HISTORY

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Topics in World History. Students may repeat the course for credit when the topic changes.

#### HIST 191 | TOPICS IN EUROPEAN HISTORY

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Topics in European History. Students may repeat the course for credit when the topic changes.

#### HIST 192 | TOPICS IN U.S. HISTORY

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Topics in U.S. History. Students may repeat the course for credit when the topic changes.

#### HIST 194 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN HISTORY

#### **Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)**

Special Topics in History. Students may repeat the course for credit when the topic changes.

#### HIST 200 | THE HISTORIAN'S CRAFT

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Oral communication competency, Historical Inquiry area

This course, offered each semester, is required for all students who wish to be History majors and should be taken during sophomore year. The class will prepare students to be History majors. They will learn how to conduct historical research and be exposed to the various fields and schools of thought that will comprise the discipline of History. As part of their training as scholars, the students will learn how to write a 10-15 page research paper due at the end of the semester.

#### HIST 310 | ANCIENT NEAR EAST

#### Units: 3

This course explores cradles of civilization in Ancient Mesopotamia and Egypt. An introduction to early man is followed by a survey of Sumerian, Babylonian, Egyptian, Hittite, Phoenician, and Hebrew cultures, as well as the Assyrian and Persian imperialism that replaced them. Course covers the period through Cyrus the Great

#### HIST 311 | GREEK CIVILIZATION

#### Units: 3

This course explores the emergence and development of Greek civilization from the time of the Minoans and Mycenaeans to the rise of Alexander the Great, with an emphasis on the Archaic and Classical periods. Students use the works of ancient Greek poets, historians, and thinkers together with art and archaeology to investigate Greek culture and society, as well as the origins and development of democracy, drama, and philosophy. Topics include the roles of women and slaves, Greek religion, colonization and resistance on Greece's borders, and the use of art as political propaganda.

#### **HIST 312 | ROMAN CIVILIZATION**

#### **Units: 3-4**

This class explores the emergence and development of Roman civilization from the foundation of the city of Rome to the legalization of Christian worship under the emperor Constantine, with an emphasis on society and culture in the early empire. Students use the works of ancient Roman poets, historians, and thinkers together with art and archaeology to investigate Roman culture and society, as well as the origin and development of republican government, imperialism, technological innovations, and literary and visual arts. Topics include the roles of women and slaves, Roman religion, imperialism and resistance on Rome's borders, and the use of art as political propaganda.

# HIST 321 | THE FALL OF THE ROMAN EMPIRE Units: 3

This class explores the later history of the Roman Empire from the splitting of the empire into "East" and "West" in the late 3rd century C.E. to the growing power of Arab dynasties in the 8th C C.E. Questions to be explored include: in what ways did the Roman empire "fall," and in what ways did Roman traditions and practices continue? What were the roles of "barbarian" cultures during this time period? How did private life change? How did Paganism, Judaism, and Christianity interact with each other? In what ways did emperors and wealthy patrons use public buildings to increase their power? How do we know what we know about this time period?.

# HIST 322 | CASTLES AND CRUSADES: MEDIEVAL EUROPE, 1050-1450 Units: 3-4

This course examines violence, chaos, and the political and social crisis of medieval Europe. Students explore the transformation of Europe from an isolated, disordered, agricultural society to a powerful, wealthy, expansionist one. Topics include knights and peasants, the Crusades, heresy, plague, Marco Polo's travels to China, and the rise of Western European empires.

#### HIST 323 | MEDIEVAL WOMAN

#### Units: 3

This course will examine the lives of women during the Middle Ages, ca. 500-1500. Starting with the Biblical stories of Eve, the Virgin Mary, and Mary Magdalene, students will explore the ideological foundations for the positions ascribed to women that, arguably, continue to shape attitudes toward women and their role in society. Topics include women's roles as wives, mothers, and healers, the lives of noblewomen and powerful female monarchs, spirituality, the church, and the life and legacy of Joan of Arc, and female characters in medieval literature such as Guinevere.

# HIST 324 | CHRISTIANS, MUSLIMS AND JEWS IN MEDIEVAL SPAIN Units: 3

This course focuses on the society and culture of the pre-modern Iberian Peninsula with an emphasis on the conflict, coexistence, and diversity of interaction of its three religious groups: Christians, Jews, and Muslims. We will consider the territorial struggle between Christian and Muslim-ruled regimes over the course of many centuries, the environments of pre- and post-conquest societies and the frontier that separated them, and the ability of minority (and majority) religious groups to maintain themselves in these changing socio-religious contexts.

#### HIST 331 | THE GLOBAL RENAISSANCE

#### Units: 3-4 Repeatability: No

This course explores the origins and consequences of the rediscovery of Europe's classical heritage in Italy and the broader continent between the 14th and 16th centuries. Topics include continuities and discontinuities with medieval traditions, politics and political theory, civic and philosophical humanism, court culture, art, and architecture.

#### HIST 332 | ROLE-PLAYING THE RENAISSANCE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Oral communication competency, Historical Inquiry area

This course focuses on the Renaissance, a cultural movement that challenged and transformed traditional conceptions of art, politics, religion, and human nature. Students engage with classic texts including Niccolò Machiavelli's The Prince (c. 1513) and Thomas More's Utopia (1516) through interactive role-playing games, part of the award-winning Reacting to the Past curriculum. In "Machiavelli and the Florentine Republic, 1494-1512," students explore the political life of Florence, a fragile republic struggling to remain free from Medici control. In "Henry VIII and the Reformation Parliament," they experience a fundamental shift in the nature of government as a result of England's break with the Roman Catholic Church. This course draws students into history, promotes engagement with big ideas, and improves intellectual and academic skills.

#### HIST 333 | EUROPE 1600-1800

#### **Units: 3-4**

Focuses on the great age of statebuilding that followed the end of the Thirty Years' War (1618-48). Topics include the cultural ascendancy of Louis XIV's France, the commercial wars of the 17th and 18th centuries, the development of an ancient regime, and the forces contributing to the Age of Enlightenment.

#### HIST 335 | THE VICTORIANS IN LITERATURE & FILM

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course explores the history of Great Britain during the long reign of Queen Victoria (r. 1837-1901) as viewed through the lens of modern filmmakers. Subjects include industrialization and class conflicts; political contestations over citizenship, race, and belonging; changing gender roles and sexual mores; military and diplomatic conflicts; medical and scientific knowledge; and the flourishing of popular literature and culture. Readings and assignments will draw upon literature, images, films, and both scholarly and primary texts from and about the Victorian Era. Students examine the contested nature of British national identity through films and television series that use the past to speak to the present. They also learn how to analyze film as both a visual and narrative art form.

#### HIST 340 | WORLD WAR I

#### Units: 3

This course will examine the era of the Great War of 1900-1919. The origins of this global conflict included the decline of Pax Britannica in the 19th century, the rise of German nationalism, Balkan pan-slavism, and colonial rivalries. During this era, the old order dominated by European monarchies was swept aside by social revolutions, new ideologies, and a military conflict that cost 10 million lives. Modernism rose from the ashes of Victorian culture, and the new science transformed world thought.

#### HIST 341 | WORLD WAR II

#### Units: 3

This course examines the origins of World War II, the economic and political challenges to interwar societies, the rise of the dictators, the experience of war and occupation, the holocaust, and the military struggle that led to millions of deaths and gave birth to the United Nations. Special topics include the Experience of Collaboration and Resistance in Europe, Civilians during World War II, the role of various professions, youth, and women during World War II.

# HIST 342 | FROM SUBJECTS TO CITIZENS: NATION BUILDING IN FRANCE AND INDIA

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Oral communication competency, Historical Inquiry area

This course explores the birth of the modern nation state through the use of interactive role-playing games. Students "become" French revolutionaries inspired by Jean-Jacques Rousseau in "Rousseau, Burke, and Revolution in France, 1791." They adopt the roles of Hindus and Muslims seeking to wrest political control away from the British Empire in "India on the Eve of Independence, 1945." Students develop a deep understanding of nation building in France and India; they also explore how class conflict, religious divisions, and ethnic tensions contribute to the birth of nations.

#### HIST 343 | HISTORY OF GERMANY SINCE 1945 Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course on postwar German history examines the two Germanies, one communist, one capitalist through topics such as the different approaches to the legacy of National Socialism, challenges of reconstruction, and responses to Americanization and Sovietization in politics, art, and mass culture. A focus will be everyday life in East and West Germany. Further topics include opposition, from 1968 student movements to the terrorism of the 1970s and the peace movements of the 1980s, as well as the fall of the Berlin Wall and unification.

# HIST 346 | TOPICS IN MEDIEVAL AND EARLY MODERN EUROPE Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

This course may focus on medieval or early modern European history with an emphasis on power and politics, gender, art and architecture, and/or economic and social change. Special topics courses may offer the chance to study the Crusades, Queen Elizabeth I, or the French Revolution in considerable depth. The course may be repeated as topics vary.

#### HIST 347 | TOPICS IN MODERN EUROPE

#### Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

This course may focus on modern European history with an emphasis on power and politics, gender, art and architecture, and/or economic and social change. Special topics courses may offer the chance to study the rise of London, Paris, and Vienna; Women's Rights; or the Cold War in considerable depth. The course may be repeated as topics vary.

#### HIST 348 | FRANCE IN REVOLUTION AND WAR

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course is designed to explore the development of France from the Enlightenment to the present. Major themes in the lectures and readings include the political evolution of the country as France moved from an absolute monarchy to the current Fifth Republic, the lasting impact of revolution and war on French society, and the efforts of political, social, economic, and cultural change on individuals' everyday lives.

#### HIST 349 | THE VIETNAM WARS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area

This course examines the nature and consequences of the wars fought in and around Vietnam since the 1940s, with particular attention paid to the long period of direct American involvement (1964-1973). These events will be considered in relation to Vietnam's history, American politics and society, the nature of war itself, and the legacy of the war and its meaning in American and Vietnamese memory today. This course emphasizes the contrasting viewpoints on the Vietnam Wars — we will be exploring views from Northern and Southern Vietnamese, French and American soldiers, anti-war protestors, government officials, and ordinary citizens caught in the war. Students will discuss the various perspectives, forming their own conclusions about how and why the United States became involved in the war.

### HIST 350 | HISTORY OF THE BRITISH ISLES

#### Units: 3

This course surveys the development of the British Isles from the Middle Ages through the 17th century. It addresses the social and political structures of medieval England and shows how dynastic conflicts resulted in almost continuous internal warfare. It examines the growth of the English state under the Tudors and Stuarts. It also traces the rise of political parties, constitutional monarchy, and representative government.

### HIST 351 | MODERN BRITAIN

#### Units: 3

This course surveys the remarkable history of the British Isles from the end of the Napoleonic Wars to the present day. Topics include sex and society in Victorian Britain, empire and decolonization, the impact of two World Wars, Thatcherism, and the rise of New Labour.

#### HIST 352 | THE BRITISH IMPERIAL EXPERIENCE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

An analysis of themes and processes in the British imperial experience from the 18th century to the present. Emphasis upon colonial nationalism, indigenous resistance and collaboration, theories of colonial administration, economics and imperialism, and decolonization.

### HIST 354 | HISTORY OF SPAIN

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area

This course covers the history of Spain from the rise of the Bourbon monarchy to the present. It looks at the impact of the Napoleonic invasion and the rise of political strife in the 19th and early 20th centuries. It also examines the Second Republic, the trauma of the Spanish Civil War, the dictatorship of Franco, and the transition to democracy following the restoration of Juan Carlos. This course is offered at USD's Madrid Center.

#### HIST 355 | IMPERIAL RUSSIA

#### Units: 3

A study of the development of the Russian state from the rise of Kievan Russia to the Bolshevik Revolution. Special emphasis on the role of the Tsarist autocracy, the Orthodox Church, and pan-Slavism.

#### HIST 356 | SOVIET UNION AND AFTER

#### Units: 3

A detailed investigation and analysis of the revolutionary upheavals and tragedies shaping Russia and its adjacent neighbors, from the Bolshevik Revolution of 1917 to the collapse of Communism and the uncertain years of the 1990s.

#### HIST 357 | TOPICS IN RUSSIAN AND EAST EUROPEAN HISTORY Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

A critical analysis of themes and issues in the history of Russia and Eastern Europe. Topics may include Russia in Revolution, Russia since Peter the Great, and the Crisis in the Balkans. Students may repeat the course for credit when the topic changes.

#### HIST 358 | TOPICS IN MODERN WORLD HISTORY

#### Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

An in-depth investigation into a variety of recent historical events that have affected the United States in its world setting. Selected topics will be announced in each semester's class schedule. This course may be repeated for credit when the topic changes.

#### HIST 359 | MODERN MIDDLE EAST

#### Units: 3

An inquiry into the historic Middle East emphasizing the growth and decline of the Ottoman Empire, Arab and Jewish nationalism, and the paths to independence.

#### HIST 361 | MODERN LATIN AMERICA

#### Units:

Covers Latin America from the start of the independence movements in 1810 to the present. Includes discussion of independence and the struggle of new states to modernize; Church-state frictions; urbanization and the emergence of populist politics; industrialization; the Cuban Revolution and other revolutionary movements; military dictatorships; redemocratization in the 1980s and 1990s; and democratic consolidation and contemporary challenges in the 21st century.

### HIST 362 | TOPICS IN LATIN AMERICA HISTORY

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

### Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area

A study of specific topics and themes in the history of Latin America, such as the role of religion and the Catholic Church, 20th-century revolutions and social upheaval, Latin America through film, and the history of particular groups, including Amerindians, women, and rural and urban workers. Students may repeat the course for credit when the topic changes.

#### HIST 363 | HISTORY OF BRAZIL

### Units: 3

This course examines the diverse cultures, ethnicities, and historical developments of Latin America's largest nation, one of the world's top-ten economies. Topics include European colonization, slavery, economic cycles, independence, the drive to become an industrial power, the military regime of 1964-85, democratic consolidation, Brazil as a new economic giant, and gender and environmental issues.

### HIST 364 | TOPICS IN ASIAN HISTORY

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

#### Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area, Global Diversity level 1

An in-depth look at special themes and issues in the history of Asia, including such topics as Chinese History Through Film, Asian Women and Popular Culture, and a Study-Abroad course China: A History Journey. This course may be repeated for credit when topics change.

#### HIST 365 | CHINA: RISE TO GLOBAL POWER

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course covers Chinese history from the first Opium War (1839-42) to the present. It examines the indigenous factors of Chinese history and culture, the influence of the West, and the interaction between the two. Major sections of the course include reforms and uprisings during the last phase of the Qing dynasty, the Republican Revolution of 1911, the Nationalist Movement, Sino-Western relations during the Pacific War, the development of Chinese communism, the various political, social and economic campaigns during the Maoist era as well as the progress and problems in the period of modernization.

#### HIST 366 | JAPAN: SAMURAI TO SUBARU

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area

This course covers Japanese history from the Meiji Transformation in 1868 to the present. It analyzes the unique characteristics of the samurai culture, Japan's response to the West in the 19th century, and its transition into the modern era. It examines the rise of Japanese imperialism and militarism, Japanese-American relations before and after Pearl Harbor, the role of Japan's constitutional monarchy, its ieconomic miracleî during the post-World War II period, as well as its contemporary social and cultural developments.

### HIST 367 | WOMEN'S LIVES IN EAST ASIA

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area, Global Diversity level 1

This course examines the historical experiences of women in East Asian societies, with an emphasis on women in China and Japan. It discusses their traditional practices of foot-binding and samurai rituals within broader historical contexts, studies their involvements in wars and revolutions, and analyzes their role in shaping the contemporary culture as well as their dynamics and dilemmas in the process of economic modernization. The class also seeks to dissect the intricate connections between the various isms, such as Confucianism, nationalism, militarism, communism and commercialism, and women's lives in East Asia.

# HIST 368 | THE AFRICAN HISTORICAL EXPERIENCE Units: 3 Repeatability: No

An analysis of particular themes in the African historical experience from earliest times to independence from colonial rule. Special attention will be given to culture, society, and processes of change in the pre-colonial period and development and underdevelopment since the European intrusion.

#### HIST 369 | TOPICS IN AFRICAN HISTORY

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

A critical study of issues confronting Africa in the post-colonial era. Alternating courses may include The Rise and Fall of Apartheid, The Aftermath of Decolonization, and War, Genocide, and Transitional Justice. Students may repeat the course for credit when the topic changes.

# HIST 370 | AMERICAN ENVIRONMENTAL HISTORY Units: 3

This class will introduce students to the field of U.S. environmental history. On the one hand, we will examine how nature (soil, natural disasters, disease, water, climate, etc.) influenced the course of American history. On the other, we will address the ways Americans have used technology to transform the non-human world, the implications these transformations have had on power relations within American societies, and the cultural meanings that Americans have given to nature.

## HIST 372 | UNITED STATES-EAST ASIA RELATIONS

#### Units: 3

This course explores the development of relations between the United States and East Asian countries (primarily China, Japan and Korea) since the mid-19th century. It examines the economic, social, cultural, and political forces on both sides of the Pacific that have helped to shape the history of their mutual relations. Major topics include the U.S. participation in China's international treaty system in the 19th century, the American role in 'opening' Japan and efforts at establishing a new order in the Pacific, the triangular relations among the U.S., Japan, and China during World War II, American involvement in Korea and Vietnam, and contemporary U.S.-East Asian relations.

# HIST 373 | ARMED CONFLICT AND AMERICAN SOCIETY Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course explores armed conflict and its effects on U.S. society by examining the nature, course, and consequences of wars the United States has fought from the American Revolution to the present. Three themes are emphasized: the effects of war on the individual, the intended and unintended consequences of armed conflict both at home and abroad, and the changing nature of warfare, of the U.S. armed forces, and of the United States itself.

### HIST 374 | CIVIL WAR AND RECONSTRUCTION

#### Units: 3

History of the United States from 1846 to 1877 with special emphasis on the political, economic, social, and military aspects of conflict between the North and the South. Includes the causes of the war, military strategy, the aftermath, and its effects on the United States in later years.

#### HIST 375 | TOPICS IN U.S. HISTORY

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Topics may include any period in U.S. History, from Pre-Columbian Native America to the early twenty-first century, or any thematic topic in U.S. history. May be repeated for credit when the topic changes.

# HIST 376 | U.S. FOREIGN RELATIONS IN THE LONG 19TH CENTURY Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course – the first of a two-part, upper division sequence on the history of American foreign relations – covers the period from 1775 to 1914. Three issues, in particular, are emphasized: the problems of the young republic in conducting diplomacy; the ways in which America's vision of itself as "a city upon a hill" and its belief in Manifest Destiny led to 19th-century U.S. expansionism; and the emergence of the United States as a world power.

# HIST 377 | TWENTIETH CENTURY U.S. FOREIGN RELATIONS Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area

This course – the second of a two-part, upper division sequence on the history of American foreign relations – covers the period from 1914 to the present. Three issues, in particular, are emphasized: the tension between isolationism and interventionism from World War I through World War II, culminating in the emergence of the United States as a superpower; the Soviet-American confrontation following World War II and the globalization of this confrontation during the 1950s and 1960s; and finally, the evolution of U.S. Foreign Relations through the 1970s and 1980s, the end of the Cold War, and 9/11 to today, when, for now, the United States remains the undisputed leader in world affairs. In particular, we will focus on the increasingly important role of world public opinion in the late 20th and early 21st century.

#### HIST 380 | HISTORY OF THE AMERICAN WEST

#### Units: 3

This class surveys the history of the American West. Topics include: pre-Columbian Indians, the competition between European empires over the American West; American expansion and conquest; the fur, mining, ranching, and farming "frontiers;" the railroad and populism; World War II and the growth of the urban west; the historical experience of workers, women, and Mexican-, Asian-, Native-, and African-Americans; environmental issues such as conservation, preservation, the dust bowl, and water politics; and representations of the West in popular culture.

#### HIST 381 | AMERICAN INDIAN HISTORY

#### Units: 3

This course surveys American Indian history from Pre-Columbian times to the present. Topics include: Pre-Columbian Native America; Spanish, English, and French invasions; Indians and the colonial period; Indian Removal; Indians and American expansion in the Far West; the reservation system, allotment, and federal Indian education; the Indian New Deal; termination, relocation, and the growth of urban Native America; and Indian militancy, cultural accommodation and revitalization, and the ongoing struggle for sovereignty.

#### HIST 382 | THE SPANISH SOUTHWEST

#### Units: 3

Discovery, exploration, and settlement by Spain of the North American region with particular emphasis on the regions settled by Spain. Includes the history of the native Indian inhabitants and the role of Mexico after 1821. Generally covers the period from 1500 to 1848.

#### HIST 383 | CHICANO/A/X HISTORY

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area, Domestic Diversity level 2

This class will examine the history of the Mexican and Mexican-origin people who inhabit what is now the American Southwest and northern Mexico. The class will begin by discussing the Mesoamerican civilizations of central Mexico, and move on to examine the Spanish conquest, the fight for Mexican independence, and the U.S.-Mexican War. At that point, the class will shift its focus to the United States and discuss westward expansion, Anglo-Mexican conflict in states such as Texas, New Mexico, and California, and the formation of Mexican-American culture. The class will conclude by examining the origins of Chicano nationalism, the rise of the farm workers' movement, and the cultural and economic impact of Mexican immigration. At appropriate points throughout the semester, the class will discuss gender relations, the role of religion, and the formation of popular culture to understand how Mexican culture developed in various parts of the United States.

### HIST 384 | HISTORY OF MEXICO

#### Units: 3

A history of Mexico from earliest times to the modern era. Includes a survey of indigenous civilizations; Spanish conquest and influences; the U.S.-Mexican War; the dictatorship of Porfirio Diaz; the Mexican Revolution; political development since the 1920s; the Tlatelolco Massacre of 1968; the rise of the Institutional Revolutionary Party; democratization starting in 1988; and U.S.-Mexican relations.

#### HIST 385 | AFRICAN AMERICAN WOMEN

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area, Domestic Diversity level 2

This course examines the economic, cultural, social, and political history of African American women from 1865 to the present. Through a combination of books, primary sources, and media the course traces how gender, race, sexuality, and class interact and intersect to contour black women's realities in the United States. We will concern ourselves with the mechanisms that suppress African American women's lives and bodies, as well as illuminate their modes of resistance. Throughout the class we will listen to black women, who from their unique positioning in the margins, have made visible the makings of injustice and have long worked on imagining and procuring an equitable society. By moving black women from their historically marginal position in curriculum to the center of our attention, we will begin to explore ways of transforming knowledge about the nation's past and present, as well as its application. Centrally, we will assess how the stories and narrations of historians – as well as other scholars, writers, film makers and others have functioned to either preserve or contest the margins that contain black women's voices. Our readings, discussion, and writing will explore topics such as black feminism and intersectionality, labor activism, family and community, the Civil Rights Movement, Black Power, and contemporary cultural politics.

#### HIST 389 | HISTORY OF CALIFORNIA

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Historical Inquiry area, Domestic Diversity level 2

Covers California's past from its earliest settlements to modern times. The course begins with California's geographical setting, indigenous culture, and contact with the European world. A survey of Spanish backgrounds includes missions and missionaries, ranchos, pueblos, and foreign visitors. Changes under the government of Mexico led to California's conquest by the United States. During the second half, lectures cover generally the effects of the Gold Rush; problems of statehood; constitutional developments; land, labor, and Indian policies; transportation and immigration; agriculture and industry; California during wartime; water projects; political issues; cultural accomplishments; racial diversity; and recent trends. Meets the requirements of California history standards for various teaching credentials.

# HIST 390 | ART AND ARCHITECTURE IN CALIFORNIA Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course looks at the way in which Californians adopted and transformed European architectural and artistic forms to create what boosters described as "a new Eden." It discusses the rise and fall of the Victorian, the re-invention of "Spanish" style with Mission Revival architecture, the origin of the craftsman bungalow, and the rise of modernism in California and the West. Emphasis throughout will be on the personalities, political events, and social forces that shaped the development of art and architecture from 1800 to the present.

#### HIST 392 | HISTORY IN THE COMMUNITY

### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Public history has two primary meanings. First, pubic history refers to the history work that goes on outside the academy. Public historians typically work in museums, libraries, national and state parks, and tourist sites. Second, public history refers to the ways in which the public (a nation, a minority group, a neighborhood) makes meaning by creating and maintaining a sense of the past. Through fieldtrips, projects, discussion, readings, and a community service project/internship, we will explore larger theoretical issues as well as the practical work of public historians. History majors should first take HIST 200, but this class is open to all students who have fulfilled their lower-division history core requirement.

# HIST 393 | MUSEUM STUDIES AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course provides an introduction to current ideas about the relationship between historians, communities, and cultural memory. Students will evaluate museums and virtual exhibits and consider debates about the politics of memory and visual display. They will also explore ethical and professional issues faced by curators and historians working in museums, preservation offices, archives, and state historic parks. Finally, they will develop a research paper based on their observation and experience of a museum or historic site.

#### HIST 394 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN HISTORY

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Special Topics in History. Students may repeat the course for credit when the topic changes.

#### HIST 490 | INTRODUCTION TO SENIOR SEMINAR

Units: 1

Prerequisites: HIST 200

Offered each fall semester, this one-unit course prepares students for History 495W, Senior Seminar. Students will learn skills (such as essential research methods; rules of proper citation; and the ability to navigate through library holdings, appropriate databases, and archives) essential for the successful completion of a senior thesis. Working closely with their instructor and their advisor, students will also identify a research question that will serve as the basis of their senior thesis, generate an extensive bibliography of primary and secondary sources, and write a research proposal.

#### HIST 495 | SENIOR RESEARCH SEMINAR

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency

Prerequisites: HIST 490

This course, offered each spring semester, is the capstone for the history major and will satisfy the Advanced Writing requirement in the core curriculum.

### HIST 495W | SENIOR RESEARCH SEMINAR

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: HIST 490 (Can be taken Concurrently)

This course, offered each spring semester, is the capstone for the history major. Students will research and write a significant, focused, original, thesis-driven research paper. In addition, students will give a public presentation of their research and compile a portfolio of their work in the history major. In this class, students are expected to master all skills-based learning outcomes introduced and practiced in the history major.

### HIST 498 | INTERNSHIP

### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Practical experience in a field setting under professional supervision. Interns may be assigned to the City or County of San Diego, San Diego Historical Society, San Diego Hall of Champions, or a similar institution. See department chair for assignment.

#### HIST 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Directed readings, a special project, or a research paper for History majors of high scholastic standing. Consent of the department chair must be obtained. The maximum of three units will be allowed only under special circumstances.

# **Interdisciplinary Humanities**

# **Program Director**

Atreyee Phukan, PhD, English

# Affiliated Faculty

Thomas Barton, PhD, History

Brian Clack, PhD, Philosophy

Bahar Davary, PhD, Theology and Religious Studies

Kimberly Eherenman, PhD, Languages, Cultures and Literatures

Florence M. Gillman, PhD, Theology and Religious Studies

Juliana Maxim, PhD, Art History

Molly McClain, PhD, History

Marianne R. Pfau, PhD, Music

Monica Stufft, PhD, Theatre Arts

Michael F. Wagner, PhD, Philosophy

Allison Wiese, MFA, Visual Arts

Irene Williams, PhD, English

"Want Innovative Thinking? Hire from the Humanities." This was the headline in the Harvard Business Review (March 31, 2011). Author Tony Golsby-Smith, argued that people trained in the humanities "have learned to play with big concepts, and to apply new ways of thinking to difficult problems that can't be analyzed in conventional ways."

The Interdisciplinary Humanities major encourages creativity, innovative thinking, and the ability to connect complex ideas. Students gain skills (writing, critical thinking, speaking) and a voice in the larger conversation that culture provides. In every workplace, from engineering to television programming, employees find common ground in culture. They talk about books, films, art, and music. The study of the humanities, in all its variety and complexity, offers students the opportunity to explore their curiosity about the world; human nature; artistic innovation; and great ideas, past and present.

Students take the lead in designing their own major, drawing from classes in the following disciplines: Art, English, History, Languages and Literatures, Music, Philosophy, Theatre Arts, and Theology & Religious Studies. Students can also opt for one of the two other tracks in the major, European Studies or Asian Studies, which include options from Political Science and/or Sociology.

# The Interdisciplinary Humanities Major Preparation for Major

Code	Title	Units
Select six units of le	ower-division history courses from the following:	6
HIST 102	The Ancient World	
HIST 103	The Medieval World	
HIST 108	The Atlantic World 1500-1800	
HIST 109	The Pacific World, 1500-1800	
HIST 110	World History Topics	
HIST 115	Topics in War and Peace in Historical Perspective	
HIST 116	War and Peace in the Modern World	
HIST 117	U.S. History to 1870	
HIST 118	U.S. History, 1877 to the Present	
HIST 120	U.S. History Topics	
HIST 125D	Race and Ethnicity in the American Experience	
HIST 126D	American Women in History	
HIST 130	East Asia in Transformation	
HIST 135	Topics in the History of Culture and Identity	

HIST 140	Modern Europe
HIST 145	Topics in Urban History
HIST 150	Topics in Comparative History
HIST 155	Topics in History, Literature, and Film
HIST 160	Topics in History of Science and Technology
HIST 170	Big History: From Cosmos to Cannibals
HIST 171	Modern World History
HIST 180	Great Moments in Time

**Total Units** 

#### **Major Requirements**

40 upper-division units in the humanities, as follows:

Choose an emphasis from among the following Humanities departments. You must take at least 12 units but no more than 18 units in this department:

Art, Architecture + Art History

English

History

Languages, Cultures and Literatures

Music

Philosophy

Theatre Arts

Theology and Religious Studies

You must take 18-24 units in the Humanities departments listed above. No more than 9 units may be taken in any one department outside your emphasis. Coursework must be selected in consultation with the program director and include a

1. Classical studies course from the following list:

HIST 102, ANTH 390, ANTH 391, ENGL 494, GREK 499, HIST 311, HIST 312, HIST 321, LATN 499, PHIL 470, POLS 301, THRS 353, THRS 385, THRS 388

2. Medieval and/or Renaissance studies course from the following list:

HIST 103, HIST 108, HIST 109, ANTH 339, ANTH 362, ENGL 300, ENGL 312, ENGL 330, ENGL 335, ENGL 337, ENGL 338, ENGL 340, ENGL 341, ENGL 420, FREN 320, HIST 321, HIST 322, HIST 323, HIST 324, HIST 331, HIST 346, HIST 357, HIST 382, MUSC 330, MUSC 331, PHIL 467, PHIL 471, SPAN 422, SPAN 423, SPAN 424

Coursework must include a two-semester, upper-division senior seminar HUMN 490 and HUMN 495W.

## HUMN 490 | THESIS PREPARATION SEMINAR Units: 1

This course precedes the 3-unit HUMN 495W course. In this course, each student will identify a research topic that would integrate and apply his/her interdisciplinary experience in the Humanities major. This topic will lead, in HUMN 495W, to producing a senior thesis (a substantial research paper or a well-researched creative project). Each student will consult with the instructor in identifying and developing a topic; produce a prospectus and a bibliography for the topic; and, as possible, begin collecting and outlining research material from the bibliography. A class presentation is typically required as well.

#### HUMN 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN THE HUMANITIES Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Exploration and analysis of selected topics with a specific theme in the Interdisciplinary Humanities.

#### **HUMN 495W | SENIOR RESEARCH SEMINAR**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency

Prerequisites: HUMN 490

In this continuation course to HUMN 490, each student will complete the research phase of his/her thesis project; produce a working outline and at least one substantial draft of the senior thesis or creative project; and revise and finalize the thesis by the end of the semester. A formal presentation of results and highlights from the completed research and initial thesis draft is typically required as well. Spring semester.

HUMN 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

**Units: 1-3** 

### **Interdisciplinary Minors**

Interdisciplinary minors combine coursework from multiple academic disciplines. Some of these programs are housed outside of individual departments and include courses taught by faculty from multiple disciplines. Interdisciplinary minors span the intersections between areas of study and integrate knowledge across traditional disciplinary boundaries. Each interdisciplinary minor has a program director who advises students and coordinates curriculum offerings.

### **Asian Studies**

See Asian Studies (p. 79).

### **Biomedical Ethics**

See Biomedical Ethics (p. 89).

### **Changemaking**

See Changemaking (p. 89).

### **Classical Studies**

See Classical Studies (p. 102).

### **Film Studies**

See Film Studies (p. 132).

### **Latin American Studies**

See Latin American Studies (p. 164).

### **Medieval and Renaissance Studies**

See Medieval and Renaissance Studies (p. 178).

### Performing Arts Entrepreneurship

See Performing Arts Entrepreneurship (p. 192).

# Philosophy, Politics and Economics

See Philosophy, Politics and Economics (p. 199)

### **Women's and Gender Studies**

See Women's and Gender Studies (p. 249).

### **International Relations**

See Political Science and International Relations (p. 213).

# Languages, Cultures and Literatures

**CHAIR** 

Rebecca Ingram, PhD

### **DIRECTOR OF PLACEMENT**

Santiago Rubio-Fernaz, PhD

#### LANGUAGE COORDINATOR

Íñigo Yanguas, PhD

### **Faculty**

Clara Azevedo, MA

Kimberly A. Eherenman, PhD

Kevin Guerrieri, PhD

Rebecca Ingram, PhD

Michèle Magnin, PhD

Loredana Di Martino, PhD

Julia Medina, PhD

Alejandro Meter, PhD

Sylvie Ngilla McGraw, PhD

Amanda Petersen, PhD

Martin Repinecz, PhD

María Cecilia Ruiz, PhD

Leonora Simonovis-Brown, PhD

Richard Stroik, PhD

Mei Yang, PhD

The mission of the Department of Languages, Cultures and Literatures is the development of students' communicative and linguistic proficiency, intercultural competence and skills in critical thinking through the study of languages, literatures and other forms of cultural production. We are dedicated to excellence in teaching in these areas and producing original scholarly and creative contributions to our disciplines. Our mission speaks directly to the university's

commitment to academic excellence, providing students with an enriching liberal arts education and preparing them to engage responsibly in diverse local, national and international realities.

The department offers undergraduate studies in nine different languages with majors in French, Italian Studies and Spanish with minors in Chinese, French, German, Italian and Spanish. Courses in Arabic, Classical Greek, Japanese and Latin may be taken through the fourth semester and beyond. In addition, the department's courses form a part of a number of interdisciplinary programs including Asian Studies, Classical Studies, Interdisciplinary Humanities, Latin American Studies, Medieval and Renaissance Studies, Liberal Studies and Women's and Gender Studies. By its very nature, the department contributes significantly to the internationalization of the curriculum and cultural diversity at USD.

Language study is a vital part of a liberal arts education and can be highly beneficial to those pursuing studies and careers in many different fields. At the lower-division level, the language programs are designed to enable students to acquire the basic structures and vocabulary necessary to communicate effectively in the target language in a variety of settings. Likewise students develop a greater awareness of other cultures, develop skills in intercultural communication and gain direct access to additional bodies of knowledge. Ultimately, through their language studies, students will be better prepared to participate more fully and actively in the global community.

Upper-division courses provide students with a foundation in the cultural history of the languages, peoples and regions studied within their socio-political and economic contexts. These courses help students to develop skills in critical thinking, literary and cultural analysis, and clear and effective self-expression in both speaking and writing in the target languages. Students enhance their appreciation for and contribution to the level of inclusion and diversity in U.S. and international communities through cultural understanding and linguistic proficiency. Upon completion of the department's majors, students are well prepared to initiate graduate studies in language, literature, or other disciplines, or to become successful professionals in a number of different areas including international relations, law, health, business and education, among many others.

The basic language sequence (101-102-201) with the LANG subject code is used to indicate courses in languages not offered by the department. LANG 201 fulfills the Core Curriculum language requirement.

#### LANG 101 | 1ST SEMESTER LANGUAGE

**Units: 1-5** 

 ${\bf LANG~102~|~SECOND~SEMESTER~LANGUAGE}$ 

Units: 3-5

#### LANG 140 | TOPICS IN LANGUAGE, LITERATURE AND CULTURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Core Attributes: First year Integration, Literary Inquiry area

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in language, literature and culture. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

## LANG 141 | TOPICS IN LITERATURE AND CULTURAL DIVERSITY-DOMESTIC FOCUS

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

Core Attributes: First year Integration, Literary Inquiry area, Domestic Diversity level 1

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in literature, cultural diversity and inclusion with a domestic focus. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

## LANG 142 | TOPICS IN LITERATURE AND CULTURAL DIVERSITY–GLOBAL FOCUS

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Core Attributes: First year Integration, Literary Inquiry area, Global Diversity level 1

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in literature, cultural diversity and inclusion, with a global focus. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

### LANG 194 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN LANGUAGE, LITERATURE AND CULTURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE, Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in language, literature and culture. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

## LANG 201 | THIRD SEMESTER LANGUAGE Units: 3

## LANG 294 | TOPICS IN LANGUAGE, LITERATURE OR CULTURE Units: 2-3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Study at the lower division level of a special topic in language, literature, or culture

## LANG 315 | L2 TEACHING METHODS AND APPLIED LINGUISTICS Units: 3

An introduction to the history of second language teaching methods, applied linguistics, and the fundamentals of second language teaching. Initial training in the skills needed to be a second language teacher. This course is cross-listed with 315 in the majors and minors in the department (FREN, GERM, ITAL, and SPAN). Students whose language of study is not one of those four may take the course as LANG.

Remaining courses are listed under each individual language.

### **Arabic**

### **Program Director**

Rebecca Ingram, PhD

Modern Standard Arabic introduces students to the form of the language that is understood throughout the Arab world. It promotes a level of literacy that gives students access to the vast heritage of ancient and modern literature, scholarly work and the media. It is a foundation that will enable advanced students to learn one or more of the dialects that comprise colloquial Arabic (Levantine, Iraqi, Arabian, Egyptian and North African).

The curriculum acquaints students with the geography, political systems, cultures and religious heterogeneity (Muslim, Christian, Jewish, etc.) of the Arab world. Special attention will be given to the 21 Arab countries that are members of the Arab League of Nations.

#### ARAB 101 | FIRST SEMESTER ARABIC

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

An introduction to the four basic language skills: listening, speaking, reading, and writing of Modern Standard Arabic as well as the cultures of Arabic-speaking peoples. At the end of the semester students will have sufficient comprehension to understand utterances about basic survival needs and minimum courtesy and travel requirements in areas of immediate need or on very familiar topics. Students will be able to speak, read, and write using memorized material and set expressions.

#### ARAB 102 | SECOND SEMESTER ARABIC

Units: 3

Prerequisites: ARAB 101 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Continuation of the skills developed in Arabic 101. Increased practice in reading and writing. Acquisition of new vocabulary consolidated through conversation stressing the relationship between language and culture. Students can typically satisfy with ease predictable, simple, personal, and accommodation needs and meet courtesy, introduction, and identification requirements; exchange greetings; elicit and provide predictable and skeletal biographical information.

#### ARAB 140 | TOPICS IN ARABIC LITERATURE AND CULTURE

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

**Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE** 

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in Arabic literature and culture. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

## ARAB 141 | TOPICS IN ARAB-AMERICAN LITERATURE, FILM OR CULTURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area, Domestic Diversity level 1

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in Arab-American literature and culture with a focus on domestic diversity. This course is taught in English and satisfies the core requirements for Literary Inquiry and DISJ-Domestic, level 1, but does not satisfy the core Second Language requirement.

## ARAB 142 | TOPICS IN ARABIC LITERATURE IN TRANSLATION, FILM-GLOBAL

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area, Global Diversity level 1

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in Arabic literature, film and/or culture with a Global Focus. This course is taught in English and satisfies the core requirements for Literary Inquiry and DISJ-Global, level 1, but does not satisfy the core Second Language requirement.

## ARAB 194 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN ARABIC LITERATURE AND CULTURE

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

**Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE** 

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in Arabic literature and culture. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

#### ARAB 201 | THIRD SEMESTER ARABIC

Units: 3

Core Attributes: Second language competency

Prerequisites: ARAB 102 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Further development of language competence to the intermediate level. Introduction of easier literary and cultural readings that will solidify reading skills and provide deeper understanding of Arabic cultures. By the end of the course, students should be able to identify family members, relatives and social relations; describe professions and college study subjects and specializations; describe concrete places and situations; understand, express, and respond to abstract and information questions; read dialogues and paragraphs; write more articulate sentences and paragraphs. Prerequisite: ARAB 102 or equivalent or Placement Exam. Every Fall.

#### ARAB 202 | FOURTH SEMESTER ARABIC

Units: 3

Prerequisites: ARAB 201 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Continued development of reading, writing, listening, and speaking skills. Student will be able to satisfy routine social demands and limited work requirements and routine work-related interactions that are limited in scope. Student will be able to handle most normal, high-frequency social conversational situations including extensive, but casual conversations about current events, as well as work, family, and autobiographical information.

#### **ARAB 292 | TUTORING**

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

**Core Attributes: Law - Experiential** Prerequisites: ARAB 201 or ARAB 202

Supervised participation as a tutor of students enrolled in our Arabic classes. The course entails tutoring one hour per week, completion of homework (readings and responses, maintaining a journal, etc.) as well as mandatory attendance at two group meetings per semester. Course does not satisfy the second language requirement. It counts as elective credit.

## ARAB 293 | LANGUAGE TUTORING OR FIELD EXPERIENCE IN ARABIC

**Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

**Core Attributes: Law - Experiential** 

Supervised participation in the department's Tutoring Program or placement in a community organization in which the student's skills in Arabic are developed. Prequisites: None. May be taken for credit each time topic changes.

### ARAB 294 | TOPICS IN LANGUAGE, LITERATURE, OR CULTURE

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: ARAB 202

Study at the lower-division level of a special topic in language, literature, or culture. This course may be repeated for credit when the topic changes. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal. If taught in English, this course will not fulfill the Core Curriculum language requirement. Consult with instructor or the department chair.

## ARAB 394 | TOPICS IN LANGUAGE, LITERATURE, OR CULTURE Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: ARAB 202

Study at the third-year level of a special topic in language, literature, or culture. This course may be repeated for credit when the topic changes. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal. If taught in English, this course will not fulfill the Core Curriculum language requirement. Consult with instructor or the department chair.

#### ARAB 493 | FIELD EXPERIENCE

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

**Core Attributes: Law - Experiential** 

Placement in a community agency where advanced Arabic language skills will be utilized.

#### ARAB 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

A program arranged between the advanced student and the instructor to provide intensive study in a particular area of interest. Extensive reading and consultation are required, as well as preparation of reports to be assigned by the instructor.

### **Chinese**

### **Program Director**

Mei Yang, PhD

The Chinese language program introduces students to Mandarin Chinese, which is the most commonly spoken language in the world and an official language of China, Taiwan and Singapore. The curriculum promotes language learning in a rich cross-cultural context that involves exploring the values, attitudes, and beliefs of contemporary Chinese society as well as aspects of the region's literature, arts, politics and history. Students develop communicative proficiency in all basic skills, and collaborative classroom activities assist with the acquisition of the Chinese writing system and verbal and non-verbal communication.

The minor in Chinese provides students an opportunity to study Chinese language, culture, and society beyond the basic and intermediate levels. Students who minor in Chinese are prepared for achieving working Chinese language proficiency in areas such as business administration, international relations, engineering and environmental science. A minor in Chinese will equip students with linguistic and cultural skills for graduate studies and careers in government, education, banking, localization, business management, legal service and many other professions. Alternatively, students who wish to learn more about Asia, beyond the scope of China, may elect to minor in Asian Studies (http://www.sandiego.edu/cas/asianstudies), an interdisciplinary program in the College of Arts and Sciences.

### The Chinese Minor

### Option 1:

Code	Title	Units
CHIN 201	Third Semester Chinese	3
CHIN 202	Fourth Semester Chinese	3
CHIN 102	Second Semester Chinese	3
or CHIN 294	Topics in Language, Literature, or Culture	
Nine units taught in	Chinese from:	9
CHIN 301	Conversation and Composition	
CHIN 302	Contemporary China: Culture, Politics and Society	
CHIN 303	Media Chinese: Internet, Television and Film	
CHIN 394	Special Topics in Language, Literature, or Culture	
CHIN 494	Topics: Chinese Language III	
Total Units		18

#### Option 2:

Code	Title	Units
Fourth semester c	competency in Chinese (CHIN 202 or equivalent)	
12 units of course	es taught in Chinese from:	12
CHIN 301	Conversation and Composition	
CHIN 302	Contemporary China: Culture, Politics and Society	
CHIN 303	Media Chinese: Internet, Television and Film	
CHIN 394	Special Topics in Language, Literature, or Culture	
CHIN 494	Topics: Chinese Language III	
CHIN 499	Independent Study	
Total Units		12

Students are highly encouraged to study abroad in a Chinese institution. A minimum of 6 upper-division units must be taken on the USD campus. In addition, it is recommended that students take at least one China-related course taught in English.

#### CHIN 101 | FIRST SEMESTER CHINESE

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

An introduction to the four basic language skills: listening, speaking, reading, and writing, with an emphasis on oral skills.

#### CHIN 102 | SECOND SEMESTER CHINESE

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: CHIN 101 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Continuation of the skills developed in CHIN 101. Increased practice in reading and writing. Acquisition of new vocabulary consolidated through conversation stressing the relationship between language and culture.

#### CHIN 140 | TOPICS IN CHINESE LITERATURE AND CULTURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

#### Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in Chinese literature and culture. This course is taught in English and This course is taught in English and satisfies the core requirement for Literary Inquiry but does not satisfy the core Second Language requirement.

## CHIN 141 | TOPICS IN CHINESE LITERATURE, FILM OR CULTURE-DOMESTIC FOCUS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in Chinese literature, film and/or culture with a Domestic Focus. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

## CHIN 142 | TOPICS IN CHINESE LITERATURE, FILM OR CULTURE-GLOBAL FOCUS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in Chinese literature, film and/or culture with a Global Focus. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

## CHIN 194 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN CHINESE LITERATURE AND CULTURE

#### **Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)**

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in Chinese literature and culture. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

#### CHIN 201 | THIRD SEMESTER CHINESE

#### Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Second language competency**

Prerequisites: CHIN 102 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Further development of language competence. Practice in oral and written Chinese at the intermediate level, with an emphasis on reading and basic composition. Continued acquisition of new vocabulary consolidated through conversation stressing the relationship between language and culture.

#### CHIN 202 | FOURTH SEMESTER CHINESE

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: CHIN 201 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year  $\,$ 

Further development of language competence. Practice in oral and written Chinese at the intermediate level, with an emphasis on reading and basic composition. Continued acquisition of new vocabulary consolidated through conversation stressing the relationship between language and culture.

#### **CHIN 292 | TUTORING**

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

**Core Attributes: Law - Experiential** 

Prerequisites: CHIN 201 or CHIN 202

Supervised participation as a tutor of students enrolled in our Chinese courses. The course entails tutoring one hour per week, completion of homework (readings and responses, maintaining a journal, etc.) as well as mandatory attendance at two group meetings per semester. Course does not satisfy the second language requirement. It counts as elective credit, not toward the minor.

## CHIN 293 | LANGUAGE TUTORING OR FIELD EXPERIENCE IN CHINESE

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Supervised participation in the department's Tutoring Program or placement in a community organization in which the student's skills in Chinese are developed.

#### CHIN 294 | TOPICS IN LANGUAGE, LITERATURE, OR CULTURE

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: CHIN 202

Study at the lower-division level of a special topic in language, literature, or culture. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal. If taught in English, this course will not fulfill the Core Curriculum language requirement. Consult with instructor or the department chair.

#### CHIN 299 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

Units: 3

#### CHIN 301 | CONVERSATION AND COMPOSITION

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year or CHIN 202

This course strengthens students' language foundation in all aspects of modern standard Chinese, including speaking, listening, reading, and writing. The course is project based and students will apply what they learned from the teaching materials, including vocabulary, grammar, and cultural knowledge, to different verbal or written assignments that lead to the completion of group projects. Authentic materials will be introduced during the course as auxiliary materials to help students analyze issues.

### CHIN 302 | CONTEMPORARY CHINA: CULTURE, POLITICS AND SOCIETY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### **Core Attributes: Oral communication competency**

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year or CHIN 202

This course introduces students to multiple aspects of Chinese culture and society that are considered timely and will have a lasting social impact. Students will gain intermediate to advanced listening, speaking, reading and writing skills in standard Chinese.

## CHIN 303 | MEDIA CHINESE: INTERNET, TELEVISION AND FILM Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: CHIN 301

This course uses popular TV series and canonical Chinese films as background to discuss contemporary social issues. Students will discuss topics such as China's real estate market, economy and investment, Internet and technology, modernization and urban migration, consumer culture, and young people's perspectives on love and gender. This class will also teach up-to-date vocabulary and idioms created by netizens that have gained national popularity.

#### CHIN 347 | CHINESE CINEMA:POSTSOCIALISM AND MODERNITY

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

This course helps students attain a sophisticated understanding of China's modern history through the study of cinema as critical texts that respond creatively, aesthetically, and constructively to issues such as nationalism, transnationalism, representation, realism, self-identity (gender, class, region, etc.) and history. Films analyzed in this course articulate the political and social transformations in the pan-China region over the past decades that are direct result of the impact of globalization and a century-long aspiration for modernity.

## CHIN 394 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN LANGUAGE, LITERATURE, OR CULTURE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

#### Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year or CHIN 202

Study at the third-year level of a special topic in language, literature, or culture. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal. If taught in English, this course will not fulfill the Core Curriculum language requirement. Consult with instructor or the department chair.

#### **CHIN 493 | FIELD EXPERIENCE**

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### **Core Attributes: Law - Experiential**

Placement in a community agency where advanced French language skills will be utilized. Elective credit only (does not count toward the minor).

#### CHIN 494 | TOPICS: CHINESE LANGUAGE III

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Study of special topics in Chinese literature, language, or culture. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal.

#### **CHIN 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY**

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

A program arranged between the advanced student and the instructor to provide intensive study in a particular area of interest. Extensive reading and consultation are required, as well as preparation of reports to be assigned by the instructor. This course may be repeated for credit when the topic changes.

### **Classical Greek**

### **Program Director**

Santiago Rubio-Fernaz, PhD

The study of Classical Greek allows students to become familiar with one of the oldest written traditions in the world. The cultural productions of Greece in antiquity are worthy of study both in their own right and for their continuing, vital relevance to the world we live in today. Students acquire an appreciation for key aspects of the cultural legacy of one of the civilizations that has most shaped the modern world, and they simultaneously enrich their knowledge of English vocabulary and grammar.

Students may elect to major in Interdisciplinary Humanities with a concentration in Classical Studies in either the Humanities or European Studies tracks. Upperdivision courses relating to Greek culture will be completed in disciplines such as history, philosophy, political science, and theology and religious studies. These courses are conducted in English. With the prior permission of the director, GREK 294, GREK 394, and GREK 499 may be counted toward the requirements. The Classical Studies minor (Option 1) requires GREK 101-201 and makes GREK 202 one of the choices from a list of lower-division courses. With the prior permission of the Director of Classical Studies, GREK 294, GREK 394, and GREK 499 may be counted toward the requirements.

#### GREK 101 | FIRST SEMESTER GREEK

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Introduction to Classical (Attic) Greek. The fundamentals of morphology, syntax, and vocabulary, with emphasis on the use of the language as it appears in the literature of fifth century Athens and the Bible. Study of English vocabulary derived from Greek.

#### **GREK 102 | SECOND SEMESTER GREEK**

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year GREK 101 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

A continuation of GREK 101. Further study of morphology and syntax of Classical (Attic) Greek. Easier readings excerpted from the writings of Aesop and Apollodorus, as well as extended passages from the New Testament.

#### GREK 140 | TOPICS IN GREEK LITERATURE AND CULTURE

#### **Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)**

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in Greek literature and culture. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

## GREK 194 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN CLASSICAL GREEK LITERATURE AND CULTURE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in Classical Greek literature and culture. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

#### GREK 201 | THIRD SEMESTER GREEK

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Second language competency

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year or GREK 102

Review and further study of grammar and vocabulary of Classical (Attic) Greek. Readings taken from the writings of Xenophon, Herodotus, and the Bible. Introduction to the epic poetry of Homer.

#### GREK 202 | FOURTH SEMESTER GREEK

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: GREK 201 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Introduction to Classical Greek literature and composition. This course introduces the student to a variety of classical, biblical, and early Christian authors through graded readings. In addition, students will learn to write simple Greek prose to strengthen their skill in mastering the complicated inflections and syntax of language

#### **GREK 292 | TUTORING**

#### Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### **Core Attributes: Law - Experiential**

Prerequisites: GREK 201 or GREK 202

Supervised participation as a tutor of students enrolled in our Greek classes. The course entails tutoring one hour per week, completion of homework (readings and responses, maintaining a journal, etc.) as well as mandatory attendance at two group meetings per semester. Course does not satisfy the second language requirement. It counts as elective credit.

## GREK 293 | LANGUAGE TUTORING OR FIELD EXPERIENCE IN GREEK

#### **Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)**

#### **Core Attributes: Law - Experiential**

Supervised participation in the department's Tutoring Program or placement in a community organization in which the student's skills in Classical Greek language are developed.

## GREK 294 | TOPICS IN LANGUAGE, LITERATURE, OR CULTURE Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Prerequisites: GREK 202

Study at the lower-division level of a special topic in language, literature, or culture. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal. Consult with instructor or the department chair.

## GREK 394 | TOPICS IN LANGUAGE, LITERATURE, OR CULTURE Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Prerequisites: GREK 202

Study at the third-year level of a special topic in language, literature, or culture. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal. Consult with instructor or the department chair.

#### **GREK 493 | FIELD EXPERIENCE**

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Placement in a community agency where advanced Greek language skills will be utilized.

#### **GREK 494 | TOPICS**

Units: 3

Prerequisites: GREK 202

#### **GREK 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY**

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

A program arranged between the advanced student and the instructor to provide intensive study in a particular area of interest. Extensive reading and consultation are required, as well as preparation of reports to be assigned by the instructor.

### **French**

### PROGRAM DIRECTOR

Michèle Magnin, PhD

### **Faculty**

Sylvie Ngilla McGraw, PhD

Richard Stroik, PhD

The French language is the vehicle for a rich culture and civilization. It is a humanistic, lively, modern language encountered not only in gastronomy, fashion and travel, but also in industry (from aerospace to biotechnology to electronics), the sciences (from medicine and ecology to micro-biology), business, etc. As one of the official languages of both the United Nations and the European Union, it is a very useful tool in diplomacy and the political arena. French thinkers have traditionally been in the avant-garde of intellectual life, which makes a working knowledge of this language invaluable to scholars in all fields, just as it is indispensable for teachers, translators, writers, and diplomats.

We highly recommend that students take advantage of our semester program in France and/or the third-semester French summer course in France. Information is available at the International Center, Serra Hall, Room 201, or at www.sandiego.edu/international/study-abroad/<u>c</u>

### The French Major

#### Preparation for the French Major

Students must have finished FREN 202 or the equivalent (e.g. placement in upperdivision through the Department's Placement exam), thereby demonstrating proficiency in oral and written expression. Lower-division courses provide the necessary training in the four basic language skills (listening, speaking, reading, writing) as well as basic cultural competency. Upper-division courses further develop these skills and bring students to a level of proficiency of Advanced Low to Advanced High on the ACTFL scale. The experience of living and studying in France or a Francophone country is highly recommended.

#### The Major

The 24 upper-division units required for the major must include:

Code	Title	Units
FREN 301	Advanced Grammar and Composition (or equivalent)	3
FREN 303	Cultural Backgrounds of French Civilization (or equivalent)	3
FREN 320	Survey of French Literature I: Middle Ages to 18th Century	3
or FREN 321	Survey of French Literature II: 19th to 21st Centuries	
or FREN 322	Survey of Francophone Literature	
Three upper-divisi	on courses at any level	9
Two courses at the 400 level		6
FREN 495 Senior	Capstone Project (optional) <sup>1</sup>	0-1
Total Units		24-25

The optional capstone project (1-3 units) is carried out in the student's last year in the program, and it should be linked thematically to one of the last two upper-division courses taken for the major. The student must meet with his or her capstone advisor (the professor for the upper-division major course) to determine the parameters for the project and consult with the program director to enroll in FREN 495.

A minimum of 15 upper-division units must be taken on the USD campus. The experience of living and studying in a Francophone country is highly recommended.

#### Recommended Program of Study for the French Major

FREN 101 through FREN 202 must be taken in order, one course per semester. Once the 300 level is reached, two courses or more can be taken at the same time, but prerequisites must be observed. When planning a major or minor, advisors will help map out the best course for each student according to previous background, future career goals, or personal interest.

### The French Minor

Two options are available. The recommended upper-division courses for both are FREN 301, FREN 302, FREN 303, and FREN 310.

- 1. 18 units: at least nine of the 18 units must be in upper-division courses.
- 2. 12 upper-division units. Prerequisites: Fourth-semester competency in French and approval by the department chair.

A minimum of six upper-division units must be taken on the USD campus. The experience of living and studying in a Francophone country is most highly recommended.

#### FREN 101 | FIRST SEMESTER FRENCH

Units: 3

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Introductory course to French life, language, and grammar, with stress upon pronunciation and oral comprehension.

#### FREN 102 | SECOND SEMESTER FRENCH

Units: 3

150

Prerequisites: FREN 101 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Essentials of French grammar together with writing, reading, pronunciation, and comprehension.

#### FREN 140 | TOPICS IN FRENCH LITERATURE AND CULTURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in French literature and culture. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

#### FREN 141 | TOPICS IN FRENCH/FRANCOPHONE LIT OR CULTURE-DOMESTIC FOCUS

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in French and Francophone literature, film and/or culture with a Domestic Focus. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

#### FREN 142 | TOPICS IN FRENCH/FRANCOPHONE LIT, FILM OR CULT-**GLOBAL FOCUS**

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in French and Francophone literature, film and/or culture with a Global Focus. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

#### FREN 194 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN FRENCH LITERATURE AND CULTURE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in French literature and culture. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

#### FREN 201 | THIRD SEMESTER FRENCH

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Second language competency

Prerequisites: FREN 102 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Completes the introduction of the basic structures of the language, with increased emphasis on grammatical exactness to further develop communicative proficiency. At this level students are encouraged to participate in community service-learning and/or cultural activities within the French-speaking community. This course is also offered in the summer in Paris. Prerequisites: FREN 102 or equivalent, or Placement Exam. Every semester. Course also is offered as an intensive summer course in France conducted by a USD faculty member. See course description above. Direct immersion in French life and culture; students are placed within French families. The university reserves the right to cancel this course if minimum enrollment is not met or for any other reason. Open to all students and prepares equally well for FREN 202. Prerequisites: FREN 102 or equivalent, or Placement Exam. Every summer.

#### FREN 202 | FOURTH SEMESTER FRENCH

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### **Core Attributes: Oral communication competency**

Prerequisites: FREN 201 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Oral and written practice of idiomatic expression and syntax. Emphasis on accuracy and fluency reinforced through readings of short stories and essay writing, as well as conversations dealing with contemporary French and Francophone culture.

#### FREN 292 | TUTORING

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Prerequisites: FREN 201 or FREN 202

Supervised participation as a tutor of students enrolled in our French classes. The course entails tutoring one hour per week, completion of homework (readings and responses, maintaining a journal, etc.) as well as mandatory attendance at two group meetings per semester. Course does not satisfy the second language requirement. It counts as elective credit, not toward the major or minor.

#### FREN 293 | LANGUAGE TUTORING OR FIELD EXPERIENCE IN **FRENCH**

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

**Core Attributes: Law - Experiential** 

Supervised participation in the department's Tutoring Program or placement in a community organization in which the student's skills in French are developed.

#### FREN 294 | TOPICS IN LANGUAGE, LITERATURE, OR CULTURE

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: FREN 202

Study at the lower-division level of a special topic in language, literature, or culture. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal. If taught in English, this course will not fulfill the Core Curriculum language requirement. Consult with instructor or the department chair.

#### FREN 300 | ADVANCED CONVERSATION

**Units: 3 Repeatability: No** 

Core Attributes: Oral communication competency

Prerequisites: FREN 202

Oral practice through debates and discussions of current events or films. Role playing emphasizing cultural content, using experiential methods. Study of basic notions of phonetics when necessary to help with pronunciation, advanced idiomatic forms, specific vocabulary and diverse means or styles of expression in preparation for upper-division work.

#### FREN 301 | ADVANCED GRAMMAR AND COMPOSITION Units: 3

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency

Prerequisites: FREN 202 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Advanced written practice and grammar review. Essay topics follow a simulation enriched by literary texts and multimedia activities. Required for all advanced courses beyond FREN 320.

#### FREN 302 | INTRODUCTION TO THE ANALYSIS OF FRENCH LITERARY TEXTS

Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE**

Prerequisites: FREN 202 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Introduction to the analysis of texts selected from representative masterpieces of French and Francophone literature in all genres. Emphasis will be on close reading of texts, with an overview of the historical evolution of literary styles and

#### FREN 303 | CULTURAL BACKGROUNDS OF FRENCH CIVILIZATION Units: 3

Prerequisites: FREN 202 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Survey of the historical, social, cultural, and artistic evolution of French from the Middle Ages to the present.

#### FREN 310 | FRENCH PHONETICS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: FREN 301

An intensive study of French phonemes, diction, and speech and their practical applications in contemporary France.

## FREN 315 | L2 TEACHING METHODOGIES AND APPLIED LINGUISTICS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: FREN 301

An introduction to the history of second language teaching methods, applied linguistics, and the fundamentals of second language teaching. Initial training in the skills needed to be a second language teacher.

#### FREN 317 | BUSINESS FRENCH

Units: 3

## FREN 320 | SURVEY OF FRENCH LITERATURE I: MIDDLE AGES TO 18TH CENTURY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year or FREN 301

Introduction to the major works of French literature, in their socio-cultural context, from the birth of the language to the Age of Enlightenment.

## FREN 321 | SURVEY OF FRENCH LITERATURE II: 19TH TO 21ST CENTURIES

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: FREN 301 or FREN 302

Introduction to the major works of French and Francophone literature, in their socio-cultural context, from the end of the 18th century to the beginning of the 21st century.

#### FREN 322 | SURVEY OF FRANCOPHONE LITERATURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

This course introduces students to Francophone literature in the world with an emphasis placed on interconnections between textual analysis, aesthetics, culture and politics, focusing on selected literary texts (predominantly), films and art from Sub-Saharan Africa, the Maghreb, the Caribbean and its Diaspora.

### FREN 347 | INVISIBLE IDENTITIES IN CINEMA IN FRENCH

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year or FREN 202

Representations of minorities and women continue to depend on stereotypes and discriminations in the French films industry. From a selection of films, video clips and documentaries in French we will question the meaning of invisibility as individual and social experience of discrimination of one or many labels of identity we carry. We will examine representations against the invisibility of intersectional identities that can be associated with gender, race, ethnicity, religion, nationality, sexuality, and disability. Our focus will be on movies by French and Francophone directors that purposely challenge representations of discriminations and inequality in society.

#### FREN 394 | TOPICS IN LANGUAGE, LITERATURE, OR CULTURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: FREN 202 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Study at the third-year level of a special topic in language, literature, or culture. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal. If taught in English, this course will not fulfill the Core Curriculum language requirement. Consult with instructor or the department chair.

#### FREN 403 | CONTEMPORARY FRENCH CIVILIZATION

Units: 3

Prerequisites: FREN 301 and (FREN 320 or FREN 321)

An in-depth study of major facets of the modern way of life in France and Francophone countries, with special emphasis on the political, social, and artistic areas

#### FREN 409 | CONTEMPORARY AFRICAN FRANCOPHONE THEATRE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Prerequisites: FREN 301 and FREN 302 and (FREN 320 or FREN 321) Study of selected masterpieces of dramatic literature from French-speaking countries in Africa and its diaspora in France. Students will explore expressions and mutations of Francophone African theater from 1960 (when most African countries gained their independence from European colonial rule) to today.

#### FREN 410 | FRENCH THEATER

Units: 3

Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: FREN 301 and FREN 302 and (FREN 320 or FREN 321) Study of selected masterpieces of dramatic literature that reflect France's people and culture, and the evolution of the genre through the ages.

#### FREN 411 | FRENCH PROSE

Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE**

Prerequisites: FREN 301 and FREN 302 and (FREN 320 or FREN 321) Study of a variety of French non-fiction and fiction (other than the novel) such as essais, pensées, discours, contes, fabliaux, nouvelles, sermons, etc. This course will examine the richness of French thought and storytelling through the ages.

#### FREN 412 | FRENCH NOVEL

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: FREN 301 and FREN 302 and (FREN 320 or FREN 321) Study of selected novels reflecting the evolution of the novelistic genre through the ages. The course may include major works by such authors as l'Abbé Prévost, Balzac, Stendhal, Flaubert, Zola, Gide, Camus, Colette, Queneau, de Beauvoir, Tournier, Duras, Ernaux, and others.

#### FREN 413 | FRENCH POETRY

Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE**

Prerequisites: FREN 301 and FREN 302 and (FREN 320 or FREN 321)
Study of French poetry and poetic forms from the Middle Ages to the present.

#### FREN 414 | FRENCH WOMEN WRITERS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Prerequisites: FREN 301 and FREN 302 and (FREN 320 or FREN 321 or FREN 322)

Study of representative works of French women writers from Marie de France to contemporary authors in their historical and social milieu.

#### FREN 493 | FIELD EXPERIENCE

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### **Core Attributes: Law - Experiential**

Placement in a community agency where advanced French language skills will be utilized. A maximum of two units may be applied to the major, none to the minor. Anything over two units will count as a general elective.

### FREN 494 | TOPICS IN FRENCH LITERATURE, LANGUAGE OR CULTURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit) Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: FREN 301 and FREN 302 and (FREN 320 or FREN 321) Study at an advanced level of French literature, language, or culture. Topics may include specific authors, periods, or linguistic studies such as: Business French, Francophone literature, French stylists, Voltaire, Hugo, etc. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal.

#### FREN 495 | SENIOR CAPSTONE PROJECT

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: No

This is an optional culminating experience in which students reflect upon and integrate aspects of their entire undergraduate study. Through a writing project, an oral presentation, and an exit interview, students demonstrate their achievement of the program learning outcomes. The capstone is taken concurrently with one of the last two upper-division courses for the major, to which it is thematically linked. The student must meet with his or her capstone advisor (the professor for the upper-division major course) to determine the parameters for the project and consult with the program director to enroll.

#### FREN 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

A program arranged between the advanced student and the instructor to provide intensive study in a particular area of interest. Extensive reading and consultation are required, as well as preparation of reports to be assigned by the instructor.

### German

### PROGRAM DIRECTOR

Christiane P. Staninger, PhD

In general, an education in German not only encourages students to consider the profound effects of German-speaking thinkers, scientists, and artists on the modern world, but also provides a lens through which the particular contours of the present and past can be evaluated. Knowledge of the German language and an understanding of the cultures of the countries where German is spoken provide a valuable preparation for many careers and graduate programs. In addition, it opens the door to lifelong cultural enrichment. German is a primary language of scholarship and international communication in a diverse range of academic and scientific fields, including industry and commerce. The lower-division language classes give students the strong base in oral and written skills that will prepare them for a successful period of study abroad, completion of the German minor, or simply give them the fundamental tools for developing conversational fluency. The minor in German is an excellent complement to a number of different disciplines such as art history, business, international relations, mathematics, music, political science, literature, philosophy and religious studies. Upperdivision courses are aimed at encouraging individual exploration of the country, its culture, its literature, its industry and commerce, while at the same time building and reinforcing language proficiency.

Students may elect to major in Interdisciplinary Humanities with a concentration in German in either the Humanities or European Studies track. Upper-division courses will be completed in disciplines such as history, philosophy, political science, and theology and religious studies. These courses are conducted in English. With the prior permission of the Director of Interdisciplinary Humanities,

GERM 294, GERM 394, GERM 494, and GERM 499 may be counted toward the requirements of both programs.

Students are strongly encouraged to take advantage of our semester program in Freiburg, Germany or Vienna, Austria and/or our third-semester German in Europe intensive summer course. Information is available at the International Center, Serra Hall, Room 201, or at www.sandiego.edu/international/study-abroad/.

#### The German Minor

Two options are available:

- 18 units: at least 9 of the 18 units must be in upper-division courses.
- 12 units of upper-division courses. Prerequisites: Fourth-semester competency in German and approval of department chair.

A minimum of six upper-division units must be taken on the USD campus. The experience of living and studying in a German-speaking country is most highly recommended.

#### Recommended Program of Study for the German Minor

GERM 101 through GERM 202 courses must be taken in order, one course per semester. Once the 300 level is reached, two courses or more can be taken at the same time, but prerequisites must be observed. When planning the minor, the program director will help map out the best course for each student according to previous background, future career goals, or personal interest.

#### GERM 101 | FIRST SEMESTER GERMAN

**Units: 3-4** 

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Introductory course to German life, language, and essentials of basic grammar with stress upon pronunciation, reading, and oral comprehension.

#### GERM 102 | SECOND SEMESTER GERMAN

Units: 3

Prerequisites: GERM 101 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

A continuation on the basis of GERM 101 with emphasis on reading, writing, grammar, pronunciation, and elementary conversation.

#### GERM 140 | TOPICS IN GERMAN LITERATURE AND CULTURE

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

**Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE** 

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in German literature and culture. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

## GERM 141 | TOPICS IN GERMAN LITERATURE, FILM OR CULTURE-DOMESTIC FOCUS

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in German literature, film and/or culture with a Domestic Focus. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

## GERM 142 | TOPICS IN GERMAN LITERATURE, FILM OR CULTURE-GLOBAL FOCUS

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

**Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE** 

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in German literature, film and/or culture with a Global Focus. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

## GERM 194 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN GERMAN LITERATURE AND CULTURE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in German literature and culture. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

#### **GERM 201 | THIRD SEMESTER GERMAN**

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Second language competency

Prerequisites: GERM 102 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Completes the introduction of the basic structures of the language, with continuing emphasis on communicative proficiency. At this level students are encouraged to participate in community service-learning and/or cultural activities within the German-speaking community. This course is also offered in the summer in Europe (see below). Prerequisite: GERM 102 or equivalent or Placement Exam. Every Fall. Also offered as THIRD SEMESTER GERMAN IN EUROPE: Intensive summer course in Germany, Austria, or Switzerland conducted by a USD faculty member. Direct immersion in the life and culture of German-speaking people. See course description above. The university reserves the right to cancel this course if minimum enrollment is not met, or for any other reason. Prerequisite: GERM 102 or equivalent or Placement Exam. Every Fall.

#### **GERM 202 | FOURTH SEMESTER GERMAN**

#### **Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)**

Prerequisites: GERM 201 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Oral and written practice of idiomatic expression and syntax. Emphasis on accuracy and fluency reinforced through readings of short stories and essay writing, as well as conversations dealing with German life and culture.

### GERM 230 | INTERMEDIATE CONVERSATION

Units: 3

Prerequisites: GERM 201 or GERM 202

Intensive drill in spoken German based on assigned topics. This course does not count toward the German minor, but does count as elective lower-division units toward graduation.

#### **GERM 292 | TUTORING**

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

**Core Attributes: Law - Experiential** 

Prerequisites: GERM 201 or GERM 202

Supervised participation as a tutor of students enrolled in our German courses. The course entails tutoring one hour per week, completion of homework (readings and responses, maintaining a journal, etc.) as well as mandatory attendance at two group meetings per semester. Course does not satisfy the second language requirement. It counts as elective credit, not toward the minor.

## GERM 293 | LANGUAGE TUTORING OR FIELD EXPERIENCE IN GERMAN

**Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Supervised participation in the department's Tutoring Program or placement in a community organization in which the student's skills in German are developed.

## GERM 294 | TOPICS IN LANGUAGE, LITERATURE, OR CULTURE Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Prerequisites: GERM 202

Study at the lower-division level of a special topic in language, literature, or culture. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal. If taught in English, this course will not fulfill the Core Curriculum language requirement. Consult with instructor or the department chair.

#### GERM 301 | ADVANCED COMPOSITION

Units: 3

Prerequisites: GERM 202 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Further development of oral and writing abilities. Continued study of the grammatical structure of German with emphasis on idiomatic expressions and syntax. Reading of modern authors and work through various films in order to consolidate the learning of idiomatic expressions and prepare for literature classes and further studies through interpretation of prose and films as well as techniques for plot and character analysis.

#### GERM 302 | READINGS IN GERMAN LITERATURE

Units: 3

Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: GERM 301

Assigned readings in modern literature; class reports and essays on literary topics of prose and poetry.

## GERM 303 | CULTURAL BACKGROUNDS OF GERMAN CIVILIZATION

Units: 3

Prerequisites: GERM 202

Survey of the historical, social, cultural, and artistic evolution of German from the origins to the present. Survey of modern life and geography in Germany.

## GERM 304 | COMMERCIAL CORRESPONDENCE AND ADVANCED BUSINESS GERMAN

Units: 3

Prerequisites: GERM 202

Oral and written Geschäftsdeutsch with special attention to accurate and idiomatic expressions used in economics, business, professional, and technical fields with an insight into Germany's place in the European Union and the world market.

### GERM 312 | GERMAN LITERATURE FROM 1900 TO THE PRESENT

Units: 3

Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: GERM 301

A survey of German literature from 1900 to the present. Important movements, authors, and works in German literature since the turn of the century.

## GERM 315 | L2 TEACHING METHODOLOGIES AND APPLIED LINGUISTICS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: GERM 301

An introduction to the history of second language teaching methods, applied linguistics, and the fundamentals of second language teaching. Initial training in the skills needed to be a second language teacher.

## GERM 394 | TOPICS IN LANGUAGE, LITERATURE, OR CULTURE Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Prerequisites: GERM 202

Study at the third-year level of a special topic in language, literature, or culture. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal. If taught in English, this course will not fulfill the Core Curriculum language requirement. Consult with instructor or the department chair.

#### **GERM 493 | FIELD EXPERIENCE**

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Placement in a community agency where advanced German language skills will be utilized. Elective credit only (does not count toward the minor).

#### GERM 494 | TOPICS IN GERMAN LITERATURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs) Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: GERM 302

Study at an advanced level of major topics of German literature, such as Medieval authors, Renaissance and Baroque masterworks, masterpieces of the Age of Enlightenment, the period of Storm and Stress, Classic and Romantic, Realism, Naturalism, and Modern works of the 20th century; themes, authors, genres. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal. Prerequisite: GERM 302 or equivalent. May be taken for credit each time topic changes.

#### **GERM 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY**

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

A program arranged between the advanced student and the instructor to provide intensive study in a particular area of interest. Extensive reading and consultation are required, as well as preparation of reports to be assigned by the instructor. A maximum of three units may be applied toward the minor.

### **Italian Studies**

### **Program Director**

Loredana Di Martino, PhD (on sabbatical 2016-2017)

### Acting Program Director, 2016-17

Brittany Asaro, PhD

The study of Italian culture and its role in the evolution of the Western world since Antiquity is essential for a fuller understanding of the political, economic and cultural forces that continue to shape the Mediterranean, Europe and the world. The Italian Program develops students' linguistic proficiency while providing them with a strong interdisciplinary knowledge of Italian culture. The lower-division language classes help students develop basic communicative competency in Italian as well as cultural and intercultural awareness. The interdisciplinary major in Italian Studies and the Italian minor explore the breadth of Italian culture, literature, cinema and history, while at the same time building and reinforcing language proficiency.

Students who major in Italian Studies may integrate their knowledge of Italian culture with other disciplines by taking upper-division courses in other departments. They can also combine the major in Italian Studies with a second major or a minor in another discipline. In addition, students can take advantage of our study-abroad programs in Italy. Information is available at the International Center, Serra Hall, Room 201, or at www.sandiego.edu/international/study-abroad/.

Italian Studies majors can pursue careers in many different fields, including art, business, finance, marketing, tourism and hospitality, enology and culinary arts, design, teaching and education, fashion, film, international relations, writing, journalism and communications, translation and interpreting and many others.

### The Italian Studies Major

### Preparation for the Italian Studies Major

Students must have finished ITAL 202 or the equivalent (e.g. placement in upperdivision through the Department's Placement exam), thereby demonstrating proficiency in oral and written expression. Lower-division courses provide the necessary training in the four basic language skills (listening, speaking, reading, writing) as well as basic cultural competency. Upper-division courses further develop these skills and bring students to a level of proficiency of Advanced Low to Advanced High on the ACTFL scale. The experience of living and studying in Italy is highly recommended.

#### Major Requirements

24-25 units of upper-division work—8 courses plus the optional capstone project if appropriate—of which a minimum of 18 units (6 courses) must be in Italian (ITAL). The remaining 6 units may be either in Italian (ITAL) or approved interdisciplinary courses taught in English in other Departments.

A minimum of 18 upper-division units must be taken on the USD campus.

Code	Title	Units
Italian Courses	(ITAL) Required	
ITAL 301	Writing and Composition in Italian	3
ITAL 302	Contemporary Italy: Culture, Politics and Society	3
Select one of the	following courses on the early modern period: 1	3
ITAL 320	Introduction to Italian Literature and Culture I: From the Middle Ages to the 17th Century	
ITAL 410	Studies in Medieval and Renaissance Italy	
ITAL 420	Dante and His Times	
Select one of the	following courses on the modern or contemporary period: $^{\mathrm{1}}$	3
ITAL 321	Introduction to Italian Literature and Culture II: From the Enlightenment to Today	
ITAL 403	Studies in Italian Film	
ITAL 411	Studies in Modern Italian Literature and Culture	
ITAL 412	Studies in Contemporary Italian Literature and Culture	
ITAL 413	Italian Literature of Migration	
2 elective upper-	division Italian courses	6
2 Interdisciplinar	y Courses (see below)	6
ITAL 495 Senior	Capstone Project (optional) <sup>2</sup>	0-1
Total Units		24-25

- Additional courses may be used to satisfy this requirement, if the focus is appropriate. Examples include: ITAL 340, ITAL 342, ITAL 394, ITAL 494. Consult the Program Director for information about these courses.
- The optional capstone project (1-3 units) is carried out in the student's last year in the program, and it should be linked thematically to one of the last two upper-division courses taken for the major. The student must meet with his or her capstone advisor (the professor for the upper-division major course) to determine the parameters for the project and consult with the program director to enroll in ITAL 495.

#### **Interdisciplinary Courses**

Students can complete all coursework in Italian. However, a maximum of 6 upper-division units (2 courses) may be taken in English from among the courses listed below, their equivalents, or other appropriate courses offered on campus or by our approved study-abroad programs in Italy. In order for an interdisciplinary course to count for the major in Italian Studies, one of the following conditions must be met:

- 1. the course inherently includes significant content on Italy or Italian topics; or
- 2. during the course the student completes a project (e.g. research paper, presentation, portfolio, etc.) with a substantial focus on Italy or Italian topics

In either case, all interdisciplinary courses require prior written approval of the Director of Italian. You should meet with the Director before registering for the class.

3

3

3

### **Double Counting**

The Department of Languages, Cultures and Literatures will grant credit towards the Italian Studies major for interdisciplinary courses taken for another major, except for interdisciplinary majors that prohibit double counting (e.g., Ethnic Studies, Environmental and Ocean Sciences, Interdisciplinary Humanities, International Relations and Liberal Studies).

Code	Title	Units
Six units of interdis	sciplinary courses from the following list:	6
ARCH 321	City and Utopia: Introduction to History of Urbanism	
ARTH/ARCH 322	Contemporary Architecture	
ARTH 334	Art of the Twentieth and Twenty First Centuries in Europe and the Americas	
COMM 475	Intercultural Communication	
ECON 333	International Economics (Prereq: ECON 101 and MATH 130, 150 or 151)	ĺ
ENGL 330	Dante	
FINA 405	International Financial Management (Prereq: FINA 300))	
HIST 312	Roman Civilization	
HIST 321	The Fall of the Roman Empire	
HIST 322	Castles and Crusades: Medieval Europe, 1050-1450	
HIST 331	The Global Renaissance	
HIST 341	World War II	
MKTG 305	Global Marketing (Prereq: MKTG 300 and MATH 130, 150 or 151)	

Other catalog courses and special topics courses may count provided they have significant content on Italy or Italian topics. You must consult with the Director of Italian about all interdisciplinary courses, including those in the list above.

### Recommended Program of Study for the Italian Studies Major

This program of study is designed for incoming freshmen with little or no previous knowledge of the Italian language. Students with sufficient prior language preparation, as determined through the department's placement policy, may initiate upper-division course work as early as their freshman year. Additionally, students can also take one or both of the interdisciplinary courses in English as early as their freshman or sophomore years.

**Total Units** 

First Year		
Semester I		Units
ITAL 101	First Semester Italian	3
Semester II		
ITAL 102	Second Semester Italian	3
Second Year		
Semester I		
ITAL 201	Third Semester Italian	3
Students may also t	ake an interdisciplinary course taught in English	
Semester II		

Fourth Semester Italian Students may also take an interdisciplinary course taught in English

Junior Year

**ITAL 202** 

~						
€.	OT	m	JC.	tο	r	

ITAL 301	Writing and Composition in Italian	3
or 302	Contemporary Italy: Culture, Politics and	
	Society	
ITAL 340	Topics in Italian Literature and Culture	
or 342	Topics in Italian Literature, Film and Culture-	
	Global Focus	
Or another 300-level or	Interdisciplinary course	

#### Semester II **ITAL 301**

or 302	Contemporary Italy: Culture, Politics and	
	Society	
Or another 300-le	vel course	
ITAL 320	Introduction to Italian Literature and Culture I:	3

Writing and Composition in Italian

ITAL 320	Introduction to Italian Literature and Culture I:
or 321	From the Middle Ages to the 17th Century
	Introduction to Italian Literature and Culture II:
	From the Enlightenment to Today

#### Senior Year

C 4	п
Semester	

Upper-Division Course	3
Upper-Division Course	3
Semester II	
Upper-Division Course	3
Upper-Division Course or Interdisciplinary Course	3

ITAL 495 Optional Senior Capstone Project

### The Italian Minor

All courses for the minor must be taken in Italian (ITAL).

A minimum of 6 upper-division units must be taken on the USD campus.

Two options are available.

- 1. 18 units: at least 9 of the 18 units must be upper division courses (at the 300 level or higher) in Italian.
- 2. 12 units of upper-division courses in Italian. Prerequisites: Fourth-semester competency in Italian and approval of department chair.

#### ITAL 101 | FIRST SEMESTER ITALIAN

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Essentials of Italian grammar with emphasis on communicative proficiency and cultural awareness. Development of the four skills of listening, speaking, reading and writing. Students with no previous knowledge of Italian must complete the Waiver for 101 on the Department's website (https://www.sandiego.edu/cas/ languages/requirements-and-placement/). Students with some knowledge of Italian must take the USD Placement Exam on the same website and register in the appropriate level. Every semester.

#### ITAL 102 | SECOND SEMESTER ITALIAN Units: 3

Prerequisites: ITAL 101 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Same orientation as in ITAL 101. Further development of communicative proficiency and cultural and intercultural awareness for students who have completed Italian 101 or have previous knowledge of the language. Stress on listening, speaking, reading and writing.

#### ITAL 140 | TOPICS IN ITALIAN LITERATURE AND CULTURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in Italian literature and culture. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

## ITAL 141 | TOPICS IN ITALIAN LITERATURE, FILM OR CULTURE-DOMESTIC FOCUS

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE, Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in Italian literature, film and/or culture with a Domestic Focus. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

## ITAL 142 | TOPICS IN ITALIAN LITERATURE, FILM OR CULTURE–GLOBAL FOCUS

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE, Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in Italian literature, film and/or culture with a global focus. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

## ITAL 194 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN ITALIAN LITERATURE AND CULTURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE, Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in Italian literature and culture. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

#### ITAL 201 | THIRD SEMESTER ITALIAN

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Second language competency

Prerequisites: ITAL 102 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Completes the introduction of the basic structures of the language, with continuing emphasis on communicative proficiency and cultural awareness. At this level students may be encouraged to participate in community service-learning and/or cultural activities within the Italian speaking community. Prerequisites: ITAL 102 or equivalent, or Placement Exam. Every semester. ITAL 201.

#### ITAL 202 | FOURTH SEMESTER ITALIAN

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Oral communication competency

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year or ITAL 201

Review and expansion of language structures, as well as practice in reading, composition and conversation in preparation for upper-division work.

#### ITAL 230 | INTERMEDIATE CONVERSATION

Units: 3

Prerequisites: ITAL 201 or ITAL 202

Intensive practice in spoken Italian based on assigned topics. This course does not count toward the major or the minor, but does count as elective units toward graduation.

#### ITAL 292 | TUTORING

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Prerequisites: ITAL 201 or ITAL 202

Supervised participation as a tutor of students enrolled in our Italian classes. The course entails tutoring one hour per week, completion of homework (readings and responses, maintaining a journal, etc.) as well as mandatory attendance at two group meetings per semester. Course does not satisfy the second language requirement. It counts as elective credit, not toward the major or minor.

## ITAL 293 | LANGUAGE TUTORING OR FIELD EXPERIENCE IN ITALIAN

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

**Core Attributes: Law - Experiential** 

Supervised participation in the department's Tutoring Program or placement in a community organization in which the student's skills in Italian are developed.

#### ITAL 294 | TOPICS IN LANGUAGE, LITERATURE, OR CULTURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: ITAL 202

Study at the lower-division level of a special topic in language, literature, or culture. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal. If taught in English, this course will not fulfill the Core Curriculum language requirement. Consult with instructor or the department chair.

#### ITAL 301 | WRITING AND COMPOSITION IN ITALIAN

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year or ITAL 202

Focus on the development of reading and writing skills through the analysis of authentic texts, the practice of various modes of written expression, and grammar review

## ITAL 302 | CONTEMPORARY ITALY: CULTURE, POLITICS AND SOCIETY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Oral communication competency

Prerequisites: ITAL 202

Study of relevant aspects of Italian culture, politics and society, and of key moments in Italian history, with a focus on the development of oral communication skills.

## ITAL 315 | L2 TEACHING METHODOLOGIES AND APPLIED LINGUISTICS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: ITAL 301 or ITAL 302

An introduction to the history of second language teaching methods, applied linguistics, and the fundamentals of second language teaching. Initial training in the skills needed to be a second language teacher.

## ITAL 320 | INTRODUCTION TO ITALIAN LITERATURE AND CULTURE I: FROM THE MIDDLE AGES TO THE 17TH CENTURY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Prerequisites: ITAL 301 or ITAL 302 or ITAL 340 or ITAL 342 or ITAL 394 Introduction to the major works of Italian literature, in their socio-cultural context, from the birth of the language to the 17th century.

## ITAL 321 | INTRODUCTION TO ITALIAN LITERATURE AND CULTURE II: FROM THE ENLIGHTENMENT TO TODAY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Prerequisites: ITAL 301 or ITAL 302 or ITAL 340 or ITAL 342 or ITAL 394 Introduction to the major works of Italian literature, in their socio-cultural context, from the 18th century to present times.

#### ITAL 340 | TOPICS IN ITALIAN LITERATURE AND CULTURE

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Prerequisites: ITAL 202 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year  $\,$ 

Study at the third-year level of a topic in literature and culture. (Repeatable if topic differs).

## ITAL 341 | TOPICS IN ITALIAN LITERATURE, FILM AND CULTURE-DOMESTIC FOCUS

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area, Domestic Diversity level 2

Study at the third-year level of a topic in Italian literature, film and culture with a domestic focus. (Repeatable if topic differs).

## ITAL 342 | TOPICS IN ITALIAN LITERATURE, FILM AND CULTURE-GLOBAL FOCUS

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit) Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area, Global Diversity level 2

Prerequisites: ITAL 202

Study at the third-year level of a topic in literature, film and culture with a global focus. (Repeatable if topic differs).

## ITAL 394 | TOPICS IN LANGUAGE, LITERATURE, OR CULTURE Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Prerequisites: ITAL 202 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Study at the third-year level of a special topic in language, literature, or culture. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal. If taught in English, this course will not fulfill the Core Curriculum language requirement. Consult with instructor. May be taken for credit each time topic changes.

#### ITAL 403 | STUDIES IN ITALIAN FILM

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: ITAL 320 or ITAL 321

A study of relevant aspects of Italy's rich cinematic tradition. The course can be repeated when the topic changes.

#### ITAL 410 | STUDIES IN MEDIEVAL AND RENAISSANCE ITALY

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Prerequisites: ITAL 320 or ITAL 321

A study of relevant aspects of the literature, culture and society of Medieval, Humanist and Renaissance Italy. This course can be repeated for credit when the topic changes.

## ITAL 411 | STUDIES IN MODERN ITALIAN LITERATURE AND CULTURE

Units: 3

Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: ITAL 320 or ITAL 321

A study of relevant aspects of the literature, culture and society of 18th- and 19th-century Italy. Particular emphasis is given to the discussion of Italian Risorgimento and the construction and representation of Italian national and cultural identity.

## ITAL 412 | STUDIES IN CONTEMPORARY ITALIAN LITERATURE AND CULTURE

Units: 3

**Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: ITAL 320 or ITAL 321

A study of relevant aspects of the literature, culture and society of 20th- and 21st-century Italy.

#### ITAL 413 | ITALIAN LITERATURE OF MIGRATION

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: or ITAL 321ITAL 320 or ITAL 321

A study of works by native and non-native Italian writers that deal with the questions of migration, multiculturalism and otherness.

#### ITAL 420 | DANTE AND HIS TIMES

Units: 3

Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: ITAL 320 or ITAL 321

A study of Dante's Divina Commedia and other selected works in their literary and historical context.

#### ITAL 440 | TOPICS IN ITALIAN LITERATURE AND CULTURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Prerequisites: ITAL 320 or ITAL 321

Study at the fourth-year level of a topic in literature and culture. (Repeatable if topic differs).

#### ITAL 493 | FIELD EXPERIENCE

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Placement in a community agency where advanced Italian language skills will be utilized. A maximum of two units may be applied to the major, none to the minor. Anything over two units will count as a general elective.

#### ITAL 494 | TOPICS IN LITERATURE, LANGUAGE, OR CULTURE

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

**Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: ITAL 320 or ITAL 321

Study of special topics in Italian literature, language, or culture. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal.

#### ITAL 495 | SENIOR CAPSTONE PROJECT

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: No

This is an optional culminating experience in which students reflect upon and integrate aspects of their entire undergraduate study. Through a writing project, an oral presentation, and an exit interview, students demonstrate their achievement of the program learning outcomes. The capstone is taken concurrently with one of the last two upper-division courses for the major, to which it is thematically linked. The student must meet with his or her capstone advisor (the professor for the upper-division major course) to determine the parameters for the project and consult with the program director to enroll.

#### ITAL 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

A program arranged between the advanced student and the instructor to provide intensive study in a particular area of interest. Extensive reading and consultation are required, as well as preparation of reports to be assigned by the instructor. A maximum of 3 units may be applied toward the major or the minor.

### **Japanese**

### **PROGRAM DIRECTOR**

Hiroko Takagi, MA

The Japanese language program introduces students to a totally different way of thinking from that to which speakers of English and European languages are accustomed. Collaborative classroom activities assist with the acquisition of the Japanese writing system, verbal and non-verbal communication, and Japanese culture. The understanding of a language and culture outside of the European sphere will benefit the student who wishes to "think globally." Proficiency in Japanese language and knowledge of the culture will be a strong asset for people in the 21st century.

Students may elect to minor in Asian Studies, an interdisciplinary program anchored in the history department or to major in Interdisciplinary Humanities with a concentration in Japanese in either the Asian Studies or Humanities track. Upper-division courses will be completed in disciplines such as history, philosophy, political science, and theology and religious studies. These courses

are conducted in English. With the prior permission of their directors, JAPN 294, JAPN 394 and JAPN 499 may be counted toward the requirements of both programs.

Students are strongly encouraged to take advantage of our semester program in Tokyo, Japan and/or the Japanese Culture and Conversation summer or intersession course in Tokyo. Information is available at the International Center, Serra Hall, Room 201 or visit S (http://www.sandiego.edu/international/study-abroad)tudy Abroad (http://www.sandiego.edu/international/study-abroad) website.

The Japanese program also has a relationship with the San Diego/Yokohama Sister City League, which provides opportunities to meet visiting students, visit Yokohama and apply for summer internships.

#### JAPN 101 | FIRST SEMESTER JAPANESE

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

An introduction to the four basic language skills: listening, speaking, reading, and writing (includes Katakana and Hiragana), with emphasis on oral skills. Supplemental practice with audio-visual materials.

#### JAPN 102 | SECOND SEMESTER JAPANESE

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: JAPN 101 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Continuation of JAPN 101. Continued development of basic language skills. Increased practice in reading and writing (Katakana, Hiragana), and introduction of 130 Chinese characters used in context. Relationship between language and culture. Supplemental practice with audio-visual materials.

## JAPN 140 | TOPICS IN JAPANESE LITERATURE AND CULTURE Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in Japanese literature and culture. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

## JAPN 141 | TOPICS IN JAPANESE LITERATURE, FILM, CULTURE-DOMESTIC FOCUS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in Japanese literature, film and/or culture with a Domestic Focus. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

## JAPN 142 | TOPICS IN JAPANESE LITERATURE, FILM OR CULTURE–GLOBAL FOCUS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in Japanese literature, film and/or culture with a Global Focus. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

## JAPN 150 | JAPANESE CULTURE AND CONVERSATION Units: 3

Prerequisites: JAPN 102

A course designed for students who wish to enhance their command of spoken Japanese, including expanding vocabulary, idiomatic expressions, and the use of previously acquired grammatical structures. This course is also designed to enable the student to become acquainted with the history, geography, politics, traditional arts, and literature of Japan, in addition to daily customs of Japanese society. This course will be taught in Japan during the summer or winter. The university reserves the right to cancel this course if minimum enrollment is not met, or for any other reason. Students who have earned credit in JAPN 201 and/or 202 are also invited to enroll.

## JAPN 152 | JAPANESE CULTURE AND CONVERSATION Units: 3

## JAPN 194 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN JAPANESE LITERATURE AND CULTURE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in Japanese literature and culture. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

#### JAPN 201 | THIRD SEMESTER JAPANESE

#### Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Second language competency

Prerequisites: JAPN 102 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Further development of language competence. Practice in oral and written Japanese at the intermediate level, with emphasis on reading and basic composition. Supplemental practice with audio-visual materials.

#### JAPN 202 | FOURTH SEMESTER JAPANESE

#### **Units: 3-4**

Prerequisites: JAPN 201 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Continued practice in oral and written Japanese. Various styles will be introduced to develop greater accuracy and fluency. Use of authentic modern Japanese materials for better appreciation of the culture. Supplemental practice with audiovisual materials.

#### **JAPN 292 | TUTORING**

Units: 1 Repeatability: No

#### **Core Attributes: Law - Experiential**

Prerequisites: JAPN 201 or JAPN 202

Supervised participation as a tutor of students enrolled in our Japanese classes. The course entails tutoring one hour per week, completion of homework (readings and responses, maintaining a journal, etc.) as well as mandatory attendance at two group meetings per semester. Course does not satisfy the second language requirement. It counts as elective credit.

## JAPN 293 | LANGUAGE TUTORING OR FIELD EXPERIENCE IN JAPANESE

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

#### Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Supervised participation in the department's Tutoring Program or placement in a community organization in which the student's skills in Japanese are developed.

### JAPN 294 | TOPICS IN LANGUAGE, LITERATURE, OR CULTURE

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

#### Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: JAPN 202

Study at the lower-division level of a special topic in language, literature, or culture. This course may be repeated for credit when the topic changes. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal. If taught in English, this course will not fulfill the Core Curriculum language requirement. Consult with instructor or the department chair.

### JAPN 299 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

Units: 3

#### JAPN 394 | TOPICS IN LANGUAGE, LITERATURE, OR CULTURE

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

**Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: JAPN 202

Study at the third-year level of a special topic in language, literature or culture. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal. If taught in English, this course will not fulfill the Core Curriculum language requirement. Consult with instructor or the department chair.

#### JAPN 493 | FIELD EXPERIENCE

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### **Core Attributes: Law - Experiential**

Placement in a community agency where advanced Japanese language skills will be utilized.

#### JAPN 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Study of special topics in Japanese literature, language, or culture. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal.

#### JAPN 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

#### **Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)**

A program arranged between the advanced student and the instructor to provide intensive study in a particular area of interest. Extensive reading and consultation are required, as well as preparation of reports to be assigned by the instructor. A maximum of three units may be applied toward the Asian Studies minor.

### Latin

#### PROGRAM DIRECTOR

Santiago Rubio-Fernaz, PhD

Imperium Romanum (the Roman Empire) once sprawled across Europe, North Africa, and Asia Minor. Centuries after its demise, its linguistic and cultural influences continue to exist. The study of Latin opens windows on a culture that influences our world through the arts and literature as well as fields as diverse as medicine, engineering, law and government, to name a few. Likewise, the study of its contribution to the vocabulary, grammar, and syntax of English enhances one's knowledge of that language. The Latin program offers beginning and intermediate courses that incorporate authentic texts drawn from archaic to classical times, including secular, theological and liturgical works. Students will learn to read and translate the language and to understand its indelible impact on modern English. Also offered are special topics courses—both lower- and upperdivision—which focus on some aspect of language, literature, and culture.

Students may elect to major in Interdisciplinary Humanities with a concentration in Latin in either the Humanities or European Studies track. Upper-division courses will be completed in disciplines such as history, philosophy, political science, and theology and religious studies. These courses are conducted in English. With the prior permission of the Director of Interdisciplinary Humanities, LATN 294, LATN 394, and LATN 499 may be counted toward the requirements of both tracks. The Classical Studies minor (Option 1) requires LATN 101-201 and makes LATN 202 one of the choices from a list of lower-division courses. With the prior permission of the Director of Classical Studies, LATN 294, LATN 394 and LATN 499 may be counted toward the requirements.

#### LATN 101 | FIRST SEMESTER LATIN

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Essentials of grammar and sentence structure. Study of culture and history through the reading of simple excerpts from Roman literature.

#### LATN 102 | SECOND SEMESTER LATIN

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: LATN 101 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

A continuation of LATN 101. Translation of brief selections from Latin authors and exploration of various facets of Roman culture continue as the nucleus of the course.

#### LATN 140 | TOPICS IN LATIN LITERATURE AND CULTURE

#### **Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)**

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in Latin literature and culture. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

#### LATN 194 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN LATIN LITERATURE AND CULTURE

#### **Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)**

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in Latin literature and culture. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

#### LATN 201 | THIRD SEMESTER LATIN

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Second language competency

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year or LATN 102

Grammar review. A more intense understanding of Roman experience and thought is achieved by analysis and translation of extended passages of Latin literature.

#### LATN 202 | FOURTH SEMESTER LATIN

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: LATN 201 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Introduction to Latin literature. Designed for those who have completed three semesters of the grammar sequence, this course exposes students to a variety of classical and medieval authors through graded readings. Review of grammar as needed. Emphasis on cultural and historical aspects.

#### **LATN 292 | TUTORING**

#### Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### **Core Attributes: Law - Experiential**

Prerequisites: LATN 201 or LATN 202

Supervised participation as a tutor of students enrolled in our Latin classes. The course entails tutoring one hour per week, completion of homework (readings and responses, maintaining a journal, etc.) as well as mandatory attendance at two group meetings per semester. Course does not satisfy the second language requirement. It counts as elective credit.

## LATN 293 | LANGUAGE TUTORING OR FIELD EXPERIENCE IN LATIN

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

#### **Core Attributes: Law - Experiential**

Supervised participation in the department's Tutoring Program or placement in a community organization in which the student's skills in Latin are developed.

## LATN 294 | TOPICS IN LANGUAGE, LITERATURE, OR CULTURE Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Prerequisites: LATN 202

Study at the lower-division level of a special topic in language, literature, or culture. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal. Consult with instructor or the department chair.

#### LATN 299 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

**Units: 1-3** 

## LATN 394 | TOPICS IN LANGUAGE, LITERATURE, OR CULTURE Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Prerequisites: LATN 202

Study at the third-year level of a special topic in language, literature, or culture. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal. Consult with instructor or the department chair.

#### LATN 493 | FIELD EXPERIENCE

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Placement in a community agency where advanced Latin language skills will be utilized.

#### LATN 494 | TOPICS IN LATIN STUDIES

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

#### LATN 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

A program arranged between the advanced student and the instructor to provide intensive study in a particular area of interest. Extensive reading and consultation are required, as well as preparation of reports to be assigned by the instructor.

### **Spanish**

### **PROGRAM DIRECTOR**

Amanda Peterson, PhD

### **Faculty**

Clara (Bicho) Salto-Weis Azevedo, MA

Kimberly A. Eherenman, PhD

Kevin Guerrieri, PhD

Rebecca Ingram, PhD

Julia Medina, PhD

Alejandro Meter, PhD

Amanda Petersen, PhD

Martin Repinecz, PhD

María Cecilia Ruiz, PhD

Leonora Simonovis-Brown, PhD

Íñigo Yanguas, PhD

The program engages students in the study of the Spanish language, the development of their communicative proficiency, and the analysis of a wide range of literary and cultural production throughout the Spanish-speaking world, from Latin America, the Caribbean, and the United States, to the Iberian Peninsula. They also gain a broad understanding of the diversity of Hispanic cultures through a study of these societies' literary and cultural contributions, traditions, perspectives, and histories. Finally, students learn to analyze, critically engage, and interpret the texts (written works, cultural products, artifacts, etc.), and the language that constitutes this dynamic, intercultural space.

Students are encouraged to participate in study abroad, particularly those programs led by faculty of our department, which are offered during both intersession and summer. We also recommend a semester-long experience in our Madrid Program. Students should consult with their academic advisor and the director of the Spanish Program in order to determine when to study abroad and which courses to take.

Given our geographic location and the subject matter of our classes, students are strongly encouraged to participate in community engagement through classes that incorporate this important component into the curricula.

### The Major

### Preparation for the Spanish Major

Students must have finished SPAN 202 or the equivalent (e.g. placement in upperdivision through the Department's Placement exam), thereby demonstrating proficiency in oral and written expression. Lower-division courses provide the necessary training in the four basic language skills (listening, speaking, reading, writing) as well as basic cultural competency. Upper-division courses further develop these skills and bring students to a level of proficiency of Advanced Low to Advanced High on the ACTFL scale. The experience of living and studying in a Spanish-speaking country is highly recommended.

#### **Major Requirements**

Students must complete 27 units of upper-division work, selected from Spanish courses numbered 300 or above, which must include:

Code	Title	Units
SPAN 301	Advanced Grammar and Composition	3
or SPAN 311	Writing and Composition for Heritage Speakers	
SPAN 302	Cultural History of Spain	3
SPAN 303	Introduction To Cultural Analysis	3
SPAN 304	Cultural History of Latin America	3
Select one of the fo	llowing 400-level courses in Spanish Peninsular	3
SPAN 422	Studies in Medieval Spanish Literature	
SPAN 423	Studies in Spanish Literature of the Golden Age	
SPAN 424	Don Quijote de la Mancha	
SPAN 426	Studies in 18th and 19th Century Peninsular Literature and Culture	
SPAN 427	Studies in 20th and 21st Century Peninsular Literature and Culture	
SPAN 434	The "New" World	
Select one of the fo	llowing 400-level courses in Latin American Literature: 1	3
SPAN 410D	Latin@ Literatures and Cultures	
SPAN 434	The "New" World	
SPAN 448	Latin American Short Story	
SPAN 449	Latin American Novel	
SPAN 453	Mexican Literature and Culture	
SPAN 458	Jewish Latin America	
One 400-level elec	tive course	3
Select any 6 units of	of upper-division SPAN courses	6
SPAN 495 Senior 0	Capstone Project (optional) <sup>2</sup>	0-1
Total Units		27-28

- SPAN 430, SPAN 440, SPAN 441, SPAN 442 and SPAN 494 may satisfy either the Latin American or Peninsular requirement, depending on the focus of the course. Consult the Program Director for information about these courses.
- The optional capstone project (1-3 units) is carried out in the student's last year in the program, and it should be linked thematically to one of the last two upper-division courses taken for the major. The student must meet with his or her capstone advisor (the professor for the upper-division major course) to determine the parameters for the project and consult with the program director to enroll in SPAN 495.

A minimum of 15 upper-division units must be taken on the USD campus.

# Recommended Program of Study for the Spanish Major

This program of study is designed for incoming freshmen with little or no previous knowledge of the Spanish language. Students begin the program at the level corresponding to their placement as determined through the department's Placement Policy, and, therefore, with sufficient prior language preparation, they may initiate upper-division course work as early as their freshman year. While

students having successfully completed SPAN 202 may enroll in many 300-level courses (300-307), it is highly recommended that the sequence outlined above be followed.

#### Freshman Year

Semester I		Units
SPAN 101	First Semester Spanish	3
Semester II		
SPAN 102	Second Semester Spanish	3
Sophomore Year		
Semester I		
SPAN 201	Third Semester Spanish	3
Semester II		

#### **Junior Year**

**SPAN 202** 

or 212

#### Semester I

SPAN 301	Advanced Grammar and Composition
or 311	Writing and Composition for Heritage Speakers

Fourth Semester Spanish

Spanish for Heritage Speakers

#### Semester II

SPAN 304 Cultural History of Latin America

#### 300-level course

#### Senior Year

#### Semester I

300- or 400-level course

400-level course

#### Semester II

400-level course

400-level course

SPAN 495 Optional Senior Capstone Project

### The Minor

Two options are available:

- 1. 18 units: At least 9 of the 18 units must be in upper division courses (numbered 300 and above).
- 2. 12 units of upper-division courses (numbered 300 and above). Prerequisites: Fourth-semester competency in Spanish and approval of department chair.

A minimum of 6 upper-division units must be taken on the USD campus for the minor.

Both SPAN 301 (or SPAN 311) and SPAN 303 are prerequisites for Spanish courses numbered 320 and higher. In addition, either SPAN 302 or SPAN 304 is a prerequisite for each 400-level course. (See individual course descriptions).

#### SPAN 101 | FIRST SEMESTER SPANISH

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Introduction to the four basic language skills: listening, speaking, reading, and writing. Throughout the sequence, emphasis is placed on the development of communicative proficiency—with a focus on oral practice—and on heightening students' awareness of cultural contexts.

#### SPAN 102 | SECOND SEMESTER SPANISH

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: SPAN 101

This class introduces new structures and continues to develop the four basic language skills—listening, speaking, reading, and writing— with an emphasis on communicative proficiency and cultural awareness.

#### 3 SPAN 103 | FIRST YEAR SPANISH

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

An accelerated course in which SPAN 101 and SPAN 102 are combined into one semester. This course is designed for a specific profile of student who has already taken Spanish 101 or the equivalent and needs to review the structures

and vocabulary presented in that course in addition to completing Spanish 102 as outlined above.

### 3 SPAN 140 | TOPICS IN LITERATURE AND CULTURE

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

#### Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in literature, film, and culture in translation from Spanish. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

### SPAN 141 | TOPICS IN LITERATURE, FILM AND CULTURE-

- DOMESTIC FOCUS
- Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)
- Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area, Domestic Diversity level 1
- Study at the lower-division level of a topic in literature, film and/or culture with a Domestic Focus in translation from Spanish. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.
- $_{\rm 3}$   $\,$  SPAN 142 | TOPICS IN LITERATURE, FILM AND CULTURE-GLOBAL
- 3 FOCUS

3

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

#### Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area, Global Diversity level 1

- 3 Study at the lower-division level of a topic in literature, film and/or culture with
- 3 a Global Focus in translation from Spanish. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

## SPAN 194 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN LITERATURE, FILM AND CULTURE Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

#### **Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE**

Study at the lower-division level of a topic in literature, film and/or culture in translation from Spanish. This course is taught in English and will not satisfy the Language Core requirement.

#### SPAN 201 | THIRD SEMESTER SPANISH

#### Units:

#### Core Attributes: Second language competency

Prerequisites: SPAN 102 or SPAN 103 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Completes the introduction of the basic structures of the language, with continuing emphasis on communicative proficiency. At this level students are encouraged to participate in community service-learning and/or cultural activities within the Spanish speaking community.

#### SPAN 202 | FOURTH SEMESTER SPANISH

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Oral communication competency

Prerequisites: SPAN 201 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

A review of the structures of the language, as well as practice in composition and conversation, in preparation for upper-division work. First of two-semester sequence with SPAN 301. Every semester.

#### SPAN 212 | SPANISH FOR HERITAGE SPEAKERS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Oral communication competency

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year or SPAN 201

Intensive Spanish for Heritage speakers who have had little or no formal training in the language. Students will develop writing and oral skills, while increasing their understanding of Hispanic cultures. First of two-semester sequence with SPAN 311

#### **SPAN 292 | TUTORING**

**Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Prerequisites: SPAN 201 or SPAN 202

Supervised participation as a tutor of students enrolled in our Spanish classes. The course entails tutoring one hour per week, completion of homework (readings and responses, maintaining a journal, etc.) as well as mandatory attendance at two group meetings per semester. Course does not satisfy the second language requirement. It counts as elective credit, not toward the major or minor.

## SPAN 293 | LANGUAGE TUTORING OR FIELD EXPERIENCE IN SPANISH

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Supervised participation in the department's Tutoring Program or placement in a community organization in which the student's skills in Spanish are developed.

## SPAN 294 | TOPICS IN LANGUAGE, LITERATURE, OR CULTURE Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE, Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: SPAN 202 or SPAN 212

Study at the lower-division level of a special topic in language, literature, or culture. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal. If taught in English, this course will not fulfill the Core Curriculum language requirement. May be taken for credit each time topic changes. Consult with instructor or the department chair.

#### SPAN 300 | CONVERSATION

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### **Core Attributes: Oral communication competency**

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year or SPAN 202

A course designed for students who wish to enhance their command of spoken Spanish, including building vocabulary and expanding the use of more advanced grammatical structures. This course does not accept students who already have high intermediate or advanced oral proficiency in the language. A brief interview with the instructor is required for admission.

#### SPAN 301 | ADVANCED GRAMMAR AND COMPOSITION

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency

Prerequisites: SPAN 201 or SPAN 212 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Students will develop writing competency in Spanish through a study of representative styles, genres, and forms, as well as review select grammatical structures. Second of two-course sequence with SPAN 202. Every semester.

#### SPAN 302 | CULTURAL HISTORY OF SPAIN

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Global Diversity level 1

Prerequisites: SPAN 202 or SPAN 212

An introduction to the cultural history of Spain from pre-Roman times to the present through a wide variety of historical, visual, and literary texts, among other materials. Every semester.

#### SPAN 303 | INTRODUCTION TO CULTURAL ANALYSIS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Prerequisites: SPAN 202 or SPAN 212 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

An introduction to critical categories and vocabulary of cultural analysis, focusing on works from the Spanish-speaking world. Topics covered may include literature, the visual arts, cartography, language, music, and history, among others. Every semester.

#### SPAN 304 | CULTURAL HISTORY OF LATIN AMERICA

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Global Diversity level 1

Prerequisites: SPAN 202 or SPAN 212 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

An introduction to Latin American civilizations and cultures from Pre-Columbian times to the present. The course is designed to introduce the cultural history of Latin America through a wide variety of readings and materials. Every semester.

## SPAN 305 | SPANISH FOR THE PROFESSIONS AND SOCIAL CHANGE Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: SPAN 202 or SPAN 212

Inquiry-based course in which students study the contexts and languages of different professions based on their own projected career paths and in relation to multiple approaches to social change, which students learn to examine through a critical lens.

#### SPAN 306 | PHONETICS AND PRONUNCIATION

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Oral communication competency

Prerequisites: SPAN 301 or SPAN 311

Introduction to how Spanish sounds are produced and how they vary in different situations. Contrasts between the Spanish and English sound system will be studied in order to help students improve their pronunciation.

#### SPAN 307 | INTRODUCTION TO HISPANIC LINGUISTICS

**Units: 3 Repeatability: No** 

Core Attributes: Oral communication competency

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year or SPAN 301 or SPAN 311

Study of the Spanish language and its structure to allow students to consolidate their competence and familiarize themselves with important aspects of the language.

## SPAN 311 | WRITING AND COMPOSITION FOR HERITAGE SPEAKERS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency

Prerequisites: SPAN 202 or SPAN 212

This course is equivalent to 301 for Heritage speakers, who have had some formal training in the language. Students will develop competency in Spanish through a study of representative styles, genres, and forms, as well as select grammatical structures. Second of two semester sequence with SPAN 212.

#### SPAN 312 | CREATIVE WRITING WORKSHOP

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: SPAN 202 or SPAN 212

A course designed for students who wish to explore different modes of writing creatively in Spanish by experimenting with a variety of narrative and lyric forms of expression, including screenwriting and drama, among others.

## SPAN 315 | L2 TEACHING METHODOLOGIES AND APPLIED LINGUISTICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: SPAN 301 or SPAN 311

An introduction to the history of second language teaching methods, applied linguistics, and the fundamentals of second language teaching. Initial training in the skills needed to be a second language teacher.

#### SPAN 320 | SURVEY OF SPANISH LITERATURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Prerequisites: (SPAN 301 (Can be taken Concurrently) or SPAN 311) and SPAN 302 and SPAN 303

A survey of Spanish literature from its origins in the Middle Ages to the present, including representative works and authors from major periods. Prerequisites: SPAN 301 or SPAN 311 and SPAN 302 and SPAN 303.

#### SPAN 360 | SURVEY OF LATIN AMERICAN LITERATURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Prerequisites: (SPAN 301 or SPAN 311) and SPAN 303 and SPAN 304 (Can be taken Concurrently)

A survey of representative works and authors of Latin American literature from pre-Columbian times to the present. Includes readings in prose, poetry, and drama

#### SPAN 394 | TOPICS IN LANGUAGE, LITERATURE, OR CULTURE

**Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: SPAN 202 or SPAN 212

Study at the third-year level of a special topic in language, literature, or culture. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal. If taught in English, this course will not fulfill the Core Curriculum language requirement. May be taken for credit each time topic changes. Consult with instructor or the department chair.

#### SPAN 410D | LATIN@ LITERATURES AND CULTURES

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: SPAN 301 or SPAN 311 and SPAN 303 and SPAN 304 A study of the literary traditions and cultural production of Spanish-speaking communities in the United States. May focus on a specific topic, time period, genre, or group.

#### SPAN 422 | STUDIES IN MEDIEVAL SPANISH LITERATURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Prerequisites: SPAN 301 or SPAN 311 and SPAN 302 and SPAN 303 Readings from the prose and poetry of the Middle Ages in Spain, from the 10th century to the 15th century.

### SPAN 423 | STUDIES IN SPANISH LITERATURE OF THE GOLDEN AGE

**Units: 3 Repeatability: No** 

**Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: SPAN 301 and SPAN 311 or SPAN 302 or SPAN 303 A study of the masterpieces and authors of Spain's Golden Age (1500-1700). Readings may include poetry, theater, and the novel.

#### SPAN 424 | DON QUIJOTE DE LA MANCHA

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: SPAN 301 or SPAN 311 and (SPAN 302 or SPAN 303) Considered Spain's greatest contribution to world literature, Cervantes' "Don Quijote" is read and analyzed. Includes reading and discussion of appropriate critical commentary.

## SPAN 426 | STUDIES IN 18TH AND 19TH CENTURY PENINSULAR LITERATURE AND CULTURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Prerequisites: SPAN 301 or SPAN 311 and SPAN 302 and SPAN 303 Organized thematically, this course offers intensive readings and discussion of selected literary works and cultural texts from Spain. May cover texts from the Enlightenment through the Generation of 1898.

## SPAN 427 | STUDIES IN 20TH AND 21ST CENTURY PENINSULAR LITERATURE AND CULTURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: SPAN 301 or SPAN 311 and SPAN 302 and SPAN 303 Organized thematically, this courses offers intensive readings and discussion of selected literary works and cultural texts from Spain. May cover texts from the Generation of 1898, the Civil War, the Franco dictatorship, the transition to democracy, or the contemporary period.

#### SPAN 430 | STUDIES IN HISPANIC FILM

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Prerequisites: SPAN 301 or SPAN 303

A study of major Latin American and/or Spanish films in relation to their cultural, historical, and social contexts. Depending on content, this course may count for either the Peninsular or Latin American requirement. Consult with instructor or section director.

#### SPAN 434 | THE "NEW" WORLD

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: (SPAN 301 or SPAN 311) and SPAN 303 and (SPAN 304 or SPAN 302)

A transatlantic study of the historical, cultural, and literary influences involved in the representations of the "New" World during the Colonial Era.

## SPAN 441 | TOPICS IN LITERATURE, FILM AND CULTURE-DOMESTIC FOCUS

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area, Domestic Diversity level 2

Prerequisites: (SPAN 301 or SPAN 311) and SPAN 303 and (SPAN 302 or SPAN 304)

Study of special topics in Spanish and/or Latin American literatures, films and cultures that meets the Literary Inquiry and the level 2 Diversity, Inclusion and Social Justice-Domestic Focus core requirement. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal.

### SPAN 442 | TOPICS IN LITERATURE, FILM AND CULTURE-GLOBAL FOCUS

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Prerequisites: (SPAN 301 or SPAN 311) and SPAN 303 and (SPAN 302 or SPAN 304)

Study of special topics in Spanish and/or Latin American literatures, films and cultures that meets the Diversity, Inclusion and Social Justice- Global Focus Level 2 core requirement.

#### SPAN 448 | LATIN AMERICAN SHORT STORY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

Prerequisites: (SPAN 301 or SPAN 311) and SPAN 303 and SPAN 304 A study of the Latin American short story from the beginning of the genre in the 19th century to the present.

#### SPAN 449 | LATIN AMERICAN NOVEL

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: SPAN 301 or SPAN 311 and SPAN 303 and SPAN 304 A study of the novel in Latin America from the 19th century to the "Boom" and beyond.

#### SPAN 451 | LATIN AMERICAN POETRY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: SPAN 301 or SPAN 311 and SPAN 303 and SPAN 304 A study of the development of Latin American poetry from pre-Columbian times to the present.

#### SPAN 453 | MEXICAN LITERATURE AND CULTURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: SPAN 301 or SPAN 311 and SPAN 303 and SPAN 304 A study of major works of prose, poetry, and drama in Mexico in relation to other significant aspects of Mexican culture.

#### SPAN 458 | JEWISH LATIN AMERICA

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: SPAN 301 or SPAN 311 and (SPAN 303 and SPAN 304) This is a course on Jewish cultural production in the Americas. An interdisciplinary course that examines migration and exile, otherness, memory, and the Holocaust in literature, film, music and the visual arts, in relation to the intersectionality of ethnicity, religion, class, sexuality, gender and nation.

#### **SPAN 493 | FIELD EXPERIENCE**

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

**Core Attributes: Law - Experiential** 

Placement in a community agency where advanced Spanish language skills will be utilized. A maximum of two units may be applied to the major, none to the minor. Anything over two units will count as a general elective.

#### SPAN 494 | TOPICS IN LANGUAGE, LITERATURE, OR CULTURE

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit) Core Attributes: Literature-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: SPAN 301 or SPAN 311 and SPAN 303 and SPAN 302 or **SPAN 304** 

Study of special topics in Spanish and/or Latin American literatures, languages, or cultures. When offered, selected subjects will be announced on the MySanDiego portal.

#### SPAN 495 | SENIOR CAPSTONE PROJECT

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: No

This is an optional culminating experience in which students reflect upon and integrate aspects of their entire undergraduate study. Through a writing project, an oral presentation, and an exit interview, students demonstrate their achievement of the program learning outcomes. The capstone is taken concurrently with one of the last two upper-division courses for the major, to which it is thematically linked. The student must meet with his or her capstone advisor (the professor for the upper-division major course) to determine the parameters for the project and consult with the program director to enroll.

#### **SPAN 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY**

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: SPAN 301 or SPAN 311 and SPAN 303

A program arranged between the advanced student and the instructor to provide intensive study in a particular area of interest. This course is not intended to substitute for regular course offerings. A maximum of three units may be applied to the major, but none to the minor.

### **Latin American Studies**

### PROGRAM DIRECTOR

Kevin Guerrieri, PhD, Languages, Cultures and Literatures

### EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Emily Edmonds-Poli, PhD, Political Science and International Relations

Kevin Guerrieri, PhD, Languages, Cultures and Literatures

Julia Medina, PhD, Languages, Cultures and Literatures

Antonieta Mercado, PhD, Communication Studies

Alejandro Meter, PhD, Languages, Cultures and Literatures

Amanda Petersen, PhD, Languages, Cultures and Literatures

Esteban del Rio, PhD, Communication Studies

Kenneth P. Serbin, PhD, History

David Shirk, PhD, Political Science and International Relations

### AFFILIATED FACULTY

Stephen J. Conroy, PhD, School of Business

Evelyn Díaz Cruz, MFA, Theatre Arts

Denise Dimon, PhD, School of Business

Kimberly Eherenman, PhD, Languages, Cultures and Literatures

Iris Engstrand, PhD, History

Orlando Espín, PhD, Theology and Religious Studies

Michael González, PhD, History

Jerome Hall, PhD, Anthropology

Daniel López-Pérez, PhD, Architecture

Marcelle Maese-Cohen, PhD, English

Michelle Madsen Camacho, PhD, Sociology

Patricia Márquez, PhD, School of Business

Everard Meade, PhD, School of Peace Studies

Kristin Moran, PhD, Communication Studies

Angelo Orona, PhD, Anthropology

Alma Ortega, PhD, Copley Library

Gail Pérez, PhD, English

Alberto López Pulido, PhD, Ethnic Studies

Thomas Ehrlich Reifer, PhD, Sociology

Leonora Simonovis-Brown, PhD, Languages, Cultures and Literatures

Steve Tammelleo, PhD, Philosophy

Randy Willoughby, PhD, Political Science and International Relations

Íñigo Yanguas, PhD, Languages, Cultures and Literatures

Latin American Studies is a dynamic, interdisciplinary minor designed to help students develop a nuanced and sophisticated understanding of the historical, cultural, political, economic and social conditions that have shaped contemporary Latin America. In this minor students are encouraged to articulate important connections between local and world societies in the context of the Latin American experience; this entails the study of the complex historical formation of this region and its cultural and ethnic diversity, from the foundation of Amerindian civilizations, the European conquest and the impact of the African slave trade, to the challenges of the 21st century.

Student learning objectives are organized into the following five integrated areas, which constitute the central themes that appear throughout the curriculum:

#### 1. The Idea of Latin America

Understand different worldviews and epistemologies in the imperial/colonial context of the initial encounter, the subsequent "invention" of America and the emergence of the idea of "Latin" America in the 19th century. Explore the ways in which Latin America has been conceived of as part of the West and simultaneously as peripheral to it. Identify the present physical geographies, administrative-political structures and demographics of the Latin American countries and analyze the ways in which these are defined from internal and external perspectives.

#### 2. Cultural and Ethnic Diversity

Explore the artistic and cultural production of Latin America throughout history, from ancient Amerindian civilizations and the legacy of the African slave trade to the present, with an emphasis on the diversity of perspectives. Compare and contrast different concepts on and theoretical approaches to the cultural and ethnic diversity of Latin America, such as transculturation, hybridization, mestizaje, neo-baroque, among others. Explore the linguistic diversity of Latin America and develop communicative proficiency in one or more Latin American languages.

#### 3. Conquest, Colonialism and Coloniality

Analyze the complexities of conquest, colonialism, neocolonialism and postcolonialism and their legacies. Understand and analyze the construction of racial categories and racism in Latin America both in the context the conquest of indigenous peoples and the subsequent African slave trade and in more recent manifestations. Explore the relationship between coloniality — the colonial matrix of power that goes beyond the historical period of colonialism — and the rhetoric of modernity in the economic, political, civic and personal/subjective realms.

#### 4. Independence, National Consolidation and Democracy Identify and analyze the different political and economic structures or systems that have appeared in Latin America since independence and the socio-historical conditions in which they each emerged. Analyze the manifestation of European Enlightenment ideals in Latin America and contrast them with Amerindian and Afro-American epistemologies and world views. Define and analyze the following dichotomies and concepts in this context: civilization and barbarism, progress and primitivism, development and underdevelopment. Analyze the following concepts in specific junctures of Latin American history, from 19th-century nation building, throughout the 20th century and to the present: revolution and subversion; dictatorship and state violence; war and armed conflict; human rights and memory; justice and reconciliation; (re)democratization.

#### 5. Global Designs and Local Histories

Understand the ways in which the term "Latin" America is a misnomer, both within local histories and global designs and how other terms are used to describe this region, such as Afro-Latin America, among others. Identify and analyze current challenges faced by Latin American countries in regional,

national, hemispherical and transnational contexts. Explore and analyze Latin American experiences as part of the transnational flows of people, culture, technology, media and finance within global capitalism.

### The Latin American Studies Minor

- 1. The Latin American Studies minor requires 18 units.
- 2. Language Requirement: Students must take at least three (3) units of a Latin American language (Spanish, Portuguese, French, or any language indigenous to the region) equivalent to USD courses numbered 101, 102, 201, 202 or 212, or 301 or 311. Other language courses may be used to fulfill the language requirement only with approval of the program director.
- 3. Area Studies Requirement: Students must take fifteen (15) units of approved Latin American Studies courses. A minimum of nine (9) units must be taken at the upper division level.
- Interdisciplinary Requirement: Students must take courses from at least two academic disciplines.
- 5. Study Abroad Requirement: Students must complete three (3) units of study which count toward the minor's total 18 units in a Latin American country with a USD affiliated program. Students unable to participate in a study abroad program may, with approval of the program director, fulfill this requirement by participating in a USD-sponsored service-learning trip to Latin America, or by successfully completing an internship or community-based project focused on a Latin American topic.

Please see the full course descriptions under the appropriate departmental listings. In addition to the curriculum below, there may be additional courses offered — including special topics and courses offered less frequently — in any given semester, which may count toward the minor. Please consult with the program director.

#### Latin American Studies Courses

Please see the full course descriptions under the appropriate departmental listings. In addition to the curriculum below, there may be additional courses offered — including Honors, special topics, and courses offered less frequently — in any given semester, which may count toward the minor. Please consult with the program director.

Code	Title	Units
ANTH 327	South American Indian Cultures	3
ANTH 328	Caribbean Cultures	3
ANTH 334	South American Archaeology	3
COMM 480	Advanced Topics in International Media (when taught as Latin America Media Systems)	3-4
ECON 335	Economic Development of Latin America	3
ECON 339	Latin America Business Environment	3
ETHN 240D	Introduction To Chicano/Latino Studies	3
ETHN 343	Chicano San Diego	3
ETHN 361	Immigration at US-Mexico Border: Ethnicity, Race & Gender (when taught as Latin America through Film)	3
HIST 361	Modern Latin America	3
HIST 362	Topics in Latin America History	3
HIST 363	History of Brazil	3
HIST 383	Chicano/a/x History	3
HIST 384	History of Mexico	3
LANG 194	Special Topics in Language, Literature and Culture (when taught as Social Justice in Latin America)	3
LATS 294	Special Topics in Latin American Studies	1-3

LATS 494	Special Topics in Latin American Studies	1-3
LATS 499	Independent Study	1-3
PHIL 494	Contemporary Philosophical Problems (when taught as Latin American Thought)	3
POLS 357	Politics in Latin America	3
POLS 366	Politics in Mexico	3
POLS 374	U.SLatin American Relations	3
POLS 494	Special Topics in International Relations (when taught as Latin American Politics and Film)	1-4
SPAN 194	Special Topics in Literature, Film and Culture	3
SPAN 294	Topics in Language, Literature, or Culture (when taught as Narratives of the Mexico/US Border)	3
SPAN 304	Cultural History of Latin America	3
SPAN 305	SPANISH FOR THE PROFESSIONS AND SOCIAL CHANGE	3
SPAN 360	Survey of Latin American Literature	3
SPAN 410D	Latin@ Literatures and Cultures	3
SPAN 434	The "New" World	3
SPAN 448	Latin American Short Story	3
SPAN 449	Latin American Novel	3
SPAN 451	Latin American Poetry	3
SPAN 453	Mexican Literature and Culture	3
SPAN 458	Jewish Latin America	3
SPAN 494	Topics in Language, Literature, or Culture (when taught as Afro-Caribbean Literature, Border Narratives, or Travels through Central American Literature and Culture)	3
THRS 321	Afro-Latin Religions	3
THRS 358	Latinoa Catholicism	3

## LATS 294 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN LATIN AMERICAN STUDIES Units: 1-3 Repeatability; Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Analysis of a specific topic within Latin American Studies with a thematic, regional, or historical focus. This course may be repeated for credit with different course content.

## LATS 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN LATIN AMERICAN STUDIES Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Analysis of a specific topic within Latin American Studies with a thematic, regional, or historical focus. This course may be repeated for credit with different course content.

#### LATS 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Arranged with the consent of a faculty advisor and the program director.

### **Liberal Studies**

### **Program Director**

Margaret E. Daley, PhD, Chemistry and Biochemistry

### **Advisory Council**

Tammy Dwyer, PhD, Chemistry and Biochemistry

Kay Etheridge, DMA, Music

Heather Herrera, PhD, School of Leadership and Education Sciences

Helene Mandell, EdD, School of Leadership and Education Sciences

Perla Myers, PhD, Mathematics

Serena Pariser, MA, School of Leadership and Education Sciences

Pauline Berryman Powell, MA, College of Arts and Sciences

Deborah Sundmacher, MA, English

Michael Wagner, PhD, Philosophy

### Affiliated Faculty

Sarah Axford, MS, Chemistry and Biochemistry

Elizabeth Baker-Treloar, MS, Environmental and Ocean Sciences

Danielle Michaelis Castillo, MFA, Art, Architecture + Art History

Terry Glaser, MA, Theatre

Michael Gonzalez, PhD, History

Michele McConnell, MA, School of Leadership and Education Sciences

Keith McDonald, MEd, Biology

Joseph McGowan, PhD, English

David Miller, PhD, History

Perla Myers, PhD, Mathematics

Amanda Ruiz, PhD, Mathematics

Lisa Smith, MA, English

Jennifer Snyder, PhD, Physics

Michael Wagner, PhD, Philosophy

The Liberal Studies major is offered in the College of Arts and Sciences as USD's undergraduate teacher education program for students interested in elementary education. Liberal Studies is a rigorous interdisciplinary major designed to prepare well-educated teachers who understand significant ideas, structures and values in a wide range of the liberal arts and sciences; teachers who can critically analyze and synthesize information from multiple disciplines and who appreciate diverse perspectives. The major's goal is to graduate future teachers with the necessary content knowledge and skills to teach in primary areas of instruction, as well as to foster their intellectual curiosity. This major fosters a holistic experience in the required multiple-subject content areas and provides students with a strong foundational understanding of these subjects. In addition to the content areas that are the focus of the courses in the College, courses on the foundations of education and teaching methods required for the preliminary teaching credential may be taken at the undergraduate level in the School of Leadership and Education Sciences (SOLES).

The Liberal Studies major is ideal for students who are interested in earning either the preliminary Multiple Subject credential for K-6 elementary teaching, or the preliminary Education Specialist Instruction credential for mild-moderate disabilities. This major is designed as a nine-semester program: 8 semesters of coursework plus one additional semester for full-time student teaching. With careful planning, it is possible for students to earn a bachelor's degree and a preliminary teaching credential in four years if they take 18 units in several semesters and/or take courses during the summer/intersession. A Liberal Studies major can graduate without completing a teaching credential, as long as they meet

48

Unite

all Liberal Studies major, core and concentration requirements, as well as all other university graduation requirements.

Students are urged to declare the Liberal Studies major early in the program to ensure efficient progress through the degree. It is important to complete LBST 100 and one of the MATH 115, 130, or 150 courses in the first year, or as soon as possible. In order to complete credential requirements successfully, students should apply to the undergraduate teaching credential program in the second semester of the sophomore year. The required coursework includes courses for the major, including concentration courses, and credential preparation courses. The major courses provide instruction in the content that is tested on the CSET (California Subject Matter Competency) exams. Within the major requirements, there are specialized courses designed for future educators; many of these courses also introduce the content standards for that particular subject and fulfill core curriculum requirements. Only grades of C or higher satisfy core and concentration course requirements in the major. Only grades of B- or higher satisfy credential preparation course requirements. No courses may be taken pass/ fail. LBST 495 is the capstone requirement for the program and should be taken within the last 30 units. For students completing a teaching credential in addition to the Liberal Studies major, the CSET exams must be passed prior to student teaching.

It is important for all Liberal Studies majors to meet regularly with their academic advisor in the College of Arts and Sciences to ensure that all graduation requirements are met in a timely manner. Upon admission to the teaching credential program, students should also meet regularly with their Credential Program advisor in SOLES. Students are encouraged to save key assignments and exams completed for the major, concentration and credential courses for possible inclusion in their capstone project and credential portfolios.

Liberal Studies majors may elect the Combined BA/MEd Teacher Education Program (CTEP) pathway offered jointly with SOLES, in which students earn the Liberal Studies BA, a preliminary Multiple Subject teaching credential, and an MEd in Curriculum and Instruction in as little as five years. For MEd program information and course descriptions, please refer to the section in the Graduate Course Catalog for SOLES, Department of Learning and Teaching. Students who are interested in the CTEP pathway should consult with the Liberal Studies program director prior to their junior year.

### The Liberal Studies Major

The following courses are required for Liberal Studies majors to help prepare for the content tested in the CSET (California Subject Examinations for Teachers) Multiple Subject tests. Some courses also satisfy the general core requirements for the bachelor's degree. Liberal Studies majors must achieve grades of C or higher in all Core, Major, and Concentration courses.

Code	Title	Units
<b>Liberal Studies</b>		
LBST 100	Foundations in Liberal Studies (Fall only)	3
LBST 495	Senior Seminar in Liberal Studies (Spring only, must be taken within last 30 units of coursework)	3
<b>Mathematical Cor</b>	npetency	
MATH 200	Mathematical Concepts for Elementary Teachers I (Fall only)	3
MATH 300	Mathematical Concepts for Elementary Teachers II (Spring only)	3
<b>Natural Sciences</b>		
CHEM/PHYS 105	Physical Sciences for K-8 Teachers (Fall only)	3

BIOL/EOSC 116	Earth and Life Science for Educators (Spring only, fulfills Life Science core for Liberal Studies majors only)	3
Humanities and t	he Fine Arts	
ARTV 350	Art Fundamentals (Fall only)	3
ENGL 215	Children's Literature (Spring only)	3
ENGL 377	Development of the English Language	3
HIST 117	U.S. History to 1870	3
HIST 389	History of California (Fall only)	3
MUSC 200	Comprehensive Musicianship for Educators (Spring only)	3
PHIL 341	Ethics and Education (Fall only)	3
THEA 155	Theatre in Education (Fall only)	3
Education		
Choose one of the	following pairs of teaching credential foundation courses.	6
For Multiple Subje	ect (Elementary Education) interest:	
EDUC 381C	Multicultural and Philosophical Foundations in a Global Society	
EDUC 382	Psychological Foundations of Education in a Diverse Society	
Or for Special Edu	cation interest:	
EDSP 389P	Healthy Environments and Inclusive Education in a Global Society	
EDSP 373P	Collaboration with Families and Professionals	

#### Concentrations in Liberal Studies (12-14 units)

Title

**Total Units** 

Code

The Concentration allows majors to delve more deeply into a subject area of their choice that will benefit them as future educators and is closely related to the elementary school curriculum. Select one concentration.

Code	Title	Units
Art - Visual Arts	Concentration	
Select two of the following courses:		
ARTV 101	Fundamentals of Drawing	
ARTV 103	Design Foundations	
ARTV 105	Introduction to Sculpture	
ARTV 108	Introduction to Video Art	
ARTV 160	Photography	
Select two of the	following courses:	6
ARTV 300	Visual Communications	
ARTV 302	Intermediate Drawing	
ARTV 304	Introduction to Printmaking	
ARTV 308	Video Art: Site and Screen	
ARTV 320	Video Art: The Cinematic	
ARTV 324	Intermediate/Advanced Video Art	
ARTV 328	Fundamentals of Painting	
ARTV 344	Figure Drawing	
ARTV 353	Color Photography	
ARTV 354	Photo Strategies	
ARTV 361	Advanced Photography	
ARTV 362	Portraits in Photography	
ARTV 369	Intermediate / Advanced Sculpture	
ARTV 370	Designing for Social Space	

ARTV 371	Sculpture / Landscape	
ARTV 382	Public Art Studio Seminar	
ARTV 401	Advanced Visual Communications	
ARTV 403	Advanced Drawing/Painting Seminar	
ARTV 420	Digital Audio Composition	
ARTV 429	Intermediate/Advanced Painting	
Total Units:		12
<b>Communication Studies Concentration</b>		
COMM 203	Public Speaking	3
Select one of the fo	llowing:	
COMM 101	Introduction to Human Communication	3-4
or COMM 130	Introduction to Media Studies	
Select two upper di	vision courses:	6
Total units:		12

NOTE: The following clusters help organize student choices when they speak with the academic advisor, but are not intended to be required or exclusive. Liberal Studies majors can satisfy the concentration with any two upper division communication courses.

## Thematic Clusters for Communication Studies Concentration

Concentration			
Code	Title	Units	
Communication &	Youth Development Theme:		
COMM 422	Family Communication		
COMM 445	Gender Communication		
COMM 482	Children and Media		
COMM 483	Teens and Popular Culture		
Communication &	& Relationships Theme:		
COMM 325	Interpersonal Communication		
COMM 326	Nonverbal Communication		
COMM 350	Small Group Communication		
COMM 422	Family Communication		
Culture & Global	Communication Theme:		
COMM 380	International Media		
COMM 432	Film and Cultural Politics		
COMM 475	Intercultural Communication		
COMM 488	Global Team Development		
Strategic Commun	nication Theme:		
COMM 353	Organizational Communication		
COMM 403	Advanced Public Speaking		
COMM 455	Interviewing and Negotiating: Principles and Practices		
COMM 460	Persuasion and Propaganda		
<b>History Concent</b>	ration		
Select one lower of	livision course (other than HIST 117):	3	
HIST 102	The Ancient World		
HIST 103	The Medieval World		
HIST 108	The Atlantic World 1500-1800		
HIST 109	The Pacific World, 1500-1800		
HIST 110	World History Topics		
HIST 115	Topics in War and Peace in Historical Perspective		
HIST 116	War and Peace in the Modern World		
HIST 118	U.S. History, 1877 to the Present		

HIST 120	U.S. History Topics	
HIST 125	Race and Ethnicity in the American Experience	
HIST 126	American Women in History	
HIST 130	East Asia in Transformation	
HIST 135	Topics in the History of Culture and Identity	
HIST 140	Modern Europe	
HIST 145	Topics in Urban History	
HIST 150	Topics in Comparative History	
HIST 155	Topics in History, Literature, and Film	
HIST 160	Topics in History of Science and Technology	
HIST 170	Big History: From Cosmos to Cannibals	
HIST 171	Modern World History	
HIST 180	Great Moments in Time	
Select one upper di	ivision European History course:	3
HIST 312	Roman Civilization	
HIST 321	The Fall of the Roman Empire	
HIST 322	Castles and Crusades: Medieval Europe, 1050-1450	
HIST 324	Christians, Muslims and Jews in Medieval Spain	
HIST 331	The Global Renaissance	
HIST 343	History of Germany Since 1945	
HIST 346	Topics in Medieval and Early Modern Europe	
HIST 347	Topics in Modern Europe	
HIST 348	France in Revolution and War	
HIST 350	History of the British Isles	
HIST 354	History of Spain	
	ivision World History courses:	6
HIST 358	Topics in Modern World History	
HIST 359	Modern Middle East	
HIST 361	Modern Latin America	
HIST 362	Topics in Latin America History	
HIST 363	History of Brazil	
HIST 364	Topics in Asian History	
HIST 365	China: Rise to Global Power	
HIST 366	Japan: Samurai to Subaru	
HIST 367	Women's Lives in East Asia	
HIST 368	The African Historical Experience	
HIST 369	Topics in African History	
HIST 372	United States-East Asia Relations	
HIST 384	History of Mexico	
Life Science Conc	•	
BIOL 240	Bioenergetics and Systems	3
BIOL 240L	Bioenergetics and Systems Laboratory	1
BIOL 242	Genomes and Evolution	3
BIOL 242L	Genomes and Evolution Laboratory	1
Choose one of the	following tracks consisting of two additional courses:	5-6
Organismal Bio		
BIOL 305	Ecology	
BIOL 361	Ecological Communities of San Diego County	
Cellular Biolog		
BIOL 300	Genetics	
	or division course with appropriate prerequisites	
Literature Concer		

ENGL 260	Critical Reading	3	Requirement will	be fulfilled by any Sociology (SOCI) course	3
Choose one course	in Literary Cultures and Theories: (pre-req ENGL 260)	3	*	, ETHN, or SOCI Course:	
ENGL 321 Literature of Race, Gender and Sexuality			One additional course from above selections (Cultural Anthropology, Et		3
ENGL 325	Literary Theory		Studies, or Sociolo		
ENGL 329	Topics in Literary Cultures and Theories				
Choose two upper	*	6	Code	Title	Units
	st be a Literature course.		Music Concentra		
	one creative writing course may be taken.		Theory/Compositi		
	nter or Southeast San Diego Tutoring may count up to 3		MUSC 120	Fundamentals of Music Theory	3
units.	incr of Southeast Sun Diego Tutoring may count up to 3		History/Culture Ro	equirement	
<b>Marine Biology C</b>	oncentration		Select two of the f	following courses:	6
EOSC 121	Life in the Ocean	4	MUSC 101D	American Music	
or EOSC 123	Organisms and Ecosystems		MUSC 102D	Jazz	
EOSC 220	Introduction to Atmospheric and Ocean Sciences (Liberal Studies majors must have completed	4	MUSC 106	We Shall Overcome: Singing for Justice, Freedom and Peace	
	MATH 115, CHEM 105/PHYS 105, and BIOL 116/		MUSC 109	Introduction to Sonic Arts	
	EOSC 116)		MUSC 130	Music in Society	
EOSC 432	Marine Community Ecology	4	MUSC 140	Music in World Cultures	
or EOSC 431	Human Impacts on the Coastal Environment		MUSC 336	Music Therapy	
Mathematics Con	*		MUSC 340	Topics in World Music	
	es are possible for students with advanced standing in		MUSC 420	Digital Audio Composition	
	se consult with the mathematics concentration coordinator		MUSC 424	Art and the Soundscape	
before selecting co	urses.			ies and Ensembles Requirement	
MATH 120	Introduction to Statistics	3	Choose two units	•	2.
MATH 150	Calculus I	3-4	MUSC 105	Class Piano I	
or MATH 130	Survey of Calculus		MUSC 205	Class Piano II	
Select two of the fo	ollowing:	6-7	MUSC 107	Class Voice	
COMP 150	Computer Programming I		MUSC 107 MUSC 108	Class Guitar	
MATH 112	Investigations in Modern Mathematics				1
MATH 151	Calculus II		Choose 1 unit from		1
MATH 160	Logic for Mathematics and Computer Science (Also		MUSC 150	Chamber Music Ensembles	
	satisfies the general core logic requirement)		MUSC 151	USD Strings	
MATH 320	Linear Algebra (MATH 151 is a prerequisite)		MUSC 153	Concert Choir	
			MUSC 154	Opera Workshop	
Code	Title	Units		Jazz Ensemble	
Multicultural Stu	dies Concentration		MUSC 156	Band	
	om each discipline, and one additional course from the		MUSC 157	Gamelan Ensemble	
area of your choice	e. Discuss course options with academic advisor.		MUSC 158	Mariachi Ensemble	
Anthropology Cou	rse:		•	be possible in consultation with the concentration	
Requirement will b	be fulfilled by any Cultural Anthropology course	3	coordinator.	4.4	
ANTH 102	Introduction to Cultural Anthropology		Psychology Conc		
ANTH 320	North American Indian Cultures		PSYC 101	Introductory Psychology	3
ANTH 321D	California and Great Basin Indian Cultures		PSYC 314	Developmental Psychology: Childhood and Adolescence	
ANTH 323D	Southwest Indian Cultures			s from the following: 1	6
ANTH 327	South American Indian Cultures		PSYC 230	Research Methods in Psychology	
ANTH 328	Caribbean Cultures		PSYC 322	Social Psychology	
ANTH 360	Nautical Anthropology of California		PSYC 324D	Cross-Cultural Psychology	
ANTH 362	Piracy in the new World		PSYC 328	Stereotyping, Prejudice and Discrimination	
ANTH 364	Surf Culture And History		PSYC 332	Learning and Behavior	
ANTH 370	Indigenous Religions		PSYC 336	Cognitive Psychology	
ANTH 380	Cultural Diversity		PSYC 342	Biological Psychology	
Ethnic Studies Cou			PSYC 354	Behavior Disorders of Childhood	
Requirement will b	be fulfilled by any Ethnic Studies (ETHN) course	3	PSYC 414	Social-Emotional Development	
Sociology Course:			Spanish Languag	e and Latin@ American Cultures Concentration	

Recommended	for Bi-Lingual Authorization	
SPAN 301	Advanced Grammar and Composition	3
SPAN 304	Cultural History of Latin America	3
or HIST 361	Modern Latin America	
Spanish - Choose	one of the following courses:	3
SPAN 303	Introduction To Cultural Analysis	
SPAN 304	Cultural History of Latin America	
SPAN 306	Phonetics and Pronunciation	
SPAN 315	L2 Teaching Methodologies and Applied Linguistics	
SPAN 360	Survey of Latin American Literature	
Interdisciplinary C	Option - Choose one of the following courses:	3
ETHN 343	Chicano San Diego	
HIST 361	Modern Latin America	
HIST 362	Topics in Latin America History	
HIST 383	Chicano/a/x History	
HIST 384	History of Mexico	
POLS 357	Politics in Latin America	
POLS 374	U.SLatin American Relations	
Theatre Concent	ration	
THEA 205	Technical Theatre with Lab	4
THEA 230	Acting I	3
Choose one of the	following:	3
THEA 220	Fundamentals of Theatrical Design	
THEA 302	Acting II	
Select one addition	nal course from the following: 1	3
THEA 220	Fundamentals of Theatrical Design	
THEA 302	Acting II	
THEA 303	Costume Construction	
THEA 320	Scenic Design	
THEA 330	Costume Design	
THEA 340	Voice and Speech	
THEA 350	Movement for Actors	
THEA 360W	Theatre History	
THEA 365W	Playwriting	
THEA 369	Contemporary Theatre	
THEA 375C	Theatre and Community	
THEA 435	Classical Acting	
THEA 445	Producing and Directing	
THEA 455	Stage Management	
THEA 494	Special Topics in Theatre	

Some upper division courses may have prerequisites

### **Teaching Credential Requirements**

Completing a Teaching Credential is not a requirement to complete the Liberal Studies major. Only grades of B- or higher in Professional Preparation courses satisfy requirements for teaching credentials.

#### Credential Option 1: Preliminary Multiple Subject

The Multiple Subject Teaching Credential authorizes the holder to teach all subjects in a self-contained classroom, such as the classrooms in most K-6 elementary schools. However, a teacher authorized for multiple subject instruction may be assigned to teach in any self-contained classroom (preschool, K–12, or

in classes organized primarily for adults). In addition, the holder of a Multiple Subject Teaching Credential may serve in a core or team teaching setting.

#### **Foundations Block**

Must be taken before beginning the Methods Block; these courses may be taken before admission to the Credential Program.

Code	Title	Units
ENGL 377	Development of the English Language	3
EDUC 381C	Multicultural and Philosophical Foundations in a Global Society (~ 10 practicum hours)	3
EDUC 382	Psychological Foundations of Education in a Diverse Society (~ 8 observation hours)	3

#### **Methods Block**

Must be completed before beginning Student Teaching; candidates must be admitted to the Credential Program.

Code	Title	Units
EDUC 383P	Methods of Teaching Reading and Language Arts in Elementary (50 hour practicum)	3
EDUC 384C	Methods of Teaching English Language and Academic Development in Crosscultural Contexts (20 hours)	3
EDUC 385P	Elementary Curriculum and Methods for Global Classrooms (50 hour practicum)	6
EDSP 389P	Healthy Environments and Inclusive Education in a Global Society	3

#### Student Teaching Block

Courses taken concurrently.

Code	Title	Units
EDUC 490P	Student Teaching for the Multiple Subject Credential (full-day, full-time assignment in K-12 school)	9
EDUC 490S	Student Teaching Seminar for Multiple Subject	3

## Credential Option 2: Preliminary Education Specialist Instruction Credential

The Education Specialist Instruction Credential for mild/moderate disabilities authorizes the holder to serve children, youth, and adults who have special learning or emotional needs. This credential may be used in K-12 resource rooms, special day classes, or alternative settings, and authorizes teachers to instruct individuals in grades K-12 and adults through age 22 with specific learning disabilities or health impairments.

#### **Prerequisite: Foundations Coursework**

These courses may be taken before admission to the Credential Program.

Code	Title	Units
ENGL 377	Development of the English Language	3
EDSP 389P	Healthy Environments and Inclusive Education in a Global Society	3

#### **Foundations Block**

Should try to complete before beginning Methods Block; may be taken before admission to the Credential Program.

Code	Title	Units
EDSP 373P	Collaboration with Families and Professionals	3

	Special Education Coursework		Sophomore Year		
	before beginning Student Teaching; candidates must be		Semester I		
admitted to the Cre	gentiai Program.		THEA 155	Theatre in Education	3
Code EDSP 370P	Title	Units 3	MATH 200	Mathematical Concepts for Elementary	3
EDSP 370P	Assessment Identification to Transition Special Education	3	LANG 102	Teachers I (Fall Only) Second Semester Language	3
EDSP 371P	Positive Behavior and Instruction Management in SPEI	) 3	HIST 117	U.S. History to 1870	3
EDSP 375P	Evidenced Based Inclusive Practices Mild/Moderate	1-3	Social Sciences Electiv	•	3
	5-22		Apply to the SOLES C		3
EDSP 393S	Practicum Seminar for Individual Induction Plan IIP	2	Semester II	Togram	
Methods Block:	General Education / Multiple Subject Content		ENGL 215	Children's Literature	3
Coursework			MATH 300	Mathematical Concepts for Elementary	3
admitted to the Cre	before beginning Student Teaching; candidates must be dential Program		LANG 201	Teachers II (Spring only)	2
	Account Freguenia		LANG 201	Third Semester Language	3
Code	Title	Units	Concentration Electives (2) <sup>1</sup>		3
EDUC 375P	Inclusive Curricula for Learners 5-22	3			3
EDUC 383P	Methods of Teaching Reading and Language Arts in Elementary ([50 hours field work])	3	Junior Year		
EDUC 384C	Methods of Teaching English Language and Academic	3	Semester I PHIL 341	Ethics and Education (Fall only)	2
	Development in Crosscultural Contexts ([20 hours field		ARTV 350	Art Fundamentals (Fall only)	3
	work])		HIST 389	History of California	3
Student Teachi	na Block		EDUC 381C	Multicultural and Philosophical Foundations in a	3
Courses taken cond	-		EDUC 381C	Global Society	
Code	Title	Units	Concentration		3
EDSP 490P	Student Teaching Mild to Moderate Disabilities (Full	6	Semester II		
	day)		ENGL 377	Development of the English Language	3
EDSP 490S	Student Teaching Mild to Moderate Disabilities Semina	ar 1	EDUC 382	Psychological Foundations of Education in a Diverse Society	3
Recommend	ed Program of Study, Liberal Studies		EDSP 389P	Healthy Environments and Inclusive Education	3
Freshman Year		Units		in a Global Society	
		Units	Elective		3
To complete the	e program of study in 4 years, student must take 18		Concentration		3
units per semes summer.	ter in 2-3 semesters or take courses in intersession and		Senior Year		
			Semester I		
Semester I LBST 100	Foundations in Liberal Studies (Fall only)	3	ENGL 304W	Advanced Composition	3
ENGL 121	Composition and Literature	3	EDUC 385P	Elementary Curriculum and Methods for Global	6
CHEM 105	Physical Sciences for K-8 Teachers (Fall only)	3	Concentration	Classrooms	3
or PHYS 105	Physical Sciences for K-8 Teachers	3	Elective		3
PHIL LD elective		3	Start CSET Testing		3
Elective		3			
Semester II			Semester II LBST 400	Senior Seminar in Liberal Studies	3
BIOL 116	Earth and Life Science for Educators	3	EDUC 383P	Methods of Teaching Reading and Language	3
or EOSC 116	Earth and Life Science for Educators		LD 0 C 3031	Arts in Elementary	ی
MATH 115	College Algebra	3	EDUC 384C	Methods of Teaching English Language and	3
LANG 101	1st Semester Language	3		Academic Development in Crosscultural	
MUSC 200	Comprehensive Musicianship for Educators	3		Contexts	
THRS LD elective			THRS UD elective Elective		3
Meet with Undergo	Meet with Undergraduate Credential Program Advisor in SOLES				3
Semester III (Sun	nmer)		Complete CSET Testin	g	
Take CBEST (requ	aired for admission to credential program)		Senior Year 2		

#### Semester I

Full time, full semester student teaching and seminar

EDUC 490P Student Teaching for the Multiple Subject

Credential

EDUC 490S Student Teaching Seminar for Multiple Subject

Credential

#### LBST 100 | FOUNDATIONS IN LIBERAL STUDIES

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course provides an overview of the teaching profession and explores a variety of issues relating to the modern classroom and student success. The course offers a variety of perspectives on education including historical, philosophical, social, legal, and ethical issues in a diverse society in addition to background knowledge in the organizational structure of schools. Topics broadly explore the purposes of schools in society and the knowledge, dispositions, and performances required to be an effective teacher today. Other topics may include academic policies and procedures; parents and community involvement in education; the role of technology in the classroom; study skills and content specifications and standards.

#### LBST 495 | SENIOR SEMINAR IN LIBERAL STUDIES

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency

Prerequisites: LBST 100

The Liberal Studies major culminates in the capstone course in which the student will meaningfully connect the concentration area to course work taken and complete a semester-long research project. This is an opportunity to participate in an in-depth intellectual examination of an area of personal and academic interest. The student will demonstrate the ability 1) to reason and write clearly and analytically; 2) to comprehend writings on key questions and complex problems in the education field from an interdisciplinary perspective; and 3) to reflect upon his/her educational experiences in the concentration area and on his/her role as a future educator. Each student will create a research project that exemplifies an ability to integrate the area of concentration to examine a complex issue, problem, or phenomenon that in some way relates to their role as future teachers. One or more class presentations are typically required in addition to a substantial written work.

### **Mathematics**

#### **CHAIR**

Lynn McGrath, PhD

### **Faculty**

Dwight R. Bean, PhD

Adam Boocher, PhD

Amy Buchmann, PhD

Satyan L. Devadoss, PhD

Jane E. Friedman, PhD

Jennifer Gorsky, PhD

Diane Hoffoss, PhD

Stacy Langton, PhD

Luby Liao, PhD

Perla Myers, PhD

Cameron Parker, PhD

Jack W. Pope, PhD

3

Candice Price, PhD

Lukasz Pruski, PhD

Amanda Ruiz, PhD

Michael Shulman, PhD

Ani Velo, PhD

### **Mathematics Placement**

For students to succeed in mathematics courses, it is important that they have the proper background. Students will be placed into their first math course at USD based on their SAT/ACT score. A student may take our mathematics placement exam in order to be placed into a higher level course than the SAT/ACT score will allow. Students can take the placement exam at most twice during any 12 month period.

An exception to the above is: students who have either 1) scored 3 or higher on an AP calculus exam; 2) transferred a course that satisfies USD's core curriculum mathematical competency requirement; or 3) earned 4 or higher on the HL5 IB exam or 3 or higher on the SL5 IB exam will have fulfilled their core mathematics requirement, and will be placed into future mathematics courses at USD based on those scores.

### The Mathematics Major

The program in mathematics has a threefold objective: to provide courses giving technical mathematical preparation to students in any field of academic endeavor; to provide liberal arts courses which will demonstrate our mathematical heritage from past ages, and point out the impact of mathematical thought and philosophy on our culture in this technological civilization; and to provide courses of advanced mathematical knowledge which will prepare students for graduate work or professional employment in mathematics or related areas.

### The Mathematics Major

### Preparation for the Major

Code	Title	Units
COMP 150	Computer Programming I	3
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
MATH 160	Logic for Mathematics and Computer Science <sup>1</sup>	3
MATH 250	Calculus III	4
PHYS 270 & 270L	Introduction to Mechanics and Mechanics Lab	4
Select one of the fe	ollowing:	3-4
COMP 151	Computer Programming II	
PHYS 271	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism	
& 271L	and Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism Lab	
Total Units		25-26

To avoid taking 18 units in a semester, students must take one or more intersession or summer courses.

#### **Major Requirements**

In order to obtain a major in mathematics, the student must satisfy the core curriculum requirements as set forth in this course catalog and complete the following courses:

Code	Title	Units
MATH 320	Linear Algebra	3
MATH 360	Real Analysis I	3
Select one of the fo	ollowing:	3
MATH 350	Probability	
MATH 361	Real Analysis II	
MATH 380	Geometry	
Select one of the fo	ollowing:	3
MATH 375	Algebraic Systems	
MATH 385	Topology	
numbered above 30	apper-division mathematics electives chosen from courses 00, excluding 305 (Seminar in Teaching Mathematics), respectives) and 498 (Internship)	12
Total Units		24

At least 15 of the upper-division units in the major must be completed at USD.

#### Recommended Program of Study, Mathematics

#### Freshman Year

Semester I		Units
Preceptorial		3-4
COMP 150	Computer Programming I	3
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
MATH 118	Essentials of Trigonometry (if needed)	1
CC		6
Semester II		
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
MATH 160	Logic for Mathematics and Computer Science	3
PHYS 270	Introduction to Mechanics	4
& 270L		
CC		3 or 6
Sophomore Year		
Semester I		
MATH 250	Calculus III	4
COMP 151	Computer Programming II	3-4
or PHYS 271 and	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism	
PHYS 271L	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism Lab	
CC		6-9
Semester II		
MATH 320	Linear Algebra	3
CC		12-15
Junior Year		
Semester I		
Upper-Division MATH		6
CC, Minor, or electives		9-12
Semester II		
Upper-Division MATH		6
CC, Minor, or electives		9-12

#### Senior Year

#### Semester I

Upper-Division MATH	6
CC, Minor, or electives	9-12
Semester II	
Upper-Division MATH	3
CC, Minor, or electives	12-15

### Secondary Education Emphasis

Students interested in obtaining the Single Subject Teaching Credential in mathematics are required to major in mathematics with a secondary education emphasis.

### Preparation for the Major

Code	Title	Units
COMP 150	Computer Programming I	3
MATH 115	College Algebra (or pass the Level 2 placement exam)	3
MATH 120	Introduction to Statistics	3
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
MATH 160	Logic for Mathematics and Computer Science <sup>1</sup>	3
MATH 250	Calculus III	4
PHYS 270	Introduction to Mechanics	4
& 270L	and Mechanics Lab	
Total Units		28

#### **Major Requirements**

For the mathematics major with secondary education emphasis, the student must satisfy the core curriculum requirements and complete the following courses:

Code	Title	Units
MATH 305	Seminar in Teaching Mathematics	2
MATH 320	Linear Algebra	3-4
MATH 325W	History of Mathematics	3
MATH 350	Probability	3
MATH 360	Real Analysis I	3
MATH 375	Algebraic Systems	3
MATH 380	Geometry	3
MATH 405	Advanced Perspective on High School Mathematics	3
Select 6 units of U <sub>I</sub> numbered above 30	oper-Division Mathematics Electives (chosen from courses 00)	s 6
Total Units		29-30

At least 15 of the Upper-Division units in the major must be completed at USD.

To obtain the professional preliminary teaching credential, consult the School of Leadership and Education Sciences for further requirements.

### *Recommended Program of Study* Mathematics, Secondary Education Emphasis

Freshman Year

Semester I		Units
Preceptorial		3
MATH 115	College Algebra	4
or 150	Calculus I	

CC	9
Semester II	
MATH 120 Introduction to Statistics	3
MATH 150 Calculus I	4
or 151 Calculus II	
COMP 150 Computer Programming I	3
CC	6
Sophomore Year	
Semester I	
MATH 151 Calculus II	4
or 250 Calculus III	
MATH 160 Logic for Mathematics and Computer Science	3
MATH 305 Seminar in Teaching Mathematics	2
CC and electives	6-9
Semester II	
MATH 250 Calculus III	4
MATH 320 Linear Algebra	3
PHYS 270 Introduction to Mechanics	3
CC, SOLES, and electives	6-9
Junior Year	
Semester I	
Upper-Division MATH	6
CC, SOLES, and electives	9-12
Semester II	
Upper-Division MATH	6
CC, SOLES, and electives	9-12
Senior Year	
Semester I	
Upper-Division MATH	6
CC, SOLES, and electives	9-12
Semester II	
Upper-Division MATH	
CC, SOLES, Minor, and electives	9-12

### **Applied Emphasis**

The mathematics department also offers a major in mathematics with an applied emphasis.

### *Preparation for the Major*

Code	Title	Units
COMP 150	Computer Programming I	3
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
MATH 160	Logic for Mathematics and Computer Science	3
MATH 250	Calculus III	4
PHYS 270 & 270L	Introduction to Mechanics and Mechanics Lab	4
Total Units		22

#### Major Requirements

9 For the mathematics major with applied emphasis, the student must satisfy the core curriculum requirements and complete the following courses:

Code	Title	Unit
MATH 320	Linear Algebra	3-4
MATH 330	Ordinary Differential Equations	3
MATH 340	Numerical Analysis I	3
MATH 350	Probability	3
1ATH 445	Mathematical Modeling	3
1ATH 495W	Senior Project A	1
1ATH 496W	Senior Project B	2
select two of the t	following: <sup>2</sup>	6
MATH 331	Partial Differential Equations	
MATH 341	Numerical Analysis II	
MATH 351	Mathematical Statistics	
MATH 360	Real Analysis I	
MATH 365	Complex Function Theory	
	per-division elective (chosen from courses numbered above ATH 305, MATH 405, and MATH 498)	3
Total Units		27-2

At least 15 of the upper-division units in the major must be completed at USD.

Substitutions in this list may be granted with the approval of the department chair.

For the applied emphasis, a minor in a natural science, engineering, or economics is also required. Other minors can be substituted but require a proposal from the student explaining the connection between that discipline and mathematics that must be approved in advance by the department chair.

- Students are encouraged to complete MATH 160 before taking MATH 320. In addition, students are strongly advised to complete both MATH 160 and MATH 320 before taking upper division courses numbered above 331. MATH 160 satisfies the core curriculum logic competency requirement. Students majoring in mathematics should take this course instead of PHIL 101 or PHIL 102.
- Students planning to go to graduate school are advised to take MATH 360.

### Recommended Program of Study Mathematics, Applied Emphasis

#### Freshman Year

**COMP 150** 

Semester I		Units
Preceptorial		3
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
MATH 118	Essentials of Trigonometry (if needed)	1
CC		9
Semester II		
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
PHYS 270	Introduction to Mechanics	3
MATH 160	Logic for Mathematics and Computer Science	3
CC		3-6
Sophomore Year		
Semester I		
MATH 250	Calculus III	4

Computer Programming I

3

CC and electives		9
Semester II		
MATH 320	Linear Algebra	3
CC and electives		9-12
Junior Year		
Semester I		
MATH 330	Ordinary Differential Equations	3
MATH 350	Probability	3
CC, Minor, and electiv	res	9-12
Semester II		
Upper-Division MATH		6
CC, Minor, and electives		9-12
Senior Year		
Semester I		
MATH 445	Mathematical Modeling	3
MATH 495W	Senior Project A	1
Upper-Division MATH		3
CC, Minor, and electives		9
Semester II		
MATH 496W	Senior Project B	2
Upper-Division MATH		3
CC, Minor, and electives		9-12

### Recommended Program of Study: Integrated Teacher Preparation Program (ITPP) Pathway

The Integrated Teacher Preparation Program (ITPP) provides paths to 4-year science and math degrees that include a teaching credential and preparation for the California Subject Examination for Teachers (CSET). Students who are interested in middle or secondary education (grades 6-12) in California may earn a degree in mathematics while simultaneously completing requirements for a teaching credential. The degree integrates content knowledge and laboratory practices in the discipline, evidence-based teaching/learning theories, teaching performance expectations, and pre-student teaching clinical practice while satisfying baccalaureate degree requirements and CTC single subject credential program standards. There is some flexibility to meet individual needs. Students are encouraged to consult the ITPP website (http://www.sandiego.edu/itpp) and advisors (itpp@sandiego.edu) to ensure that their needs and interests will be met.

In addition to all courses for the mathematics major, students completing the ITPP pathway must also take the following:

Code	Title	Units
EDUC 332P	Curriculum and Methods of Teaching in Today's Global Secondary Classrooms	3
EDUC 334P	Methods of Teaching Literacy in Secondary Schools in a Global Society	3
EDUC 337P	Foundations in Curriculum and Instruction Theory: Secondary Praxis in Historical Context	3
EDUC 381C	Multicultural and Philosophical Foundations in a Global Society	3
EDUC 382	Psychological Foundations of Education in a Diverse Society	3
EDUC 384C	Methods of Teaching English Language and Academic Development in Crosscultural Contexts	3
EDUC 491P	Student Teaching for the Single Subject Credential	9

EDUC 491S	Student Teaching Seminar for the Single Subject Credential	3
EDSP 389P	Healthy Environments and Inclusive Education in a Global Society	3

The following paradigm is included as a guide only, and should not be interpreted in a rigid sense. UD elective courses may be taken at any time as long as the course prerequisites have been satisfied.

### The Mathematics Minor

Students may obtain a minor in mathematics by completing 18 units of mathematics course work. These units must include:

Code	Title	Units
6 units of upper div	vision work	6
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
MATH 160	Logic for Mathematics and Computer Science	3-4
or MATH 250	Calculus III	
Total Units		18

#### MATH 090 | INTERMEDIATE ALGEBRA

Units: 3

A survey of basic algebraic skills for students with insufficient mathematics preparation. This remedial course counts for "work-load credit" only. That is, its three units are counted as part of the student's load during the semester in which it is taken, and the grade earned in the course is included in the computation of the student's grade point average, but it does not satisfy any core curriculum requirement, or for the major or minor in mathematics, and it does not count toward the 124 units required for graduation.

#### MATH 112 | INVESTIGATIONS IN MODERN MATHEMATICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Math reasng and prob solving

Prerequisites: MATH 090

This core curriculum mathematics course provides a less algebraic alternative to MATH 115 for those students who need to fulfill the mathematical competency requirement, but who are not planning to go on in math. Topics may include: voting theory, graph theory, sequences, population growth, fractals, topology, geometry, and recursion. Note 1: This course does not serve as a prerequisite to MATH 120, MATH 130, MATH 150, or MATH 200.

#### MATH 115 | COLLEGE ALGEBRA

**Units: 3 Repeatability: No** 

Core Attributes: Math reasng and prob solving

Prerequisites: MATH 090

Review of exponents, equations, and inequalities; function notation, composition, and inverses; linear, quadratic, polynomial, exponential, and logarithmic functions and their graphs.

#### MATH 118 | ESSENTIALS OF TRIGONOMETRY

Units: 1

Definitions, solutions of right triangles, graphs, identities, and inverse trigonometric functions.

#### MATH 120 | INTRODUCTION TO STATISTICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Quantitative reasoning comp** 

Prerequisites: MATH 115 or MATH 130 or MATH 150

Probability as a mathematical system, random variables and their distributions, confidence intervals, hypothesis testing, and other topics in statistical inference.

#### MATH 130 | SURVEY OF CALCULUS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Math reasng and prob solving

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year or MATH 115

A terminal mathematics course giving an introduction to the concepts and techniques of elementary differential and integral calculus. Note 1: This course is not equivalent to MATH 150, and does not serve as a prerequisite to MATH 151. Prereq: MATH 115 with a grade of C- or better, or pass Level 2 mathematics placement exam (2MTH or 3MTH).

#### MATH 150 | CALCULUS I

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Math reasng and prob solving

Prerequisites: MATH 115 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year

Fundamental notions of analytic geometry, differential and integral calculus with elementary applications; historical references.

#### MATH 151 | CALCULUS II

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Math reasng and prob solving

Prerequisites: MATH 150

Continuation of Calculus I including integration, infinite series, differential equations, applications, and historical references.

### MATH 160 | LOGIC FOR MATHEMATICS AND COMPUTER SCIENCE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Math reasng and prob solving

Prerequisites: Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year or MATH 115 or MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151 or MATH 250

Propositional calculus; first-order predicate calculus, mathematical proof, mathematical induction, fundamental set theory, relations and functions, and applications to problems in mathematics and computer science.

## MATH 200 | MATHEMATICAL CONCEPTS FOR ELEMENTARY TEACHERS I

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MATH 115 or MATH 130 or MATH 150

Problem solving, sets, numeration systems, a development of the whole number system, geometric figures, and computers. Note: This course does not count toward either the major or minor in mathematics.

#### MATH 222 | DISCRETE MATHEMATICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Math reasng and prob solving

Prerequisites: MATH 151 or (MATH 150 and ENGR 121 or COMP 150)

Our world is inundated with discrete packets of data, from satellite imaging, to cyber security, to biotechnology. A language and framework is needed to understand, quantify, and manipulate this information. This course provides the tools (mathematical proof techniques) and case studies (sets and infinity, numbers and encryption, graphs and structure) to equip us for our data driven world.

#### MATH 250 | CALCULUS III

Units: 4

Prerequisites: MATH 151

Calculus of several variables, partial derivatives, multiple integration, elements of vector calculus, elements of differential equations, applications, and historical references. Prereq: MATH 151 with a grade of C- or better.

#### MATH 294 | SPECIAL TOPICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No Prerequisites: MATH 151

Topics of special interest chosen by the instructor.

## MATH 300 | MATHEMATICAL CONCEPTS FOR ELEMENTARY TEACHERS II

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 200

Measurement concepts, development of the real number system, algebra, geometric mappings, probability, and statistics. Note: This course does not count toward either the major or minor in Mathematics. Prereq: MATH 200 with a grade of C– or better.

### MATH 305 | SEMINAR IN TEACHING MATHEMATICS

Units: 2

Senior seminar for single subject credential students in mathematics. Issues in mathematics education including: Contribution to mathematics by men and women of various ethnic, racial, and cultural groups; equity considerations in mathematics education; variations in how students learn mathematics; diverse methods of communication and assessment in mathematics; and practical aspects of teaching diverse students. Students will be required to do some tutoring in mathematics. This course does not count toward the minor in mathematics or toward the upper division mathematics electives of the mathematics major (even for the secondary education emphasis).

## MATH 310 | APPLIED MATHEMATICS FOR SCIENCE AND ENGINEERING I

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MATH 151

Matrix algebra, ordinary differential equations, and operational techniques. Students may not receive credit for both MATH 310 and MATH 330 (mutually exclusive).

## MATH 311 | APPLIED MATHEMATICS FOR SCIENCE AND ENGINEERING II

**Units: 3-4** 

Prerequisites: MATH 250 and MATH 310

Boundary value problems, partial differential equations, Fourier methods, and introduction to complex analysis. Prereq: MATH 250 and 310. Students may not take MATH 311 concurrently with MATH 331 or after having taken MATH 331.

#### MATH 315 | APPLIED PROBABILITY AND STATISTICS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 250

Introduction to probability; discrete and continuous random variables; conditional and joint distributions and densities; functions of random variables; expectation and estimation; central limit theorem; introduction to statistics; introduction to random sequences and random processes.

#### MATH 320 | LINEAR ALGEBRA

**Units: 3-4** 

Prerequisites: MATH 151

Systems of linear equations, matrix algebra and operations, vector spaces of three or more dimensions, linear independence, inner product spaces, linear transformations and their matrices, determinants, eigenvalues and eigenvectors, and brief introduction to canonical forms. Prereq: MATH 151 with a grade of C- or better. It is recommended that students take MATH 160 before taking MATH 320.

#### MATH 325W | HISTORY OF MATHEMATICS

Units: 3

**Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: MATH 250

Selected topics from the history of mathematics. The course includes a variety of writing assignments. Emphasis is on the history of mathematical ideas, rather than on personalities or social background. Prereq: MATH 250 with a grade of C- or better.

#### MATH 330 | ORDINARY DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 250

Preliminary ideas, differential equations of the first and second order, linear equations with constant coefficients, operational techniques, simultaneous equations, series solutions, and applications. Prereq: MATH 250 with a grade of C- or better.

#### MATH 331 | PARTIAL DIFFERENTIAL EQUATIONS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 330

Preliminary notions, techniques for solving well-known partial differential equations of physics, orthogonal functions, and applications. Prereq: MATH 330 with a grade of C- or better.

#### MATH 340 | NUMERICAL ANALYSIS I

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 151 and COMP 150

Approximate computations and round-off errors, Taylor expansions, numerical solution of equations and systems of equations, numerical integration, numerical solution of differential equations, interpolation, and problem solving on the computer. Prereq: MATH 151 with a grade of C- or better and COMP 150 with a grade of C- or better. Cross-listed as COMP 340.

#### MATH 341 | NUMERICAL ANALYSIS II

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 250 and MATH 320 and MATH 330 (Can be taken Concurrently) and MATH 340

Estimation of eigenvalues and eigenvectors of matrices; numerical solutions of differential equations, existence, and stability theory; and computer lab assignments. Prereq: MATH 250, 320, 330 (may be taken concurrently), and 340, all with a grade of C- or better. Cross-listed as COMP 341.

#### MATH 350 | PROBABILITY

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 250

Probability axioms, conditional probability, discrete and continuous sample spaces, random variables and common distributions, jointly distributed random variables, and central limit theorem.

#### MATH 351 | MATHEMATICAL STATISTICS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 350

Statistical models, estimation, hypothesis testing, optimality, linear models, analysis of discrete data, and nonparametric methods. Prereq: MATH 350 with a grade of C- or better.

#### MATH 355 | COMBINATORICS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 151 and MATH 160

Principles of enumeration, finite difference calculus, generating functions, finite difference equations, principle of Inclusion and Exclusion, introduction to the theory of combinatorial graphs, and applications to computer science. Prereq: MATH 151 with a grade of C- or better and MATH 160 with a grade of C- or better.

#### MATH 360 | REAL ANALYSIS I

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 160 and MATH 250

A study of the foundations of real analysis, including the calculus of functions of one and several variables, infinite processes, convergence theory, and selected topics of advanced undergraduate analysis. Prereq: MATH 160 with a grade of C- or better and MATH 250 with a grade of C- or better.

#### MATH 361 | REAL ANALYSIS II

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 360

A study of the foundations of real analysis, including the calculus of functions of one and several variables, infinite processes, convergence theory, and selected topics of advanced undergraduate analysis. Prereq: MATH 360 with a grade of Corr better

#### MATH 365 | COMPLEX FUNCTION THEORY

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 160 and MATH 250

Analytic function theory; power series, analytic continuation, conformal mapping, and applications. Prereq: MATH 160 with a grade of C- or better and MATH 250 with a grade of C- or better.

#### MATH 370 | THEORY OF NUMBERS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 151 and MATH 160

Divisibility, Euclidean algorithm, fundamental theorem of arithmetic, congruences, Fermat's theorem, Euler's function, Chinese Remainder Theorem, Diophantine equations, primitive roots, quadratic residues, reciprocity law, and continued fractions. Prereq: MATH 160 with a grade of C- or better and MATH 151 with a grade of C- or better.

#### MATH 375 | ALGEBRAIC SYSTEMS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 151 and MATH 160

An introduction to groups, rings, integral domains, division rings, fields, vector spaces, and algebras, and applications of these systems to other branches of mathematics. Prereq: MATH 160 with a grade of C- or better and MATH 151 with a grade of C- or better.

#### MATH 380 | GEOMETRY

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 160 and MATH 250

An introduction to an area of modern geometry. The specific topic will be chosen from the following: non-Euclidean geometry, differential geometry, projective geometry, or metric geometry, and historical references. Prereq: MATH 160 with a grade of C- or better and MATH 250 with a grade of C- or better.

#### MATH 385 | TOPOLOGY

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 160 and MATH 250

Metric spaces, topologies, subspaces, continuity, separation axioms, compactness, and connectedness. Prereq: MATH 160 with a grade of C- or better and MATH 250 with a grade of C- or better.

#### MATH 388 | MATHEMATICAL LOGIC

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 160 and MATH 151

Abstract structure of logical arguments, theory of the propositional and predicate calculus, and selected topics in modern logic. Prereq: MATH 160 with a grade of C- or better and MATH 151 with a grade of C- or better.

## MATH 395 | MATHEMATICAL PROBLEM SOLVING SEMINAR Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: MATH 151

This course is intended for students who enjoy the challenge of mathematical problems. This course differs from other mathematics courses which are focused on the theory and applications of a single branch of mathematics. It emphasizes problem-solving techniques, creative thinking, and exposition of skills in different areas of mathematics such as algebra, calculus, geometry, and number theory. (May be taken twice for credit.).

## MATH 405 | ADVANCED PERSPECTIVE ON HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS

Units: 3

This course is a required course in the Mathematics Single Subject credential program. It provides a capstone experience for future mathematics high school teachers, in which they look at topics in high school mathematics from an advanced viewpoint. Connections between mathematics topics and between basic and more advanced mathematics will be emphasized. This course does not count toward the minor in mathematics or toward the upper division mathematics electives of the mathematics major (even for the secondary education emphasis).

#### MATH 444 | FORUM

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

## Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Oral communication competency

Prerequisites: MATH 355 (Can be taken Concurrently) or MATH 360 (Can be taken Concurrently) or MATH 365 (Can be taken Concurrently) or MATH 370 (Can be taken Concurrently) or MATH 375 (Can be taken Concurrently) or MATH 380 (Can be taken Concurrently) or MATH 385 (Can be taken Concurrently)

The goal of this capstone mathematics course is to improve the ability to communicate mathematics, both written and oral, to a general and technical audience. In the process, students are exposed to a broad range of topics from modern and classical mathematics, and increase their familiarity with the culture of mathematics. This course fulfills the upper division writing and oral communication requirements.

#### MATH 445 | MATHEMATICAL MODELING

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 250 and MATH 320 and MATH 330

The construction and analysis of mathematical models, simplifying assumptions and testing strategies; topics chosen by the instructor in dimensional analysis, discrete and continuous dynamical systems, stochastic models, linear systems, optimization models, statistical methods, and graph theory. Prereq: MATH 250 with a grade of C- or better, MATH 320 with a grade of C- or better and MATH 330 with a grade of C- or better.

#### MATH 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS

Units: 1-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: MATH 250

Topics of special interest chosen by the instructor. May be repeated for credit with the consent of the instructor.

#### MATH 495W | SENIOR PROJECT A

Units: 1 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: MATH 250 and MATH 320

Capstone senior project involving the application of mathematics to the solution of a problem or problems. Meets once per week: prepare a written research proposal for work to be carried out in MATH 496W; ongoing written and oral progress reports and regular consultation with the faculty supervisor.

#### MATH 496W | SENIOR PROJECT B

Units: 2

**Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: MATH 495W

Capstone senior project involving the application of mathematics to the solution of a problem or problems. Meets twice per week: carry out the project defined in MATH 495W; ongoing written and oral progress reports and regular consultation with the faculty supervisor; final written and oral presentation in the presence of other students and faculty. Prereq: MATH 495W with a grade of C— or better.

#### MATH 498 | INTERNSHIP

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Practical experience in the application of mathematics. Students will be involved in projects conducted by businesses, agencies, and institutions. Enrollment is arranged on an individual basis according to the student's interest and background, and the availability of positions. A written report is required. Units may not normally be applied toward the major or minor in mathematics. MATH 498 may be repeated for a total of three units.

#### MATH 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Student reading and research in selected special topics; student presentations. May be repeated for credit once with a different topic.

### **Medieval and Renaissance Studies**

### **Program Directors**

Thomas Barton, PhD, History

Turner Nevitt, PhD, Philosophy

### **Affiliated Faculty**

Ryan Abrecht, PhD, History

Brittany Asaro, PhD, Languages, Cultures and Literatures

Susie Babka, PhD, Theology and Religious Studies

Cynthia Caywood, PhD, English

Paul Evans, MA, Humanities Center

Maura Giles-Watson, PhD, English

Jerome Hall, PhD, Anthropology

David Hay, PhD, English

Juliana Maxim, PhD, Art, Architecture + Art History

Molly McClain, PhD, History

Joseph McGowan, PhD, English

Lance Nelson, PhD, Theology and Religious Studies

Marianne Pfau, PhD, Music

Santiago Rubio-Fernaz, PhD, Languages, Cultures and Literatures

Cecilia Ruiz, PhD, Languages, Cultures and Literatures

Abraham Stoll, PhD, English

Stefan Vander Elst, PhD, English

Michael Wagner, PhD, Philosophy

One of the most foundational periods in the formation of the modern world, the Middle Ages witnessed the development of the Church, fundamental currents in philosophy and theology, the establishment of Europe's first universities, the growth of the continent's major cities, the flourishing of Romanesque and Gothic art and architecture, and complex interactions with the wider world. Emerging out

of the Medieval world, the Renaissance and Early Modern periods were shaped by the invention of the printing press and the growth of lay literacy, the development of Humanism and the furthering of modern scientific and philosophical inquiry, religious and ideological upheaval, the creation of the first modern nation-states, Europeans' encounters with previously unknown civilizations, and the creation of the first truly global economy. The complexity of this long stretch of history, remarkable for its accomplishments but also characterized by violence and intolerance, cannot be adequately accounted for by a single discipline. A minor in Medieval and Renaissance Studies provides students with a solid grounding in the historical context for many of the major cultural and intellectual developments that contributed to the foundations of our modern global society.

# The Medieval & Renaissance Studies Minor

18 units total, comprised of six units of lower-division and 12 units of upper division coursework. A minimum of three academic disciplines must be represented in this total.

Code	Title	Units
<b>Lower Division</b>		
HIST 103	The Medieval World	3
Select 1 course fro	m the following:	3
ARTH 133	Introduction to Art History I	
ARTH 134	Introduction to Art History II	
ARTH 136	The Year 1500: A Global History of Art and Architecture	
ENGL 240	Shakespeare	
HIST 108	The Atlantic World 1500-1800	
HIST 109	The Pacific World, 1500-1800	
PHIL 271	History of Medieval Philosophy	
THRS 116	Introduction to Biblical Studies	
<b>Upper Division</b>		
Select 4 courses from	om the following:	12
ANTH 339	Post Medieval Seafaring and Empire	
ANTH 362	Piracy in the new World	
ENGL 300	British Literature to 1800	
ENGL 330	Dante	
ENGL 331	Medieval Studies	
ENGL 333	Chaucer	
ENGL 335	Renaissance Drama	
ENGL 337	Renaissance Studies	
ENGL 338	Milton	
ENGL 340	Restoration Studies	
ENGL 420	Advanced Studies in Shakespeare	
FREN 320	Survey of French Literature I: Middle Ages to 18th Century	
HIST 321	The Fall of the Roman Empire	
HIST 322	Castles and Crusades: Medieval Europe, 1050-1450	
HIST 323	Medieval Woman	
HIST 324	Christians, Muslims and Jews in Medieval Spain	
HIST 331	The Global Renaissance	
HIST 346	Topics in Medieval and Early Modern Europe	
HIST 357	Topics in Russian and East European History	
HIST 382	The Spanish Southwest	

Total Units		18
SPAN 424	Don Quijote de la Mancha	
SPAN 423	Studies in Spanish Literature of the Golden Age	
SPAN 422	Studies in Medieval Spanish Literature	
PHIL 471	History of Medieval Philosophy	
PHIL 467	Studies in Renaissance Philosophy	
MUSC 331	Music History II: 1600-1830 (Monteverdi-Beethoven)	
MUSC 330	Music History I: Antiquity-1600 (Eurpidies-Monteverdi	)
ITAL 420	Dante and His Times	
ITAL 410	Studies in Medieval and Renaissance Italy	
ITAL 320	Introduction to Italian Literature and Culture I: From the Middle Ages to the 17th Century	è

Relevant 394/494 and topics courses or Honors courses in Anthropology, Art History, English, French, German, History, Italian, Latin, Music, Philosophy, Spanish, or Theology and Religious Studies, to be approved by the program director, may also satisfy the upper-division requirements.

# Music

### **CHAIR**

David Harnish, PhD

### **Faculty**

Christopher Adler, PhD

Emilie Amrein, DMA

Kay Etheridge, DMA

Jeffrey Malecki, DMA

Marianne Richert Pfau, PhD

Ronald Shaheen, PhD

Angela Yeung, PhD

The mission of the Department of Music is to educate and prepare all students with musical interest to excel and succeed in the areas in which they are most gifted. We promote a rigorous, relevant and innovative curriculum grounded in the liberal arts and fine arts traditions, and offer depth and breadth of music experience. We endeavor to instill in our students a critical sense of the role of music and music-making in society, both historically and today. We seek to inspire them with creative possibilities in the performance, scholarship, and composition of music, and to give them the critical self-awareness to continue to develop as musicians, thinkers, and citizens beyond their time at USD. And, we motivate students to keep music in their lives, connect with the world via music, and to develop career paths in music.

Students who complete the major acquire competence in music theory, history, performance (vocal and/or instrumental), composition/digital composition, and often in auxiliary areas such as music education, conducting, or performing arts entrepreneurship. Students may pursue music as a major, double-major, minor, an elective for their core curriculum requirement, or a concentration for the liberal studies degree. Music majors receive a bachelor of arts degree in music with an option for emphasis in performance, music theory, composition, music history and culture, or music education, or they may select the general music degree program. Our ensembles – Bands (Concert and Athletic), Concert Choir, USD Strings, Chamber Music Ensembles, Opera Workshop, Jazz Ensemble, Mariachi Ensemble, Gamelan Ensemble – are open to all students, regardless of their major

and/or minor. The elite ensemble, the Choral Scholars, is a scholarship-funded choir.

The Department of Music sponsors a concert series on campus during each academic year. Open to the public, the concert series features performances by music faculty, student ensembles, student performance majors, and guest artists of national and international stature. The Department of Music also hosts the annual Mariachi Showcase and annual choral, concerto, band, and chamber music festivals. The department has instituted a precollege program for local high school music students to form ensembles at the university under faculty direction or join existing ensembles at no cost.

For more information about the music department go to www.sandiego.edu/music and see our Facebook page, http://www.facebook.com/usdmusic.

## The Music Major

The innovative music curriculum affords a broad basis of study in music within the context of the liberal arts education. The major provides a thorough knowledge of music literature from the Middle Ages to the present, through balanced course offerings in music theory, composition, music history, and solo and ensemble performance. Music majors choose a General Music Major or a Music Major with Emphasis in Performance, Music Theory, Composition, or Music History and Culture, or Music Education (which includes the single-subject teaching credential in music).

### The Music Minor

The Department offers the general minor, which provides basic experiences in music theory, history/culture and performance and a wide range of elective courses, and the comprehensive minor, a more rigorous program with fewer electives

# The Music Major Preparation for the Major

All majors are required to complete the following courses (26 units):

Code	Title	Units
Theory/Composit	ion	
MUSC 120	Fundamentals of Music Theory	3
or MUSC 121	Making Music - Integrating Theory and Practice	
MUSC 205	Class Piano II	1
MUSC 210	Aural Skills I	1
MUSC 211	Aural Skills II	1
MUSC 220	Harmony I	3
MUSC 221	Harmony II	3
History/Culture		
MUSC 130	Music in Society	3
Select one of the fo	ollowing:	3
MUSC 101D	American Music	
MUSC 102D	Jazz	
MUSC 103	Music for the Stage	
MUSC 106	We Shall Overcome: Singing for Justice, Freedom and Peace	
MUSC 109	Introduction to Sonic Arts	
MUSC 140	Music in World Cultures	
Performance		
Four semesters of a	a performance ensemble, to be chosen from the following:	4

	MUSC 151/351	USD Strings
	MUSC 153/353	Concert Choir
	MUSC 154/354	Opera Workshop
	MUSC 155/355	Jazz Ensemble
	MUSC 156/356	Band
	MUSC 157/357	Gamelan Ensemble
	MUSC 158/358	Mariachi Ensemble
(	horal Scholars mu	st take MUSC 152/MUSC 352

#### **Applied Lessons**

Code

Four semesters of individual music lessons (main instrument or voice), to be chosen from the following:

MUSC 160 - MUSC 181/MUSC 360 - MUSC 381	
Total Units	26

#### Major Requirements

The General Music Major is suitable for students who wish to obtain a sophisticated appreciation and understanding of music and gain proficiency in the creation and performance of music without an emphasis in one area.

In order to obtain a General major in music, the student must satisfy the Preparation for the Major requirements as set forth in this course catalog, and enroll in at least 24 units of upper-division elective courses in Music, including the courses below. No more than 8 units of upper-division ensembles (MUSC 350 - MUSC 358) may be applied towards this requirement. Note also that upper-division courses taken in fulfillment of the 24-unit major requirement cannot also be used to fulfill a requirement of the Preparation for the Major.

Units

Code	Title	Ullits
Select two of the fo	llowing:	6
MUSC 330	Music History I: Antiquity-1600 (Eurpidies-Monteverdi)	
MUSC 331	Music History II: 1600-1830 (Monteverdi-Beethoven)	
MUSC 332	Music History III: 1830-Present (Schubert to Philip Glass)	
Select one of the fo	llowing:	3
MUSC 310	Form and Analysis	
MUSC 311	Harmony III: Post-tonal Theory	
MUSC 320	Orchestration and Arranging	
MUSC 322	Rhythm and Time	
MUSC 420	Digital Audio Composition	
MUSC 421	Interactive Digital Music and Arts	
MUSC 484	Special Topics in Music Theory and Composition	
Total Units		9

#### The Music Major with Emphasis

Title

The Music Major with Emphasis is suitable for students who wish to pursue a career or advanced study in the music field. The student selects an emphasis in Performance, Music History and Culture, Composition, or Theory; Music Education is a new Emphasis program with a different listing of major courses and is included below the other emphases programs. Entrance into the Performance Emphasis requires an audition by the end of the first year of study. The Music Education Emphasis should also be declared by the end of the first year. Other emphases can be declared by the beginning of the third year of study.

In order to obtain a major in music with emphasis, the student must satisfy the Preparation for the Major requirements as set forth in this course catalog, enroll in at least 25 units of upper division elective courses in Music, including the

following courses and satisfy the emphasis requirement below. Students following the Music Major with Music Education Emphasis, see further below.

Code	Title	Unit
Select two History	courses from the following:	6
MUSC 330	Music History I: Antiquity-1600 (Eurpidies-Monteverdi)	
MUSC 331	Music History II: 1600-1830 (Monteverdi-Beethoven)	
MUSC 332	Music History III: 1830-Present (Schubert to Philip Glass)	
Select two Theory	courses from the following:	6
MUSC 310	Form and Analysis	
MUSC 311	Harmony III: Post-tonal Theory	
MUSC 320	Orchestration and Arranging	
MUSC 322	Rhythm and Time	
MUSC 421	Interactive Digital Music and Arts	
MUSC 424	Art and the Soundscape	
MUSC 484	Special Topics in Music Theory and Composition	
Select two History/	Culture courses from the following:	6
MUSC 333W	Pro-Seminar In Musicology	
MUSC 334	Musical Iconography: Sound and Image	
MUSC 335	Music and Faith	
MUSC 336	Music Therapy <sup>1</sup>	
MUSC 340	Topics in World Music	
MUSC 440W	Topics in Ethnomusicology	
MUSC 441	Bach, Beethoven, Brahms	
MUSC 444D	The Bebop Era	
MUSC 483	Special Topics in Music History	
Take the following	:	
MUSC 420	Digital Audio Composition	3
MUSC 495	Senior Project	1
Total Units		22

Students in the Music Education Emphasis must take MUSC 336.

### Performance Emphasis

Six units (one 1-unit course per semester) of applied lessons (MUSC 360 - MUSC 381) on the instrument of emphasis, voice or conducting at the upper-division level. Four of these units apply to the Performance Emphasis; the other two units will satisfy a portion of the Applied Lessons requirement in the Preparation for the Major. Students in the Performance Emphasis should begin taking these courses at the upper-division level during the sophomore year.

Juniors perform a Junior Recital, a half-length solo recital, in the spring semester of their junior year as part of their enrollment in applied lessons. Seniors enrolled in MUSC 495 Senior Project perform a full-length Senior Recital in the spring semester of their final year. Entrance into the Performance Emphasis is by audition only.

#### Theory Emphasis

Code	Title	Units
Select one additio	onal upper division course in Music Theory:	3
MUSC 310	Form and Analysis	
MUSC 311	Harmony III: Post-tonal Theory	
MUSC 320	Orchestration and Arranging	
MUSC 322	Rhythm and Time	
MUSC 421	Interactive Digital Music and Arts	

its	Total Units		3
	MUSC 484	Special Topics in Music Theory and Composition	
	MUSC 424	Art and the Soundscape	

### **Composition Emphasis**

Code	Title	Unit
Take all of the fol	lowing:	3
MUSC 411	Composition Studio 1	
MUSC 412	Composition Studio 2	
MUSC 413	Composition Studio 3	
Or substitute in MUSC 495 Sea	ndependent studies for each, prior to enrollment in nior Project	
Total Units		3

### History/Culture Emphasis

Code	Title	Unit
Select one addition	nal upper division seminar in Music History/Culture:	3
MUSC 333W	Pro-Seminar In Musicology	
MUSC 334	Musical Iconography: Sound and Image	
MUSC 335	Music and Faith	
MUSC 336	Music Therapy	
MUSC 340	Topics in World Music	
MUSC 440W	Topics in Ethnomusicology	
MUSC 441	Bach, Beethoven, Brahms	
MUSC 444D	The Bebop Era	
MUSC 483	Special Topics in Music History	
Total Units		3

#### Music Education Emphasis

The Music Education Emphasis is a 9-semester program for students interested in becoming music educators and it includes the California State Teaching Credential. Students should declare this Emphasis within the first year of study. Students complete the Preparation for the Major courses and the courses required for the Major with Emphasis as set forth for other music major programs, and take a collection of additional Music and School of Leadership and Education Sciences courses. The Music Education Emphasis comprises separate tracks for instrumental and vocal students, and includes:

Code	Title	Units
MUSC 200	Comprehensive Musicianship for Educators	3
MUSC 315	Introduction to Conducting	3
Methods (Instrume	ental) or Diction (Vocal) courses	4
MUSC 305	Brass Methods	
& MUSC 306	and Percussion Methods	
& MUSC 307	and Strings Methods	
& MUSC 308	and Woodwind Methods	
OR		

MUSC 316	English Diction for Singers		
& MUSC 317	and Italian and Latin Diction for Singers		
& MUSC 318	and German Diction for Singers		
& MUSC 319	and French Diction for Singers		
Four semesters of a	performance ensemble, to be chosen from the following:	4	
MUSC 150 - MUSC 158/ MUSC 350 - MUSC 358			

Four semesters of individual music lessons (main instrument or voice), to be 4 chosen from the following:

MUSC 160 - MU	USC 181/MUSC 360 - MUSC 381		CC or electives		6-9
MUSC 415	The Art of Teaching Choral Ensembles	3	Junior Year		
MUSC 491	Music Advocacy and Classroom Management	3	Semester I		
<b>Education Cou</b>	rses		Upper Division The	eory/Composition	:
ENGL 377	Development of the English Language	3	Upper Division His		
EDSP 389P	Healthy Environments and Inclusive Education in a Global Society	3	1 Ensemble 1 Individual Lesson		
EDUC 332P	Curriculum and Methods of Teaching in Today's Glo Secondary Classrooms	obal 3	CC or electives	•	6-9
EDUC 334P	Methods of Teaching Literacy in Secondary Schools Global Society	s in a 3	Semester II Upper Division His	tory/Culture	:
EDUC 381C	Multicultural and Philosophical Foundations in a Glo Society	obal 3	MUSC 420 1 Ensemble	Digital Audio Composition	:
EDUC 382	Psychological Foundations of Education in a Diverse	e 3	1 Individual Lesson	ı	
EDUC 384C	Society  Methods of Tasshing English Language and Assden	nic 3	Electives		6-9
EDUC 384C	Methods of Teaching English Language and Academ Development in Crosscultural Contexts	ilic 3	Senior Year		
EDUC 491P	Student Teaching for the Single Subject Credential	9	Semester I		
EDUC 491S	Student Teaching Seminar for the Single Subject	3	**	sic or Independent Study	:
	Credential		1 Ensemble		
Total Units		57	1 Individual Lesson	l	0.1
6			Electives		9-13
	ded Program of Study, Music (except N	Ausic	Semester II		
Education <i>E</i>	Emphasis)		MUSC 495	Senior Project	
Freshman Year	•		1 Ensemble		
Semester I		Units	1 Individual Lesson	l	0.1
MUSC 120	Fundamentals of Music Theory	3	Electives		9-12
or 121	Making Music - Integrating Theory and Practice		Recommended Pro	ogram of Study, Music Education Emphasis	
100-level Histor	y/Culture	3	<b>T</b> 4 <b>T</b> 7		
1 Ensemble		1	First Year		
1 Individual Les	son	1	Semester I		Unit
CC or electives		6-9	MUSC 120	Fundamentals of Music Theory	:
Semester II			100-level History/C		:
MUSC 210	Aural Skills I	1	MUSC 105	Class Piano I	
MUSC 220	Harmony I	3	1 Ensemble		
100-level Histor	y/Culture	3	1 Individual Lesson	l	
1 Ensemble		1	CC or electives		•
1 Individual Les	son	1	Semester II		
CC or electives		6-9	MUSC 130	Music in Society	:
Sophomore Yea	ar		MUSC 210	Aural Skills I	
Semester I			MUSC 220	Harmony I	
MUSC 211	Aural Skills II	1	1 Ensemble		
MUSC 221	Harmony II	3	1 Individual Lesson	1	
300-level Histor	y/Culture	3	CC or electives		6-9
1 Ensemble		1	Second Year		
1 Individual Les	son	1	Semester I		
CC or electives		6-9	MUSC 211	Aural Skills II	
Semester II			MUSC 221	Harmony II	:
MUSC 205	Class Piano II	1	300-level History/C	Culture (MUSC 330, 331, 332)	:
Upper Division	Theory/Composition	3	Education Course (I	EDUC 332P, 334P, 381C, 382, EDSP 389P)	:
300-level Histor	y/Culture	3	1 Ensemble		
1 Ensemble		1	1 Individual Lesson	ı	
1 Individual Les	son	1	CC or electives		

Units

Semester II			EDUC 491S	Student Teaching Seminar f
MUSC 200	Comprehensive Musicianship for Educators	3		Credential
MUSC 205	Class Piano II	1	MUSC 495	Senior Project
300-level History/Cu	alture (MUSC 330, 331, 332)	3		
Upper Division Mus	ic Theory (MUSC 310, 320, 322, 421, 424, 484)	3	The Music	c Minor
Education Course (E 389P)	NGL 377, EDUC 332P, 334P, 381C, 382, EDSP	3	•	ose the Comprehensive Minor for a susic, or a more flexible General M
1 Ensemble		1	of electives.	
1 Individual Lesson		1	The Compres	hansiya Music Minar
CC or electives		3	•	hensive Music Minor
Junior Year			Take 26 units in M	Iusic including the following cours
Semester I			Code	Title
Methods/Diction (M	USC 305-308, 316-319)	1	Theory/Composit	tion
Upper Division Mus	ic Theory (MUSC 310, 320, 322, 421, 424, 484)	3	MUSC 120	Fundamentals of Music Theory
	ENGL 377, EDUC 332P, 334P, 381C, 382, 384C,	6	or MUSC 121	Making Music - Integrating The
EDSP 389P)			MUSC 205	Class Piano II
1 Ensemble		1	MUSC 210	Aural Skills I
1 Individual Lesson		1	MUSC 211	Aural Skills II
CC or electives		6	MUSC 220	Harmony I
Semester II			MUSC 221	Harmony II
MUSC 336	Music Therapy	3	History/Culture	
MUSC 491	Music Advocacy and Classroom Management	3	MUSC 130	Music in Society
	USC 305-308, 316-319)	1	Select one course	from the following:
`	NGL 377, EDUC 332P, 334P, 381C, 382, 384C,	3	MUSC 101D	American Music
EDSP 389P)			MUSC 102D	Jazz
1 Ensemble		1	MUSC 103	Music for the Stage
1 Individual Lesson		1	MUSC 106	We Shall Overcome: Singing fo
CC or electives		6		Peace
Senior Year			MUSC 109	Introduction to Sonic Arts
Semester I			MUSC 140	Music in World Cultures
MUSC 315	Introduction to Conducting	3	Select one course	from the following:
MUSC 420	Digital Audio Composition	3	MUSC 330	Music History I: Antiquity-1600
	USC 305-308, 316-319)	1	MUSC 331	Music History II: 1600-1830 (M
•	NGL 377, EDUC 332P, 334P, 381C, 382, 384C,	3	MUSC 332	Music History III: 1830-Present Glass)
1 Ensemble		1	Performance	
1 Individual Lesson		1	Two semesters of	a performance ensemble, to be cho
CC or electives		6	MUSC 150	Chamber Music Ensembles
Semester II			& MUSC 350	and Chamber Music Ensembles
MUSC 415	The Art of Teaching Choral Ensembles	3	MUSC 151	USD Strings
	USC 305-308, 316-319)	1	& MUSC 351	and USD Strings
`	ory/Culture (MUSC 333W, 334, 340, 440W, 444D,	3	MUSC 153 & MUSC 353	Concert Choir and Concert Choir
483)	(1.2556 555 1, 516, 116 11, 11.12,		MUSC 154	Opera Workshop
Education Course (EEDSP 389P)	NGL 377, EDUC 332P, 334P, 381C, 382, 384C,	3	& MUSC 354	and Opera Workshop
1 Ensemble		1	MUSC 155 & MUSC 355	Jazz Ensemble and Jazz Ensemble
1 Individual Lesson		1	MUSC 156	Band
CC or electives		6	& MUSC 356	and Band
Senior Year 2		-	MUSC 157	Gamelan Ensemble
Semester I			& MUSC 357	and Gamelan Ensemble
EDUC 491P	Student Teaching for the Single Subject	9	MUSC 158	Mariachi Ensemble
	Credential		& MUSC 358	and Mariachi Ensemble
			Choral Scholars m	nust take MUSC 152/MUSC 352

EDUC 491S	Student Teaching Seminar for the Single Subject	3
	Credential	
MUSC 495	Senior Project	1

### usic Minor

choose the Comprehensive Minor for a balanced experience in the s of music, or a more flexible General Minor that is comprised largely

### prehensive Music Minor

s in Music including the following courses:

	Code	Title	Units
1	Theory/Composit	ion	
3	MUSC 120	Fundamentals of Music Theory	3
6	or MUSC 121	Making Music - Integrating Theory and Practice	
	MUSC 205	Class Piano II	1
1	MUSC 210	Aural Skills I	1
1	MUSC 211	Aural Skills II	1
6	MUSC 220	Harmony I	3
	MUSC 221	Harmony II	3
3	History/Culture		
3	MUSC 130	Music in Society	3
1	Select one course f	from the following:	3
3	MUSC 101D	American Music	
	MUSC 102D	Jazz	
1	MUSC 103	Music for the Stage	
1	MUSC 106	We Shall Overcome: Singing for Justice, Freedom and	
6		Peace	
	MUSC 109	Introduction to Sonic Arts	
	MUSC 140	Music in World Cultures	
3	Select one course f		3
3	MUSC 330	Music History I: Antiquity-1600 (Eurpidies-Monteverdi)	
1	MUSC 331	Music History II: 1600-1830 (Monteverdi-Beethoven)	
3	MUSC 332	Music History III: 1830-Present (Schubert to Philip Glass)	
1	Performance		
1	Two semesters of a	a performance ensemble, to be chosen from the following:	2
6	MUSC 150 & MUSC 350	Chamber Music Ensembles and Chamber Music Ensembles	
3	MUSC 151	USD Strings	
1	& MUSC 351	and USD Strings	
3	MUSC 153 & MUSC 353	Concert Choir and Concert Choir	
	MUSC 154	Opera Workshop	
3	& MUSC 354	and Opera Workshop	
	MUSC 155	Jazz Ensemble	
1	& MUSC 355	and Jazz Ensemble	
1 6	MUSC 156 & MUSC 356	Band and Band	
O	MUSC 157	Gamelan Ensemble	
	& MUSC 357	and Gamelan Ensemble	
0	MUSC 158	Mariachi Ensemble	
9	& MUSC 358	and Mariachi Ensemble	

### Three additional units in Music

#### The General Music Minor

Take 26 units in Music including the following courses:

Take 26 units in M	usic including the following courses:	
Code	Title	Uni
Theory/Composit	ion	
MUSC 120	Fundamentals of Music Theory	3
or MUSC 121	Making Music - Integrating Theory and Practice	
History/Culture		
MUSC 130	Music in Society	3
MUSC 140	Music in World Cultures	3
Performance		
Select 2 semesters	of a performance ensemble from the following:	2
MUSC 150	Chamber Music Ensembles	
& MUSC 350	and Chamber Music Ensembles	
MUSC 151	USD Strings	
& MUSC 351	and USD Strings	
MUSC 153 & MUSC 353	Concert Choir and Concert Choir	
MUSC 154	Opera Workshop	
& MUSC 354	and Opera Workshop	
MUSC 155	Jazz Ensemble	
& MUSC 355	and Jazz Ensemble	
MUSC 156	Band	
& MUSC 356	and Band	
MUSC 157	Gamelan Ensemble	
& MUSC 357	and Gamelan Ensemble	
MUSC 158 & MUSC 358	Mariachi Ensemble and Mariachi Ensemble	
	a course in Theory/Composition or History/Culture	3
Theory/Composit		3
MUSC 310	Form and Analysis	
MUSC 311	Harmony III: Post-tonal theory	
MUSC 320	Orchestration and Arranging	
MUSC 322	Rhythm and Time	
MUSC 421	Interactive Digital Music and Arts	
MUSC 424	Art and the Soundscape	
MUSC 484	Special Topics in Music Theory and Composition	
History/Culture	Special representations and composition	
MUSC 333W	Pro-Seminar In Musicology	
MUSC 334	Musical Iconography: Sound and Image	
MUSC 335	Music and Faith	
MUSC 336	Music Therapy	
MUSC 340	Topics in World Music	
MUSC 440W	Topics in Ethnomusicology	
MUSC 441	Bach, Beethoven, Brahms	
MUSC 444D	The Bebop Era	
MUSC 483	Special Topics in Music History	
12 additional units	* *	12

#### MUSC 101D | AMERICAN MUSIC

**Units: 3-4** 

#### Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

This course will explore a variety of musical styles and practices from the late 1800s to the present, including blues, jazz, folk, rock, musical theater, art music, and the many faces of popular music. Historical and cultural aspects will be examined in order to better understand how political events, cultural values, social norms, and racial and gender discrimination influenced each of these musical styles. Topics will include nationalism in post-war years, lyrical sexism in popular music, Tin Pan Alley and the greatest years of American songwriting, the rise of rock 'n roll, folk music as protest, and the golden age of the American musical.

How are all of these styles linked together as forms of American music, and when does music in America become American music. No previous musical training is necessary. This course fulfills a core curriculum requirement under Fine Arts.

#### MUSC 102 | JAZZ

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area, Domestic Diversity level 1, Undergraduate Research

This course examines the nature and history of jazz in America from its roots to the present. In contrast to Western European music, American jazz traces its history primarily through the performances of individual artists; the performers are the creators of jazz. The lives and contributions of legendary musicians such as Louis Armstrong, Duke Ellington, Charles Parker, Miles Davis, John Coltrane and Ornette Coleman will be profiled. The geographical, socio-political and religious context will be considered in order to better understand the development of each musical style.

#### MUSC 102D | JAZZ

Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE**

This course examines the nature and history of jazz in America from its roots to the present. In contrast to Western European music, American jazz traces its history primarily through the performances of individual artists; the performers are the creators of jazz. The lives and contributions of legendary musicians such as Louis Armstrong, Duke Ellington, Charles Parker, Miles Davis, John Coltrane and Ornette Coleman will be profiled. The geographical, socio-political and religious context will be considered in order to better understand the development of each musical style. This course fulfills a core curriculum requirement under Fine Arts.

#### MUSC 103 | MUSIC FOR THE STAGE

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

A survey course that examines the history and masterworks of music-theater, beginning with the birth of opera but concentrating on the role of music-theater in the United States. The course includes discussion of important aesthetic, social, and musical developments that shaped music-theater in the last 500 years, while examining the ever-changing balance in the importance of text, music, and spectacle. Reading, writing, listening, and concert attendance required. This course fulfills the core curriculum requirement for Fine Arts.

#### MUSC 105 | CLASS PIANO I

#### Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Designed for students with no prior keyboard training. Study of notation, keys, scales, chords, and elementary piano repertoire. Class sessions will include ensemble playing, sight reading, melodic harmonization, improvisation and individual coaching on theory, technique and repertoire. Students will be expected to practice five days a week in order to be prepared for each class session. May be repeated for credit up to 2 units.

# MUSC 106 | WE SHALL OVERCOME: SINGING FOR JUSTICE, FREEDOM AND PEACE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area, Global Diversity level 1

This course examines the complex relationship between song and social dissent. We will explore the use of popular, traditional, and art musics by activists and social change-makers, drawing on a range of global group singing traditions. In doing so, we will seek to understand how and why group singing can be effective in mobilizing social movements, and how it might be able to advance causes of social justice in our communities today. This course bridges two subdisciplines of music, ethnomusicology and performance; in addition to seminar-style exploration of history and culture, a significant portion of the course will include group singing, culminating in a end-of-semester song festival led by the members of the course.

#### MUSC 107 | CLASS VOICE

**Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

Voice study in a classroom environment for all levels of singers. Students will be introduced to the elements of classical vocal technique, which they will apply in the performance of classical and musical theater repertoire. Fee required to pay for accompanist. May be repeated for credit up to two units.

#### MUSC 108 | CLASS GUITAR

#### **Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)**

Guitar study in a classroom environment for beginners. Basics of traditional notation, chordal accompaniment, and development of right and left hand techniques. Emphasis on how the guitar is used in a variety of styles including classical, flamenco, blues, and jazz. Students must have their own instrument. May be repeated for credit up to two units.

#### MUSC 109 | INTRODUCTION TO SONIC ARTS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

A survey of the natural, cultural, historical, and artistic experience of sound with an emphasis on the use of sound in artistic and critical engagements with the world. Topics include: acoustic ecology, philosophy of music, musical instrument technology; scientific and mathematical application of sound; radical challenges to musical traditions in the 20th century, including electronic, experimental, and improvised musics; installations and sound sculpture; technologies of sound reproduction; copyright and technological change; sampling; and DJ culture. Cross-listed as ARTH 109. This course fulfills a core curriculum requirement and may be taken to fulfill a major or minor requirement.

#### MUSC 110 | CONCERT PRODUCTION

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

**Core Attributes: Other** 

Concert Production, divided into academic study and instructional, workshop, and practical sections, will introduce the vital elements of live performance production including live sound reinforcement, micing, recording techniques, stage lighting, stage management, and concert management. In addition to lighting and sound skills, students will learn how to properly prepare for a show (including appropriate dress and punctuality), manage the show during the performance, as well as how to strike the performance space after the concert. Students study the concepts and background of concert production, and then apply the skills and experience gained through co-producing official USD shows in support of the Music Department.

#### MUSC 120 | FUNDAMENTALS OF MUSIC THEORY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

Establishes a firm foundation for music theory, including Western music notation, rhythm, scales and transpositions, intervals and inversions, chords, tonal harmony, and their practical application in singing and keyboard playing. This course is a prerequisite for Harmony I (MUSC 220) and Aural Skills I (MUSC 210), fulfills a core curriculum requirement and may be taken to fulfill a major or minor requirement.

# MUSC 121 | MAKING MUSIC - INTEGRATING THEORY AND PRACTICE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Community Service Learning, Artistic Inquiry area

This course engages students in integrating their musical practice with basic theoretical concepts in music, helping them to be efficient in reading musical notation and learning to execute a simple piece of music within a short period of time. Topics include common Western music notation, rhythm and meter, major and minor scales, transpositions, interval and inversions, triadic and dominant 7th chords and their inversions, and common Italian terminology for music. The community-service learning component of the course provides a creative channel for the students to use their gains from the theoretical concepts in actual music making. This course welcomes all students with some musical background. It is a prerequisite for Harmony I (MUSC 220) and Aural and Keyboard Skills I (MUSC 210) for music majors and minors.

#### MUSC 130 | MUSIC IN SOCIETY

Units: 3-4 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area, Undergraduate Research

An introduction to musical terminology, followed by a survey of classical music from the Middle Ages to the present, focusing on the social, political, and religious function of music in its society. Reading, writing, listening, and concert visits required. This course fulfills the core curriculum requirement for Fine Arts.

#### MUSC 140 | MUSIC IN WORLD CULTURES

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This course explores music as an aspect of human culture focusing on selected non-Western music styles from Asia, Africa, and the Americas. It examines broad historical, cultural, and social contexts of music and contributes to cross-cultural understanding. Students study local, regional, national and global values of music; become familiar with traditional, religious, folk, art, and popular musical styles of several countries; and acquire active listening skills and a mastery of music terms. They examine the roles of the media, politics, religion, gender, and popular trends on expressive culture, and explore the interdisciplinary nature of music and the connections between the arts and human values.

#### MUSC 150 | CHAMBER MUSIC ENSEMBLES

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

Study and public performance of chamber music, instrumental or vocal. Onand off-campus performances each semester. Audition and fee required. Must be taken concurrently with individual music lessons on enrolled instrument. May be repeated for credit without limit. This course fulfills one unit of the core curriculum requirement for Fine Arts. Go to www.sandiego.edu/music for more information

#### MUSC 151 | USD STRINGS

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

Study and public performance of strings music. On- and off-campus performances each semester. Audition required. Must be taken concurrently with individual music lessons on enrolled instrument. May be repeated for credit without limit. [This course fulfills a core curriculum requirement.].

186

#### MUSC 152 | CHORAL SCHOLARS

#### Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

A highly selective vocal ensemble devoted to intensive study of choral literature from all historical periods. Students serve as ambassadors for the university; demanding performance schedule. By audition only; minor in music, voice lessons, leadership skills required. May be repeated for credit without limit. Go to www.sandiego.edu/choralscholars for complete information.

#### MUSC 153 | CONCERT CHOIR

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit) Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area, Fine Arts-Pre F17 CORE

A mixed choral ensemble devoted to the study and performance of choral literature from all historical periods. Audition and fee required. May be repeated for credit without limit. Go to www.sandiego.edu/music for more information. This course fulfills one unit of the core curriculum requirement for Fine Arts.

#### MUSC 154 | OPERA WORKSHOP

**Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

Training in preparation of productions of operas and musicals; coaching, directing, staging, and lighting, culminating in full performance. May be repeated for credit without limit. Go to www.sandiego.edu/music for more information. An audition may be required. This course fulfills one unit of the core curriculum requirement for Fine Arts.

#### MUSC 155 | JAZZ ENSEMBLE

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

Study and public performance of jazz music, instrumental or vocal. On- and offcampus performances each semester. No audition or fee required. Individual lessons on enrolled instrument available each semester. May be repeated for credit without limit. Go to www.sandiego.edu/music for more information. This course fulfills one unit of the core curriculum requirement for Fine Arts.

#### MUSC 156 | BAND

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This course involves study and public performance of band (Concert Band and Athletic Band-including Marching and Pep Band) music. There will be onand off-campus performances each semester. Audition required. Must be taken concurrently with individual music lessons on enrolled instrument. This course fulfills one unit of the core curriculum requirement for Fine Arts. May be repeated for credit without limit.

#### MUSC 157 | GAMELAN ENSEMBLE

**Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This hands-on performance course focuses on the technique and performance of gamelan (a bronze percussion orchestra from Bali, Indonesia) as an exploration of Asian communal music-making. The gamelan angklung students will play is a four-toned village ensemble consisting of metal xylophones, gong chimes, cymbals, gongs, and drums. The course introduces students to the gamelan instruments, the techniques of performance, the gamelan's performance practice, and its cultural role within Bali, greater Indonesia, and Southeast Asia. Class activity may include selected readings and video presentations. The course may include dance and culminates in a final concert in which all students participate. Go to www.sandiego.edu/music for more information. This course fulfills one unit of the core curriculum requirement for Fine Arts. May be repeated for credit.

#### MUSC 158 | MARIACHI ENSEMBLE

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This course introduces students to a wide and rich variety of mariachi ensemble repertoire, consisting of traditional and original compositions. Students will be coached in such instruments as violin, trumpet, vihuela, guitarron, guitar and vocals, and will develop musical, technical and ensemble-playing skills. The ensemble frequently collaborates with FAMA - the USD Folkloric Dance and Mariachi Student Association – and with active mariachi ensembles in San Diego. This course fulfills one unit of the core curriculum requirement for Fine Arts. May be repeated for credit.

#### MUSC 160 | PIANO

#### Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Students may enroll in Individual Music Lessons if they are music majors, music minors, or actively enrolled in one of our performance ensembles. Each student has to complete a graded jury at the end of each semester, and may also perform in recitals. Performance Emphasis majors perform a Junior Recital, a half-length solo recital, in the spring semester of their junior year as part of their enrollment in applied lessons, and give a full-length Senior Recital in the spring semester of their final year and should enroll concurrently in Individual Music Lessons and MUSC 495 Senior Project. Individual lessons require a fee of \$600 for lower division lessons and \$650 for upper division lessons. The fee is waived for Music Majors and students eligible under the Music Department's Free Lesson Initiative. The music program provides accompanists for juries and one rehearsal; student must pay for additional times. Vocalists must pay additional accompanist fees as per request of instructor. All Individual Music Lessons require the approval of a full-time music faculty member. 300-level Individual Music Lessons are for performance emphasis music majors and advanced performers only; instructor approval required. Audition into the performance emphasis is required. May be repeated for credit without limit.

MUSC 161 | VOICE

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 162 | STRINGS-VIOLIN

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 163 | VIOLA

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 164 | VIOLONCELLO

**Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

MUSC 165 | STRINGS-DOUBLE BASS

**Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

MUSC 166 | WOODWINDS-FLUTE/PICCOLO

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 167 | WOODWINDS-OBOE/ENGLISH HORN

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 168 | WOODWINDS-CLARINET/BASS CLARINET Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 169 | WOODWINDS-BASSOON/CONTRABASSON

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 170 | WOODWINDS-SAXOPHONE

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 171 | BRASS-HORN

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 172 | BRASS-TRUMPET

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 173 | BRASS-TROMBONE/TUBA

**Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

**MUSC 174 | PERCUSSION** 

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 175 | HARP

**Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

MUSC 176 | EARLY MUSIC PERFORMANCE PRACTICE (WINDS)

**Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

MUSC 177 | EARLY MUSIC PERFORMANCE PRACTICE (STRINGS)

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 178 | GUITAR

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 179 | PIPE ORGAN/HARPSICHORD

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 180 | CONDUCTING

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 181 | IMPROVISATION

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 200 | COMPREHENSIVE MUSICIANSHIP FOR EDUCATORS

Units: 3

Core Attributes: Fine Arts-Pre F17 CORE

The purpose of the course is to provide future teachers with the knowledge, skills, and confidence to successfully teach music in the elementary classroom, for Liberal Studies Majors. The major components are music literacy through basic musical notation reading and composition, music performance skills in singing, conducting, playing keyboards, handbells, autoharps, and pedagogical considerations for teaching music to children. Classroom observations or a teaching practicum is required. No previous musical experience necessary.

MUSC 205 | CLASS PIANO II

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: MUSC 105 or MUSC 120

Designed for students with elementary piano reading skills. Sight reading, harmonization, transposition, improvisation, and piano technique and repertoire. Students are challenged to perform with good tone quality, rhythmic accuracy, melodic phrasing, dynamic contrasts, nuance, and a sense of imagination.

MUSC 210 | AURAL SKILLS I

Units: 1 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MUSC 120 or MUSC 121 and MUSC 220 (Can be taken

Concurrently)

Corequisites: MUSC 220

Practical application of Harmony I; must be taken concurrently with MUSC 220.

MUSC 211 | AURAL SKILLS II

Units: 1 Repeatability: No Prerequisites: MUSC 210

Corequisites: MUSC 221

Practical application of Harmony II; must be taken concurrently with MUSC 221.

MUSC 220 | HARMONY I

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MUSC 120 or MUSC 121

Corequisites: MUSC 210

Elementary harmony and composition; study of figured bass, species counterpoint, cadences, modulations, basic harmonic progressions, voice-leading principles; and introduction to harmonic, linear, and formal analysis.

**MUSC 221 | HARMONY II** 

**Units: 3 Repeatability: No** Prerequisites: MUSC 220 Corequisites: MUSC 211

Continuation of Harmony I; study of chromatic harmony, advanced harmonic, linear, and formal analysis, composition in small forms, and introduction to 20th-century techniques.

MUSC 294 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN MUSIC

**Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)** 

Selected topics in music at an introductory level.

MUSC 300 | CAREER DESIGN IN MUSIC

Ilmiter 2

This course is designed to introduce the music industry and explore career options in music. Students study the history and current developments in the industry, gain professional insights and learn practical and conceptual skills through reading and writing assignments, group and individual projects and interaction with visiting arts professionals, who will discuss their own different career paths in music. we will discuss a range of tools and ideas in music and explore social media, industry standards, music work in non-profit and for-profit institutions, tour/event planning and community outreach.

#### MUSC 305 | BRASS METHODS

Units: 1

The primary goal of this one-unit course is to learn to be able to teach the instruments – particularly trombone/euphonium, tuba, horn and trumpet – at the primary and secondary levels through researching, studying, and playing. Students will learn the repertories and playing techniques of brass instruments. There are no prerequisites; students wishing to learn both how to play a new instrument and the pedagogy behind the instrument families will benefit. This course is open to all students and required for students following the forthcoming Music Education emphasis.

#### MUSC 306 | PERCUSSION METHODS

Units: 1

The primary goal of this one-unit course is to learn to be able to teach a variety of percussion instruments – particularly snare, timpani, and mallets – at the primary and secondary levels through researching, studying, and playing. Students will learn the repertories and playing techniques of percussion instruments. There are no prerequisites; students wishing to learn both how to play a new instrument and the pedagogy behind the instrument families will benefit. This course is open to all students and required for students following the forthcoming Music Education emphasis.

#### MUSC 307 | STRINGS METHODS

Units: 1

The primary goal of this one-unit course is to be able to teach the string instruments – particularly guitar, violin, cello and bass – at the primary and secondary levels through researching, studying, and playing. Students will learn the repertories and playing techniques of a variety of stringed instruments. There are no prerequisites; students wishing to learn both how to play a new instrument and the pedagogy behind the instrument families will benefit. This course is open to all students and required for students following the forthcoming Music Education emphasis.

#### MUSC 308 | WOODWIND METHODS

#### Units: 1

The primary goal of this one-unit course is to be able to learn to teach the woodwind instruments – particularly clarinet, saxophone, flute, oboe and bassoon – at the primary and secondary levels through researching, studying, and playing. Students will learn the repertories and playing techniques of woodwind instruments. There are no prerequisites; students wishing to learn both how to play a new instrument and the pedagogy behind the instrument families will benefit. This course is open to all students and required for students following the forthcoming Music Education emphasis.

#### MUSC 310 | FORM AND ANALYSIS

**Units: 3 Repeatability: No** 

Core Attributes: Oral communication competency

Prerequisites: MUSC 221

Study of musical form in instrumental music of the Classical and early Romantic era, methods of musical analysis, and the application of analysis to performance and interpretation, including Topic Theory. Written and oral presentation of musical analysis and program notes, including effective oral delivery.

#### MUSC 311 | HARMONY III: POST-TONAL THEORY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MUSC 221

A survey of theory suitable for the analysis of 20th and 21st century post-tonal music in the Western concert tradition, and with application to creative composition as well as the analysis of music beyond of the post-tonal tradition. The course will also include historical contextualization and opportunities for inclass performance of post-tonal repertoire and the composition of original works in a post-tonal idiom.

### MUSC 315 | INTRODUCTION TO CONDUCTING

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MUSC 220 and MUSC 210

Good conductors combine technique, a repertoire of interpretative gestures, verbal skills...and a bit of a charisma to lead an ensemble musically. In this course, we will cultivate this special skill set with gestural practice, score study exercises and conducting laboratories. We will develop a technique to articulate an interpretive vision for a piece of music both berbally and gesturally, to set and vary tempo, as well as control and mix the sound produced b each musician in the ensemble using concise and communicative conducting gestures. Pre-requisites: MUSC 220 and MUSC 210 or Instructor's Permission.

#### MUSC 316 | ENGLISH DICTION FOR SINGERS

Units: 1 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MUSC 161 (Can be taken Concurrently) or MUSC 361 (Can be taken Concurrently)

This course presents the phonetic sounds of sung English. Students will learn the basics of singer's diction and the International Phonetic Alphabet, and demonstrate their knowledge through written examination, speaking, and singing.

# MUSC 317 | ITALIAN AND LATIN DICTION FOR SINGERS Units: 1 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MUSC 161 (Can be taken Concurrently) or MUSC 361 (Can be taken Concurrently)

This course presents the phonetic sounds of sung Italian and Latin. Students will learn the basics of singer's diction and the International Phonetic Alphabet, and demonstrate their knowledge through written examination, speaking, and singing.

#### MUSC 318 | GERMAN DICTION FOR SINGERS

Units: 1 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MUSC 161 (Can be taken Concurrently) or MUSC 361 (Can be taken Concurrently)

This course presents the phonetic sounds of sung German. Students will learn the basics of singer's diction and the International Phonetic Alphabet, and demonstrate their knowledge through written examination, speaking, and singing.

#### MUSC 319 | FRENCH DICTION FOR SINGERS

Units: 1 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MUSC 161 (Can be taken Concurrently) or MUSC 361 (Can be taken Concurrently)

This course presents the phonetic sounds of sung French. Students will learn the basics of singer's diction and the International Phonetic Alphabet, and demonstrate their knowledge through written examination, speaking, and singing.

#### MUSC 320 | ORCHESTRATION AND ARRANGING

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MUSC 221

Orchestration and arranging in the chamber and orchestral idioms, employing traditional and modern techniques for all instrument families in the orchestra. Preparation of score and parts to a professional level using notation software. Opportunities for in-class performance of arrangements or original compositions.

#### MUSC 322 | RHYTHM AND TIME

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MUSC 120

A survey of the theory and practice of rhythm, and the organization of musical events in time, with studies of Western classical music, modern innovations, and selected non-Western traditions. The course includes regular workshops on advanced rhythmic skills suitable for all voice types and instruments.

#### MUSC 330 | MUSIC HISTORY I: ANTIQUITY-1600 (EURPIDIES-MONTEVERDI)

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MUSC 130

A historical survey of music through the Renaissance, presented in a cultural context. We will study composers of Western music and learn how to distinguish their works according to changing style characteristics, shifting esthetic and philosophical perspectives, and changing historical circumstances. Historical study, informed listening and criticism, writing based on library research, analytical writing, live concert visits .

# MUSC 331 | MUSIC HISTORY II: 1600-1830 (MONTEVERDIBEETHOVEN)

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MUSC 130

A historical survey of music from the Baroque through the Viennese Classical Era, presented in a cultural context. Students will study composers of Western music and learn how to distinguish their works according to changing style characteristics, shifting esthetic and philosophical perspectives, and changing historical circumstances. Historical study, informed listening and criticism, writing based on library research, analytical writing, live concert visits.

# MUSC 332 | MUSIC HISTORY III: 1830-PRESENT (SCHUBERT TO PHILIP GLASS)

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MUSC 130

A historical survey of music from the Romantic Era through the present, offered in a cultural context. Students will study composers of Western music and learn how to distinguish their works according to changing style characteristics, shifting esthetic and philosophical perspectives, and changing historical circumstances. Historical study, informed listening and criticism, writing based on library research, analytical writing, live concert visits.

#### MUSC 333 | PRO-SEMINAR IN MUSICOLOGY

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Artistic Inquiry area

Changing topics, e.g. Musical Manuscripts; Bach's Cantatas; Early Music Performance Practice; Choral Music Literature; Music and Faith. May be repeated for credit when topics change.

#### MUSC 333W | PRO-SEMINAR IN MUSICOLOGY

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: MUSC 330 or MUSC 331 or MUSC 332

Changing topics, e.g. Musical Manuscripts; Bach's Cantatas; Early Music Performance Practice; Choral Music Literature; Music and Faith. May be repeated for credit when topics change.

# MUSC 334 | MUSICAL ICONOGRAPHY: SOUND AND IMAGE Units: 3

Musical subject matter has been depicted in visual art throughout the ages, in paintings, in sculpture, in book illuminations. This includes musical notation, musical instruments, composer portraits, images of public and domestic performances, and depictions of ritual actions with music or of spiritual life (weddings, funerals, church services, music of the spheres, the angelic consort, etc.). In this course, we will explore the nature of the music that is the subject of the artwork and will discover the appropriate musical sounds implied in the visual art. We will match each image with the historically and stylistically appropriate music, and then explore the hidden sound behind the canvas. Examples will be taken from all historical periods, from Classical Antiquity through Modernity in Art and Music.

#### MUSC 335 | MUSIC AND FAITH

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Artistic Inquiry area

An integrative advanced writing course on music engendered by faith. Liturgical and extra-liturgical sacred compositions from the Middle Ages through the Present are examined from interdisciplinary perspective. Sacred music by Palestrina, Josquin, Bach, Mozart, Beethoven, Brahms, Berlioz, Faure, Schoenberg, Stravinsky, Part.

#### MUSC 336 | MUSIC THERAPY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Advanced Integration, Artistic Inquiry area

This course offers an overview of Music Therapy in Theory and Practice. It traces the historical connections between music and healing, and introduces the modern field of music therapy as practiced in the United States and in Europe. Organized in three parts, the course surveys the various forms that music therapy takes today, defines the diverse clinical populations served by music therapists, and explores professional issues such as the education and training of music therapists, as well as employment options.

#### MUSC 340 | TOPICS IN WORLD MUSIC

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This course explores the relationships between music and culture in a global context, surveying the musical application of topics such as cultural identity, nationalism, politics, religion, aesthetics, border crossings, gender, race, economics, copyright law, cultural appropriation, and technology. Case studies from around the world are examined in depth through readings, listenings, and live performances.

# MUSC 341 | RELIGION AND THE PERFORMING ARTS IN BALI Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Advanced Integration, Artistic Inquiry area, Global Diversity level 1, International

This course will integrate the perspectives of religious studies, music, and ethnomusicology in exploring the faith and practices of Balinese Hindus and examining the complex integration of music, dance, drama, and other arts in their vibrant ritual life. Emphasis will be placed on indigenous, colonial, and neocolonial expressions of cultural, social, and economic power and privilege on the island. Offered as a study abroad course in Bali, Indonesia, in tandem with THRS 326.

#### MUSC 350 | CHAMBER MUSIC ENSEMBLES

#### Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

Study and public performance of chamber music, instrumental or vocal. Onand off-campus performances each semester. Audition and fee required. Must be taken concurrently with individual music lessons on enrolled instrument. May be repeated for credit without limit. This course fulfills one unit of the core curriculum requirement for Artistic Inquiry. Ensembles may be taken for upperdivision credit by juniors and seniors. Go to www.sandiego.edu/music for more information.

#### MUSC 351 | USD STRINGS

#### Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

Study and public performance of strings music. On- and off-campus performances each semester. Audition required. Must be taken concurrently with individual music lessons on enrolled instrument. May be repeated for credit without limit. This course fulfills one unit of the core curriculum requirement for Artistic Inquiry. Ensembles may be taken for upper-division credit by juniors and seniors.

#### MUSC 352 | CHORAL SCHOLARS

#### Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

A highly selective vocal ensemble devoted to intensive study of choral literature from all historical periods. Students serve as ambassadors for the university; demanding performance schedule. By audition only; minor in music, voice lessons, leadership skills required. May be repeated for credit without limit. Ensembles may be taken for upper-division credit by juniors and seniors. Go to www.sandiego.edu/choralscholars for complete information.

#### MUSC 353 | CONCERT CHOIR

#### Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

A mixed choral ensemble devoted to the study and performance of choral literature from all historical periods. Audition and fee required. May be repeated for credit without limit. This course fulfills one unit of the core curriculum requirement for Artistic Inquiry. Ensembles may be taken for upper-division credit by juniors and seniors. Go to www.sandiego.edu/music for more information.

#### MUSC 354 | OPERA WORKSHOP

#### Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

Training in preparation of productions of operas and musicals; coaching, directing, staging, and lighting, culminating in full performance. May be repeated for credit without limit. Go to www.sandiego.edu/music for more information. An audition may be required. This course fulfills one unit of the core curriculum requirement for Artistic Inquiry. Ensembles may be taken for upper-division credit by juniors and seniors.

#### MUSC 355 | JAZZ ENSEMBLE

#### Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

Study and public performance of jazz music, instrumental or vocal. On- and off-campus performances each semester. No audition or fee required. Individual lessons on enrolled instrument available each semester. May be repeated for credit without limit. This course fulfills one unit of the core curriculum requirement for Artistic Inquiry. Ensembles may be taken for upper-division credit by juniors and seniors. Go to www.sandiego.edu/music for more information.

#### MUSC 356 | BAND

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This course involves study and public performance of band (Concert Band and Athletic Band-including Marching and Pep Band) music. There will be on- and off-campus performances each semester. Audition required. Must be taken concurrently with individual music lessons on enrolled instrument. This course fulfills one unit of the core curriculum requirement for Artistic Inquiry. Ensembles may be taken for upper-division credit by juniors and seniors. May be repeated for credit without limit.

#### MUSC 357 | GAMELAN ENSEMBLE

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This hands-on performance course focuses on the technique and performance of gamelan (a bronze percussion orchestra from Bali, Indonesia) as an exploration of Asian communal music-making. The gamelan angklung students will play is a four-toned village ensemble consisting of metal xylophones, gong chimes, cymbals, gongs, and drums. The course introduces students to the gamelan instruments, the techniques of performance, the gamelan's performance practice, and its cultural role within Bali, greater Indonesia, and Southeast Asia. Class activity may include selected readings and video presentations. The course may include dance and culminates in a final concert in which all students participate. This course fulfills one unit of the core curriculum requirement for Artistic Inquiry. Ensembles may be taken for upper-division credit by juniors and seniors. May be repeated for credit. Go to www.sandiego.edu/music for more information.

#### MUSC 358 | MARIACHI ENSEMBLE

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This course introduces students to a wide and rich variety of mariachi ensemble repertoire, consisting of traditional and original compositions. Students will be coached in such instruments as violin, trumpet, vihuela, guitarron, guitar and vocals, and will develop musical, technical and ensemble-playing skills. The ensemble frequently collaborates with FAMA – the USD Folkloric Dance and Mariachi Student Association – and with active mariachi ensembles in San Diego. This course fulfills one unit of the core curriculum requirement for Artistic Inquiry. Ensembles may be taken for upper-division credit by juniors and seniors. May be repeated for credit.

#### MUSC 360 | PIANO

#### Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Students may enroll in Individual Music Lessons if they are music majors, music minors, or actively enrolled in one of our performance ensembles. Each student has to complete a graded jury at the end of each semester, and may also perform in recitals. Performance Emphasis majors perform a Junior Recital, a half-length solo recital, in the spring semester of their junior year as part of their enrollment in applied lessons, and give a full-length Senior Recital in the spring semester of their final year and should enroll concurrently in Individual Music Lessons and MUSC 495 Senior Project. Individual lessons require a fee of \$600 for lower division lessons and \$650 for upper division lessons. The fee is waived for Music Majors and students eligible under the Music Department's Free Lesson Initiative. The music program provides accompanists for juries and one rehearsal; student must pay for additional times. Vocalists must pay additional accompanist fees as per request of instructor. All Individual Music Lessons require the approval of a full-time music faculty member. 300-level Individual Music Lessons are for performance emphasis music majors and advanced performers only; instructor approval required. Audition into the performance emphasis is required. May be repeated for credit without limit.

MUSC 361 | VOICE

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 362 | STRING-VIOLIN

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 363 | STRINGS-VIOLA

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 364 | STRINGS-VIOLONCELLO

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 365 | STRINGS-DOUBLE BASS

**Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

MUSC 366 | WOODWINDS-FLUTE/PICCOLO

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 367 | WOODWINDS-OBOE/ENGLISH HORN Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 368 | WOODWINDS-CLARINET/BASS CLARINET

**Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

 ${\bf MUSC~369~|~WOODWINDS\text{-}BASSOON/CONTRABASSOON}$ 

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 370 | WOODWINDS-SAXONPHONE

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 371 | BRASS-HORN

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 372 | BRASS-TRUMPET

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 373 | BRASS-TROMBONE/TUBA

**Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

MUSC 374 | PERCUSSION

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 375 | HARP

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 376 | EARLY MUSIC PERFORMANCE PRACTICE (WINDS)

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 377 | EARLY MUSIC PERFORMANCE PRACTICE (STRINGS)

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 378 | GUITAR

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 379 | PIPE ORGAN/HARPSICHORD

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 380 | CONDUCTING

**Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

MUSC 381 | IMPROVISATION

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

MUSC 411 | COMPOSITION STUDIO 1

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: MUSC 210 and MUSC 220

Individual free composition. Weekly meetings of Studio for presentation and critique of work-in-progress, collaborative performances of drafts, and planning and preparation for annual Student Composers Concert. Study of manuscript and computer notation, professional score and part preparation, selected topics in contemporary music and composition. Offered every Fall. May be repeated for credit. Enrollment required in junior year for composition emphasis majors.

#### MUSC 412 | COMPOSITION STUDIO 2

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: MUSC 211 and MUSC 221

Individual free composition, continues MUSC 411. Collaborate in production of Student Composers Concert. Presentation of Senior Project proposal. Offered every Spring. May be repeated for credit. Enrollment required in junior year for composition emphasis majors.

#### MUSC 413 | COMPOSITION STUDIO 3

Units: 1

Prerequisites: MUSC 310 and MUSC 412

Individual free composition, continues MUSC 412. Composition work centers on Senior Project. Offered every Fall.

# MUSC 415 | THE ART OF TEACHING CHORAL ENSEMBLES Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MUSC 152 (Can be taken Concurrently) or MUSC 153 (Can be taken Concurrently) or MUSC 352 (Can be taken Concurrently) or MUSC 353 (Can be taken Concurrently)

This course is designed to help pre-professional music educators gain tools for teaching secondary choral music in the public schools. Topics to be explored will include choral literature appropriate for a variety of levels and learning styles, concert programming, group vocal technique, methodology involving sight-reading and strengthening musicianship, rehearsal techniques, and issues pertaining to the development of a choral ensemble.

#### MUSC 420 | DIGITAL AUDIO COMPOSITION

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MUSC 109 or ARTH 109

Analysis of historical and contemporary experimental music and sound provides the foundation for structured and creative composition using digitized sound. Includes an introduction to sampling, recording techniques, digital audio editing, effects processing, and mixing using Digital Performer and related software. Workshop format includes critique of work-in-progress and opportunities for public performance. Cross-listed as ARTV 420.

# MUSC 421 | INTERACTIVE DIGITAL MUSIC AND ARTS Units: 3

Prerequisites: MUSC 420 or ARTV 420

A workshop on the creation of interactive digital works of sound art or music using state-of-the-art hardware and software, focusing on Max/MSP/Jitter. Includes the study of theoretical, aesthetic, philosophical and historical background in computer-human interaction and the arts, basic tenets of programming, and practical exercises in programming interactive computer multimedia art. Cross-listed as ARTV 421.

#### MUSC 424 | ART AND THE SOUNDSCAPE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Advanced Integration** 

Prerequisites: MUSC 109 or ARTH 109

Artistic and scholarly investigation into the soundscape — the totality of the sonic environment invested with significance by human imagination. Creative work in media of the students choice, including new and cross-disciplinary media such as sound art, installation art, electronic music, phonography, instrument construction and the internet. Critical writing about creative work and its social and historical situation. Cross listed as ARTV 424.

#### MUSC 440W | TOPICS IN ETHNOMUSICOLOGY

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Advanced Integration, Oral communication competency, Artistic Inquiry area, Global Diversity level 2

This course explores and applies the current issues within the field of Ethnomusicology, and may include critical examinations of the field itself, theoretical approaches toward world musics, or conceptual areas—identity, cultural politics, religion, class, race, gender, exoticism, hybridity—in contexts both local and global. Issues within the field are examined in depth through readings, listenings, discussions, and live performances.

#### MUSC 441 | BACH, BEETHOVEN, BRAHMS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Three major composers of far-reaching influence. We will study their contributions to solo, chamber, orchestral and vocal genres, and consider their secular music for entertainment at court and in the concert hall, their sacred music for worship and private edification, and their music for the theater stage. Focus will be on musical style characteristics, esthetic principles, philosophical perspectives, and historical circumstances. Historical study, informed listening and criticism, writing based on library research, analytical writing are central aspects of the course. Must have completed two of the following: MUSC 330, MUSC 331, MUSC 332.

#### MUSC 444D | THE BEBOP ERA

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

This course is designed to study the musical and social history of the bebop era. The focus will be on examining how the inherent qualities of the music itself (an unprecedented creative freedom expressed through virtuosic improvisations and a newly complex harmonic language) are a direct result of the basic human rights and privileges that these artists were denied due to color and/or gender. In other words, the bebop era represents both a stylistic evolution and a social revolution. The musical pioneers such as Charlie Parker, Dizzy Gillespie, and Thelonious Monk will be thoroughly studied. Additional topics: why bebop music was always considered outside the mainstream of popular music; why commercialism was considered a corrupting influence on the artist; how bebop influenced jazz in the '50s and '60s. Live performances. This course fulfills the diversity experience requirement. No previous musical training necessary.

#### MUSC 483 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN MUSIC HISTORY

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Changing inter-disciplinary topics, e.g. Women in Music; Music and Politics; Music and Poetry; Music Therapy; may be repeated for credit when topics change. Fulfills an upper division elective requirement in the history/culture area.

# MUSC 484 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN MUSIC THEORY AND COMPOSITION

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

An examination of selected topics in depth, with extensive analytical or creative opportunities. #Previous courses have included Post-Tonal Music, Rhythm and Time. May be repeated for credit when topic changes. Prerequisites may apply.

# MUSC 491 | MUSIC ADVOCACY AND CLASSROOM MANAGEMENT Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course will address the non-musical components of the complete music educator and will help prepare any student to develop management and advocacy skills. Under the primary topics of organization and communication, specific secondary topics integral to the non-musical repertoire of an educator include budgets, recruitment (including in lower socio-economic districts), different levels of and strategies for communication, ethics, community development, and tools to avoid burnout. Though available to all USD students, the course is required for the Music Education Emphasis and the culmination of the course is a job-ready pre-professional educator, assessed by a well-branded website, resume, and mock interview. Technology will also be a common strand throughout the course, used to maximize many facets of management, community outreach and advocacy.

# MUSC 492 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN MUSIC THEORY/COMPOSITION Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Selected topics in music performance, career development, education, and other areas. May be repeated for credit when topic changes. Prerequisites may apply.

#### MUSC 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN MUSIC

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

Selected topics in music performance, career development, education, and other areas. May be repeated for credit when topic changes. Prerequisites may apply.

#### **MUSC 495 | SENIOR PROJECT**

Units: 1

#### **Core Attributes: Advanced Integration**

Public presentation during the senior year of a solo recital, the performance of a substantial original composition, a written research project or analytical study, under the direction of a faculty supervisor. For Music majors only, according to area of emphasis. General music majors may design a senior project or conduct service learning in consultation with faculty advisor. This course should be taken in the final semester of the degree program.

#### MUSC 498 | MUSIC INTERNSHIP

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Practical experience in music management through service to a university or community performance organization. May be repeated for credit.

#### MUSC 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Individual work in theory, composition, musicology, or liturgical music with the approval of the music faculty. For Music majors only.

# Performing Arts Entrepreneurship

### **Program Director**

David Harnish, PhD, Music

## **Affiliated Faculty**

Emilie Amrein, PhD, Music

Seth Ellis, PhD, Marketing

Michael Lawless, PhD, Entrepreneurship

Ryan Scrimger, MFA, Theatre

Code

The Minor in Performing Arts Entrepreneurship is designed to introduce students to a variety of arts (histories, styles, values, practices, applications), both domestic and worldwide, and to synthesize business knowledge and experience that frame the arts into both a field of study and a potential career trajectory. The minor is an interdisciplinary collaboration that combines coursework in Arts (Theatre, Music) and Business (Accounting, Information Management, Marketing, Management).

Performing Arts Entrepreneurship is a fast-growing field, fostered partially by the decentralizing of major arts companies (for example, record labels) and the advent of increased nonprofit enterprises and the Do-It-Yourself movement among artists and arts entrepreneurs. Performing arts entrepreneurs are seen as innovators and designers of new ideas and creativity in arts processes, working with for-profit or nonprofit organizations, or developing their own "companies of one." Participating students will learn to envision possible careers and future opportunities within the arts. This program is designed to facilitate that vision as students develop creativity, portfolios and online profiles, learn how to market their talents, and acquire skills of budgeting and finance, leadership, teambuilding and management.

# 1st Pathway - Students with School of Business Major

Title

Required Courses (	12 units)	
THEA 201	The Creative Mind	3
MGMT 304	Entrepreneurship and New Ventures	3
MUSC 300	Career Design in Music	3

THEA 405	Business of Theatre	3
Elective Courses (6	units; at least 1 course must be upper-division)	
THEA 111	Theatre and Society	
MUSC 101D	American Music	
MUSC 103	Music for the Stage	
MUSC 109	Introduction to Sonic Arts	
MUSC 340	Topics in World Music	
THEA 370	Performance Studies	
THEA 375C	Theatre and Community	
MUSC 420	Digital Audio Composition	
MUSC 440W	Topics in Ethnomusicology	

# 2nd Pathway - Students majoring in Theatre or Music

Code	Title	Units
Required Cours	ses (18 Units)	
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ITMG 100	Information Systems	3
MUSC 300	Career Design in Music	3
MKTG 300	Fundamentals of Marketing	3
MGMT 304	Entrepreneurship and New Ventures	3
THEA 405	Business of Theatre	3

# 3rd Pathway - Students majoring in nonperforming arts in the College of Arts and Sciences, or School of Engineering

Code	Title	Units
Required Courses	(15 Units)	
MUSC 300	Career Design in Music	3
THEA 201	The Creative Mind	3
MKTG 300	Fundamentals of Marketing	3
MGMT 304	Entrepreneurship and New Ventures	3
THEA 405	Business of Theatre	3
Elective Courses (3	3 units)	
ITMG 100	Information Systems	
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	
Elective Courses (6	5 units, at least 1 course must be upper-division)	
MUSC 101D	American Music	
MUSC 103	Music for the Stage	
MUSC 109	Introduction to Sonic Arts	
MUSC 340	Topics in World Music	
MUSC 420	Digital Audio Composition	
MUSC 440W	Topics in Ethnomusicology	
THEA 111	Theatre and Society	
THEA 370	Performance Studies	
THEA 375C	Theatre and Community	

# **Units** Philosophy

#### CHAIR

Lori Watson, PhD

## **Faculty**

H.E. Baber, PhD

Corey Barnes, PhD

Brian Clack, PhD

Jack S. Crumley II, PhD

Ashley Feinsinger, PhD

Michelle Gilmore Grier, PhD

Gary E. Jones, PhD, JD, MPH

Michael Kelly, PhD

Turner Nevitt, PhD

Rodney G. Peffer, PhD

Ann L. Pirruccello, PhD

Nicholas Riggle, PhD

Steve Tammelleo, PhD

Michael F. Wagner, PhD

Mark Woods, PhD

Matt Zwolinski, PhD

The question, "What is Philosophy?" is itself a central inquiry in the study of philosophy. Some view philosophy as an analytical study of concepts, others view it more etymologically as a search for wisdom, and others view it as speculation upon the principles governing human nature and destiny. Philosophy thus includes the study of logical thinking, the practice of rational investigation and understanding, the utilization of holistic imagination, and the application of practical wisdom. In short, philosophy is essentially a rational, synoptic, and practical discipline.

The philosophy department at USD is pluralistic, covering all significant historical periods and most major philosophical methods. The USD philosophy department has a deep and special concern for the study of ethics, values, and the moral life. Additionally, philosophy students at USD can expect to be exposed to perennial epistemological, metaphysical, and theological issues and theories in philosophy — both as these are discussed in the classical texts of great philosophers and also in their contemporary treatment.

## Career Opportunities and Advising

The intellectual enthusiasm that philosophy inspires in its students makes graduate work in philosophy, perhaps followed by teaching, a natural aspiration for many philosophy majors. Accordingly, providing a solid preparation for graduate-level work in philosophy, or in another humanities or related discipline, is one goal of the philosophy department. At the same time, most of the skills which philosophy teaches are highly transferable to work or study in other fields. The study of philosophy stresses skills in critical reasoning, including the ability to extract arguments from difficult material, to analyze a position from multiple points of view, and to exercise creativity and sound judgment in problem solving. Philosophy majors are trained to be excellent communicators, and to be able to express themselves in a clear, compelling way, both in speech and in writing. Philosophers are trained to research problems thoroughly — to learn how to ask the right questions and to develop standards to answer them. These are basic skills, which will serve you well in any endeavor you choose to pursue. It is not

surprising, then, that philosophy majors have gone on to successful careers in business, medicine, government, computers, and the arts. Furthermore, philosophy majors consistently score among the very highest levels on such standardized tests as the GRE, the GMAT, and the LSAT. Perhaps most important, though, is the personal satisfaction students find that study of philosophy can lend to their life. In this respect, it is well to recall the Socratic adage, which inspires all of philosophy, that the unexamined life is not worth living. Students considering a major or minor in philosophy may discuss their program and interests with any member of the philosophy department, or contact the department office for the designated philosophy advisor(s).

Note: Majors are encouraged to complete their lower-division history of philosophy requirements as soon as possible after declaring their major.

# A Special Note for Students Interested in Law

Students considering a career in law should give extra consideration to philosophy as a possible field of study. Legal studies is a fundamental, perennial area of inquiry and study in philosophy; and several members of the USD philosophy department — some of whom hold joint degrees in philosophy (PhD) and law (JD) — include aspects of legal studies among their areas of expertise. Moreover, philosophy majors' scores on the LSAT are consistently among the highest of any of the most popular pre-law majors. Philosophy faculty regularly offer courses in political philosophy, philosophy of law, legal reasoning, legal ethics, and other courses bearing upon socio-political and legal theory and practices. These courses, when taken together with the major's particular requirements in logic and other areas of philosophy, provide a rigorous program of legal studies in philosophy for our students. No particular courses are designated as requirements for a minor in philosophy (see minor requirements). However, philosophy minors interested in legal studies, whether in its own right or in connection with a pre-law aspiration, might consider PHIL 333, PHIL 460, an either PHIL 461 or PHIL 462 when completing the nine upper-division Units required for the minor. Majors or minors interested in legal studies offerings in philosophy are encouraged to contact members of the faculty for additional advising. Most students will satisfy the philosophy (not logic or ethics) requirement by taking a 100-level course (excluding PHIL 101 and PHIL 102), but some will satisfy it by taking a 400-

# The Philosophy Major

### *Preparation for the Major*

Code	Title	Units
Lower-Division		
Select one of the	following:	3
PHIL 101	Introduction to Logic	
PHIL 102	Logic	
Select one of the	following:	3
PHIL 110	Introduction to Philosophy	
PHIL 111	Philosophy of Human Nature	
PHIL 112	Philosophy and Literature	
PHIL 115	Faith and Reason	
PHIL 116	Morality and Justice	
PHIL 175	Asian Philosophy	
History of Philo	sophy	6
PHIL 270	History of Ancient Philosophy	
PHIL 272	History of Classical Modern Philosophy	
Total Units		12

#### **Major Requirements**

The student must satisfy the core curriculum requirements as set forth in this course catalog and complete the following courses:

#### Title Code

Students must take ONE ethics course in philosophy, either upper- or lowerdivision.

division.		
<b>Upper-Division</b>		
PHIL 300	Philosophical Methods (required)	3
<b>Upper-Division</b>	Electives	
Students must tal numbered 400 or	ke 21 units of upper-division electives, at least 15 units higher	21
PHIL 321	Social Ethics	
PHIL 330	Ethics	
PHIL 331	Biomedical Ethics	
PHIL 332	Business Ethics	
PHIL 333	Legal Ethics	
PHIL 334	Studies in Ethics	
PHIL 335	Death and Dying	
PHIL 336	Virtues and Vices	
PHIL 337	Mass Media Ethics	
PHIL 338	Environmental Ethics	
PHIL 340	Ethics of War and Peace	
PHIL 341	Ethics and Education	
PHIL 342	Engineering Ethics	
PHIL 343	Gender and Economic Justice	
PHIL 344	Environmental Justice	
PHIL 360	Ethical Theory	
PHIL 410	Metaphysics	
PHIL 411	Philosophy of Knowledge	
PHIL 412	Philosophy of God	
PHIL 413	Philosophy of Mind	
PHIL 414	Philosophy of Language	
PHIL 415	Philosophy of Natural Science	
PHIL 420	Philosophy of Race	
PHIL 460	Legal Reasoning	
PHIL 461	Philosophy of Law	
PHIL 462	Political Philosophy	
PHIL 467	Studies in Renaissance Philosophy	
PHIL 470	Studies in Ancient Philosophy	
PHIL 471	History of Medieval Philosophy	
PHIL 472	Studies in Modern European Philosophy	
PHIL 473	Contemporary Anglo-American Philosophy	
PHIL 474	Twentieth Century Continental Philosophy	
PHIL 476	Studies in Asian Philosophy	
PHIL 480	Philosophy of Art	
PHIL 483	Philosophy of Social Sciences	
PHIL 490	Philosophy of Love	
PHIL 494	Contemporary Philosophical Problems	
PHIL 499	Independent Study	
m . 1 ** 1		

Note: 100- and 200-numbered courses are equally lower-division, and 300- and 400-numbered courses are equally upper-division. Accordingly, students intent on majoring or minoring in philosophy may take 200-numbered courses during their first year; adequately prepared students may begin taking 400-numbered courses Units during their junior year.

### Recommended Program of Study, Philosophy

#### Freshman Year

Freshman Year	
Semester I	Units
Preceptorial	3
Lower-Division PHIL <sup>1</sup>	3
CC or electives	9
Semester II	
Lower-Division PHIL <sup>2</sup>	3
CC or electives	12
Sophomore Year	
Semester I	
Lower-Division PHIL <sup>3</sup>	3
CC or electives	12
Semester II	
Lower-Division PHIL <sup>3</sup>	3
CC or electives	12
Junior Year	
Semester I	
PHIL 300	3
Upper-Division PHIL <sup>4</sup>	3
CC or electives	9-10
Semester II	
Upper-Division PHIL <sup>4</sup>	3
Upper-Division PHIL <sup>4</sup>	3
CC or electives	9-11
Senior Year	
Semester I	
Upper-Division PHIL <sup>4</sup>	3
Upper-Division PHIL <sup>4</sup>	3
CC or electives	10
Semester II	
Upper-Division PHIL <sup>4</sup>	3
Upper-Division PHIL <sup>4</sup>	3
CC or electives	9-11
Take one of PHIL 101 or PHIL 102.	
Take one of PHIL 110, PHIL 111, PHIL 112, PHIL 115, PHIL 1	16,
or PHIL 175	

or PHIL 175

# The Philosophy Minor

#### Minor Requirements

18 units in Philosophy, at least nine of which must be upper division.

Note: At least 18 of these 24 upper-division units must be taken at USD.

**Total Units** 

Take one of the following: PHIL 270 or PHIL 272.

At least 15 of the 21 upper-division PHIL units must be numbered 400 or

Note: At least nine of these 18 units must be taken at USD.

#### PHIL 101 | INTRODUCTION TO LOGIC

**Units: 3-4** 

The study of arguments, including basic principles of traditional logic together with an introduction to modern sentential logic. Topics include recognizing arguments, premises, conclusions, induction and deduction, fallacies, categorical syllogisms, and sentential inference forms. Every semester.

#### PHIL 102 | LOGIC

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Math reasng and prob solving

Introduction to the aims and techniques of formal logic, including the syntax, semantics, and proof-theory of first-order predicate logic, emphasizing both conceptual issues and applications to other disciplines and to everyday reasoning.

#### PHIL 110 | INTRODUCTION TO PHILOSOPHY

**Units: 3-4** 

#### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Philosophical Inquiry area

A basic orientation course treating the principal problems of philosophy, such as knowledge, human nature, values, nature, God, etc. A historical approach may also be used as a means of further clarification of the topics being discussed. Every semester.

#### PHIL 111 | PHILOSOPHY OF HUMAN NATURE

**Units: 3-4** 

#### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Philosophical Inquiry area

This introductory course surveys various approaches to human nature. The course may include such topics as the relation of mind and body, the nature of consciousness, life after death and the existence of the soul, the possibility of artificial intelligence, race and gender issues, the relation between the individual and society, and non-Western views of human nature.

#### PHIL 112 | PHILOSOPHY AND LITERATURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Literary Inquiry area

An examination of the philosophical implications and themes contained in various works and genres of fiction. Questions such as free-will/determinism, love, justice, death and the meaning of life, the best (or worst) of all possible worlds, the religious dimension of life, and the role of the writer or intellectual in society will be discussed.

#### PHIL 114 | PHILOSOPHY AND TECHNOLOGY

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Phil (Not Logic)-Pre F17 CORE

Technology is the art of rational problem solving. Philosophy is the art of asking questions. The questions we shall raise include: What is science? When are scientific claims true? Is science relevant to art, religion, or everyday experience? Can we trust applied science (technology) to make life easier or less dangerous? In a nuclear era, is technology itself the problem? Is "alternative technology" an alternative? Does our survival depend on technology or its absence? Readings from classical and contemporary sources.

#### PHIL 115 | FAITH AND REASON

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

This course introduces some of the major areas and figures of philosophy through an exploration of some of the key issues and problems related to faith and reason. Questions to be considered might include: Are faith and reason compatible? Is religious belief rationally justifiable? Is religious language meaningful? Are there good arguments for God's existence? Does God's knowledge jeopardize human freedom? Are miracles possible? Does evil disprove God's existence? Is the afterlife possible? Is eternal reward and punishment unjust?.

#### PHIL 116 | MORALITY AND JUSTICE

Units: 3-4 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Ethical Inquiry area

This course aims to provide a thorough introduction to key themes in ethics and political philosophy, i.e., morality and justice. Students will be introduced to foundational questions in ethics such as: why be moral? What is the nature of the good and the good life? What are our duties to other humans? To animals? To ourselves? Students will also be introduced to foundational questions concerning justice: when, if ever, is paternalism justified? What is the moral justification of punishment? How far to our speech rights extend? Are their expressive harms that the state should regulate, like hate speech? What are our duties, if any, to persons in other nations suffering from economic deprivation and starvation?.

#### PHIL 175 | ASIAN PHILOSOPHY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

An examination of the major traditions, systems, and schools in India, China, and Japan. Readings from classical and modern texts. Cultural sources of philosophic beliefs. Comparisons between Eastern and Western thought.

#### PHIL 270 | HISTORY OF ANCIENT PHILOSOPHY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

Greek philosophy from the pre-Socratics through Plato, Aristotle, and later Hellenistic thought, culminating in Plotinus.

#### PHIL 271 | HISTORY OF MEDIEVAL PHILOSOPHY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

Origins of the medieval period; St. Augustine, St. Anselm, Abelard, scholasticism in the 13th century, St. Thomas Aquinas, Duns Scotus, and the end of the medieval era as represented by Occam and the growth of nominalism.

#### PHIL 272 | HISTORY OF CLASSICAL MODERN PHILOSOPHY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

An introduction to the development of European philosophy from the 16th to the 19th century, with an emphasis on Continental Rationalism, British Empiricism, and German Idealism.

#### PHIL 273 | CONTEMPORARY ANGLO-AMERICAN PHILOSOPHY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

An introduction to the main currents of late 19th- and 20th-century Anglo-American philosophy, including such movements as logical positivism and linguistic analysis, and recent issues such as the analytic-synthetic distinction, ontological relativity, and theories of meaning.

#### PHIL 274 | TWENTIETH CENTURY CONTINENTAL PHILOSOPHY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

An introduction to the main currents of late 19th- and 20th-century continental thought, including Marxism, phenomenology, existentialism, critical theory, structuralism, and recent developments such as post-structuralism, semiotics, and deconstructionism.

#### PHIL 276 | AMERICAN PHILOSOPHY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

### Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

A survey extending from the Colonial Period through the end of World War II. Emphasis on such topics as the Puritan controversy over predestination, the impact of Darwin, the advent of pragmatism, and the ending of the Golden Age. Authors to be studied include Edwards, Emerson, Wright, Peirce, James, Royce, Dewey, and Santayana.

#### PHIL 294 | SPECIAL TOPICS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

The course aims to introduce students to some philosophical topic(s) or historical philosophical thinkers. Examples include: a survey course on a particular philosophical theme such as philosophy and the law, a survey course on a particular philosophical concept such as freedom of the will, or a survey course on a particular important philosophical figure such as Rousseau. Themes will vary according to Instructor design. The course may be repeated for credit, provided the content of the course has changed.

#### PHIL 300 | PHILOSOPHICAL METHODS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Philosophical Inquiry area

This course is intended for recently declared philosophy majors and minors. It is designed as a rigorous introduction to the methods of philosophical inquiry with a focus on argumentative writing, presentation, and discussion, as well as the analysis, understanding, and evaluation of philosophical texts. The course pursues these goals by focusing on a small handful of philosophical problems, such as the problem of personal identity, the nature of reference, the mind-body problem, philosophical multiculturalism, truth and meaning, freedom and responsibility, and so on.

#### PHIL 321 | SOCIAL ETHICS

#### **Units: 3-4**

#### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Ethical Inquiry area

A study of the applications of ethical concepts and principles to different areas of human social conduct. Typical issues considered include abortion, euthanasia, the death penalty, assisted reproductive technologies, racism, sexism, poverty and welfare, animal rights, environmental ethics, and world hunger.

#### PHIL 330 | ETHICS

#### Units: 3-4 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Ethical Inquiry area

A general study of principles or standards for judging individual and social conduct, focusing on major thinkers and philosophical issues in normative ethics, and the application of moral judgment to social or problem areas in human conduct.

#### PHIL 331 | BIOMEDICAL ETHICS

#### Units: 3-4 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Ethical Inquiry area

A systematic examination of ethical principles as they apply to issues in medicine and scientific research, that is: mercy killing; abortion; experimentation on human subjects; allocation of scarce medical resources; organ transplants; and behavior modification. Moral obligations connected with the roles of nurse, doctor, etc., will receive special attention.

#### PHIL 332 | BUSINESS ETHICS

#### **Units: 3-4**

#### Core Attributes: Ethical Inquiry area

A systematic application of various ethical theories to issues arising from the practice of modern business. Topics may include theories of economic justice, corporate social responsibility, employee rights, advertising and information disclosure, environmental responsibility, preferential hiring and reverse discrimination, self-regulation, and government regulation.

#### PHIL 333 | LEGAL ETHICS

#### Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Ethical Inquiry area

An examination in the light of traditional and recent moral theory of the ethical issues faced by the practicing lawyer: the values presupposed by the adversarial system; the moral responsibilities of lawyers within corporations and government; the conflict between personal ethics and obligations to clientele; and whether legal education involves a social conditioning process with its own implicit value system.

#### PHIL 334 | STUDIES IN ETHICS

#### Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### Core Attributes: Ethical Inquiry area

Exploration of selected issues in moral philosophy, often of an interdisciplinary nature, on such themes as: death and dying; environmental ethics; business ethics; morality and science fiction; morality and teaching; etc. Depending on the subject, the course may be repeated for credit.

#### PHIL 335 | DEATH AND DYING

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Ethical Inquiry area

The analysis of various ethical, epistemological, and metaphysical problems relating to death and dying. Topics may include: near-death experiences; immortality and resurrection models of eschatology; the evil of death; and value issues raised by the definitions of death, suicide, euthanasia, infanticide, and the killing of non-human animals.

#### PHIL 336 | VIRTUES AND VICES

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Ethical Inquiry area

An investigation of the morality of character that considers the question, "What kind of person ought I be?" This approach to morality is contrasted with standard Kantian and utilitarian positions. Specific virtues and vices typically considered include love, friendship, hate, jealousy, compassion, deceit, self-deception, anger resentment, and forgiveness.

#### PHIL 337 | MASS MEDIA ETHICS

#### **Units: 3-4**

#### Core Attributes: Phil (Logic)-Pre F17 CORE

What is the responsibility of citizens, consumers, corporations, advertisers, artists and performers, and federal or local government toward mass media? Do mass media influence human contact for better or worse? Does regulation of, for example, pornography or propaganda conflict with First Amendment rights? Are news and commercial media politically biased? Do educational media enhance or undermine traditional teaching methods? Lecture, discussion, group activities, and analysis of media presentations.

#### PHIL 338 | ENVIRONMENTAL ETHICS

#### **Units: 3-4**

#### Core Attributes: Ethical Inquiry area

An exploration of ethical issues pertinent to the environment, for example: obligations to future generations; the question of animal rights; endangered species; pesticides and pollution; energy technologies; depletion of resources; and global justice and ocean resources. Consideration of the pertinent obligations of individuals, businesses, and government.

#### PHIL 340 | ETHICS OF WAR AND PEACE

#### Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Ethical Inquiry area

Normative ethics applied to moral questions of war and peace, such as: Can war ever be justified? If so, what are the moral constraints upon the conduct of war? How can peace be attained? What do pacifists and others offer as non-violent alternatives to armed conflict? Other topics might include terrorism, humanitarian interventions, nuclear warfare and deterrence, and war crimes.

#### PHIL 341 | ETHICS AND EDUCATION

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### **Core Attributes: Ethical Inquiry area**

This course provides an introduction to such topics in moral theory as ethical relativism, deontological and consequentialist approaches to morality, and ethical egoism. Among the specific moral issues in education usually considered are preferential admissions policies, student-teacher confidentiality, the morality of grading, honesty and deception in educational contexts, and the allocation of scarce educational resources.

#### PHIL 342 | ENGINEERING ETHICS

#### Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Ethical Inquiry area

Examines the rights, responsibilities, and social role of the professional engineer. Topics may include conflicts of interest, the moral status of organizational loyalty, public safety and risk assessment, reproductive engineering and human dignity, preventing environmental destruction, "whistle-blowing," defective product liability, engineers and corporate power, engineers and government, and codes of conduct and standards of professional competence. Case studies may include military and commercial airplanes, automobiles, public buildings, nuclear plants, weapons research, computers and confidentiality, and the use and abuse of new technologies.

#### PHIL 343 | GENDER AND ECONOMIC JUSTICE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Ethical Inquiry area

Discrimination in employment, the persistence of sex segregation in the labor force, the feminization of poverty, and the implementation of policies designed to minimize gender-based career and economic differences, and to improve the economic status of women — such as affirmative action — raise a number of ethical as well as economic questions. This course surveys ethical theory and considers the application of ethical principles to issues concerning the economic status of women and related gender-based issues, including the position of women in business and the professions.

#### PHIL 344 | ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE

#### Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Ethical Inquiry area

An exploration of social justice in an environmental context, including considerations of distributive, participatory, and procedural justice. Topics may include civil rights and the environmental justice movement, rights of indigenous peoples, environmentalism, economic and development conflicts between the global north and south, toxic and hazardous waste and pollution, worker safety, environmental racism, environmental classism, sustainability, and the protection of nature. Consideration of the pertinent obligations of individuals, social groups, businesses, and governments.

#### PHIL 345 | COMPUTER ETHICS

#### Units: 3

An exploration of ethical issues pertinent to computing and information technology, including: free speech and content control of the Web; intellectual property rights; privacy; accountability and responsibility; security and cyberspace; the impact of computing/IT on society.

#### PHIL 360 | ETHICAL THEORY

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### **Core Attributes: Ethical Inquiry area**

A study of the major theories of ethics and selected moral concepts. Topics to be examined will include: the nature and grounds of morality; ethical relativism; egoism and altruism; utilitarianism; Kant's deontological ethics; Aristotle and virtue ethics, rights, and justice. In addition, we may consider issues of the role of gender and race in ethical theory.

#### PHIL 400 | INTERMEDIATE SYMBOLIC LOGIC

#### Units: 3

This course will focus on symbolization, syntax, semantics, and derivations for predicate logic. It will include some metatheory such as soundness and completeness proofs.

#### PHIL 410 | METAPHYSICS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

An investigation of the ultimate philosophical commitments about reality. Representative figures in the history of philosophy may be considered and analyzed. Topics selected may include the basic components of reality, their relation to space, time, matter, causality, freedom, determinism, the self, and God.

#### PHIL 411 | PHILOSOPHY OF KNOWLEDGE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

An examination of the nature and scope of knowledge and justification, including consideration of such topics as skepticism, analyses of knowledge, foundationalism and coherentism, a priori knowledge, and others. Attention is also given to the nature of the epistemological enterprise, e.g. internalism and externalism, and naturalized epistemology.

#### PHIL 412 | PHILOSOPHY OF GOD

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

A study of the existence and nature of God. Discussion of the ontological, cosmological, and teleological arguments; topics may include atheistic challenges concerning divine benevolence, omnipotence, omniscience, and creation exnihilo; logical positivism and religious meaning; miracles; the person and immortality; and religion and morality.

#### PHIL 413 | PHILOSOPHY OF MIND

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

The mind-body problem and the examination of mental state concepts. Topics may include the nature of mind, including dualist and contemporary materialist theories, representation, mental causation, consciousness, psychological explanation, and artificial intelligence; other topics such as personal identity or agency may be included.

#### PHIL 414 | PHILOSOPHY OF LANGUAGE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

Language is a fundamental medium by which we interact with others and the world. How words come to have the meanings that they do, refer to objects, express truths, and affect the meanings of other words and truth values are perennial questions in philosophy. These issues have become even more pronounced in 20th-century philosophy. Specific topics may include: language and reality; language and psychology; referential theories of meaning; ideal languages; meaning as use; private languages; truth-conditional theories of meaning; descriptive and causal theories of reference and of linguistic competence and performance; verificationism; and/or an introduction to modal semantics.

#### PHIL 415 | PHILOSOPHY OF NATURAL SCIENCE

#### Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

The study of the language and activity of the scientific community. Topics include scientific explanation, prediction, laws, theories, models, paradigms, observations, experiment, scientific method, and the question of reductionism in science.

#### PHIL 420 | PHILOSOPHY OF RACE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 2, Philosophical Inquiry area

This course aims to provide a comprehensive overview of key themes in the philosophy of race. Areas of inquiry include: historical origins of philosophical accounts of race, the metaphysics of race, the social construction of race and racial identity, contemporary social issues concerning race both nationally and internationally, as well as feminism and race, among other topics.

#### PHIL 460 | LEGAL REASONING

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

Prerequisites: PHIL 101

This course introduces students to the concepts and forms of argument they will encounter in the first year of law school. It will examine the reasoning involved in the concepts of legal precedent, proximate cause, and burden of proof, and it will also investigate the legal reasoning in certain landmark cases from torts, contracts, property, constitutional law, and criminal law.

#### PHIL 461 | PHILOSOPHY OF LAW

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

What is law? How is it different from morality? Do we have an obligation to obey the law, and, if so, how strong is that obligation? This course is an exploration of philosophical issues arising from the interpretation and application of the law. The course examines classic answers to the above questions. The focus of the course may be either historical (e.g. Plato, Hobbes, or Hegel) or more contemporary (e.g. H.L.A. Hart and Ronald Dworkin), paying special attention to constitutional law.

#### PHIL 462 | POLITICAL PHILOSOPHY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

The nature and end of the state; relation of the individual's rights and duties to those of the state, and vice versa, and the relation between states, the kinds of states, their institution, preservation, and destruction.

### PHIL 467 | STUDIES IN RENAISSANCE PHILOSOPHY

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Phil (Not Logic)-Pre F17 CORE

This course studies main figures in Renaissance thought — Petrarch, Pico, Vives, Bacon, et al. It addresses such topics as: the revival of Greek and Roman culture; the Florentine academy; tensions between humanism and theology; the Copernican revolution in science; and the legacies of Bruno, Leonardo, More, Machiavelli, and Montaigne.

#### PHIL 470 | STUDIES IN ANCIENT PHILOSOPHY

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

An in-depth study of selected ancient philosophers, that is, Plato, Aristotle, and the Stoics, or topics such as the nature of good, knowledge and skepticism, the problem of Being, and change.

#### PHIL 471 | HISTORY OF MEDIEVAL PHILOSOPHY

**Units: 3 Repeatability: No** 

#### Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

A survey of the major figures or major themes of medieval philosophy from its origins in the fourth century to its decline in the fourteenth. Figures such as Augustine, Boethius, Anselm, Abelard, Aquinas, Scotus, and Ockham. Themes such as the relationship between faith and reason, the existence and nature of God, the problem of evil, knowledge and skepticism, the problem of universals, the soul and immortality, free will, ethics and politics.

#### PHIL 472 | STUDIES IN MODERN EUROPEAN PHILOSOPHY

Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

An intensive examination of one or more major figures in 17th- to 19th-century European thought, for example, Descartes, Leibniz, Spinoza, Hobbes, Locke, Berkeley, Hume, Kant, Hegel, Rousseau, and Marx; or, alternately, a discussion of one or more central problems in this era, such as the relation between science and religion, the justification of causal inference, the respective roles of reason and experience in obtaining reliable knowledge of the world, the concept of selfhood, etc.

### PHIL 473 | CONTEMPORARY ANGLO-AMERICAN PHILOSOPHY

Units: 3

Core Attributes: Phil (Not Logic)-Pre F17 CORE

An intensive examination of either major figures (such as Chisholm, Kripke, Quine), movements (logical positivism, ordinary language analysis, logical analysis), or selected problems (epistemic foundationalism, modality and essentialism, identity and individuation) in contemporary analytic philosophy.

#### PHIL 474 | TWENTIETH CENTURY CONTINENTAL PHILOSOPHY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

A survey of the major figures or major themes of continental philosophy from its origins in the Twentieth Century. Figures such as Husserl, Heidegger, Sartre, Arendt, Foucault, Derrida, etc.. Movements such as phenomenology, hermeneutics, existentialism, critical theory, structuralism, post-structuralism, and post-modernism among others. Themes such as the relationship between mind and body, thought and action, authenticity and inauthenticity, death and meaning, politics and identity, language and meaning.

#### PHIL 475 | STUDIES IN PROCESS PHILOSOPHY

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Phil (Not Logic)-Pre F17 CORE

Process Philosophy is a generic term designating the group of philosophers who view reality as a changing and developing process. Included in this group are Herbert Spencer, Karl Marx, Henri Bergson, and Alfred North Whitehead. The course will focus, in successive years, on one of these thinkers.

#### PHIL 476 | STUDIES IN ASIAN PHILOSOPHY

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

A detailed examination of one or more classic works from the Hindu, Buddhist, Confucian, and Taoist traditions, such as the Bhagavad-Gita or the Analects; pitfalls of interpretation; relations between text and ure. Parallels and contrasts with Western thought and institutions. May be repeated for credit with different course content.

#### PHIL 477 | STUDIES IN THE HISTORY OF PHILOSOPHY

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

An in-depth study of major figure(s), theme(s), or movement(s) from a select period in the history of philosophy, such as ancient philosophy, medieval philosophy, modern philosophy, or contemporary philosophy. Figures such as Plato and Aristotle, Augustine and Aquinas, Kant and Hume, Heidegger and Derrida. Themes such as appearance and reality, truth and meaning, freedom and responsibility, personal identity, mind and body, knowledge and skepticism. Movements such as Epicureanism and stoicism, scholasticism and the renaissance, empiricism and the enlightenment, existentialism and post-structuralism

#### PHIL 480 | PHILOSOPHY OF ART

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

An examination of some major theories of art and beauty, with special attention to such issues as: the definition of beauty, the criteria for excellence in artistic productions, the differences between art and science, and the relation between art and culture. Readings may include Artistotle's Poetics, Kant's Critique of Judgement, Dewey's Art as Experience, or more recent philosophers, that is, Beardsley, Dickie, Goodman, Weitz, etc.

#### PHIL 481 | PHILOSOPHY OF EDUCATION

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Phil (Not Logic)-Pre F17 CORE

An examination of some major theories of the meaning and function of education and of its role in reshaping society. Readings may include Plato's Meno and Republic, Aristotle's Politics, Rousseau's Emile, Dewey's The School and Society and The Child and the Curriculum, and various works by Piaget.

#### PHIL 483 | PHILOSOPHY OF SOCIAL SCIENCES

Units: 3

A study of the fundamental concepts, methods, and goals of the social sciences, including a consideration of such topics as: the nature of the human action, the possibility of a science of human nature, the relationship between the natural and social sciences, explanation and understanding, laws and theories, objectivity and value judgments, and freedom and determinism.

#### PHIL 485 | PHILOSOPHY OF HISTORY

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Phil (Not Logic)-Pre F17 CORE

What is history? Why do human beings record their history? Is history moving toward a goal? Is history a science or an art? Are historical events objective occurrences? Can we verify casual claims about unrepeatable episodes? Is the historian entitled (or obliged) to make value-judgments? How should we rank the contributions of individual historians? Readings include philosophers and historians, classical and contemporary sources.

#### PHIL 490 | PHILOSOPHY OF LOVE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

What is love? Does it even exist, or is it a myth? Is it attainable, or an impossible ideal? Is it rooted in the divine; in the human, or even in the biologic or animal? Is it an emotion, a form of relationship, or even a cosmic principle? Can it be equal and shared, or must it be hierarchic and coercive? This course considers a variety of philosophical perspectives on questions such as these. Readings typically include such classic and contemporary thinkers as Plato, Aristotle, Augustine, Aquinas, Kierkegaard, Freud, Sartre, DeBeauvoir, and Tillich.

#### PHIL 494 | CONTEMPORARY PHILOSOPHICAL PROBLEMS

**Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

#### Core Attributes: Philosophical Inquiry area

An intensive examination of one or more contemporary philosophical problems such as: the is-ought debate, the mind-body problems, relativism and the possibility of objective knowledge, etc. Topic may vary. The course may be repeated for credit, provided the content of the course has changed.

#### PHIL 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Individual study and written research working in close collaboration with a faculty advisor. Consent of instructor and of the department chair are required for registration.

# Philosophy, Politics and Economics

## **Program Director**

Matt Zwolinski, PhD, Philosophy

## Affiliated Faculty

Harriet Baber, PhD, Philosophy

Del Dickson, PhD, JD, Political Science and International Relations

Deborah Kelly, PhD, Economics

Tim McCarty, PhD, Political Science and International Relations

Lori Watson, PhD, Philosophy

Mark Woods, PhD, Philosophy

## Philosophy, Politics and Economics

Philosophy, Politics and Economics (PPE) is an interdisciplinary field of inquiry that originated at Oxford University almost a hundred years ago. PPE aims to provide students with the intellectual tools necessary to understand the big ideas behind our most important social questions. Many of those questions - such as debates over health care, environmental regulation and social welfare policy – are inherently interdisciplinary. At a minimum, they involve economic questions about the way in which markets work or fail to work in certain contexts; philosophical questions about the nature of fairness, liberty, and equality; and *political* questions about the feasibility of various forms of regulatory control. PPE helps students to think critically about those questions, and thus prepares them well for careers in a variety of fields such as law, public policy, journalism, academia and government.

# 1st Pathway - Students majoring in Philosophy (18 units)

Code	Title	Units
Foundational Cour	rses (9 units)	
PPE 101	Morality, Markets, and Government	3
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3-4
POLS 150	Introduction to Comparative Politics **	3
or POLS 170	Introduction to International Relations	
PPE Capstone		
PPE 495	PPE Capstone	3
	6 upper-division units from the lists of Economics and lectives provided below. At least 3 units must be from	6
`	oduction to American Politics) or POLS 100 (Power and bstituted for one of these courses with approval from the	

# Total Units 18-19

# 2nd Pathway - Students majoring in Political Science (18 units)

Code	Title	Units
Foundational Cou	urses (9 Units)	
PPE 101	Morality, Markets, and Government	3

ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3-4	ECON 308	Environmental and Natural Resource Economics	3
PHIL 116	Morality and Justice	3	ECON 310	Money and Banking	3
PPE Capstone			ECON 322	Labor Economics	3
PPE 495	PPE Capstone	3	ECON 327	Law and Economics	3
	6 upper-division units from the lists of Economics	6	ECON 333	International Economics	3
* *	ectives provided below. At least 3 units must be from		ECON 335	Economic Development of Latin America	3
Philosophy.)			ECON 337	Economic Development of Asia	3
Total Units		18-19	ECON 340	Behavioral Economics	3
3rd Dath	vay - Students majoring in		ECON 375	Game Theory	2-3
			ECON 424	Industrial Organization	3
Economic	cs or Business Economics (18		ECON 473	Managerial Economics	3
units)			PHILOSOPHY		
Code	Title	Units	PHIL 321	Social Ethics	3-4
Foundational Cou		Cinto	PHIL 330	Ethics	3
PPE 101	Morality, Markets, and Government	3	PHIL 331	Biomedical Ethics	3
PHIL 116	Morality and Justice	3	PHIL 332	Business Ethics	3
POLS 150	Introduction to Comparative Politics **	3	PHIL 338	Environmental Ethics	3-4
or POLS 170	Introduction to International Relations	3	PHIL 340	Ethics of War and Peace	3
PPE Capstone	introduction to international relations		PHIL 343	Gender and Economic Justice	3
PPE 495	PPE Capstone	3	PHIL 344	Environmental Justice	3
	3 upper-division units from Philosophy, and 3 upper-	6	PHIL 360	Ethical Theory	3
	n Political Science, from the lists of electives provided	U	PHIL 461	Philosophy of Law	3
below.)	ar constant seconds, from the fisher of electrices provided		PHIL 462	Political Philosophy	3
** POLS 120 (Int	roduction to American Politics) or POLS 100 (Power and		POLITICAL SCI	IENCE	
Justice) may be su	abstituted for one of these courses with approval from the		POLS 300	Democratic Theory	3
PPE Director.			POLS 301	Political Thought:Ancient to Modern	3
Total Units		18	POLS 302	Political Thought:Modern and Contemporary	3-4
4.1 5 .1			POLS 303	Liberal Political Thought	3
4th Pathy	vay - Students not majoring ir	1	POLS 304	American Political Thought	3
Philosoph	ny, Political Science, Business		POLS 305	Black Political Thought	3
	cs or Economics (21 units)		POLS 306	Conservative Political Thought	3
			POLS 307	Feminist Political Theories	3
Code	Title	Units	POLS 308	Politics and Literature	3
PPE 101	Morality, Markets, and Government	3	POLS 309D	Sex, Power, and Politics	3
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3-4	POLS 312	Congress	3
PHIL 116	Morality and Justice	3	POLS 313	Parties and Interest Groups	3
POLS 150	Introduction to Comparative Politics **	3	POLS 314	Campaigns and Elections	3
or POLS 170	Introduction to International Relations		POLS 316	State and Local Government	3
PPE Capstone			POLS 317D	Urban Politics	3
PPE 495	PPE Capstone	3	POLS 318	Black Politics	3
	(3 upper-division units from Philosophy, and 3 upper-	6	POLS 319	Politics of Race and Ethnicity	3
below.)	n Political Science, from the lists of electives provided		POLS 320	War Powers in the American Constitutional System	3
	roduction to American Politics) or POLS 100 (Power and		POLS 321	Constitutional Law and American	3
`	abstituted for one of these courses with approval from the			Government:Federalism and Separation of Powers	
PPE Director.	11		POLS 322D	Constitutional Law: Civil Rights and Liberties	3
Total Units		21-22	POLS 323	Judicial Behavior	3
~			POLS 326	Comparative Law	3
PPE Electi	ive Courses*		POLS 327	International Law	3
Code	Title	Units	POLS 329	Law of the Sea	3
ECONOMICS	11110	Omts	POLS 330	Research Methods in Political Science	3
ECONOMICS ECON 302	Public Finance	3	POLS 340	Public Administration	3
ECON 302 ECON 304	Urban Economics	3	POLS 342	Public Policy	3-4
ECON 304	Orban Economics	3			

POLS 348	Indigenous Peoples and the Environment	3
POLS 349	Politics and the Environment	3-4
POLS 350	Theories of Comparative Politics	3
POLS 352	Comparative Politics of Developing Countries	3
POLS 353	Politics and Religion	3
POLS 354	Revolutionary Change	3
POLS 355	Politics in Europe	3
POLS 357	Politics in Latin America	3
POLS 358	Politics in South Asia	3
POLS 359	Politics in the Middle East	3
POLS 360	Politics in Sub-Saharan Africa	3
POLS 361	Politics in South Africa	3
POLS 362	Politics in the United Kingdom	3-4
POLS 363	Politics in France	3
POLS 364	Politics in Germany	3
POLS 365	Politics in Russia	3
POLS 366	Politics in Mexico	3
POLS 367	Politics in Japan	3
POLS 368	Politics in China	3
POLS 370	Theories of International Relations	3
POLS 371	American Foreign Policy	3-4
POLS 374	U.SLatin American Relations	3
POLS 376	U.S. National Security	3
POLS 377	Regional Security	3
POLS 378	Transnational Crime and Terrorism	3-4
POLS 379	International Political Boundaries and Border Policies	3
POLS 380	Theories of International Political Economy	3
POLS 382	International Human Rights	3
POLS 383	International Organizations	3

<sup>\*</sup>Additional courses may be accepted as PPE electives, with approval of the program director. Note: Some elective courses have individual prerequisites.

# **Physics and Biophysics**

#### CHAIR

Rae M. R. Anderson, PhD

## **Faculty**

Michael Anderson, PhD

Theodore Dezen, PhD

Chad Kishimoto, PhD

Ryan McGorty, PhD

Linhdung Pham, PhD

Greg Severn, PhD

Daniel P. Sheehan, PhD

The Physics and Biophysics Department provides undergraduates with rigorous, inspiring, and hands-on courses and training in the physical sciences. We offer a range of classes from quantum mechanics and astrophysics, to biophysics and fluid mechanics, to computational physics. We provide substantial opportunities

for students to engage in cutting-edge research, and we pride ourselves on close one-on-one mentoring and advising of our students. This approach makes our majors highly competitive for prestigious scholastic awards, graduate school admissions, and employment.

We offer bachelor's degrees in both **Physics** and **Biophysics** that prepare students to excel in any career path they choose. Requirements and a Recommended Plan of Study for each major are described in detail under the corresponding Catalog page. For students interested in engineering, we offer an **Engineering Physics Pathway** in which students to earn a BA in Physics and a BS/BA in Mechanical Engineering in 5 years. For students interested in pursuing K-12 education, we offer a 4-year **Physics Education Pathway** in which students earn a BA in Physics, a single-subject teaching credential, and preparation for the California Subject Examination for Teachers. Requirements and a Recommended Plan of Study for each pathway are provided under the Physics Major catalog page.

## What is Physics and Biophysics?

Physics explores the universe from its smallest to grandest scales: from the insides of nuclei to the architecture of the cosmos. For even the most complex systems, like human life and the universe, physicists search for patterns to build models and extract fundamental truths. The use of physics to discover new insights into living systems encompasses a growing branch of interdisciplinary science - biophysics. Physicists also use their modeling and problem-solving skills to contribute to technological breakthroughs, such as artificial intelligence, and grand societal problems, such as global warming.

## Undergraduate Research

We place a strong emphasis on undergraduate research, and we encourage students to get involved in research as early as possible. Undergraduate research students learn first-hand where the limits of humanity's scientific understanding lie and how to push those limits outward. Students have the opportunity to conduct research on a wide range of cutting-edge topics including: molecular and cellular biophysics, astrophysics, materials technology, plasma science, adaptive optics, computational physics, high-energy physics, biochemical engineering, and alternative energy. Student researchers learn experimental, computational and theoretical research techniques; and gain first-hand experience with advanced physics instrumentation including optical tweezers, light-sheet and confocal microscopes, tunable diode lasers, pulsed NMR, and vacuum chambers. Student researchers also have opportunities to travel and present their work at research conferences nationwide, publish scientific papers, and interact with leading scientists in the field.

#### **Society of Physics Students**

Our student-led club, Society of Physics Students, is a great way for students to get involved in the department, participate in physics education and outreach activities, form lifelong friendships, and prepare for life after USD. Our SPS chapter has been recognized as an Outstanding Chapter (top 10% of all chapters internationally), and has won the prestigious Blake Lily Prize for their K-12 outreach efforts. SPS students have also been awarded national research awards, including the SPS Undergraduate Research Award and the Goldwater Scholarship. SPS organizes professional development, educational, social, and outreach activities, as well as travel to scientific conferences. Finally, SPS supports our monthly Distinguished Speaker Series that brings physics and biophysics alumni, researchers, and professionals to give talks about their work and how to pursue their career path.

# Life after Physics and Biophysics

Because physics and biophysics majors comprise less than 3% of all STEM bachelor's degrees awarded each year, our majors stand out and are sought out by a wide variety of graduate programs and companies.

**Physics**: Many of our physics majors pursue graduate programs in physics, engineering, computer science, astronomy and materials science. Immediately after graduation, physics majors are also highly successful in obtaining jobs in engineering, data science, finance, information technology, and education. Students completing the *Engineering Physics Pathway* are particularly competitive for positions at premier engineering firms. Students who complete the *Physics Education Pathway* are immediately employed as high school or junior high physics teachers.

**Biophysics**: Many of our biophysics majors pursue medical, dental and veterinarian school - the biophysics major fulfills all of the pre-health requirements and allows students to score exceptionally well on the MCAT. Biophysics majors also pursue graduate degrees in biophysics, bioengineering, medical physics, and biochemistry. Immediately after graduation, biophysics majors are highly successful at obtaining jobs in biotechnology, immunology, pharmaceuticals, data science, and bioengineering.

# **Biophysics**

The interdisciplinary Biophysics program explores the complexity of living systems with a quantitative physical approach. Biophysicists apply the understanding, methods and quantitative skills gained in physics to a vast array of biological systems to gain new insights into gene therapy, cancer, muscle function, cell motility, neuroscience, biomedical engineering, and biomaterials technology. The collective knowledge, skills and experiences students gain through this unique interdisciplinary program make them highly competitive for prestigious scholastic awards, medical school and graduate school admissions, and employment at leading biotechnology and bioengineering companies.

## **Biophysics Coursework**

Classes in molecular and cellular biophysics, thermodynamics, fluids, and optics, as well as those from biology, chemistry and math, prepare students to start tackling the unsolved problems plaguing scientists at the intersection of life sciences and physical sciences. Our nationally-recognized advanced laboratory course prepares students to conduct independent research and write scientific papers. Our independent research and capstone experiences enable students to explore the frontiers of biophysics research, learn valuable scientific communication skills, and develop quantitative problem-solving skills. Students also have the freedom to choose from a wide range of upper-division courses in physics, biology and chemistry to complete their program of study, allowing them to shape the major to best fit their interests and aspirations.

# **Biophysics Research**

Biophysics majors learn about the frontiers of biophysics research, and explore their own research questions. Biophysics faculty do research on a range of cutting-edge topics including cellular transport, biomaterials, DNA dynamics, force spectroscopy, microscopy, active matter, and cytoskeleton mechanics. Biophysics majors are encouraged to start conducting faculty-led research on these topics as early as their freshman year. Undergraduate researchers learn first-hand where the limits of humanity's scientific understanding lie and how to push those limits outward. Student researchers learn experimental, computational and theoretical research techniques, and gain first-hand experience with advanced biophysics instrumentation including optical tweezers, light-sheet microscopy, laser-scanning confocal microscopy, ultracentrifugation, and pulsed-field gel electrophoresis. Many of our majors have opportunities to travel and present their

work at research conferences, publish scientific papers, and network with leading scientists in the field.

## Why Biophysics?

The Biophysics major prepares students for a wide range of post-graduation paths. Because biophysics majors are rare at the undergraduate level (comprising less than 1% of all STEM bachelor's degrees awarded each year!), they stand out and are sought out by a wide variety of graduate programs and companies. Many of our majors pursue medical, dental and veterinarian school - the biophysics major fulfills all of the pre-health requirements and allows students to score exceptionally well on the MCAT. Biophysics majors also pursue graduate degrees in biophysics, biochemistry, bioengineering and medical physics. Immediately after graduation, biophysics majors are highly successful in obtaining jobs in biotechnology, immunology, pharmaceuticals, data science, and biomedical engineering.

# The Biophysics Major

### Preparation for the Major (47-49 units)

Preparation for the Biophysics Major is designed to give students a broad background in biology, chemistry, and physics. In order to successfully navigate these diverse fields, a strong background in math is also required.

Code	Title	Units
Physics Courses		
PHYS 270 & 270L	Introduction to Mechanics and Mechanics Lab	4
PHYS 271 & 271L	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism and Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism Lab	4
PHYS 272 & 272L	Introduction to Modern Physics and Introduction to Modern Physics Lab	4
PHYS 282	Introduction to Methods in Computational Physics	1
Mathematics Cour	rses	
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
MATH 250	Calculus III	4
Chemistry Course	s	
CHEM 151 & 151L	General Chemistry I and General Chemistry I Laboratory	4
CHEM 152 & 152L	General Chemistry II and General Chemistry II Laboratory	4
CHEM 301 & 301L	Organic Chemistry I and Organic Chemistry I Laboratory	4
CHEM 302 & 302L	Organic Chemistry II and Organic Chemistry II Laboratory	4
<b>Biology Courses</b>		
BIOL 240 & 240L	Bioenergetics and Systems and Bioenergetics and Systems Laboratory	4
BIOL 242 & 242L	Genomes and Evolution and Genomes and Evolution Laboratory	4
OR		
BIOL 190	Introduction to Evolution	3
BIOL 225	Introduction to Cell Processes	3

# Major Requirements (25 units)

Courses required for the Biophysics Major reflect the integration of the sciences, with upper-division courses from each of the sciences, as well as interdisciplinary

7-10

Biophysics lecture and lab courses. Students are urged to work with their biophysics academic advisor to work out a schedule of courses and electives that best fits their career goals and aspirations. Students are also encouraged to start research (PHYS 496) as early as possible.

Code	Title	Units
PHYS 319	Thermal and Statistical Physics	3
PHYS 340	Biological Physics	3
PHYS 381	Experimental Biophysics	4
PHYS 493	Seminar I: The Craft of Scientific Presentation	1
PHYS 495	Seminar II: Frontiers of Physics	1
PHYS 496	Research	1
CHEM 331	Biochemistry	3
BIOL 300	Genetics	3
Two Upper-Divis to advisor approv	ion Electives from BIOL, PHYS, CHEM or EOSC (subject al)	6
Total Units		25

### Recommended Program of Study, Biophysics

#### Freshman Year

Semester I

MATH 150	Calculus I
CHEM 151	General Chemistry I
& 151L	
BIOL 240	Bioenergetics and Systems
& 240L	
CORE or electives	
Semester II	
PHYS 270	Introduction to Mechanics
& 270L	
MATH 151	Calculus II
CHEM 152	General Chemistry II
& 152L	
CORE or electives	
Sophomore Year	
Semester I	

#### **PHYS 271**

PHYS 271 & 271L	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism
MATH 250	Calculus III
CHEM 301 & 301L CORE or electives	Organic Chemistry I
Semester II	
PHYS 272	Introduction to Modern Physics

PHYS 272	Introduction to Modern Physics
& 272L	
PHYS 282	Introduction to Methods in Computational Physics
BIOL 242	Genomes and Evolution
& 242L	
CHEM 302	Organic Chemistry II

#### Junior Year

CORE or electives

& 302L

#### Semester I

PHYS 319	Thermal and Statistical Physics	3
PHYS 381	Experimental Biophysics	4
PHYS 496	Research	1
CORE or electives		4-7
Semester II		
PHYS 340	Biological Physics	3
CHEM 331	Biochemistry	3
PHYS 496	Research	1
CORE or electives		5-8
Senior Year		
Semester I		
Semester I PHYS 325	Introduction to Fluids	3
	Introduction to Fluids Genetics	3
PHYS 325		_
PHYS 325 BIOL 300	Genetics	3
PHYS 325 BIOL 300 PHYS 493	Genetics Seminar I: The Craft of Scientific Presentation	3
PHYS 325 BIOL 300 PHYS 493 PHYS 496	Genetics Seminar I: The Craft of Scientific Presentation	3 1 1
PHYS 325 BIOL 300 PHYS 493 PHYS 496 CORE or electives	Genetics Seminar I: The Craft of Scientific Presentation	3 1 1
PHYS 325 BIOL 300 PHYS 493 PHYS 496 CORE or electives Semester II	Genetics Seminar I: The Craft of Scientific Presentation Research	3 1 1 5
PHYS 325 BIOL 300 PHYS 493 PHYS 496 CORE or electives Semester II PHYS 371	Genetics Seminar I: The Craft of Scientific Presentation Research  Computational Physics (suggested elective)	3 1 1 5

#### PHYS 102 | PHYSICS, ENERGY, AND INFORMATION

4 Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area

0-3 Corequisites: PHYS 102L

CORE or electives

Units

4

4

0 - 3

An introduction to physics concepts and principles with tangents into related technologies and global issues. Special attention is paid to devices and networks that furnish two necessities of modern life: energy and information. No background in physical science is required.

- PHYS 102L | PHYSICS, ENERGY, AND INFORMATION LAB
- 4 Units: 1 Repeatability: No Core Attributes: Lab
  - Corequisites: PHYS 102

Laboratory component of PHYS 102. Guided hands-on investigation of physics principles and related technologies.

### PHYS 105 | PHYSICAL SCIENCES FOR K-8 TEACHERS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

- Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area, Lab 4
- A laboratory/lecture/discussion class designed to lead students toward an understanding of selected topics in chemistry and physics. The course topics are selected to satisfy the Physical Science specifications of the Science Content 0 - 3Standards for California Public Schools (K-12). Enrollment is limited to liberal studies majors. Two two-hour laboratory sessions per week. This course is cross
  - listed with Chemistry 105. Fall semester.

#### PHYS 136 | GENERAL PHYSICS I

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Physical Science-Pre F17 CORE

- Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150)
  - Corequisites: PHYS 136L
- A study of the fundamental principles of mechanics and wave motion, sound, and heat. Algebra and some calculus are required. Three hours of lecture weekly. Concurrent enrollment in 136L required. 0 - 3

#### PHYS 136L | GENERAL PHYSICS I LAB

Units: 1 Repeatability: No Core Attributes: Lab

Prerequisites: PHYS 136 (Can be taken Concurrently)

A laboratory course introducing the concepts and techniques of experimental physics. Meets weekly.

#### PHYS 137 | GENERAL PHYSICS II

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: PHYS 136 and PHYS 136L and (MATH 130 or MATH 150)

Corequisites: PHYS 137L

A study of the fundamental principles of electricity and magnetism, light, and modern physics. Algebra and some calculus are required. Three hours of lecture weekly. Concurrent enrollment in 137L required.

#### PHYS 137L | GENERAL PHYSICS II LAB

Units: 1 Repeatability: No Core Attributes: Lab

Prerequisites: PHYS 137 (Can be taken Concurrently)

A laboratory course introducing the concepts and techniques of experimental physics. Meets weekly.

#### PHYS 270 | INTRODUCTION TO MECHANICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: First year Integration, Science/Tech Inquiry area

Prerequisites: MATH 150 or MATH 151

Corequisites: PHYS 270L

A study of the fundamental principles of Newtonian mechanics, kinematics, and momentum and energy conservation laws. Harmonic oscillations and wave motion will also be discussed. Three hours of lecture weekly. Concurrent enrollment in 270L required.

#### PHYS 270L | MECHANICS LAB

Units: 1 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area, Lab

Prerequisites: PHYS 270 (Can be taken Concurrently)

A laboratory course introducing the concepts and techniques of experimental physics. Meets weekly.

# PHYS 271 | INTRODUCTION TO ELECTRICITY AND MAGNETISM Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (PHYS 270 and PHYS 270L) or (PHYS 136 and PHYS 136L) and MATH 151 and PHYS 271L (Can be taken Concurrently)

A study of the fundamental principles of classical electricity and magnetism focusing on electrostatics and magnetic force. Circuits, electromagnetism, and light are also introduced. Three hours of lecture weekly. Concurrent enrollment in 271L required.

### PHYS 271L | INTRODUCTION TO ELECTRICITY AND MAGNETISM

LAB

Units: 1 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area

Prerequisites: PHYS 271 (Can be taken Concurrently)

A laboratory course that introduces the concepts and techniques of experimental physics. Meets weekly.

#### PHYS 272 | INTRODUCTION TO MODERN PHYSICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MATH 151 and MATH 250 (Can be taken Concurrently) and PHYS 272L (Can be taken Concurrently) and (PHYS 271 and PHYS 271L) or (PHYS 137 and PHYS 137L) and PHYS 272L (Can be taken Concurrently) An introduction to modern physics including principles and applications of quantum mechanics, atomic and nuclear physics, and special relativity. Required for all physics and biophysics majors and physics minors, and is an accepted elective for engineering students. Concurrent enrollment in PHYS 272L required. For physics and biophysics majors concurrent enrollment in PHYS 282 is also required.

#### PHYS 272L | INTRODUCTION TO MODERN PHYSICS LAB

Units: 1

**Core Attributes: Lab** Corequisites: PHYS 272

Laboratory experiments to illustrate the topics presented in the lecture course: Introduction to Modern Physics (PHYS 272).

# PHYS 282 | INTRODUCTION TO METHODS IN COMPUTATIONAL PHYSICS

Units: 1 Repeatability: No Core Attributes: Lab Prerequisites: PHYS 272

A hands-on introduction to the fundamentals of using computation in physics and biophysics. A combination of in-class guided group practice and at-home individual practice will be employed to introduce, practice and apply fundamental computational techniques including: the declaration and manipulation of variables and arrays, conditional statements, loops, as well as procedural programming through creating functions. These fundamentals will be applied to creating graphical representations and performing calculations to further elucidate topics discussed in PHYS 272. Computational techniques will be introduced to highlight the application of these fundamentals. These techniques may include: solutions to initial value problem ordinary differential equations; solving boundary value problems and the eigenvalue problem; and statistics and stochastic methods.

#### PHYS 301 | ENERGY AND THE ENVIRONMENT

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (PHYS 271 and PHYS 271L) or (PHYS 137 and PHYS 137L) Energy is the lifeblood of civilization, but its use entails substantial environmental costs. This course examines the physics and technology of energy production, distribution and use, as well as its environmental and societal consequences. It is suitable for students having completed lower-division physics.

#### PHYS 307 | ASTROPHYSICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: PHYS 272 and PHYS 272L  $\,$ 

A study of the fundamental principles of astrophysics including topics such as stellar formation, life and death, galaxy evolution, special and general relativity, and cosmology.

#### PHYS 314 | ANALYTICAL MECHANICS

**Units: 3 Repeatability: No** 

Prerequisites: PHYS 271 and PHYS 271L and MATH 250

Statics and dynamics are developed using vector analysis, the Hamiltonian and Lagrangian formulations. Orbit theory and chaos are among the special topics treated.

#### PHYS 319 | THERMAL AND STATISTICAL PHYSICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: PHYS 272

This course develops modern statistical mechanics and its application to thermodynamic principles and phenomena. Topics include ideal gases, phase transitions, stellar systems, chemical equilibrium, kinetic theory, paramagnetism, polymers and biophysics.

#### PHYS 324 | ELECTROMAGNETISM

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MATH 250 (Can be taken Concurrently) and PHYS 272
A development of Maxwell's equations using vector calculus. The electrical and magnetic properties of matter, solutions of boundary value problems, special relativity and radiation theory are also developed. Three lectures per week.

#### PHYS 325 | INTRODUCTION TO FLUIDS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: PHYS 272 and MATH 250

An introduction to the basic principles of fluids. This course will serve as an introduction to concepts used in physical oceanography, atmospheric science, and other disciplines in which fluids are studied or utilized. Examples of applications to a broad range of disciplines (physics, engineering, earth sciences, astrophysics, and biology) will be developed.

#### PHYS 330 | QUANTUM MECHANICS

#### **Units: 3 Repeatability: No**

Prerequisites: MATH 250 and PHYS 272

Introduction to the fundamental properties of nonrelativistic quantum mechanics, including the Schrödinger equation in 1-3 dimensions, the mathematical formalism (involving linear algebra and partial differential equations) of quantum theory, the solution of the hydrogen atom, and elementary perturbation and scattering theory. Entanglement, Bell's theorem, exotic states of matter, and history of physics are among the special topics discussed.

#### PHYS 331 | ADVANCED TOPICS IN QUANTUM PHYSICS

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: PHYS 330

Applications of Quantum Theory in areas such as atomic, nuclear, solid state, and elementary particle physics.

#### PHYS 340 | BIOLOGICAL PHYSICS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: PHYS 272

Biological physics introduces the interface between the two classic sciences. Physics principles and techniques are applied to questions and problems in biology with a focus on molecular and cellular biology. Topics will be introduced systematically, building on the fundamentals of thermodynamics up to current cutting edge research topics such as protein folding, molecular machines and brain function. Specific topics may include single-molecule biophysics, optical trapping, molecular and cellular self-assembly, gene regulation, biomaterials and biomedical imaging.

#### PHYS 371 | COMPUTATIONAL PHYSICS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MATH 151 and PHYS 272 (Can be taken Concurrently)
A hands-on introduction to the implementation of computational algorithms to solve problems in physics and biophysics and the interpretation of the results.

Detailed topics covered will depend on instructor expertise. Topics may include solutions to ordinary and partial differential equations, linear algebra, fast Fourier transforms, numerical integration, differentiation and approximation, statistics and Monte Carlo methods

#### PHYS 381 | EXPERIMENTAL BIOPHYSICS

#### Units: 4 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Quantitative reasoning comp

Prerequisites: PHYS 272 and PHYS 272L

A laboratory-based course introducing biophysics majors to interdisciplinary research techniques. Instrumentation development and experimental research explore topics of fluorescence and force spectroscopy, molecular diffusion, fluctuation-dissipation theory and viscoelasticity related to molecular and cellular biophysical systems. Students are trained in wet-lab techniques and computational methods using Matlab and Fiji. This is the primary upper-division laboratory requirement for biophysics majors and fulfills the core advanced writing and quantitative reasoning requirements. Students write and edit research reports on their experimental results at a level suitable for journal publication. The writing process also includes literature search techniques and an introduction to the peer review process.

#### PHYS 480 | EXPERIMENTAL MODERN PHYSICS

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency

Prerequisites: CHEM 330

A laboratory-based course focused on the introduction to principles of research techniques with an emphasis on modern physics. Experiments illustrate physical phenomena pertaining to core areas of physics: quantum mechanics, atomic and nuclear physics, laser physics and plasma physics. Analog and digital data acquisition instrumentation, high-resolution optical and laser technology, and phase sensitive detection technology will be explored. This course is the required writing-intensive course for physics majors and fulfills the upper-division core writing requirement. Students write papers up to professional standards required of publication in physics research journals, learn to write mathematical prose, engage in the peer review process, and learn to code LaTeX.

### PHYS 481W | EXPERIMENTAL BIOPHYSICS

#### Units: 4

#### **Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE**

Prerequisites: PHYS 272 and PHYS 272L and MATH 250

A laboratory-based course focused on the introduction to principles of biophysics research techniques. Instrumentation development and experimental research will explore topics of fluorescence and force spectroscopy, molecular diffusion, fluctuation-dissipation theory and viscoelasticity related to molecular and cellular biophysical systems. Students will also be trained in general wet-lab techniques and computational data acquisition and analysis using Labview and Matlab. This course is the primary upper division laboratory requirement for the biophysics major and fulfills the upper division core writing requirement. Students will write and edit research reports on their experimental results at a level suitable for journal publication. The writing process will also include literature search techniques and an introduction to the peer review process.

#### PHYS 487 | TECHNIQUES IN PHYSICS

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Training and practice in those areas of physics of practical importance to the technician, teacher, and researcher. To include, but not limited to, technical methodology, preparation and technique in the teaching laboratory, and routines supportive of research. May be repeated up to a maximum of four units of credit.

# PHYS 493 | SEMINAR I: THE CRAFT OF SCIENTIFIC PRESENTATION Units: 1 Repeatability: No

#### **Core Attributes: Oral communication competency**

Prerequisites: PHYS 496

First semester of the physics and biophysics seminar series devoted to instruction on scientific presentations. Students give short presentations on topics of interest, and prepare a lengthy presentation on their research. Stress is laid on the preparation, execution, and critique of effective scientific presentations. One hour per week. Fall semester.

#### PHYS 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: PHYS 271 and PHYS 271L

Topics chosen by the instructor in areas such as: thermodynamics, statistical mechanics, solid state, hydrodynamics, quantum mechanics, plasma physics, nuclear physics, elementary particle physics, and advanced physics laboratory. May be repeated for credit if the course material is different.

#### PHYS 495 | SEMINAR II: FRONTIERS OF PHYSICS Units: 1

The second semester of the seminar series focuses on exposure to current physics research in the form of informal and formal presentations, lab tours, and scientific articles on a wide range of current research fields. Students will attend physics seminars at UCSD and will meet with physicists in fields related to the seminar beforehand. To prepare for the seminars and meetings, students will read journal articles on the topic. Students will learn about a wide range of cutting-edge physics research topics such as: dark matter, global warming and alternative energy sources, biomechanics, string theory, neutrinos, etc. Meets 2-4 hours every other Thursday. Spring semester.

#### PHYS 496 | RESEARCH

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

An independent research project supervised by a faculty mentor in the physics department. Each student works closely with a faculty mentor to address a mutually agreed upon research problem in experimental or theoretical physics. A student seeking PHYS 496 credit must take initiative to meet with physics faculty members to learn about their research interests and possible problems to research. PHYS 496 credit requires the consent of the faculty mentor. A written report is required.

#### PHYS 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

# **Physics**

The Physics Major program explores how the universe operates from subatomic scales to the intergalactic. Physics majors learn to recognize the fundamental principles that underlie all physical phenomena and question the phenomena that still mystify us. Students of physics become model-builders of everything from black holes, to artificial intelligence, to the hidden patterns of the stock market. The collective knowledge, skills and experiences students gain through the physics program make them highly competitive for prestigious scholastic awards, graduate school admissions, and employment at leading technology and engineering companies.

## Physics Coursework

Physics majors have the opportunity to take a range of classes from quantum mechanics and astrophysics, to optics and fluid mechanics, to computational physics. A strong foundation in physics, mathematics and computational methods enables physics majors to succeed in their upper-division courses. Our advanced laboratory course prepares students to conduct independent research and write scientific papers. Our independent research and capstone experiences enable students to explore the frontiers of physics research, learn valuable scientific communication skills, and develop quantitative problem-solving skills. Students also have the freedom to choose from a wide range of upper-division physics courses to complete their program of study, allowing them to shape the major to best fit their interests and aspirations.

### **Engineering Physics Pathway**

For students interested in engineering, we offer a 5-year Pathway to earn a BA in Physics and a BS/BA in Mechanical Engineering. Requirements and a

Recommended Plan of Study for this pathway are described in detail under the Major tab.

#### Physics Education Pathway

For students interested in pursuing K-12 education, we offer a 4-year pathway to earn a BA in Physics as well as a single-subject teaching credential and preparation for the California Subject Examination for Teachers (CSET). Requirements and a Recommended Plan of Study for this pathway are described in detail under the Major tab.

### Physics Research

Physics majors learn about the frontiers of physics research, and explore their own research questions. Physics faculty do research on a range of cutting-edge topics including astrophysics, materials technology, plasma science, adaptive optics, computational physics, high-energy physics, alternative energy, biochemical engineering, and molecular and cellular biophysics. Physics majors are encouraged to start conducting faculty-led research on these topics as early as their freshman year. Undergraduate researchers learn first-hand where the limits of humanity's scientific understanding lie and how to push those limits outward. Student researchers learn experimental, computational and theoretical research techniques, and gain first-hand experience with advanced physics instrumentation including optical tweezers, light-sheet and confocal microscopes, tunable diode lasers, pulsed NMR, and vacuum chambers. Many of our majors have opportunities to travel and present their work at research conferences, publish scientific papers, and network with leading scientists in the field.

### Why Physics?

Because physics majors comprise only 2% of all STEM bachelor's degrees awarded each year, our majors stand out and are sought out by a wide variety of graduate programs and companies. Many of our majors pursue graduate programs in physics, engineering, computer science, materials science, and astronomy. Immediately after graduation, physics majors are also highly successful in obtaining jobs in engineering, data science, finance, information technology, and education.

Students completing the *Engineering Physics Pathway* are particularly competitive for positions at premier engineering firms.

Students who complete the *Physics Education Pathway* are immediately employed as high school or junior high physics teachers.

# **Physics Major**

### Preparation for the Major (33-35 Units)

Code	Title	Units
PHYS 270	Introduction to Mechanics	4
& 270L	and Mechanics Lab	
PHYS 271	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism	4
& 271L	and Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism Lab	
PHYS 272	Introduction to Modern Physics	4
& 272L	and Introduction to Modern Physics Lab	
PHYS 282	Introduction to Methods in Computational Physics	1
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
MATH 250	Calculus III	4
CHEM 151	General Chemistry I	4
& 151L	and General Chemistry I Laboratory	
CHEM 152	General Chemistry II	4-6
& 152L	and General Chemistry II Laboratory	

or MENG 260	Introduction to Thermal Sciences
& ENGR 311	and Engineering Materials Science

MENG 260 & ENGR 311 are required for the PHYS-MENG multiple degree program

**Total Units** 33-35

#### Major Requirements (34-37 Units)

Upper-division coursework in physics includes PHYS 314, PHYS 319, PHYS 324, PHYS 330, and PHYS 480. In addition, students must complete 9 units of 300-level physics electives. The major culminates with independent research (PHYS 496) and our seminar series (PHYS 493 and PHYS 495). While only 1 unit of PHYS 496 is required, students are encouraged to start research (PHYS 496) as early as possible and take 2-3 units. Two upper-division courses in mathematics are required for the major, and should be taken as early as possible, with MATH 310 and MATH 331 suggested.

For students in the PHYS-MENG multiple degree program, the requirement for 9 physics elective units is replaced with PHYS 371, MENG 400/MENG 400L, and 3 units of 300-level physics electives. The math requirements are also replaced with MATH 310 and (MATH 315 or ISYE 330). COMM 203 is a suitable replacement for PHYS 493, if desired.

Code	Title	Units	
PHYS 314	Analytical Mechanics	3	
PHYS 319	Thermal and Statistical Physics	3	
PHYS 324	Electromagnetism	3	
PHYS 330	Quantum Mechanics	3	
PHYS 480	Experimental Modern Physics	4	
PHYS 493	Seminar I: The Craft of Scientific Presentation	1-3	
or COMM 203	Public Speaking		
PHYS 495	Seminar II: Frontiers of Physics	1	
PHYS 496	Research	1	
9 units of 300-level physics electives, or (3 units of 300-level physics electives, PHYS 371, and MENG 400 & MENG 400L)*			
Two 300-level Mathematics courses (MATH 310 and MATH 331 are suggested, as well as MATH 311, MATH 320 and MATH 330)		6	
OR (MATH 310	and (ISYE 330 or MATH 315))*		
*required for the P	*required for the PHYS-MENG multiple degree program		
Total Units		34-37	

The following program of study fulfills the minimum requirement for a bachelor's degree in physics. However, junior and senior year physics courses will depend on the student's graduation year, as many upper-division courses are offered every other year. Students are encouraged to meet with their academic advisors to map out a schedule that best fits their needs and interests.

#### Freshman Year

Semester I		Units
LLC Course		3
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
Core or Electives		9
Semester II		
PHYS 270 & 270L	Introduction to Mechanics	4
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
Core or Electives		7-9

#### Sophomore Year

	Semester I		
	PHYS 271	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism	4
	& 271L	Ç	
5	CHEM 151	General Chemistry I	4
	& 151L		
	MATH 250	Calculus III	4
	Core or Electives		3-6
	Semester II		
	PHYS 272	Introduction to Modern Physics	4
	& 272L		
	PHYS 282	Introduction to Methods in Computational Physics	1
	CHEM 152	General Chemistry II	4
	& 152L	•	
	CHEM 152L	General Chemistry II Laboratory	1
	PHYS 496	Research	1
	Junior Year		
	Semester I		
	PHYS 319	Thermal and Statistical Physics	3
3	PHYS 330	Quantum Mechanics	3
	MATH 310	Applied Mathematics for Science and Engineering I	3
	Core or Electives		5-8
	Semester II		
	PHYS 314	Analytical Mechanics	3
	PHYS Elective		3
	MATH 331	Partial Differential Equations	3
	Core or Electives		6-9
	Senior Year		
	Semester I		
	PHYS 324	Electromagnetism	3
	PHYS Elective	Dietromagneusm	3
	PHYS 493	Seminar I: The Craft of Scientific Presentation	1
	PHYS 496	Research	1
	Core or Electives		5-8
7	Semester II		
	PHYS 480	Experimental Modern Physics	4
	PHYS Elective	Experimental Wodern I hysics	3
	PHYS 495	Seminar II: Frontiers of Physics	1
	Core or Electives	The residence of the state of t	6-9
	Core of Electives		0 )

## PHYS-MENG Multiple Degree Program: Requirements & Recommended Course Schedule

The following program of study fulfills the minimum requirement for a BA in Physics and a BA/BS in Mechanical Engineering. However, junior and senior year physics courses will depend on the student's graduation year, as many upperdivision physics courses are offered every other year. Students are encouraged to

& 350L

PHYS 3191

Thermal and Statistical Physics (counts as

MENG Elective #1)

meet with their academic advisors to map out a schedule that best fits their needs Senior Year and interests. Semester I **PHYS 314** Analytical Mechanics 3 Freshman Year **PHIL 342 Engineering Ethics** 3 Units Semester I MENG 400 Heat Transfer (counts as PHYS Elective #1) 4 **ENGR 101** Introduction to Engineering 3 & 400L **MATH 150** 4 Calculus I **MENG 430** Design of Machine Elements 3 **ENGR 121 Engineering Programming** 3 MENG 491W Senior Design Project I 4 Core or Electives Semester II Semester II **MENG 492** Senior Design Project II 3 **ENGR 102** Introduction to Electromechanical System 3 PHYS 3241 Electromagnetism (counts as MENG Elective 3 Design **PHYS 270** Introduction to Mechanics 4 PHYS Elective 3 & 270L Core or Electives 6 Calculus II 4 **MATH 151** Senior Year 2 **CHEM 151** General Chemistry I 4 & 151L Semester I Core or Electives PHYS 330<sup>1</sup> Quantum Mechanics (counts as MENG Elective 3 Sophomore Year PHYS 493<sup>2</sup> Seminar I: The Craft of Scientific Presentation Semester I PHYS 496<sup>3</sup> Research 3 **ENGR 103** User-Centered Design Core and Electives 9-10 **PHYS 271** Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism Semester II & 271L PHYS 371<sup>1</sup> Calculus III **MATH 250** 4 Computational Physics (counts as MENG 3 Core or Electives 6 Elective #4 - simulation course) **PHYS 480** Experimental Modern Physics (counts as MENG 4 Semester II Elective #5) **PHYS 272** Introduction to Modern Physics 4 **PHYS 495** Seminar II: Frontiers of Physics 1 & 272L Core and Electives 6 **PHYS 282** Introduction to Methods in Computational 1. There are 5 MENG elective requirements in the MENG major, one of which **MATH 310** Applied Mathematics for Science and 3 must be a simulations course. PHYS 319, 324, 330, 480, and 371 count as MENG Engineering I electives, with PHYS 371: Computational Physics, counting as the simulations ELEC 201 Electrical Circuits 4 elective. **MENG 210** 3 2. ROTC students may substitute NAVS 201, MILS 301, or SDSU AS 300A **MENG 260** Introduction to Thermal Sciences for COMM 203, which is the commonly taken in the engineering program. These Junior Year classes will not satisfy university core requirements. Instead we recommend a 1 unit course that has the university core Oral Communication attribute, PHYS 493 Semester I **MATH 315** Applied Probability and Statistics 3 3. Research is often completed in the summer or ISYE 330 Engineering Probability and Statistics 3-4 **MENG 300** Applied Thermodynamics Integrated Teacher Preparation Program Machine Shop Practices **MENG 351 CAD Practices MENG 352** (ITPP): Requirements & Recommended **MENG 375 Dynamics** Course Schedule 3 **ENGR 311 Engineering Materials Science** The Integrated Teacher Preparation Program (ITPP) provides paths to 4-year Core or Electives science and math degrees that include a teaching credential and preparation for Semester II the California Subject Examination for Teachers (CSET). Students who are **MENG 360** Fluid Mechanics interested in middle or secondary education (grades 6-12) in California may & 360L earn a degree in physics while simultaneously completing requirements for a **MENG 370** Mechanics of Materials teaching credential. The degree integrates content knowledge and laboratory & 370L practices in the discipline, evidence-based teaching/learning theories, teaching **ISYE 350** Manufacturing Processes performance expectations, and pre-student teaching clinical practice while

satisfying baccalaureate degree requirements and CTC single subject credential program standards. There is some flexibility to meet individual needs. Students

6

3

9

3

3

are encouraged to consult the ITPP website (http://www.sandiego.edu/itpp) and advisors (itpp@sandiego.edu) to ensure that their needs and interests will be met.

In addition to all courses for the physics major, students completing the ITPP pathway must also take the following:

Code	Title	Units
BIOL 240 & 240L	Bioenergetics and Systems and Bioenergetics and Systems Laboratory	4
BIOL 242 & 242L	Genomes and Evolution and Genomes and Evolution Laboratory	4
EOSC 110	Introduction to Geosciences	4
EDUC 332P	Curriculum and Methods of Teaching in Today's Global Secondary Classrooms	3
EDUC 334P	Methods of Teaching Literacy in Secondary Schools in a Global Society	. 3
EDUC 337P	Foundations in Curriculum and Instruction Theory: Secondary Praxis in Historical Context	3
EDUC 381C	Multicultural and Philosophical Foundations in a Global Society	3
EDUC 382	Psychological Foundations of Education in a Diverse Society	3
EDUC 384C	Methods of Teaching English Language and Academic Development in Crosscultural Contexts	3
EDUC 491P	Student Teaching for the Single Subject Credential	9
EDUC 491S	Student Teaching Seminar for the Single Subject Credential	3
EDSP 389P	Healthy Environments and Inclusive Education in a Global Society	3
Total Units		45

The following paradigm is included as a guide only, and should not be interpreted in a rigid sense. Physics courses may be taken at any time as long as the course prerequisites have been satisfied.

# Recommended Course Schedule, Physics ITPP Pathway

#### Freshman Year

Semester I		Units
LLC Course		3
CHEM 151 & 151L	General Chemistry I	4
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
Core or Electives		6
Semester II		
CHEM 152 & 152L	General Chemistry II	4
PHYS 270 & 270L	Introduction to Mechanics	4
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
Core or Electives		3
Semester III (Summer	•)	
EOSC 110	Introduction to Geosciences	4
BIOL 240 & 240L	Bioenergetics and Systems	4

Sophomore Yea
---------------

**Semester III (Summer)**Core or Electives

Senior Year Semester I EDUC 334P

EDUC 491P

**EDUC 491S** 

Semester II PHYS 324

Sophomore Year		
Semester I		
PHYS 271	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism	4
& 271L		
PHYS 494	Special Topics	1
MATH 250	Calculus III	4
EDUC 381C	Multicultural and Philosophical Foundations in a Global Society	3
Core or Electives		3
Semester II		
PHYS 272 & 272L	Introduction to Modern Physics	4
PHYS 282	Introduction to Methods in Computational Physics	1
MATH 310	Applied Mathematics for Science and Engineering I	3
EDUC 382	Psychological Foundations of Education in a Diverse Society	3
Core or Electives		3
Semester III (Summe	r)	
BIOL 242	Genomes and Evolution	4
& 242L		
EDSP 389P	Healthy Environments and Inclusive Education in a Global Society	3
Junior Year		
Semester I		
PHYS 319	Thermal and Statistical Physics	3
PHYS 330	Quantum Mechanics	3
MATH 331	Partial Differential Equations	3
PHIL 341	Ethics and Education	3
EDUC 332P	Curriculum and Methods of Teaching in Today's Global Secondary Classrooms	3
Semester II		
PHYS 314	Analytical Mechanics	3
PHYS Elective		3
EDUC 337P	Foundations in Curriculum and Instruction Theory: Secondary Praxis in Historical Context	3
EDUC 384C	Methods of Teaching English Language and Academic Development in Crosscultural Contexts	3
Core or Electives		3

Methods of Teaching Literacy in Secondary

Student Teaching Seminar for the Single Subject

Student Teaching for the Single Subject

Schools in a Global Society

Credential

Credential

Electromagnetism

PHYS Elective

PHYS 480 Experimental Modern Physics

Core or Electives

### **Physics Minor**

The 18 units required for a minor in Physics must include:

#### Code Title

Select either 8 units from the 270 series or units from the 136 series along with PHYS 272 & PHYS 272L

PHYS 270 & 270L	Introduction to Mechanics and Mechanics Lab	4
PHYS 271 & 271L	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism and Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism Lab	4
PHYS 136 & 136L	General Physics I and General Physics I Lab	4
PHYS 137 & 137L	General Physics II and General Physics II Lab	4
PHYS 272 & 272L	Introduction to Modern Physics and Introduction to Modern Physics Lab	4
	5	

6 additional Upper-Division Units

#### PHYS 102 | PHYSICS, ENERGY, AND INFORMATION

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area

Corequisites: PHYS 102L

An introduction to physics concepts and principles with tangents into related technologies and global issues. Special attention is paid to devices and networks that furnish two necessities of modern life: energy and information. No background in physical science is required.

#### PHYS 102L | PHYSICS, ENERGY, AND INFORMATION LAB

Units: 1 Repeatability: No Core Attributes: Lab Corequisites: PHYS 102

Laboratory component of PHYS 102. Guided hands-on investigation of physics principles and related technologies.

#### PHYS 105 | PHYSICAL SCIENCES FOR K-8 TEACHERS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area, Lab

A laboratory/lecture/discussion class designed to lead students toward an understanding of selected topics in chemistry and physics. The course topics are selected to satisfy the Physical Science specifications of the Science Content Standards for California Public Schools (K-12). Enrollment is limited to liberal studies majors. Two two-hour laboratory sessions per week. This course is cross-listed with Chemistry 105. Fall semester.

#### PHYS 136 | GENERAL PHYSICS I

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Physical Science-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150)

Corequisites: PHYS 136L

A study of the fundamental principles of mechanics and wave motion, sound, and heat. Algebra and some calculus are required. Three hours of lecture weekly. Concurrent enrollment in 136L required.

#### 3 PHYS 136L | GENERAL PHYSICS I LAB

- 4 Units: 1 Repeatability: No
  - Core Attributes: Lab
- Prerequisites: PHYS 136 (Can be taken Concurrently)

A laboratory course introducing the concepts and techniques of experimental physics. Meets weekly.

#### PHYS 137 | GENERAL PHYSICS II

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Units Prerequisites: PHYS 136 and PHYS 136L and (MATH 130 or MATH 150)

Corequisites: PHYS 137L

A study of the fundamental principles of electricity and magnetism, light, and modern physics. Algebra and some calculus are required. Three hours of lecture weekly. Concurrent enrollment in 137L required.

#### PHYS 137L | GENERAL PHYSICS II LAB

Units: 1 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Lab** 

Prerequisites: PHYS 137 (Can be taken Concurrently)

A laboratory course introducing the concepts and techniques of experimental physics. Meets weekly.

#### PHYS 270 | INTRODUCTION TO MECHANICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Science/Tech Inquiry area

Prerequisites: MATH 150 or MATH 151

Corequisites: PHYS 270L

A study of the fundamental principles of Newtonian mechanics, kinematics, and momentum and energy conservation laws. Harmonic oscillations and wave motion will also be discussed. Three hours of lecture weekly. Concurrent enrollment in 270L required.

#### PHYS 270L | MECHANICS LAB

Units: 1 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area, Lab

Prerequisites: PHYS 270 (Can be taken Concurrently)

A laboratory course introducing the concepts and techniques of experimental physics. Meets weekly.

# PHYS 271 | INTRODUCTION TO ELECTRICITY AND MAGNETISM Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (PHYS 270 and PHYS 270L) or (PHYS 136 and PHYS 136L) and MATH 151 and PHYS 271L (Can be taken Concurrently)

A study of the fundamental principles of classical electricity and magnetism focusing on electrostatics and magnetic force. Circuits, electromagnetism, and light are also introduced. Three hours of lecture weekly. Concurrent enrollment in 271L required.

# PHYS 271L $\mid$ INTRODUCTION TO ELECTRICITY AND MAGNETISM LAB

Units: 1 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area

Prerequisites: PHYS 271 (Can be taken Concurrently)

A laboratory course that introduces the concepts and techniques of experimental physics. Meets weekly.

#### PHYS 272 | INTRODUCTION TO MODERN PHYSICS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MATH 151 and MATH 250 (Can be taken Concurrently) and PHYS 272L (Can be taken Concurrently) and (PHYS 271 and PHYS 271L) or (PHYS 137 and PHYS 137L) and PHYS 272L (Can be taken Concurrently) An introduction to modern physics including principles and applications of quantum mechanics, atomic and nuclear physics, and special relativity. Required for all physics and biophysics majors and physics minors, and is an accepted elective for engineering students. Concurrent enrollment in PHYS 272L required. For physics and biophysics majors concurrent enrollment in PHYS 282 is also required.

#### PHYS 272L | INTRODUCTION TO MODERN PHYSICS LAB

Units: 1

**Core Attributes: Lab** Corequisites: PHYS 272

Laboratory experiments to illustrate the topics presented in the lecture course: Introduction to Modern Physics (PHYS 272).

# PHYS 282 | INTRODUCTION TO METHODS IN COMPUTATIONAL PHYSICS

Units: 1 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Lab**Prerequisites: PHYS 272

A hands-on introduction to the fundamentals of using computation in physics and biophysics. A combination of in-class guided group practice and at-home individual practice will be employed to introduce, practice and apply fundamental computational techniques including: the declaration and manipulation of variables and arrays, conditional statements, loops, as well as procedural programming through creating functions. These fundamentals will be applied to creating graphical representations and performing calculations to further elucidate topics discussed in PHYS 272. Computational techniques will be introduced to highlight the application of these fundamentals. These techniques may include: solutions to initial value problem ordinary differential equations; solving boundary value problems and the eigenvalue problem; and statistics and stochastic methods.

#### PHYS 301 | ENERGY AND THE ENVIRONMENT

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (PHYS 271 and PHYS 271L) or (PHYS 137 and PHYS 137L) Energy is the lifeblood of civilization, but its use entails substantial environmental costs. This course examines the physics and technology of energy production, distribution and use, as well as its environmental and societal consequences. It is suitable for students having completed lower-division physics.

#### PHYS 307 | ASTROPHYSICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: PHYS 272 and PHYS 272L

A study of the fundamental principles of astrophysics including topics such as stellar formation, life and death, galaxy evolution, special and general relativity, and cosmology.

#### PHYS 314 | ANALYTICAL MECHANICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: PHYS 271 and PHYS 271L and MATH 250

Statics and dynamics are developed using vector analysis, the Hamiltonian and Lagrangian formulations. Orbit theory and chaos are among the special topics treated.

#### PHYS 319 | THERMAL AND STATISTICAL PHYSICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: PHYS 272

This course develops modern statistical mechanics and its application to thermodynamic principles and phenomena. Topics include ideal gases, phase transitions, stellar systems, chemical equilibrium, kinetic theory, paramagnetism, polymers and biophysics.

#### PHYS 324 | ELECTROMAGNETISM

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MATH 250 (Can be taken Concurrently) and PHYS 272
A development of Maxwell's equations using vector calculus. The electrical and magnetic properties of matter, solutions of boundary value problems, special relativity and radiation theory are also developed. Three lectures per week.

#### PHYS 325 | INTRODUCTION TO FLUIDS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: PHYS 272 and MATH 250

An introduction to the basic principles of fluids. This course will serve as an introduction to concepts used in physical oceanography, atmospheric science, and other disciplines in which fluids are studied or utilized. Examples of applications to a broad range of disciplines (physics, engineering, earth sciences, astrophysics, and biology) will be developed.

#### PHYS 330 | QUANTUM MECHANICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MATH 250 and PHYS 272

Introduction to the fundamental properties of nonrelativistic quantum mechanics, including the Schrödinger equation in 1-3 dimensions, the mathematical formalism (involving linear algebra and partial differential equations) of quantum theory, the solution of the hydrogen atom, and elementary perturbation and scattering theory. Entanglement, Bell's theorem, exotic states of matter, and history of physics are among the special topics discussed.

#### PHYS 331 | ADVANCED TOPICS IN QUANTUM PHYSICS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: PHYS 330

Applications of Quantum Theory in areas such as atomic, nuclear, solid state, and elementary particle physics.

#### PHYS 340 | BIOLOGICAL PHYSICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No Prerequisites: PHYS 272

Biological physics introduces the interface between the two classic sciences. Physics principles and techniques are applied to questions and problems in biology with a focus on molecular and cellular biology. Topics will be introduced systematically, building on the fundamentals of thermodynamics up to current cutting edge research topics such as protein folding, molecular machines and brain function. Specific topics may include single-molecule biophysics, optical trapping, molecular and cellular self-assembly, gene regulation, biomaterials and biomedical imaging.

#### PHYS 371 | COMPUTATIONAL PHYSICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MATH 151 and PHYS 272 (Can be taken Concurrently)
A hands-on introduction to the implementation of computational algorithms to solve problems in physics and biophysics and the interpretation of the results.

Detailed topics covered will depend on instructor expertise. Topics may include solutions to ordinary and partial differential equations, linear algebra, fast Fourier transforms, numerical integration, differentiation and approximation, statistics and Monte Carlo methods.

#### PHYS 381 | EXPERIMENTAL BIOPHYSICS

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Quantitative reasoning comp

Prerequisites: PHYS 272 and PHYS 272L

A laboratory-based course introducing biophysics majors to interdisciplinary research techniques. Instrumentation development and experimental research explore topics of fluorescence and force spectroscopy, molecular diffusion, fluctuation-dissipation theory and viscoelasticity related to molecular and cellular biophysical systems. Students are trained in wet-lab techniques and computational methods using Matlab and Fiji. This is the primary upper-division laboratory requirement for biophysics majors and fulfills the core advanced writing and quantitative reasoning requirements. Students write and edit research reports on their experimental results at a level suitable for journal publication. The writing process also includes literature search techniques and an introduction to the peer review process.

#### PHYS 480 | EXPERIMENTAL MODERN PHYSICS

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency

Prerequisites: CHEM 330

A laboratory-based course focused on the introduction to principles of research techniques with an emphasis on modern physics. Experiments illustrate physical phenomena pertaining to core areas of physics: quantum mechanics, atomic and nuclear physics, laser physics and plasma physics. Analog and digital data acquisition instrumentation, high-resolution optical and laser technology, and phase sensitive detection technology will be explored. This course is the required writing-intensive course for physics majors and fulfills the upper-division core writing requirement. Students write papers up to professional standards required of publication in physics research journals, learn to write mathematical prose, engage in the peer review process, and learn to code LaTeX.

#### PHYS 481W | EXPERIMENTAL BIOPHYSICS

Units: 4

**Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: PHYS 272 and PHYS 272L and MATH 250

A laboratory-based course focused on the introduction to principles of biophysics research techniques. Instrumentation development and experimental research will explore topics of fluorescence and force spectroscopy, molecular diffusion, fluctuation-dissipation theory and viscoelasticity related to molecular and cellular biophysical systems. Students will also be trained in general wet-lab techniques and computational data acquisition and analysis using Labview and Matlab. This course is the primary upper division laboratory requirement for the biophysics major and fulfills the upper division core writing requirement. Students will write and edit research reports on their experimental results at a level suitable for journal publication. The writing process will also include literature search techniques and an introduction to the peer review process.

#### PHYS 487 | TECHNIQUES IN PHYSICS

### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Training and practice in those areas of physics of practical importance to the technician, teacher, and researcher. To include, but not limited to, technical methodology, preparation and technique in the teaching laboratory, and routines supportive of research. May be repeated up to a maximum of four units of credit.

# PHYS 493 | SEMINAR I: THE CRAFT OF SCIENTIFIC PRESENTATION Units: 1 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Oral communication competency** 

Prerequisites: PHYS 496

First semester of the physics and biophysics seminar series devoted to instruction on scientific presentations. Students give short presentations on topics of interest, and prepare a lengthy presentation on their research. Stress is laid on the preparation, execution, and critique of effective scientific presentations. One hour per week. Fall semester.

#### PHYS 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: PHYS 271 and PHYS 271L

Topics chosen by the instructor in areas such as: thermodynamics, statistical mechanics, solid state, hydrodynamics, quantum mechanics, plasma physics, nuclear physics, elementary particle physics, and advanced physics laboratory. May be repeated for credit if the course material is different.

# PHYS 495 | SEMINAR II: FRONTIERS OF PHYSICS

The second semester of the seminar series focuses on exposure to current physics research in the form of informal and formal presentations, lab tours, and scientific articles on a wide range of current research fields. Students will attend physics seminars at UCSD and will meet with physicists in fields related to the seminar beforehand. To prepare for the seminars and meetings, students will read journal articles on the topic. Students will learn about a wide range of cutting-edge physics research topics such as: dark matter, global warming and alternative energy sources, biomechanics, string theory, neutrinos, etc. Meets 2-4 hours every other Thursday. Spring semester.

#### PHYS 496 | RESEARCH

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

An independent research project supervised by a faculty mentor in the physics department. Each student works closely with a faculty mentor to address a mutually agreed upon research problem in experimental or theoretical physics. A student seeking PHYS 496 credit must take initiative to meet with physics faculty members to learn about their research interests and possible problems to research. PHYS 496 credit requires the consent of the faculty mentor. A written report is required.

#### PHYS 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

# Political Science and International Relations

The Department of Political Science and International Relations is committed to the liberal arts tradition of intellectual curiosity, academic rigor, and a pluralistic and diverse curriculum. Students will not only graduate with a solid understanding of the theories, practices and institutions of politics, but also with an appreciation of how to create a more just and humane world.

We offer a range of courses that address every corner of the globe and that prepare students to be astute and keen political observers and actors. Through our courses, we provide opportunities for students to improve their critical thinking skills and the ability to read, write, and speak clearly, skills that are central to the liberal arts tradition and that are crucial for students to practice democratic citizenship.

To supplement these courses, we provide internship, community service learning and study abroad opportunities that encourage learning outside of the classroom.

The Political Science major focuses attention on the shared and contending ideas, values, institutions and processes of public life. Courses range from the specific study of politics in one country or of a single institution or political process (the judiciary, Congress, the presidency or elections), to more general offerings such as courses on political development, revolution, research methods, human rights and legal theory. Click here for more information on the Political Science major requirements.

The International Relations major is an interdisciplinary field of study designed for students who seek a holistic understanding of international affairs. The curriculum is rooted in political science and provides students with a strong background in international relations and comparative government.

### **International Relations**

### Chair

Vidya Nadkarni, PhD

# **Faculty**

Del Dickson, JD, PhD

Casey B. K. Dominguez, PhD

Patrick F. Drinan, PhD, EMERITUS

Emily Edmonds-Poli, PhD

Cory C. Gooding, PhD

Timothy W. McCarty, PhD

Noelle Norton, PhD

Lee Ann Otto, PhD

Michael R. Pfau, PhD

David Shirk, PhD

Avi Spiegel, JD, PhD

Andrew Tirrell, JD, MALD, PhD

J. Michael Williams, JD, PhD

Randy Willoughby, PhD

The International Relations (IR) major is an interdisciplinary field of study designed for students who seek a holistic understanding of international affairs. The curriculum is rooted in political science and provides students with a strong background in international relations and comparative government. At the same time, the curriculum reflects the recognition that international political phenomena are best understood from a variety of perspectives and includes courses from disciplines such as history, economics, religious studies, fine arts and literature. In order to complement their academic training with first-hand experience in a foreign country, students are also required to complete 3 units in a study abroad program. Graduates from the IR program are well prepared for careers in government, private industry, law, education and the nonprofit sector, as well as for graduate study in political science and international affairs. Students should note that courses counted toward another major/minor cannot also be counted toward the International Relations major or minor and that the department does not accept on-line transfer credits toward the major/minor.

# USD/Washington Center Internship Semester and Intersession Seminar

University of San Diego students have the opportunity to enroll in a semester-long internship program in Washington, D.C. and earn academic credit toward their major. These internships are coordinated through the Political Science and International Relations Department and The Washington Center, a nationally recognized internship program that pioneered the development of full-time internships in the nation's capital. The internship program combines real-world work experience with academic learning in a unique environment that fosters success and achievement. Students earn 12 semester units for participating in a full-time fall or spring semester program, and 6 to 9 units in the summer. Students

may not enroll in more than 6 internship units, and only 3 units may be used toward the major or minor.

Students also have the opportunity to enroll in a 3-unit intersession course in Washington, D.C. (POLS 434). This course provides students with an opportunity to study current political, social, and economic issues while living in Washington, D.C. for two weeks.

### **USD Internship Program**

Students may enroll in POLS 448. An internship provides an opportunity to gain practical, "real world" experience that gives depth and understanding to political issues and concepts discussed in the classroom. It encourages students to develop the ability to use personal experience to bring new insights and understanding to political processes. It also provides an opportunity to experience political and administrative activities, which may suggest future career possibilities. Students may not enroll in more than 6 internship units, and only 3 units may be used toward the major or minor.

The Department of Political Science and International Relations offers two majors. For information on the Political Science (http://catalogs.sandiego.edu/undergraduate/colleges-schools/arts-sciences/political-science) major, please see the Political Science section of this catalog.

# The International Relations Major

#### Preparation for the Major

Code	Title	Units
POLS 120	Introduction to American Politics	3
POLS 150	Introduction to Comparative Politics	3
POLS 170	Introduction to International Relations	3-4
Total Units		9-10

#### Major Requirements

42 units of upper-division work to include (note: course descriptions are listed under the Political Science major):

Code	Title	Units
Core Courses		
12 upper-division u	nits (POLS 330 is a prerequisite for POLS 495):	12
POLS 330	Research Methods in Political Science (typically offered Fall and Spring)	
POLS 350	Theories of Comparative Politics (typically offered in Fall)	
POLS 370	Theories of International Relations (typically offered in Spring)	
POLS 380	Theories of International Political Economy (typically offered in Fall)	
	offered in 1 any	

#### **International and Comparative Politics**

Select 15 upper-d	ivision units (five courses) from among the following:	15
POLS 326	Comparative Law	
POLS 327	International Law	
POLS 329	Law of the Sea	
POLS 348	Indigenous Peoples and the Environment	
POLS 349	Politics and the Environment	
POLS 352	Comparative Politics of Developing Countries	
POLS 354	Revolutionary Change	
POLS 355	Politics in Europe	
POLS 357	Politics in Latin America	

POLS 358	Politics in South Asia		ARTH 333	Modern Art: 1780-1920
POLS 359	Politics in the Middle East		ARTH 334	Art of the Twentieth and Twenty First Centuries in
POLS 360	Politics in Sub-Saharan Africa			Europe and the Americas
POLS 361	Politics in South Africa		ARTH 345	The Avant-Garde and Mass Culture: Art and Politics
POLS 362	Politics in the United Kingdom		ARTH 360	Asia Modern
POLS 363	Politics in France		ARTH 361	Chinoiserie and Japonisme
POLS 364	Politics in Germany		Business	
POLS 365	Politics in Russia		BSCM 305	Sustainable Global Supply Chain Management
POLS 366	Politics in Mexico		BUSN 339	Latin America Business Environment
POLS 367	Politics in Japan		BUSN 361	Introduction to International Business
POLS 368	Politics in China		BUSN 377	Negotiation in a Global Business Environment
POLS 371	American Foreign Policy		FINA 405	International Financial Management
POLS 374	U.SLatin American Relations		MGMT 301	Organizational Theory and Global Leadership
POLS 376	U.S. National Security		MGMT 309	International Comparative Management
POLS 377	Regional Security		MKTG 305	Global Marketing
POLS 378	Transnational Crime and Terrorism		MKTG 331	International Business to Business Marketing
POLS 379	International Political Boundaries and Border Policies		Communication	on
POLS 382	International Human Rights		COMM 380	International Media
POLS 383	International Organizations		COMM 480	Advanced Topics in International Media
POLS 480	Model United Nations		COMM 338	Media and Conflict
POLS 485	Washington, DC: Directed Study in International		<b>Economics</b>	
	Relations		ECON 333	International Economics
POLS 486	Washington, DC: Internship in International Relations		ECON 335	Economic Development of Latin America
POLS 487	Washington, DC: Class in International Relations		ECON 337	Economic Development of Asia
POLS 494	Special Topics in International Relations		English	
POLS 498	Internship in International Relations		ENGL 330	Dante
POLS 499	Independent Study in International Relations		ENGL 360	Modern And Contemporary Poetry
<b>Political Science</b>			ENGL 362	Modern And Contemporary Drama
Three upper-divisi	ion POLS units <sup>1</sup>	3	ENGL 364	Global Literature and Culture
Capstone <sup>2</sup>			ENGL 366	Modern and Contemporary European Literature
POLS 495	Senior Capstone Seminar	3	ENGL 368	Modern And Contemporary British Literature
Humanities and Social Sciences			ENGL 370	Modern and Contemporary Fiction
Nine upper-division units (three courses) with no more than three units (one		9	History	
course) taken from one department. Students must take one course from the			HIST 340	World War I
History Department (from those listed below). Other upper-division courses			HIST 341	World War II
with predominantly international or comparative content can be used upon specific approval by the department Chair. Note: Some of the courses listed			HIST 342	From Subjects to Citizens: Nation Building in France
below may have additional prerequisites. <sup>3</sup>				and India
Anthropology			HIST 343	History of Germany Since 1945
ANTH 327	South American Indian Cultures		HIST 347	Topics in Modern Europe
ANTH 334	South American Archaeology		HIST 348	France in Revolution and War
ANTH 335	Nautical Archaeology		HIST 349	The Vietnam Wars
ANTH 339	Post Medieval Seafaring and Empire		HIST 351	Modern Britain
ANTH 362	Piracy in the new World		HIST 352	The British Imperial Experience
ANTH 370	Indigenous Religions		HIST 354	History of Spain
ANTH 385	Native Peoples of Northwest Europe		HIST 355	Imperial Russia
Art History	<u>r</u>		HIST 356	Soviet Union and After
ARCH 322	Contemporary Architecture		HIST 357	Topics in Russian and East European History
	22 Contemporary Architecture		HIST 358	Topics in Modern World History
ARCH 340	Biographies of World Cities		HIST 359	Modern Middle East
or ARTH 340 Biographies of World Cities			HIST 361	Modern Latin America
ARTH 323	Memory, Monument, Museum: Politics of Display		HIST 362	Topics in Latin America History
ARTH 331	Art in Public Spaces		HIST 363	History of Brazil
111111111111111111111111111111111111111	The first done opaces			

HIST 364	Topics in Asian History	ITAL 413	Italian Literature of Migration
HIST 365	China: Rise to Global Power	ITAL 420	Dante and His Times
HIST 366	Japan: Samurai to Subaru	ITAL 494	Topics in Literature, Language, or Culture
HIST 367	Women's Lives in East Asia	Japanese	
HIST 368	The African Historical Experience	JAPN 394	Topics in Language, Literature, or Culture
HIST 369	Topics in African History	Spanish	
HIST 376	U.S. Foreign Relations in the Long 19th Century	SPAN 302	Cultural History of Spain
HIST 377	Twentieth Century U.S. Foreign Relations	SPAN 303	Introduction To Cultural Analysis
HIST 384	History of Mexico	SPAN 304	Cultural History of Latin America
Language		SPAN 320	Survey of Spanish Literature
Arabic		SPAN 360	Survey of Latin American Literature
ARAB 394	Topics in Language, Literature, or Culture	SPAN 394	Topics in Language, Literature, or Culture
Chinese		SPAN 410D	Latin@ Literatures and Cultures
CHIN 302	Contemporary China: Culture, Politics and Society	SPAN 422	Studies in Medieval Spanish Literature
CHIN 303	Media Chinese: Internet, Television and Film	SPAN 423	Studies in Spanish Literature of the Golden Age
CHIN 347	Chinese Cinema:Postsocialism and Modernity	SPAN 424	Don Quijote de la Mancha
French		SPAN 426	Studies in 18th and 19th Century Peninsular Literature
FREN 302	Introduction to the Analysis of French Literary Texts	517111120	and Culture
FREN 303	Cultural Backgrounds of French Civilization	SPAN 427	Studies in 20th and 21st Century Peninsular Literature
FREN 320	Survey of French Literature I: Middle Ages to 18th		and Culture
	Century	SPAN 430	Studies in Hispanic Film
FREN 321	Survey of French Literature II: 19th to 21st Centuries	SPAN 434	The "New" World
FREN 322	Survey of Francophone Literature	SPAN 448	Latin American Short Story
FREN 347	Invisible Identities in Cinema in French	SPAN 449	Latin American Novel
FREN 394	Topics in Language, Literature, or Culture	SPAN 451	Latin American Poetry
FREN 403	Contemporary French Civilization	SPAN 453	Mexican Literature and Culture
FREN 409	Contemporary African Francophone Theatre	SPAN 458	Jewish Latin America
FREN 410	French Theater	SPAN 494	Topics in Language, Literature, or Culture
FREN 411	French Prose	Music	
FREN 412	French Novel	MUSC 331	Music History II: 1600-1830 (Monteverdi-Beethoven)
FREN 413	French Poetry	MUSC 332	Music History III: 1830-Present (Schubert to Philip
FREN 414	French Women Writers	NET 19 0 10	Glass)
FREN 494	Topics in French Literature, Language or Culture	MUSC 340	Topics in World Music
German		MUSC 341	Religion and the Performing Arts in Bali
GERM 302	Readings in German Literature	MUSC 440W	Topics in Ethnomusicology
GERM 303	Cultural Backgrounds of German Civilization	Philosophy	
GERM 312	German Literature from 1900 to the Present	PHIL 321	Social Ethics
GERM 394	Topics in Language, Literature, or Culture	PHIL 338	Environmental Ethics
GERM 494	Topics in German Literature	PHIL 340	Ethics of War and Peace
Italian		PHIL 344	Environmental Justice
ITAL 302	Contemporary Italy: Culture, Politics and Society	PHIL 472	Studies in Modern European Philosophy
ITAL 320	Introduction to Italian Literature and Culture I: From the	PHIL 474	Twentieth Century Continental Philosophy
	Middle Ages to the 17th Century	PHIL 476	Studies in Asian Philosophy
ITAL 321	Introduction to Italian Literature and Culture II: From	Sociology	
	the Enlightenment to Today	SOCI 410	Social Change: Global Perspectives
ITAL 340	Topics in Italian Literature and Culture	SOCI 425	The Black Atlantic
ITAL 342	Topics in Italian Literature, Film and Culture-Global	SOCI 472	Criminalizing Immigration
IIII ( T. OC )	Focus		Religious Studies
ITAL 394	Topics in Language, Literature, or Culture	THRS 311	Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing
ITAL 403	Studies in Italian Film	THRS 312	The Hindu Tradition
ITAL 410	Studies in Medieval and Renaissance Italy	THRS 313	Jewish Faith and Practice
ITAL 411	Studies in Modern Italian Literature and Culture	THRS 314	Buddhist Thought and Culture
ITAL 412	Studies in Contemporary Italian Literature and Culture	THRS 315	Islamic Faith and Practice

	THRS 316	The Daoist Tradition	
	THRS 317	Religions of China	
	THRS 318	Islam, Women and Literature	
	THRS 321	Afro-Latin Religions	
	THRS 326	Religion and the Performing Arts in Bali	
	THRS 368	Latino/a Theologies	
	THRS 369	Liberation Theology	
	THRS 382	The Prophetic Tradition of Israel	
	THRS 390	The Holocaust: Religious Questions	
7	Γotal Units		42

- Students may take any upper-division course offered by the Department of Political Science and International Relations, including: Political Theory, American Politics, International Politics, Comparative Politics, or Internship.
- International Relations majors are required to complete the Senior Capstone Seminar. The purpose of this course is to provide students with an opportunity to apply and integrate what they have learned as a International Relations major. Students will have the opportunity to choose from Senior Capstone Seminars that focus on completing a research project, a community project, or a simulation project.
- Other upper-division courses with predominantly international or comparative content can be used upon specific approval by the department Chair. Note: Some of the listed humanities and social sciences courses may have additional prerequisites.

# Study Abroad

A study abroad experience is required for the IR major. Students must take at least three units outside the United States as part of a study abroad experience. These units may be either lower or upper division and in any academic discipline. This requirement does not add to the overall number of units required for the major.

No more than six units taught by non-USD faculty may be applied toward the IR/ Comparative Politics category of the major.

# Recommended Program of Study, International Relations

### Freshman Year

Semester I		Uni
Preceptorial		
Select one of the fo	llowing:	
POLS 120	Introduction to American Politics	
POLS 150	Introduction to Comparative Politics	
POLS 170	Introduction to International Relations	
CC or electives		6-

### Semester II

Select one of the following:

# Sophomore Year

### Semester I

Select one of the following:

POLS 120	Introduction to American Politics
POLS 150	Introduction to Comparative Politics

POLS 170	Introduction to International Relations	
CC or electives		9-12
Semester II		
Select one of the follo	wing:	3
POLS 350	Theories of Comparative Politics	
POLS 370	Theories of International Relations	
POLS 380	Theories of International Political Economy	
Upper-Division IR		3
CC or electives		9
Junior Year		
Semester I		

Select one of the following:

POLS 350	Theories of Comparative Politics
POLS 370	Theories of International Relations
POLS 380	Theories of International Political Economy
POLS 330	Research Methods in Political Science (or
	Upper-Division IR)
Upper-Division Hum	anities

Upper-Division Humanities	3
CC or electives	6

3

3

3

9

3

### Semester II

Select one of the following:		
POLS 350	Theories of Comparative Politics	
POLS 370	Theories of International Relations	
POLS 380	Theories of International Political Economy	
POLS 330	Research Methods in Political Science (or	

Upper-Division IR)	
Upper-Division Humanities	3
CC or electives	6

# Senior Year

### Semester I

POLS 495	Senior Capstone Seminar (or Upper-Division
	IR)
Upper-Division Hum	nanities

# Electives Semester II

3

3

9-12

3

POLS 495	Senior Capstone Seminar (or Upper-Division
	Humanities )

Upper-Division POLS	3
Electives	9

# \*The study abroad requirement is three units and is recommended during the junior year or in the summer following the sophomore or junior year.

# The International Relations Minor

Code	Title	Units
POLS 150	Introduction to Comparative Politics	3
POLS 170	Introduction to International Relations	3-4
Select one of the fo	ollowing:	3
POLS 350	Theories of Comparative Politics	
POLS 370	Theories of International Relations	
POLS 380	Theories of International Political Economy	

Units

Select nine additional upper-division units of international and/or comparative politics, to be selected in consultation with an advisor from the political science/international relations faculty.

**Total Units** 

# Study Abroad

Students must take at least thee units outside the United States, as part of a study abroad experience. These units may be in any academic discipline, and may be either upper or lower division units. This requirement does not add to the overall number of units required for the major. No more than six units from non-USD faculty led study abroad courses may be applied toward the minor.

# **Political Science**

# Chair

Emily Edmonds-Poli, PhD

# **Faculty**

Del Dickson, JD, PhD

Casey B. K. Dominguez, PhD

Patrick F. Drinan, PhD, Emeritus

Cory C. Gooding, PhD

Timothy W. McCarty, PhD

Vidya Nadkarni, PhD

Noelle Norton, PhD

Lee Ann Otto, PhD

Michael R. Pfau, PhD

David Shirk, PhD

Avi Spiegel, JD, PhD

Andrew Tirrell, JD, MALD, PhD

J. Michael Williams, JD, PhD

Randy Willoughby, PhD

The political science major focuses attention on the shared and contending ideas, values, institutions, and processes of public life. The major is expansive in its reach and accommodates a wide range of student interests. Political science courses range from the specific study of politics in one country (for example, the U.S., Mexico, or France) or of a single institution or political process (the judiciary, Congress, the presidency, or elections), to more general offerings such as courses on political development, revolution, research methods, human rights, and legal theory. The Political Science Department relates theory to practice by providing students with opportunities for simulations, writing workshops, internships, community service, study abroad, semesters in Washington, D.C., and trips to Sacramento. Our faculty is committed to the success of individual students by fostering intellectual curiosity, analytical skills, and a heightened awareness of values. The major prepares students for careers in politics, public service, law, teaching, research, and business, as well as international, national, and local government and non-governmental-organizations. Students should note that courses counted toward another major/minor cannot also be counted toward

the Political Science major or minor and that the department does not accept online transfer credits toward the major/minor.

# 18-19 USD/Washington Center Internship Semester and Intersession Seminar

University of San Diego students have the opportunity to enroll in a semesterlong internship program in Washington, D.C. and earn academic credit toward their major. These internships are coordinated through the Political Science and International Relations Department and The Washington Center, a nationally recognized internship program that pioneered the development of full-time internships in the nation's capitol. The internship program combines realworld work experience with academic learning in a unique environment that fosters success and achievement. Students earn 12 semester units for participating in a full-time fall or spring semester program and 6-9 units in the summer. Students may not enroll in more than 6 internship units, and only 3 units may be used toward the major or minor.

Students also have the opportunity to enroll in a 3-unit intersession course in Washington, D.C. (POLS 434). This course provides students with an opportunity to study current political, social, and economic issues while living in Washington, D.C. for two weeks.

# **USD Internship Program**

Students may enroll in POLS 448 Internship in Political Science. An internship provides an opportunity to gain practical, "real world" experience that gives depth and understanding to political issues and concepts discussed in the classroom. It encourages students to develop the ability to use personal experience to bring new insights and understanding to political processes. It also provides an opportunity to experience political and administrative activities, which may suggest future career possibilities. Students may not enroll in more than 6 internship units, and only 3 units may be used toward the major or minor.

The Department of Political Science and International Relations offers two majors. For information on the International Relations (http:// catalogs.sandiego.edu/undergraduate/colleges-schools/arts-sciences/internationalrelations) major, please see the International Relations section of this course

# The Political Science Major *Preparation for the Major*

Code	Title	Units
POLS 100	Power and Justice	3-4
POLS 120	Introduction to American Politics	3
POLS 150	Introduction to Comparative Politics	3-4
or POLS 170	Introduction to International Relations	
Total Units		9-11

# Major Requirements

Code	Title	Unit
<b>Core Courses</b>		
The following	course is a prerequisite for POLS 495	
POLS 330	Research Methods in Political Science	3
Political Theory	y (choose one course from: POLS 300-POLS 307)	3
Select one of th	ne following:	

POLS 300	Democratic Theory
POLS 301	Political Thought:Ancient to Modern
POLS 302	Political Thought:Modern and Contemporary

POLS 303	Liberal Political Thought	
POLS 304	American Political Thought	
POLS 305	Black Political Thought	
POLS 306	Conservative Political Thought	
POLS 307	Feminist Political Theories	
Select one of the fo	ollowing:	3
POLS 310	The Presidency	
POLS 312	Congress	
POLS 313	Parties and Interest Groups	
POLS 314	Campaigns and Elections	
POLS 316	State and Local Government	
POLS 318	Black Politics	
POLS 319	Politics of Race and Ethnicity	
POLS 320	War Powers in the American Constitutional System	
POLS 321	Constitutional Law and American Government:Federalism and Separation of Powers	
POLS 322D	Constitutional Law: Civil Rights and Liberties	
POLS 323	Judicial Behavior	
Elective Courses	Judicial Beliaviol	
Fifteen Upper-Divi upper-division cou	ision Units (five courses) (choose from any of the POLS rses)	15
Political Science S	Senior Capstone Seminar	

Political Science majors are required to complete the Senior Capstone Seminar. The purpose of this course is to provide students with an opportunity to apply and integrate what they have learned as a Political Science major. Students will have the opportunity to choose from Senior Capstone Seminars that focus on completing a research project, a community project, or a simulation project.

Senior Capstone Seminar <sup>1</sup>

# Study Abroad

**POLS 495** 

**Total Units** 

Students are highly encouraged to participate in a study abroad program to complement the major or minor with an international learning experience. No more than six units from non-USD faculty led study abroad courses may be applied to the major.

# Recommended Program of Study, Political Science

### Freshman Vear

Fresnman Year		
Semester I		Units
Preceptorial		3
POLS 100	Power and Justice	3
CC or electives		9
Semester II		
POLS 120	Introduction to American Politics	3
CC or electives		12
Sophomore Year		
Semester I		
POLS 150	Introduction to Comparative Politics	3
or 170	Introduction to International Relations	
CC or electives		12
Semester II		

POLS 150	Introduction to Comparative Politics	3
or 170	Introduction to International Relations	
Upper-Division POLS		3-6
CC or electives		6-9
Junior Year		
Semester I		
Select one from: POLS	300-307	3
POLS 330	Research Methods in Political Science (or	3
	Upper-Division POLS)	
Select one from: POLS	310-323, or Other Upper Division POLS	3
CC or electives		6
Semester II		
POLS 330	Research Methods in Political Science (or	3
	Upper-Division POLS)	
Select one from: POLS	310-323, or Other Upper Division POLS	3
CC or electives		9
Senior Year		
Semester I		
POLS 495	Senior Capstone Seminar	3
Upper-Division POLS		3
CC or electives		9-10
Semester II		
POLS 495	Senior Capstone Seminar	3
Upper-Division POLS		3
CC or electives		9-10

# The Political Science Minor

Code	Title	Units
POLS 100	Power and Justice	3
POLS 120	Introduction to American Politics	3
POLS 150	Introduction to Comparative Politics	3-4
or POLS 170	Introduction to International Relations	
Select 9 Upper-Division Units		9
Total Units		18-19

# Study Abroad

3 27

Students are highly encouraged to participate in a study abroad program to complement the major or minor with an international learning experience. No more than six units from non-USD faculty led study abroad courses may be applied to the minor.

# POLS 100 | POWER AND JUSTICE

Units: 3-4 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: First year Integration, Social/Behavioral Inquiry area

This course focuses on theories of political organization, action, and analysis. Readings emphasize primary sources of political thought—from Ancient Greece to modern America—to investigate fundamental problems of political life. How should power be distributed and what ends should it serve? How do diverse political communities define and seek justice? How do they balance other fundamental values, such as liberty and equality? How can these questions help us understand who wins, who loses, and why it matters? These questions and more will guide our investigation of the relationship between power and justice in theory and practice.

# POLS 120 | INTRODUCTION TO AMERICAN POLITICS Units: 3

# Core Attributes: First year Integration, Social/Behavioral Inquiry area

This course offers students a fundamental overview of American politics by analyzing the origin, development, structure, and operation of all levels of the American political system. This course also examines how politics are practiced in the United States in order to analyze the uniqueness of the American political system.

# POLS 130 | INTRODUCTION TO THE POLITICS OF RACE AND ETHNICITY

### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 1

What is the role of race and ethnicity in U.S. politics? Are we post-racial yet? The course surveys the impact of race and ethnicity on social, economic and political issues in the United States. We will examine the political experience and engagement of Native Americans, Black Americans, Latinos, Asian Americans, and White Americans in both a historical and contemporary context. We will also investigate the potential for colorblindness as an approach to American politics.

# POLS 150 | INTRODUCTION TO COMPARATIVE POLITICS Units: 3

## Core Attributes: First year Integration, Social/Behavioral Inquiry area

The purpose of this course is to introduce students to the study of comparative politics. Comparative politics is the study of the domestic politics of other countries. This course offers a fundamental overview of the major issues in comparative politics, such as, state formation, political regimes, political culture, civil society, political economy, governing institutions, electoral institutions, and other forms of political representation and participation.

# POLS 170 | INTRODUCTION TO INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS Units: 3-4

# Core Attributes: First year Integration, Social/Behavioral Inquiry area

This course examines major theoretical approaches in the discipline of international relations. Students are introduced to the study of the causes of war and the conditions of peace, international law and organizations, international political economy, great power politics, and foreign-policy decision making. The course also explores issues such as global poverty, economic development, human rights, and the environment as they affect international politics.

# POLS 200 | TOPICS IN POLITICAL THEORY

### Units: 3

This course will offer lower division students an opportunity to take a course in a more specialized area of political thought. Topics may include "American Political Thought," "Political Thought in Literature,": Discourse & Democracy," and "Conservative Political Thought" and others.

# POLS 220 | TOPICS IN AMERICAN POLITICS AND PUBLIC LAW Units: 3

# Core Attributes: Social/Behavioral Inquiry area

This course will offer lower division students a close look at a particular element fo the American political system. Topics may include "The Presidential Election," "The Vote," and "Money in American Politics" and others.

# POLS 250 | TOPICS IN COMPARATIVE POLITICS

# Units: 3

### Core Attributes: Social/Behavioral Inquiry area

This course will offer lower division students the opportunity to examine specialized topcs in comparative politics. Topics may include "Political and Social Change in South Africa and the United States," "Democratization in Comparative Perspective," "political Change in the 21st Century" and others.

# POLS 270 | TOPICS IN INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS

#### Units: 3

This course will offer students a closer look at specialized topics in the international political system. Topics may include "Indigenous Peoples and the Environment," "Rising Powers and the Future of American Global Predominance," "War and Peace in the Twenty-first Century," "Twenty-first Century Global Challenges," and "Political Borders: Cooperation and Conflict Along Interstate Boundaries" and others.

#### POLS 300 | DEMOCRATIC THEORY

### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This class is an investigation of the virtues and vices of democracy. Course texts will be comprised of works in Ancient political thought, modern and contemporary democratic theory, and works of literature, By working to interrogate and analyze such texts, we will, hopefully come to a greater understanding of the attractions, harms, shortcomings, and potential of democracy in new and more fully developed ways.

# POLS 301 | POLITICAL THOUGHT: ANCIENT TO MODERN Units: 3

This course examines the formation and development of political ideas, from Greek political philosophy through the late Middle Ages. Emphasis is placed on the relationship between theory and practice in political life.

# POLS 302 | POLITICAL THOUGHT:MODERN AND CONTEMPORARY Units: 3-4

# **Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE**

This course examines political ideas in the modern and contemporary Western tradition. Emphasis is placed on the relationship between theory and practice in political life.

## POLS 303 | LIBERAL POLITICAL THOUGHT

# Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course investigates the history of liberalism, its foundational principles, its changing features, and the contemporary criticisms of and alternatives to liberalism from the likes of communitarians, republicans, and feminists.

### POLS 304 | AMERICAN POLITICAL THOUGHT

# **Units: 3 Repeatability: No**

Through self-conscious interaction with the history of political thought, concern for practical solutions, and attentiveness to particularities of their own circumstances, Americans have crafted a tradition of political thought distinct in both form and content from that of their European forebears. This course explores the varieties of political thought in the United States, highlighting the diversity of perspectives on political life and institutional design throughout American history.

# POLS 305 | BLACK POLITICAL THOUGHT

# Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 2

The course traces and examines how black political thinkers and activists have responded to central political questions in the United States and their relationship to the broader African Diaspora. We will explore major ideological trends and political philosophies, as they have been interpreted and applied by black thinkers. Key themes include the relationship between racial identity and questions of liberation, faith, and national belonging.

## POLS 306 | CONSERVATIVE POLITICAL THOUGHT

# Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Through the careful critical study of some of the most thoughtful and influential works of conservative political thought over the past two centuries, this class will explore the idea of conservatism and the varieties of conservative thought. The texts have been chosen primarily for the high quality of their writing and argument, rather than for any particular relevance to the most familiar manifestations of conservative ideology. Our goal in this class will be to take conservatism seriously as an idea—rather than merely an ideology—and expand our conceptions of what conservatism can mean far beyond the reductive picture we get in contemporary politics.

## POLS 307 | FEMINIST POLITICAL THEORIES

# Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### **Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 2**

In this course we will explore foundational texts and concepts alongside issues with which feminist theorists around the world have been grappling, both historically and in the present. As you will discover, there is no unitary feminist theory. There is overlap, but there are also marked differences among the approaches that feminists have taken in their pursuit of social change, and with the goal of establishing a more just social order. As we work through the course, we will explore the strengths and limitations of the approaches we encounter, looking at their emergence and implications and exploring how they help us understand and confront our own gendered existence. Above all, we will examine the intersectional workings of power and their impact on political subjectivity, belonging, becoming, and activism in one's communities.

## POLS 308 | POLITICS AND LITERATURE

#### Units: 3

This course explores the political content of selected classical, modern, and contemporary literature. Emphasis is placed on concepts such as authority, power, freedom, equality, organization, obligation, and the ways these concepts have been treated by different authors.

# POLS 309D | SEX, POWER, AND POLITICS

### Units: 3

### Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

This course offers an analysis of gender in politics from historical as well as theoretical perspectives. Topics examined include: gender power, leadership, and governance; social, economic, and political factors explaining women's political status and participation in relation to men's; and the women's movement as a political movement.

# POLS 310 | THE PRESIDENCY

### Units: 3

This course focuses on the American presidency as an institution. The class examines the origins of the president's domestic and international powers, how those powers have grown and changed over time, and how they are both enhanced and limited by other actors in the political system.

### **POLS 312 | CONGRESS**

# Units: 3

This course examines the history, organization, operation, and politics of Congress. Nomination and election, constituent relations, the formal and informal structures of both houses, relations with the executive branch, and policy formulation are discussed. Students participate in a simulation of the House of Representatives.

# POLS 313 | PARTIES AND INTEREST GROUPS

# Units: 3

This course examines the origin, nature, structure, and operation of American political parties, interest groups, and social movements, and their roles in the political process.

## POLS 314 | CAMPAIGNS AND ELECTIONS

#### Units: 3

This course analyzes how rules and laws affect the roles that parties, candidates, voters, and other political actors play in elections. It also investigates the behavior of political actors during elections by examining campaign strategy, staffing, polling, advertising, turnout, and symbolic communication. Its main emphasis is on American federal elections, but also considers elections in a comparative context and sub-national elections in the United States.

#### POLS 316 | STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT

### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course explores the theory and practice of governmental administration at the national, state, and local levels, and the development and implementation of legislation, with special attention to California. This course examines the political functions of state and local governments, including the extent to which the national political atmosphere interacts with state and local politics and policymaking.

#### POLS 317D | URBAN POLITICS

#### Units: 3

This course is designed to introduce students to the major debates that have structured the field of urban politics: interaction among governmental institutions; political actors; private interests; and the marketplace. Other issues such as urban regimes, urban political history, suburbanization, urban growth and renewal, race, class, and gender are examined throughout the course.

# POLS 318 | BLACK POLITICS

## Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 2

The course traces and examines the political efforts of Black Americans to gain full and equitable inclusion into the American polity. Key topics include identity, ideology, movement politics, electoral participation, institutions and public policy.

# POLS 319 | POLITICS OF RACE AND ETHNICITY

# Units: 3 Repeatability: No

The course surveys the impact of race and ethnicity on social, economic and political issues in the United States. We will examine the political experience and engagement of Native Americans, Black Americans, Latinos, Asian Americans, and White Americans in both a historical and contemporary context.

# POLS 320 $\mid$ WAR POWERS IN THE AMERICAN CONSTITUTIONAL SYSTEM

# **Units: 3 Repeatability: No**

This course focuses on the war powers that the Constitution grants to the Congress and the president. Particular attention will be paid to the ways in which that balance has evolved over time from the founding to the present day.

# POLS 321 | CONSTITUTIONAL LAW AND AMERICAN GOVERNMENT:FEDERALISM AND SEPARATION OF POWERS

# Units: 3

This course begins with an examination of the early development of American constitutional law, including the Articles of Confederation, the Constitutional Convention, and the Federalist Papers. Students also explore the development of Supreme Court doctrine regarding judicial review, conflicts among the three departments of government in domestic and foreign affairs, and the ongoing struggle to define the responsibilities of state and federal governments.

# POLS 322D | CONSTITUTIONAL LAW: CIVIL RIGHTS AND LIBERTIES

# Units: 3

# **Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE**

This course examines constitutional law and politics, with a focus on civil rights and individual liberties. Topics include free speech, racial and sexual discrimination, church and state, privacy, voting rights, and the rights of the accused. (Note: POLS 321 is not a prerequisite for this class).

## **POLS 323 | JUDICIAL BEHAVIOR**

Units: 3

## **Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE**

This course explores judicial politics and decision-making, with particular emphasis on judges, lawyers, and juries. Topics include judicial selection and appointment, the limits of judicial power, the roles that lawyers play in our legal and political systems, and the development of trial by jury.

#### **POLS 326 | COMPARATIVE LAW**

Units: 3

This course presents a cross-national, historical, and comparative analysis of constitutional, administrative, and criminal law. Subject countries vary, but include representative judicial systems within the Civil Law, Common Law, and Socialist Law traditions.

## POLS 327 | INTERNATIONAL LAW

Units: 3

This course examines the theory and practice of international law, including efforts to create effective legal means to define, proscribe, and punish war crimes, crimes against humanity, and terrorism. We discuss the negotiation, ratification, and enforcement of treaties and study multinational legal institutions such as the International Court of Justice, the International Criminal Court, and the International Criminal Tribunals for the Former Yugoslavia and Rwanda.

## POLS 329 | LAW OF THE SEA

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course introduces students to the study of regimes of the sea including fisheries, pollution control, and coastal management zones. The politics of ocean regulation are examined with particular attention to law of the sea negotiations.

# POLS 330 | RESEARCH METHODS IN POLITICAL SCIENCE Units: 3

This course introduces students to the various stages of the research process, from conceptualization of the research question to interpretation of findings. Students not only learn to develop efficient research strategies to evaluate empirical relationships from a theoretically informed perspective, but they also design and conduct empirical research of their own.

# POLS 340 | PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION

Units: 3

This course explores the theory and practice of governmental administration at the national, state, and local levels, and the development and implementation of legislation.

# POLS 342 | PUBLIC POLICY

**Units: 3-4** 

This course examines the political and administrative processes through which public policy is formulated, adopted, implemented, and evaluated.

# POLS 348 | INDIGENOUS PEOPLES AND THE ENVIRONMENT

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Global Diversity level 2** 

From environmental injustices in California, to the construction of mega-dams in the Amazon, to debates over fishing rights in New Zealand, struggles between indigenous groups and forces of development and globalization are on the rise. At the same time, stereotyped popular perceptions about the relationship between native peoples and the environment often further these inequalities. Although a global system of indigenous rights has been created in recent decades, its impact has been limited, and serious concerns about its long-term potential remain. Through case studies, an interactive negotiation simulation, and in-class research presentations, we will explore the interplay between indigenous peoples, natural resources, and human rights through a variety of disciplinary lenses.

# POLS 349 | POLITICS AND THE ENVIRONMENT

**Units: 3-4** 

This course examines the decision-making processes through which modern societies attempt to cope with environmental and natural resource problems. Students investigate both American and international environmental issues, and consider the historical and theoretical bases of current environmental policies and initiatives.

### POLS 350 | THEORIES OF COMPARATIVE POLITICS

**Units: 3-4** 

This course examines the major theoretical approaches to comparative politics as well as the political histories of individual countries. It is designed to introduce students to a variety of themes central to this field, including state-society relations, state capacity, the role of institutions, nationalism, cultural/ethnic pluralism, political culture, and democracy.

# POLS 352 | COMPARATIVE POLITICS OF DEVELOPING COUNTRIES Units: 3

This course examines concepts and theories of development and assesses their utility in understanding political, economic, and social change in Latin America, sub-Saharan Africa, and Southeast Asia. Particular emphasis is placed on issues such as: state building; the bureaucracy; civil-military relations; national identity; economic development; and democratization.

## POLS 353 | POLITICS AND RELIGION

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course offers an introduction to the study of the role of religion in sociopolitical change. The course deals with the theoretical literature on the subject and focuses on the salient cases in the various religious traditions and regions of the world.

# POLS 354 | REVOLUTIONARY CHANGE

Units: 3

This course is a comparative study of the revolutionary process focusing on the meaning of revolutionary change, the causes and development of revolutions, and the conditions influencing their outcomes. Special attention is devoted to the French, Russian, Chinese, Cuban, and other revolutions.

# POLS 355 | POLITICS IN EUROPE

Units: 3

This course offers a survey of the political cultures, institutions, and processes of the United Kingdom, France, the Federal Republic of Germany, and other West European countries. The development of a more integrated European community is also discussed.

# POLS 357 | POLITICS IN LATIN AMERICA

Units: 3

This course examines the dynamics of political and economic change in 20th-century Latin America. There is particular emphasis on the causes and consequences of cyclical economic development and recurrent waves of democratization and authoritarianism

# POLS 358 | POLITICS IN SOUTH ASIA

Units: 3

This course is designed to introduce students to the study of contemporary South Asian politics by examining historical as well as contemporary issues relating to socio-economic change, political development, regional relations, and international links. The course focus is primarily on India, Pakistan, and Bangladesh, but the politics of Nepal and Sri Lanka are also considered.

# POLS 359 | POLITICS IN THE MIDDLE EAST

Units: 3

This course offers an introduction to the study of the politics of the Middle East and North Africa. The complex issues of regional conflicts with international significance and the forces shaping the internal development of the modern Middle East are explored.

## POLS 360 | POLITICS IN SUB-SAHARAN AFRICA

#### Units: 3

This course provides an introduction to Sub-Saharan African political systems and the relationships that exist between governments and their citizens in this region. We examine some of the main factors that shape contemporary African politics, including the legacy of colonialism, the rise of authoritarian states, ethnic, national, and racial conflict, and political and economic reform.

### POLS 361 | POLITICS IN SOUTH AFRICA

#### Units: 3

This course is designed to examine the major issues and challenges facing South Africa today. The goal of the course is to introduce students to contemporary South African politics and to situate the current political challenges into the broader historical context. We will analyze the processes of democratic consolidation, state building and nation building since the end of apartheid in 1994.

#### POLS 362 | POLITICS IN THE UNITED KINGDOM

#### **Units: 3-4**

This course examines the development of democracy in England, the institutions of government and parliament, political parties, and selected domestic and foreign policies.

#### **POLS 363 | POLITICS IN FRANCE**

#### Units: 3

This course examines contemporary French politics. We begin by constructing an historical and ideological foundation for the course, we then move to recent institutional and electoral practices, and we finally analyze a variety of foreign and security policies, including relations with the United States, members of the European Union, and countries throughout the world.

# POLS 364 | POLITICS IN GERMANY

# Units: 3

This course introduces students to German politics by examining contemporary as well as historical issues that challenge the unified Germany. The course's main focus is on the post-Cold War and post-unification era, with particular emphasis on the current political, social, and economic agendas, and on explaining and predicting German national and international politics.

### POLS 365 | POLITICS IN RUSSIA

# Units: 3

This course examines the development of the political institutions and culture of Russia since the collapse of Communism, with a focus on the role of the Presidency, the Parliament, political parties, and the public in shaping the life of the Russian Federation.

# POLS 366 | POLITICS IN MEXICO

### Units: 3

This course provides an overview of the contemporary Mexican political system. The primary focus is on the breakdown of the dominant party system in the late 20th century and the subsequent recalibration of executive-legislative relations, decentralization of power, and emergence of democratic political culture and competition.

# POLS 367 | POLITICS IN JAPAN

### **Units: 3-4**

This course examines the development of contemporary Japanese politics by analyzing Japan's pre-WWII political and social systems, its domestic capabilities, and Japanese policy-making processes. The course also evaluates current, and speculates regarding future Japanese politics by assessing historical and current political, economic, and social conditions in Japan.

## POLS 368 | POLITICS IN CHINA

#### Units: 3

This course examines politics and political issues in the People's Republic of China from the mid-1800s to the present. Throughout the course students assess factors such as China's traditional political, social, and economic systems, ideology, and current policy-making structures that shape China's policies in order to understand contemporary Chinese political issues.

# POLS 370 | THEORIES OF INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS

This course analyzes the major theoretical perspectives in the field of international relations by reflecting upon the writings of the most important scholars in the discipline. Students study the mainstream realist and liberal approaches and explore theoretical alternatives to these paradigms. The relationship between theory and practice is also examined.

#### POLS 371 | AMERICAN FOREIGN POLICY

#### **Units: 3-4**

This course provides an in-depth exploration of the challenges and opportunities facing American foreign policy in the 21st century. Students examine the historical legacy and internal and external constraints on foreign policy decision making. Students also study theoretical approaches in the discipline of international relations and discuss their relevance to an empirical analysis of American foreign policy.

# POLS 374 | U.S.-LATIN AMERICAN RELATIONS

#### Units: 3

This course explores the history of economic and political relations between the U.S. and Latin America to understand the basis of contemporary U.S. policy. Topics examined include military intervention, drug trafficking, immigration and trade policies, and relations with Cuba.

# POLS 376 | U.S. NATIONAL SECURITY

### Units:

This course examines contemporary U.S. security policy, including military technology, nuclear strategy and arms control, recent U.S. military interventions, biological and chemical weapons, domestic security politics, the defense industry and budget, and terrorism.

### POLS 377 | REGIONAL SECURITY

# Units: 3

This course examines security dynamics in selected regions of the world (e.g. Europe, East Asia, Latin America, Africa, South Asia, and the Middle East). We address issues ranging from military technologies to diplomatic relations, political economy, and transnational challenges like drug trafficking and terrorism.

# POLS 378 | TRANSNATIONAL CRIME AND TERRORISM Units: 3-4

# **Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE**

This course focuses on how the law enforcement community has responded to the unprecedented increase in crimes and terrorist acts that cross international borders. The course examines those factors that have led to this increase in transnational crime and terrorism, the types of crimes that pose the greatest threat to lawful societies, the responses that have been developed to combat transnational crime, and the extent to which transnational crime threatens the national security interests of the United States and the world community.

# POLS 379 | INTERNATIONAL POLITICAL BOUNDARIES AND BORDER POLICIES

# Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course provides an examination of the theoretical and empirical literature on international boundary dynamics and border policies related to diplomacy, migration, trade, economic development, crime, and terrorism. This course may also consider boundary negotiations over contested interstate borders.

# POLS 380 | THEORIES OF INTERNATIONAL POLITICAL ECONOMY Units: 3

This course offers an introduction to the study of the history, issues, and dynamics of political/economic interactions in the international economy. The course covers both advanced industrial societies and less developed countries. Special topics such as international energy, the international debt crisis, and international migration are considered. ECON 101 and 102 are recommended prerequisites.

# POLS 382 | INTERNATIONAL HUMAN RIGHTS

#### Units: 3

This course explores contending approaches to human rights, the role of institutions and organizations in setting human rights agendas, and human rights problems and policies in international politics.

# POLS 383 | INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

#### Units: 3

This course provides an introduction to the study of international organizations in world politics. The focus is on the United Nations and other selected organizations.

# POLS 430 | FIELD SEMINAR IN CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT Units: 1

Students attend a three-day seminar on California government and politics in the California State Capitol building in Sacramento. The seminar is offered only during the spring semester at the end of February. Students attend seminar presentations featuring elected state legislators, legislative and executive staffers, journalists, lobbyists, and academic experts on current issues confronting California.

# POLS 434 | WASHINGTON, DC: THE PRESS AND THE PRESIDENCY Units: 3

This course provides an analysis of U.S. politics and decision-making as seen through an extensive evaluation of the U.S. press and the U.S. presidency. Students meet during the first two weeks in Washington, D.C., during intersession.

# POLS 435 | WASHINGTON, DC: DIRECTED STUDY IN POLITICAL SCIENCE

# Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course requires students to complete a research paper while interning in Washington, D.C. The paper will address an issue in political science that relates to the internship experience.

# POLS 436 | WASHINGTON, DC: INTERNSHIP IN POLITICAL SCIENCE Units: 3,6 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

### **Core Attributes: Law - Experiential**

Students work 35-40 hours a week in Washington, D.C., at an internship related to political science. The internship must be approved by the Department of Political Science and International Relations. Students receive 6 units of credit, of which 3 units may apply toward the major.

# POLS 437 | WASHINGTON, DC: CLASS IN POLITICAL SCIENCE Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This political science course is taken in Washington, D.C., during the internship. The course must be approved by the Department of Political Science and International Relations.

### POLS 444 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN POLITICAL SCIENCE

# Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Special topics courses offer an examination of a topical issue affecting politics in the United States. The course number may be repeated for credit provided the topics of the courses are different.

## POLS 448 | INTERNSHIP IN POLITICAL SCIENCE

Units: 1-6 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

# Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

This course involves participation in a governmental office at the local, state, or national level. Students are required to complete a research paper under the supervision of the instructor. This course is open only to junior or senior political science or international relations majors with a grade point average of 3.0 or higher. Students may not enroll in more than 6 internship units, and only 3 units may be used toward the major.

# POLS 449 | INDEPENDENT STUDY IN POLITICAL SCIENCE

#### **Units: 1-3**

This course involves advanced individual study in public policy, american politics, public law, political behavior, or political theory. This course is open only to junior or senior Political Science or International Relations majors with a grade point average in political science courses of 3.3 or higher. Approval of instructor and department chair is required, and substantial prior coursework in the area is expected.

# POLS 480 | MODEL UNITED NATIONS

#### Units: 1

This course involves a simulation of the decision-making process of the United Nations. Students participate in at least one conference per semester where they have the opportunity to represent an assigned country and compete against other universities. This course may be repeated once for credit.

# POLS 485 | WASHINGTON, DC: DIRECTED STUDY IN INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS

#### Units: 3

This course requires students to complete a research paper while interning in Washington, D.C. The paper will address an issue in international relations that relates to the internship experience.

# POLS 486 | WASHINGTON, DC: INTERNSHIP IN INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS

# Units: 3,6 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

# **Core Attributes: Law - Experiential**

Students work 35-40 hours a week in Washington, D.C., at an internship related to international relations. The internship must be approved by the Department of Political Science and International Relations. Students receive 6 units of credit, of which 3 units may apply toward the major.

# POLS 487 | WASHINGTON, DC: CLASS IN INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS

### Units: 3

This international relations course is taken in Washington, D.C., during the internship. The course must be approved by the Department of Political Science and International Relations.

# POLS 492 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS-STUDY ABROAD

# Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

### Core Attributes: Social/Behavioral Inquiry area, International

Special Topics courses--Study Abroad offer an examination of a topical issue affecting the domestic politics of foreign countries or foreign policy and international relations, while taking a course in a study abroad program. This course number may be repeated for credit provided the topics of the courses are different.

# POLS 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS

# Units: 1-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Special topics courses offer an examination of a topical issue affecting the domestic politics of foreign countries or the international political system. This course number may be repeated for credit provided the topics of the courses are different.

# POLS 495 | SENIOR CAPSTONE SEMINAR

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: POLS 330

This course is required for Political Science and International Relations majors. There are four main objectives for this course. First, it provides an opportunity for students to synthesize, integrate and apply the knowledge and skills they have acquired while pursuing the PS or IR major. Second, it provides an opportunity to produce an original research paper or equivalent creative project. Third, it provides students with the opportunity to present their conclusions with faculty, peers, and members of the community. Finally, this class aims to help students improve their writing and communication skills.

# POLS 498 | INTERNSHIP IN INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS

**Units: 1-6 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

This course involves participation in an internship related to international relations. Students are required to complete a research paper under the supervision of the instructor. This course is open only to junior or senior political science or international relations majors with a grade point average of 3.0 or higher. Students may not enroll in more than 6 internship units, and only 3 units may be used toward the major.

# POLS 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY IN INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

This course involves advanced individual study in international relations or comparative politics. This course is open only to junior or senior political science or international relations majors with a grade point average in Political Science courses of 3.3 or higher. Approval of instructor and department chair is required, and substantial prior coursework in the area is expected.

# **Psychological Sciences**

# Chair

Anne Koenig, PhD

# **Faculty**

Rachel E. Blaser, PhD

Veronica V. Galván, PhD

Nadav Goldschmied, PhD

Jena Hales, PhD

Michael A. Ichiyama, PhD

Anne M. Koenig, PhD

Patricia Kowalski, PhD

Kristen McCabe, PhD

Adriana Molitor-Siegl, PhD

Victoria Rodriquez, PhD, Diversity Postdoctoral Fellow

Sandra Sgoutas-Emch, PhD

Divya Sitaraman, PhD

Annette Taylor, PhD

James M. Weyant, PhD

Jennifer Zwolinski, PhD

The Department of Psychological Sciences offers a major and minor in Psychology and a major in Behavioral Neuroscience.

Due to the number of shared courses between the Behavioral Neuroscience major and the Biology and Psychology majors, students with a Behavioral Neuroscience major are not eligible to double-major in Psychology or Biology, or minor in Psychology.

# The Psychology Major

Psychology is the scientific study of human and animal behavior and the cognitive and biological processes that underlie it. The objective of USD's psychological sciences program is to advance the student's understanding of psychology as a science, a profession and a means of promoting the welfare of humans and animals. The major is designed to help students prepare for admission into graduate or professional school in psychology and to provide a foundation for entry into fields such as neuroscience, clinical/counseling psychology, law and criminal justice, primary and secondary education, healthcare, business, human resources, the ministry and social work.

# The Behavioral Neuroscience Major

The Behavioral Neuroscience major is an interdisciplinary major within the department of Psychological Sciences which emphasizes the interaction of behavior with biological systems including brain pathways, nervous systems and hormonal systems. Disciplines such as psychology, biology, chemistry, physics, anthropology and philosophy all contribute to a cohesive understanding of psychological functions from a biological perspective. The assimilation of disciplines helps students develop intellectual skills in critical thinking and sound reasoning, and requires integration of knowledge from multiple levels of analysis, all of which are important characteristics of a liberal arts education. Career opportunities include jobs in healthcare, academia, government and the private sector.

# **Behavioral Neuroscience**

# The Behavioral Neuroscience Major

The Behavioral Neuroscience major is an interdisciplinary major within the department of Psychological Sciences which emphasizes the interaction of behavior with biological systems including brain pathways, nervous systems and hormonal systems. Disciplines such as psychology, biology, chemistry, anthropology and philosophy all contribute to a cohesive understanding of psychological functions from a biological perspective. The assimilation of disciplines helps students develop intellectual skills in critical thinking and sound reasoning, and requires integration of knowledge from multiple levels of analysis, all of which are important characteristics of a liberal arts education. Career opportunities include jobs in healthcare, academia, government and the private sector

# The Behavioral Neuroscience Major Preparation for the Major

Code	Title	Units
PSYC 101	Introductory Psychology	3
PSYC 230	Research Methods in Psychology	3
PSYC 260	Statistics	3
CHEM 151 & 151L	General Chemistry I and General Chemistry I Laboratory	4
CHEM 152 & 152L	General Chemistry II and General Chemistry II Laboratory	4

PHYS 136	General Physics I	4
& 136L	and General Physics I Lab	
PHYS 137	General Physics II	4
& 137L	and General Physics II Lab	
MATH 150	Calculus I (satisfies core Mathematics requirement)	4
Introductory Bio	ology Courses	
BIOL 240	Bioenergetics and Systems	4
& 240L	and Bioenergetics and Systems Laboratory	
BIOL 242	Genomes and Evolution	4
& 242L	and Genomes and Evolution Laboratory	
OR		
BIOL 190	Introduction to Evolution <sup>1</sup>	3
BIOL 221	Introduction to Organismal Diversity	4
& 221L	and Introduction to Organismal Diversity Lab	
BIOL 225	Introduction to Cell Processes	4
& 225L	and Introduction to Cell Processes Laboratory	
Total Units		37-40

Students may complete BIOL 190, 221, 221L, 225, 225L or BIOL 240, 240L, 242, 242L. Students who select the BIOL 190 sequence should plan to complete all of these courses as soon as possible.

# **Major Requirements**

A minimum of 28 units of upper-division coursework is required and must be distributed as follows:

Code	Title	Units
Genetics		
BIOL 300	Genetics	3
<b>Biological Psycho</b>	ology	
PSYC 342	Biological Psychology	3
Behavioral Neur	oscience	
NEUR 310	Behavioral Neuroscience	3
Capstone		
NEUR 470	Advanced Research Methods Behavioral Neuroscience Capstone	4
Cognition		
Select 1 of the fol	lowing Cognition courses:	3
PSYC 332	Learning and Behavior	
PSYC 336	Cognitive Psychology	
Evolution		
Select one of the f	following:	3
PSYC 344	Animal Behavior: Comparative Psychology and Ethology	
PSYC 346	Evolutionary Psychology	
PSYC 347	Behavior Genetics	
BIOL 310	Evolution	
BIOL 346	Vertebrate Natural History	
Cell/Molecular		
Select one of the f	following:	3
BIOL 478	Vertebrate Physiology	
BIOL 480	Cell Physiology	
CHEM 331	Biochemistry	
NEUR 305	Cellular and Molecular Neuroscience	
NEUR 492	Major Field Test <sup>1</sup>	0

## **Electives**

Select 6 credits from requirements, or from	n the above courses, if not already used to fulfill	6
ANTH 310	Human Evolution	
ANTH 311	Primatology	
BIOL 320	Comparative Anatomy of Vertebrates	
BIOL 376	Animal Development	
BIOL 482	Molecular Biology	
BIOL 484	Immunology	
CHEM 301	Organic Chemistry I	
& 301L	and Organic Chemistry I Laboratory	
CHEM 302	Organic Chemistry II	
& 302L	and Organic Chemistry II Laboratory	
CHEM 335	Biochemistry Laboratory	
CHEM 427	Biophysical Chemistry	
NEUR 372	Clinical Neuroscience	
NEUR 494	Special Topics in Behavioral Neuroscience	
PHIL 331	Biomedical Ethics	
PHIL 413	Philosophy of Mind	
PHIL 415	Philosophy of Natural Science	
PHYS 340	Biological Physics	
PSYC 355	Abnormal Psychology	
PSYC 357	Health Psychology	
PSYC 378	Explorations in Human Sexuality	
PSYC 470	Advanced Research Methods Animal Behavior Capstone	
PSYC 475	Advanced Research Methods Conditioning and Learning	
	Capstone	
Total Units		28

While students are not currently required to participate in research, students who are considering applying to graduate school or medical school are strongly encouraged to volunteer for at least two semester of research experience.

As part of the department's assessment program, each graduating senior is required to take a major field test in behavioral neuroscience and senior exit survey (NEUR 492). A student who fails to do so may be restricted from graduating.

# Freshman Year

Semester I		Units
PSYC 101	Introductory Psychology (or Preceptorial)	3
BIOL 190	Introduction to Evolution (Students may complete BIOL 190, 221, 221L, 225, 225L or BIOL 240, 240L, 242, 242L. Students who select the BIOL 190 sequence should plan to complete all of these courses as soon as possible.)	3-4
CHEM 151 & 151L	General Chemistry I	4
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
Semester II		
BIOL 240 & 240L	Bioenergetics and Systems	4
OR		
BIOL 221 & 221L	Introduction to Organismal Diversity	

CHEM 152 General Chemistry II

& 152L

PSYC 230 Research Methods in Psychology

CC

#### Sophomore Year

#### Semester I

PSYC 260 Statistics

BIOL 242 Genomes and Evolution

& 242L

OR

BIOL 225 Introduction to Cell Processes

& 225L

PHYS 136 General Physics I

& 136L

CC

## Semester II

BIOL 300 Genetics

PHYS 137 General Physics II

& 137L

CC

#### Junior Year

#### Semester I

PSYC 342 Biological Psychology

Upper-Division PSYC/BIOL

CC

## Semester II

Upper-Division PSYC/BIOL

NEUR 310 Behavioral Neuroscience

NEUR 470 Advanced Research Methods Behavioral

Neuroscience Capstone

CC

### Senior Year

# Semester I

Upper-Division PSYC/BIOL

CC

### Semester II

Upper-Division PSYC/BIOL

CC

The recommended program of study is intended as a guide to students in planning their college program. It is not expected that students will adhere rigidly to the sequence of suggested courses. A minimum grade of C- and a GPA of 2.0 in the 28 graded units of upper division course work used to complete the requirements for the major are required.

The electives chosen to complete the major requirements should be selected in consultation with your academic advisor with a view to achieving balance among the major areas of psychological knowledge. A maximum of 4 units from NEUR 496 can be applied toward the units required to complete the major. A maximum of 6 units of combined practicum, field experience and/or internship taken within the College of Arts and Sciences can be applied to the 124 unit degree requirement or 48 unit upper division requirement for graduation.

Due to the number of shared courses between the Behavioral Neuroscience major and the Biology and Psychology majors, students with a Behavioral Neuroscience

- 4 major are not eligible to double-major in Psychology or Biology, or minor in Psychology.
- Note: Transfer students who wish to graduate as psychology or behavioral
- neuroscience majors must complete a minimum of 12 Upper-Division Units of the required coursework at USD.

## NEUR 305 | CELLULAR AND MOLECULAR NEUROSCIENCE

- 3 Units: 3
- 4 Prerequisites: BIOL 190 and BIOL 225 and BIOL 225L and PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 342

This course explores the major areas of cellular and molecular neuroscience with a strong focus on basic principles of cellular neuroscience, including the biophysical basis of the membrane potential, action potential generation and propagation, axon guidance, neuronal cell biology, synapse formation and neural plasticity. At the molecular level the course will delve into structure of ion channels and receptors and molecular mechanisms underlying these cellular

# NEUR 310 | BEHAVIORAL NEUROSCIENCE

3 Units: 3

processes.

3-6

- 4 Prerequisites: BIOL 190 and BIOL 225 and BIOL 225L and PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 342
- This course will explore the biological basis of human and animal behavior, with a focus on neural structures and function. Topics will include neural cell physiology, neurotransmitters and receptors, the development of the nervous system, sensory and motor systems, and the biological bases of learning and memory.
- 3 NEUR 372 | CLINICAL NEUROSCIENCE
- 9 Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# **Core Attributes: Community Service Learning**

- 3 Prerequisites: PSYC 342
- The goal of this course is to extend our understanding of the nervous system to the
- examination of the biological dimensions of neurological diseases and disorders.
- Students will have the opportunity to apply basic knowledge about the nervous system in order to make sense of actual clinical case studies. Topics will explore
- 6 normal and abnormal functioning of the nervous system related to sensory and motor systems, language, vision, physiology, hormones and circadian rhythms, development, and neurodegeneration.

# 6 NEUR 410W | ADVANCED RESEARCH METHODS / LABORATORY IN BEHAVIORAL NEUROSCIENCE

Units: 3

# Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE

- 6 Prerequisites: ENGL 121 and PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 260 and
- PSYC 342 and NEUR 310 (Can be taken Concurrently)

This course is designed to provide in-depth, hands-on experience with the concepts, methods, and techniques used in behavioral neuroscience research, including anatomical and histological methods, and surgical and pharmacological manipulations. Written project reports, as well as a literature review and research proposal, will be required.

# NEUR 470 | ADVANCED RESEARCH METHODS BEHAVIORAL NEUROSCIENCE CAPSTONE

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Oral communication competency

Prerequisites: ENGL 121 and PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 260 and PSYC 342 and NEUR 310 (Can be taken Concurrently)

In the capstone course, senior Behavioral Neuroscience majors will integrate what they have learned in their previous classes. In this particular class, we will take a more hands-on approach by conducting neuroanatomy, behavioral and neurophysiology experiments. In addition to these experimental modules we will explore behavioral neuroscience by reading and critiquing empirical literature and the methodology used to investigate issues in behavioral neuroscience. The course will involve the discussion and application of research methods and statistics concepts through course content and the completion of a research project (extensive reading of the empirical literature, designing an experimental study, and collecting and analyzing data); writing and revising a scientific, APA style research paper; and orally communicating the project in a presentation.

### **NEUR 492 | MAJOR FIELD TEST**

## Units: 0

As part of the department assessment program, each graduating senior is required to take a major field test in psychology and senior exit survey (NEUR 492). A student who fails to do so may be restricted from graduating.

# NEUR 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN BEHAVIORAL NEUROSCIENCE Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

The purpose of this course is to provide the advanced undergraduate student with an opportunity to explore a variety of contemporary topics in behavioral neuroscience. These will be in-depth investigations on subjects of special interest to the instructor. Course may be repeated with different topics. Junior standing; additional prerequisites vary with topic and/or instructor.

### **NEUR 496 | RESEARCH EXPERIENCE**

# Units: 1-2 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Experience in serving as a researcher in a project conducted by a faculty member. By invitation. May be repeated for a maximum of six units. P/F only.

# **NEUR 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY**

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: NEUR 310

Library, laboratory, or field research of the student's own design conducted under faculty supervision. A written application and final report are required. Senior standing preferred.

# **Psychology**

# The Psychology Major

Psychology is the scientific study of human and animal behavior and the cognitive and biological processes that underlie it. The objective of USD's psychological sciences program is to advance the student's understanding of psychology as a science, a profession, and a means of promoting the welfare of humans and animals. The major is designed to help students prepare for admission into graduate or professional school in psychology and to provide a foundation for entry into fields such as neuroscience, law and criminal justice, primary and secondary education, medicine, business, human resources, the ministry, and social work.

# Preparation for the Major

Code	Title	Uni
<b>Required Courses</b>		
PSYC 101	Introductory Psychology	3

PSYC 230	Research Methods in Psychology	3
PSYC 260	Statistics	3
Total Units		9

MATH 130 is strongly recommended. To maximize successful completion of the major we strongly recommend that students take BIOL 104 or BIOL 114 to satisfy the core curriculum life sciences requirement.

# Major Requirements

A minimum of 28 units of upper division coursework in psychology is required and must be distributed as follows:

Code	Title	Unit
Biological		3
PSYC 342	Biological Psychology	
Clinical		3
Select one of the f	following:	
PSYC 354	Behavior Disorders of Childhood	
PSYC 355	Abnormal Psychology	
PSYC 356	Psychological Assessment	
PSYC 357	Health Psychology	
PSYC 359	Health Psychology of Women and Ethnic Groups	
PSYC 466	Methods of Evidence-Based Psychotherapy	
Cognitive		3
Select one of the f	following:	
PSYC 332	Learning and Behavior	
PSYC 336	Cognitive Psychology	
Developmental		3
Select one of the f	following:	
PSYC 314	Developmental Psychology: Childhood and Adolescence	
PSYC 316	Developmental Psychology: Adulthood and Aging	
PSYC 318	Child Development Across Cultures	
Social		3
Select one of the f	following:	
PSYC 322	Social Psychology	
PSYC 324D	Cross-Cultural Psychology	
Capstone		4
Select one Capsto	ne course from the following:	
PSYC 470	Advanced Research Methods Animal Behavior Capstone	
PSYC 471	Advanced Research Methods Clinical Psychology Capstone	
PSYC 472	Advanced Research Methods Cognitive Psychology Capstone	
PSYC 473	Advanced Research Methods Developmental Psychology Capstone	
PSYC 474	Advanced Research Methods Health Psychology Capstone	
PSYC 475	Advanced Research Methods Conditioning and Learning Capstone	
PSYC 476	Advanced Research Methods Social Psychology Capstone	
Electives		

Upper-Division Electives selected from any course listed above, if not used

to fulfill a requirement, or from the courses below.

Advanced Statistics

PSYC 305

PSYC 326	Organizational/Industrial Psychology	
PSYC 328	Stereotyping, Prejudice and Discrimination	
PSYC 330	Psychology of Gender	
PSYC 346	Evolutionary Psychology	
PSYC 347	Behavior Genetics	
PSYC 364	Sport Psychology	
PSYC 372	History and Systems of Psychology	
PSYC 374	Psychology and the Law	
PSYC 378	Explorations in Human Sexuality	
PSYC 494	Special Topics in Psychology	
NEUR 372	Clinical Neuroscience	
NEUR 494	Special Topics in Behavioral Neuroscience	
Senior Exit Exam	ı	
PSYC 492	Major Field Test in Psychology <sup>1</sup>	
Total Units		28

As part of the department's assessment program, each graduating senior is required to take a major field test in psychology and senior exit survey (PSYC 492). A student who fails to do so may be restricted from graduating.

# The Social Science Teaching Credential

Students wishing to earn a social science teaching credential may do so while completing a major in psychology. The specific requirements for the teaching credential differ from the general requirements for the psychology major. Students interested in pursuing a social science teaching credential should consult the School of Leadership and Education Sciences.

# Recommended Program of Study, Psychology

The recommended program of study is intended as a guide to students in planning their college program. It is not expected that students will adhere rigidly to the sequence of suggested courses. For example, a student may take ENGL 121 in the second semester of the freshman year equally as well as in the first semester.

# Freshman Year

CC

	Units
Introductory Psychology (or Preceptorial)	3
Composition and Literature	3
College Algebra	3
Survey of Calculus	
	6
Select one of the following:	
Topics in Human Biology	
Topics in Human Biology with Lab	
Research Methods in Psychology	3
	9
Statistics	3
	12
	3
	Composition and Literature College Algebra Survey of Calculus  ing: Topics in Human Biology Topics in Human Biology with Lab Research Methods in Psychology

#### Junior Year

Junor Tear	
Semester I	
Upper-Division PSYC	6
CC or electives	9
Semester II	
Upper-Division PSYC	6
CC or electives	9
Senior Year	
Semester I	
Upper-Division PSYC	6
CC or electives	9
Semester II	
Upper-Division PSYC	6
CC or electives	9

A minimum grade of C- in the 28 units of upper division course work in psychology used to complete the requirements for the major, and a minimum GPA of 2.00 in all upper division course work in psychology are required.

The electives chosen to complete the major requirements should be selected in consultation with your academic advisor with a view to achieving balance among the major areas of psychological knowledge. Students can take a maximum of 4 upper division pass/fail units towards the Psychology major, and a maximum of 6 are applicable to the 124 units required for graduation. For students interested in graduate work in psychology, taking additional courses, including laboratories, beyond those required for the major is an important consideration, as is obtaining field and research experience. Those who anticipate taking PSYC 499 should begin that work in the first semester of their senior year.

Note: Transfer students who wish to graduate as psychology or behavioral neuroscience majors must complete a minimum of 12 upper-division units in the Department of Psychological Sciences.

# The Psychology Minor

Code	Title	Hours
PSYC 101	Introductory Psychology	3
PSYC 230	Research Methods in Psychology	3

In addition to PSYC 101 and PSYC 230, select 12 units of additional Psychology courses for the minor. Of these additional 12 units, 9 units must be from Upper Division courses in the Psychology Major, and a maximum of 3 units can be taken as Pass/Fail

# PSYC 101 | INTRODUCTORY PSYCHOLOGY

### Units: 3

12

### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Social/Behavioral Inquiry area

This core curriculum course provides an introduction to the science of psychology and includes the following topics: history of psychology, research methods in psychology, biological bases of behavior, sensation and perception, development, learning, memory, cognition, motivation, emotion, personality, social psychology, psychological disorders, and therapy. (every semester).

# PSYC 230 | RESEARCH METHODS IN PSYCHOLOGY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

- Core Attributes: First year Integration
- Introduction to the principles and metods of psychological research through lecture, discussion, and participation in laboratory and field research projects.

  This course will cover multiple research designs including both qualitative and quantitative approaches. Every semester.

# PSYC 260 | STATISTICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Quantitative reasoning comp

Introduction to the analysis of research data in psychology. Topics include measures of central tendency and variability, correlation, prediction, and hypothesis testing.

# PSYC 294 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN PSYCHOLOGY

**Units: 1-4** 

Prerequisites: PSYC 101

The purpose of this course is to provide the beginning undergraduate student with an opportunity to explore a variety of contemporary topics in psychology. These will be in-depth investigations on subjects of special interest to the instructor. Course may be repeated with different topics. Prerequisite vary with topic and/or instructor.

## PSYC 305 | ADVANCED STATISTICS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: PSYC 260

This course will build on and extend student knowledge of analyses first introduced in the basic statistics course. After review of basic statistics, key issues to be explored include testing underlying assumptions of parametric statistics, transformations of data, nonparametric statistics, analysis of covariance, multiple regression, partial correlation, and multivariate analysis of variance. Students will learn to enter data on a computer and use a statistical program (SPSS) to perform analyses. Emphasis will be placed on choosing appropriate statistics, carrying out analyses, interpreting results, and reporting findings in APA style.

# PSYC 314 | DEVELOPMENTAL PSYCHOLOGY: CHILDHOOD AND ADOLESCENCE

Units: 3-4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: PSYC 101

The study of growth and development within physical, cognitive, and social domains of the normal individual from conception through adolescence. The influences of maturation and socialization are emphasized as well as the interdependence of the various domains of development. Community service may be required.

# PSYC 316 | DEVELOPMENTAL PSYCHOLOGY: ADULTHOOD AND AGING

**Units: 3-4** 

Prerequisites: PSYC 101

The study of human behavior and development into the adult years. Coverage includes theory and research about aging within physical, cognitive, and social domains from early adulthood through death. Addresses age-related issues as well as the influences of maturation and socialization on development. Community service may be required.

### PSYC 318 | CHILD DEVELOPMENT ACROSS CULTURES

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: PSYC 101

This course compares and contrast development among infants, children and adolescents across cultures. It reviews theoretical concepts and empirical findings regarding developmental changes and continuities among typical individuals reared within the U.S. It also examines cross-cultural variability and human universals in child development along with sociocultural factors that lead to variability in development among children from differing cultural groups.

# PSYC 322 | SOCIAL PSYCHOLOGY

**Units: 3-4** 

Prerequisites: PSYC 101

The study of how people think about, relate to, and are influenced by others. Topics include: group behavior; socialization; social interaction; attitude change; affiliation; aggression; altruism; person perception; and the role of psychological factors in social problems.

# PSYC 324D | CROSS-CULTURAL PSYCHOLOGY

Units: 3

**Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: PSYC 101 and PSYC 230

An examination of human behavior in cultural context. Emphasis will be placed on the role of cultural factors influencing such patterns of behavior as perception, cognition, personality, emotion, development, group dynamics, mental and physical health, and language.

# PSYC 326 | ORGANIZATIONAL/INDUSTRIAL PSYCHOLOGY Units: 3

Prerequisites: PSYC 101

A study of the application of psychological principles in organizational settings. Topics include: organizational structure; personnel selection, social influence and human relations in organizations, leadership, and organizational change.

# ${\bf PSYC~328~|~STEREOTYPING, PREJUDICE~AND~DISCRIMINATION}$

Units: 3

Examination of stereotyping, prejudice, and discrimination from a social psychology perspective. Focus on theory and research about what causes stereotyping, prejudice and discrimination; why these social ills are so resistant to change and how they can be reduced.

## PSYC 330 | PSYCHOLOGY OF GENDER

Units: 3

Prerequisites: PSYC 101 and PSYC 230

This course involved an overview of psychological research and theory concerning differences and similarities between women and men in the areas of in cognition, attitudes, personality, and social behavior and the causes of those differences. There is an emphasis on topics such as stereotypes, sexism, aggression, close relationships, leadership, and the workplace.

# PSYC 332 | LEARNING AND BEHAVIOR

Units: 3

Prerequisites: PSYC 101 and PSYC 230

The study of learning in humans and animals. Topics include: theories of learning; classical conditioning; instrumental learning; observation learning; and perceptual-motor and verbal learning and cognition. Current research will be stressed.

# PSYC 336 | COGNITIVE PSYCHOLOGY

**Units: 3-4** 

Prerequisites: PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 260

Scientific study of how people process information. Topics include perception, attention, memory, imagery, language, concept formation, decision making, and problem solving. Both basic and applied issues will be addressed. The course will focus on current models, including information processing and neural networks.

# PSYC 342 | BIOLOGICAL PSYCHOLOGY

**Units: 3-4** 

Prerequisites: PSYC 101 and PSYC 230

Study of the biological bases of behavior, stressing evolutionary, genetic, neural, and hormonal processes. Topics include: anatomy and physiology of the nervous, sensory, and motor systems; and the biological bases of emotion, motivation, learning, memory, sleep, individual differences, and psychopathology. Current research will be stressed.

# PSYC 344 | ANIMAL BEHAVIOR: COMPARATIVE PSYCHOLOGY AND ETHOLOGY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: PSYC 101 and PSYC 230

Study of animal behavior through a synthesis of the work of ethologists and comparative psychologists. Stresses the adaptive nature of behavior and its role in evolution. Topics include research strategies, classification of behavior, evolution and development of behavior, the concept of instinct, communication, and social behavior. Current research will be stressed.

## PSYC 346 | EVOLUTIONARY PSYCHOLOGY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: First year Integration** 

Prerequisites: PSYC 101 (Can be taken Concurrently)

The goal of this course is to examine and evaluate the evolutionary perspective as it relates to the study of behavior and mental processes. Interdisciplinary evidence will be explored to evaluate the presence of evolved psychological adaptations that characterize human nature. Applications of the evolutionary perspective will be explored in the context of many subfields within psychology, such as learning, memory, cognitive processing, development, personality, social behavior, disorders and more.

#### **PSYC 347 | BEHAVIOR GENETICS**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No Prerequisites: PSYC 101

Explores the past and current status of the nature/nurture controversy in psychology as an introduction to the methods of research in behavior genetics. Hereditary influences on perception, learning, intelligence, temperament, personality, and psychopathology will be investigated through a consideration of current research in these areas

# PSYC 354 | BEHAVIOR DISORDERS OF CHILDHOOD

Units: 3

Prerequisites: PSYC 101

This course will examine the causes of emotional disorders in childhood and the various methods of treatment for childhood disorders.

## PSYC 355 | ABNORMAL PSYCHOLOGY

**Units: 3-4** 

Prerequisites: PSYC 101

Reviews the current literature on the etiology, prevalence, classification, and treatment considerations relating to abnormal behavior and mental disorders. Course assumes an integrated biopsychosocial perspective and focuses on adult psychopathology. Gender effects and cultural considerations as they relate to the study of abnormal behavior and adult mental disorders are examined.

# PSYC 356 | PSYCHOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT

Units: 3

Prerequisites: PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 260

Principles of psychological testing, selection, evaluation, and interpretation of test results.

# PSYC 357 | HEALTH PSYCHOLOGY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Community Service Learning, Advanced Integration, Law-Experiential

Prerequisites: PSYC 101 and PSYC 130

An examination of the psychological variables contributing to the development and/or progress of disease, and of the effects of illness on injury and behavior. Areas to be considered include the impact of various types of stress on illness, pain mechanisms, psychophysiological disorders, psychological approaches to prevention and management, and treatment compliance.

# PSYC 359 | HEALTH PSYCHOLOGY OF WOMEN AND ETHNIC GROUPS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 2

Prerequisites: PSYC 101

Recent advances in health care have discovered the necessity for specific treatment, instruction, research, and preventive measures focusing on women and ethnic health. This course is designed to investigate the specific needs of these populations in maintaining and obtaining the best medical care for their physical health. The interplay of biological, psychological, and social factors with health and illness as they specifically apply to these populations is the focus of the course. The role of traditional medical practices, particularly Native American and Asian American health practices is also described.

# PSYC 359D | HEALTH PSYCHOLOGY OF WOMEN AND ETHNIC GROUPS

Units: 3

### Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: PSYC 101

Recent advances in health care have discovered the necessity for specific treatment, instruction, research, and preventive measures focusing on women and ethnic health. This course is designed to investigate the specific needs of these populations in maintaining and obtaining the best medical care for their physical health. The interplay of biological, psychological, and social factors with health and illness as they specifically apply to these populations is the focus of the course. The role of traditional medical practices, particularly Native American and Asian American health practices is also described.

# PSYC 364 | SPORT PSYCHOLOGY

Units: 3

Prerequisites: PSYC 101

This course examines the psychological factors influencing the experience of sports. Topics include theoretical basis of competition, motivation, group dynamics, aggression, fan behavior, and social facilitation.

# PSYC 372 | HISTORY AND SYSTEMS OF PSYCHOLOGY

Units: 3

Prerequisites: PSYC 101

A survey of the major ideas that have affected the development of Western psychology. The empirical, rationalistic, and materialistic roots of modern psychology will be discussed.

# PSYC 374 | PSYCHOLOGY AND THE LAW

Units: 3-4

Prerequisites: PSYC 101

Research dealing with psychological factors in the legal system will be surveyed. Particular emphasis will be placed on applying psychological theory and methods to the criminal justice system in an attempt to understand the behavior of its participants.

### PSYC 377 | THEORIES OF PERSONALITY

**Units: 3-4** 

Prerequisites: PSYC 101

This course surveys the major theoretical schools of thought in the study of personality. Psychoanalytic, psychoanalytic-social, behavioral, cognitive, trait, social learning, and biological theories are examined.

# PSYC 378 | EXPLORATIONS IN HUMAN SEXUALITY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Advanced Integration, Domestic Diversity level 2

Sexuality is a fundamental part of everyone's life. During the past decade, discussions about sexual identity, sexual orientation, sexual behavior and gender issues have become increasingly common in society and education. Sexuality is an important issue of diversity and has been the basis of discrimination, a legacy of isolation, history of violence and exclusionary practices. This course provides an examination of the major variables affecting human sexuality including the physiological, psychological, and sociocultural variables associated with the development and manifestation of sexual identity, sexual behavior, and sexual disorders. The course will also examine the historical and societal factors that have led to inequities for those who do not represent the power hierarchy of being male and heterosexual.

### PSYC 414 | SOCIAL-EMOTIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: PSYC 314 or PSYC 316 or PSYC 318

This course focuses on the primary social relationships and experiences that humans have as they develop, including normative features of key social interactions and relationships, variability among individuals, and potential problems within these exchanges. It also addresses the impact of these social-emotional experiences on personality and socio-cognitive development as well as on concurrent or subsequent social relationships.

# PSYC 415 | ADVANCED RESEARCH METHODS / LABORATORY IN DEVELOPMENTAL PSYCHOLOGY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ENGL 121 and PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 260 and (PSYC 314 or PSYC 316) and PSYC 318

In-depth study of research methods in developmental psychology. Emphasis will be placed on the factors that make developmental research unique, on the appropriateness of particular methods for specific research questions, and on the critical evaluation of research reports. Written project reports as well as literature review and research proposal will be required.

# ${\bf PSYC~415W~|~ADVANCED~RESEARCH~METHODS~/~LABORATORY~IN~} \\ {\bf DEVELOPMENTAL~PSYCHOLOGY}$

Units: 3

Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: ENGL 121 and PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 260 and (PSYC 314 or PSYC 316 or PSYC 318)

In-depth study of research methods in developmental psychology. Emphasis will be placed on the factors that make developmental research unique, on the appropriateness of particular methods for specific research questions, and on the critical evaluation of research reports. Written project reports as well as literature review and research proposal will be required.

# ${\bf PSYC~422~|~ADVANCED~RESEARCH~METHODS~/~LABORATORY~IN~SOCIAL~PSYCHOLOGY}$

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ENGL 121 and PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 260 and PSYC 322 (Can be taken Concurrently)

This course provides students with hands-on experience in experimental research and scientific writing in social psychology. Along with reviewing the basics of experimental research design, students will design an experimental study, collect and analyze data, and present their project in an APA style research paper.

# PSYC 422W | ADVANCED RESEARCH METHODS / LABORATORY IN SOCIAL PSYCHOLOGY

Units: 3

Prerequisites: ENGL 121 and PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 260 and PSYC 322 (Can be taken Concurrently)

This course provides students with hands-on experience in experimental research and scientific writing in social psychology. Along with reviewing the basics of experimental research design, students will design an experimental study, collect and analyze data, and present their project in an APA style research paper.

# PSYC 436 | ADVANCED RESEARCH METHODS / LABORATORY IN COGNITIVE PSYCHOLOGY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ENGL 121 and PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 260 and PSYC 336 (Can be taken Concurrently)

This course integrates an in-depth exploration of selected topics with an emphasis on experimental research methods. Readings in original research, active participation in laboratory replications, complete research report preparation, and write-ups will accompany each topic. The course will culminate in the preparation of an original research project.

# PSYC 436W | ADVANCED RESEARCH METHODS / LABORATORY IN COGNITIVE PSYCHOLOGY

Units: 3

Prerequisites: ENGL 121 and PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 260 and PSYC 336 (Can be taken Concurrently)

This course integrates an in-depth exploration of selected topics with an emphasis on experimental research methods. Readings in original research, active participation in laboratory replications, complete research report preparation, and write-ups will accompany each topic. The course will culminate in the preparation of an original research project.

# ${\bf PSYC~455~|~ADVANCED~RESEARCH~METHODS~/~LABORATORY~IN~CLINICAL~PSYCHOLOGY}$

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ENGL 121 and PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 260 and (PSYC 354 (Can be taken Concurrently) or PSYC 355 (Can be taken Concurrently))

The course is designed to increase competency in designing, conducting, evaluating, and writing research papers in clinical psychology. This goal will be met through lectures, readings, and class discussion on the process of conducting research and the process of disseminating research in written and oral forms. This course satisfies an upper division writing lab so the course will focus on all stages of the writing process, including pre-writing, drafting, revising, and editing. Writing requirements include brief papers and a series of draft reviews and revisions that will result in a major APA style research paper.

# PSYC 455W | ADVANCED RESEARCH METHODS / LABORATORY IN CLINICAL PSYCHOLOGY

Units: 3

**Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: ENGL 121 and PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 260 (Can be taken Concurrently) and (PSYC 354 (Can be taken Concurrently) or PSYC 355 (Can be taken Concurrently))

The course is designed to increase competency in designing, conducting, evaluating, and writing research papers in clinical psychology. This goal will be met through lectures, readings, and class discussion on the process of conducting research and the process of disseminating research in written and oral forms. This course satisfies an upper division writing lab so the course will focus on all stages of the writing process, including pre-writing, drafting, revising, and editing. Writing requirements include brief papers and a series of draft reviews and revisions that will result in a major APA style research paper.

# ${\bf PSYC~457~|~ADVANCED~RESEARCH~METHODS~/~LABORATORY~IN~}\\ {\bf HEALTH~PSYCHOLOGY}$

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ENGL 121 and PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 260 and (PSYC 357 (Can be taken Concurrently) or PSYC 359 (Can be taken Concurrently) or PSYC 359D (Can be taken Concurrently))

This course is designed to provide in-depth discussion about the various methods, concepts, and techniques in the field of health psychology. Emphasis will be placed on the types of issues and methods that make health psychology unique. Requirements include written critical reviews of various journal articles, a literature review, and a research proposal.

# PSYC 457W | ADVANCED RESEARCH METHODS / LABORATORY IN HEALTH PSYCHOLOGY

Units: 3

Prerequisites: ENGL 121 and PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 (Can be taken Concurrently) and PSYC 260 (Can be taken Concurrently)

This course is designed to provide in-depth discussion about the various methods, concepts, and techniques in the field of health psychology. Emphasis will be placed on the types of issues and methods that make health psychology unique. Requirements include written critical reviews of various journal articles, a literature review, and a research proposal.

# ${\bf PSYC~464~|~ADVANCED~RESEARCH~METHODS~/~LABORATORY~IN~SPORT~PSYCHOLOGY}$

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ENGL 121 and PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 260 and PSYC 364 (Can be taken Concurrently)

This course provides students with hands-on experience in experimental research and scientific writing in sport psychology. Along with reviewing the basics of experimental research design, students will design a study, collect and analyze data, and present their project in an APA-Style paper.

# ${\bf PSYC~464W~|~ADVANCED~RESEARCH~METHODS~/~LABORATORY~IN~SPORT~PSYCHOLOGY}$

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: ENGL 121 and PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 260 and PSYC 364 (Can be taken Concurrently)

This course provides students with hands-on experience in experimental research and scientific writing in sport psychology. Along with reviewing the basics of experimental research design, students will design a study, collect and analyze data, and present their project in an APA-Style paper.

# PSYC 466 | METHODS OF EVIDENCE-BASED PSYCHOTHERAPY Units: 3

Prerequisites: PSYC 101

This course will familiarize student with both the theory underlying various evidence-based psychosocial interventions as well as the practical techniques used in those interventions. Psychotherapy methods pertaining to children and adults and to a variety of clinical disorders will be reviewed, demonstrated, and role played. Application to a variety of presenting problems and client types will be discussed.

# PSYC 470 | ADVANCED RESEARCH METHODS ANIMAL BEHAVIOR CAPSTONE

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Oral communication competency

Prerequisites: ENGL 121 and PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 260 and PSYC 344  $\,$ 

In the capstone course, senior psychology majors integrate what they have learned in their previous classes while deepening their knowledge in a particular domain within psychological sciences. In this class, students will study the empirical literature and the methodology used to investigate issues in animal behavior. The course will involve the discussion and application of research methods and statistics concepts through course content and the completion of a research project (extensive reading in the empirical literature, designing an observational study, and collecting and analyzing data); writing and revising a scientific, APA style research paper; and orally communicating the project in a presentation.

# PSYC 471 | ADVANCED RESEARCH METHODS CLINICAL PSYCHOLOGY CAPSTONE

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Oral communication competency

Prerequisites: ENGL 121 and PSYC 101 and (PSYC 230 and PSYC 260 (Can be taken Concurrently) and PSYC 354 (Can be taken Concurrently) or PSYC 355 (Can be taken Concurrently))

In the capstone course, senior psychology majors integrate what they have learned in their previous classes while deepening their knowledge in a particular domain within psychological sciences. In this class, students will study the empirical literature and the methodology used to investigate issues in clinical psychology. The course will involve the discussion and application of research methods and statistics concepts through course content and the completion of a research project (extensive reading in the empirical literature, designing an experimental study, and analyzing data); writing and revising a scientific, APA style research paper; and orally communicating the project in a presentation.

# PSYC 472 | ADVANCED RESEARCH METHODS COGNITIVE PSYCHOLOGY CAPSTONE

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Oral communication competency

Prerequisites: ENGL 121 and PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 260 and PSYC 336

In the capstone course, senior psychology majors integrate what they have learned in their previous classes while deepening their knowledge in a particular domain within psychological sciences. In this class, students will study the empirical literature and the methodology used to investigate issues in cognitive psychology. The course will involve the discussion and application of research methods and statistics concepts through course content and the completion of a research project (extensive reading in the empirical literature, designing an experimental study, and collecting and analyzing data); writing and revising a scientific, APA style research paper; and orally communicating the project in a presentation.

# PSYC 473 | ADVANCED RESEARCH METHODS DEVELOPMENTAL PSYCHOLOGY CAPSTONE

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Oral communication competency

Prerequisites: ENGL 121 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 260 and (PSYC 314 or PSYC 316)

In the capstone course, senior psychology majors integrate what they have learned in their previous classes while deepening their knowledge in a particular domain within psychological sciences. In this class, students will study the empirical literature and the methodology used to investigate issues in developmental psychology. The course will involve the discussion and application of research methods and statistics concepts through course content and the completion of a research project (extensive reading in the empirical literature, designing an experimental study, and collecting and analyzing data); writing and revising a scientific, APA style research paper; and orally communicating the project in a presentation.

# PSYC 474 | ADVANCED RESEARCH METHODS HEALTH PSYCHOLOGY CAPSTONE

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Oral communication competency

Prerequisites: ENGL 121 and PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 260 and PSYC 336

In the capstone course, senior psychology majors integrate what they have learned in their previous classes while deepening their knowledge in a particular domain within psychological sciences. In this class, students will study the empirical literature and the methodology used to investigate issues in health psychology. The course will involve the discussion and application of research methods and statistics concepts through course content and the completion of a research project (extensive reading in the empirical literature, designing an experimental study, and collecting and analyzing data); writing and revising a scientific, APA style research paper; and orally communicating the project in a presentation.

# PSYC 475 | ADVANCED RESEARCH METHODS CONDITIONING AND LEARNING CAPSTONE

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Oral communication competency

Prerequisites: ENGL 121 and PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 260 and PSYC 332  $\,$ 

In the capstone course, senior psychology majors integrate what they have learned in their previous classes while deepening their knowledge in a particular domain within psychological sciences. In this class, students will study the empirical literature and the methodology used to investigate issues in learning. The course will involve the discussion and application of research methods and statistics concepts through course content, a series of experimental modules in learning, and the completion of a research proposal (extensive reading in the empirical literature, designing an experimental study, and predicting results); writing and revising a scientific, APA style research paper; and orally communicating the proposal in a presentation.

# PSYC 476 | ADVANCED RESEARCH METHODS SOCIAL PSYCHOLOGY CAPSTONE

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Oral communication competency

Prerequisites: ENGL 121 and PSYC 101 and PSYC 230 and PSYC 260 and PSYC 322

In the capstone course, senior psychology majors integrate what they have learned in their previous classes while deepening their knowledge in a particular domain within psychological sciences. In this class, students will study the empirical literature and the methodology used to investigate issues in social psychology. The course will involve the discussion and application of research methods and statistics concepts through course content and the completion of a research project (extensive reading in the empirical literature, designing an experimental study, and collecting and analyzing data); writing and revising a scientific, APA style research paper; and orally communicating the project in a presentation.

# PSYC 492 | MAJOR FIELD TEST IN PSYCHOLOGY

Units: 0

As part of the department's assessment program, each graduating senior is required to take a major field test in psychology and senior exit survey. A student who fails to do so may be restricted from graduating.

### PSYC 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN PSYCHOLOGY

Units: 1-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

The purpose of this course is to provide the advanced undergraduate student with an opportunity to explore a variety of contemporary topics in psychology. These will be in-depth investigations on subjects of special interest to the instructor. Course may be repeated with different topics.

## PSYC 496 | RESEARCH EXPERIENCE

Units: 1-2 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

**Core Attributes: Law - Experiential** 

Experience in serving as a researcher in a project conducted by a faculty member. By invitation. P/F only. Requires the consent of the instructor.

# PSYC 497 | APPLIED EXPERIENCE IN PSYCHOLOGY

**Units: 1-2 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Prerequisites: PSYC 101

Practical experience in a community/field setting under professional supervision. Each student is required to complete a minimum of 40 hours (1 unit section) or 80 hours (2 unit section) of supervised training in an assigned field setting over the course of the semester. Fieldwork is under the joint supervision of agency personnel and the course instructor. A time log and written summary of the experience by the student and a performance evaluation by the supervisor are required.

### PSYC 498 | INTERNSHIP IN PSYCHOLOGY

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

**Core Attributes: Law - Experiential** 

Prerequisites: PSYC 101

Practical experience in a community/field setting under professional supervision. Each student is required to complete a minimum of 120 hours of supervised training in an assigned field setting over the course of the semester. Fieldwork is under the joint supervision of agency personnel and the course instructor.

# PSYC 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: PSYC 101

Library, laboratory, or field research of the student's own design conducted under faculty supervision. A written application and final report are required. Requires the consent of the instructor.

# **Sociology**

# **CHAIR**

Thomas E. Reifer, PhD

# **Faculty**

Adina Batnitzky, PhD

Michelle Madsen Camacho, PhD

Julia Miller Cantzler, PhD

Erik D. Fritsvold, PhD

Persephone Hooper Lewis, MA, USD Tribal Liaison

Judith Liu, PhD

Cid Martinez, PhD

Lisa Nunn, PhD

S. Greg Prieto, PhD

The degree program in sociology provides students with the analytical tools to help them understand the links between individual experiences and the larger society. In examining social life and social change, the department focuses on questions of power, culture, and inequality in the U.S. and at the global level, combining a comparative-historical perspective with the scientific and humanistic vantage points of the social sciences. All students are exposed to classical and contemporary sociological theories and learn to apply both quantitative and qualitative approaches to sociological research.

The complexity of the field of sociology is reflected in the wide range of courses offered in the department and in the varied interests and backgrounds of the faculty. Professors in the USD Sociology Department specialize in global perspectives on power and inequality; stratification and poverty; immigration; racial, ethnic, and national diversity; spatial segregation; community activism and leadership; gender and sexuality; public health; global expansion of capitalism and democracy; crime, law, citizenship and social justice; environmental inequalities; social movements; and social change.

Careers in Sociology include work in non-profit sectors, education, counseling, research, administration, public service, criminology/criminal justice policy, public health, public relations, IT services, social services, management, sales, and marketing.

We share in USD's mission to work towards peace and social justice, with a special emphasis on the Catholic intellectual and social tradition. Strong community service-learning components and field experience placements in community agencies provide an opportunity for students to link abstract sociological concepts to concrete social issues in the search for solutions to pressing societal problems.

# The Sociology Major

# Major Requirements

Students majoring in sociology must satisfy the core curriculum requirements as set forth in this course catalog and complete all major requirements as presented in the following schedule:

Code Title

Lower-Division Preparation for the Major

SOCI 101	Introduction to Sociology	3
SOCI 201	Quantitative Methods	3
SOCI 202	Qualitative Methods	3
SOCI 270	Law and Social Justice	3
and select one of th	ne following:	3
SOCI 210	Social Justice	
SOCI 240	Crime and Inequality	
<b>Upper-Division</b>		
SOCI 301	Sociological Theories	3
SOCI 370	Race and Ethnic Relations	3
18 additional Upper Division SOCI units, at least 12 units of which must be selected from a single area concentration: Social Justice or Law, Crime, Justice $^2$		18
Total Units		39

- Students should plan their upper-division courses in consultation with their major advisor.
- At least 15 of the 24 Upper-Division Units must be taken at USD. No more than 6 non-USD units taken abroad will be accepted for credit toward the Sociology major

# Recommended Program of Study, Sociology

Freshman Year		Units	
SOCI 101	Introduction to Sociology	3	
Sophomore Year			
SOCI 201	Quantitative Methods	3	
SOCI 202	Qualitative Methods	3	
SOCI 210	Social Justice	3	
or 240	Crime and Inequality		
SOCI 270	Law and Social Justice	3	
Junior Year			
SOCI 301	Sociological Theories (required)	3	
SOCI 370	Race and Ethnic Relations (required)	3	
Three Upper-Division Electives		9	
One-Semester Study Abroad (optional)			
Senior Year			
Three Upper-Division	9		
Internship/Field Experience (optional)			

# **Area Concentrations**

# Social Justice Concentration

Power, difference, and inequality are at the heart of sociological inquiry. The Social Justice concentration focuses on social structures that serve as mechanisms for the creation and perpetuation of social disparities, while also studying the many ways that groups and organizations seek to create a more socially just world. We interrogate the complicated ways that human behavior is shaped by both structure and agency through a variety of theoretical vantage points with an emphasis on race, ethnicity, socioeconomic class, gender, and sexuality. Courses address systemic inequalities both in U.S. domestic arenas as well as global and transnational dynamics, including issues of peace and war. Topics include education, democracy, citizenship, families, religion, global capitalism, urbanism, the environment and sustainable development, among others. We look at the role

Units

Units of social movements and community organizations in effecting social change.

This concentration will be of interest to students planning careers in leadership, the non-profit sector, the labor movement, educational policy, human services/

resources, public health, public administration, and business, as well as students pursuing graduate work or careers in law, education, public policy and related professional fields.

# Social Justice Concentration Electives

Code	Title	Units
SOCI 310	U.S. Society	3
SOCI 311	Sociology of Families	3
SOCI 312D	Gender Through the Prism of Difference	3
SOCI 313D	Sexualities	3
SOCI 314	Sociology of Education	3
SOCI 315	Health and Society	3
SOCI 410	Social Change: Global Perspectives	3
SOCI 411	Work and Labor	3
SOCI 412	Community, Consensus, and Commitment	3
SOCI 494	Special Topics in Contemporary Sociology (approval of department chair required)	3

# Law, Crime, Justice Concentration

The Law, Crime, and Justice Concentration offers students a critical analysis of the relationship between law and society with a particular focus on legal institutions, public policy, crime, the criminal justice system and the production of social inequality. Courses in the concentration seek to reveal the origins and consequences of law by examining the various ways that law both shapes and is shaped by social and political forces. Various topics in the concentration include: the manifestations, causes, and consequences of criminal behavior; the relationship between law, social power, and persistent social inequalities; and the contested meanings of justice, rights and equality as they exist both inside and outside legal institutions.

# Law, Crime, Justice Concentration Electives

Code	Title	Unit
SOCI 340	Urban Sociology	3
SOCI 341	Criminology	3
SOCI 342	Juvenile Delinquency	3
SOCI 343	Corrections	3
SOCI 344	Social Deviance	3
SOCI 345	Theories of Crime	3
SOCI 346	Rights, Justice, Law and Social Change	3
SOCI 440	Race and the Criminal Justice System	3
SOCI 441	Drugs & U.S. Society	3
SOCI 472	Criminalizing Immigration	3
SOCI 494	Special Topics in Contemporary Sociology	3

# Additional Electives for either concentration:

Code	Title	Units
SOCI 371	Inequality and Social Change	3
SOCI 372	Politics and Society	3-4
SOCI 373	Social Institutions	3
SOCI 374	Social Movements	3
SOCI 470	Sexuality and Borders	3
SOCI 471	Environmental Inequality and Justice	3
SOCI 472	Criminalizing Immigration	3
SOCI 493	Field Experience in Sociology	1-3
SOCI 498	Internship in Sociology	3
SOCI 494	Special Topics in Contemporary Sociology	3

SOCI 499 Independent Study 1-3

# The Sociology Minor

# Minor Requirements

111111111111111111111111111111111111111			
Code	Title	Units	
Lower Divisio	n (9 units)		
Select two of the	he following Contemporary Social Issues courses:	6	
SOCI 100	Introduction to Ethnic Studies	3	
SOCI 210	Social Justice	3	
SOCI 240	Crime and Inequality	3	
SOCI 270	Law and Social Justice	3	
Upper Division (9 units minimum)			
Total Units		18	

Students must have taken SOCI 100 and either SOCI 210, SOCI 240, or SOCI 270 (and have completed 45 undergraduate units) before enrolling in any upper division sociology course. (Prerequisites may occasionally be waived with consent of the instructor.)

## SOCI 101 | INTRODUCTION TO SOCIOLOGY

Units: 3-4 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: First year Integration, Social/Behavioral Inquiry area, Domestic Diversity level 1

This course is required for the Sociology major and introduces students to basic concepts of sociology: groups, race and ethnicity, class, gender, nation, citizenship, status, role, society, behavior patterns, and social institutions. The approach is broadly comparative, historical, and global in orientation and focus, with an emphasis on the U.S. Particular attention is paid to issues of power, inequality, war, peace, social change, and social justice. Offered every semester.

# SOCI 201 | QUANTITATIVE METHODS

# ts Units: 3

## **Core Attributes: Quantitative reasoning comp**

This course is required for completion of the Sociology major and provides an introduction to the use of quantitative methods with an emphasis on descriptive statistics. Students learn concepts including quantitative research design, sampling methods, components of survey research, measurement and analysis of variables, and standards of ethical practice. Statistical procedures include central tendency and variability measures, the normal curve, probability, correlation, and regression. Students will also develop basic fluency in SPSS, a statistical software package, to analyze empirical data.

# SOCI 202 | QUALITATIVE METHODS

Units: 3

# Core Attributes: Social/Behavioral Inquiry area

This course is required for completion of the Sociology major and provides an introduction to the use of qualitative methods such as ethnographic research, field research, individual and focus group interviewing, historical comparative research, and qualitative survey research. Students learn concepts of research design including conceptualization, operationalization, sampling methods, and data analysis. These tools are integral to the execution of qualitative sociological research.

## SOCI 210 | SOCIAL JUSTICE

## Units: 3 Repeatability: No

## Core Attributes: Social/Behavioral Inquiry area, Domestic Diversity level 1

This is a social problems course that critically examines issues of power, difference and inequality, utilizing comparative, historical, global and other critical perspectives. In an age of widening social polarization, the intersections of power, structure and agency are at the heart of sociological inquiry. Topics covered include stratification, social change, and struggles for peace and justice as they relate to issues of class, race, gender, sexuality and citizenship. The course will consider these issues in local, regional and global contexts, with an orientation towards social justice. This course is open to both majors and nonmajors for fulfillment of the Core Curriculum requirements.

## SOCI 240 | CRIME AND INEQUALITY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Social/Behavioral Inquiry area, Domestic Diversity level 1, Undergraduate Research

This introductory level course critically examines contemporary social issues in Crime, Justice, Law and Society. It will analyze the historic and contemporary responses of the law-enforcement community to various types of criminal and deviant behavior. The actions of formal agents of social control will be investigated both empirically and theoretically. Topics of the course include: theories of punishment, the criminal justice system, and the enduring tensions between social control and individual freedoms. This course is open to both majors and non-majors for fulfillment of the core curriculum requirements. For sociology majors, it also serves as an introductory pathway to the Crime, Justice, law and Society concentration.

### SOCI 270 | LAW AND SOCIAL JUSTICE

Units: 3

### Core Attributes: Social/Behavioral Inquiry area

This course provides a dynamic broad introduction to the study of law as a social institution, in the context of larger questions of inequality and social justice.

# SOCI 294 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN CONTEMPORARY SOCIOLOGY Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

An overview and analysis of selected contemporary topics in sociology, this course discusses specific content to be determined by particular interest of instructor and students. May be repeated for credit with different course content. (Offered on demand).

# SOCI 301 | SOCIOLOGICAL THEORIES

Units: 3

This course is required for completion of the Sociology major and provides an examination of classical and contemporary sociological theories as part of the development of the structures of knowledge, drawing on a wide range of theorists and perspectives, including micro and macro perspectives, consensus and conflict theories, structural functionalist modernization theory, world-systems analysis, critical race and feminist theory, and related questions of structure, agency, and social change. Emphasis is on critical engagement with theorists and perspectives, and their respective strengths and weaknesses.

# SOCI 302 | RURAL DEVELOPMENT: GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES

**Units: 1-6** 

# SOCI 310 | U.S. SOCIETY

Units: 3

### Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, First year Integration

An introduction to U.S. society within historical and social perspectives. Transitions and transformations in U.S. culture and values are considered in a social context. Topics explored include industrialization, capitalism, social stratification, and the interplay of freedom, democracy, individualism, and volunteerism with the U.S.'s social structure, political institutions, and cultural framework.

## SOCI 311 | SOCIOLOGY OF FAMILIES

#### Units: 3

Analysis of the family as a social institution and as a social group, with emphasis on the impact of industrialization on traditional family functions, courtship, role expectations, child rearing, and family stability. The course will examine changes in work patterns, marriage, divorce, and cohabitation over time. Race, ethnicity, and gender differences will also be addressed.

# SOCI 312 | GENDER THROUGH THE PRISM OF DIFFERENCE Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course explores how gender organizes our society. It focuses on how specific institutions affect individual agency; for example, how do the media, corporate industries, and professional organizations differently influence the social construction of femininity and masculinity? What processes of social activism and resistance do individuals engage to challenge such pressures? Analyses also focus on how conceptions of biological determinism affect behavior. Finally, the intersections of race, class, and sexual diversity among men and women are investigated as they relate to social phenomena such as production, reproduction, identity, and social change.

### **SOCI 313 | SEXUALITIES**

Units: 3-4 Repeatability: No

### Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 2

An analysis of the phenomenon of human sexuality from a sociological perspective. An understanding of the diversity of sexuality, development of sex roles, sexual orientation, historical and cross-cultural views of sexuality, and trends in sexual behavior and attitudes. Topics will include such issues as sexual identity, socialization, social change, and social movements.

#### **SOCI 314 | SOCIOLOGY OF EDUCATION**

#### Units: 3

An introduction to education as a social process and a social institution. Topics include: the social functions of education; the school as a formal organization and social system; social factors affecting the educational process; and an examination of change and innovation in education.

# SOCI 315 | HEALTH AND SOCIETY

# **Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)**

# **Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE**

This course will provide students with an understanding of how social signifiers, such as race, gender, ethnicity, socioeconomic status, and age contribute to disparities in health across different places. Through case studies, students will be encouraged to examine the changing sociologies of health and illness in both a global and local context. Topics will include health care systems, HIV/AIDS, cancer, women's health, obesity, disability, mental health, and alcohol and tobacco. Throughout the course, special attention will be given to the role of medicalization in the transformation of certain human conditions into categories of health and illness

# SOCI 340 | URBAN SOCIOLOGY

### Units: 3

The goal of this course is to expose students to the array of topics that occupy the attention of contemporary urban scholars: political, economic, and cultural issues related to urban transformation, urban inequalities, urban design, urban consumption, urban sustainability, and urban security.

### **SOCI 341 | CRIMINOLOGY**

### Units: 3

An examination of crime and society, with special emphasis on theories of criminality, types and trends in crime, and current controversies in criminology.

# **SOCI 342 | JUVENILE DELINQUENCY**

#### Units: 3

This course provides an empirical description and sociohistorical analysis of the complex social problem of juvenile delinquency. Toward this goal, the course examines the historical circumstances and legal heritage out of which the social construction of juvenile delinquency has emerged. The emphasis of the course is on the process through which juvenile behavior becomes juvenile delinquency and the process through which juveniles become juvenile delinquents. This course also explores theoretical explanations for deviance and law-violating behavior committed by juveniles.

#### **SOCI 343 | CORRECTIONS**

### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course is a critical evaluation of America's historic and contemporary use of the correctional system as the primary response to crime and many social problems. This seminar is more about ideology than structure, of paramount interest are the social, political and economic contexts of prisons and the "tough on crime" movement that have produced the largest prison system in the world.

#### SOCI 344 | SOCIAL DEVIANCE

### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

## Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency

An analysis of conceptions of deviant behavior, the nature and prevalence of such behavior, and the theories developed to explain deviance. Emphasis is upon the relationship of such behavior to social structure and social processes.

## **SOCI 345 | THEORIES OF CRIME**

#### Units: 3

This course uses the theoretical and methodological tools of criminology to examine the origins of deviant and criminal behavior. We will explore the major theoretical perspectives on criminality that have shaped the discipline over time and apply these theories to historical and contemporary case studies of actual criminal behavior. In combination, these theoretical paradigms and case studies should provide insight into a very complicated question - why do people do crime?

# SOCI 346 | RIGHTS, JUSTICE, LAW AND SOCIAL CHANGE Units: 3

The study of rights, justice, and law as social institutions. After being introduced to the sociolegal foundations of U.S. society and the scope of contemporary law, students will be expected to closely and critically examine the role law plays in the establishment and taking away of individual rights and liberties. Students will also be expected to develop an understanding of justice, how the meaning of justice has changed over the course of U.S. history, and the social forces that have played a role in molding new interpretations of justice. This course places special emphasis on the law's role in both producing and remedying social inequality. Particular attention is given to the subjects of race, gender, class, civil rights, and privacy rights.

# SOCI 370 | RACE AND ETHNIC RELATIONS

### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

An introduction to theory and research relative to minority group relations in the United States, with particular emphasis upon patterns, problems, and consequences of social interaction and cultural diversity among different racial, national, religious, and socioeconomic groups.

# SOCI 371 | INEQUALITY AND SOCIAL CHANGE

# Units: 3

An analysis of the structures and dynamics of social inequality, focusing upon competing theoretical explanations and empirical investigations of different arrangements by which wealth, power, and prestige are distributed in human societies.

## SOCI 372 | POLITICS AND SOCIETY

#### **Units: 3-4**

An introduction to the sociological analysis of the theory and practice of power in contemporary societies. Emphasis will be placed upon such topics as the nature of political power, social and cultural foundations of political institutions, sources and patterns of political involvement, and the social consequences of various types of power structures.

#### **SOCI 373 | SOCIAL INSTITUTIONS**

#### Units: 3

A comparative analysis of the basic structuring of human societies, utilizing the perspective of social systems theory. Topics for discussion will include such fundamental institutionalized processes as social allocation and social power, as well as the development of total societies from simple to complex forms of organization.

#### **SOCI 374 | SOCIAL MOVEMENTS**

#### Units: 3

An examination of the short-lived, and often extraordinary, non institutionalized behavioral phenomena of crowds, mobs, riots, panics, and crazes that seem periodically to disturb the orderly flow of human societal life. Also examined will be the processes by which these "social aberrations" may become institutionalized as social movements or as part of a new and emerging sociocultural order.

## SOCI 380 | COLLECTIVE BEHAVIOR

### Units: 3

An examination of the short-lived, and often extraordinary, non institutionalized behavioral phenomena of crowds, mobs, riots, panics, and crazes that seem to periodically disturb the orderly flow of human societal life. Also examined will be the processes by which these "social aberrations" may become institutionalized, as social movements, as part of a new and emerging sociocultural order.

# SOCI 410 | SOCIAL CHANGE: GLOBAL PERSPECTIVES Units: 3

Using sociological perspectives on the roles of cultural beliefs and social practices in shaping people's lives, this course offers an overview of the organizing principles of society that resulted in the transition of pre-industrial societies to modern industrial states. The goals of the course are to make students aware of the power that social and cultural structures hold over them, of the fact that different societies will necessarily hold disparate views on how societies should be organized, and of the means to assess social/cultural differences in a nonjudgmental way. Topics covered include the technological bases of social organization, sex and gender stratification, demography, nationalism, religion, and civil society.

# SOCI 411 | WORK AND LABOR

### Units: 3

# **Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency**

Examination of work, the labor force, and labor markets are integral to sociological theory and research. This course examines how labor and work impact and structure daily life, social structures, and the political economy. In addition, this course examines the relationship between politics and policy and the labor force in the United States.

# SOCI 412 | COMMUNITY, CONSENSUS, AND COMMITMENT Units: 3

### **Core Attributes: Oral communication competency**

This interdisciplinary course will be useful for students who seek to understand contemporary social issues in a purposeful and strategic manner. The course utilizes theory and practice in order for students to learn the various dimensions of what constitutes community, and how to apply the tools of community organizing, consensus-building, and sustaining commitment in addressing social issues.

## **SOCI 425 | THE BLACK ATLANTIC**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

## **Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE**

With a particular emphasis on Jamaica, this course provides an overview of Caribbean society and culture from the beginning of the trans-Atlantic slave trade to the present. Specific attention will be given to the themes of colonization, slavery, culture, and resistance. This course seeks to engender cultural competence in students and have them use Caribbean cultures as a lens through which they critically evaluate their racial, ethnic, gendered, national, and socioeconomic selves.(Abroad only).

# SOCI 440 | RACE AND THE CRIMINAL JUSTICE SYSTEM Units: 3

An examination and analysis of the various structures of inequality as they relate to processes of social control. Emphasis on strategies and techniques utilized to label and combat deviant and criminal behavior. Attention will be focused on the organization and operation of the U.S. criminal justice system.

#### SOCI 441 | DRUGS & U.S. SOCIETY

# Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course utilizes the lenses of criminology and sociology in a cross-national, critical evaluation of America's historic and contemporary drug policies. This course systematically examines the pharmacological effects of legal and illegal drugs, the role of moral panics and moral entrepreneurs in shaping the 'war on drugs' and the impacts of criminalization on the community and criminal justice system.

# SOCI 470 | SEXUALITY AND BORDERS

#### Units: 3

This course critically examines sexuality as a set of social and political statuses ascribed to individuals. The course interrogates the ways that laws seek to govern rights and privileges of the citizenry according to these statuses of sexuality, in addition to the ways norms and informal policies prohibit and prescribe individuals' self-expression. The course focuses on issues of crossing borders, both symbolic boundaries, such as norms of families and reproduction within the U.S., as well as passage across national borders for purposes such as marriage immigration, sex tourism, and human trafficking for the sex trade.

# SOCI 471 | ENVIRONMENTAL INEQUALITY AND JUSTICE Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Global Diversity level 2

Using a sociological perspective, this course explores how social power dynamics along racial, economic, and cultural lines are pertinent to understanding people¿s disproportionate access to clean, safe, and productive environments, on the one hand, and their unequal exposure to environmental harms, on the other. Through the critical examination of contemporary case studies, students in this course will gain a greater appreciation of the social causes and consequences of environmental racism and inequality, as well as the efforts that are being taken by social groups engaged in political struggles for environmental justice.

### **SOCI 472 | CRIMINALIZING IMMIGRATION**

# Units: 3

This course provides an overview of sociological research in the field of international migration and focuses on topics including: migration flows into gateway cities such as San Diego, New York, Los Angeles, and Miami; transnationalism; immigration law and policy; immigrant families, activism, citizenship, and work.

## SOCI 473 | SUSTAINABILITY: SOCIOLOGICAL PERSPECTIVES

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

## **Core Attributes: Advanced Integration**

This course examines the powerful—but highly contested—concept of sustainability. This task is complicated by the fact that "sustainability" has come to mean so many things to so many different entities, and has generated such a diverse body of academic literature, that it's difficult to make sense of the term. This course will navigate this complex landscape by critically examining multiple definitions and framings of sustainability, and applying these framings to specific case studies on climate change, energy, water, food, transportation, and waste, to name a few. This course will also explore how understanding sustainability and creating a more sustainable world requires integrating multiple disciplinary perspectives. While a sociological perspective is essential to these tasks, so too are perspectives from the natural sciences, philosophy, history, and the arts, among others

# SOCI 493 | FIELD EXPERIENCE IN SOCIOLOGY

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

#### Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Practical experience in a field setting under professional and faculty supervision. Each student will complete 40 to 120 hours of training and service (40 hours per unit of credit) in an assigned field setting. Students may be required to attend an orientation program prior to their placement. Regularly scheduled meetings with the faculty supervisor are required from each student. May be taken for one to three units per semester. Field experience courses may not be applied toward fulfillment of requirements for the Sociology Major. Consent of faculty supervisor is required prior to registration. Pass/fail option only.

# SOCI 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN CONTEMPORARY SOCIOLOGY Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

An in-depth analysis of selected contemporary topics in sociology, with specific content to be determined by particular interest of professor. May be repeated for credit with different course content.

# SOCI 498 | INTERNSHIP IN SOCIOLOGY

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

### **Core Attributes: Law - Experiential**

A practicum course involving a minimum of 120 hours per semester with various community, social service, and criminal justice agencies throughout San Diego County. Students may be required to attend an orientation program prior to their placement. Fieldwork is under the supervision of agency personnel and the faculty supervisor. Regularly scheduled meetings with the faculty supervisor, a learning journal of experiences, and a research paper are required from each student. A maximum of 6 units of credit from internship courses may be applied toward fulfillment of requirements for the Sociology Major. Junior or senior standing and consent of the faculty supervisor are required prior to registration.

# SOCI 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

# Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Individual study and written research working in close collaboration with a faculty advisor. Consent of instructor and of the department chair are required for registration

# **Theatre Arts and Performance Studies**

# Chair/Director

Scott Ripley, MFA

# **Faculty**

Brian Byrnes, MFA

Ray Chambers, MFA

Evelyn Diaz Cruz, MFA

Jan Gist, MFA

Nathaniel Parde, MFA

Monica Stufft, PhD

The Undergraduate Theatre program embraces theatre as a means to inspire humanity and engage a diverse society. Through the lens of playmaking, we are aligned with the University's liberal arts mission - focusing on the development of empathy, critical analysis, creative problem solving, and changemaking. Through collaborative artistic exploration, the program trains the individual to create within the ensemble.

# Special Programs

Students interested in pursuing a Liberal Studies major or an Interdisciplinary Humanities major with a concentration in theatre should plan their program carefully with the advisor in their major and with the Theatre department chair to ensure that graduation requirements are met.

# Preparation for the Major

Code	Title	Units
<b>Lower-Division</b>		
THEA 101	Script Analysis	3
THEA 116	Theatre Practicum - Acting/Stage Management	1-2
THEA 117	Theatre Practicum - Backstage and Production	1
THEA 205	Technical Theatre with Lab	4
THEA 220	Fundamentals of Theatrical Design	3
THEA 230	Acting I	3
Total Units		15-16

# Major Requirements

The Theatre major requires 26 upper-division units.

Code	Title	Units
<b>Upper-Division</b>		
THEA 316	Theatre Practicum - Costume Production	1
THEA 317	Theatre Practicum - Stagecraft	1
THEA 360	Theatre History 1	3
THEA 362	Theatre History 2	3
THEA 370	Performance Studies	3
THEA 380	Theatre of Diversity	3
THEA 475C	Theatre and Community	3
Take two courses	(six units) from the following:	6
THEA 320	Scenic Design	
THEA 330	Costume Design	
THEA 365	Playwriting	
THEA 390	Directing and Stage Management	
Take one course (t	three units) from the following:	3
THEA 340	Voice and Speech	
THEA 345	Physical Actor	
THEA 385	Acting for the Musical Theatre	

THEA 435	Classical Acting	
Total Units		26

# The Theatre Minor

# Minor Requirements

Code	Title	Units
<b>Lower Division</b>		
THEA 101	Script Analysis	3
THEA 205	Technical Theatre with Lab	4
THEA 220	Fundamentals of Theatrical Design	3
THEA 230	Acting I	3
Take one course (c	one - two units) from the following:	1-2
THEA 116	Theatre Practicum - Acting/Stage Management	
THEA 117	Theatre Practicum - Backstage and Production	
<b>Upper Division</b>		
Take one course (c	one unit) from the following:	1
THEA 316	Theatre Practicum - Costume Production	
THEA 317	Theatre Practicum - Stagecraft	
Take one course (t	hree units) from the following:	3
THEA 370	Performance Studies	
THEA 380	Theatre of Diversity	
Select one addition	nal upper-division THEA course (three units)	3
Total Units		21-22

## THEA 101 | SCRIPT ANALYSIS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course focuses on the analysis of dramatic literature – learning how to closely read, examine, dissect, interpret, and analyze play scripts – which is the essential foundation for playmaking. Through the process of excavating a script for the ideas that ultimately shape the play in performance, students will develop critical thinking skills. The course includes extensive reading, written analysis, individual and group projects, and class discussion.

# THEA 111 | THEATRE AND SOCIETY

ts Units: 3-4 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This course studies theatre as an art form and examines the historical role of theatre in the world and its significance as a cultural force. It involves attending plays, designing projects and/or performing. Satisfies the core curriculum fine arts requirement.

### THEA 115 | THEATRE PRACTICUM I FOR NON-MAJORS

Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

A course for non-majors/non-minors only. Students serve on a faculty-supervised running crew for a minimum of 30 crew hours (most productions and projects will require more hours). This course is repeatable for up to three units.

# THEA 116 | THEATRE PRACTICUM - ACTING/STAGE MANAGEMENT Units: 1-2 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

This course is for those cast in acting roles or assigned to work as an Assistant/ Stage Manager in a Theatre Department show. Attendance required at all rehearsals and performances for the assigned show. Course is open to non-theatre majors/minors and repeatable for up to 3 units. Audition information available in Theatre office and on-line.

# THEA 117 | THEATRE PRACTICUM - BACKSTAGE AND PRODUCTION

# Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

This course is for students working backstage in a Theatre Department production. Student may be assigned to work in a number of backstage roles such as a dresser or lighting board operator. Attendance required for class meetings and all required rehearsals and performances for the assigned show. Student must check production calendar for conflicts and may register prior to being assigned to a show. No previous production experience necessary. Course is open to non-theatre majors/minors and repeatable for up to 3 units.

# THEA 155 | THEATRE IN EDUCATION

#### Units: 3

This course is designed specifically for future elementary school teachers enrolled in the liberal studies major as an introduction to the use of theatre and dance in the classroom. It involves theatre and dance through form, style, history, and cultural perspectives. Students learn the structure and vocabulary of theatre and dance, as well as practical methods of application in the classroom.

# THEA 201 | THE CREATIVE MIND

#### Units: 3

This course is designed to build the infrastructure of creative thinking through exploratory engagement with daily life and the world around us. The creative and performing arts provide models for risk taking, confidence in performance and public presentation, and reenvisioning the familiar. Students will experience problem re-framing, collaborative solutions, sensory imagery, and compassionate innovation challenges to develop a vocabulary of creative thinking that can inform artistic practice and build the skills of charismatic leadership.

# THEA 205 | TECHNICAL THEATRE WITH LAB

# Units: 4 Repeatability: No

This course covers the primary technical process, the behind-the-scenes work, necessary to mount a theatrical production. It involves stagecraft vocabulary, set construction, lighting and sound technology, stage management, production organization, and theatre architecture. In the technical theatre lab portion of this course, students learn how to put theory into practice in the support of the semester's theatrical productions. It involves the construction and installation of sets, hanging and focusing lights, and the installation and configuration of the sound system. Hours outside scheduled class time will be required, including some weekends.

# THEA 220 | FUNDAMENTALS OF THEATRICAL DESIGN

# Units: 3

# Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

This course focuses on understanding foundational elements of theatrical design and developing the skills to translate text into visual content. It involves script analysis, research, creative exploration, and visual communication. Satisfies the core curriculum fine arts requirement.

# THEA 230 | ACTING I

# Units: 3

# Core Attributes: First year Integration, Artistic Inquiry area

This course examines the tradition of the actor as storyteller and challenges students to increase their ability to express their own experience and the experience of others. It involves improvisation, monologue, and scene work, technical methods in voice, physical action, and text analysis. Satisfies the core curriculum fine arts requirement.

# THEA 294 | THEATER ELECTIVE

# Units: 3

# THEA 302 | ACTING II

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: THEA 230

Focusing on contemporary dramatic scripts and actor transformation, this course teaches students to work creatively within a structure and to develop an acting process that balances and integrates text analysis and creative imagination.

### THEA 315 | THEATRE PRACTICUM II FOR NON-MAJORS

## Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

A course for non-majors/non-minors only. Students serve on a faculty-supervised running crew for a minimum of 30 crew hours (most productions and projects will require more hours). This course is repeatable for up to 3 units.

# THEA 316 | THEATRE PRACTICUM - COSTUME PRODUCTION

# Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: THEA 205

This course is for students to practice costume production skills initiated in THEA 205 – Technical Theatre. Students will complete 50 hours of work in the costume shop over the course of the semester to fulfill the course requirement. Course is open to non-theatre majors/minors and repeatable for up to 3 units.

# THEA 317 | THEATRE PRACTICUM - STAGECRAFT

# Units: 1 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: THEA 205

This course is for students to practice stagecraft skills initiated in THEA 205- Technical Theatre. Students will complete 50 hours of work in scenery, lighting and sound production. A schedule of open shop hours for students to complete hours is available in the Theatre Office. Additional opportunities to complete hours may also arise during the course of the semester. Course is open to non-theatre majors/minors and repeatable for up to 3 units.

## THEA 320 | SCENIC DESIGN

# Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: THEA 220 or ARCH 101 or ENGR 101

This course is an advanced study of theatrical set design. It involves script analysis, research, sketching, model building, drafting and presentations. Students are required to attend theatrical productions, both on and off campus.

# THEA 330 | COSTUME DESIGN

### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: THEA 101 and THEA 220

This course is an advanced study of the process of costuming a theatrical production. It involves how the social impact of clothes translates to theatrical costuming, visual and textual research, play analysis, costume history, rendering, design elements, production procedures, and collaboration with other artists.

# THEA 340 | VOICE AND SPEECH

### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: THEA 101 and THEA 230

This course will integrate various vocal training approaches and methods in order to encourage vocal growth in the areas of breath support, clarity of speech, diction, and range. It is specifically designed for actors, but can benefit anyone interested in public speaking or in communicating with more clarity and confidence. It involves cultivating vocal potential and performing monologues, scenes, and poetry.

## THEA 345 | PHYSICAL ACTOR

# Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: THEA 101 and THEA 230

Through this course, students will learn physically-based performance techniques as a means to discover the body and its movement through space as an inspiration for the actor and the primary generator of meaning in theatre. Selected topics may but will not necessarily include clowning, commedia dell'arte, masks, stage combat and other approaches drawn from movement training.

## THEA 350 | MOVEMENT FOR ACTORS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: THEA 111 or THEA 230

This course focuses on physical communication through exploring personal habit, body language, character development, transformation, and style through physical action.

### THEA 355 | COMMEDIA DELL'ARTE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: THEA 230

This course is an introduction to the masked performance form of Commedia dell'Arte, including the history of the form, experience with masked acting, exploration of Commedia's principal characters, the creation of comedic business, and improvising on scenarios. The semester's work will culminate with a public performance of a Commedia scenario.

## THEA 360 | THEATRE HISTORY 1

Units: 3 Repeatability: No Prerequisites: THEA 101

This course examines the historical role of theatre in the world, exploring the roots and development of theatrical performances in a range of cultures and time periods. In addition to reading play texts, students will evaluate broad-based performance forms such as rituals and festivals as well as consider a range of performance genres from commedia dell'arte to kabuki in oral and manuscript cultures through early print cultures.

# THEA 360W | THEATRE HISTORY

Units: 3

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency

Prerequisites: THEA 111

Centering on the contributions of theatre in mirroring cultures, this course examines the roots and development of world theatre, from ancient Greece to modern realism. It involves, along with the reading of plays, the historical approaches to studying the creation of theatre.

# THEA 362 | THEATRE HISTORY 2

**Units: 3 Repeatability: No** 

Prerequisites: THEA 101 and THEA 360

This course builds upon Theatre History 1 and examines the historical role of theatre in the world, exploring the roots and development of theatrical performances in a range of cultures and time periods. In addition to reading play texts, students will evaluate broad-based performance forms such as rituals and festivals as well as consider a range of performance genres from popular spectacles to postmodern experiments beginning in periodical print cultures and extending into electric and electronic communication cultures.

### THEA 365 | PLAYWRITING

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: THEA 101 and (THEA 230 or ENGL 121)

This course focuses on writing scenes and creating work in playwriting format, through reading, writing, and acting exercises. The final project is an original one-act play.

# THEA 365W | PLAYWRITING

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: THEA 111 and (THEA 230 or ENGL 121)

This course focuses on writing scenes and creating work in playwriting format, through reading, writing, and acting exercises. The final project is an original one-act play.

## THEA 367 | LONDON PLAYS IN PRODUCTION

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Fine Arts-Pre F17 CORE, Literature-Pre F17 CORE

A study abroad course, which immerses students in London theater. Students study and read a range of work that may include classical, modern, multicultural, and experimental plays and musicals, and visit venues ranging from the Royal National Theatre to abandoned warehouses. This course is cross-listed between English and Theatre, and can fulfill the Literary or Artistic Inquiry Core requirement, and major or minor upper division requirements in English or Theatre Arts.

#### THEA 369 | CONTEMPORARY THEATRE

Units: 3

Prerequisites: THEA 111

This course examines diverse contemporary plays, including alternative and avant-garde forms of theatre. It involves textual analysis, production history, and critical theory as is applicable to current dramatic criticism and interpretation.

#### THEA 370 | PERFORMANCE STUDIES

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Oral communication competency

Prerequisites: THEA 101

This course is part of the written and oral communication competency series. As an Advanced Writing course, Performance Studies focuses on writing as a process, teaching students how to assess and conduct scholarship in the field. As an Oral Communication course, students will develop well-structured presentations that clearly and compellingly communicate a central argument, use engaging examples as well as a strong delivery. Students will explore and engage with a range of disciplinary methods for analyzing, understanding, and discussing performance in order to learn and apply critical and theoretical concepts as a means to develop skills as scholar-practitioners.

# THEA 375C | THEATRE AND COMMUNITY

**Units: 3-4** 

# ${\bf Core\ Attributes:\ Community\ Service\ Learning,\ Diversity-Pre\ F17\ CORE}$

Prerequisites: THEA 111 or THEA 230

This course focuses on the use of theatre and performance as a means of exploring social and political issues. Students will examine the skills needed to create theatre for and about specific communities and their concerns. It involves all levels of creation, including researching, interviewing, writing, and performing. When available and appropriate, students will be guided in establishing partnership building with community-based organizations. Crosslisted with community service-learning.

# THEA 380 | THEATRE OF DIVERSITY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 1

Prerequisites: THEA 101 and THEA 230

This course explores the dynamic cannon of U.S. theatre literature with a focus on diversity, inclusion and social justice. Primarily a lecture based course, theatre exercises are also used as a teaching tool to foster deeper connections with the material. Student creativity is highly valued, encouraged and supported.

# THEA 385 $\mid$ ACTING FOR THE MUSICAL THEATRE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: THEA 230

This course cultivates the skills of analyzing, interpreting, and performing the two primary texts of the musical theatre song: lyrics and music. By learning the performer's mind/body connection through researching musical theatre repertoire, students ultimately are prepared for an effective musical theatre singing audition.

# THEA 390 | DIRECTING AND STAGE MANAGEMENT

# Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: THEA 101 and THEA 220 and THEA 230

This course focuses on the duties of the two playmakers responsible for leading, planning, executing, and administering the collaborative processes inherent in the rehearsal and performance of theatrical production: the Director and the Stage Manager. Processes, skills, and principles introduced and developed include basic leadership principles, fundamentals of management, organizational structure, theatricality, production concept, effective communication in a collaborative setting, rehearsal etiquette and protocol, staging practice, technical rehearsals, and theatrical performance.

#### THEA 405 | BUSINESS OF THEATRE

### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course examines the business roles and principles of theatre, both commercial and non-profit. By becoming familiar with the financial, legal, marketing, philosophical, and creative aspects of theatre companies, students will learn how to manage, form, and contribute to a career in arts-based enterprises.

#### THEA 422 | BUSINESS OF THEATRE

### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course examines the business roles and principles of theatre, both commercial and non-profit. By becoming familiar with the financial, legal, marketing, philosophical, and creative aspects of theatre companies, students will learn how to manage, form, and contribute to a career in arts-based enterprises.

# THEA 435 | CLASSICAL ACTING

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: THEA 101 and THEA 230

This course will focus on performing classical texts. Students will address the challenges of heightened language, rhetoric, argumentation, style, scansion, poetry, and period movement.

# THEA 445 | PRODUCING AND DIRECTING

# Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: THEA 205 and THEA 230

This course examines the process of producing and directing for the theatre. It involves choosing a play, securing performance rights, paying royalties, negotiating contracts, casting, scheduling, design collaboration, script analysis, actor coaching, blocking, publicity, marketing, and house management.

### THEA 455 | STAGE MANAGEMENT

# Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: THEA 116 and THEA 205 and THEA 230  $\,$ 

This course, by examining the role of the stage manager in the theatrical process, prepares students for practical experience and employment in educational or professional theatre, as well as for developing stage management skills in other arts-related or non-related fields. It involves field experience/observation of productions on and off campus.

# THEA 475C | THEATRE AND COMMUNITY

# **Units: 3 Repeatability: No**

# Core Attributes: Community Service Learning, Domestic Diversity level 2, International

Prerequisites: THEA 101 and THEA 230

This course focuses on the use of theatre and performance as a means of exploring social and political issues. Students will examine the skills needed to create theatre for and about specific communities and their concerns. It involves all levels of creation, including researching, interviewing, writing, and performing. Students will be guided in establishing partnership building with community-based organizations.

# THEA 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN THEATRE

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

Core Attributes: Artistic Inquiry area

Courses examining specific aspects of theatre not covered in other classes. See program listing each semester.

#### THEA 496 | SENIOR PROJECT IN THEATRE

**Units: 1-3** 

Individual directed study under the supervision of a faculty member.

# THEA 498 | PROFESSIONAL INTERNSHIP

**Units: 1-3** 

THEA 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

**Units: 1-3** 

# **Theology and Religious Studies**

# **Department Chair**

Emily Reimer-Barry, PhD

# **Faculty**

Susie Paulik Babka, PhD

Jamall Andrew Calloway, PhD

Victor Carmona, PhD

Christopher Carter, PhD

Bahar Davary, PhD

Mary Doak, PhD

Orlando O. Espín, ThD

Russell Fuller, PhD

Florence Morgan Gillman, PhD, STD

Aaron S. Gross, PhD

Evelyn Kirkley, PhD

Louis Komjathy, PhD

Mary E. Lyons, PhD

Peter Anthony Mena, PhD

Rico G. Monge, PhD

Lance E. Nelson, PhD

Karen Teel, PhD

Karma Lekshe Tsomo, PhD

The Department of Theology and Religious Studies is a diverse community of scholars who advance the teaching and study of religion with particular attention to fostering understanding of Catholic traditions. In support of the educational mission of the university and the furtherance of our own disciplines, we pursue excellence in scholarship. As a faculty that is multidisciplinary in both training and outlook, we bring a spirit of creativity and dialogue to bear on the exploration of religious meaning.

We are dedicated to our role in fulfilling the liberal arts goals of the core curriculum, and equally committed to fostering a vibrant cohort of majors and

minors. By providing an intellectually rigorous program, we create opportunities for students to probe religion as a constitutive element of human experience and values, and to acquire skills for engaging diverse dimensions of religion with openness and respect.

All lower division courses in our program meet FTRI learning outcomes 1 & 2 in the core curriculum:

- (1) Students will demonstrate a critical understanding of Christian traditions, including Catholic Christianity at a basic college level; OR students will demonstrate an understanding of the diversity of religious traditions with special attention to Catholic Christianity at an introductory level.
- (2) Students will demonstrate a critical understanding of theory and method in biblical studies, Christian theology, or religious studies.

All upper division core courses meet FTRI learning outcome 3 in the core curriculum:

(3) Students will demonstrate in-depth knowledge of at least one religious tradition, foundational sacred text, or important historical or contemporary issue in the study of theology or religion.

# The Theology and Religious Studies Major

Preparation for the Major

Code	Title	Units
<b>Lower Division</b>		
Select two courses	from the following:	6
THRS 110	Exploring Religious Meaning	
THRS 112	Introduction to World Religions	
THRS 113	World Religions in San Diego	
THRS 114	Introductory Studies in Catholic Theology	
THRS 116	Introduction to Biblical Studies	
THRS 119	Christianity and Its Practice	
THRS 120	Christianity and Conquest	
THRS 121	Chicanx Religious Identities	
THRS 123	War and Peace in the Christian Tradition	
THRS 202	Special Topics in Theology	
THRS 203	Special Topics in Religious Studies	
THRS 231	Christian Changemakers	
THRS 232	Religion and Animals	
Majors are encoura	ged to choose these two lower-divisions courses in	

# **Major Requirements**

**Total Units** 

Majors may concentrate in specific areas of study through careful distribution of their elective units, including but not limited to biblical studies, religious studies, systematic theology, and theological ethics. It is important to select an advisor specialized in one's area of interest.

consultation with their advisors and with careful attention to the various

prerequisites specified for upper-division courses.

Code	Title	Unit
<b>Upper Division</b>		
THRS 301	Religion Café: Majors and Minors Seminar	3
Select one course in	Bible or in Christianity chosen from the following:	3
THRS 331	Sexual Ethics in the Catholic Tradition	
THRS 332	HIV/AIDS and Christian Ethics	

THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition THRS 317 Religions of China THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions Select one course from the following: 1 THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies 2			
THRS 336 Religous Peacebuilding and Reconciliation THRS 338 Faith & Environmental Justice THRS 341 Christian Worship THRS 342 Christian Sacramental Practice THRS 343 Christian Marriage THRS 353 Early Christianities THRS 356 Catholicism in the United States THRS 357 Saints and Sinners in U.S. Protestantism THRS 358 Latinoa Catholicism THRS 360 Who Is Jesus? THRS 361 Christian Understanding of the Human Person THRS 362 Christian Understandings of Salvation THRS 365 Black and Womanist Theologies THRS 367 Feminist Theology and Ethics THRS 368 Latino/a Theology THRS 369 Liberation Theology THRS 375 Faith and Politics: Theological Perspectives THRS 376 Racial Justice: Catholic Perspectives THRS 376 Racial Justice: Catholic Perspectives THRS 381 The Five Books of Moses THRS 382 The Prophetic Tradition of Israel THRS 383 Sinners and Social Justice: The Gospel of Luke THRS 385 Paul, the Man & his Message THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus THRS 387 The World of the Bible Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from: THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition THRS 317 Religions of China THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature THRS 320 Native American Religious Select one course from the following:  THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions Select one course from the following:  THRS 321 Themes in Theological Studies  THRS 320 Themes in Theological Studies  THRS 321 Themes in Theological Studies  THRS 320 Themes in Theological Studies  THRS 320 Themes in Theological Studies  THRS 340 Themes in Theological Studies	THRS 334	Christian Social Ethics	
THRS 338 Faith & Environmental Justice THRS 341 Christian Worship THRS 342 Christian Sacramental Practice THRS 343 Christian Marriage THRS 353 Early Christianities THRS 356 Catholicism in the United States THRS 357 Saints and Sinners in U.S. Protestantism THRS 358 Latinoa Catholicism THRS 360 Who Is Jesus? THRS 361 Christian Understanding of the Human Person THRS 362 Christian Understandings of Salvation THRS 365 Black and Womanist Theologies THRS 367 Feminist Theology and Ethics THRS 368 Latino/a Theology THRS 369 Liberation Theology THRS 375 Faith and Politics: Theological Perspectives THRS 376 Racial Justice: Catholic Perspectives THRS 376 Racial Justice: Catholic Perspectives THRS 381 The Five Books of Moses THRS 382 The Prophetic Tradition of Israel THRS 383 Sinners and Social Justice: The Gospel of Luke THRS 385 Paul, the Man & his Message THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus THRS 387 The World of the Bible Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from: THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition THRS 317 Religions of China THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions Select one course from the following:  THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies  THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies	THRS 335	Catholic Social Thought	
THRS 341 Christian Worship THRS 342 Christian Sacramental Practice THRS 343 Christian Marriage THRS 353 Early Christianities THRS 356 Catholicism in the United States THRS 357 Saints and Sinners in U.S. Protestantism THRS 358 Latinoa Catholicism THRS 360 Who Is Jesus? THRS 361 Christian Understanding of the Human Person THRS 362 Christian Understandings of Salvation THRS 365 Black and Womanist Theologies THRS 367 Feminist Theology and Ethics THRS 368 Latino/a Theologies THRS 369 Liberation Theology THRS 375 Faith and Politics: Theological Perspectives THRS 376 Racial Justice: Catholic Perspectives THRS 381 The Five Books of Moses THRS 382 The Prophetic Tradition of Israel THRS 383 Sinners and Social Justice: The Gospel of Luke THRS 384 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus THRS 385 Paul, the Man & his Message THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition THRS 317 Religions of China THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature THRS 319 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions Select one course from the following: \(^1\) THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies \(^2\)	THRS 336	Religous Peacebuilding and Reconciliation	
THRS 342 Christian Sacramental Practice THRS 343 Christian Marriage THRS 353 Early Christianities THRS 356 Catholicism in the United States THRS 357 Saints and Sinners in U.S. Protestantism THRS 358 Latinoa Catholicism THRS 360 Who Is Jesus? THRS 361 Christian Understanding of the Human Person THRS 362 Christian Understandings of Salvation THRS 365 Black and Womanist Theologies THRS 367 Feminist Theology and Ethics THRS 368 Latino/a Theologies THRS 369 Liberation Theology THRS 375 Faith and Politics: Theological Perspectives THRS 376 Racial Justice: Catholic Perspectives THRS 381 The Five Books of Moses THRS 382 The Prophetic Tradition of Israel THRS 383 Sinners and Social Justice: The Gospel of Luke THRS 384 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus THRS 385 Paul, the Man & his Message THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition THRS 317 Religions of China THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions Select one course from the following: \(^1\) THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies \(^2\)	THRS 338	Faith & Environmental Justice	
THRS 343 Christian Marriage THRS 353 Early Christianities THRS 356 Catholicism in the United States THRS 357 Saints and Sinners in U.S. Protestantism THRS 358 Latinoa Catholicism THRS 360 Who Is Jesus? THRS 361 Christian Understanding of the Human Person THRS 362 Christian Understandings of Salvation THRS 365 Black and Womanist Theologies THRS 367 Feminist Theology and Ethics THRS 368 Latino/a Theologies THRS 369 Liberation Theology THRS 375 Faith and Politics: Theological Perspectives THRS 376 Racial Justice: Catholic Perspectives THRS 381 The Five Books of Moses THRS 382 The Prophetic Tradition of Israel THRS 383 Sinners and Social Justice: The Gospel of Luke THRS 385 Paul, the Man & his Message THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus THRS 387 The World of the Bible Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from: THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition THRS 317 Religions of China THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature THRS 319 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 310 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions Select one course from the following:  THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies  THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies  THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies	THRS 341	Christian Worship	
THRS 353 Early Christianities  THRS 356 Catholicism in the United States  THRS 357 Saints and Sinners in U.S. Protestantism  THRS 358 Latinoa Catholicism  THRS 360 Who Is Jesus?  THRS 361 Christian Understanding of the Human Person  THRS 362 Christian Understandings of Salvation  THRS 365 Black and Womanist Theologies  THRS 367 Feminist Theology and Ethics  THRS 368 Latino/a Theologies  THRS 369 Liberation Theology  THRS 375 Faith and Politics: Theological Perspectives  THRS 376 Racial Justice: Catholic Perspectives  THRS 381 The Five Books of Moses  THRS 382 The Prophetic Tradition of Israel  THRS 383 Sinners and Social Justice: The Gospel of Luke  THRS 385 Paul, the Man & his Message  THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus  THRS 388 The World of the Bible  Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from:  THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing  THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice  THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture  THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice  THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition  THRS 317 Religions of China  THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature  THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions  THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions  Select one course from the following:  THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies   THRS	THRS 342	Christian Sacramental Practice	
THRS 356 Catholicism in the United States THRS 357 Saints and Sinners in U.S. Protestantism THRS 358 Latinoa Catholicism THRS 360 Who Is Jesus? THRS 361 Christian Understanding of the Human Person THRS 362 Christian Understandings of Salvation THRS 365 Black and Womanist Theologies THRS 367 Feminist Theology and Ethics THRS 368 Latino/a Theologies THRS 369 Liberation Theology THRS 375 Faith and Politics: Theological Perspectives THRS 376 Racial Justice: Catholic Perspectives THRS 381 The Five Books of Moses THRS 382 The Prophetic Tradition of Israel THRS 383 Sinners and Social Justice: The Gospel of Luke THRS 385 Paul, the Man & his Message THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus THRS 388 The World of the Bible Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from: THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition THRS 317 Religions of China THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions Select one course from the following:  THRS 321 Thems in Theological Studies  THRS 320 Thems in Theological Studies  THRS 320 Thems in Theological Studies  THRS 321 Thems in Theological Studies  THRS 320 Thems in Theological Studies  THRS 450W Thems in Theological Studies	THRS 343	Christian Marriage	
THRS 357 Saints and Sinners in U.S. Protestantism  THRS 358 Latinoa Catholicism  THRS 360 Who Is Jesus?  THRS 361 Christian Understanding of the Human Person  THRS 362 Christian Understandings of Salvation  THRS 365 Black and Womanist Theologies  THRS 367 Feminist Theology and Ethics  THRS 368 Latino/a Theologies  THRS 369 Liberation Theology  THRS 375 Faith and Politics: Theological Perspectives  THRS 376 Racial Justice: Catholic Perspectives  THRS 381 The Five Books of Moses  THRS 382 The Prophetic Tradition of Israel  THRS 383 Sinners and Social Justice: The Gospel of Luke  THRS 385 Paul, the Man & his Message  THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus  THRS 388 The World of the Bible  Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from:  THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing  THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition  THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice  THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture  THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice  THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition  THRS 317 Religions of China  THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature  THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions  THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions  Select one course from the following:   THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies   THRS	THRS 353	Early Christianities	
THRS 358 Latinoa Catholicism THRS 360 Who Is Jesus? THRS 361 Christian Understanding of the Human Person THRS 362 Christian Understandings of Salvation THRS 365 Black and Womanist Theologies THRS 367 Feminist Theology and Ethics THRS 368 Latino/a Theologies THRS 369 Liberation Theology THRS 375 Faith and Politics: Theological Perspectives THRS 376 Racial Justice: Catholic Perspectives THRS 381 The Five Books of Moses THRS 382 The Prophetic Tradition of Israel THRS 383 Sinners and Social Justice: The Gospel of Luke THRS 385 Paul, the Man & his Message THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus THRS 388 The World of the Bible Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from: THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition THRS 317 Religions of China THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions Select one course from the following: \(^1\) THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies \(^2\)	THRS 356	Catholicism in the United States	
THRS 360 Who Is Jesus?  THRS 361 Christian Understanding of the Human Person  THRS 362 Christian Understandings of Salvation  THRS 365 Black and Womanist Theologies  THRS 367 Feminist Theology and Ethics  THRS 368 Latino/a Theologies  THRS 369 Liberation Theology  THRS 375 Faith and Politics: Theological Perspectives  THRS 376 Racial Justice: Catholic Perspectives  THRS 381 The Five Books of Moses  THRS 382 The Prophetic Tradition of Israel  THRS 383 Sinners and Social Justice: The Gospel of Luke  THRS 385 Paul, the Man & his Message  THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus  THRS 388 The World of the Bible  Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from:  THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing  THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition  THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice  THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture  THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice  THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition  THRS 317 Religions of China  THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature  THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions  THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions  Select one course from the following: 1  THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies 2	THRS 357	Saints and Sinners in U.S. Protestantism	
THRS 361 Christian Understanding of the Human Person THRS 362 Christian Understandings of Salvation THRS 365 Black and Womanist Theologies THRS 367 Feminist Theology and Ethics THRS 368 Latino/a Theology THRS 369 Liberation Theology THRS 375 Faith and Politics: Theological Perspectives THRS 376 Racial Justice: Catholic Perspectives THRS 381 The Five Books of Moses THRS 382 The Prophetic Tradition of Israel THRS 383 Sinners and Social Justice: The Gospel of Luke THRS 385 Paul, the Man & his Message THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus THRS 388 The World of the Bible Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from: THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition THRS 317 Religions of China THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions Select one course from the following:  THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies  THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies	THRS 358	Latinoa Catholicism	
THRS 362 Christian Understandings of Salvation  THRS 365 Black and Womanist Theologies  THRS 367 Feminist Theology and Ethics  THRS 368 Latino/a Theologies  THRS 369 Liberation Theology  THRS 375 Faith and Politics: Theological Perspectives  THRS 376 Racial Justice: Catholic Perspectives  THRS 381 The Five Books of Moses  THRS 382 The Prophetic Tradition of Israel  THRS 383 Sinners and Social Justice: The Gospel of Luke  THRS 385 Paul, the Man & his Message  THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus  THRS 388 The World of the Bible  Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from: 3  THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing  THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition  THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice  THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture  THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice  THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition  THRS 317 Religions of China  THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature  THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions  THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions  Select one course from the following:   THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies   THRS 450W Themes in Theological Stud	THRS 360	Who Is Jesus?	
THRS 365 Black and Womanist Theologies THRS 367 Feminist Theology and Ethics THRS 368 Latino/a Theologies THRS 369 Liberation Theology THRS 375 Faith and Politics: Theological Perspectives THRS 376 Racial Justice: Catholic Perspectives THRS 381 The Five Books of Moses THRS 382 The Prophetic Tradition of Israel THRS 383 Sinners and Social Justice: The Gospel of Luke THRS 385 Paul, the Man & his Message THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus THRS 388 The World of the Bible Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from: THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition THRS 317 Religions of China THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions Select one course from the following: 1 THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies 2	THRS 361	Christian Understanding of the Human Person	
THRS 367 Feminist Theology and Ethics THRS 368 Latino/a Theologies THRS 369 Liberation Theology THRS 375 Faith and Politics: Theological Perspectives THRS 376 Racial Justice: Catholic Perspectives THRS 381 The Five Books of Moses THRS 382 The Prophetic Tradition of Israel THRS 383 Sinners and Social Justice: The Gospel of Luke THRS 385 Paul, the Man & his Message THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus THRS 388 The World of the Bible Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from: THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition THRS 317 Religions of China THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions Select one course from the following:   THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies   THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies	THRS 362	Christian Understandings of Salvation	
THRS 368 Latino/a Theologies THRS 369 Liberation Theology THRS 375 Faith and Politics: Theological Perspectives THRS 376 Racial Justice: Catholic Perspectives THRS 381 The Five Books of Moses THRS 382 The Prophetic Tradition of Israel THRS 383 Sinners and Social Justice: The Gospel of Luke THRS 385 Paul, the Man & his Message THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus THRS 388 The World of the Bible Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from: THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition THRS 317 Religions of China THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions Select one course from the following: 1 THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies 2	THRS 365	Black and Womanist Theologies	
THRS 369 Liberation Theology THRS 375 Faith and Politics: Theological Perspectives THRS 376 Racial Justice: Catholic Perspectives THRS 381 The Five Books of Moses THRS 382 The Prophetic Tradition of Israel THRS 383 Sinners and Social Justice: The Gospel of Luke THRS 385 Paul, the Man & his Message THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus THRS 388 The World of the Bible Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from: THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition THRS 317 Religions of China THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions Select one course from the following: 1 THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies 2	THRS 367	Feminist Theology and Ethics	
THRS 375 Faith and Politics: Theological Perspectives THRS 376 Racial Justice: Catholic Perspectives THRS 381 The Five Books of Moses THRS 382 The Prophetic Tradition of Israel THRS 383 Sinners and Social Justice: The Gospel of Luke THRS 385 Paul, the Man & his Message THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus THRS 388 The World of the Bible Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from: THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition THRS 317 Religions of China THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions Select one course from the following: 1 THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies 2	THRS 368	Latino/a Theologies	
THRS 376 Racial Justice: Catholic Perspectives  THRS 381 The Five Books of Moses  THRS 382 The Prophetic Tradition of Israel  THRS 383 Sinners and Social Justice: The Gospel of Luke  THRS 385 Paul, the Man & his Message  THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus  THRS 388 The World of the Bible  Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from: 3  THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing  THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition  THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice  THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture  THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice  THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition  THRS 317 Religions of China  THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature  THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions  THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions  Select one course from the following: 1  THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies 2	THRS 369	Liberation Theology	
THRS 381 The Five Books of Moses THRS 382 The Prophetic Tradition of Israel THRS 383 Sinners and Social Justice: The Gospel of Luke THRS 385 Paul, the Man & his Message THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus THRS 388 The World of the Bible Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from: THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition THRS 317 Religions of China THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions Select one course from the following: 1 THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies 2	THRS 375	Faith and Politics: Theological Perspectives	
THRS 382 The Prophetic Tradition of Israel  THRS 383 Sinners and Social Justice: The Gospel of Luke  THRS 385 Paul, the Man & his Message  THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus  THRS 388 The World of the Bible  Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from:  THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing  THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition  THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice  THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture  THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice  THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition  THRS 317 Religions of China  THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature  THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions  THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions  Select one course from the following: 1  THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies 2	THRS 376	Racial Justice: Catholic Perspectives	
THRS 383 Sinners and Social Justice: The Gospel of Luke THRS 385 Paul, the Man & his Message THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus THRS 388 The World of the Bible  Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from: THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition THRS 317 Religions of China THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions  Select one course from the following: 1 THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies 2	THRS 381	The Five Books of Moses	
THRS 385 Paul, the Man & his Message THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus THRS 388 The World of the Bible  Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from: THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition THRS 317 Religions of China THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions  Select one course from the following:  THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies  THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies	THRS 382	The Prophetic Tradition of Israel	
THRS 386 Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus THRS 388 The World of the Bible  Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from: THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition THRS 317 Religions of China THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions  Select one course from the following: 1  THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies 2	THRS 383	Sinners and Social Justice: The Gospel of Luke	
THRS 388 The World of the Bible  Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from:  THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing  THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition  THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice  THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture  THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice  THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition  THRS 317 Religions of China  THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature  THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions  THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions  Select one course from the following: 1  THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies 2	THRS 385	Paul, the Man & his Message	
Select one course in a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from:  THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing  THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition  THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice  THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture  THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice  THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition  THRS 317 Religions of China  THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature  THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions  THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions  Select one course from the following: 1  THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies 2	THRS 386	Word and Wisdom: John's Portrait of Jesus	
THRS 311 Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition THRS 317 Religions of China THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions Select one course from the following: 1 THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies 2	THRS 388	The World of the Bible	
THRS 312 The Hindu Tradition  THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice  THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture  THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice  THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition  THRS 317 Religions of China  THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature  THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions  THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions  Select one course from the following:   THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies   THRS 450W THEMES 450W THEM	Select one course in	a religious tradition other than Christianity chosen from:	3
THRS 313 Jewish Faith and Practice  THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture  THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice  THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition  THRS 317 Religions of China  THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature  THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions  THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions  Select one course from the following: 1 33  THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies 2	THRS 311	Jewish Faith and Practice - Advanced Writing	
THRS 314 Buddhist Thought and Culture  THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice  THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition  THRS 317 Religions of China  THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature  THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions  THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions  Select one course from the following: 1  THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies 2	THRS 312	The Hindu Tradition	
THRS 315 Islamic Faith and Practice  THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition  THRS 317 Religions of China  THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature  THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions  THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions  Select one course from the following:   THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies   3	THRS 313	Jewish Faith and Practice	
THRS 316 The Daoist Tradition THRS 317 Religions of China THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions Select one course from the following:   THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies   THRS 450W THEMES 450W T	THRS 314	Buddhist Thought and Culture	
THRS 317 Religions of China THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions Select one course from the following: 1 THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies 2	THRS 315	Islamic Faith and Practice	
THRS 318 Islam, Women and Literature  THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions  THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions  Select one course from the following: 1  THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies 2	THRS 316	The Daoist Tradition	
THRS 320 Native American Religious Traditions THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions Select one course from the following:  THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies   2	THRS 317	Religions of China	
THRS 321 Afro-Latin Religions  Select one course from the following:   THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies   33	THRS 318	Islam, Women and Literature	
Select one course from the following: <sup>1</sup> THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies <sup>2</sup>	THRS 320	Native American Religious Traditions	
THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies <sup>2</sup>	THRS 321	Afro-Latin Religions	
	Select one course fr	rom the following: 1	3
THRS 451W Themes in Religious Studies <sup>2</sup>	THRS 450W	Themes in Theological Studies <sup>2</sup>	
Times in religious studies	THRS 451W	Themes in Religious Studies <sup>2</sup>	
Elective Credits 18	<b>Elective Credits</b>		18

Students must complete 18 other units (6 courses) of elective credit in THRS, only 3 units of which may be chosen from among the lower-division courses. Majors may concentrate in specific areas of study through careful distribution of their elective units, including but not limited to biblical studies, religious studies, systematic theology, and theological ethics. It is important to select an advisor specialized in one's area of interest.

its Total Units 30

- Must be taken in final spring semester.
- Majors are encouraged to enroll multiple times in THRS 450W Themes in Theological Studies and THRS 451W Themes in Religious Studies before the required course in the final spring semester.

# The Theology and Religious Studies Minor

# Minor Requirements – 18 units

18 units in Theology and Religious Studies, of which at least 9 must be upper division courses.

#### THRS 110 | EXPLORING RELIGIOUS MEANING

Units: 3

### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Theo/Religious Inquiry area

A thematic and topical introduction to the study of religion. Drawing material from at least four religious traditions, including Christianity, this course considers a range of possible themes and topics such as symbol, ritual, mysticism, myth, material culture, gender, ethics, ecology, death and the afterlife, and contemplative practice.

# THRS 112 | INTRODUCTION TO WORLD RELIGIONS

**Units: 3-4** 

#### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Theo/Religious Inquiry area

A survey of the major religious traditions of the world, focusing on an understanding of the religious world views and practices that shape cultures across the globe. Selected readings from these traditions, which will include Christianity, the religions of India and East Asia, Judaism, Islam, and the religions of indigenous oral cultures.

## THRS 113 | WORLD RELIGIONS IN SAN DIEGO

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

## Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 1, Theo/Religious Inquiry area

A survey of major religious traditions of the world, including Catholic Christianity, focusing on their presence in San Diego and issues of power, privilege, and social justice.

# THRS 114 | INTRODUCTION TO CATHOLIC THEOLOGY

Units: 3

# Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

This course is an introductory survey designed to prepare students for upper division courses in Christian theology. Topics may include the scriptures, history of the Church and/or theology, the nature of theological discourse, introduction to theological terms and definitions, and examination of select topics or issues in theology. Emphasis will be placed on the constitutive dimensions and characteristics of the Roman Catholic tradition.

# THRS 116 | INTRODUCTION TO BIBLICAL STUDIES

Units: 3

### Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

A study of the Bible: its formation, historical character, primary themes, and interpretation.

# THRS 119 | CHRISTIANITY AND ITS PRACTICE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: First year Integration, Theo/Religious Inquiry area

An introduction to Christian belief and practice through reflection on classic and contemporary expressions of the Christian life. Students may not receive credit for taking both THRS 119 and THRS 120.

# THRS 120 | CHRISTIANITY AND CONQUEST

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 1, Theo/Religious Inquiry area

An introduction to the history, current status, and theological themes of Christianity, including Catholicism. Emphasis on the relationship between Western Christianity and European colonialism, including how Christian beliefs have been deployed both to rationalize and to resist imperialist and colonialist domination. Students may not receive credit for taking both THRS 119 and THRS 120.

# THRS 121 | CHICANX RELIGIOUS IDENTITIES

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 1, Theo/Religious Inquiry area

An historical and contextual investigation of Chicanx identities in relation to religious and spiritual traditions, with special attention to Catholic Christianity. Students will engage in community based learning and reflect critically on constructions of power, privilege, and oppression.

# THRS 123 | WAR AND PEACE IN THE CHRISTIAN TRADITION

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Ethical Inquiry area, Theo/Religious Inquiry area

An examination of the three dominant paradigms for thinking about war and peace in the Christian tradition: holy war, pacifism, and just war. We will consider how these frameworks are employed today in both religious and secular contexts as we apply these frameworks to evaluation of particular conflicts/issues, which may include: the wars in Afghanistan and Iraq, humanitarian interventions, the 'war on terrorism,' preemptive and preventive war, drones, weapons of mass destruction, and care for veterans. Throughout, students will build skills in ethical analysis and reflexivity. Students may not receive credit for both THRS 123 and THRS 323. There are no prerequisites for this class.

## THRS 202 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN THEOLOGY

# Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit) Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area, Theo/Relig Study-Pre F17 CORE

An examination of selected issues or themes in religion, and/or theological ethics, from one or more Christian perspectives, to be chosen by the instructor. Topics will vary semester by semester. A list of current special topic offerings is available on the department website.

# THRS 203 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN RELIGIOUS STUDIES

Units: 2-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

An examination of selected issues or themes in religion to be chosen by the instructor. Topics will have a comparative focus, with special attention to Catholic Christianity as well as theory and method in religious studies. Topics will vary semester by semester. A list of current special topic offerings is available on the department website.

# THRS 231 | CHRISTIAN CHANGEMAKERS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 1, Theo/Religious Inquiry area

An introduction to the nature and scope of Christian theology, with a special focus on Christians who have created positive social change. We study the works of a select group of writers, thinkers, and activists, all of whom have been significantly shaped by their encounter with Christianity, and have, in turn, created lasting testimonies of significant cultural value because of that encounter. Throughout the semester students engage in self-reflection about their life experiences and core values; in written assignments students explore what it means to create positive social change in our world. There are no prerequisites for this course.

# THRS 232 | RELIGION AND ANIMALS

**Units: 3 Repeatability: No** 

### Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

An introduction to the subfield of animals and religion. Special attention will be given to Catholic and Jewish traditions, world views, and practices.

# THRS 301 | RELIGION CAFÉ: MAJORS AND MINORS SEMINAR Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

Through the study of exemplary texts and presentations from invited Theology and Religious Studies faculty members, this seminar will introduce students to the various methodologies in the academic study of religion, as well as to the research interests of current faculty members in the department. This course will also address basic research methodologies, the use of the library and the internet, and the construction of a research paper. This seminar is required of all majors and is open to minors. The course should be taken as soon as possible following the declaration of the major or minor.

# THRS 311 | JEWISH FAITH AND PRACTICE - ADVANCED WRITING Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Theo/Religious Inquiry area Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232 An examination of Jewish beliefs and practices, their historical and biblical foundations, and their theological and cultural expressions. Students will write a thesis-driven research paper. This course fulfills the Advanced Writing requirement of the core curriculum. Students may not receive credit for taking both THRS 311 and THRS 313.

#### THRS 312 | THE HINDU TRADITION

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232 A historical and systematic study of Indian religion from the Vedic revelation to modern theologians, with special emphasis on points of contact between Hindu and Christian thought.

# THRS 313 | JEWISH FAITH AND PRACTICE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232 An examination of Jewish beliefs and practices, their historical and biblical foundations, and their theological and cultural expressions. Students may not receive credit for taking both THRS 311 and THRS 313.

# THRS 314 | BUDDHIST THOUGHT AND CULTURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Global Diversity level 2, Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 113 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 123 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

An introduction to the academic study of Buddhism. The course systematically explores the historical development, philosophical premises, religious practices, social institutions, and cultural expressions of the world's Buddhist traditions, with special emphasis on points of contact between Buddhist and Christian thought.

# THRS 315 | ISLAMIC FAITH AND PRACTICE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

This course is designed to provide students with a basic introduction to Islam. The monotheistic belief system and the concept of Qur'anic law will be the focus of the early part of the course. Brief overview of its early history will be followed by discussions on questions of interpretation, reform, and renewal.

## THRS 316 | THE DAOIST TRADITION

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

An introduction to the Daoist (Taoist) tradition as both an indigenous Chinese religion and global cultural and religious phenomenon. This course provides a systematic overview of Daoist history and explores important and representative Daoist concerns such as cosmology, dietetics, ethics, meditation, ritual, and scripture study.

# THRS 317 | RELIGIONS OF CHINA

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

## Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

An introduction to Chinese religions with specific emphasis placed on the indigenous Chinese religions of Confucianism and Daoism (Taoism) as well as on Chinese forms of Buddhism. This course explores not only Confucianism, Daoism, and Buddhism as Chinese cultural traditions, but also the transformation of those traditions in contemporary China and in contemporary America.

# THRS 318 | ISLAM, WOMEN AND LITERATURE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Theo/Relig Study-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

The course will set in perspective the diversity of cultural manifestations of Islam in its regard for women. It will require a selective exploration of literary works. The writings reflect debates regarding the ever-changing role of Muslim women within various religious, social, geographic, economic and political contexts, primarily in the last 50 years, a period of significant historical change in the Muslim world.

# THRS 320 | NATIVE AMERICAN RELIGIOUS TRADITIONS Units: 3 Repeatability: No

### Core Attributes: Theo/Relig Study-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232 A historical and systematic investigation into the spiritual contribution of Native Americans, their ethos, and their meaning for Christianity and the future of humanity.

# THRS 321 | AFRO-LATIN RELIGIONS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

This course studies the three main religions of African origins in Latin America and the United States. Lukumí/Candomblé, Vodoun, Olivorism, and Umbanda are approached and interpreted from diverse perspectives: historical, cultural, theological, etc. Their formation and development are contextualized in the Latin American experience of slavery and subsequent racist cultural (and legal) realities. Their contemporary significance is discussed.

# THRS 323 | WAR AND PEACE IN THE CHRISTIAN TRADITION

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: First year Integration, Ethical Inquiry area, Theo/Religious Inquiry area

An examination of the three dominant paradigms for thinking about war and peace in the Christian tradition: holy war, pacifism, and just war. We will consider how these frameworks are employed today in both religious and secular contexts as we apply these frameworks to the evaluation of particular conflicts/issues, which may include: the wars in Afghanistan and Iraq, humanitarian interventions, the 'war on terrorism,' preemptive and preventive war, drones, weapons of mass destruction, and care for veterans. Throughout, students will build skills in ethical analysis and reflexivity. Students may not receive credit for both THRS 123 and THRS 323. There are no prerequisites for this course.

# THRS 326 | RELIGION AND THE PERFORMING ARTS IN BALI Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Advanced Integration, Global Diversity level 1, Theo/Religious Inquiry area, International

This course will integrate the perspectives of religious studies, music, and ethnomusicology in exploring the faith and practices of Balinese Hindus and examining the complex integration of music, dance, drama, and other arts in their vibrant ritual life. Emphasis will be placed on indigenous, colonial, and neocolonial expressions of cultural, social, and economic power and privilege on the island. Offered as a study abroad course in Bali, Indonesia, in tandem with MUSC 341.

# THRS 331 | SEXUAL ETHICS IN THE CATHOLIC TRADITION Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Ethical Inquiry area, Theo/Religious Inquiry area

An examination of human sexuality from the perspective of the Roman Catholic tradition. After an introduction to Catholic ethical method, the course examines traditional and contemporary understandings of sexuality, gender, sexual orientation, love, and justice. This provides a foundation for consideration of moral norms regarding such issues as marriage, non-marital sex, LGBTQ sexuality, masturbation, pornography, birth control, prostitution, and prevention of sexually transmitted infections including HIV/AIDS.

# THRS 332 | HIV/AIDS AND CHRISTIAN ETHICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, First year Integration, Domestic Diversity level 1, Ethical Inquiry area, Theo/Religious Inquiry area

An examination of the intersection of Christian theological ethics and the dilemma of human immunodeficiency virus/acquired immune deficiency syndrome (hereafter, HIV/AIDS). We begin with an introduction to ethical method in the Christian tradition, an overview of the science of HIV/AIDS, and an overview of the sociological and statistical data pertaining to the global pandemic. From there we have the foundation to discuss a range of ethical issues on the topic of HIV/AIDS. Students will select a topic to explore in further detail in an individual research paper project. Our class format will include lecture, group work (including analysis of case studies), discussion with guest speakers, field trips, and facilitated discussion. In addition to required readings, required films and site visits to community organizations will challenge students to engage the personal stories of HIV-positive and AIDS-diagnosed persons.

# THRS 333 | LGBTQ+ AND CHRISTIANITY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Advanced Integration, Domestic Diversity level 2, Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 113 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 123 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

A critical analysis of how Christians have understood marginalized sexual identities and gender identities, with particular attention to issues of power, privilege, and intersectionality.

## THRS 334 | CHRISTIAN SOCIAL ETHICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

## Core Attributes: Ethical Inquiry area, Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

This course is designed to introduce students to the field of Christian social ethics. Students will read selections from Christian thinkers, examine various sources of and approaches to Christian ethical reflection, and critically assess a variety of contemporary moral issues.

#### THRS 335 | CATHOLIC SOCIAL THOUGHT

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Community Service Learning, Domestic Diversity level 1, Ethical Inquiry area, Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

This course will examine the living tradition of Catholic social thought. Major themes in Catholic social teaching will be explored, including the role of the Church in civil society, economic justice, sustainability, peacemaking, and a consistent ethic of solidarity, among others.

# THRS 336 | RELIGOUS PEACEBUILDING AND RECONCILIATION Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

reconciliation processes in divided societies.

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

An exploration of the theory and practice of religious peacebuilding and a survey of constructive resources for conflict transformation, violence prevention, and

# THRS 338 | FAITH & ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Domestic Diversity level 1, Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

This course explores how faith rooted approaches to ecological issues can play a pivotal role in addressing our current environmental crisis.

# THRS 341 | CHRISTIAN WORSHIP

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Theo/Relig Study-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

An introduction to the study of Christian liturgy through an examination of the history of liturgical practice, of myth and symbol as dimensions of sacramentality,

### THRS 342 | CHRISTIAN SACRAMENTAL PRACTICE

and of theological and cultural principles of celebration.

**Units: 3 Repeatability: No** 

### Core Attributes: Theo/Relig Study-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232 A study of the practice, history, and theology of Christian initiation, eucharist, penance, anointing of the sick, holy orders, and matrimony.

### THRS 343 | CHRISTIAN MARRIAGE

**Units: 3 Repeatability: No** 

# Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

A theological study of Christian marriage with consideration of the historical development and current pastoral understanding of this sacrament.

# THRS 349 | ART AND THE THEOLOGICAL IMAGINATION

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232  $\,$ 

What role do the arts and creative expression play in the task of theology, the disciplined and critical reflection on belief and the nature of God? The meanings discoverable through art and the creative process lead to deeper questions, enhancing critical thought. Art expresses our nature as spiritual beings inseparable from the material world; it explores morality, politics, emotion, the subconscious, and the unknown. The "theological imagination" is a way of perceiving and appreciating the sensible world, as Margaret Miles points out, "with 'a certain slant of light,' in which other human beings, the natural world, and objects appear in their full beauty, transformed." The thesis of the course is that great art, whether explicitly containing religious symbolism or not, reveals the depth dimension of reality, what might be called "God." This course will consider the meaning and function of theological aesthetics, and attempt to cultivate tools for the appreciation of visual culture: a sharper awareness of seeing, attention to detail, and the habit of mind that recognizes the beautiful as well as the ambiguous.

#### THRS 353 | EARLY CHRISTIANITIES

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 113 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 123 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

This course investigates the earliest Christianities from the first five centuries of the common era with an emphasis on the diversity and contestations of practices and beliefs that characterize the period. Students will focus on the demarcation of Christianity from Judaism, the forms of self-definition that emerge in the period of imperial persecution, and the shifts that take place when the movement gains the support of the Roman emperors in the fourth century. Emphasis will be placed on working with ancient texts and situating them in their broader historical and cultural contexts.

### THRS 356 | CATHOLICISM IN THE UNITED STATES

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 2, Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232 A study of the history of the Catholic Church in the United States of America.

A study of the history of the Catholic Church in the United States of America. Emphasis on racial and ethnic diversity in the Church, with attention to how social, political, and ecclesial power dynamics have shaped Catholics' varied experiences. Required any lower division THRS course or permission of the instructor.

## THRS 357 | SAINTS AND SINNERS IN U.S. PROTESTANTISM

**Units: 3 Repeatability: No** 

# $Core\ Attributes:\ Theo/Religious\ Inquiry\ area$

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

The histories and theologies of Protestantism in the United States from the perspective of individuals and movements that have had significant intellectual and cultural influence, for example on issues of gender, politics, or science. This course is usually taught through role-playing simulation games.

# THRS 358 | LATINOA CATHOLICISM

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232 A culturally contextualized study of the beliefs and practices of Latinoa Catholics in the U.S., with particular emphasis on popular Catholicism.

## THRS 359 | JESUS OF HOLLYWOOD

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

## Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 113 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 123 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

A critical analysis of the life and message of Jesus of Nazareth through the lens of Hollywood films, including theological, historical, and socio-cultural issues raised by this cinematic tradition.

### THRS 360 | WHO IS JESUS?

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232 A critical investigation of the person and ministry of Jesus in light of Scripture, the Christian tradition, and contemporary concerns.

# THRS 361 | CHRISTIAN UNDERSTANDING OF THE HUMAN PERSON Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Theo/Relig Study-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 202

A theological exploration of the meaning and dignity of human persons in terms of their relationships to God and to creation.

# THRS 362 | CHRISTIAN UNDERSTANDINGS OF SALVATION

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

## Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232 An examination of Christian understandings of salvation from biblical, historical, and contemporary perspectives.

# THRS 365 | BLACK AND WOMANIST THEOLOGIES

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 2, Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

This course will explore Black and Womanist theologies in historical context, paying particular attention to the historical movements, foundational thinkers, and critical voices that have shaped and are reshaping Black and Womanist theologies.

# THRS 366 | THE PROBLEM OF GOD

**Units: 3 Repeatability: No** 

### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Theo/Religious Inquiry area

The questions "What is God?," "Does God exist?" and "What does it mean to believe in God?" are investigated against the background of classical theism and modern thought.

# THRS 367 | FEMINIST THEOLOGY AND ETHICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 1, Ethical Inquiry area, Theo/Religious Inquiry area

An exploration of contemporary feminist theologies and ethics from the Christian perspective to gain knowledge of feminist contributions and challenges to the whole of Christian traditions. Included is a survey of the historical emergence of feminist theologies, methods, major theological themes, and feminist Christian approaches to contemporary problems (from different contexts and multiple perspectives).

## THRS 368 | LATINO/A THEOLOGIES

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Theo/Relig Study-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 358 An analysis of the contexts, major themes, authors, and texts of U.S. Latino/ a and/or Latin American theologies. Liberation and cultural theologies will be emphasized.

#### THRS 369 | LIBERATION THEOLOGY

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 2, Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

A study of the origin, characteristics, method, central themes, and current expressions of liberation theology. Special emphasis on the understanding of revelation, God, Jesus Christ, the Church, the human being, Christian ethics, social justice, and Christian spirituality.

#### THRS 370 | GENDER AND RELIGION IN THE UNITED STATES

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

An examination of religion's role in shaping womanhood and manhood, and the roles men and women have played in shaping religious communities in the U.S.

# THRS 371 | CULTS AND SECTS IN THE UNITED STATES

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 123 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

An examination of new religious movements commonly called cults and sects in the U.S.

# THRS 375 | FAITH AND POLITICS: THEOLOGICAL PERSPECTIVES

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

A theological study of the public and political roles of religion, including evaluation of the impact of religious beliefs on political behavior.

# THRS 376 | RACIAL JUSTICE: CATHOLIC PERSPECTIVES

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 2, Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

A study of Catholic approaches to the struggle for racial justice in US society and the US Catholic Church.

# THRS 381 | THE FIVE BOOKS OF MOSES

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 113 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 123 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

A study of the first five books of the Bible (Genesis, Exodus, Leviticus, Numbers, Deuteronomy), the history of their composition, and their theological contributions to Judaism and Christianity.

## THRS 382 | THE PROPHETIC TRADITION OF ISRAEL

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

A study of Old Testament prophets in their historical, social, and political backgrounds. Attention is given to the contribution of the prophets to Jewish-Christian theologies and their significance for the contemporary world.

# THRS 383 | SINNERS AND SOCIAL JUSTICE: THE GOSPEL OF LUKE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 113 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 123 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

A study of the Gospel of Luke, with some attention also to Acts of the Apostles. Some of the major themes examined are wealth and poverty, gender, and discipleship.

#### THRS 385 | PAUL, THE MAN & HIS MESSAGE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232 A study of the Pauline writings and theological thought. Major themes are reviewed with respect to their applications to present-day Christian life.

# THRS 386 $\mid$ WORD AND WISDOM: JOHN'S PORTRAIT OF JESUS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 113 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 123 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232

A study of the Johannine writings, particularly the Gospel of John. Some of the major themes examined are Jesus's identity and presentation of God, and the role of women in the gospel.

# THRS 388 | THE WORLD OF THE BIBLE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

A survey of historical, political, social, cultural, and religious conditions of selected periods in biblical history.

# THRS 390 | THE HOLOCAUST: RELIGIOUS QUESTIONS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area

A study of the Holocaust focused on the moral and religious dilemmas it raises for Jews and Christians.

# THRS 394 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN THEOLOGY AND RELIGIOUS STUDIES

Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Core Attributes: Theo/Religious Inquiry area, Theo/Relig Study-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: THRS 110 or THRS 112 or THRS 114 or THRS 116 or THRS 119 or THRS 120 or THRS 202 or THRS 203 or THRS 231 or THRS 232 A study of selected major figures or problems or movements or periods in either Christianity and/or other religions. Specification will be made by the instructor.

# THRS 450W | THEMES IN THEOLOGICAL STUDIES

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit) Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: THRS 301

A study of selected issues, problems, or themes of relevance across the various specialties and subfields in theological studies. The selected issue or theme will be explored both deeply and broadly. Specification will be made by the instructor. The course may be repeated for credit with different course content. This course meets the requirements for a USD W course. Students will produce and orally present substantial term papers. Prereq: THRS 301; declared major or minor in THRS.

#### THRS 451W | THEMES IN RELIGIOUS STUDIES

Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

**Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: THRS 301

A study of selected issues, problems, or themes of relevance across the various specialties and subfields in religious studies. The selected issue or theme will be explored both deeply and broadly. Specification will be made by the instructor. The course may be repeated for credit with different course content. This course meets the requirements for a USD W course. Students will produce and orally present substantial term papers. Prereq: THRS 301; declared major or minor in THRS.

### THRS 499 | DIRECTED INDIVIDUAL STUDY

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisite: Consent of instructor and approval of the department chair and the dean.

# **Visual Arts**

See Art, Architecture + Art History (p. 74).

# **Women's and Gender Studies**

# **Program Director**

Evelyn Kirkley, PhD, Theology and Religious Studies

# **Program Advisory Board**

Josen Diaz, PhD, Ethnic Studies

Anne Koenig, PhD, Psychological Sciences

Erin Lovette-Colyer, Director, Women's Center

Greg Prieto, PhD, Sociology

Emily Reimer-Barry, PhD, Theology and Religious Studies

Lori Watson, PhD, Philosophy

# The Women's and Gender Studies Minor

Women's and Gender Studies is an interdisciplinary academic minor that takes as its focus the history, development, and consequences of culturally acquired sexual identities. It is a field of study as complex as the many disciplines it weaves together.

# **Learning Outcomes**

After successfully completing the Women's and Gender Studies minor, students will be able to:

- Describe and critically reflect on how they and others have experienced privilege and oppression in relation to sex, gender, or sexuality.
- Analyze, through various modes of inquiry, how concepts of "gender,"
   "sex," or "sexuality" have been socially constructed through history or in
   contemporary contexts.
- Describe struggles against sexism and heterosexism and patterns of resistance that dismantle hierarchies of sex, genders, and sexualities.
- Examine the intersections of gender, sex, and sexuality with other categories such as race, ethnicity, socio-economic class, age, and ability at local, national, and/or global levels.

The Women's and Gender Studies minor is an 18 unit program that includes the following requirements:

- 1. GNDS 101 Introduction to Gender Studies
- Two lower- or upper division elective courses to be selected from a list generated each semester by the program coordinators or from the courses listed below in this course catalog.
- 3. Two elective upper division courses to be selected from a list generated each semester by the program coordinators or from the courses listed below in this course catalog. Thus 3-9 units of lower-division work, and 9-15 units of upper division coursework are required.
- 4. Two of the four elective courses listed in items 2 and 3 above must be in the humanities and two must be in the social sciences.
- 5. GNDS 495 Advanced Women's and Gender Studies

# **Interdisciplinary Courses**

Courses in this edition of the undergraduate catalog that count toward the Women's and Gender Studies minor are listed below. Other courses that will count toward the minor will be provided on a semester-by-semester basis. Students should select their courses in consultation with one of the program coordinators. Please see the full course descriptions under the appropriate departmental listings.

Code	Title	Units
Social Sciences		
COMM 325	Interpersonal Communication	3
COMM 326	Nonverbal Communication	3
COMM 432	Film and Cultural Politics	3
COMM 445	Gender Communication	3
COMM 475	Intercultural Communication	3
COMM 482	Children and Media	3
COMM 483	Teens and Popular Culture	3
ETHN 321C	African American Panethnicity	3
ETHN 331	Gender in Native America	3
ETHN 355	Asian American Social Movements	3
ETHN 361	Immigration at US-Mexico Border: Ethnicity, Race & Gender	3
ETHN 364	Race, Class and Gender	3
ETHN 365	U.S. Women Of Color Theory And Activism	3
ETHN 367	Race and Globalization	3
LEAD 349	Women in Leadership	3
MGMT 306	Women in Management	3
PJS 441	War, Gender and Peacebuilding	3
POLS 307	Feminist Political Theories	3
POLS 309D	Sex, Power, and Politics	3
PSYC 328	Stereotyping, Prejudice and Discrimination	3

PSYC 330	Psychology of Gender	3
PSYC 359	Health Psychology of Women and Ethnic Groups	3
PSYC 378	Explorations in Human Sexuality	3
SOCI 101	Introduction to Sociology	3
SOCI 310	U.S. Society	3
SOCI 311	Sociology of Families	3
SOCI 312	Gender Through the Prism of Difference	3
SOCI 313	Sexualities	3-4
SOCI 372	Politics and Society	3
SOCI 470	Sexuality and Borders	3
Humanities		
ARTH 356	Race, Ethnicity, Art and Film	3
ENGL 215	Children's Literature	3
ENGL 321	Literature of Race, Gender and Sexuality	3
ENGL 342	Romanticism	3
ENGL 358	United States Ethnic Literature	3
ENGL 374	Gender and Literature	3
FREN 414	French Women Writers	3
HIST 126	American Women in History	3
HIST 323	Medieval Woman	3
HIST 331	The Global Renaissance	3
HIST 335	The Victorians in Literature & Film	3
HIST 367	Women's Lives in East Asia	3
HIST 383	Chicano/a/x History	3
HIST 385	African American Women	3
PHIL 111	Philosophy of Human Nature	3
PHIL 343	Gender and Economic Justice	3
SPAN 302	Cultural History of Spain	3
SPAN 426	Studies in 18th and 19th Century Peninsular Literature and Culture	3
THEA 370	Performance Studies	3
THRS 318	Islam, Women and Literature	3
THRS 331	Sexual Ethics in the Catholic Tradition	3
THRS 332	HIV/AIDS and Christian Ethics	3
THRS 333	LGBTQ+ and Christianity	3
THRS 334	Christian Social Ethics	3
THRS 358	Latinoa Catholicism	3
THRS 365	Black and Womanist Theologies	3
THRS 367	Feminist Theology and Ethics	3
THRS 368	Latino/a Theologies	3

## **GNDS 101 | INTRODUCTION TO GENDER STUDIES**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

## Core Attributes: Social/Behavioral Inquiry area, Global Diversity level 1

This course aims to offer an introduction to gender studies. The course will begin by examining the distinction between sex and gender, as well has how that distinction is employed in discussions of sexuality. Specifically, we will examine the so-called "nature" vs. "nurture" debate and the most recent scientific claims about "innate" sex differences. Next, the course will look into contemporary debates on sex work: prostitution and trafficking. From here we will engage critically with pornography in contemporary society. Is pornography harmful? Is it best understood a protected speech? How are sex workers treated within pornography? Are they oppressed? Are they workers like any other? Next, we will turn to examine the role of gender in inequality in the workplace and the relationship to inequality within the family. Finally, we will also examine the debate around rape on college campuses and Title IX.

### GNDS 494 | TOPICS IN WOMEN'S AND GENDER STUDIES

## Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

An advanced course focusing on topics of interest and importance to the study of gender. For example, topics might include such subjects as violence against women; the men's movement; contemporary theories of love relationships; and lesbian, gay, and bi-sexual issues. This course may be repeated for credit when the topic changes. Students must have completed 12 units of coursework in the gender studies minor or have consent of the instructor.

# GNDS 495 | ADVANCED WOMEN'S AND GENDER STUDIES Units: 3

A capstone seminar course devoted to advanced study in the field, supplemented by directed research in students' areas of primary interest in their majors. When appropriate, it may include an internship component. The research experience will culminate in a symposium.

# GNDS 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

# Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

A program of advanced study in an area of special interest, arranged between the student and the instructor. The independent study must include at a minimum extensive readings, consistent consultations with the sponsoring instructor, and a final report or project.

# **School of Business**

# Accountancy

Thomas M. Dalton, PhD, CPA

Mary Durkin, PhD

Judith A. Hora, PhD

Mark Thomas Judd, MIB, CPA

Timothy P. Kelley, PhD, CPA

Barbara Lougee, PhD

Sarah Lyon, PhD

Loren L. Margheim, PhD, CPA, Department Chair

Diane D. Pattison, PhD

Johan Perols, PhD, CPA

John Prunty, M.S.

James K. Smith, LLM, PhD, JD, CPA

**Economics** 

Andrew T. Allen, PhD

Stephen J. Conroy, PhD

Denise Dimon, PhD

Kokila P. Doshi, PhD

Alan Gin, PhD

Deborah Kelly, DBA

Alyson Ma, PhD, Department Chair

Andrew J. Narwold, PhD

Ryan Ratcliff, PhD

Alison L. Sanchez, PhD

Jonathan Sandy, PhD

Steven W. Sumner, PhD

Adriana Vamosiu, PhD

Dirk Yandell, PhD

### Finance and Real Estate

Biljana N. Adebambo, PhD

Annalisa Barrett, MBA

Barbara Bliss, PhD

John Demas, MBA, JD

Shreesh D. Deshpande, PhD, Department Chair

Rvan McKeon, PhD

Norm Miller, PhD

Manzur Rahman, PdD, JD

Daniel A. Rivetti, DBA

Marko Svetina, PhD

Charles Tu, PhD

Mitch Warachka, PhD

PengCheng Zhu, PhD, CFA

Dennis P. Zocco, PhD

### Management, Law and Ethics

Craig B. Barkacs, MBA, JD

Linda Barkacs, JD

Richard Custin, JD, LLM

Jaime Alonso Gomez, PhD

Johanna Steggert Hunsaker, PhD, Department Chair

Phillip L. Hunsaker, DBA

Rangapriya Kannan-Narasimhan, PhD

Marc Lampe, JD

Michael Lawless, PhD

Patricia Marquez, PhD

Robin McCoy, PhD

Moriah Meyskens, PhD

Jennifer Mueller, PhD

O. Volkan Ozbek

Miriam Rothman, PhD

Tara Ceranic Salinas, PhD

Carsten Zimmermann, PhD

### Marketing

Kenneth Bates, PhD

Seth R. Ellis, PhD, Department Chair

Justine Rapp Farrell, PhD

Andrea Godfrey Flynn, PhD

Aarti Ivanic, PhD

Maria Kniazeva, PhD

Alexander Kull, PhD

C. David Light, PhD

Carlton O'Neal, MBA, JD

Tyagarajan N. Somasundaram, PhD

# Operations, Supply Chain and Information Management

Simon R. Croom, PhD, FCIPS

John D. Hanson, PhD, Department Chair

David C. Keszei, MBA

Yen-Ting Lin, PhD

David F. Pyke, PhD

Carl M. Rebman, Jr., PhD

Ruixia Shi, PhD

Charles J. Tepliz, DBA, CPIM, PMP

Wenli Xiao, PhD

### Centers, Institutes and Programs

Denise Dimon, PhD, Director, Ahlers Center for International Business

Amitkumar Kakkad, PhD, Faculty Director, Center for Peace and Commerce

Diane D. Pattison, PhD, Director, Accountancy Institute

Stath J. Karras, Executive Director, Burnham-Moores Center for Real Estate

Mary Long, MBA, Managing Director, Supply Chain Management Institute

Marko Svetino, PhD, Director, Institute for Finance Education and Research

The School of Business is committed to developing socially responsible leaders with a global mindset through academically rigorous, relevant and values-based education and research.

The major goal of professional Undergraduate business education in the School of Business is to prepare students with an educational foundation for effective and responsible administrative and managerial leadership in both private and public organizations or related professional activities. This goal implies educating persons to be responsible adults in all aspects of their lives in an era of dynamic change. It implies that we aim to educate persons as highly competent professionals who strive for the achievement of the highest values and goals.

The basic orientation of the School is professional, and this dictates a three-part curriculum. The first and most important part is the core curriculum, USD's general education program. An effective leader and professional in this era of change and challenge must be a liberally educated person. It is necessary that our students learn the indispensable competencies of written literacy, mathematical competency and critical reasoning. Furthermore, it is our objective to help students develop their own internalized value systems and appreciate the diversity of human experience. We believe that a liberal education is a necessary part of a professional education, and we have structured a curriculum that recognizes this as preparation for life.

The second part of the curriculum is the common-body-of-knowledge, those business courses required of all School of Business graduates. This business core provides the foundation for a career as a manager or as a business-related professional. It provides the student with an understanding of the interaction between the firm and its environment, and an overall view of policy-making in an organization. This business core, combined with the quantitative and philosophy courses, is designed to help our students become professionals with highly analytical minds.

The third section of the curriculum provides the student an opportunity to specialize and prepare for an entry-level position in the first years of a career. These areas include majors in accounting, business administration, business economics, economics, finance, international business, marketing and real estate. The goal of this portion of the curriculum is to provide the student with the understanding necessary for the development of personal potential early in one's career.

Our goal is to graduate self-motivated persons who will be able to absorb and use an ever growing body of knowledge and changing technology, and to serve humankind in an ethical manner. The school, therefore, stresses values and the process of learning.

### **Advisory Boards and Committees**

A number of advisory boards and committees have been established to assist various Programs within the School of Business in the following areas:

 Developing and promoting relations between the USD School of Business and the business, not-for-profit and government communities.

- Providing counsel and advice on existing and contemplated Programs of the School of Business.
- Serving as liaisons between the USD School of Business and the San Diego community, the state and national sectors.
- 4. Advising the Dean and the Faculty on matters dealing with business Programs, curricula and activities.
- Assisting in seeking sources of support for School of Business Programs and facilities
- 6. Improving and facilitating recruiting and placement of graduates and alumni.
- Advising the USD School of Business on ways and means of effective utilization of human and physical resources in business research projects and Programs.

### **Administration**

Jaime Alonso Gomez, PhD, Dean

Stephen. J. Conroy, PhD, Associate Dean of Undergraduate Programs C. David Light, PhD, Associate Dean of Faculty and Academic Affairs Barbara Lougee, PhD, Associate Dean of Graduate Programs Carmen M. Barcena, EdD, Assistant Dean, Internal and Student Affairs Jewel Leonard, JD, Assistant Dean, Undergraduate Programs

### School of Business Requirements

Students become eligible for upper division School of Business courses with the approval of the School of Business Advising Center and upon completion of:

- 1. 60 units, and
- 2. MATH 130 or MATH 150 with a grade of C- or better.

Degree requirements for all School of Business majors include successful completion of USD core curriculum requirements as set forth in this catalog, lower-division business preparatory courses, major course requirements, and the Professional Development Passport Program. The Professional Development Passport Program requires that a student attend a series of pre-approved professional development activities while a USD business major.

In addition, the School of Business requires students to be certified in Microsoft Excel, which is completed in ITMG 100 at USD.

### Transfer of Credit for Business Courses

Course syllabi from non-USD courses are subject to review at any time in order to ensure the transferring course meets USD's course curriculum content and our continued high standards of academics.

In addition to the university's transfer of credit policy, the School of Business requires that a grade of "C" or better must be earned in order to transfer a business course to USD. A grade of "pass" or "satisfactory" is not acceptable for any business course.

A first-semester transfer student may request pre-approval to take ECON 217 instead of ECON 216. The pre-approval criteria to take ECON 217 includes, but is not limited to, the following: 1) the student completed an approved statistics course with a grade of B or better prior to entering USD; 2) ECON 217 must be satisfied within two years of taking the transferred statistics course; and 3) the calculus prerequisite must be satisfied.

Current students of the university should receive pre-approval for any course they wish to take at another institution. The Petition for Transfer of Credit is completed online through the MySanDiego portal. In addition, current students are responsible for ensuring that the registration of any transferred course is in

accordance with other university policies, such as the overload policy and the residency requirements.

### **Transferred Information Systems Courses**

The School of Business requires business majors to be certified in Microsoft Excel.

If a student requests to transfer a non-USD information systems class to satisfy the ITMG 100 requirement for business majors, then the student must 1) have completed an approved information systems course prior to entering USD; 2) receive transfer approval for the off-campus courses; and 3) successfully pass the Microsoft Excel certification exam. The M.S. Excel certification exam should be taken before the end of the add/drop period during the student's first semester at USD.

The School of Business Advising Office will review a student's request to take the Microsoft Excel certification exam. If the student is approved to take the Microsoft Excel certification exam, then an exam fee of \$40 will be charged to the student's account.

The School of Business' programs are supported by internationally recognized centers of excellence in international business, real estate, peace and commerce, supply chain management and accountancy.

These centers help provide advanced education, training and career opportunities to students, faculty and the business community.

# John Ahlers Center for International Business

The John M. Ahlers Center for International Business was founded in 1994 with an endowment from the estate of John and Carolyn Ahlers to enhance international business education at USD. Given a lifetime of international business and service, the Ahlers believed that globalization had increased the need for business leaders to be developed with special skills and knowledge in order to embrace the challenges and opportunities of an international marketplace. Through numerous Programs, the Ahlers Center is devoted to this mission of its founding donors by helping Faculty, students and the community develop significant international business acumen.

The Ahlers Center, along with the International Center at USD, develops and coordinates both short-term study abroad Programs and semester exchanges. Offered during the Intersession and Summer Sessions, the short-term Programs provide business students the opportunity, over a relatively short time period, to gain valuable business-oriented international experience. Students wishing to spend more time abroad and gain a deeper cultural understanding may participate in semester exchange Programs at leading business schools around the world. For more information on study abroad opportunities for Undergraduate business students, please go to www.sandiego.edu/ugabroad.

In addition to study abroad opportunities, the Ahlers Center annually sponsors International Executives-in-Residence, bringing business leaders to campus and the classroom. International visiting Faculty are also invited by the Ahlers Center to provide guest lectures or offer courses at USD. The Ahlers Center continues to cultivate its strong portfolio of offerings, including the hosting of international business leaders, conferences, eventsand speakers, which enhance our Undergraduate business students' exposure to the global mindset that inspired the generosity of John and Carolyn Ahlers.

For more information, please visit the Ahlers (http://www.sandiego.edu/ahlers) Center for International Business (http://www.sandiego.edu/business/centers-and-institutes/ahlers-international-business).

### Burnham-Moores Center for Real Estate

As a Center of Excellence within the School of Business, the mission of the Burnham-Moores Center for Real Estate is to help recruit, educate and mentor real estate students with the goal of facilitating their career pursuits in a socially responsible manner and with a global perspective. The BMC accomplishes this mission through support of outstanding faculty and professional staff, dedicated career services, active industry involvement and outreach and relevant and applied research.

World-class faculty (http://www.sandiego.edu/business/programs/ms-real-estate/faculty.php) coupled with the BMC's extensive network of industry contacts provide the Master of Science in Real Estate (http://www.sandiego.edu/business/programs/ms-real-estate) and undergraduate students with a one-of-a-kind educational experience that positions them to compete at the highest levels. The Burnham-Moores Center has unparalleled connections within the San Diego real estate community and beyond, which it leverages to help real estate students launch their careers and alumni advance theirs.

Real estate is a multi-disciplinary field, and the University of San Diego's (USD) School of Business offers a real estate major (http://www.sandiego.edu/business/programs/undergraduate/majors/real-estate) and minor (http://www.sandiego.edu/business/programs/undergraduate/majors/real-estate/curriculum.php?area=minor), designed to educate students about the various disciplines that encompass the real estate profession. USD's undergraduate real estate major and minor was inaugurated in 2009. The real estate major and minor programs have grown over the past seven years. Careers in real estate are among the top six in largest percentage of full-time employment offers for new graduates from the University of San Diego. School of Business students who major in real estate accept positions as financial analysts, property managers (commercial and multi-family), project managers, investment sales and leasing brokers and market researchers.

The Burnham-Moores Center has unparalleled connections with the San Diego real estate community and beyond. Each year, more than 100 industry professionals serve as guest lecturers in undergraduate, graduate and continuing education courses. The Burnham-Moores Center offers a certificate in Real Estate Finance, Investments and Development within USD's continuing education program to for those interested furthering their real estate education and to stay current on topics, trends and technology relevant to the industry. The Center also boasts two prestigious committees (the policy advisory board (https://www.sandiego.edu/business/centers-and-institutes/burnham-moores-real-estate/industry/policy-advisory-board.php) and the real estate committee (https://www.sandiego.edu/business/centers-and-institutes/burnham-moores-real-estate/industry/real-estate-committee.php)). Members of those committees provide invaluable services to students through internships, mentorships and job opportunities.

Each year, the Center brings together over 2,000 industry and civic professionals through numerous conferences. Flagship events include the Annual Real Estate Conference, Breakfast at the BMC events, the Women in Real Estate Conference and the Residential Outlook conference. The Center also hosts an Annual Real Estate Expo, which includes company representatives from the real estate industry and graduate and undergraduate students. The event is conducted in a "speednetworking" format, which enables students to participate in 10 rounds of six minute long informational interviews.

### Center for Peace and Commerce

The Center for Peace and Commerce (CPC) is a collaborative partnership between the School of Business and the Joan B. Kroc School of Peace Studies. The mission of the CPC is to prepare new generations of changemakers to build a sustainable world through innovative thinking and action, integrating business

principles and effective management with ideas for building peace, reducing poverty and creating positive social change.

The CPC administers the Social Innovation Challenge, a vehicle for students to design and launch social ventures. This includes the Idea Labs series that guides students through the process of developing a project or venture for social impact and offers coaching and mentoring. The CPC also leads the Women Innovators Initiative, which supports and encourages the development of female students as social entrepreneurs and innovators. The CPC collaborates closely with its executive advisory committee (http://www.sandiego.edu/cpc/about/executive-advisory.php). For more information, please visit the Center for Peace and Commerce. (http://www.sandiego.edu/cpc)

### **Accountancy Institute**

The Accountancy Institute was created to serve the educational and professional needs of the San Diego accounting community. The institute offers a variety of personalized educational opportunities including the tax boot camp, a certificate in financial planning and other continuing professional education Programs.

These, as well as other networking and personal growth opportunities, are available to our current students, our alumni and other San Diego professionals from the accounting community. The University of San Diego Accountancy Institute's commitment to personalized leadership and ethics continues through our variety of professional opportunities offered by our Faculty.

# Institute for Finance Education and Research

The Institute for Finance Education and Research serves as the bridge between academia and industry in the field of Finance. The Institute sponsors research, teaching and the application of financial knowledge in the global corporation and investment communities. The Institute's mission is to connect students, alumni, Faculty and the finance community to transform fundamental knowledge into applicable practices that benefit today's global economy.

### Supply Chain Management Institute

The Supply Chain Management Institute (SCMI) has helped to professionalize and shape the industry by providing supply chain management education to undergraduate, graduate and executive students since the mid-1980's. SCMI collaborates closely with its advisory board (http://www.sandiego.edu/business/centers-of-excellence/supply-chain-management-institute/about.php). The institute provides students with purposeful opportunities to interact with, and learn from, leading practitioners in supply chain management through oncampus conferences, facility tours, guest speakers, interactive workshops and executive education. SCMI also assists students and alumni with career placement through its annual career fair and year-round access to leading corporations with opportunities for both internships and long-term placement. The student division of the institute, the Supply Chain Management Association (SCMA), also helps organize opportunities for interaction with industry and professional organizations.

Undergraduate students, including those outside the School of Business degree programs, have the opportunity to choose supply chain management as a minor. Nine units of supply chain management courses are required as part of the 18 unit overall requirement. Graduate students may choose from obtaining an MBA with an emphasis in supply chain management or a Master of Science in Supply Chain Management (MS-SCM). The MS-SCM degree is the first master's degree to receive approval by the prestigious Institute for Supply Management (ISM), the largest supply management association in the world. The MS-SCM degree is also the first U.S. degree accredited by the Chartered Institute for Purchasing and Supply (CIPS).

### **Accountancy**

### **Bachelor of Accountancy**

The School of Business offers a program leading to the degree of Bachelor of Accountancy. The program prepares students for careers in public accounting, accounting within industry, and governmental accounting as outlined in the accountancy program mission statement shown below:

The mission of the USD accountancy program is to develop accountants – through the use of personalized, innovative teaching methods developed by faculty who are active in the production and dissemination of knowledge – who have the skills to become professionally certified accountants and compete in a diverse and fast-changing global professional environment.

The degree program allows students to select an option within the accountancy concentration that fits their career goals. These options allow students to acquire both accountancy skills and skills from specified business fields that are highly related to accountancy. Students should consult with an accounting faculty advisor about their career goals before selecting a concentration option.

The School of Business is accredited by the AACSB International – The Association to Advance Collegiate Schools of Business. The Bachelor of Accountancy program also holds AACSB accounting program accreditation.

### Combined Bachelor of Accountancy/ Master of Science in Accountancy or Bachelor of Accountancy/Master of Science in Taxation programs

Students may enroll in BACC/MACC or BACC/MTAX Combined Programs. Students in these combined programs may receive up to 12 units of credit to double count toward both the BACC undergraduate and MACC/MTAX graduate degrees. This double counting process is only applicable to students in a combined program. If student should graduate with a BACC degree and return later for a MACC/MTAX degree, then the student will not be able to retroactively double count these courses and would need to complete 30 semester hours to earn the MACC/MTAX degree.

There are specific allowable double counting courses, which are listed in the Accountancy major section. Prerequisites must be met in order to take these courses. Permission to register for these specific cross-listed courses as a BACC only student must be approved by the Academic Director of Graduate Accountancy Programs.

Students interested in a combined Bachelor of Accountancy/Master of Science in Accountancy or Bachelor of Accountancy/Master of Science in Taxation programs should consult the Graduate Catalog for program details.

### **Professional Accountancy Examinations**

Students in the Bachelor of Accountancy program should consult with an accounting faculty advisor about the courses to prepare for the Certified Public Accountant (CPA) Examination, the Certification in Management Accounting (CMA) Examination, graduate work in fields of study related to accountancy, or specific fields of government employment.

The State Board of Accountancy requires the completion of 150 semester hours to take the CPA Examination. The State Board of Accountancy will count any double counted course once as the State Board does not double count units posted to the two degrees. That means if a student enrolls in a combined program and completes the full 12 hours of allowable double counting for his or her USD degrees, the student may only have 142 semester hours that could be counted

toward the 150 hour requirement. Please be aware of this as it is possible to complete both degrees as part of the combined program and the student may be up to 8 hours short of the 150 required semester hours to become a CPA in California.

# The Accountancy Major Lower Division Preparation for the Major

Lower-division requirements for the major are the completion of the following courses with a grade point average of 2.0 or better with no grade below C-. Transfer courses must be C or better.

Code	Title	Units
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ACCT 202	Principles of Managerial Accounting	3
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3-4
ECON 102	Principles of Macroeconomics	3
ECON 216	Statistics for Business and Economics	1-4
or ECON 217	Applied Regression Analysis	
ECON 217 is re pre-approval	stricted to incoming transfer students and must receive	
ITMG 100	Information Systems	3
MATH 130	Survey of Calculus	3
or MATH 150	Calculus I	

Total Units 19-23

The courses in the major serve two purposes:

- they give students a broad background in the major functional areas of business administration (i.e., a business component); and,
- 2. they allow students to focus on the field of accountancy (i.e., an accountancy component).

Students in the Bachelor of Accountancy program must satisfy the USD core curriculum requirements as set forth in the catalog, Lower-Division Requirements for the major, the Professional Development Passport Program and all of the following major requirements:

#### **Business Core**

Code	Title	Units
<b>Business Core</b>		
DSCI 300	Prescriptive Business Analytics	3
DSCI 303	Operations Management	3
ETLW 302	Business and Society	3
or PHIL 332	Business Ethics	
ETLW 311	Business Law I	3
FINA 300	Financial Management	3
MGMT 300	Organizational Behavior	3
MGMT 490	Strategic Management	3
MKTG 300	Fundamentals of Marketing	3
or MKTG 303	Fundamentals of Marketing Abroad	
Total Units		24

#### **Accountancy Component**

Students must complete the requirements of one of the following Accountancy Component options:

#### **Option 1: Accountancy Option**

This option provides a primary emphasis in accountancy that is recommended for students who desire careers in public accounting and who plan on taking the Certified Public Accountant (CPA) Examination. This option is also recommended for students interested in industry related accounting careers where the Certificate in Management Accounting (CMA) is desirable. Option 1 is designed to meet all the accounting course requirements necessary to become a CPA in California. However, the BACC degree program will not provide the full 150 semester hours that are required to become California CPA. Students will need to complete a master's degree or will need to complete additional semester hours beyond the BACC degree to meet the 150 semester hour CPA requirement. This option requires the following:

Code	Title	Units
ACCT 300	Intermediate Accounting I	3
ACCT 301	Intermediate Accounting II	3
ACCT 302	Cost Accounting	3
ACCT 303	Accounting Information Systems	3
ACCT 306	Federal Tax Accounting I	3
ACCT 320	Ethics for Accountants	3
ACCT 401	Advanced Accounting	3
ACCT 407	Federal Tax Accounting II	3
ACCT 408	Auditing	3
Total Units		27

# Option 2: Accountancy and Supply Chain Management Combination

This option provides a primary emphasis in accountancy and a secondary emphasis in Supply Chain Management. In particular, students interested in careers requiring both accountancy skills and supply chain management skills should consider this Bachelor of Accountancy degree program option. Note this option will not provide all the requirements to sit for the CPA exam in California. This option requires the following:

Code	Title	Units
ACCT 300	Intermediate Accounting I	3
ACCT 301	Intermediate Accounting II	3
ACCT 302	Cost Accounting	3
ACCT 303	Accounting Information Systems	3
ACCT 306	Federal Tax Accounting I	3
BSCM 300	Global Purchasing and Supply Management	3
BSCM 302	Introduction to Supply Chain Management	3
Select one of the	following ACCT elective courses:	3
ACCT 320	Ethics for Accountants	
ACCT 401	Advanced Accounting	
ACCT 407	Federal Tax Accounting II	
ACCT 408	Auditing	
Select one of the	following courses:	3
BSCM 303	Strategic Cost Management	
BUSN 377	Negotiation in a Global Business Environment	
Any other BS0	CM prefixed course numbered above 303	
Total Units		27

#### Option 3: Accountancy and Finance/Real Estate Combination

This option provides a primary emphasis in accountancy and a secondary emphasis in finance or real estate. In particular, students interested in careers requiring both accountancy skills and finance or real estate skills should consider

this Bachelor of Accountancy degree program option. Note this option will not provide all the requirements to sit for the CPA exam in California. This option requires the following:

Code	Title	Unit
ACCT 300	Intermediate Accounting I	3
ACCT 301	Intermediate Accounting II	3
ACCT 302	Cost Accounting	3
ACCT 303	Accounting Information Systems	3
ACCT 306	Federal Tax Accounting I	3
Select one of the f	following ACCT elective courses:	3
ACCT 320	Ethics for Accountants	
ACCT 401	Advanced Accounting	
ACCT 407	Federal Tax Accounting II	
ACCT 408	Auditing	
Select three of the	following Finance/Real Estate elective courses:	9
FINA 401	Commercial Bank Management	
FINA 402	Investments	
FINA 403	Derivatives	
FINA 404	Advanced Corporate Finance	
FINA 405	International Financial Management	
FINA 406	Personal Finance	
FINA 407	New Venture Finance	
FINA 408	Financial Statement Analysis	
FINA 409	Financial Modeling and Analytics	
FINA 494	Special Topics	
REAL 320	Principles of Real Estate	
REAL 325	Financing Residential Real Estate	
REAL 326	Commercial RE Fin & Investment	
REAL 327	Legal Aspects of Real Estate	
REAL 328	Commercial Real Estate Valuation	
REAL 329	Real Estate Development	
REAL 494	Special Topics	

# Option 4: Accountancy and Information Systems/Technology Combination

This option provides a primary emphasis in accountancy and a secondary emphasis in information systems and technology. This combination is developed for accountancy students who are geared toward careers in public accounting, industry, or government where both accounting- and technology-based information systems skills and knowledge are required. In particular, students interested in careers requiring accountancy skills, information systems skills, and related information technology based skills should consider this Bachelor of Accountancy degree program option. Note this option will not provide all the requirements to sit for the CPA exam in California. This option requires the following:

Code	Title	Units
ACCT 300	Intermediate Accounting I	3
ACCT 301	Intermediate Accounting II	3
ACCT 302	Cost Accounting	3
ACCT 303	Accounting Information Systems	3
ACCT 306	Federal Tax Accounting I	3
Select one of the fol	llowing ACCT elective courses:	3

ACCT 320	Ethics for Accountants	
ACCT 401	Advanced Accounting	
ACCT 407	Federal Tax Accounting II	
ACCT 408	Auditing	
Select three of the f	following ITMG elective courses:	9
ITMG 310	Business & Organizational Application Programming & Development	
ITMG 320	Database Design and Business Intelligence Implementation	
ITMG 330	Electronic Commerce	
ITMG 340	Introduction to Web Site Design	
ITMG 350	Management Information Systems	
ITMG 360	Computer Networks, Security, and Forensics	
ITMG 440	Interactive Mobile and Web Application Development	
ITMG 494	Special Topics	
Total Units		27

# Grade Point Average Requirements and Transfer Restrictions

The 51 semester-hours taken within the business core courses and the selected accounting component option courses will be considered the major courses for the Bachelor of Accountancy program. Students must have a grade point average of 2.0 or better in these major courses with a minimum grade of C– in all of the 27 hours of the upper division major. Additionally, all classes taken within the selected accounting component option must be completed with a grade point average of 2.0 or better, with no individual course grade below C–.

The accounting major requires a minimum of 21 upper division units in the major be completed at USD. Students in the Bachelor of Accountancy program may transfer no more than two courses in upper division accounting to USD.

# Recommended Program of Study Bachelor Of Accountancy

#### Freshman Year

**MKTG 300** 

Semester I		Units
Preceptorial		3
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3
MATH 115	College Algebra	3
CC or electives		6-7
Semester II		
ECON 102	Principles of Macroeconomics	3
ITMG 100	Information Systems	3
MATH 130	Survey of Calculus	3-4
or 150	Calculus I	
CC or electives		6-7
Sophomore Year		
Semester I		
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ECON 216	Statistics for Business and Economics	4
CC or electives		9
Semester II		
ACCT 202	Principles of Managerial Accounting	3
FINA 300	Financial Management	3

Fundamentals of Marketing

3

CC or electives		12-13
Junior Year		
Semester I		
ACCT 300	Intermediate Accounting I	3
ACCT 302	Cost Accounting	3
DSCI 300	Prescriptive Business Analytics	3
MGMT 300	Organizational Behavior	3
CC or electives		3-4
Semester II		
ACCT 301	Intermediate Accounting II	3
ACCT 303	Accounting Information Systems	3
ACCT 320	Ethics for Accountants	3
DSCI 303	Operations Management	3
ETLW 302	Business and Society	3
CC or electives		3-4
Senior Year		
Semester I		
ACCT 306	Federal Tax Accounting I	3
ACCT 401	Advanced Accounting	3
ETLW 311	Business Law I	3
CC or electives		3-4
Semester II		
ACCT 407	Federal Tax Accounting II	3
ACCT 408	Auditing	3
MGMT 490	Strategic Management	3
CC or electives		3-4

# Combined Bachelor of Accountancy/Master of Science in Accountancy or Bachelor of Accountancy/Master of Science in Taxation programs

Students may enroll in BACC/MACC or BACC/MTAX Combined Programs. Students in these combined programs may receive up to 12 units of credit to double count toward <u>both</u> the BACC undergraduate and MACC/MTAX graduate degrees. This double counting process is only applicable to students in a combined program. If student should graduate with a BACC degree and return later for a MACC/MTAX degree then the student will not be able to retroactively double count these courses and would need to complete 30 semester hours to earn the MACC/MTAX degree.

Courses that may double count are ACCT 425/MACC 525, ACCT 430/MACC 530, ACCT 431/MACC 531, ACCT 440/MACC 540, ACCT 460/MACC 560, ACCT 461/MACC 561, and ACCT 462/MACC 562, and ACCT 464/MACC 564. In addition, ACCT 494/MACC 594 may double count if approved by the Academic Director of Graduate Accountancy Programs. The pre-approved ACCT 494/MACC 594 course is 'Accounting Analytics'. Double counted courses will count only as general electives for the bachelor's degree. Prerequisites must be met in order to take these courses. Permission to register for these specific cross-listed courses as a BACC only student must be approved by the Academic Director of Graduate Accountancy Programs.

### **Minor Requirements**

Code	Title	Units
Required Lower-	-Division Courses	
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ACCT 202	Principles of Managerial Accounting	3

Required Upp	per-Division Courses	
ACCT 300	Intermediate Accounting I	3
ACCT 301	Intermediate Accounting II	3
ACCT 302	Cost Accounting	3
<b>Elective Cour</b>	rses	
ACCT upper-o	division courses	3
Total Units		18

### **Business Administration**

School of Business offers a program leading to the degree of Bachelor of Business Administration, with majors in business administration, business economics, finance, international business, marketing, and real estate.

Click on the boxes above to view the curriculum for the major and minor.

# The Business Administration Major Preparation for the Major

Lower-division requirements for the major are completion of the following courses with a grade point average of 2.0 or better with no grade below C-. Transfer courses must be C or better.

Code	Title	Units
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ACCT 202	Principles of Managerial Accounting	3
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3-4
ECON 102	Principles of Macroeconomics	3
ECON 216	Statistics for Business and Economics	1-4
or ECON 217	Applied Regression Analysis	
ECON 217 is repre-approval	estricted to incoming transfer students and must receive	
ITMG 100	Information Systems	3
MATH 130	Survey of Calculus	3
or MATH 150	Calculus I	
m . i rr ti		10.00

Total Units 19-23

#### **Major Requirements**

The business administration major prepares students for careers in business management, public administration, and entrepreneurial ventures, as well as graduate study in business. The courses in the business administration major serve two purposes:

- they give students a broad background in the major functional areas of business administration; and,
- 2. they give students electives to explore their interests in the field of business administration.

Students majoring in business administration must satisfy the USD core curriculum requirements as set forth in this catalog, Lower-division requirements for the major, the Professional Development Passport Program and all of the following major requirements:

Code	Title	Units
<b>Business Core</b>		
DSCI 300	Prescriptive Business Analytics	3
DSCI 303	Operations Management	3
ETLW 302	Business and Society	3

or PHIL 332	Business Ethics		MKTG 435	Business of Healthcare	
ETLW 311	Business Law I	3	MKTG 440	Brand Management	
FINA 300	Financial Management	3	MKTG 480	Advanced Marketing Project	
MGMT 300	Organizational Behavior	3	MKTG 490	Marketing Strategy	
MGMT 490	Strategic Management	3	MKTG 494	Special Topics	
MKTG 300	Fundamentals of Marketing	3		onal School of Business upper-division classes (6 units	6
or MKTG 303	Fundamentals of Marketing Abroad		total):	Sensor of Business apper arribion elabors (8 units	
Business Core Tot		24	ACCT 300-499	9; BSCM 300-499; BUSN 300-499; DSCI 300-499; EC	ON
Elective Courses			300-499; ETLV	W 300-499; FINA 300-499; ITMG 300-499; MGMT	
	e elective from the following:	3	300-499; MKT	TG 300-499; or REAL 300-499	
FINA 401	Commercial Bank Management		Elective Courses	Total Units	15
FINA 402	Investments		Total Units		39
FINA 403	Derivatives		The business admi	inistration major requires a minimum of 24 upper-divisi	ion unite
FINA 404	Advanced Corporate Finance		in the major be con		.on units
FINA 405	International Financial Management				
FINA 406	Personal Finance		Recommended Pro	ogram of Study, Bachelor of Business Administration	
FINA 407	New Venture Finance		Freshman Year		
FINA 408	Financial Statement Analysis		Semester I		Units
FINA 409	Financial Modeling and Analytics				
FINA 494	Special Topics		Preceptorial ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3
	ement elective from the following:	3	MATH 115	1	3
MGMT 301	Organizational Theory and Global Leadership			College Algebra	
MGMT 302	Family Business		CC or electives		6-7
MGMT 303	Interpersonal Relations		Semester II		
MGMT 304	Entrepreneurship and New Ventures		ECON 102	Principles of Macroeconomics	3
MGMT 305	Career Development		ITMG 100	Information Systems	3
MGMT 306	Women in Management		MATH 130	Survey of Calculus	3-4
MGMT 307	Human Resource Management		or 150	Calculus I	67
MGMT 308	Small Business Management		CC or electives		6-7
MGMT 309	International Comparative Management		Sophomore Year		
MGMT 310	Innovation and Design Thinking		Semester I		
MGMT 311	Business Leadership		ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
MGMT 312	Global Social Entrepreneurship		ECON 216	Statistics for Business and Economics	4
MGMT 414	International Management Consulting		CC or electives		9
MGMT 492	Strategy Simulation		Semester II		
MGMT 494	Special Topics		ACCT 202	Principles of Managerial Accounting	3
	ing elective from the following:	3	FINA 300	Financial Management	3
MKTG 301	Services Marketing	_	MKTG 300	Fundamentals of Marketing	3
MKTG 302	Sports Marketing		CC or electives		6-9
MKTG 305	Global Marketing		Junior Year		
	06Global Marketing Abroad		Semester I		
MKTG 330	Professional Selling		ETLW 302	Business and Society	3
MKTG 331	International Business to Business Marketing		MGMT 300	Organizational Behavior	3
MKTG 340	Digital Marketing and Social Media		CC or electives		9-12
MKTG 350	Advertising and Promotion		Semester II		
MKTG 350	Advertising Campaigns		DSCI 300	Prescriptive Business Analytics	3
MKTG 355	Introduction to Public Relations		ETLW 311	Business Law I	3
MKTG 410	Marketing Research		Major elective		3
	13Marketing Research Abroad		CC or electives		6-9
MKTG 411	Marketing Analytics		Senior Year		
MKTG 420	Consumer Behavior		Semester I		
MKTG 422	Visual Methods for Exploring Consumer Behavior		DSCI 303	Operations Management	3
	1 5558 2555555				-

Major elective		
CC or electives		
Semester II		
MGMT 490	Strategic Management	
Major elective		
CC or electives		

### Minor Requirements

Code	Title	Unit	
Required Lowe	r-Division Courses		
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3	
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3	
ECON 102	Principles of Macroeconomics	3	
Required Upper-Division Courses			
MGMT 300	Organizational Behavior	3	
<b>Elective Course</b>	es		
Any pre-approve	ed upper-division business elective (not ACCT or ECON)	6	
Total Units		18	

### **Business Economics**

The business economics major prepares students for careers in business management or public administration and for post-baccalaureate studies in business, economics, or law.

Click on the major tab above to view the curriculum.

### The Business Economics Major

The courses in the business economics major serve two purposes:

- they give students a broad background in the major functional areas of business administration; and
- 2. they allow students to focus on the field of economics.

### Preparation for the Major

Lower-division requirements for the major are the completion of the following courses with a grade point average of 2.0 or better with no grade below C-. Transfer courses must be C or better.

Code	Title	Units
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ACCT 202	Principles of Managerial Accounting	3
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3-4
ECON 102	Principles of Macroeconomics	3
ECON 216	Statistics for Business and Economics	1-4
or ECON 217	Applied Regression Analysis	
ECON 217 is repre-approval	estricted to incoming transfer students and must receive	
ITMG 100	Information Systems	3
MATH 130	Survey of Calculus	3
or MATH 150	Calculus I	
Total Units		19-23

Students majoring in business economics must satisfy the USD core curriculum requirements as set forth in this catalog, lower-division requirements for the

- major, the Professional Development Passport Program and all of the following
- 6 major requirements:

3

6 6

#### Major Requirements

Code	Title	Uni
<b>Business Core</b>		
DSCI 300	Prescriptive Business Analytics	3
ETLW 302	Business and Society	3
or PHIL 332	Business Ethics	
ETLW 311	Business Law I	3
FINA 300	Financial Management	3
MGMT 300	Organizational Behavior	3
MKTG 300	Fundamentals of Marketing	3
or MKTG 303	Fundamentals of Marketing Abroad	
Business Core Tota	al Units	18
Required Courses	3	
ECON 201	Intermediate Microeconomics	3
ECON 202	Intermediate Macroeconomics	3
ECON 370	Applied Econometrics	3
ECON 473	Managerial Economics	3
ECON 490	Senior Seminar	3
Required Courses	Total Units	15
Elective courses		
Any pre-approved	ECON upper-division electives	6
Total Units		39

The business economics major requires a minimum of 24 upper-division units in the major be completed at USD, of which 12 units must be in economics.

### **Economics**

School of Business offers a program leading to the degree of Bachelor of Arts in Economics. The Bachelor of Arts in Economics degree program prepares students for careers in business, government and nonprofit organizations, as well as for graduate study in law, business, public policy and economics.

Click on the major and minor tabs above to view the curriculum.

# The Economics Major

### <sup>is</sup> Preparation for the Major

Lower-division requirements for the major are the completion of the following courses with a grade point average of 2.0 or better with no grade below C—. Transfer courses must be C or better.

Code	Title	Units
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3-4
ECON 102	Principles of Macroeconomics	3
ECON 216	Statistics for Business and Economics	1-4
or ECON 217	Applied Regression Analysis	
Must receive pr	e-approval to register for ECON 217.	
ITMG 100	Information Systems	3
MATH 130	Survey of Calculus (or Calculus I)	3-4
or MATH 150	Calculus I	
Total Units		16-21

Students considering graduate studies in economics are advised to take MATH 150; MATH 151 and MATH 250 as well.

#### Major Requirements

Students majoring in economics must satisfy the USD core curriculum requirements as set forth in the catalog, lower-division Requirements for the major, the Professional Development Passport Program and all of the following major requirements:

Code	Title	Units
Required Course	es	
ECON 201	Intermediate Microeconomics	3
ECON 202	Intermediate Macroeconomics	3
ECON 370	Applied Econometrics	3
ECON 490	Senior Seminar	3
Required Courses	s Total Units	12
<b>Elective Courses</b>	3	
Any pre-approved	d ECON upper-division elective	18
Total Units		30

The economics major requires a minimum of 18 upper-division units in the major be completed at USD.

#### Recommended Program Of Study, Bachelor of Arts in **Economics**

#### Freshman Year

CC or electives

Semester I		Units
Preceptorial		3
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3
MATH 115	College Algebra	3
CC or electives		6-7
Semester II		
ECON 102	Principles of Macroeconomics	3
ITMG 100	Information Systems	3
MATH 130	Survey of Calculus	3
or 150	Calculus I	
CC or electives		6-7
Sophomore Year		
Semester I		
ECON 202	Intermediate Macroeconomics	3
ECON 216	Statistics for Business and Economics	4
CC or electives		9
Semester II		
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ECON 201	Intermediate Microeconomics	3
CC or electives		9
Junior Year		
Semester I		
ECON electives		6
CC or electives		9-12
Semester II		
ECON 370	Applied Econometrics	3
ECON electives		6

#### Senior Year

Semester I		
ECON elective		3
CC or electives		12
Semester II		
ECON 490	Senior Seminar	3
ECON elective		3
CC or electives		9

### Minor Requirements

Code	Title	Unit
Required Cou	rses	
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3
ECON 102	Principles of Macroeconomics	3
ECON 201	Intermediate Microeconomics <sup>1</sup>	3
ECON 202	Intermediate Macroeconomics <sup>1</sup>	3
<b>Elective Cours</b>	ses	
ECON upper-d	livision electives	6
Total Units		18

An upper-division ECON elective may used to substitute for either ECON 201 or ECON 202, but not both.

### **Finance**

The finance major prepares students for careers in corporate financial management, investment banking, international finance, commercial bank management, financial planning and the financial services industry.

Click on the major and minor tabs above to view the curriculum.

# The Finance Major

#### Preparation for the Major

Lower-division requirements for the major are the completion of the following courses with a grade point average of 2.0 or better with no grade below C-. Transfer courses must be C or better.

Code	Title	Units
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ACCT 202	Principles of Managerial Accounting	3
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3-4
ECON 102	Principles of Macroeconomics	3
ECON 216	Statistics for Business and Economics	1-4
or ECON 217	Applied Regression Analysis	
ECON 217 is re pre-approval	stricted to incoming transfer students and must receive	
ITMG 100	Information Systems	3
MATH 130	Survey of Calculus	3
or MATH 150	Calculus I	
Total Units		19-23

#### **Major Requirements**

6-9

Students majoring in finance must satisfy the USD core curriculum requirements as set forth in this catalog, lower-division Requirements for the major, the

Professional Development Passport Program and all of the following major requirements:

Code	Title	Units
<b>Business Core</b>		
DSCI 300	Prescriptive Business Analytics	3
DSCI 303	Operations Management	3
ETLW 302	Business and Society	3
or PHIL 332	Business Ethics	
ETLW 311	Business Law I	3
FINA 300	Financial Management	3
MGMT 300	Organizational Behavior	3
MGMT 490	Strategic Management	3
MKTG 300	Fundamentals of Marketing	3
or MKTG 303	Fundamentals of Marketing Abroad	
Business Core Tota	al Units	24
Required Courses	S	
FINA 402	Investments	3
FINA 404	Advanced Corporate Finance	3
FINA 408	Financial Statement Analysis	3
Required Courses	Total Units	9
<b>Elective Courses</b>		
Select two of the fo	ollowing courses:	6
FINA 401	Commercial Bank Management	
FINA 403	Derivatives	
FINA 405	International Financial Management	
FINA 406	Personal Finance	
FINA 407	New Venture Finance	
FINA 409	Financial Modeling and Analytics	
FINA 494	Special Topics	
Any pre-approvinternship	red Finance elective, which may include a BUSN 498	
Elective Courses T	'otal Units	6
Total Units		39

The finance major requires a minimum of 24 upper-division units in the major be completed at USD, of which 12 units must be in finance.

### Minor Requirements

Code	Title	Units
Required Lower	-Division Courses	
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ACCT 202	Principles of Managerial Accounting	3
Required Upper-	-Division Courses	
FINA 300	Financial Management	3
FINA 402	Investments	3
<b>Elective Courses</b>		
Select two of the	following courses:	6
FINA 401	Commercial Bank Management	
FINA 403	Derivatives	
FINA 404	Advanced Corporate Finance	
FINA 405	International Financial Management	
FINA 406	Personal Finance	

Total Units		18
FINA 409	Financial Modeling and Analytics	
FINA 408	Financial Statement Analysis	
FINA 407	New Venture Finance	

### **International Business**

The international business major prepares a student to conduct business with a global perspective - from serving customers and managing operations in international markets to taking a local business worldwide. The student will enhance learning with experience abroad and extended language studies. The student, also, has the option of incorporating regional expertise as a part of the international business major.

Click on the major and minor tabs above to view the curriculum.

# The International Business Major Preparation for the Major

Lower-division requirements for the majors are the completion of the following courses with a grade point average of 2.0 or better with no grade below C-. Transfer courses must be C or better.

Code	Title	Units
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ACCT 202	Principles of Managerial Accounting	3
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3-4
ECON 102	Principles of Macroeconomics	3
ECON 216	Statistics for Business and Economics	1-4
or ECON 217	Applied Regression Analysis	
ECON 217 is re pre-approval	estricted to incoming transfer students and must receive	
ITMG 100	Information Systems	3
MATH 130	Survey of Calculus	3
or MATH 150	Calculus I	
Total Units		19-23

#### Major Requirements

Students majoring in international business must satisfy the USD core curriculum requirements as set forth in this catalog, lower-division requirements for the major, the Professional Development Passport Program and all of the following major requirements:

Code	Title	Units
<b>Business Core</b>		
DSCI 300	Prescriptive Business Analytics	3
DSCI 303	Operations Management	3
ETLW 302	Business and Society	3
or PHIL 332	Business Ethics	
ETLW 311	Business Law I	3
FINA 300	Financial Management	3
MGMT 300	Organizational Behavior	3
MGMT 490	Strategic Management	3
MKTG 300	Fundamentals of Marketing	3
or MKTG 303	Fundamentals of Marketing Abroad	
Business Core Tota	l Units	24

Required Foreign Language

A fourth semester competency in a second language (in a modern language) with a grade of C or better is required.

#### **Required International Studies**

A student must participate in an approved international university study program for a minimum of three units of coursework earned. Courses comprising the international studies component can also fulfill the course requirements in the major or outside of the major.

#### **Required Courses**

Select three of the following courses:		9	
	ECON 333	International Economics	
	FINA 405	International Financial Management	
	MGMT 309	International Comparative Management	
	MKTG 305	Global Marketing	
	or MKTG 3	06Global Marketing Abroad	
	Required Courses Total Units		
	Elective Courses		

Select three elective courses from List A (all three courses), or a combination of Lists A and B with a maximum of two courses from List B (see note under List B):

Total Units 42

## (a) Pre-approved courses within the School of Business Administration (no limit):

Code	Title	Units
BUSN 339	Latin America Business Environment (BUSN 339 or ECON 339, not both)	
BUSN 377	Negotiation in a Global Business Environment	
ECON 333	International Economics	
ECON 335	Economic Development of Latin America	
ECON 339	Latin America Business Environment (ECON 339 or BUSN 339, not both)	
ECON 337	Economic Development of Asia	
ETLW 313	International Business Law and Ethics	
FINA 405	International Financial Management	
MGMT 309	International Comparative Management	
MKTG 305	Global Marketing	
or MKTG 30	Global Marketing Abroad	
MGMT 312	Global Social Entrepreneurship	
MGMT 414	International Management Consulting	
BUSN 498	Internship	
With prior appro	val, BUSN 494, MGMT 494, FINA 494 or MKTG 494	

# (b) Pre-approved courses outside the School of Business Administration (limit six units)

Note: Although up to two courses (six units) may be taken outside of the School of Business Administration from the following list of regional courses, both courses must be selected from the same regional area (i.e., Africa, Asia, Latin America, Middle East and Europe), but not from the same academic discipline (i.e., HIST, POLS, THRS, POLS, PHIL or SOCI).

Code	Title	Units
Africa		
HIST 368	The African Historical Experience	
HIST 369	Topics in African History	
POLS 360	Politics in Sub-Saharan Africa	
THRS 315	Islamic Faith and Practice	

THRS 321	Afro-Latin Religions
Asia	
HIST 364	Topics in Asian History
HIST 365	China: Rise to Global Power
HIST 366	Japan: Samurai to Subaru
HIST 367	Women's Lives in East Asia
HIST 372	United States-East Asia Relations
PHIL 476	Studies in Asian Philosophy
POLS 358	Politics in South Asia
POLS 367	Politics in Japan
POLS 368	Politics in China
THRS 312	The Hindu Tradition
THRS 314	Buddhist Thought and Culture
THRS 315	Islamic Faith and Practice
THRS 317	Religions of China
Latin America	
ANTH 327	South American Indian Cultures
ANTH 328	Caribbean Cultures
HIST 361	Modern Latin America
HIST 362	Topics in Latin America History
HIST 363	History of Brazil
HIST 384	History of Mexico
POLS 357	Politics in Latin America
POLS 366	Politics in Mexico
POLS 374	U.SLatin American Relations
THRS 321	Afro-Latin Religions
THRS 368	Latino/a Theologies
Middle East	
POLS 359	Politics in the Middle East
THRS 313	Jewish Faith and Practice
THRS 315	Islamic Faith and Practice
Europe	
HIST 347	Topics in Modern Europe
HIST 350	History of the British Isles
HIST 351	Modern Britain
HIST 352	The British Imperial Experience
HIST 354	History of Spain
HIST 355	Imperial Russia Soviet Union and After
HIST 356	W V 1-1-1 V 1-
HIST 357	Topics in Russian and East European History
PHIL 472	Studies in Modern European Philosophy
POLS 355	Politics in Europe Politics in the United Kingdom
POLS 362	5
POLS 363	Politics in France
POLS 364	Politics in Germany Politics in Russia
POLS 365	FORUCS III KUSSIA

The International Business major requires a minimum of 24 upper-division units in the major be completed at USD. This requirement does not include USD faculty-led courses abroad organized through the International Center.

### Minor Requirements

Code	Title	Units
Required Lower-	Division Courses	
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3
ECON 102	Principles of Macroeconomics	3
Required Upper-	Division Course	
BUSN 361	Introduction to International Business	3
<b>Elective Courses</b>		
Select two of the f	following:	6
BUSN 339	Latin America Business Environment (BUSN 339 or ECON 339, not both)	
BUSN 377	Negotiation in a Global Business Environment	
ECON 333	International Economics	
ECON 335	Economic Development of Latin America	
ECON 339	Latin America Business Environment (ECON 339 or BUSN 339, not both)	
ECON 337	Economic Development of Asia	
ETLW 313	International Business Law and Ethics	
FINA 405	International Financial Management	
MGMT 309	International Comparative Management	
MGMT 312	Global Social Entrepreneurship	
MGMT 414	International Management Consulting	
MKTG 305	Global Marketing	
or MKTG 3	06Global Marketing Abroad	
	ved upper-division international business elective, on-specific international abroad courses.	

## **Marketing Courses**

**Total Units** 

The marketing major prepares students for careers in advertising and public relations, product and brand management, marketing research, sales, and sports and entertainment marketing, as well as for graduate study in business.

Click on the major and minor tabs above to view the curriculum.

# The Marketing Major Preparation for the Major

Lower-division requirements for the major are the completion of the following courses with a grade point average of 2.0 or better with no grade below C-. Transfer courses must be C or better.

Code	Title	Units
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ACCT 202	Principles of Managerial Accounting	3
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3-4
ECON 102	Principles of Macroeconomics	3
ECON 216	Statistics for Business and Economics	1-4
or ECON 217	Applied Regression Analysis	
ECON 217 is re pre-approval	stricted to incoming transfer students and must receive	
ITMG 100	Information Systems	3
MATH 130	Survey of Calculus	3

or MATH 150	Calculus I	
Total Units		19-23

#### Major Requirements

18

Students majoring in marketing must satisfy the USD core curriculum requirements as set forth in this catalog, lower-division requirements for the major, the Professional Development Passport Program and all of the following major requirements:

Code	Title	Units
<b>Business Core</b>		
DSCI 300	Prescriptive Business Analytics	3
DSCI 303	Operations Management	3
ETLW 302	Business and Society	3
or PHIL 332	Business Ethics	
ETLW 311	Business Law I	3
FINA 300	Financial Management	3
MGMT 300	Organizational Behavior	3
MGMT 490	Strategic Management	3
MKTG 300	Fundamentals of Marketing	3
or MKTG 303	Fundamentals of Marketing Abroad	
Business Core Tota	l Units	24
<b>Required Courses</b>		
MKTG 410	Marketing Research	3
or MKTG 413	Marketing Research Abroad	
MKTG 420	Consumer Behavior	3
MKTG 490	Marketing Strategy	3
Required Courses T	Total Units	9
<b>Elective Courses</b>		
Select three of the f	following elective courses:	9
MKTG 301	Services Marketing	
MKTG 302	Sports Marketing	
MKTG 305	Global Marketing	
or MKTG 30	Global Marketing Abroad	
MKTG 330	Professional Selling	
MKTG 331	International Business to Business Marketing	
MKTG 340	Digital Marketing and Social Media	
MKTG 350	Advertising and Promotion	
MKTG 351	Advertising Campaigns	
MKTG 355	Introduction to Public Relations	
MKTG 411	Marketing Analytics	
MKTG 422	Visual Methods for Exploring Consumer Behavior	
MKTG 435	Business of Healthcare	
MKTG 440	Brand Management	
MKTG 480	Advanced Marketing Project	
MKTG 494	Special Topics	
	ed elective, which may include a BUSN 498 internship	
Elective Courses To	otal Units	9
Total Units		42
rent district		

The marketing major requires a minimum of 24 upper-division units in the major be completed at USD, of which 12 units must be in marketing.

Minor Red	quirements	
Code	Title	Units
Required Lower-	Division Courses	
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3
Required Upper-l	Division Courses	
MKTG 300	Fundamentals of Marketing	3
or MKTG 303	Fundamentals of Marketing Abroad	
MKTG 490	Marketing Strategy	3
<b>Elective Courses</b>		
Select two of the fo	ollowing:	6
MKTG 301	Services Marketing	
MKTG 302	Sports Marketing	
MKTG 305	Global Marketing	
or MKTG 30	06Global Marketing Abroad	
MKTG 330	Professional Selling	
MKTG 331	International Business to Business Marketing	
MKTG 340	Digital Marketing and Social Media	
MKTG 350	Advertising and Promotion	
MKTG 351	Advertising Campaigns	
MKTG 355	Introduction to Public Relations	
MKTG 410	Marketing Research	
or MKTG 41	13Marketing Research Abroad	
MKTG 411	Marketing Analytics	
MKTG 420	Consumer Behavior	
MKTG 422	Visual Methods for Exploring Consumer Behavior	
MKTG 435	Business of Healthcare	
MKTG 440	Brand Management	
MKTG 480	Advanced Marketing Project	
MKTG 494	Special Topics	
MKTG 499	Independent Study	
Any pre-approved	elective, which may include a BUSN 498 Internship	

### **Real Estate**

**Total Units** 

The real estate major prepares students for careers in the real estate industry, as well as for graduate study in business.

Students majoring in real estate must satisfy the USD core curriculum requirements as set forth in this catalog, lower-division requirements for the major, the Professional Development Passport Program and all of the major requirements.

Click on the major and minor tabs above to view the curriculum.

# The Real Estate Major Preparation for the Major

Lower-division requirements for the major are the completion of the following courses with a grade point average of 2.0 or better with no grade below C-. Transfer course must be C or better.

Code	Title	Units
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ACCT 202	Principles of Managerial Accounting	3

ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3-4
ECON 102	Principles of Macroeconomics	3
ECON 216	Statistics for Business and Economics	1-4
or ECON 217	Applied Regression Analysis	
ECON 217 is re pre-approval	stricted to incoming transfer students and must receive	
ITMG 100	Information Systems	3
MATH 130	Survey of Calculus	3
or MATH 150	Calculus I	
Total Units		19-23

### Major Requirements

18

Students majoring in real estate must satisfy the USD core curriculum requirements as set forth in this catalog, lower-division requirements for the major, the Professional Development Passport Program and all of the following major requirements:

Prescriptive Business Analytics Operations Management Business and Society	3
Operations Management	
1 0	2
Business and Society	3
•	3
Business Ethics	
Business Law I	3
Financial Management	3
Organizational Behavior	3
Strategic Management	3
Fundamentals of Marketing	3
Fundamentals of Marketing Abroad	
al Units	24
; <sup>1</sup>	
Principles of Real Estate	3
Legal Aspects of Real Estate	3
Financing Residential Real Estate	3
Commercial RE Fin & Investment	
Total Units	9
2	
ollowing courses:	6
Real Estate Market Analysis	
Financing Residential Real Estate	
Commercial RE Fin & Investment	
Commercial Real Estate Valuation	
Real Estate Development	
Special Topics	
Internship	
otal Units	6
	39
	Business Law I Financial Management Organizational Behavior Strategic Management Fundamentals of Marketing Fundamentals of Marketing Abroad al Units I Principles of Real Estate Legal Aspects of Real Estate Financing Residential Real Estate Commercial RE Fin & Investment Fotal Units I Sollowing courses: Real Estate Market Analysis Financing Residential Real Estate Commercial RE Fin & Investment Commercial Real Estate Valuation Real Estate Development Special Topics Internship

- It is strongly recommended that a real estate major take REAL 320 Principles of Real Estate before other upper-division required or elective real estate courses.
- A course taken to satisfy the major's upper-division required course component may not be counted toward the major's upper-division elective component.

The real estate major requires a minimum of 24 upper-division units in the major be completed at USD.

### Minor Requirements

Code	Title	Units
Required Lower	r-Division Courses	
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3-4
Required Upper	-Division Courses	
REAL 320	Principles of Real Estate	3
REAL 327	Legal Aspects of Real Estate	3
Select one of the	following:	3
REAL 325	Financing Residential Real Estate	
REAL 326	Commercial RE Fin & Investment	
REAL 329	Real Estate Development	
<b>Elective Course</b>	S	
Select one of the	following:	3
REAL 324	Real Estate Market Analysis	
REAL 325	Financing Residential Real Estate	
REAL 326	Commercial RE Fin & Investment	
REAL 328	Commercial Real Estate Valuation	
REAL 494	Special Topics	

### **Minors**

Total Units

Minors are open to all undergraduate students, including students outside the School of Business degree programs. For students majoring in the School of Business, upper-division courses taken in the major may not be counted toward the minor; only the lower-division courses may be used to satisfy courses taken in preparation for a major and core curriculum requirements. For example, students who are majoring in Business Administration and minoring in Management are permitted to use ECON 101 and ACCT 201 in preparation of their Business Administration major and their minor. However, MGMT 300 and a Management elective, required for the Business Administration major, can not be counted for the minor. Rather, two additional Management electives must be taken in order to meet the nine upper-division electives required for the minor. Please check with an advisor about prerequisite courses that are required prior to taking a course listed in one of the minors.

In addition to the specific curriculum requirements for each minor, successful completion of all minors in the School of Business requires: a minimum cumulative GPA of 2.0, a grade of C- or better in all lower division courses courses, and a minimum of six upper division units must be completed at USD, earning a grade of C- or better in each.

### **Accounting Minor**

### Minor Requirements

Code	Title	Unit
Required Lower-l	Division Courses	
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ACCT 202	Principles of Managerial Accounting	3
Required Upper-Division Courses		
ACCT 300	Intermediate Accounting I	3
ACCT 301	Intermediate Accounting II	3

ACCT 302	Cost Accounting	3
<b>Elective Cours</b>	ses	
ACCT upper-d	livision courses	3
Total Units		18

### **Business Analytics Minor**

The Business Analytics Minor

18-19

Code	Title	Units
Required Lower-	Division Courses	
ECON 216	Statistics for Business and Economics	4
ITMG 100	Information Systems	3
Required Upper-	Division Courses	
ECON 385	Business Analytics Strategy	3
or BUSN 385	Business Analytics Strategy	
ECON 386	Big Data and Business	3
or BUSN 386	Big Data and Business	
Required Courses	Total Units	13
<b>Elective Courses</b>		
Select two of the f	following:	6
DSCI 300	Prescriptive Business Analytics	
ECON 370	Applied Econometrics	
ECON 471	Business Cycles and Forecasting	
FINA 409	Financial Modeling and Analytics	
ITMG 320	Database Design and Business Intelligence Implementation	
MKTG 410	Marketing Research	
or MKTG 4	13Marketing Research Abroad	
MKTG 411	Marketing Analytics	
Elective Courses	Total Units	6
Total Units		19

### **Business Administration Minor**

### Minor Requirements

Code	Title	Units
Required Lowe	er-Division Courses	
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3
ECON 102	Principles of Macroeconomics	3
Required Uppe	r-Division Courses	
MGMT 300	Organizational Behavior	3
<b>Elective Course</b>	es	
Any pre-approve	ed upper-division business elective (not ACCT or ECON)	6
Total Units		18

### The Economics Minor

### **Minor Requirements**

Code	Title	Units
Required Course	es	
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3

ECON 102	Principles of Macroeconomics	3
ECON 201	Intermediate Microeconomics <sup>1</sup>	3
ECON 202	Intermediate Macroeconomics <sup>1</sup>	3
<b>Elective Courses</b>		
ECON upper-division electives		6
Total Units		18

An upper-division ECON elective may used to substitute for either ECON 201 or ECON 202, but not both.

### **Entrepreneurship Minor**

In the School of Business entrepreneurship classes, students learn foundational leadership and venture-vetting skills appropriate for starting a new business, advancing in their current company or joining a brand-new business (versus one that's already established).

Throughout the program, students learn to think just like a founder or C-level executive, including how to identify potential socially innovative opportunities, prepare business plans and deal with legal issues. With our close connections to the San Diego business community, students have the opportunity to network with industry leaders both in and outside of the classroom.

Code	Title	Units
Required Lower-Division Courses		
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3-4
Required Upper-	Division Courses	
MGMT 304	Entrepreneurship and New Ventures	3
MGMT 310	Innovation and Design Thinking	3
<b>Elective Courses</b>		
Selection two of th	ne folowing:	6
<b>BUSN 377</b>	Negotiation in a Global Business Environment	
FINA 407	New Venture Finance	
MGMT 302	Family Business	
MGMT 308	Small Business Management	
MGMT 311	Business Leadership	
MGMT 312	Global Social Entrepreneurship	
MKTG 340	Digital Marketing and Social Media	

### **Finance Minor**

**Total Units** 

### Minor Requirements

Code	Title	Units
Required Lowe	r-Division Courses	
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ACCT 202	Principles of Managerial Accounting	3
Required Uppe	r-Division Courses	
FINA 300	Financial Management	3
FINA 402	Investments	3
<b>Elective Course</b>	es	
Select two of the	e following courses:	6
FINA 401	Commercial Bank Management	
FINA 403	Derivatives	

FINA 404	Advanced Corporate Finance	
FINA 405	International Financial Management	
FINA 406	Personal Finance	
FINA 407	New Venture Finance	
FINA 408	Financial Statement Analysis	
FINA 409	Financial Modeling and Analytics	
Total Units		18

# **Information Technology Management Minor**

Whether big or small, business and government entities rely on tech-savvy people with to keep productivity thriving through technology and information systems best practices. In this minor, students learn how to solve business problems using the Internet, databases and programming software. Students can also choose to study digital design and development—including how to build an interactive website or design a mobile app—so they can really stand out in today's 21st century workplace.

### Minor Requirements

18-19

Code	Title	Units
<b>Required Courses</b>		
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3-4
ITMG 100	Information Systems (or equivalent courses)	3
<b>Elective Courses</b>		
Select three of the f	following:	9
ACCT 303	Accounting Information Systems	
ITMG 310	Business & Organizational Application Programming & Development	
ITMG 320	Database Design and Business Intelligence Implementation	
ITMG 330	Electronic Commerce	
ITMG 340	Introduction to Web Site Design	
ITMG 350	Management Information Systems	
ITMG 360	Computer Networks, Security, and Forensics	
ITMG 440	Interactive Mobile and Web Application Development	
ITMG 494	Special Topics	
Select one of the fo	llowing:	3
BSCM 300	Global Purchasing and Supply Management	
BSCM 302	Introduction to Supply Chain Management	
COMM 485W	Writing For Media	
COMP 345	Database Management Systems Design	
COMP 380	Neural Networks	
EOSC 313	Geospatial Information Systems for Organizations	
EOSC 314	Introduction to Maps and Spatial Data Analysis	
MKTG 340	Digital Marketing and Social Media	
MKTG 410	Marketing Research	
MKTG 411	Marketing Analytics	
Total Units		18-19

### **International Business Minor**

### Minor Requirements

Code	Title	Units
Required Lower-	Division Courses	
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3
ECON 102	Principles of Macroeconomics	3
Required Upper-	Division Course	
BUSN 361	Introduction to International Business	3
<b>Elective Courses</b>		
Select two of the f	ollowing:	6
BUSN 339	Latin America Business Environment (BUSN 339 or ECON 339, not both)	
BUSN 377	Negotiation in a Global Business Environment	
ECON 333	International Economics	
ECON 335	Economic Development of Latin America	
ECON 339	Latin America Business Environment (ECON 339 or BUSN 339, not both)	
ECON 337	Economic Development of Asia	
ETLW 313	International Business Law and Ethics	
FINA 405	International Financial Management	
MGMT 309	International Comparative Management	
MGMT 312	Global Social Entrepreneurship	
MGMT 414	International Management Consulting	
MKTG 305	Global Marketing	
or MKTG 30	06Global Marketing Abroad	
7 1 11	ved upper-division international business elective, n-specific international abroad courses.	

Total Units 18

### **Law and Ethics Minor**

A minor in law and ethics gives students a great foundation for understanding the legal, ethical and social responsibility of business. The law and ethics minor is open to every undergraduate at USD. Through case studies and experiential learning, students will master topics like economics, business law and negotiations and will get to practice real-life negotiations common among a variety of different cultures. Students will also have access to skill-building electives like Legal Aspects of Real Estate and Global Social Entrepreneurship.

### Minor Requirements

	<i>1</i>	
Code	Title	Units
Required Lower	-Division Courses	
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3
ECON 102	Principles of Macroeconomics	3
<b>Required Upper</b>	-Division Courses	
BUSN 377	Negotiation in a Global Business Environment	3
Select one of the	following:	3
ETLW 312	Business Law II	
ETLW 313	International Business Law and Ethics	
<b>Elective Courses</b>	S	6
ETLW 302	Business and Society	
ETLW 311	Business Law I	

MGMT 300	Organizational Behavior	
MGMT 301	Organizational Theory and Global Leadership	
MGMT 306	Women in Management	
MGMT 311	Business Leadership	
MGMT 312	Global Social Entrepreneurship	
ECON 308	Environmental and Natural Resource Economics	
ECON 327	Law and Economics	
REAL 327	Legal Aspects of Real Estate	
POLS 321	Constitutional Law and American	
	Government:Federalism and Separation of Powers	
Total Units		18

## **Management Minor**

Managers oversee everything from product development to processes. But any management job is really about managing people. In this minor, students will build a broad foundation in business and leadership skills to help them manage their own set of employees one day. Through case studies and experiential exercises, students will learn how motivation, group dynamics, conflict and other organizational behavior affect employees and their productivity. With electives like Human Resource Management and Small Business Management, students have the opportunity to apply basic training, staffing and compensating concepts to any small-sized company.

### Minor Requirements

Code	Title	Units
Required Lower-	-Division Courses	
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3
Required Upper-	-Division Courses	
MGMT 300	Organizational Behavior	3
MGMT 301	Organizational Theory and Global Leadership	3
<b>Elective Courses</b>		
Select two of the f	following:	6
MGMT 302	Family Business	
MGMT 303	Interpersonal Relations	
MGMT 304	Entrepreneurship and New Ventures	
MGMT 305	Career Development	
MGMT 306	Women in Management	
MGMT 307	Human Resource Management	
MGMT 308	Small Business Management	
MGMT 309	International Comparative Management	
MGMT 310	Innovation and Design Thinking	
MGMT 311	Business Leadership	
MGMT 312	Global Social Entrepreneurship	
MGMT 414	International Management Consulting	
Total Units		18

### **Marketing Minor**

### Minor Requirements

Code	Title	Units
Required Lower	-Division Courses	
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3

ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3
Required Upper-l	Division Courses	
MKTG 300	Fundamentals of Marketing	3
or MKTG 303	Fundamentals of Marketing Abroad	
MKTG 490	Marketing Strategy	3
<b>Elective Courses</b>		
Select two of the fo	ollowing:	6
MKTG 301	Services Marketing	
MKTG 302	Sports Marketing	
MKTG 305	Global Marketing	
or MKTG 30	06Global Marketing Abroad	
MKTG 330	Professional Selling	
MKTG 331	International Business to Business Marketing	
MKTG 340	Digital Marketing and Social Media	
MKTG 350	Advertising and Promotion	
MKTG 351	Advertising Campaigns	
MKTG 355	Introduction to Public Relations	
MKTG 410	Marketing Research	
or MKTG 41	3Marketing Research Abroad	
MKTG 411	Marketing Analytics	
MKTG 420	Consumer Behavior	
MKTG 422	Visual Methods for Exploring Consumer Behavior	
MKTG 435	Business of Healthcare	
MKTG 440	Brand Management	
MKTG 480	Advanced Marketing Project	
MKTG 494	Special Topics	
MKTG 499	Independent Study	
Any pre-approved	elective, which may include a BUSN 498 Internship	
Total Units		18

### **Real Estate Minor**

### Minor Requirements

Code	Title	Unit
Required Lower	-Division Courses	
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3-4
<b>Required Upper</b>	-Division Courses	
REAL 320	Principles of Real Estate	3
REAL 327	Legal Aspects of Real Estate	3
Select one of the	following:	3
REAL 325	Financing Residential Real Estate	
REAL 326	Commercial RE Fin & Investment	
REAL 329	Real Estate Development	
<b>Elective Courses</b>	3	
Select one of the	following:	3
REAL 324	Real Estate Market Analysis	
REAL 325	Financing Residential Real Estate	
REAL 326	Commercial RE Fin & Investment	
REAL 328	Commercial Real Estate Valuation	

REAL 494	Special Topics	
Total Units		18-19

# **Supply Chain Management Minor**

Nearly every product is the result of a complex supply chain. From the moment products are sourced as raw materials to how they ultimately land in our hands, supply chain management professionals are involved every step of the way. In a supply chain management minor, students will learn all the ins and outs of operations from production planning to inventory management and warehousing. Students will also study how to develop and maintain successful supplier relationships both domestically and globally. (Because everyone benefits from a happy supply chain.)

### Minor Requirements

Code	Title	Units
Required Lower-Division Courses		
ACCT 201	Principles of Financial Accounting	3
ACCT 202	Principles of Managerial Accounting	3
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3
Required Upper-Division Courses		
BSCM 300	Global Purchasing and Supply Management	3
BSCM 302	Introduction to Supply Chain Management (only offered once a year during fall semester)	3
<b>Elective Courses</b>		
Select one of the following:		3
BSCM 303	Strategic Cost Management (only offered once a year during spring semester)	
BSCM 305	Sustainable Global Supply Chain Management	
BSCM 494	Special Topics	
ETLW 312	Business Law II	

18

# **School of Business Courses**

#### ACCT 201 | PRINCIPLES OF FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING

Units: 3

**Total Units** 

#### **Core Attributes: First year Integration**

Introduction to accounting records, their purpose and use, emphasizing the establishment of a solid conceptual background. Accounting procedures for specific asset, liability, and owner's equity accounts are also examined from the point of view of users of financial statements.

## ACCT 202 | PRINCIPLES OF MANAGERIAL ACCOUNTING Units: 3

Prerequisites: ACCT 201

Introduction of managerial accounting information for planning, controlling, and making decisions within a firm. Current changes to the business environment and their impact on accounting is also presented.

## ACCT 300 | INTERMEDIATE ACCOUNTING I Units: 3

Prerequisites: ACCT 202 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) Emphasis is placed upon corporate organization with a comprehensive study of current assets; property, plant, and equipment; intangible assets; and current liabilities. Recent developments in accounting theory and their impact on financial reporting are illustrated.

#### **ACCT 301 | INTERMEDIATE ACCOUNTING II**

Units: 3

Prerequisites: ACCT 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

#### **ACCT 302 | COST ACCOUNTING**

Units: 3

Prerequisites: ACCT 202 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) Sources of data and preparation of financial statements in manufacturing organizations are studied. Primary emphasis is on costs for control, decision processes internal to the firm (including standards of performance), relevant costs for decisions, budgets, and capital investment considerations.

#### ACCT 303 | ACCOUNTING INFORMATION SYSTEMS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: ACCT 300 and ACCT 302 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Information requirements and transaction processing procedures relevant to integrated accounting systems. The course emphasizes accounting system design, analysis, and related internal controls.

#### ACCT 306 | FEDERAL TAX ACCOUNTING I

Units: 3

Prerequisites: ACCT 201 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)
Students will learn the fundamentals of federal income tax law from both a theory and practice perspective. Research projects and sample tax returns are used to illustrate course material. This course is designed for anyone needing a background in tax practice, or who would like to take a more active role in their own individual tax planning. Although the course is designed for Business and Accounting majors, upper division students from outside the School of Business Administration are welcome and are encouraged to consult with the instructor for permission to take the course.

#### ACCT 320 | ETHICS FOR ACCOUNTANTS

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Ethical Inquiry area

Prerequisites: ACCT 202 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) Course develops student skills to recognize and apply ethical concepts within accounting and financial reporting engagements. The course covers theoretical foundations of ethical decision making and then shows the application of those ethical foundations to real life situations that accountants might encounter. Understanding the overall ethical responsibilities accountants have to protect the public interest is emphasized.

#### ACCT 401 | ADVANCED ACCOUNTING

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency

Prerequisites: ACCT 301 (Can be taken Concurrently) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150)

Accounting and reporting for business combinations, foreign currency transactions, partnerships, and not-for-profit organizations such as governments, charities, universities, and hospitals.

#### **ACCT 407 | FEDERAL TAX ACCOUNTING II**

Units: 3

Prerequisites: ACCT 300 and ACCT 306 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Study of special tax considerations pertaining to corporations and partnerships. Practice tax returns are used to illustrate the course material.

#### ACCT 408 | AUDITING

Units: 3

Prerequisites: ACCT 301 and ACCT 303 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Intensive introduction to the attest function in society today. The environment, the process, and the report of the public auditor are analyzed. Potential extensions of the attest function are examined.

# ACCT 425 | FINANCIAL STATEMENT ANALYSIS FOR ACCOUNTANTS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ACCT 300 and FINA 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course develops a set of core skills essential to financial statement analysis. It covers strategic ratio analysis, cash flow analysis, pro forma financial statements, financial modeling and firm valuation using discounted cash flow and residual income models, with an emphasis on practical applications. (Note: Only students in the BACC/MACC/MTAX programs are eligible to register. Permission to register must be approved by the Academic Director of Graduate Accountancy Programs.).

# ACCT 430 | INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND REPORTING

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ACCT 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

The study of international accounting issues is crucial for effective interpretation and analysis of financial information from companies located around the world. This course adopts a twofold approach. First, the course examines diverse financial reporting practices with an emphasis on the underlying cultural, political, institutional and economic factors. Highlighting a user's perspective, the course then develops a financial statement analysis framework for comparing published financial information of non-U.S. companies. Combining these two approaches will enable students to prepare comparative case analyses based on a country context. (Note: Only students in the BACC/MACC/MTAX programs are eligible to register. Permission to register must be approved by the Academic Director of Graduate Accountancy Programs.).

# ACCT 431 | APPLIED RESEARCH FOR FINANCIAL ACCOUNTANTS AND AUDITORS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ACCT 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Applied research skills are essential for practicing financial accountants and auditors. This course focuses on helping professional accountants acquire applied research skills that will enable them to access relevant professional guidance, to understand it and to apply it. Case analyses will be performed by students using the Internet and other relevant research materials. Students will prepare case analysis based upon their research and will present their results in oral presentations and in professional write-ups. Research on relevant ethical issues in the profession will be a critical part of the cases examined in the course. (Note: Only students in the BACC/MACC/MTAX programs are eligible to register. Permission to register must be approved by the Academic Director of Graduate Accountancy Programs.).

# ACCT 440 | CONTROLLERSHIP AND STRATEGIC COST MANAGEMENT

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ACCT 302 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) This course will focus on current controllership and strategic cost management topics. Topics to be studied include activity based costing, balanced scorecard, benchmarking and management control systems. Teaching methods include lecture or discussions, case studies and presentations. Development of appropriate values and ethics needed by company controllers is included in the course. (Note: Only students in the BACC/MACC/MTAX programs are eligible to register. Permission to register must be approved by the Academic Director of Graduate Accountancy Programs.).

#### ACCT 460 | TAX RESEARCH

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ACCT 306 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course examines research methods used for Federal taxation. Topics include ethics, tax research methodology, primary sources of law, secondary sources of law and tax practice. Students will use electronic databases and other library resources to research fact patterns in groups and present their findings to the class. In addition, students are expected to do the necessary background reading and take related tests on the topics studied. (Note: Only students in the BACC/MACC/MTAX programs are eligible to register. Permission to register must be approved by the Academic Director of Graduate Accountancy Programs.).

#### **ACCT 461 | PARTNERSHIP TAXATION**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ACCT 407 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course examines tax reporting for non-corporate entities including partnerships, limited liability companies (LLCs) and limited liability partnerships (LLPs) and the taxation of entity owners. Students who complete this course will: (1) understand common partnership, LLC angle terminology, (2) know how and where to research on-corporate tax issues, (3) learn to prepare and review common non-corporate entity tax reports, (4) develop skills in communicating tax issues and answers to clients, (5)understand non-corporate tax planning techniques, (6)understand how to creatively structure transactions consistent with current tax laws and (7) understand how the California Board of Accountancy Ethics requirements apply to taxation issues. Problem based learning (practice problems, cases and examples) will provide the core methods of classroom instruction. (Note: Only students in the BACC/MACC/MTAX programs are eligible to register. Permission to register must be approved by the Academic Director of Graduate Accountancy Programs.).

# ACCT 462 | ESTATE AND GIFT TAXATION AND PLANNING Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ACCT 306 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course examines the details of three Federal transfer taxes: the estate tax, gift tax and generation skipping tax. Topics will include transfers subject to the gift tax, valuation of gifts, gift tax exclusion, gift splitting, the gross estate, deductions for transfer taxes, life insurance subject to estate tax and the determination and payment of the three taxes. Students will be expected to prepare estate and gift tax returns, research issues related to these transfer taxes and present topics to the class. (Note: Only students in the BACC/MACC/MTAX programs are eligible to register. Permission to register must be approved by the Academic Director of Graduate Accountancy Programs.).

# ACCT 464 | ADVANCED CORPORATE TAXATION Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ACCT 407 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course uses case studies to review corporate formations, corporate operations, corporate distributions, and S corporations. Following this review, the course examines advanced topics, including consolidated tax returns, corporate reorganizations, net operating loss limitations, and financial statement tax provisions. Students will learn the supporting law for these topics as well as practical applications similar to situations encountered within public and private corporations and within public accounting firms tax departments. (Note: Only students in the BACC/MACC/MTAX programs are eligible to register. Permission to register must be approved by the Academic Director of Graduate Accountancy Programs.).

# ACCT 480 | INTERNATIONAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ACCT 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

## ACCT 481 | EUROPEAN ACCOUNTING BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ACCT 300 and ACCT 480 (Can be taken Concurrently) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

#### **ACCT 492 | TAX CONSULTING SIMULATION**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Course focuses on understanding tax consulting fundamentals, ability to research tax questions, ability to develop tax planning alternatives using business cases, and ability to communicate tax strategies to clients orally and in writing. The course concludes with participation in a large, CPA firm sponsored tax competition. Instructor's permission required to enroll in this class.

#### **ACCT 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151

Topics of current interest in accounting. Course content and structure will differ depending on instructor. Consult your advisor for course description for any given semester. May be repeated once for credit.

#### **ACCT 498 | INTERNSHIP**

#### Units: 1-3

Prerequisites: MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151

Experiential learning working in a business, government, or nonprofit organization. Placements provide the opportunity for practical application of accounting, business, and economics principles. Placement must emphasize accounting field. See schedule of classes for special meeting times. This course may not be repeated for credit.

#### **ACCT 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY**

#### Units: 1-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151

Independent study including empirical research and written reports. A maximum of 3 units of independent study may be used to satisfy requirements for the major.

# BSCM 300 | GLOBAL PURCHASING AND SUPPLY MANAGEMENT Units: 3

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Emphasis on developing and maintaining successful supplier relationships in recognition of their critical importance to organizations. Systematic coverage of the process: strategic make vs. buy and outsourcing decisions; ethics and social responsibility; development of requirements; source selection; price determination and negotiation; quality management; supplier development; and relationship management. Combination of lectures, case studies and class discussions.

### BSCM 302 | INTRODUCTION TO SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT Units: 3

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Emphasis on the tactical and strategic decisions that match supply to demand. Topics covered include forecasting and evaluating customer demand, design and operation of distribution systems, and integration of operations and purchasing activities to deliver customer value. Overview of strategic supply chain design and the integration of internal and external partners. The roles of marketing, finance, engineering, purchasing and operations in the supply chain are examined. Combination of lecture, seminar, and case discussions.

# BSCM 303 | STRATEGIC COST MANAGEMENT Units: 3

Prerequisites: ACCT 202 and BSCM 300 (Can be taken Concurrently) and ECON 101 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course introduces and provides students an opportunity to apply modern cost management concepts, principles, and techniques in the supply chain management setting. Topics covered include an overview of manufacturing costs and cost-volume-profit analysis, activity-based management and activity-based costing, risk/opportunity costs and contract compensation agreements, and performance measurement. Additional topics include Total Cost of Ownership (TCO) analysis, net present value/return on investment analyses, outsourcing/make or buy analysis, and financial statement analysis as it relates to sourcing decisions.

# BSCM 305 | SUSTAINABLE GLOBAL SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Undergraduate Research

The increasing globalization of suppliers and customers has focused concern on issues of sustainable and socially responsible management across global supply chains. In this course, we explore the main risks, opportunities and practices we now see in global supply chain management relating to both conceptual and practical perspectives on sustainable practice. Mastery of subject matter will be developed through academic and applied research, and demonstrated by expository writing leading to production of a publishable quality final paper.

#### **BSCM 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS**

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Topics of current interest in supply chain management. Course content and structure will differ depending on instructor. Consult your advisor for course description for any given semester. May be repeated once for credit.

#### BSCM 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Independent study including empirical research and written reports. A maximum of 3 units of independent study may be used to satisfy requirements for the major.

#### **BUSN 294 | TOPICS**

**Units: 1-4** 

#### **BUSN 299 | INDEPENDENT STUDY**

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Independent study including empirical research and written reports. Approval is required by instructor, department chair and dean.

# BUSN 309 | LGBTQ IN BUSINESS AND ECONOMICS Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 101 and ECON 102 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150) This course is an examination of the effects of heteronormativity on the economic outcomes of the LGBTQ population. Topics examined will include the demographics of the LGBTQ population, LGBTQ in the workplace, marketing to the LGBTQ population, the formation of "Gay" neighborhoods, and public finance issues related to the LGBTQ population (tax treatment, impact of gay marriage).

# BUSN 339 | LATIN AMERICA BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 102 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course is designed to prepare participants to work effectively in or with Latin America organizations by providing an understanding of the issues, opportunities, and complexities associated with doing business in the region. The focus is on the cultural, historical, economic, social, political and business environments in Latin America and on the activities of companies operating in Latin America, both foreign and domestic. Successful Latin American companies competing internationally will also be an aspect of the course. Upon successful completion of the course, students will possess an awareness of the business and economic environments in Latin America, and be able to demonstrate analytical and strategic thinking skills that reflect an understanding of the competitive environment in which local and foreign companies operate in Latin America.

### BUSN 361 | INTRODUCTION TO INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151

An introduction to the international dimension of doing business. The purpose of this course is to make the student aware of the role played by culture, geography, government, and economics in shaping the environment in which businesses operate internationally. Topics include forward currency markets, foreign direct investment, negotiation, international distribution, etc.

# BUSN 377 | NEGOTIATION IN A GLOBAL BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151

In an increasingly interdependent world, the ability to negotiate with people with diverse socio-cultural backgrounds and in different regions of the world is crucial for managers and leaders. This course offers skills and knowledge for becoming an effective negotiator through lecture, class discussion, and experimental exercises. This course includes several negotiation simulations and exercises that incorporate cross-cultural and international components.

#### **BUSN 383 | PROJECT MANAGEMENT**

Units: 3

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150)

#### **BUSN 385 | BUSINESS ANALYTICS STRATEGY**

**Units: 3 Repeatability: No** 

Prerequisites: ITMG 100 and (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150)

Analytics is the process of transforming data into insight in order to make better informed decisions. Understanding and interpreting data has become an even more integral part of understanding social interactions and behavior since the advent of big data and automated extraction. Accordingly, this lab-style course will provide a solid foundation for understanding data science and analytics problems in the context of modern big data methodology, philosophy, and application to business problems. Topics include, but are not limited to, database & repository management; scripting & automation; scraping, cleaning, and harmonizing data; exploratory analysis & data visualizations, documentation & reproducibility, ethics & client interactions, practical machine learning algorithms (ranging from multiple linear regression to neural networks and support vector machines), and regularization, generalization, and validation. By the end of the course, you will be able to extract, clean, and harmonize data to use in a predictive algorithm that you will be able to build yourself as part of a data product application.

#### BUSN 386 | BIG DATA AND BUSINESS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ITMG 100 and (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150)

Analytics is the process of transforming data into insight in order to make better informed decisions. Understanding and interpreting data has become an even more integral part of understanding social interactions and behavior since the advent of big data and automated extraction. Accordingly, this lab-style course will provide a solid foundation for understanding data science and analytics problems in the context of modern big data methodology, philosophy, and application to business problems. Topics include, but are not limited to, database & repository management; scripting & automation; scraping, cleaning, and harmonizing data; exploratory analysis & data visualizations, documentation & reproducibility, ethics & client interactions, practical machine learning algorithms (ranging from multiple linear regression to neural networks and support vector machines), and regularization, generalization, and validation. By the end of the course, you will be able to extract, clean, and harmonize data to use in a predictive algorithm that you will be able to build yourself as part of a data product application.

#### **BUSN 401 | BUSINESS COMMUNICATION**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150)

Analysis of the factors involved in planning, organizing, and writing in the business environment. Extensive practice in presenting effective letters, memoranda, and business reports using primary and secondary sources.

#### BUSN 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS

**Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

Prerequisites: MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151

#### **BUSN 498 | INTERNSHIP**

**Units: 1-3** 

Prerequisites: MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151

Experiential learning working in a business, government, or nonprofit organization. Placements provide the opportunity for practical application of business, economics, and accounting principles. See schedule of classes for special meeting times. This course may not be repeated for credit.

#### **BUSN 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY**

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151

Independent study including empirical research and written reports. A maximum of three units of independent study may be used to satisfy requirements for the major.

#### DSCI 300 | PRESCRIPTIVE BUSINESS ANALYTICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ITMG 100 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) and (ECON 216 or ECON 217)

Prescriptive business analytics focuses on helping decision makers solve complex business problems. Students develop skills necessary to define, analyze, and solve problems in all areas of business including operations, marketing, and finance. Students utilize spreadsheets to model, analyze, and develop solution alternatives for a variety of business problems. Among the tools students utilize are modeling, influence diagrams, decision trees, Monte Carlo simulation, optimization techniques, and sensitivity analysis. (Note: ECON 217, not ECON 216, may be taken concurrently if it is taken during the fall or spring semester, and it is the first attempt in ECON 217. If the first attempt in ECON 217 is unsuccessful then ECON 217 cannot be taken concurrently.).

#### **DSCI 303 | OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: DSCI 300 and (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Students employ a managerial perspective to develop a strategic view of operations and supply chain management in a wide range of contemporary contexts (with a primary focus on process management within and across organizations). Students develop critical skills and master material relating to the fundamental role played by operations in the competitive performance of an organization. Among the critical skills and areas of mastery students develop are process analysis, process design, process improvement, supply chain management, capacity planning & control, inventory management, quality planning, quality control, strategic improvement techniques and risk management. The course incorporates concerns for corporate social responsibility.

#### DSCI 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151

Topics of current interest in business administration. Course content and structure will differ depending on instructor. Consult your advisor for course description for any given semester. May be repeated once for credit.

#### **DSCI 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY**

**Units: 1-3** 

Prerequisites: MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151

Independent study including empirical research and written reports. A maximum of 3 units of independent study may be used to satisfy requirements for the major.

#### ECON 101 | PRINCIPLES OF MICROECONOMICS

Units: 3-4 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: First year Integration, Social/Behavioral Inquiry area

An introduction to consumer behavior and the theory of the firm. Topics include the demand behavior of households, the supply behavior of business firms, an introduction to market structure, market equilibrium, market failures, the workings of input markets, international trade and the role of the government in the economy.

#### ECON 102 | PRINCIPLES OF MACROECONOMICS

Units: 3

Core Attributes: Social/Behavioral Inquiry area

Prerequisites: ECON 101

The study of the operation of the American economy in an international setting, examining the interaction of households, business firms, government, and the rest of the world in resource, product, and financial markets. Topics include national income accounting and analysis, business fluctuations, inflation, unemployment, and monetary and fiscal policy.

#### ECON 201 | INTERMEDIATE MICROECONOMICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 101 and (MATH 130 (Can be taken Concurrently) or MATH 150 (Can be taken Concurrently) or MATH 151 (Can be taken Concurrently))

The economic theory of demand, production, product and input markets, welfare, and general equilibrium. Applications of price theory, including its use in evaluating and forming public policy.

#### ECON 202 | INTERMEDIATE MACROECONOMICS

**Units: 2-3** 

Prerequisites: ECON 102

Examines the causes of fluctuations in important national economic variables, such as aggregate output, interest rates, the rate of inflation, the rate of unemployment, and exchange rates. Investigates the feasibility of stabilizing the economy through the use of fiscal and monetary policy.

## ECON 216 | STATISTICS FOR BUSINESS AND ECONOMICS Units: 4

Core Attributes: Quantitative reasoning comp

Prerequisites: MATH 130 or MATH 150

A systematic exposure to the issues and problems of applying and interpreting statistical analyses of business situations. Topics include descriptive statistics, probability, random variables and their distributions, statistical inference, multiple regression and residual analysis, correlation, classical time-series models, and forecasting. Extensive computer analysis of data.

#### ECON 217 | APPLIED REGRESSION ANALYSIS

Units: 1 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Quantitative reasoning comp** 

Prerequisites: MATH 130 or MATH 150

A course in applied regression analysis with applications to Business and Economics. Emphasis on simple and multiple regression modeling and interpretation of results. Topics include a review of hypothesis testing for means and proportions; correlation; simple and multiple regression analysis including linear and non-linear models, residual analysis, the use of categorical variables, time series analysis, and forecasting. Extensive computer analysis of data, especially using Microsoft Excel.

#### ECON 294 | MACRO GLOBAL ISSUES

**Units: 1-3** 

#### **ECON 302 | PUBLIC FINANCE**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 102 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

An introduction to public sector economics, concentrating on the revenues and expenditures of federal, state, and local governments. Topics include public goods, externalities, voting theory, cost benefit analysis, and the study of taxation and government transfer programs.

#### **ECON 304 | URBAN ECONOMICS**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 101 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

The application of economic analysis to urban and regional areas. Topics include the theory underlying urbanization and the location of economic activity, the methodology utilized to analyze urban and regional economies, and problems and policies related to urban areas, such as housing, poverty, transportation, and local public finance. Special attention will be given to the San Diego metropolitan area.

#### ECON 308 | ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL RESOURCE **ECONOMICS**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 101 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) An analysis of the economic principles that underlie the allocation, pricing, and use of natural resources. Topics include the intertemporal allocation of depletable resources, the economics of fisheries and forestry, issues in the distribution and use of water resources, the economics of recycling and waste disposal, and economic perspectives on global warming and ozone depletion.

#### ECON 309 | LGBTQ IN BUSINESS AND ECONOMICS Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 101 and ECON 102 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150) This course is an examination of the effects of heteronormativity on the economic outcomes of the LGBTQ population. Topics examined will include the demographics of the LGBTQ population, LGBTQ in the workplace, marketing to the LGBTQ population, the formation of "Gay" neighborhoods, and public finance issues related to the LGBTQ population (tax treatment, impact of gay marriage).

#### ECON 310 | MONEY AND BANKING

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 102 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) A study of the structure, regulation, and performance of the banking industry in the United States, focusing on the strategy and procedures of the Federal Reserve System. Examines the problems encountered by the Federal Reserve System in trying to achieve its goals.

#### **ECON 322 | LABOR ECONOMICS**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 101 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) An analysis of the operation of labor markets focusing on the market system for wage determination. Topics include the supply and demand for labor, wage determination under various market structures, human capital formation, discrimination in labor markets, collective bargaining and the structure of pay, unemployment, and wage inflation.

#### **ECON 327 | LAW AND ECONOMICS**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 101 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

The application of economic methodology to the principal areas of law: property, contracts, torts, and crime. The microeconomic concepts of maximization, equilibrium, and efficiency are used to examine the consequences of existing and proposed laws and legal institutions. Topics include the economic analysis of property rights, ownership solutions to environmental problems, the economics of various contract designs, and the efficiency of tort liability rules.

#### **ECON 333 | INTERNATIONAL ECONOMICS**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 102 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

The theory, practice, and institutions of the international economy. Topics include international trade and investment, balance of payments, foreign exchange rate determination, multinational enterprises, trade with developing countries, and international economic policy.

#### ECON 335 | ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT OF LATIN AMERICA Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 101 and ECON 102 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

An analysis of the determinants of economic development and growth in developing countries in general and Latin America in particular, along with associated problems and policies. Topics include theories and policies concerning population, income distribution, education, capital formation, finance, agriculture, industry, trade, and economic planning. Prerequisites: ECON 101 and ECON 102 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151).

#### ECON 337 | ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT OF ASIA

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 101 and ECON 102 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

An analysis of the determinants of economic development and growth in Asia and the Pacific Rim, along with associated problems and policies. Topics include theories and policies concerning population, income distribution, industry, agriculture, domestic savings and investment, human resources, international trade, foreign capital, and external debt.

### ECON 339 | LATIN AMERICA BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 101 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) This course is designed to prepare participants to work effectively in or with Latin American organizations by providing an understanding of the issues, opportunities, and complexities associated with doing business in the region. The focus is on the cultural, historical, economic, social, political and business environments in Latin America and on the activities of companies operating in Latin America, both foreign and domestic. Successful Latin American companies competing internationally will also be an aspect of the course. Upon successful completion of the course, students will possess an awareness of the business and economic environments in Latin America, and be able to demonstrate analytical and strategic thinking skills that reflect an understanding of the competitive environment in which local and foreign companies operate in Latin America.

#### ECON 340 | BEHAVIORAL ECONOMICS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 102 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) Examines models in which standard economic rationality assumptions are combined with evidence from psychology to predict behavior. Topics include prospect theory, biases in judgment, fairness, altruism, bounded rationality, and the use of heuristics in decision making.

#### **ECON 353 | SPORTS ECONOMICS**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 101 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) The application of economic principles to analyze a wide range of issues in professional sports and collegiate athletics. Principles from the economics of labor markets, industrial organization, and public finance are applied to the analysis of sports issues. Issues discussed include league formats, rival leagues, franchise relocation and venue location, player salaries, free agency, salary caps, arbitration, player development, discrimination, NCAA rules on scholarships and eligibility, financial aspects of collegiate athletic programs, revenues from merchandising and broadcast rights, and economic impact analysis of sports teams on a local community.

#### **ECON 370 | APPLIED ECONOMETRICS**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 201 and ECON 202 and (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

A hands-on experience in econometric analysis designed to help students to acquire the skills necessary to carry out their own empirical research in economics. Various aspects of empirical research in economics will be covered, including development of testable economic models, appropriate use of data, and specification and estimation of econometric models. Topics covered include: Ordinary Least Squares (OLS) applied to simple and multiple regression models, hypothesis testing, proper specification of models, multicollinearity, heteroskedasticity, serial correlation, cross sectional and time series models, binary-choice models, simultaneous equation models, panel data analysis, and forecasting. This course focuses on the development of practical skills associated with constructing regression equations that describe data sets appropriately, and providing economic interpretations to the results. The course includes hands-on laboratory assignments using Stata software. (Note: normally offered only during fall semester).

#### **ECON 375 | GAME THEORY**

#### Units: 2-3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 101 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) Develops a conceptual framework to understand strategic behavior in economics and business environments and examines models of strategic thinking in interactive situations. Analyzes how to represent strategic situations as games and develops basic solution concepts to predict their outcomes. Topics include the use of credible threats and promises, repeated games, backward induction, strategic use of information through signaling, and bidding in auctions.

# ECON 376 | APPLICATIONS OF GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS (GIS)

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ITMG 100 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) An introduction to geospatial, or geographic, information systems (GIS) applied to organizational and environmental decision-making applications. The course provides background knowledge to identify spatial characteristics of many decision-making situations and to integrate spatial thinking and GIS analysis into the student's academic studies and career. The course includes hands-on laboratory tutorials and projects using ArcGIS 10 desktop GIS software.

### ECON 385 | BUSINESS ANALYTICS STRATEGY

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ITMG 100 and (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150)

Business analytics refers to the ways in which enterprises such as businesses, non-profits, and governments can use data to gain insights and make better decisions. The ability to use data effectively to drive rapid, precise and profitable decisions has been a critical strategic advantage for many companies. In this course we will examine how managers and other stakeholders can apply advanced statistical techniques and tools that are central to the analysis of structured data that is used in business decision making. Data visualization and exploratory analysis will be emphasized as a key first step in the analytics process. Students will go through the process of identifying the data needs of a company, identifying key questions, identifying and exploring data sources to address these needs & questions, study design, strategy for implementation of study design, and communication of results. Special emphasis will be on communicating and translating analytic information into actionable business intelligence. Students will explore a variety of industry sectors (business, financial, technology, healthcare, sports, social innovation/ "big data for social good", social media).

#### ECON 386 | BIG DATA AND BUSINESS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ITMG 100 and (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150)

Analytics is the process of transforming data into insight in order to make better informed decisions. Understanding and interpreting data has become an even more integral part of understanding social interactions and behavior since the advent of big data and automated extraction. Accordingly, this lab-style course will provide a solid foundation for understanding data science and analytics problems in the context of modern big data methodology, philosophy, and application to business problems. Topics include, but are not limited to, database & repository management; scripting & automation; scraping, cleaning, and harmonizing data; exploratory analysis & data visualizations, documentation & reproducibility, ethics & client interactions, practical machine learning algorithms (ranging from multiple linear regression to neural networks and support vector machines), and regularization, generalization, and validation. By the end of the course, you will be able to extract, clean, and harmonize data to use in a predictive algorithm that you will be able to build yourself as part of a data product application.

#### **ECON 414 | INVESTMENT ECONOMICS**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 102 and (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

An overview of the economic foundations of modern finance, including individual preferences and decision-making in the face of uncertainty, how investors apply this decision-making framework to choose a portfolio of assets (Markowitz Portfolio Theory), the equilibrium pricing implications of these decisions (CAPM, Arbitrage Pricing Theory, Derivatives), and the role of asset prices and financial markets in the wider macroeconomy.

#### **ECON 424 | INDUSTRIAL ORGANIZATION**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 102 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) Combing microeconomic theory, game theory, and empirical results to explore the relationships among firms within and across industries and to examine the nature of strategic interaction among firms. The focus is on the structure and performance of markets that are imperfectly competitive, including entry deterrence strategies and barriers to entry, vertical control, market segmentation and price discrimination, mergers and acquisition, price and non-competition, and market equilibria with incomplete information.

### ECON 471 | BUSINESS CYCLES AND FORECASTING

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 102 and (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Examines the business cycle and techniques for forecasting fluctuations. The emphasis of the course is to gain hands-on exposure to specific business forecasting techniques and learn to apply them to limit the range of uncertainty in management decision making. Specific techniques covered include lead-lag, exponential smoothing, and econometric and ARIMA (Box-Jenkins) time series analysis.

#### **ECON 473 | MANAGERIAL ECONOMICS**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 102 and (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

The application of analytical techniques and economic principles to analyze typical problems encountered by managers. Topics include risk analysis, demand analysis and estimation using multiple regression analysis, sales forecasting, production analysis, cost estimation, pricing decisions, game theory, market structure and capital budgeting. (Note: offered only during the spring semester).

#### ECON 480 | MATHEMATICAL ECONOMICS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 102 and MATH 150

An introduction to mathematical techniques used to analyze economic problems to gain a deeper understanding of economic decision making through the use of mathematical models. Topics include comparative statistics, optimization problems, dynamics, and mathematical programming. Mathematical techniques covered include matrix algebra, differential and integral calculus, differential equations, and difference equations.

#### **ECON 490 | SENIOR SEMINAR**

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Advanced Integration, Oral communication competency

Prerequisites: ECON 201 and ECON 202 and ECON 370 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This "capstone" course is designed to enhance research, critical thinking, and analytical skills for students majoring in economics and business economics. Students will use quantitative tools and the theoretical foundations learned in prior economic courses to analyze current economic problems and social issues. Requires integrating a variety of tools and techniques from economics, quantitative reasoning, critical thinking and information literacy, and social and behavioral inquiry to empirically test and provide implications about self-selected research questions. Students will sharpen their oral presentation, writing and technical analytical skills as they work on individual research and discussion topics, culminating in a final Economics research paper and presentation. (Prerequisite note: Last semester senior standing).

#### **ECON 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS**

#### Units: 1-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: ECON 102 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) Topics of current interest in economics. Course content and structure will differ depending on instructor. Consult your advisor for course description for any given semester. May be repeated once for credit.

#### **ECON 498 | INTERNSHIP**

#### **Units: 1-3**

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150)

Experiential learning working in a business, government, or nonprofit organization. Placements provide the opportunity for practical application of economics, business, and accounting principles. Placement must emphasize economics field. See schedule of classes for special meeting times. This course may not be repeated for credit.

#### **ECON 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY**

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Study of economic theory and public policy through selective readings and research. A maximum of 3 units of independent study may be used to satisfy requirements for the major.

#### ETLW 302 | BUSINESS AND SOCIETY

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Ethical Inquiry area

Prerequisites: MATH 130 or MATH 150

This course examines principles of social responsibility, ethics, law, and stakeholder theory as they apply to organizations domestically and abroad. Coverage includes business ethics; individual versus societal interests; labor and employment issues; consumer protection; discrimination and diversity; the natural environment; politics, public policy, and government regulation of business. Particular attention is given to developing moral reasoning skills. Meets the requirements for the Environmental Studies minor.

#### ETLW 311 | BUSINESS LAW I

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Covers the fundamentals of United States law and legal system, relationship of law to ethics, criminal law, torts, contracts, agency, risk management, insurance, and hiring and managing an attorney. Special emphasis is given to preventing legal problems and resolving conflicts in business for business practitioners. Systems and methods of dispute resolution are considered, including negotiation, mediation, arbitration, and the U.S. judicial system, including small claims court.

#### ETLW 312 | BUSINESS LAW II

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: ETLW 311 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) Continued study of the legal environment of business, including such topics as creation, operation, and termination of partnerships and corporations, sale of goods, and negotiable instruments. Case study.

# ETLW 313 | INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS LAW AND ETHICS Units: 3

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Global issues permeate the business environment. As international business transactions increase, so does the need for an understanding of how international law governs such transactions. What does the international legal system look like? What international institutions come into play and what is their role? What law applies and how is it enforced? How do businesses conduct themselves in the global marketplace, and how should they? This course will explore these issues and more, including various ways in which ethical, cultural, and political forces influence international business. Teaching methods include lecture, case studies, class discussion and debate.

#### ETLW 403 | ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course analyzes the effect of business activities on the environment. Environmental public policies are examined, as well as selected corporate environmental policies. The course addresses a myriad of questions, such as: Is there an inherent conflict between business profits and environmental protection? Can humans conduct business without harming the environment? What are the environmental consequences if the developing world reaches the same level of consumption as the developed world? Should the developed world reduce its level of consumption? Does the developed world have an obligation to the undeveloped world? If so, what is it? What is the meaning of sustainable economic growth? How is sustainable economic growth achieved? Meets the requirements for the Environmental Studies minor.

#### ETLW 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Topics of current interest in business administration. Course content and structure will differ depending on instructor. Consult your advisor for course description for any given semester. May be repeated once for credit.

#### ETLW 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Independent study including empirical research and written reports. A maximum of 3 units of independent study may be used to satisfy requirements for the major.

#### FINA 294 | FINANCE ELECTIVE

Units: 3

#### FINA 300 | FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ACCT 201 and ECON 101 and (ECON 216 (Can be taken Concurrently) or ECON 217 (Can be taken Concurrently)) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course is an introduction to the fundamental principles that guide the financial manager in making asset management, valuation and financing decisions. Topics include ratio analysis, time value of money, stock and bond valuation, risk and return (CAPM), capital budgeting, financial planning, cost of capital and options. (Note: ECON 216 or ECON 217 may not be taken concurrently during intersession or summer sessions. ECON 216 or ECON 217 may be taken concurrently if it is taken during the fall or spring semester, and it is the first attempt in ECON 216 or ECON 217. If the first attempt in ECON 216 or ECON 217 cannot be taken concurrently.).

#### FINA 401 | COMMERCIAL BANK MANAGEMENT

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: FINA 300 and (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course examines operating and policy issues bankers face in their efforts to maximize shareholder value. Topics include evaluating bank performance, measuring and controlling risks, managing the loan portfolio, and liability and capital management. Recent industry trends and the interaction between financial institutions and the economy are studied.

#### FINA 402 | INVESTMENTS

#### Units: 2-3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: FINA 300 and (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course surveys the basic principles and techniques of security and investment analysis. It covers capital markets, stocks, fixed-income portfolios, options, futures contracts and other derivatives. Market analysis methods are examined, and sources of analytical information and their use are studied.

#### FINA 403 | DERIVATIVES

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: FINA 300 and FINA 402 and (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course is an introduction to derivative security markets including call and put options, futures and forward contracts, and swaps. Topics include the economic role of derivatives, valuation of derivatives, derivative trading strategies and the management of corporate risk with derivatives. The aim of the course is for students to gain proficiency in the use and valuation of a variety of derivative products.

#### FINA 404 | ADVANCED CORPORATE FINANCE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: FINA 300 and (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

The objective of this course is to apply financial management concepts to business situations through the use of case studies. The course will enhance your understanding of corporate finance topics, such as, valuation, capital budgeting, risk and return, cost of capital, capital structure, dividend policy and mergers. The focus of the course is on applied and analytical financial decision making and will require written case reports and the presentation of case analyses.

# FINA 405 | INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: FINA 300 and (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

An introduction to the problems facing the financial management of international companies. Topics include foreign exchange exposure management, financing trade, foreign direct investments, international accounting and control, and working capital management.

#### FINA 406 | PERSONAL FINANCE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: FINA 300 and (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course will cover the financial planning, taxation and regulatory aspects of an individual's lifelong saving, borrowing and investment decisions. The course will educate persons in making informed financial choices over their working careers. The topics include – credit management, credit scores, tax planning, consumer loans, home purchase and mortgage financing, property, life and health insurance, mutual funds, stock and bond investing, IRAs, 401k plans, retirement and estate planning.

#### FINA 407 | NEW VENTURE FINANCE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: FINA 300 and (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course is based on experiential learning and presents a comprehensive stage-sensitive approach to entrepreneurial finance. The course is designed for students to perform real-world financial analyses and make financial decisions for a company throughout its venture life cycle, from the founding of a company to its liquidity event for its investors. The course is constructed as a combination of lectures, project workshops, and discussions based on five key entrepreneurial financial decision areas-the founders agreement, planning and financing of operations, forecasting growth financing, venture capital financing, and the liquidity event for investors.

#### FINA 408 | FINANCIAL STATEMENT ANALYSIS

### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### **Core Attributes: Other**

Prerequisites: FINA 300 and (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course develops a set of core skills essential to financial statement analysis. It covers strategic ratio analysis, cash flow analysis, pro forma financial statements, financial modeling and firm valuation using discounted cash flow and residual income models, with an emphasis on practical applications.

#### FINA 409 | FINANCIAL MODELING AND ANALYTICS

#### **Units: 3 Repeatability: No**

Prerequisites: FINA 300 and (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course covers financial modeling techniques applied to optimal decision making in the areas of corporate finance and investment banking. Topics include the construction of comprehensive valuation models, using precedent transactions and comparable companies in valuation, strategic industry analysis, and mergers and acquisitions.

#### FINA 410 | STUDENT MANAGED INVESTMENT FUND

#### Units: 1 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

In this course students make recommendations for an investment portfolio with actual money. The purpose of the course is to enable students to put into practice investment concepts and to expose students to the psychology and mechanics of investment decisions.

#### FINA 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Topics of current interest in Finance and capital markets. Course content and structure will differ depending on instructor. Consult your advisor for course description for any given semester. May be repeated once for credit.

#### FINA 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Independent study including empirical research and written reports. A maximum of 3 units of independent study may be used to satisfy requirements for the major.

#### ITMG 100 | INFORMATION SYSTEMS

Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: First year Integration**

An introductory course on how technology and information systems impact business organizations. In addition to learning business information systems best practice you learn each of the four Microsoft Office (Excel, Access, Word and PowerPoint) software applications and be able to apply them successfully to problem solving scenarios. This course will also prepare you to take the Microsoft Office Specialist Certification in Excel.

# ITMG 310 | BUSINESS & ORGANIZATIONAL APPLICATION PROGRAMMING & DEVELOPMENT

Units: 3

Prerequisites: ITMG 100 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) The study of advanced methods and techniques in decision support application development using spreadsheet, database, and visual programming software. The course enables students to solve business problems by integrating tools including spreadsheets, database, programming languages, and the Internet. The course stresses development of complete, turnkey systems with programming facilities available in decision support software programs. Heavy emphasis is placed on developing programming skills for business and organizational applications.

# ITMG 320 | DATABASE DESIGN AND BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE IMPLEMENTATION

Units: 3

Prerequisites: ITMG 100 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) The theory and practice of designing and modifying database management information systems for the use of business intelligence implementation. Topics include: best practices in data modeling, data normalization, and database design; database implementation methods for business use; and the use and evaluation of alternative database management software packages. Instructional methods include lecture, demonstrations, group problem-solving exercises, database design and business intelligence implementation projects, and student presentations.

#### ITMG 330 | ELECTRONIC COMMERCE

Units: 3

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course will help you better understand the emerging online technologies and trends and their influence on the electronic commerce marketplace. Topics include the Ecommerce fundamentals, Ecommerce business strategy, supply chain management, customer relationship management, and implementation of ecommerce such as analysis, design and maintenance.

# ITMG 340 | INTRODUCTION TO WEB SITE DESIGN Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ITMG 100 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Creating websites for business purposes, and learn the essential tools for web site development. The instruction will include planning a web site, understanding the principles and elements of web site design. page optimization, and evaluating web site effectiveness. Teaching methods include mostly hands-on skill building using the latest software available for web design.

# ITMG 350 | MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEMS Units: 3

Prerequisites: ITMG 100 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) A management-oriented overview of information systems with an emphasis on ways to analyze and use information technologies from the perspective of a business professional. The emphasis is threefold: to understand an analytic, integrative approach for thinking about (information) systems; to understand the uses of information technology to the success of organizations and competitive advantage; and to reinforce your skills using the latest server and Internet applications for managerial problem-solving and productivity. Topics include: international competitive uses of information systems; various ways of using information technologies in business processes, products, and services; impacts of information systems on the productivity of individuals and organizations; methods of information management decision making; factors leading to successful implementation of information systems; and threats and risks associated with information systems. Instructional methods include lecture, case study analysis, hands on training with current business software, community service-learning, technical writing, and presentations.

# ITMG 360 | COMPUTER NETWORKS, SECURITY, AND FORENSICS Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ITMG 100 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)
This course is designed to give the student a thorough understanding of the existing use of data communication networks, information security and computing forensics. Students will also learn about future developments in the area of telecommunications. Topics include: various protocols, topologies, and configuration used in modern data communications networks; the characteristics, engineering, and economic trade-offs among essential network hardware and software components; and current telecommunications industry standards and emerging technologies. Hands-on projects introduce students to the nuances of design, implementation, and management of computer networks in real-world environments using prevailing networking software.

# ITMG 376 | APPLICATIONS OF GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS (GIS)

Units: 3

Prerequisites: ITMG 100 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) An introduction to geospatial, or geographic, information systems (GIS) applied to organizational and environmental decision-making applications. The course provides background knowledge to identify spatial characteristics of many decision-making situations and to integrate spatial thinking and GIS analysis into the student's academic studies and career. The course includes hands-on laboratory tutorials and projects using ArcGIS 10 desktop GIS software.

# ITMG 440 | INTERACTIVE MOBILE AND WEB APPLICATION DEVELOPMENT

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ITMG 100 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course is designed to give the student a thorough understanding of the existing use of data communication networks, information security and computing forensics. Students will also learn about future developments in the area of telecommunications. Topics include: various protocols, topologies, and configurations used in modern data communications networks; the characteristics, engineering, and economic trade-offs among essential network hardware and software components; and current telecommunications industry standards and emerging technologies. Hands-on projects introduce students to the nuances of design, implementation, and management of computer networks in real-world environments using prevailing standard networking software.

#### ITMG 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Topics of current interest in information technology management. Course content and structure will differ depending on instructor. Consult your advisor for course description for any given semester. May be repeated once for credit.

#### ITMG 498 | INTERNSHIP IN I.S./E.C.

**Units: 1-3** 

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150)

#### ITMG 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

#### **Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)**

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Independent study including empirical research and written reports. A maximum of 3 units of independent study may be used to satisfy requirements for the major.

#### MGMT 300 | ORGANIZATIONAL BEHAVIOR

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 101 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

The study of human behavior in organizational settings. Examines the interface between human behavior and the organizational context, and presents frameworks for managing people in the organization. Topics addressed include perceptual processes, personality, learning, motivation, attitudes, stress, group dynamics, intergroup behavior, conflict, power, politics, leadership, and cross-cultural implications. Behavioral science concepts are applied through self-assessment, case studies, and experiential exercises.

# MGMT 301 | ORGANIZATIONAL THEORY AND GLOBAL LEADERSHIP

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: MGMT 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

In today's global environment successful business leaders must understand theories of organizational design, structure, development, and effectiveness both domestically and abroad. Topics in this macro-oriented course include a number of international and contemporary management issues, including limitations in traditional views of leadership and the need for a more comprehensive view of how leadership works in organizations throughout the world. The relationship of leadership to culture and gender in organizations is explored, and practical leadership skills crucial to organizational effectiveness in a global business environment are integrated into the course through experiential learning exercises and interactive simulations.

#### MGMT 302 | FAMILY BUSINESS

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Family-owned businesses make up as much as 80 percent of all U.S. businesses, including 175 of the Fortune 500. They face different challenges than their non-family-owned peers. This course discusses ways in which family-owned businesses are unique, stressing some of the special challenges they face, such as: grooming a management successor from within the family; implementing an estate plan to pass ownership of the business to the proper individuals while avoiding our confiscatorial estate tax; techniques for resolving family conflicts that erupt in the business and business conflicts that threaten to destroy the family; setting fair compensation for family members and non-family employees; and motivating non-family employees to support the family's goals. Family business is a cross-functional, multi-disciplinary study which includes aspects of management, communications and conflict resolution, law, estate planning, accounting and taxation, and family counseling.

#### MGMT 303 | INTERPERSONAL RELATIONS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### **Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency**

Prerequisites: MGMT 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) An advanced course covering theories, research, and skill development in the area of interpersonal relations. Topics covered include interpersonal influence, conflict, emotional styles, communication, group roles, non-verbal behavior, and personal growth. Course concepts are integrated with classroom exercises and outside organizational experiences to provide the student with both knowledge and skills for interacting effectively with others in managerial and personal situations.

## MGMT 304 | ENTREPRENEURSHIP AND NEW VENTURES Units: 3

Prerequisites: MGMT 300 and FINA 300 and MKTG 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

An examination of the problems and processes for launching and/or purchasing business ventures. Topics include the nature and role of the entrepreneur, identifying and assessing potential opportunities for new ventures, structuring and staffing the new venture, preparing the business plan, attracting venture capital, and dealing with key legal issues.

#### MGMT 305 | CAREER DEVELOPMENT

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MGMT 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) Study of the development of careers in work organizations. Principles of human resource skill development and patterns of success. Models for understanding individual and organizational career assessment and development. Principles of stress and coping mechanisms in career activities. Attention to successful individual and organizational practices. Particular emphasis on careers in management.

#### MGMT 306 | WOMEN IN MANAGEMENT

#### Units: 3

#### **Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency**

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course is designed to give women a repertoire of skills needed in various work-related situations. The course examines management requirements for various organizational levels and stresses the difference between personal and organizational issues.

#### MGMT 307 | HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: MGMT 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) An introduction to the roles of both the staff specialist and manager regarding the human resource management function. Topics include, but are not limited to, staffing, compensating, training, appraising, and developing an organization's human resources, as well as employment law, labor relations, and the strategic role of human resource management in today's organization.

## MGMT 308 | SMALL BUSINESS MANAGEMENT Units: 3

Prerequisites: MGMT 300 and FINA 300 and MKTG 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Application of the basic business disciplines to the small business environment. Examines both growth-oriented small firms on the way to becoming large firms and small, income-substitution firms. Issues include: managing to provide for the survival and growth of the small business; how smallness influences management processes such as recruitment and motivation of employees; and how smallness influences marketing, finance, operations, and other functional areas within the small firm.

# MGMT 309 | INTERNATIONAL COMPARATIVE MANAGEMENT Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MGMT 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) Addresses the dilemmas and opportunities that managers face as they work in multicultural and global environments. The main objective of the course is to increase the effectiveness of managers/employees in identifying, understanding, and managing the cultural components of organizational dynamics. Focuses on the relationships between cultural values and the practice of managing people. (For International Business minors only, BUSN 361 may substitute MGMT 300 as the prerequisite for this course.).

### MGMT 310 | INNOVATION AND DESIGN THINKING

#### **Units: 3 Repeatability: No**

Prerequisites: MGMT 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) Teaches an iterative problem solving process of discovery, ideation, and experimentation using design-based techniques. Students develop insights and innovative solutions for diverse issues in business and public management. Introduces innovation and entrepreneurship.

#### MGMT 311 | BUSINESS LEADERSHIP

Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency

Prerequisites: MGMT 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150)

This course is designed to provide students with a comprehensive understanding of the theories, practices, and ethics of leadership; specifically, the impact of leadership within a business environment. Students will be provided with the knowledge and skills necessary to enhance their ability to be effective leaders. A systematic approach to leadership development is emphasized through contemporary readings on leadership, files, and experiential exercises.

# MGMT 312 | GLOBAL SOCIAL ENTREPRENEURSHIP Units: 3

Prerequisites: MGMT 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150)

Global social entrepreneurship is about how to frame problems and devise solutions for the world's most pressing challenges. Through experiential learning and case discussion, students will acquire knowledge and capabilities for the creation of social ventures. The course invites exploration of social innovations that have transformed the world. Students will learn how to combine business and management skills with imagination, passion, empathy and courage to effectively tackle social problems.

### MGMT 414 | INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT CONSULTING Units: 3

Prerequisites: FINA 300 and MGMT 300 and MKTG 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This management consulting project-based course will provide participants with instruction and practical experience in conducting a consulting project with an international approach. Students work in teams to design and develop solutions to a business problem or strategic initiatives for a company. You will learn and demonstrate your ability to formulate a statement of work, establish goals and milestones, prepare a schedule of deliverables, allocate responsibilities to team members, and interact with your client. The course is a combination of class sessions, instructor-individual team conferences, student team meetings, research, team-client meetings, report writing, and presentation of consulting activity/ project results.

#### MGMT 480 | STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### **Core Attributes: Advanced Integration**

Prerequisites: MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151

This course develops skills in problem analysis and decision making in areas of corporate strategy and business policy. It is the integrating course of the undergraduate program and will concentrate on the application of concepts through case studies. Open only to last-semester graduating seniors.

#### MGMT 490 | STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Advanced Integration** 

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course develops skills in problem analysis and decision making in areas of corporate strategy and business policy. It is the integrating course of the undergraduate program and will concentrate on the application of concepts through case studies. Open only to last-semester graduating seniors.

#### MGMT 492 | STRATEGY SIMULATION

Units: 3

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Students will manage a company in a computer simulated oligopolistic industry. They will compete against companies managed by students from five other schools. Students will write detailed business plans, prepare budgets, and submit annual reports to shareholders while making management decisions for their company for 20 (simulated) quarters.

#### MGMT 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS

#### Units: 1-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Topics of current interest in business administration. Course content and structure will differ depending on instructor. Consult your advisor for course description for any given semester. May be repeated once for credit.

#### MGMT 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Independent study including empirical research and written reports. A maximum of 3 units of independent study may be used to satisfy requirements for the major.

#### MKTG 294 | MARKETING ELECTIVE

Units: 3

#### MKTG 300 | FUNDAMENTALS OF MARKETING

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### **Core Attributes: Oral communication competency**

Prerequisites: ECON 101 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)
This course introduces students to the issues and matters undertaken by marketers.
Students will learn the language of marketing and the basic elements of a marketing analysis. Students will be able to identify, define, and examine the process of developing the components of the marketing mix, and explain how marketing managers use these components to gain competitive advantage within a socially responsible and ethical environment.

#### MKTG 301 | SERVICES MARKETING

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: MKTG 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) This course examines the key characteristics that distinguish services from traditional goods marketing. Critical dimensions which customers utilize to determine quality services are emphasized. Attention is directed toward the development and demonstration of interpersonal and problem-solving skills. Learning activities can include: case analysis, marketing plan, and client-sponsored projects.

#### MKTG 302 | SPORTS MARKETING

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: MKTG 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) This course explores the complex and diverse nature of sports marketing. It applies fundamental marketing concepts to the sports industry, including the marketing mix, consumer behavior, marketing research, segmentation analysis, and assessment of marketing programs specific to sports. Guidelines for the formulation of marketing goals and strategies will be included. Trends, issues, and problems influencing the industry will also be examined.

# MKTG 303 | FUNDAMENTALS OF MARKETING ABROAD Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ECON 101 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course introduces students to the issues and matters undertaken by marketers. Students will learn the language of marketing and the basic elements of a marketing analysis. Students will be able to identify, define, and examine the process of developing the components of the marketing mix, and explain how marketing managers use these components to gain competitive advantage within a socially responsible and ethical environment. The course content is equivalent to MKTG 300, Fundamentals of Marketing. However, it does not satisfy any USD core curriculum requirements. This course is taught at universities outside of the U.S. through the USD study abroad programs.

#### MKTG 305 | GLOBAL MARKETING

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency

Prerequisites: MKTG 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

The purpose of this course is to provide an up-to-date overview of global marketing. The principles of marketing will be augmented by additional exposure to the opportunities and problems facing marketing managers in the changing global marketplace. Special attention will be given to the management of cultural differences in product development, distribution systems, pricing, and marketing communication. For International Business minors only, BUSN 361 may substitute MKTG 300 as the prerequisite for this course.

#### MKTG 306 | GLOBAL MARKETING ABROAD

**Units: 3 Repeatability: No** 

Prerequisites: MKTG 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

The purpose of this course is to provide an up-to-date overview of global marketing. The principles of marketing will be augmented by additional exposure to the opportunities and problems facing marketing managers in the changing global marketplace. Special attention will be given to the management of cultural differences in product development, distribution systems, pricing, and marketing communication. For International Business minors only, BUSN 361 may substitute MKTG 300 as the prerequisite for this course. The course content is equivalent to MKTG 305, Global Marketing. However, it does not satisfy any USD core curriculum requirements. This course is taught at universities outside of the U.S. through the USD study abroad programs.

#### MKTG 330 | PROFESSIONAL SELLING

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MKTG 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) This course examines the role of professional selling in a firm's promotion

and marketing strategy, and presents the principles and methods of persuasive communication. Concepts from the behavioral sciences are explored to show their application in sales situations. Attention is focused on the development and demonstration of effective sales presentation techniques.

# MKTG 331 | INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS TO BUSINESS MARKETING Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MKTG 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) This course examines the importance and impact of marketing products and services to other businesses and organizations in the international economy across country and cultural boundaries, the unique nature of business customer's needs, and the different business marketing strategies that can be employed to meet those needs. The course draws heavily on top business publications and current international events regarding international business to business marketing.

### MKTG 340 | DIGITAL MARKETING AND SOCIAL MEDIA

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MKTG 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course explores the Internet and digital domain in the context of business issues that concern marketers. The course extends beyond a narrow definition of e-marketing and expands it to all aspects of digital communications including mobile and social media. There is a dual focus on both theory and application concerning the digital elements of marketing variables; online consumer behavior; search engine marketing; social media; analytics; and measurement. A special focus is placed on web development and paid advertising campaigns.

### MKTG 350 | ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MKTG 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course provides a basic understanding of communication theory, branding, marcom tactics, planning, and coordination of integrated marketing communications (IMC) programs. The roles of public relations, direct response, advertising, collaterals, the Internet, and digital media are examined. Students practice the skills necessary to plan, execute, and coordinate an integrated marketing communications project or campaign.

#### MKTG 351 | ADVERTISING CAMPAIGNS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MKTG 300 and (MKTG 350 or MKTG 410 or MKTG 420) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Advertising Campaigns involves the analysis of market behavior, trends, and consumer motivation, with an emphasis upon the creation of an advertising campaign. Students conduct marketing research within a selected target market, develop a strategic brand position, and develop a campaign to effectively convey their brand's position and value to the intended target audience. This course challenges students to push their creative capabilities while remaining within the parameters of sound marketing research and strategic objectives.

# MKTG 355 | INTRODUCTION TO PUBLIC RELATIONS Units: 3

Prerequisites: MKTG 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course provides an introduction to public relations as a component of marketing communications. The strategic aspects and tactical implementation of public relations are covered, including a review of public relations campaigns as well as crisis communication. Also examined are the effects of research, public opinion, ethics, and laws on public relations activities. Career opportunities with public relations firms are discussed.

#### MKTG 410 | MARKETING RESEARCH

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency

Prerequisites: MKTG 300 and (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

The emphasis in this course is placed on the relationship between marketing research and the business decision. A complete marketing research project is developed. Topics include: research methodology and the business function, problem formulation and the role of research, data collection, and analysis.

#### MKTG 411 | MARKETING ANALYTICS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MKTG 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) This course takes an applied, data driven, approach to marketing decisions such as measuring the effectiveness of promotions, pricing strategy, and market segmentation. Students will study marketing problems and learn how different types of data and methodologies can be used to solve these problems. Students will learn both descriptive and predictive technique's to help make marketing decisions.

#### MKTG 413 | MARKETING RESEARCH ABROAD

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MKTG 300 and (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

The emphasis in this course is placed on the relationship between marketing research and the business decision. A complete marketing research project is developed. Topics include: research methodology and the business function, problem formulation and the role of research, data collection, and analysis. The course content is equivalent to MKTG 410, Marketing Research. However, it does not satisfy any USD core curriculum requirements. This course is taught at universities outside of the U.S. through the USD study abroad programs.

#### MKTG 420 | CONSUMER BEHAVIOR

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: MKTG 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) This course explores how consumers process information and make decisions. Influence factors, such as attitudes, learning, personality, culture, motivation, perception, and reference groups on consumer decision making are examined. The emphasis is on understanding the decision-making process and its application to the development of sound marketing strategy.

# MKTG 422 | VISUAL METHODS FOR EXPLORING CONSUMER BEHAVIOR

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: MKTG 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) This course examines literature on analyzing visual data and the research methodologies of consumer ethnographic photography and filmmaking as ways of understanding and communicating consumer behavior. While immersed in the literature, photography and film of visual methods research, students will create several photography and film projects, each attended with a written paper. The course will conclude with a film festival and critique of student-produced films.

#### MKTG 435 | BUSINESS OF HEALTHCARE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MKTG 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course is designed for students interested in a career in any of the sectors that comprise the healthcare value chain. Pharmaceutical, biotechnology, diagnostic and device manufacturers in addition to traditional hospitals form a significant part of the healthcare industry and are well represented in the San Diego region. Students with an interest in Marketing, Operations, Finance, Project Management, Law and Nursing will find this course of value because it offers opportunities to explore topics related to efficiency, equity, access and effectiveness of healthcare. Note: Non-business majors and Economics majors may request a waiver of the prerequisites from the Marketing Department Chair and instructor if the student has relevant experience or background.

#### MKTG 440 | BRAND MANAGEMENT

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MKTG 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)
This course outlines how brand management is a fundamental element of competitive strategy. It explores the principles that determine success or failure in managing a brand, and the decisions brand managers face managing their brands. The course offers a thorough perspective of brand management as a discipline and as a career.

### MKTG 480 | ADVANCED MARKETING PROJECT

Prerequisites: MKTG 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) This course offers the opportunity to implement the basic fundamentals of marketing through an experiential learning situation, simulation, case analysis, or combination of these. May involve interaction with business or other organizations in the execution of marketing strategy. This course may not be repeated for credit.

#### MKTG 490 | MARKETING STRATEGY

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MKTG 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) This is the capstone course for marketing majors. Students examine the critical issues and variables in selecting a marketing strategy, with an emphasis on how to accomplish strategic analysis and planning. Topics include the comparison of business and marketing strategies, marketing situation analysis, designing marketing strategy, marketing program development, and marketing strategy management and implementation. Senior standing is required.

#### MKTG 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Topics of current interest in marketing. Course content and structure will differ depending on instructor. Consult your advisor for course description for any given semester. May be repeated once for credit.

#### MKTG 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Independent study including empirical research and written reports. A maximum of 3 units of independent study may be used to satisfy requirements for the major.

#### REAL 320 | PRINCIPLES OF REAL ESTATE

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

The study of the principles and practices surrounding real estate assets within the U.S. financial markets. Includes an investigation of urban economic forces on financing, investment, and valuation decisions, and legal effects on market efficiency. The ethical implications of real estate principles and practices will be emphasized. This course fulfills one of the requirements for both the Sales Agent and the Broker's License issued by the California Department of Real Estate.

#### REAL 324 | REAL ESTATE MARKET ANALYSIS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) and (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and FINA 300  $\,$ 

This course deals with the role, importance and the process of market analysis in real estate. The course is divided into two sections. The first section utilizes market analysis as a tool for decision makers to examine the economic environment of their potential real estate investment, the current market trends and future outlook for real estate. The second section examines how the feasibility of a real estate project is determined across different property types. The course uses the highest and best use analysis to determine any project's feasibility. All aspects of feasibility are discussed in detail including physical, legal and financial. The course focuses on using research methodologies to define the scope of analysis; identify data needs; collect information from various sources, including on-line resources; and interpret the results. Applications to different property types are discussed.

# REAL 325 | FINANCING RESIDENTIAL REAL ESTATE Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151) and (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and FINA 300

An overview course that explains with real-world examples how America's residential real estate finance markets operate and interact with one another. Provides an understanding of how technology is rapidly changing borrowers' ability to "shop" for mortgages and how lenders offer their products and services. Covers the entire array of mortgages available to consumers, where loans can be obtained, and what happens to loans after they are made. Places U.S. mortgage markets into a global context. The ethical dimensions of financing real estate will be brought to the forefront of classroom discussion.

#### REAL 326 | COMMERCIAL RE FIN & INVESTMENT

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and FINA 300 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

An introduction to the core concepts, principles, analytical methods, and tools useful for making investment and financing decisions regarding commercial real estate. This course reviews the fundamental financial concepts that are critical to real estate decision making; compares and contrasts different types of commercial real estate; discusses the techniques that are commonly used to determine the value of a commercial property; and introduces the various ways to finance real estate development and/or purchases. It also describes the roles of traditional sources of commercial real estate capital, as well as the proliferation of newer financial products.

## **REAL 327 | LEGAL ASPECTS OF REAL ESTATE Units: 3**

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

The study of the historical, foundational, and fundamental legal principles involving both commercial and residential real estate. An exploration of issues, case studies, and current events in the area of real estate law and ethics in the real estate marketplace. Special emphasis is given to transactions, investments, and the development of real estate, as such relates to contracts, land use requirements, environmental concerns, and risk management matters. This course fulfills one of the requirements for the California Department of Real Estate Broker examination.

# REAL 328 | COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE VALUATION Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and FINA 300 and REAL 320 and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

An overview of real estate valuation techniques. The fundamentals of income capitalization, sales comparison and cost approaches to appraisal theory are discussed using practical examples. Through the use of commercial real estate software valuation tools (ARGUS Financial Analysis®), participants will gain the understanding of appraisal procedures used to analyze data and derive value estimates for every category of income-producing property. The importance of ethical judgment and industry standards will be emphasized along with the reconciliation process and preparation of the final appraisal report.

#### REAL 329 | REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (ECON 216 or ECON 217) and FINA 300 and (REAL 320 or REAL 325 or REAL 326 or REAL 327) and (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

This course presents an overview of the real estate development process. Emphasis will be placed on how to evaluate and quantify risk, and how to assess it in light of the development opportunity. The course will help students develop the skills necessary for successful involvement in development at the entry, corporate and entrepreneurial level. Specific topics include land acquisition, due diligence, market analysis, the entitlement process, building design, construction, financing, leasing, management, and disposition. Cases will be used to reinforce and explain the various and often politically sensitive aspects of the real estate development process.

#### **REAL 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS**

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Topics of current interest in real estate. Course content and structure will differ depending on instructor. Consult your advisor for course description for any given semester. May be repeated once for credit.

#### **REAL 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY**

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150 or MATH 151)

Independent study including empirical research and written reports. A maximum of 3 units of independent study may be used to satisfy requirements for the major.

# School of Leadership and Education Sciences

#### **Administration**

Nicholas Ladany, PhD, DEAN

Joi Spencer, PhD, ASSOCIATE DEAN

Linda N. Dews, MSEd, ASSISTANT DEAN

Heather Herrera, PhD, ASSISTANT DEAN, Accreditation and Assessment

Vlad Bolsakov, MBA, ASSISTANT DEAN, Finance and Administration

TBD, DIRECTOR, Development

Corinna Lewis, BA, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, Marketing and Communication

TBD, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, Student and Alumni Relations

Lea Hubbard, PhD, CHAIR, Leadership Studies

TBD, CHAIR, Learning and Teaching

Erika Nash Cameron, PhD, CHAIR, Counseling & Marital and Family Therapy

Lieutenant Colonel Scot Hodgdon, USA, PROFESSOR, Military Science

Captain Brian Clapp, USA, Professor, Military Science

Captain Edwin Kaiser, USN, MA, CHAIR, Naval Science

Commander Steve Dickerson, USN, MS, EXECUTIVE OFFICER, Naval Science

Wendell Callahan, PhD, DIRECTOR, Clinical Training, Counseling Program

Todd Edwards, PhD, DIRECTOR, Marital and Family Therapy Program

Helene T. Mandell, EdD, DIRECTOR, Field Experiences, Learning and Teaching

Michele McConnell, MEd, COORDINATOR, MEd Online

Cheryl Getz, EdD, DIRECTOR, Leadership Minor

Emily Young, PhD, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, Nonprofit and Philanthropic Institute

Laura Deitrick, PhD, DIRECTOR, Caster Center and Program Specialist

Mary Jo Schumann, PhD, ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR, Caster Center

TBD, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, Jacobs Institute for Innovation in Education

Edward DeRoche, PhD, DIRECTOR, Character Education Resource Center

Teresa VanHorn, MA, DIRECTOR, Nonprofit Leadership Alliance and COORDINATOR, Leadership Studies Minor

Jacqueline Kennedy, MA, DIRECTOR, Manchester Family Child Development Center

Lorri Sulpizio, PhD, DIRECTOR, Leadership Institute

Beth Garofalo, MEd, ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR OF LEADERSHIP PROGRAMMING, Leadership Studies

Sergio E. Rodriguez, MA, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF PROGRAMMING, Learning and Teaching

Sonya Mohamed, MEd, Assistant Director of Programming, Counseling & Marital and Family Therapy

### **Faculty**

Viviana Alexandrowicz, PhD

Donna Barnes, PhD

Sandy Buczynski, PhD

Wendell Callahan, PhD

Erika Nash Cameron, PhD

Paula A. Cordeiro, EdD

Laura Deitrick, PhD

Robert Donmoyer, PhD

Todd M. Edwards, PhD

Ana Estrada, PhD

James Fabionar, PhD

Fred Galloway, EdD

Ann F. Garland, PhD

Cheryl Getz, EdD

Nedeljko Golubovic, PhD

Zachary Green, PhD

Kristopher Hall, PhD

C. Bobbi Hansen, EdD

Lea Hubbard, PhD

Rebekka Jez, EdD

Maya Kalyanpur, PhD

Nicholas Ladany, PhD

Marcus Lam, PhD

Florencia Lebensohn-Chiaivo, PhD

Mary Lyons, PhD

Ian Martin, EdD

Sarina Molina, EdD

Theresa Monroe, RSCJ, EdD

Afsaneh Nahavandi, PhD

Christopher Newman, PhD

Jo Ellen Patterson, PhD

Reyes Quezada, EdD

Lonnie L. Rowell, PhD

Hans Peter Schmitz, PhD

Joi A. Spencer, PhD

Suzanne Stolz, EdD

Teresa VanHorn, MA

Lee Williams, PhD

Susan Zgliczynski, PhD

### Military Science Faculty

Master Sergeant Julio Armas, USA

Captain Brian Clapp, USA

Lieutenant Colonel Scot Hodgdon, USA

Major John McAlister, USA

Captain Darrick M. Noah, USA

Sergeant First Class Ainoy Rasavongsy, USA

Sergeant First Class Derek Salley, USA

### Naval Science Faculty

Lieutenant Sean J. Barner, BA, USN

Lieutenant Mona Lisa Dellavolpe, BS, USN

Commander Steve Dickerson, MS, USN

Lieutenant Jorge M. Fuentes, BA, USN

Captain Edwin Kaiser, MA, USN, CHAIR

Captain Brett Rankin, BS, USMC

Lieutenant Saunak S. Shah, BS, USN

Lieutenant Kelly A. Wehle, BS, USN

The School of Leadership and Education Sciences offers undergraduate coursework in three departments: Leadership Studies, Learning and Teaching and Counseling & Marital and Family Therapy. Our certificates, credentials, courses and minor fields lay a foundation for leadership roles in teaching, counseling, marital and family therapy and administration in school settings; as well as leaders in the public, nonprofit and military sectors.

Our programs have met the high standards established by the following accrediting bodies: Commission on Accreditation for Marriage and Family Therapy Education, Commission for Accreditation of Counseling & Related Education Programs, California Commission on Teacher Credentialing, Council for Exceptional Children and the Council for the Accreditation of Educator Preparation.

The School of Leadership and Education Sciences offers undergraduates the opportunity to enroll in the Combined BA/MEd Teacher Education Program

(CTEP), Education minor, Leadership Studies minor, Nonprofit Social Enterprise & Philanthropy minor, Naval Sciences minor, Army ROTC program, Nonprofit Leadership and Management Certificate program and several special courses designed to meet the needs and interest of all undergraduates.

In addition, the School of Leadership and Education Sciences offers teaching credential programs in various professional areas at the elementary, secondary and special education levels. These programs are designed to meet the credential requirements of the State of California and to provide students a sequential curriculum that includes field experiences with class sizes that facilitate personal attention and instructor accessibility. Please contact the School of Leadership and Education Sciences' Credential Analyst for more information.

At the graduate level, the School of Leadership and Education Sciences offers a Master of Arts in Leadership Studies (MA), Master of Arts in Higher Education Leadership (MA), Master of Arts in Nonprofit Leadership and Management (MA), Master of Education (MEd), Master of Arts in Counseling (MA), Master of Arts in Marital and Family Therapy (MA) and a Doctorate in Leadership Studies (PhD). Please refer to the current Graduate Course Catalog for more information regarding these programs.

#### Vision Statement

We believe that education for human service must have as its foundation a vision of enhancing human dignity and the quality of life. To do so, human service professionals must focus on moral perspectives in their professional and community lives. The faculty and staff of the School of Leadership and Education Sciences seek to impart this vision to our students.

### Mission Statement

It is our responsibility to prepare students with the professional knowledge, skills and ethical perspectives they will need for effective leadership and practice in a diverse society. We seek to become and encourage our students to become, life-long learners engaged in scholarly inquiry, research and professional development. We value professional and community service and encourage such service by our students.

To implement our mission, the faculty enriches all programs and course offerings with the values, concepts and themes that we believe will help students become ethical, civic-minded and committed leaders in their chosen fields.

#### Centers and Institutes

- · Caster Family Center for Nonprofit and Philanthropic Research
- · Center for Education Policy and Law (CEPAL)
- · Character Education Resource Center
- · Compass Family Center
- Educational Leadership Development Academy (ELDA)
- · Global Center
- · Hansen Summer Institute
- · Jacobs Institute for Innovation in Education
- Manchester Family Child Development Center (MFCDC)
- Mobile Technology Learning Center (MTLC)
- Nonprofit Institute (NPI)

### Reservation of the Right to Modify

Every effort has been made to provide current and accurate information in the description of minor, certificate and credential programs. However, we reserve the right to change program requirements. Students should confer with their

advisors and the credential analyst to ensure progress toward their degrees and/or credentials.

### **Dates And Deadlines**

It is the student's responsibility to meet the deadlines published in this course

### **Leadership Studies**

### Chair

Lea Hubbard, PhD

### **Faculty**

Master Sergeant Julio Armas, USA

Captain Brian Clapp, USA

Paula A. Cordeiro, EdD

Laura Deitrick, PhD

Robert Donmoyer, PhD

Fred Galloway, EdD

Cheryl Getz, EdD

Zachary Green, PhD

Lieutenant Colonel Scot Hodgdon, USA

Marcus Lam, PhD

Mary Lyons, PhD

Major John McAlister, USA

Theresa Monroe, RSCJ, EdD

Afsaneh Nahayandi, PhD

Christopher Newman, PhD

Sergeant First Class Ainoy Rasavongsy, USA

Sergeant First Class Derek Salley, USA

Hans Peter Schmitz, PhD

Teresa VanHorn, MA

An acknowledged pioneer in the understanding of leadership dynamics, the Department of Leadership Studies addresses the demands of a changing world for new answers. Our award winning faculty is committed to personalizing the experience of each student to empower them to contribute in a more fulfilling manner regardless of their profession or position. The Leadership Studies Department offers the following undergraduate programs:

### Military Science

Military Science offers a two, three, and four-year Army Reserve Officers Training Corps (ROTC) program designed to develop future officers in the areas of leadership, management, foreign policy, national security, military history and military skills. The Army ROTC program also offers a series of optional adventure outings and on-campus activities during the school year. These include orienteering, rappelling, sports programs and social activities. Enrollment in the Army ROTC program is not a requirement for taking military science courses. Military Science offers a varied class schedule to meet students' requirements. The Army ROTC program consists of one course per semester along with scheduled leadership laboratories and field training. See ROTC Programs (http://catalogs.sandiego.edu/undergraduate/academic-programs/rotc) for more information.

#### LEAD 150 | EMERGING LEADERS

#### Units: 2

This course is designed to acquaint entering freshmen with 21st-century models of leadership, and to expose them to the multiple opportunities for active participation in leadership at USD. Through readings, class presentations, experiential exercises, journal reflections, and small group discussion, students will be challenged to map their path of initial leadership development at USD.

# LEAD 160 | PERSONAL LEADERSHIP, SELF-INQUIRY AND DISCOVERY

#### Units: 3

This course introduces students to the complexity of leadership through exploring classic and contemporary leadership theories with explicit connection to leadership practice. Students will learn about leadership concepts on an individual, group, and systemic level. Topics covered include: definitions of leadership, leadership theories, leadership and management, organizational leadership and change, diverse perspectives of leadership, and ethics. Through this course, students will develop competence and confidence in their ability to exercise leadership.

#### LEAD 162 | OUTDOOR LEADERSHIP

#### Units: 3

This course will examine how the application of leadership, judgment, and decision-making principles affect the quality of wilderness experiences and the safety of the group. It includes classroom, case-study, experiential, and reflective learning opportunities, and will demonstrate how to apply lessons learned in the outdoors to other leadership opportunities. (Fee required).

# LEAD 179 | EXPERIMENTAL TOPICS IN LEADERSHIP STUDIES Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

This course number is used by the Department of Leadership Studies in the School of Leadership and Education Sciences for experimental topics courses. The title for each 179 course will vary by topic and program. If more than one 179 course is offered during a single semester, section numbers will help identify each course.

# LEAD 185 $\mid$ CERTIFYING FOR CHANGE - INTRO TO THE NONPROFIT SECTOR

#### Units: 1

This course will introduce students to the nonprofit sector. By presenting the categories of nonprofit organizations, the course will help students explore how their personal values can be expressed and represented in the nonprofit world. Networking with alumni of the nonprofit program and other third sector professionals employed in a variety of different nonprofit organizations will serve to facilitate students' understanding and awareness of the sector. Students will interact with an array of individuals in diverse leadership roles. The course also presents the opportunity to consider the benefits of a national nonprofit certificate and its role in their future career path.

#### LEAD 349 | WOMEN IN LEADERSHIP

#### Units: 3

This course looks at the impact of gender on leadership. The approach focuses on theoretical and practical viewpoints, including but not limited to feminist perspectives. This course emphasizes and creates space for the exercise of self-awareness, skill development, self-reflection, and social responsibility for women in leadership.

# LEAD 350 | LEADERSHIP AND GROUP DEVELOPMENT Units: 3

This course provides opportunities for students to study and analyze the complexity of leadership and groups. Drawing on leadership and group theories and models, the following topics will be examined with explicit connections to experiences within and outside of the classroom: group dynamics, roles, norms, authority, power, and collaboration. Through this course students will develop greater awareness of roles, behaviors, and social identities in themselves and others. They will also learn how to be an effective group member and how to exercise leadership in groups.

### LEAD 351 | LEADERSHIP FOR CHANGE CAPSTONE Units: 3

Prerequisites: LEAD 160 and LEAD 350 or LEAD 357

The minimum grade for prerequisites is a C-. This capstone course is designed to integrate students' learning in the Leadership Minor with their experiences across a variety of contexts. Students will explore leadership for change on the interconnected levels of self, group, and system. They will engage in individual and group reflection to increase integrative learning and decrease blind spots. Additionally, students will solidify their personal philosophy of leadership and complete a group change project to affect the larger community. Throughout the course students will continuously examine the group process to better understand and apply leadership concepts to practice.

# LEAD 352 | NONPROFIT LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### **Core Attributes: Community Service Learning**

This project-based course is designed to provide knowledge and understanding of the leadership and administration of nonprofit organizations. Students will gain theoretical and practical knowledge of concepts including alliances, board development, burnout/motivation, employment law, ethics, fundraising, internet strategies, lobbying, marketing, mergers, programming, personnel practices, public speaking, public relations, risk management, strategic planning, time management, volunteerism, and youth development.

# LEAD 353 | PROFESSIONAL AND ETHICAL ISSUES AND THE PRACTICE OF LEADERSHIP

#### Units: 3

This course explores ethical issues pertinent to organizations. Students gain greater awareness of philosophical, religious, and civic traditions of leadership in organizations. Topics include social responsibility, employee rights, employee participation in decision making, self-regulation, economic justice, honesty, and deception.

# LEAD 354 | LEADERSHIP AND DIVERSITY IN ORGANIZATIONS Units: 3

This course is designed to provide an overview of how issues of diversity impact organizations. Using the organization as a frame of reference, topics include oppression, racism, discrimination, structural factors in organizations, communication across cultures, cultural differences affecting organizations, and moral obligations connected with the role of a leader. Students will analyze the reciprocal nature of beliefs, values, attitudes, and behaviors with regard to various microcultures in organizations.

#### LEAD 355S | NONPROFIT SEMINAR I

#### Units: 1 Repeatability: No

Students taking this course gain an appreciation for the role of leaders in nonprofit organizations. Topics include fundraising, nonprofit administration, financial management, financial management, human resources for volunteer and paid staff, marketing, and event planning. Students will have the opportunity to participate in applied service projects, participate in community-service learning, and meet with executives in the nonprofit field. Students will have the opportunity to connect leadership concepts to practice engaging in activities and discussions.

#### LEAD 356S | NONPROFIT SEMINAR II

Units: 1

This course is a continuation of LEAD 355S.

### LEAD 357 | LEADERSHIP AND THE PRACTICE OF PRESENCE Units: 3

This course is designed to offer students an opportunity to study the dynamics of leadership and authority in an experiential learning environment. Students develop the personal skills, awareness, and discipline necessary to exercise leadership effectively; and they are encouraged to expand their thinking beyond traditional notions of leadership. The weekend format provides a temporary organizational setting that duplicates to some extent the dynamics that occur regularly in organizations, connecting classroom learning to real world problems. Learning in this course encompasses the interconnected levels of self, others, and systems.

# LEAD 359 | MODELS OF PARTICIPATORY LEADERSHIP Units: 3

This course is an opportunity for participants to be exposed to the Mondragon Cooperative Corporation (MCC). MCC is in Mondragon, Spain, and is a unique organizational model of superior economic success coupled with participatory leadership, management, ownership, and decision making. Participants will review the sales, financial, and growth figures, and will become acquainted with MCC's unique educational, training, financial, and human resources systems, as well as with the institutionalized core values that support MCC. These values are based on an ongoing balance between organization and personal needs, continuous solidarity with each other and the community, and economic and social justice. This class is currently being held during the summer only.

# LEAD 360 | GLOBAL LEADERSHIP: EXPERIENTIAL STUDY OF CULTURE & LEADERSHIP

Units: 3

Prerequisites: LEAD 160

Global Leadership is a course designed to provide an experiential classroom experience to examine the impact of culture on leaders and followers at the national, group, and organizational levels. It provides an examination of relevant theories and applies them to help students develop a cultural mindset that is essential to effective leadership in today's global and interconnected world. Additionally, this is a collaborative course that will examine what constitutes "effective" leadership across cultures. It will be collaborative as the students are expected to provide some of the content. Through the experiences in and out of the classroom, students will focus on deeply understanding culture and contexts influence on leadership, engage in reflection, and develop their global leadership capacities.

### LEAD 365 | PROFESSIONAL ENGAGEMENT Units: 1

This course combines student learning about leadership with an opportunity to engage in a professional conference setting. With prior approval from the instructor, each student will choose a conference context in which to engage. This engagement can include, but is not limited to, an active involvement in the undergraduate Case Study Team for the International Leadership Association, a conference presentation at the National Collegiate Leadership Conference, or another approved experience. Through this experience students will explore self in relation to others, experience a context in which they apply leadership concepts, experience a professional setting in which to improve networking and presentation skills, and develop a sense of social responsibility to lead within the professional community.

#### LEAD 366 | COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Units: 1

This course combines student learning about leadership with a semester-long community engagement opportunity. With prior approval from the instructor, each student will choose a context in which to engage the larger community. This engagement can include an active involvement in a campus or community organization, a service learning project, an international experience, participation in a professional or leadership conference, participation in a mentoring relationship, or other approved experience. Through this experience students will explore self in relation to others, experience a context in which they apply leadership concepts, and develop a sense of social responsibility to lead and serve others within the community.

#### LEAD 372 | LEADERSHIP AND SPIRITUALITY

Units: 3

Prerequisites: LEAD 160

This course focuses on leadership as a spiritual activity, reclaiming the notion that authentic leadership comes from within, inspired by our unique passions and talents, and guided by our deepest beliefs and most cherished values. We will consider the spiritual roots of authentic leadership through exploration of an individual's own experience of leadership and spirituality. Much of the course is informed by research and readings from the fields of leadership studies, spirituality, psychology, sociology, and theology.

# LEAD 373 | LESSONS IN LEADERSHIP: THE AMERICAN PRESIDENCY

Units: 3

This course provides opportunities for students to study and analyze the complexity of leadership by examining the lives and actions of selected U.S. presidents. Students will exam, critique, and report on matters of presidential leadership as noted by historians, journalists, leadership experts, and the presidents themselves. The overall purpose of the course is to abstract "lessons in leaders," if any, and to test the proposition that U.S. presidents should be "leaders of character.".

# LEAD 379 | EXPERMENTAL TOPICS IN LEADERSHIP STUDIES Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

This course number is used by the Department of Leadership Studies in the School of Leadership and Education Sciences for experimental topics courses. The title for each 379 course will vary by topic and program. If more than one 379 course is offered during a single semester, section numbers will help identify each

# LEAD 387P | STUDENT LEADERSHIP PRACTICAL EXPERIENCE Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

The Student Leadership Practical Experience is a course designed to provide a structured classroom experience to accompany a practical leadership experience on campus. Through the practical experience and classroom experience, students will focus on applying leadership concepts to practice, engage in reflection, and develop their leadership capacities. Practical experience placement must be preapproved.

# LEAD 388 | LEADERSHIP INTERNSHIP AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT I Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: LEAD 160 or LEAD 350 or LEAD 357 Students taking this internship course develop their leadership skills by serving in a position of influence in an off-campus community organization. The internship connects leadership concepts to leadership practice and provides experience from which students can gain valuable job skills and experience in a possible future career. Through the internship experience and accompanying classroom experience, students will be able to examine their experiences alongside leadership concepts, engage in reflection, and develop their leadership capacities. Internship placement must be pre-approved.

# LEAD 389 | LEADERSHIP INTERNSHIP AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT II Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: LEAD 160 or LEAD 350 or LEAD 352 or LEAD 357 Students taking this internship course develop their leadership skills by serving in a position of influence in an off-campus community organization. The internship

connects leadership concepts to leadership practice and provides experience from which students can gain valuable job skills and experience in a possible future career. Through the internship experience and accompanying classroom experience, students will be able to examine their experiences alongside leadership concepts, engage in reflection, and develop their leadership capacities. Internship placement must be pre-approved.

# LEAD 399 | INDEPENDENT STUDY (1-3)

## Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Independent study designed for individual student needs. Students must complete the Application for Independent Study or Research form and obtain the signatures of the faculty supervisor, Department Chair, and the Associate Dean prior to registering for the course.

# LEAD 470 | INTERNATIONAL NONGOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS

## Units: 3 Repeatability: No

The international nonprofit sector has expanded rapidly in the past decades, but is also undergoing significant change. Evolving social media, shifting donor demands, and more competition from the corporate sector have affected the international nonprofit sector in fundamental ways. Today, organizations such as Kiva, sumofus.org, change.org, or 350.org are seeking to establish more direct connections across the globe in order to end poverty, environmental destruction, or human rights abuses. Social enterprises and more revenue generating models of activism are also increasingly popular and challenge the unique position of nonprofit/nongovernmental organizations. This course introduces students to the international nonprofit/nongovernmental sector and explores its main contemporary challenges, including issues of effectiveness, accountability, governance, collaboration, and fundraising.

# LEAD 475 | SOCIAL ENTERPRISE AND INNOVATION Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Students will acquire a basic understanding of social enterprise and innovation (SE/I) in both theory and practice. Such strategies seek to address intractable social problems by developing specific entrepreneurial approaches designed for a nonprofit, for-profit, or hybrid setting (e.g., Benefit corporation, Low-profit limited liability company, L3C). Students will become familiar with successful SE/I ventures, critically analyze and evaluate such approaches, and develop their own SE/I strategies. Students will create their own social venture, including the development of a viable business plan, financing, scale-up, and consideration of how to measure outcomes and impact.

# LEAD 485 | ADVANCED NONPROFIT LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT

# Units: 3

Prerequisites: LEAD 352

The purpose of this course is to explore advanced topics in nonprofit administration nationally and internationally. The course will cover: nonprofit law and legal issues, nonprofit governance, boards, and committees; strategic planning and partnerships; membership management; lobbying & advocacy and public policy processes; community outreach; and technology's impact on nonprofit administration. Prerequisite: LEAD352:Nonprofit Leadership and Management.

# LEAD 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

## Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Independent study designed for individual student needs. Students must complete the Application for Independent Study or Research form and obtain the signatures of the faculty supervisor, Department Chair, and the Associate Dean prior to registering for the course.

# **Leadership Studies Minor**

The Leadership Studies minor offers undergraduate students in any major the opportunity to learn and develop leadership abilities in their personal and professional lives. Studies include: an understanding of how organizations function; how change occurs in people's lives, in the organizations to which they belong, and in society in general; and the nature and purpose of leadership in transforming people, organizations and society. Leadership Studies minor students learn about group dynamics and study the ethical dimensions of leadership. Students articulate their own philosophy of leadership that will guide them in their future careers and throughout life. Leadership Studies minor students take a capstone course that will guide them in affecting change in our society. Practical experience is included to provide students the opportunity to develop their leadership skills.

Code	Title	Units
LEAD 160	Personal Leadership, Self-inquiry and Discovery	3
LEAD 350	Leadership and Group Development	3
or LEAD 357	Leadership and the Practice of Presence	
LEAD 351	Leadership for Change Capstone	3
LEAD 388	Leadership Internship and Skill Development I	3
Select six units of e	electives from the following:	6
LEAD 150	Emerging Leaders	
LEAD 162	Outdoor Leadership	
LEAD 349	Women in Leadership	
LEAD 352	Nonprofit Leadership and Management	
LEAD 353	Professional and Ethical Issues and the Practice of	
	Leadership	
LEAD 354	Leadership and Diversity in Organizations	
LEAD 357	Leadership and the Practice of Presence	
LEAD 359	Models of Participatory Leadership	
LEAD 360	Global Leadership:Experiential Study of Culture &	
	Leadership	
LEAD 365	Professional Engagement	
LEAD 366	Community Engagement	
LEAD 372	Leadership and Spirituality	
LEAD 373	Lessons in Leadership: The American Presidency	
LEAD 387P	Student Leadership Practical Experience	
LEAD 389	Leadership Internship and Skill Development II	
Total Units		18

No course substitutions permitted in the Leadership Studies Minor.

# LEAD 150 | EMERGING LEADERS

## Units: 2

This course is designed to acquaint entering freshmen with 21st-century models of leadership, and to expose them to the multiple opportunities for active participation in leadership at USD. Through readings, class presentations, experiential exercises, journal reflections, and small group discussion, students will be challenged to map their path of initial leadership development at USD.

# LEAD 160 | PERSONAL LEADERSHIP, SELF-INQUIRY AND DISCOVERY

### Units: 3

This course introduces students to the complexity of leadership through exploring classic and contemporary leadership theories with explicit connection to leadership practice. Students will learn about leadership concepts on an individual, group, and systemic level. Topics covered include: definitions of leadership, leadership theories, leadership and management, organizational leadership and change, diverse perspectives of leadership, and ethics. Through this course, students will develop competence and confidence in their ability to exercise leadership.

### LEAD 162 | OUTDOOR LEADERSHIP

#### Units: 3

This course will examine how the application of leadership, judgment, and decision-making principles affect the quality of wilderness experiences and the safety of the group. It includes classroom, case-study, experiential, and reflective learning opportunities, and will demonstrate how to apply lessons learned in the outdoors to other leadership opportunities. (Fee required).

# LEAD 179 | EXPERIMENTAL TOPICS IN LEADERSHIP STUDIES Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

This course number is used by the Department of Leadership Studies in the School of Leadership and Education Sciences for experimental topics courses. The title for each 179 course will vary by topic and program. If more than one 179 course is offered during a single semester, section numbers will help identify each course.

# LEAD 185 $\mid$ CERTIFYING FOR CHANGE - INTRO TO THE NONPROFIT SECTOR

### Units: 1

This course will introduce students to the nonprofit sector. By presenting the categories of nonprofit organizations, the course will help students explore how their personal values can be expressed and represented in the nonprofit world. Networking with alumni of the nonprofit program and other third sector professionals employed in a variety of different nonprofit organizations will serve to facilitate students' understanding and awareness of the sector. Students will interact with an array of individuals in diverse leadership roles. The course also presents the opportunity to consider the benefits of a national nonprofit certificate and its role in their future career path.

# LEAD 349 | WOMEN IN LEADERSHIP

## Units: 3

This course looks at the impact of gender on leadership. The approach focuses on theoretical and practical viewpoints, including but not limited to feminist perspectives. This course emphasizes and creates space for the exercise of self-awareness, skill development, self-reflection, and social responsibility for women in leadership.

# LEAD 350 | LEADERSHIP AND GROUP DEVELOPMENT Units: 3

This course provides opportunities for students to study and analyze the complexity of leadership and groups. Drawing on leadership and group theories and models, the following topics will be examined with explicit connections to experiences within and outside of the classroom: group dynamics, roles, norms, authority, power, and collaboration. Through this course students will develop greater awareness of roles, behaviors, and social identities in themselves and others. They will also learn how to be an effective group member and how to exercise leadership in groups.

## LEAD 351 | LEADERSHIP FOR CHANGE CAPSTONE

### Units: 3

Prerequisites: LEAD 160 and LEAD 350 or LEAD 357

The minimum grade for prerequisites is a C-. This capstone course is designed to integrate students' learning in the Leadership Minor with their experiences across a variety of contexts. Students will explore leadership for change on the interconnected levels of self, group, and system. They will engage in individual and group reflection to increase integrative learning and decrease blind spots. Additionally, students will solidify their personal philosophy of leadership and complete a group change project to affect the larger community. Throughout the course students will continuously examine the group process to better understand and apply leadership concepts to practice.

# LEAD 352 | NONPROFIT LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT

## Units: 3 Repeatability: No

### **Core Attributes: Community Service Learning**

This project-based course is designed to provide knowledge and understanding of the leadership and administration of nonprofit organizations. Students will gain theoretical and practical knowledge of concepts including alliances, board development, burnout/motivation, employment law, ethics, fundraising, internet strategies, lobbying, marketing, mergers, programming, personnel practices, public speaking, public relations, risk management, strategic planning, time management, volunteerism, and youth development.

# LEAD 353 | PROFESSIONAL AND ETHICAL ISSUES AND THE PRACTICE OF LEADERSHIP

#### Unite:

This course explores ethical issues pertinent to organizations. Students gain greater awareness of philosophical, religious, and civic traditions of leadership in organizations. Topics include social responsibility, employee rights, employee participation in decision making, self-regulation, economic justice, honesty, and deception.

# LEAD 354 | LEADERSHIP AND DIVERSITY IN ORGANIZATIONS Units: 3

This course is designed to provide an overview of how issues of diversity impact organizations. Using the organization as a frame of reference, topics include oppression, racism, discrimination, structural factors in organizations, communication across cultures, cultural differences affecting organizations, and moral obligations connected with the role of a leader. Students will analyze the reciprocal nature of beliefs, values, attitudes, and behaviors with regard to various microcultures in organizations.

## LEAD 355S | NONPROFIT SEMINAR I

## Units: 1 Repeatability: No

Students taking this course gain an appreciation for the role of leaders in nonprofit organizations. Topics include fundraising, nonprofit administration, financial management, financial management, human resources for volunteer and paid staff, marketing, and event planning. Students will have the opportunity to participate in applied service projects, participate in community-service learning, and meet with executives in the nonprofit field. Students will have the opportunity to connect leadership concepts to practice engaging in activities and discussions.

## LEAD 356S | NONPROFIT SEMINAR II

## Units: 1

This course is a continuation of LEAD 355S.

# LEAD 357 | LEADERSHIP AND THE PRACTICE OF PRESENCE Units: 3

This course is designed to offer students an opportunity to study the dynamics of leadership and authority in an experiential learning environment. Students develop the personal skills, awareness, and discipline necessary to exercise leadership effectively; and they are encouraged to expand their thinking beyond traditional notions of leadership. The weekend format provides a temporary organizational setting that duplicates to some extent the dynamics that occur regularly in organizations, connecting classroom learning to real world problems. Learning in this course encompasses the interconnected levels of self, others, and systems.

# LEAD 359 | MODELS OF PARTICIPATORY LEADERSHIP Units: 3

This course is an opportunity for participants to be exposed to the Mondragon Cooperative Corporation (MCC). MCC is in Mondragon, Spain, and is a unique organizational model of superior economic success coupled with participatory leadership, management, ownership, and decision making. Participants will review the sales, financial, and growth figures, and will become acquainted with MCC's unique educational, training, financial, and human resources systems, as well as with the institutionalized core values that support MCC. These values are based on an ongoing balance between organization and personal needs, continuous solidarity with each other and the community, and economic and social justice. This class is currently being held during the summer only.

# LEAD 360 | GLOBAL LEADERSHIP: EXPERIENTIAL STUDY OF CULTURE & LEADERSHIP

Units: 3

Prerequisites: LEAD 160

Global Leadership is a course designed to provide an experiential classroom experience to examine the impact of culture on leaders and followers at the national, group, and organizational levels. It provides an examination of relevant theories and applies them to help students develop a cultural mindset that is essential to effective leadership in today's global and interconnected world. Additionally, this is a collaborative course that will examine what constitutes "effective" leadership across cultures. It will be collaborative as the students are expected to provide some of the content. Through the experiences in and out of the classroom, students will focus on deeply understanding culture and contexts influence on leadership, engage in reflection, and develop their global leadership capacities.

## LEAD 365 | PROFESSIONAL ENGAGEMENT

## Units: 1

This course combines student learning about leadership with an opportunity to engage in a professional conference setting. With prior approval from the instructor, each student will choose a conference context in which to engage. This engagement can include, but is not limited to, an active involvement in the undergraduate Case Study Team for the International Leadership Association, a conference presentation at the National Collegiate Leadership Conference, or another approved experience. Through this experience students will explore self in relation to others, experience a context in which they apply leadership concepts, experience a professional setting in which to improve networking and presentation skills, and develop a sense of social responsibility to lead within the professional community.

## LEAD 366 | COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Units: 1

This course combines student learning about leadership with a semester-long community engagement opportunity. With prior approval from the instructor, each student will choose a context in which to engage the larger community. This engagement can include an active involvement in a campus or community organization, a service learning project, an international experience, participation in a professional or leadership conference, participation in a mentoring relationship, or other approved experience. Through this experience students will explore self in relation to others, experience a context in which they apply leadership concepts, and develop a sense of social responsibility to lead and serve others within the community.

## LEAD 372 | LEADERSHIP AND SPIRITUALITY

Units: 3

Prerequisites: LEAD 160

This course focuses on leadership as a spiritual activity, reclaiming the notion that authentic leadership comes from within, inspired by our unique passions and talents, and guided by our deepest beliefs and most cherished values. We will consider the spiritual roots of authentic leadership through exploration of an individual's own experience of leadership and spirituality. Much of the course is informed by research and readings from the fields of leadership studies, spirituality, psychology, sociology, and theology.

# LEAD 373 | LESSONS IN LEADERSHIP: THE AMERICAN PRESIDENCY

Units: 3

This course provides opportunities for students to study and analyze the complexity of leadership by examining the lives and actions of selected U.S. presidents. Students will exam, critique, and report on matters of presidential leadership as noted by historians, journalists, leadership experts, and the presidents themselves. The overall purpose of the course is to abstract "lessons in leaders," if any, and to test the proposition that U.S. presidents should be "leaders of character.".

# LEAD 379 | EXPERMENTAL TOPICS IN LEADERSHIP STUDIES Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

This course number is used by the Department of Leadership Studies in the School of Leadership and Education Sciences for experimental topics courses. The title for each 379 course will vary by topic and program. If more than one 379 course is offered during a single semester, section numbers will help identify each

# LEAD 387P | STUDENT LEADERSHIP PRACTICAL EXPERIENCE Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

The Student Leadership Practical Experience is a course designed to provide a structured classroom experience to accompany a practical leadership experience on campus. Through the practical experience and classroom experience, students will focus on applying leadership concepts to practice, engage in reflection, and develop their leadership capacities. Practical experience placement must be preapproved.

# LEAD 388 | LEADERSHIP INTERNSHIP AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT I Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: LEAD 160 or LEAD 350 or LEAD 357 Students taking this internship course develop their leadership skills by serving in a position of influence in an off-campus community organization. The internship connects leadership concepts to leadership practice and provides experience from which students can gain valuable job skills and experience in a possible future career. Through the internship experience and accompanying classroom experience, students will be able to examine their experiences alongside leadership concepts, engage in reflection, and develop their leadership capacities. Internship placement must be pre-approved.

# LEAD 389 | LEADERSHIP INTERNSHIP AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT II Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: LEAD 160 or LEAD 350 or LEAD 357 Students taking this internship course develop their leadership skills by serving in a position of influence in an off-campus community organization. The internship connects leadership concepts to leadership practice and provides experience from which students can gain valuable job skills and experience in a possible future career. Through the internship experience and accompanying classroom experience, students will be able to examine their experiences alongside leadership concepts, engage in reflection, and develop their leadership capacities. Internship placement must be pre-approved.

## LEAD 399 | INDEPENDENT STUDY (1-3)

## Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Independent study designed for individual student needs. Students must complete the Application for Independent Study or Research form and obtain the signatures of the faculty supervisor, Department Chair, and the Associate Dean prior to registering for the course.

# LEAD 470 | INTERNATIONAL NONGOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS

## Units: 3 Repeatability: No

The international nonprofit sector has expanded rapidly in the past decades, but is also undergoing significant change. Evolving social media, shifting donor demands, and more competition from the corporate sector have affected the international nonprofit sector in fundamental ways. Today, organizations such as Kiva, sumofus.org, change.org, or 350.org are seeking to establish more direct connections across the globe in order to end poverty, environmental destruction, or human rights abuses. Social enterprises and more revenue generating models of activism are also increasingly popular and challenge the unique position of nonprofit/nongovernmental organizations. This course introduces students to the international nonprofit/nongovernmental sector and explores its main contemporary challenges, including issues of effectiveness, accountability, governance, collaboration, and fundraising.

# LEAD 475 | SOCIAL ENTERPRISE AND INNOVATION Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Students will acquire a basic understanding of social enterprise and innovation (SE/I) in both theory and practice. Such strategies seek to address intractable social problems by developing specific entrepreneurial approaches designed for a nonprofit, for-profit, or hybrid setting (e.g., Benefit corporation, Low-profit limited liability company, L3C). Students will become familiar with successful SE/I ventures, critically analyze and evaluate such approaches, and develop their own SE/I strategies. Students will create their own social venture, including the development of a viable business plan, financing, scale-up, and consideration of how to measure outcomes and impact.

# LEAD 485 | ADVANCED NONPROFIT LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT

Units: 3

Prerequisites: LEAD 352

The purpose of this course is to explore advanced topics in nonprofit administration nationally and internationally. The course will cover: nonprofit law and legal issues, nonprofit governance, boards, and committees; strategic planning and partnerships; membership management; lobbying & advocacy and public policy processes; community outreach; and technology's impact on nonprofit administration. Prerequisite: LEAD352:Nonprofit Leadership and Management.

# LEAD 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

## Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Independent study designed for individual student needs. Students must complete the Application for Independent Study or Research form and obtain the signatures of the faculty supervisor, Department Chair, and the Associate Dean prior to registering for the course.

# Nonprofit Social Enterprise and Philanthropy Minor

The minor in Nonprofit Social Enterprise and Philanthropy provides students with a fundamental understanding of this major sector, locally, nationally and globally. The program allows for critical reflection on changes occurring in this economically important sector and studies its philanthropic environment. The coursework in this program is project-based and experiential, giving students a hands-on opportunity to develop basic professional skills that can support them in their future careers. Upon completion of the minor, students are eligible to obtain a Certified Nonprofit Professional (CNP) designation through the national Nonprofit Leadership Alliance. The Nonprofit Leadership Alliance is a nationally recognized organization that includes many professional benefits for graduates including access to employers, assistance with internship and job placement, professional development, and considerable networking.

The program is available to undergraduate students in any major. Students have the option of completing the minor in conjunction with any USD degree program.

# Nonprofit Social Enterprise and Philanthropy Minor (18 units)

	• •	
Code	Title	Units
LEAD 352	Nonprofit Leadership and Management	3
LEAD 388	Leadership Internship and Skill Development I 1	3
LEAD 389	Leadership Internship and Skill Development II <sup>2</sup>	3
LEAD 475	Social Enterprise and Innovation	3
LEAD 485	Advanced Nonprofit Leadership and Management	3
Select three units	of electives from the following:	3
LEAD 160	Personal Leadership, Self-inquiry and Discovery	
LEAD 185	Certifying for Change - Intro to the Nonprofit Sector	
LEAD 355S	Nonprofit Seminar I	
LEAD 356S	Nonprofit Seminar II	
LEAD 357	Leadership and the Practice of Presence	
LEAD 470	International Nongovernmental Organizations	
Total Units		18

- LEAD 387P Student Leadership: Practical Experience may be substituted for LEAD 388
- BUS 498 Business Internship may be substituted for LEAD 389

# **LEAD 150 | EMERGING LEADERS**

## Units: 2

This course is designed to acquaint entering freshmen with 21st-century models of leadership, and to expose them to the multiple opportunities for active participation in leadership at USD. Through readings, class presentations, experiential exercises, journal reflections, and small group discussion, students will be challenged to map their path of initial leadership development at USD.

# LEAD 160 | PERSONAL LEADERSHIP, SELF-INQUIRY AND DISCOVERY

### Units: 3

This course introduces students to the complexity of leadership through exploring classic and contemporary leadership theories with explicit connection to leadership practice. Students will learn about leadership concepts on an individual, group, and systemic level. Topics covered include: definitions of leadership, leadership theories, leadership and management, organizational leadership and change, diverse perspectives of leadership, and ethics. Through this course, students will develop competence and confidence in their ability to exercise leadership.

### LEAD 162 | OUTDOOR LEADERSHIP

#### Units: 3

This course will examine how the application of leadership, judgment, and decision-making principles affect the quality of wilderness experiences and the safety of the group. It includes classroom, case-study, experiential, and reflective learning opportunities, and will demonstrate how to apply lessons learned in the outdoors to other leadership opportunities. (Fee required).

# LEAD 179 | EXPERIMENTAL TOPICS IN LEADERSHIP STUDIES Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

This course number is used by the Department of Leadership Studies in the School of Leadership and Education Sciences for experimental topics courses. The title for each 179 course will vary by topic and program. If more than one 179 course is offered during a single semester, section numbers will help identify each course.

# LEAD 185 $\mid$ CERTIFYING FOR CHANGE - INTRO TO THE NONPROFIT SECTOR

### Units: 1

This course will introduce students to the nonprofit sector. By presenting the categories of nonprofit organizations, the course will help students explore how their personal values can be expressed and represented in the nonprofit world. Networking with alumni of the nonprofit program and other third sector professionals employed in a variety of different nonprofit organizations will serve to facilitate students' understanding and awareness of the sector. Students will interact with an array of individuals in diverse leadership roles. The course also presents the opportunity to consider the benefits of a national nonprofit certificate and its role in their future career path.

# LEAD 349 | WOMEN IN LEADERSHIP

## Units: 3

This course looks at the impact of gender on leadership. The approach focuses on theoretical and practical viewpoints, including but not limited to feminist perspectives. This course emphasizes and creates space for the exercise of self-awareness, skill development, self-reflection, and social responsibility for women in leadership.

# LEAD 350 | LEADERSHIP AND GROUP DEVELOPMENT Units: 3

This course provides opportunities for students to study and analyze the complexity of leadership and groups. Drawing on leadership and group theories and models, the following topics will be examined with explicit connections to experiences within and outside of the classroom: group dynamics, roles, norms, authority, power, and collaboration. Through this course students will develop greater awareness of roles, behaviors, and social identities in themselves and others. They will also learn how to be an effective group member and how to exercise leadership in groups.

## LEAD 351 | LEADERSHIP FOR CHANGE CAPSTONE

### Units: 3

Prerequisites: LEAD 160 and LEAD 350 or LEAD 357

The minimum grade for prerequisites is a C-. This capstone course is designed to integrate students' learning in the Leadership Minor with their experiences across a variety of contexts. Students will explore leadership for change on the interconnected levels of self, group, and system. They will engage in individual and group reflection to increase integrative learning and decrease blind spots. Additionally, students will solidify their personal philosophy of leadership and complete a group change project to affect the larger community. Throughout the course students will continuously examine the group process to better understand and apply leadership concepts to practice.

# LEAD 352 | NONPROFIT LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT

## Units: 3 Repeatability: No

## **Core Attributes: Community Service Learning**

This project-based course is designed to provide knowledge and understanding of the leadership and administration of nonprofit organizations. Students will gain theoretical and practical knowledge of concepts including alliances, board development, burnout/motivation, employment law, ethics, fundraising, internet strategies, lobbying, marketing, mergers, programming, personnel practices, public speaking, public relations, risk management, strategic planning, time management, volunteerism, and youth development.

# LEAD 353 | PROFESSIONAL AND ETHICAL ISSUES AND THE PRACTICE OF LEADERSHIP

#### Unite:

This course explores ethical issues pertinent to organizations. Students gain greater awareness of philosophical, religious, and civic traditions of leadership in organizations. Topics include social responsibility, employee rights, employee participation in decision making, self-regulation, economic justice, honesty, and deception.

# LEAD 354 | LEADERSHIP AND DIVERSITY IN ORGANIZATIONS Units: 3

This course is designed to provide an overview of how issues of diversity impact organizations. Using the organization as a frame of reference, topics include oppression, racism, discrimination, structural factors in organizations, communication across cultures, cultural differences affecting organizations, and moral obligations connected with the role of a leader. Students will analyze the reciprocal nature of beliefs, values, attitudes, and behaviors with regard to various microcultures in organizations.

# LEAD 355S | NONPROFIT SEMINAR I

## Units: 1 Repeatability: No

Students taking this course gain an appreciation for the role of leaders in nonprofit organizations. Topics include fundraising, nonprofit administration, financial management, financial management, human resources for volunteer and paid staff, marketing, and event planning. Students will have the opportunity to participate in applied service projects, participate in community-service learning, and meet with executives in the nonprofit field. Students will have the opportunity to connect leadership concepts to practice engaging in activities and discussions.

## LEAD 356S | NONPROFIT SEMINAR II

## Units: 1

This course is a continuation of LEAD 355S.

# LEAD 357 | LEADERSHIP AND THE PRACTICE OF PRESENCE Units: 3

This course is designed to offer students an opportunity to study the dynamics of leadership and authority in an experiential learning environment. Students develop the personal skills, awareness, and discipline necessary to exercise leadership effectively; and they are encouraged to expand their thinking beyond traditional notions of leadership. The weekend format provides a temporary organizational setting that duplicates to some extent the dynamics that occur regularly in organizations, connecting classroom learning to real world problems. Learning in this course encompasses the interconnected levels of self, others, and systems.

# LEAD 359 | MODELS OF PARTICIPATORY LEADERSHIP Units: 3

This course is an opportunity for participants to be exposed to the Mondragon Cooperative Corporation (MCC). MCC is in Mondragon, Spain, and is a unique organizational model of superior economic success coupled with participatory leadership, management, ownership, and decision making. Participants will review the sales, financial, and growth figures, and will become acquainted with MCC's unique educational, training, financial, and human resources systems, as well as with the institutionalized core values that support MCC. These values are based on an ongoing balance between organization and personal needs, continuous solidarity with each other and the community, and economic and social justice. This class is currently being held during the summer only.

# LEAD 360 | GLOBAL LEADERSHIP: EXPERIENTIAL STUDY OF CULTURE & LEADERSHIP

Units: 3

Prerequisites: LEAD 160

Global Leadership is a course designed to provide an experiential classroom experience to examine the impact of culture on leaders and followers at the national, group, and organizational levels. It provides an examination of relevant theories and applies them to help students develop a cultural mindset that is essential to effective leadership in today's global and interconnected world. Additionally, this is a collaborative course that will examine what constitutes "effective" leadership across cultures. It will be collaborative as the students are expected to provide some of the content. Through the experiences in and out of the classroom, students will focus on deeply understanding culture and contexts influence on leadership, engage in reflection, and develop their global leadership capacities.

## LEAD 365 | PROFESSIONAL ENGAGEMENT

## Units: 1

This course combines student learning about leadership with an opportunity to engage in a professional conference setting. With prior approval from the instructor, each student will choose a conference context in which to engage. This engagement can include, but is not limited to, an active involvement in the undergraduate Case Study Team for the International Leadership Association, a conference presentation at the National Collegiate Leadership Conference, or another approved experience. Through this experience students will explore self in relation to others, experience a context in which they apply leadership concepts, experience a professional setting in which to improve networking and presentation skills, and develop a sense of social responsibility to lead within the professional community.

## LEAD 366 | COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Units: 1

This course combines student learning about leadership with a semester-long community engagement opportunity. With prior approval from the instructor, each student will choose a context in which to engage the larger community. This engagement can include an active involvement in a campus or community organization, a service learning project, an international experience, participation in a professional or leadership conference, participation in a mentoring relationship, or other approved experience. Through this experience students will explore self in relation to others, experience a context in which they apply leadership concepts, and develop a sense of social responsibility to lead and serve others within the community.

# LEAD 372 | LEADERSHIP AND SPIRITUALITY

Units: 3

Prerequisites: LEAD 160

This course focuses on leadership as a spiritual activity, reclaiming the notion that authentic leadership comes from within, inspired by our unique passions and talents, and guided by our deepest beliefs and most cherished values. We will consider the spiritual roots of authentic leadership through exploration of an individual's own experience of leadership and spirituality. Much of the course is informed by research and readings from the fields of leadership studies, spirituality, psychology, sociology, and theology.

# LEAD 373 | LESSONS IN LEADERSHIP: THE AMERICAN PRESIDENCY

Units: 3

This course provides opportunities for students to study and analyze the complexity of leadership by examining the lives and actions of selected U.S. presidents. Students will exam, critique, and report on matters of presidential leadership as noted by historians, journalists, leadership experts, and the presidents themselves. The overall purpose of the course is to abstract "lessons in leaders," if any, and to test the proposition that U.S. presidents should be "leaders of character.".

# LEAD 379 | EXPERMENTAL TOPICS IN LEADERSHIP STUDIES Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

This course number is used by the Department of Leadership Studies in the School of Leadership and Education Sciences for experimental topics courses. The title for each 379 course will vary by topic and program. If more than one 379 course is offered during a single semester, section numbers will help identify each

# LEAD 387P | STUDENT LEADERSHIP PRACTICAL EXPERIENCE Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

The Student Leadership Practical Experience is a course designed to provide a structured classroom experience to accompany a practical leadership experience on campus. Through the practical experience and classroom experience, students will focus on applying leadership concepts to practice, engage in reflection, and develop their leadership capacities. Practical experience placement must be preapproved.

# LEAD 388 | LEADERSHIP INTERNSHIP AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT I Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: LEAD 160 or LEAD 350 or LEAD 357 Students taking this internship course develop their leadership skills by serving in a position of influence in an off-campus community organization. The internship connects leadership concepts to leadership practice and provides experience from which students can gain valuable job skills and experience in a possible future career. Through the internship experience and accompanying classroom experience, students will be able to examine their experiences alongside leadership concepts, engage in reflection, and develop their leadership capacities. Internship placement must be pre-approved.

# LEAD 389 | LEADERSHIP INTERNSHIP AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT II Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: LEAD 160 or LEAD 350 or LEAD 352 or LEAD 357

Students taking this internship course develop their leadership skills by serving in a position of influence in an off-campus community organization. The internship connects leadership concepts to leadership practice and provides experience from which students can gain valuable job skills and experience in a possible future career. Through the internship experience and accompanying classroom experience, students will be able to examine their experiences alongside leadership concepts, engage in reflection, and develop their leadership capacities. Internship placement must be pre-approved.

## LEAD 399 | INDEPENDENT STUDY (1-3)

## Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Independent study designed for individual student needs. Students must complete the Application for Independent Study or Research form and obtain the signatures of the faculty supervisor, Department Chair, and the Associate Dean prior to registering for the course.

# LEAD 470 | INTERNATIONAL NONGOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

The international nonprofit sector has expanded rapidly in the past decades, but is also undergoing significant change. Evolving social media, shifting donor demands, and more competition from the corporate sector have affected the international nonprofit sector in fundamental ways. Today, organizations such as Kiva, sumofus.org, change.org, or 350.org are seeking to establish more direct connections across the globe in order to end poverty, environmental destruction, or human rights abuses. Social enterprises and more revenue generating models of activism are also increasingly popular and challenge the unique position of nonprofit/nongovernmental organizations. This course introduces students to the international nonprofit/nongovernmental sector and explores its main contemporary challenges, including issues of effectiveness, accountability, governance, collaboration, and fundraising.

# LEAD 475 | SOCIAL ENTERPRISE AND INNOVATION Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Students will acquire a basic understanding of social enterprise and innovation (SE/I) in both theory and practice. Such strategies seek to address intractable social problems by developing specific entrepreneurial approaches designed for a nonprofit, for-profit, or hybrid setting (e.g., Benefit corporation, Low-profit limited liability company, L3C). Students will become familiar with successful SE/I ventures, critically analyze and evaluate such approaches, and develop their own SE/I strategies. Students will create their own social venture, including the development of a viable business plan, financing, scale-up, and consideration of how to measure outcomes and impact.

# LEAD 485 | ADVANCED NONPROFIT LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT

Units: 3

Prerequisites: LEAD 352

The purpose of this course is to explore advanced topics in nonprofit administration nationally and internationally. The course will cover: nonprofit law and legal issues, nonprofit governance, boards, and committees; strategic planning and partnerships; membership management; lobbying & advocacy and public policy processes; community outreach; and technology's impact on nonprofit administration. Prerequisite: LEAD352:Nonprofit Leadership and Management.

# LEAD 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

## Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Independent study designed for individual student needs. Students must complete the Application for Independent Study or Research form and obtain the signatures of the faculty supervisor, Department Chair, and the Associate Dean prior to registering for the course.

# Nonprofit Leadership and Management Certificate Program

The Nonprofit Leadership and Management Certificate program is an innovative course of study that develops and certifies students to become skilled professionals and leaders in the nonprofit sector. The coursework in the program is project-based and experiential, designed to prepare students to work in the nonprofit sector. Students study issues critical to the sector, develop leadership competencies, complete internships and attend a four day professional nonprofit leadership and management conference. Upon completion of the certificate program, students are eligible to obtain a Certified Nonprofit Professional (CNP) designation through the national Nonprofit Leadership Alliance. The Nonprofit Leadership Alliance is a nationally recognized organization that includes many professional benefits for graduates including access to employers, assistance with internship and job placement, professional development and considerable networking opportunities.

The program is available to undergraduate students in any major. Students have the option of completing the certificate in conjunction with any USD degree program or completion of a 20-unit program to obtain the Nonprofit Leadership and Management Certificate and the Leadership Studies minor.

# Nonprofit Leadership and Management Certificate

Code	Title	Units
LEAD 352	Nonprofit Leadership and Management	3
LEAD 387P	Student Leadership Practical Experience	3
or LEAD 388	Leadership Internship and Skill Development I	
LEAD 389	Leadership Internship and Skill Development II <sup>1</sup>	3
Select three units of	of electives from the following:	3
LEAD 185	Certifying for Change - Intro to the Nonprofit Sector	
LEAD 355S	Nonprofit Seminar I	
LEAD 356S	Nonprofit Seminar II	
LEAD 485	Advanced Nonprofit Leadership and Management	
LEAD 470	International Nongovernmental Organizations	
LEAD 475	Social Enterprise and Innovation	
Total Units		12

BUSN 498 Business Internship may be substituted for LEAD 389.

Attendance at one Nonprofit Leadership Alliance Conference is required.

## LEAD 150 | EMERGING LEADERS

## Units: 2

This course is designed to acquaint entering freshmen with 21st-century models of leadership, and to expose them to the multiple opportunities for active participation in leadership at USD. Through readings, class presentations, experiential exercises, journal reflections, and small group discussion, students will be challenged to map their path of initial leadership development at USD.

# LEAD 160 | PERSONAL LEADERSHIP, SELF-INQUIRY AND DISCOVERY

### Units: 3

This course introduces students to the complexity of leadership through exploring classic and contemporary leadership theories with explicit connection to leadership practice. Students will learn about leadership concepts on an individual, group, and systemic level. Topics covered include: definitions of leadership, leadership theories, leadership and management, organizational leadership and change, diverse perspectives of leadership, and ethics. Through this course, students will develop competence and confidence in their ability to exercise leadership.

### LEAD 162 | OUTDOOR LEADERSHIP

#### Units: 3

This course will examine how the application of leadership, judgment, and decision-making principles affect the quality of wilderness experiences and the safety of the group. It includes classroom, case-study, experiential, and reflective learning opportunities, and will demonstrate how to apply lessons learned in the outdoors to other leadership opportunities. (Fee required).

# LEAD 179 | EXPERIMENTAL TOPICS IN LEADERSHIP STUDIES Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

This course number is used by the Department of Leadership Studies in the School of Leadership and Education Sciences for experimental topics courses. The title for each 179 course will vary by topic and program. If more than one 179 course is offered during a single semester, section numbers will help identify each course.

# LEAD 185 $\mid$ CERTIFYING FOR CHANGE - INTRO TO THE NONPROFIT SECTOR

### Units: 1

This course will introduce students to the nonprofit sector. By presenting the categories of nonprofit organizations, the course will help students explore how their personal values can be expressed and represented in the nonprofit world. Networking with alumni of the nonprofit program and other third sector professionals employed in a variety of different nonprofit organizations will serve to facilitate students' understanding and awareness of the sector. Students will interact with an array of individuals in diverse leadership roles. The course also presents the opportunity to consider the benefits of a national nonprofit certificate and its role in their future career path.

# LEAD 349 | WOMEN IN LEADERSHIP

## Units: 3

This course looks at the impact of gender on leadership. The approach focuses on theoretical and practical viewpoints, including but not limited to feminist perspectives. This course emphasizes and creates space for the exercise of self-awareness, skill development, self-reflection, and social responsibility for women in leadership.

# LEAD 350 | LEADERSHIP AND GROUP DEVELOPMENT Units: 3

This course provides opportunities for students to study and analyze the complexity of leadership and groups. Drawing on leadership and group theories and models, the following topics will be examined with explicit connections to experiences within and outside of the classroom: group dynamics, roles, norms, authority, power, and collaboration. Through this course students will develop greater awareness of roles, behaviors, and social identities in themselves and others. They will also learn how to be an effective group member and how to exercise leadership in groups.

## LEAD 351 | LEADERSHIP FOR CHANGE CAPSTONE

### Units: 3

Prerequisites: LEAD 160 and LEAD 350 or LEAD 357

The minimum grade for prerequisites is a C-. This capstone course is designed to integrate students' learning in the Leadership Minor with their experiences across a variety of contexts. Students will explore leadership for change on the interconnected levels of self, group, and system. They will engage in individual and group reflection to increase integrative learning and decrease blind spots. Additionally, students will solidify their personal philosophy of leadership and complete a group change project to affect the larger community. Throughout the course students will continuously examine the group process to better understand and apply leadership concepts to practice.

# LEAD 352 | NONPROFIT LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT

# Units: 3 Repeatability: No

### **Core Attributes: Community Service Learning**

This project-based course is designed to provide knowledge and understanding of the leadership and administration of nonprofit organizations. Students will gain theoretical and practical knowledge of concepts including alliances, board development, burnout/motivation, employment law, ethics, fundraising, internet strategies, lobbying, marketing, mergers, programming, personnel practices, public speaking, public relations, risk management, strategic planning, time management, volunteerism, and youth development.

# LEAD 353 | PROFESSIONAL AND ETHICAL ISSUES AND THE PRACTICE OF LEADERSHIP

#### Unite:

This course explores ethical issues pertinent to organizations. Students gain greater awareness of philosophical, religious, and civic traditions of leadership in organizations. Topics include social responsibility, employee rights, employee participation in decision making, self-regulation, economic justice, honesty, and deception.

# LEAD 354 | LEADERSHIP AND DIVERSITY IN ORGANIZATIONS Units: 3

This course is designed to provide an overview of how issues of diversity impact organizations. Using the organization as a frame of reference, topics include oppression, racism, discrimination, structural factors in organizations, communication across cultures, cultural differences affecting organizations, and moral obligations connected with the role of a leader. Students will analyze the reciprocal nature of beliefs, values, attitudes, and behaviors with regard to various microcultures in organizations.

# LEAD 355S | NONPROFIT SEMINAR I

## Units: 1 Repeatability: No

Students taking this course gain an appreciation for the role of leaders in nonprofit organizations. Topics include fundraising, nonprofit administration, financial management, financial management, human resources for volunteer and paid staff, marketing, and event planning. Students will have the opportunity to participate in applied service projects, participate in community-service learning, and meet with executives in the nonprofit field. Students will have the opportunity to connect leadership concepts to practice engaging in activities and discussions.

## LEAD 356S | NONPROFIT SEMINAR II

## Units: 1

This course is a continuation of LEAD 355S.

# LEAD 357 | LEADERSHIP AND THE PRACTICE OF PRESENCE Units: 3

This course is designed to offer students an opportunity to study the dynamics of leadership and authority in an experiential learning environment. Students develop the personal skills, awareness, and discipline necessary to exercise leadership effectively; and they are encouraged to expand their thinking beyond traditional notions of leadership. The weekend format provides a temporary organizational setting that duplicates to some extent the dynamics that occur regularly in organizations, connecting classroom learning to real world problems. Learning in this course encompasses the interconnected levels of self, others, and systems.

# LEAD 359 | MODELS OF PARTICIPATORY LEADERSHIP Units: 3

This course is an opportunity for participants to be exposed to the Mondragon Cooperative Corporation (MCC). MCC is in Mondragon, Spain, and is a unique organizational model of superior economic success coupled with participatory leadership, management, ownership, and decision making. Participants will review the sales, financial, and growth figures, and will become acquainted with MCC's unique educational, training, financial, and human resources systems, as well as with the institutionalized core values that support MCC. These values are based on an ongoing balance between organization and personal needs, continuous solidarity with each other and the community, and economic and social justice. This class is currently being held during the summer only.

# LEAD 360 | GLOBAL LEADERSHIP: EXPERIENTIAL STUDY OF CULTURE & LEADERSHIP

Units: 3

Prerequisites: LEAD 160

Global Leadership is a course designed to provide an experiential classroom experience to examine the impact of culture on leaders and followers at the national, group, and organizational levels. It provides an examination of relevant theories and applies them to help students develop a cultural mindset that is essential to effective leadership in today's global and interconnected world. Additionally, this is a collaborative course that will examine what constitutes "effective" leadership across cultures. It will be collaborative as the students are expected to provide some of the content. Through the experiences in and out of the classroom, students will focus on deeply understanding culture and contexts influence on leadership, engage in reflection, and develop their global leadership capacities.

## LEAD 365 | PROFESSIONAL ENGAGEMENT

## Units: 1

This course combines student learning about leadership with an opportunity to engage in a professional conference setting. With prior approval from the instructor, each student will choose a conference context in which to engage. This engagement can include, but is not limited to, an active involvement in the undergraduate Case Study Team for the International Leadership Association, a conference presentation at the National Collegiate Leadership Conference, or another approved experience. Through this experience students will explore self in relation to others, experience a context in which they apply leadership concepts, experience a professional setting in which to improve networking and presentation skills, and develop a sense of social responsibility to lead within the professional community.

## LEAD 366 | COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Units: 1

This course combines student learning about leadership with a semester-long community engagement opportunity. With prior approval from the instructor, each student will choose a context in which to engage the larger community. This engagement can include an active involvement in a campus or community organization, a service learning project, an international experience, participation in a professional or leadership conference, participation in a mentoring relationship, or other approved experience. Through this experience students will explore self in relation to others, experience a context in which they apply leadership concepts, and develop a sense of social responsibility to lead and serve others within the community.

# LEAD 372 | LEADERSHIP AND SPIRITUALITY

Units: 3

Prerequisites: LEAD 160

This course focuses on leadership as a spiritual activity, reclaiming the notion that authentic leadership comes from within, inspired by our unique passions and talents, and guided by our deepest beliefs and most cherished values. We will consider the spiritual roots of authentic leadership through exploration of an individual's own experience of leadership and spirituality. Much of the course is informed by research and readings from the fields of leadership studies, spirituality, psychology, sociology, and theology.

# LEAD 373 | LESSONS IN LEADERSHIP: THE AMERICAN PRESIDENCY

Units: 3

This course provides opportunities for students to study and analyze the complexity of leadership by examining the lives and actions of selected U.S. presidents. Students will exam, critique, and report on matters of presidential leadership as noted by historians, journalists, leadership experts, and the presidents themselves. The overall purpose of the course is to abstract "lessons in leaders," if any, and to test the proposition that U.S. presidents should be "leaders of character.".

# LEAD 379 | EXPERMENTAL TOPICS IN LEADERSHIP STUDIES Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

This course number is used by the Department of Leadership Studies in the School of Leadership and Education Sciences for experimental topics courses. The title for each 379 course will vary by topic and program. If more than one 379 course is offered during a single semester, section numbers will help identify each

# LEAD 387P | STUDENT LEADERSHIP PRACTICAL EXPERIENCE Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

The Student Leadership Practical Experience is a course designed to provide a structured classroom experience to accompany a practical leadership experience on campus. Through the practical experience and classroom experience, students will focus on applying leadership concepts to practice, engage in reflection, and develop their leadership capacities. Practical experience placement must be preapproved.

# LEAD 388 | LEADERSHIP INTERNSHIP AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT I Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: LEAD 160 or LEAD 350 or LEAD 357 Students taking this internship course develop their leadership skills by serving in a position of influence in an off-campus community organization. The internship connects leadership concepts to leadership practice and provides experience from which students can gain valuable job skills and experience in a possible future career. Through the internship experience and accompanying classroom experience, students will be able to examine their experiences alongside leadership concepts, engage in reflection, and develop their leadership capacities. Internship placement must be pre-approved.

# LEAD 389 | LEADERSHIP INTERNSHIP AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT II Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: LEAD 160 or LEAD 350 or LEAD 352 or LEAD 357

Students taking this internship course develop their leadership skills by serving in a position of influence in an off-campus community organization. The internship connects leadership concepts to leadership practice and provides experience from which students can gain valuable job skills and experience in a possible future career. Through the internship experience and accompanying classroom experience, students will be able to examine their experiences alongside leadership concepts, engage in reflection, and develop their leadership capacities. Internship placement must be pre-approved.

# LEAD 399 | INDEPENDENT STUDY (1-3)

## Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Independent study designed for individual student needs. Students must complete the Application for Independent Study or Research form and obtain the signatures of the faculty supervisor, Department Chair, and the Associate Dean prior to registering for the course.

# LEAD 470 | INTERNATIONAL NONGOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

The international nonprofit sector has expanded rapidly in the past decades, but is also undergoing significant change. Evolving social media, shifting donor demands, and more competition from the corporate sector have affected the international nonprofit sector in fundamental ways. Today, organizations such as Kiva, sumofus.org, change.org, or 350.org are seeking to establish more direct connections across the globe in order to end poverty, environmental destruction, or human rights abuses. Social enterprises and more revenue generating models of activism are also increasingly popular and challenge the unique position of nonprofit/nongovernmental organizations. This course introduces students to the international nonprofit/nongovernmental sector and explores its main contemporary challenges, including issues of effectiveness, accountability, governance, collaboration, and fundraising.

# LEAD 475 | SOCIAL ENTERPRISE AND INNOVATION Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Students will acquire a basic understanding of social enterprise and innovation (SE/I) in both theory and practice. Such strategies seek to address intractable social problems by developing specific entrepreneurial approaches designed for a nonprofit, for-profit, or hybrid setting (e.g., Benefit corporation, Low-profit limited liability company, L3C). Students will become familiar with successful SE/I ventures, critically analyze and evaluate such approaches, and develop their own SE/I strategies. Students will create their own social venture, including the development of a viable business plan, financing, scale-up, and consideration of how to measure outcomes and impact.

# LEAD 485 | ADVANCED NONPROFIT LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT

Units: 3

Prerequisites: LEAD 352

The purpose of this course is to explore advanced topics in nonprofit administration nationally and internationally. The course will cover: nonprofit law and legal issues, nonprofit governance, boards, and committees; strategic planning and partnerships; membership management; lobbying & advocacy and public policy processes; community outreach; and technology's impact on nonprofit administration. Prerequisite: LEAD352:Nonprofit Leadership and Management.

# LEAD 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

## Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Independent study designed for individual student needs. Students must complete the Application for Independent Study or Research form and obtain the signatures of the faculty supervisor, Department Chair, and the Associate Dean prior to registering for the course.

# Leadership Studies Minor and Nonprofit Leadership and Management Certificate

Code	Title	Unit
LEAD 160	Personal Leadership, Self-inquiry and Discovery	3
LEAD 350	Leadership and Group Development	3
or LEAD 357	Leadership and the Practice of Presence	
LEAD 351	Leadership for Change Capstone	3
LEAD 352	Nonprofit Leadership and Management	3
LEAD 387P	Student Leadership Practical Experience	3
or LEAD 388	Leadership Internship and Skill Development I	
LEAD 389	Leadership Internship and Skill Development II <sup>1</sup>	2
Select three units o	f electives from the following:	3
LEAD 185	Certifying for Change - Intro to the Nonprofit Sector	
LEAD 355S	Nonprofit Seminar I	
LEAD 356S	Nonprofit Seminar II	
LEAD 470	International Nongovernmental Organizations	
LEAD 475	Social Enterprise and Innovation	
LEAD 485	Advanced Nonprofit Leadership and Management	
Total Units		20

Business majors may substitute BUSN 498 for LEAD 389 in this program.

# **Learning and Teaching**

# **Faculty**

Viviana Alexandrowicz, PhD

Donna Barnes, PhD

Sandy Buczynski, PhD

James Fabionar, PhD

C. Bobbi Hansen, EdD

Lea Hubbard, PhD

Rebekka Jez, EdD

Maya Kalyanpur, PhD

Sarina Molina, EdD

Reyes Quezada, EdD

Joi Spencer, PhD

Suzanne Stolz, EdD

The Department of Learning and Teaching offers a Combined BA/MEd Teacher Education Program (CTEP) offered in conjunction with the College of Arts and Sciences, an undergraduate Education Minor and options for pursuing a California Teaching Credential. The department offers a Multiple Subject Credential, primarily designed for working in an elementary school setting, a Single Subject Credential for middle and high school settings and an Education Specialist Credential designed for working with special education students.

# Combined BA/MEd Teacher Education Program (CTEP)

The Combined BA/MEd Teacher Education Program (CTEP) allows students to earn a BA in Liberal Studies, a preliminary Multiple Subject teaching credential, and an MEd in Curriculum and Instruction in five-years. Students complete the BA in Liberal Studies at the end of the fourth year of the program, will be eligible for the preliminary Multiple Subject teaching credential after the ninth semester (4.5 years), once the full-time student teaching has been completed, and receive the MEd in Curriculum and Instruction after completion of the fifth year.

Current University of San Diego undergraduates must declare Liberal Studies as their major. Interested undergraduates should contact the Liberal Studies Program Director, Dr. Margaret Daley, at mdaley@sandiego.edu or (619) 260-4781.

# **Education Minor**

The minor is open to all students interested in pursuing careers in education-related fields as well as those who aim to contribute to the educational community as volunteers, researchers, parents, and community members. Students will gain valuable knowledge about PK-12 schools, students, learning processes, the impact of structural, linguistic, cultural and economic factors on student success and teaching.

# **Credential Programs**

In the State of California classroom teachers are credentialed by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) upon the recommendation of colleges and universities with approved teacher education programs. At the University of San Diego, it is possible for students to graduate in four years with a bachelor's degree and a teaching credential in several areas; the preliminary Multiple Subject Credential for teaching in elementary education, the preliminary Education Specialist Credential with Mild to Moderate Authorization that prepares students to teach across K-12 settings and the preliminary Single Subject Credential for teaching in secondary education.

The Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) regularly revises program requirements to meet new standards.

# **Education Minor**

The education minor is an 18-unit program of study that includes a lower division introductory course, an educational foundations course and elective courses from the Department of Learning and Teaching and the College of Arts and Sciences. The program has the flexibility to complement an individual's interest, major and professional goals.

# Minor Courses (18 units)

Code	Title	Uni
Required Course		
EDUC 101	Introduction to Teaching and Learning	3
<b>Education Found</b>	lation Course	
EDUC 381C	Multicultural and Philosophical Foundations in a Global	

EDUC 381C Multicultural and Philosophical Founda

Society

or EDUC 382 Psychological Foundations of Education in a Diverse Society

## **Elective Courses**

At least six (6) units must be upper division. Up to six (6) units may be taken 12 outside of the Department of Learning and Teaching upon approval by the program advisor

Elective Options Include:

COMM 482 Children and Media

EDUC 124	Sport and Higher Education: The Student Athlete Experience
EDUC 201	Student Movements in Education
EDUC 301	Changemakers in Education: Building Bridges to College Access
EDUC 304	St. Clare's Comparative Education
EDUC 307	Spanish for Educators
LEAD 162	Outdoor Leadership
PHIL 341	Ethics and Education
PSYC 314	Developmental Psychology: Childhood and Adolescence
THEA 155	Theatre in Education
EDUC 381C	Multicultural and Philosophical Foundations in a Global Society
or EDUC 38	22 Psychological Foundations of Education in a Diverse Society

Total Units 15

# EDSP 370P | ASSESSMENT IDENTIFICATION TO TRANSITION SPECIAL EDUCATION

## Units: 3

Candidates develop skills in using a wide variety of assessment instruments and techniques to inform identification, placement, planning, monitoring and transitioning of students academically, socially and/or behaviorally atrisk. Students will administer formal assessment tests, construct, administer and evaluate informal assessments appropriate from preschool to adulthood in home, school and community settings. Focus is on criteria for becoming competent assessors of at-risk individuals with mild to moderate disabilities. Legal procedures, nondiscriminatory practices (including analysis of CELDT proficiency levels of ELL) and engagement in a district multidisciplinary team provide the framework for making valid assessment decisions. Case studies provide a problem-based opportunity to collaboratively explore the case management role of an education specialist. Candidates will use emerging understanding of assessment as an instructional informant to design, use and analyze formal and informal assessments that help monitor and plan instruction based on response to intervention (RtI). Overarching outcome is to become reliable competent consumers of assessment information to analyze assessment results to inform the IFSP, IEP & ITP decision-making process and ongoing instruction.

# EDSP 371P | POSITIVE BEHAVIOR AND INSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT IN SPED

## Units: 3

Knowledge and strategies to provide skills to identify, manage and monitor our own behavior and the behavior of others across learning settings and social situations. A cross section of theories, models, legal and ethical variables relevant to orchestrating learning across K-22 settings where individuals with mild to moderate disabilities are receiving instructional, social, behavioral and transition life-skill services. This includes English Language Learners with concomitant special education needs, student exhibiting traits associated with autism spectrum disorder, other health impaired, traumatic brain injury, learning disabilities and mild to moderate retardation. The use of positive behavioral interventions and functional behavior analysis will be discussed and students will demonstrate appropriate skills using these strategies.

# EDSP 373P | COLLABORATION WITH FAMILIES AND PROFESSIONALS

Units: 3

This course is designed to provide students with the skills required to work effectively with the families of children and youth with disabilities and with the network of service providers and community agencies with which these families interact. Focus will be on understanding family coping processes, development of communication and problem solving skills, active listening, utilization of parent interview techniques in family assessment and methods for accessing educational and developmental service delivery systems. There will be a strong emphasis on the development of cultural competence as candidates learn to understand family systems and family life stages, transition challenges, the importance of collaborative parent-professional relationships, parent advocacy, and development of cooperative intervention programs.

# EDSP 375P | EVIDENCED BASED INCLUSIVE PRACTICES MILD/MODERATE 5-22

**Units: 1-3** 

Focus is on curriculum and instruction planning and delivery that addresses the individual needs of students with mild to moderate exceptionality that maintains the integrity of age appropriate state mandated content area standards. The course also focuses on the dual instructional planning and delivery needs for individuals with a primary disability of specific learning disabilities, mild/moderate mental retardation, other health impairment, emotional disturbance, and autism spectrum disorders within the disability area, in kindergarten, grades 1 through 12, and classes organized primarily for adults in services across the continuum of program options available. Planning and delivery of instruction concurrently attends to the need of English Language Learning and the diversity of student, parent and community norms. Theory, practice and research are integrated into activities designed to provide education specialists with a multiplicity of strategies and techniques for working with students, paraeducators, general educators and ancillary professionals across the spectrum of inclusive education options. This course stresses the development and implementation of individual educational plans (IEPs) and individual transition plans (ITPs) aligned with CA content standards. Fieldwork: a 25-hour fieldwork commitment in order to complete the assignments and meet the performance-based competencies for this course is required. The regular consistent field-experience must provide sufficient time to complete the pact project. Intern candidates must meet with the instructor to determine if their district contract special education placement meets all or some of the fieldwork requirements for this course.

# EDSP 389P | HEALTHY ENVIRONMENTS AND INCLUSIVE EDUCATION IN A GLOBAL SOCIETY

Units: 3

This course provides candidates an overview of two critical areas relative to teaching school-age populations in contemporary schools: (1) creating supportive, healthy environments for student learning, and (2) teaching special populations in general education. A comparative international perspective of the foundations, pedagogy practices and service delivery options for individuals with disabilities and their families builds an understanding of cultural and personal considerations for service delivery within a classroom. Personal, family, school, community and environmental factors related to students' academic, physical, emotional and social well being are addressed as well as the effects of student health and safety on learning. Candidates learn and apply skills for communicating and working constructively with students, their families and community members and how to access site-based and community resources and agencies in order to provide integrated support to meet the individual needs of each student. Characteristics and service delivery needs of individuals with disabilities from birth through adulthood are also investigated. Legally mandated categorical disabilities are discussed in terms of the individual, family, education, and ancillary service issues. There is a primary focus on how educational, behavioral, social, ecological, transitional, and vocational needs of exceptional students can be addressed in general education settings. Discussion covers a multiplicity of strategies and techniques recommended for integrated service delivery for individuals with special needs in general education and in local communities. Course requires site visitations to five different types of settings serving individuals with special needs.

# EDSP 393S | PRACTICUM SEMINAR FOR INDIVIDUAL INDUCTION PLAN IIP

Units: 2

The purpose of the Practicum Seminar for Individual Induction Plan is support participants in sharing, discussing, analyzing and evaluating their current practice in creating positive classroom environments. Through sharing of personal student teaching experiences, participants will address current educational issues affecting children in our schools. Topics that may be discussed are effective classroom management, instructional methods for all children, parent involvement, professional development, education law, resume writing, interview strategies, and professional collaboration. (Pending Fall 2015 Approval.).

## EDSP 399 | INDEPENDENT STUDY (1-3)

## Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Independent study designed for individual student needs. Students must complete the Application for Independent Study or Research form and obtain the signature of the faculty independent study supervisor, Coordinator of Special Education, Department Chair, and the Associate Dean prior to registration for the course.

## EDSP 490P | STUDENT TEACHING MILD TO MODERATE **DISABILITIES**

### Units: 6

Supervised full day semester long student teaching in settings serving individuals with mild to moderate disabilities. This includes individuals with a primary disability of specific learning disabilities, mild/moderate mental retardation, other health impairment, emotional disturbance, and autism spectrum disorders within the disability area, in kindergarten, grades 1 through 12, and classes organized primarily for adults in services across the continuum of program options available. Focus is on curriculum and instruction planning and delivery that addresses the individual needs of students while maintaining the integrity of age appropriate state mandated subject matter standards. Competency is demonstrated in relation to referral, assessment, IEP/ITP/BIP process, instruction, intervention, intervention, program, instructional and materials modification, consultation, coteaching, teacher inservice, behavior planning, and intervention. Theory, practice and research are integrated into activities designed to provide education specialists with a multiplicity of strategies and techniques for working with students, paraeducators, and general educators and ancillary professionals across the spectrum of inclusive education options. This course stresses the development and implementation of individual educational plans (IEPs) and individual transition plans (ITPs). Planning and delivery of instruction concurrently attends to the need of English Language Learning and the diversity of student, parent and community norms. Student teaching is full semester as designated by school district. Candidate follows full day schedule of assigned master teacher. Candidates must attend mandatory seminar classes related to practicum experience and the development of their state required Transitional Individual Induction Plan. Fieldwork fee: \$200.

## EDSP 490S | STUDENT TEACHING MILD TO MODERATE DISABILITIES SEMINAR

## Units: 1

Corequisites: EDSP 490P

Concurrent Enrollment in EDSP 490P and this seminar is required. The seminar will provide students enrolled in student teaching with additional support with their placements. Class meeting will also include reviews of instructional strategies and pedagogical competencies designed to support students with their student teaching experience. (Pending Fall 2015 Approval.).

## **EDSP 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY**

## Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Independent study designed for individual student needs. Students must complete the Application for Independent Study or Research form and obtain the signature of the faculty independent study supervisor, Coordinator of Special Education, Department Chair, and the Associate Dean prior to registration for the course.

## EDUC 101 | INTRODUCTION TO TEACHING AND LEARNING Units: 3

This course has been developed to help USD undergraduates explore and confirm career interests in education, with a focus on teaching. It is a required course for the Undergraduate Minor in Education. Presenting both historical and current views of teaching and education, this course encourages students to think more deeply, more broadly, and more systematically about what teaching is, what teachers do, and whether teaching is an appropriate career choice for them. In the course students will learn about research and theory-based views of educational history. They will develop an understanding of themselves as learners, explore how children learn, examine teaching practices and various contexts that support teaching and learning and learn to think critically about the contemporary issues related to teacher education. Participating together in learning activities in class will facilitate students' learning. The expectation is that by the end of the course, students will begin to understand teaching as a profession that is a complex endeavor embedded in a larger organizational and social context.

## EDUC 124 | SPORT AND HIGHER EDUCATION: THE STUDENT ATHLETE EXPERIENCE

### Units: 3

This course is designed to assist freshmen student-athletes in their quest to achieve a holistic education. Course content is based on the five commitment areas set forth by the NCAA Lifeskills Program. The NCAA Lifeskills Program strives to promote as part of the student-athlete experience: personal development, career development, academic planning, athletic development, and community service-learning. This course will foster development in these specific areas and, in turn, will promote integration of the student athlete into the university community.

## **EDUC 201 | STUDENT MOVEMENTS IN EDUCATION** Units: 3

From Birmingham to Tianenman Square, college and high school students have formed the foundation of almost every struggle for social and civil rights. In this interactive, rigorous research seminar, students will examine the role and impact of Student Movements on historical and contemporary struggles for educational access. Issues of fair employment, community resources, and suffrage will also be examined. In addition to engaging in readings, viewing films and documentaries, and preparing written responses, students enrolled in the course will conduct and present their own project entitled, "Provoking the Crowd," centered on a contemporary struggle for educational equity and access. All students will be challenged, along with their classmates, to consider their role and responsibility in the modern day civil rights movement.

## EDUC 301 | CHANGEMAKERS IN EDUCATION: BUILDING BRIDGES TO COLLEGE ACCESS

### Units: 3

This course is designed to support students in developing the knowledge, skills, and dispositions appropriate to mentoring children in PK-12 settings. Through readings, class discussions, and practical experiences, students will learn about issues affecting student learning. There will be an emphasis on mentoring a diverse population of students. Each USD student enrolled in the course will concurrently be placed at a mentoring site and assigned to work with an individual child or small group of children. The course will be adapted each semester to meet the specific demands of the mentoring sites and partner with educational programs such as AVID, Summerbridge, Balboa Elementary, and Kearny High School. Readings, placements, and, where appropriate, program-specific trainings will support students in their mentoring assignment.

# **EDUC 304 | ST. CLARE'S COMPARATIVE EDUCATION**

The course is broadly organized into four sections. The first part provides an overview of the UK education system, the second a comparison of key themes in UK education, the third introduces relevant international comparisons and benchmarks, and the fourth is based around student contributions based on their US and UK experiences. Throughout the course, the students will be asked to draw on their experience gained in UK classrooms. They will also be provoked to take an active and critical position on the various reading tasks requested of them as these relate to their classroom experience.

# **EDUC 307 | SPANISH FOR EDUCATORS**

## Units: 3

This course targets the skills needed to provide students with the Spanish language such as vocabulary and phrases needed to communicate with Spanish speaking students, school personnel, families, and visitors. Students will be able to speak, read, and write using Spanish for classroom instruction, health care, educational administration, special needs and extracurricular activities, among other areas. The class emphasizes practice through authentic activities such as games and role-playing.

# EDUC 332P | CURRICULUM AND METHODS OF TEACHING IN TODAY'S GLOBAL SECONDARY CLASSROOMS

## Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: EDUC 381C (Can be taken Concurrently) and EDUC 382 (Can be taken Concurrently)

Formal admission to the credential program. A general curriculum and methods course emphasizing best practices in curriculum design, assessment, and instructional methodologies. Candidates practice various teaching techniques, writing objectives, lesson and unit planning, close examination of student work, classroom management, and subject matter applications. A 50-hour practicum is required in a secondary school.

# EDUC 334P | METHODS OF TEACHING LITERACY IN SECONDARY SCHOOLS IN A GLOBAL SOCIETY

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: EDUC 381C (Can be taken Concurrently) and EDUC 382 (Can be taken Concurrently)

The focus will be on teaching literacy in the content areas. Students will develop a cultural lens. During the course of this semester, we will examine current issues, theories, and practices in secondary literacy from local, national, and global perspectives. Students will also design and deliver learning activities for diverse student populations, participating in a community of practice by supportively critiquing each other's efforts. A 50-hour practicum is required in a secondary school. Grade level and site are appropriate to the student's credential and must involve the teaching of reading and/or other language arts and communication skills. Prerequisites: Prior or concurrent enrollment in EDUC 381C and EDUC 382. Additional Prerequisite: Formal admission to the credential program.

# EDUC 337P | FOUNDATIONS IN CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION THEORY: SECONDARY PRAXIS IN HISTORICAL CONTEXT Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course provides an overview of key dimensions of curriculum and instruction theory and practice across secondary disciplines. Students will trace the evolution of curriculum theory in the United States beginning with early emphases on science and progress at the turn of the 20th century to the present-day foci on social justice, inclusion, and Universal Design Learning (UDL). Building on this theoretical framing, students are introduced to contemporary research-based practices in teacher education. Specific topics covered include UDL, unit and lesson planning, assessment theory, standards-based curriculum and instruction, and teacher reflection. This course provides a theory-to- practice foundation for content specific teaching methods in the following semester.

# EDUC 353 | CURRICULUM AND PROGRAMS IN CHARACTER EDUCATION

## Units: 3

The purpose of this course is to enable candidates to examine the historical development of character education programs in the U.S., to investigate research findings about selected programs, to examine character education programs in state and local school districts, to assess commercial curricula and programs and to examine best practices using a specific set of standards. Another purpose is to assist candidates in planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating character education curricula and programs in a school and community.

# EDUC 354 | CHARACTER BASED CLASSROOM MANAGEMENT Units: 3

This course will enhance candidates' knowledge and skills in fostering the social-emotional growth of students. It will examine effective school and classroom disciplinary policies and practices based on the school's core values and investigate ways to promote civility and citizenship (community service learning) in schools and in homes. It will also introduce candidates to several effective character-based discipline plans such as the "Raising Responsibility Plan," "Win-Win Discipline," "Second Chance," and "Discipline With Dignity.".

# EDUC 356 | INSTRUCTIONAL STRATIGIES IN CHARACTER EDUCATION

### Units: 3

This course examines several instructional strategies that have been found effective for teaching character development. Among the strategies to be studied are those that relate to literature-based programs, the importance of language, cooperative learning, teaching for thinking, conflict resolution and parental involvement. The course also offers candidates the opportunity to examine the research on each of these strategies and to evaluate the effectiveness of these strategies for meeting their school and program expectations.

# EDUC 360 | TEACHING PHYSICAL EDUCATION IN ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS

#### Units: 3

This course provides a foundation for teaching health and physical education in elementary schools. It integrates the six broad goals of physical education (activity, fitness and wellness, movement, social interactions, self-realization, individual excellence) with health education principles and practices. The focus includes physical education theory, research and activities from a global perspective.

# **EDUC 368 | CHARACTER AND ATHLETICS Units: 3**

This course examines the interplay between character and athletics. Students will investigate and critique programs that are designed to enhance the character of athletes. Students will examine specific programs in the sports industry that claim that their programs contribute to one's character development. Students will interact with USD athletic department leaders, and discuss/debate current issues that promote or negate character development.

# EDUC 375P | INCLUSIVE CURRICULA FOR LEARNERS 5-22 Units: 3

This course is designed to provide education specialist candidates with subjectspecific pedagogical knowledge and skills across the CA state-adopted academic K-12 content standards. Candidates will explore and implement inclusive best practices in curriculum design, assessment and instructional methodology. An emphasis is placed on co-teaching, response-to-intervention, differentiated instruction and alignment of IEP learning outcomes within grade/age appropriate California k-12 content standards expectations. Candidates practice instructional strategies, design of learning outcomes, inclusive focused lesson and unit lesson planning, close examination of individual and class-wide student work, and classroom, individual and curriculum management. Focus centers around research grounded methods that address the learning needs of at-risk students, students with special needs, students with English Language Learning needs, students with concurrent special education & ELL needs and students whose ability to keep pace with age appropriate curriculum requires differential instruction. Candidates will learn to design and provide ongoing assessment of the principles of transference and generalization to facilitate learners' readiness at key transition points between 5 to 22 years of age educational opportunities. This course meets part of the CTC requirements for a Preliminary Education Specialist Credential with Mild/Moderate Authorization. Field Experience: The course requires 20-hours of structured practicum experience. Field experience is evenly divided in an elementary and a secondary setting. The practicum sites must be in an inclusive classroom setting that includes students with IEPs and English Language Learners. The field sites provide the settings for designing, delivery and assessment of the mandatory course embedded signature assignments. Candidates complete both an elementary and secondary subject matter focused PACT aligned project. An intern candidate may complete all or some of the components of this field experience in his or her contract classroom, providing the setting allow the intern to complete all components of the centerpiece assignment.

# EDUC 379 | SOLES EXPERIMENTAL TOPICS COURSE Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

## Core Attributes: Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

This course number is used by SOLES for experimental topics courses. The title and content of each 379 course will vary by topic and program/department. If more than one 379 course is offered during a single semester, section numbers will allow for identification of the course.

# EDUC 381C | MULTICULTURAL AND PHILOSOPHICAL FOUNDATIONS IN A GLOBAL SOCIETY

### Units: 3

## Core Attributes: Community Service Learning, Diversity-Pre F17 CORE

This course examines philosophical, sociological, and historical foundations of multicultural education. Issues related to the education of diverse learners in a global society will also be explored. The research on multicultural and multiethnic education will be evaluated in light of current school reform movements. Community service-learning is required.

# EDUC 382 | PSYCHOLOGICAL FOUNDATIONS OF EDUCATION IN A DIVERSE SOCIETY

### Units: 3

The psycho-physical development of children through adolescence is studied, with emphasis on the developmental aspects of the psychology of learning. Includes observations of children and adolescents in school settings.

# EDUC 383P | METHODS OF TEACHING READING AND LANGUAGE ARTS IN ELEMENTARY

### Units: 3

This course assists in the development of a personal theory of the reading process and a repertoire of strategies consistent with that theory. Students explore relationships among reading, writing, and the language arts. The course stresses the use of children's literature including an international children's literature and global perspective to promote reading and ways to create environments that support literacy development throughout the world. This course prepares students for the RICA exam.

# EDUC 384C | METHODS OF TEACHING ENGLISH LANGUAGE AND ACADEMIC DEVELOPMENT IN CROSSCULTURAL CONTEXTS Units: 3

This course aims to provide candidates with socio-cultural knowledge, pedagogical skills and dispositions to support English language learners from diverse cultures and languages. This course examines the theoretical perspectives of second language (L2) acquisition and effective practices and programs for the development of oral, reading, writing and academic language proficiency of learners in the cross-cultural classroom. Candidates implement literacy assessments and use strategies and develop lesson plans for English language development as a second language and for Specially Designed Academic Instruction in English. Course Content includes acquiring awareness about the education of minority students globally. The course includes 20 hours of community service learning.

# EDUC 385P | ELEMENTARY CURRICULUM AND METHODS FOR GLOBAL CLASSROOMS

## Units: 6

This course is designed to provide candidates with subject-specific pedagogical knowledge and skills in the following areas: mathematics, science, history-social science, the visual and performing arts, and physical education. In each major subject area candidates learn to use appropriate instructional strategies and materials, plan and implement instruction that fosters student achievement of state-adopted academic content standards, and interrelate ideas and information within and across the major subject areas. Candidates learn to assist students to develop as globally competent citizens who possess knowledge of other world regions, cultures, and global issues. 50-hour practicum.

## **EDUC 394 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN CHARACTER EDUCATION**

### **Units: 1-3**

The main purpose of this course (academy) is two-fold: to offer candidates the opportunity to interact with leaders in character education; and to examine the leadership roles of teachers, administrators, counselors and others in implementing, maintaining and evaluating character education at the school-site and in school districts.

## **EDUC 399 | INDEPENDENT STUDY**

### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Independent study designed for individual student needs. Students must complete the Application for Independent Study or Research form and obtain the signature of the faculty independent study supervisor, Department Chair, and the Associate Dean prior to registration for the course.

## **EDUC 451P | EXTENDED PRACTICUM**

### Units: 2

Prerequisites: EDUC 467S

During Extend Practicum, credential candidates will spend a minimum of two periods observing in a secondary classroom. In one of those periods the candidate will take increasing responsibility and will teach at least one unit independently.

# EDUC 467S | EXTENDED PRACTICUM SEMINAR

### Units: 3

Prerequisites: EDUC 451P (Can be taken Concurrently)

Credential Candidates share, discuss and evaluate their current practice in creating positive classroom environments. Through readings, observations, reflections and sharing personal experiences, students will address current educational issues affecting school children with an emphasis on diverse populations.

# EDUC 490P | STUDENT TEACHING FOR THE MULTIPLE SUBJECT CREDENTIAL

## Units: 9

Prerequisites: EDUC 490S (Can be taken Concurrently)

Supervised student teaching assignments are in selected classrooms of participating school districts throughout San Diego County. Students work full time for 16 weeks, with their level of responsibility increasing as the semester progresses. Candidates for student teaching must file a Student Teaching Application, with evidence of fingerprint clearance, passing CBEST score, and passing CSET scores (if applicable) by October for a spring semester student teaching placement, and by March for a fall semester student teaching placement (contact the Field Experience Office for the exact date each semester). In order to be admitted into student teaching, all other credential program requirements must be completed by the end of the prior semester. Go to https://www.sandiego.edu/soles/gateways/current-students/handbooks-forms-policies/#dlt\_credential for the complete list of requirements. Fieldwork fee: \$200. Students must register for EDUC 490S – Student Teaching Seminar for Multiple Subject Credential concurrent with this course.

# EDUC 490S | STUDENT TEACHING SEMINAR FOR MULTIPLE SUBJECT CREDENTIAL

## Units: 3

Prerequisites: EDUC 490P (Can be taken Concurrently)

Students are required to take this 3 unit seminar concurrent with EDUC 490P – Student Teaching for the Multiple Subject Teaching Credential. Seminar meetings are mandatory and include reviews of instructional strategies and pedagogical competencies designed to support students with their student teaching experience. Specific time and date of the seminar is announced each semester by the Director of Field Experience.

# EDUC 491P | STUDENT TEACHING FOR THE SINGLE SUBJECT CREDENTIAL

Units: 9

Prerequisites: EDUC 491S (Can be taken Concurrently)

Supervised student teaching assignments are in selected classrooms of participating school districts throughout San Diego County. Students work full time for 20 weeks, with their level of responsibility increasing as the semester progresses. Candidates for student teaching must file a Student Teaching Application, with evidence of fingerprint clearance, passing CBEST score, and passing CSET scores (if applicable) by October for a spring semester student teaching placement, and by March for a fall semester student teaching placement (contact the Director of Field Experiences for the exact date each semester). In order to be admitted into student teaching, all other credential program requirements must be completed by the end of the prior semester. Go to www.sandiego.edu/soles/students/policies.php for the complete list of requirements. Fieldwork fee: \$200. Students must register for EDUC 491S – Student Teaching Seminar for Single Subject Credential concurrent with this course.

# EDUC 491S | STUDENT TEACHING SEMINAR FOR THE SINGLE SUBJECT CREDENTIAL

Units: 3

Prerequisites: EDUC 491P (Can be taken Concurrently)

Students are required to take this 3 unit seminar concurrent with EDUC 491P – Student Teaching for the Single Subject Teaching Credential. Seminar meetings are mandatory and include reviews of instructional strategies and pedagogical competencies designed to support students with their student teaching experience. Specific time and date of the seminar is announced each semester by the Director of Field Experience.

## **EDUC 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY**

**Units: 1-3** 

Independent study designed for individual student needs. Students must complete the Application for Independent Study or Research form and obtain the signature of the faculty independent study supervisor, Department Chair, and the Associate Dean prior to registration for the course.

# **Combined BA/MEd Teacher Education Program (CTEP)**

USD offers a five-year Combined BA/MEd Teacher Education Program (CTEP) Program offered jointly by the College of Arts and Sciences and the School of Leadership and Education Sciences, resulting in the conferral of a BA in Liberal Studies, a preliminary Multiple Subject teaching credential, and an MEd in Curriculum and Instruction. The CTEP program allows students to complete the BA in Liberal Studies at the end of the fourth year of the program, will obtain the preliminary Multiple Subject teaching credential after the ninth semester (4.5 years), once the full-time student teaching has been completed, and receive the MEd in Curriculum and Instruction after completion of the fifth year. Please contact Margaret Daley, mdaley@sandiego.edu, PhD, Liberal Studies Program Director, for additional details as program sequencing will vary.

# **Preliminary Multiple Subject**

USD offers a Multiple Subject Credential program that prepares students for teaching in self-contained settings in elementary schools and some middle school classrooms. This program may be completed along with the Liberal Studies major, which helps prepare students in the subjects taught in elementary classrooms or along with any other undergraduate major.

Students demonstrate subject-matter competence by passing the CSET: Multiple Subject examination. A description of the Liberal Studies major is contained in the College of Arts and Sciences section of this course catalog. Depending on the

number of units with which students enter USD, it may be necessary for students to take coursework during the Summer Sessions, Intersession, and/or carry 18 units during several semesters of undergraduate study in order to complete the requirements for the liberal studies major and professional teacher preparation in four years. Students may choose to complete some of their professional preparation coursework, such as student teaching, as graduate students. Students complete their undergraduate major and the following professional preparation coursework:

# Requirements for the Multiple Subject Credential

Code	Title	Units
Prerequisite for	Credential Program	
ENGL 377	Development of the English Language	3
Total Units		3
Code	Title	Units
EDUC 381C	Multicultural and Philosophical Foundations in a Global Society	3
EDUC 382	Psychological Foundations of Education in a Diverse Society	3
EDUC 383P	Methods of Teaching Reading and Language Arts in Elementary	3
EDUC 384C	Methods of Teaching English Language and Academic Development in Crosscultural Contexts	3
EDUC 385P	Elementary Curriculum and Methods for Global Classrooms	6
EDSP 389P	Healthy Environments and Inclusive Education in a Global Society	3
EDUC 490S	Student Teaching Seminar for Multiple Subject Credential $^{\rm 1}$	3
EDUC 490P	Student Teaching for the Multiple Subject Credential <sup>1</sup>	9
Total Units		33

EDUC 490S must be taken concurrently with EDUC 490P.

## Additional Requirements

Students committed to earning a preliminary Multiple Subject Credential must complete the following steps:

- · Declare an undergraduate major
- Pass the CBEST
- Obtain a Certificate of Clearance from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing
- Formally apply and be admitted to the teacher credential program as a multiple subject candidate
- Passing score on the U.S. Constitution Exam or HIST 117 U.S. History to 1870 or POLS 120 Introduction to American Politics or equivalent that specifically covers the U.S. Constitution (course must include US history between 1776 and 1800)
- Pass the RICA (Reading Instruction Competencies Assessment)—to be taken upon completion of EDUC 383P
- Pass the CSET: Multiple Subject three-part examination prior to applying to student teach
- Successfully complete a full-time semester of student teaching with seminars (EDUC 490P and EDUC 490S). Admission to the Multiple Subject Credential program does not guarantee acceptance into student teaching.
- Earn a grade of B- or higher in all professional preparation classes

- · Earn a grade of C- or higher in all upper-division courses
- Complete all California Credential application papers and pay proper fees

Students are urged to meet regularly with the undergraduate credential advisor, Serena Pariser spariser@sandiego.edu (spariser@sandiego.edu)or (619) 260-7713 and the credential analyst, Andrea Cash andreacash@sandiego.edu or (619) 260-4821, at the School of Leadership and Education Sciences to ensure appropriate course selection and progress toward their credential.

# **Preliminary Single Subject**

USD offers a single subject credential program, which prepares students for teaching in departmentalized settings in secondary classrooms. This program is completed along with a major in a content area, which helps prepare students in the subject matter they wish to teach. Students demonstrate subject-matter competence by passing the CSET subject matter examination. Math majors may waive the CSET by completing an approved subject matter program. Depending on the approved program requirements and the number of units with which students enter USD, it may be necessary for students to take coursework during the Summer Sessions, Intersession, and/or carry 18 units during several semesters of undergraduate study in order to complete the requirements for an approved program and professional teacher preparation in four years. Students may choose to complete some of their professional preparation coursework, such as student teaching, or all of their professional preparation coursework as graduate students. Specific course requirements for the math approved program can be obtained from the math department in the College of Arts and Sciences. Students will complete the following professional preparation coursework:

# Requirements for the Single Subject Credential

Code	Title	Units
Prerequisite for Cr	edential Program	
ENGL 377	Development of the English Language	3
Total Units		3
Code	Title	Units
EDUC 332P	Curriculum and Methods of Teaching in Today's Global Secondary Classrooms	3
EDUC 334P	Methods of Teaching Literacy in Secondary Schools in a Global Society	3
EDUC 381C	Multicultural and Philosophical Foundations in a Global Society	3
EDUC 382	Psychological Foundations of Education in a Diverse Society	3
EDUC 384C	Methods of Teaching English Language and Academic Development in Crosscultural Contexts	3
EDSP 389P	Healthy Environments and Inclusive Education in a Global Society	3
EDUC 491S	Student Teaching Seminar for the Single Subject Credential <sup>1</sup>	3
EDUC 491P	Student Teaching for the Single Subject Credential <sup>1</sup>	9
Total Units		30

EDUC 491S must be taken concurrently with EDUC 491P.

# Additional Requirements

Students committed to earning a preliminary Single Subject Credential must complete the following steps:

• Declare an undergraduate major

- · Pass the CBEST
- Obtain a Certificate of Clearance from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing
- Formally apply and be admitted to the teacher credential program as a multiple subject candidate
- Passing score on the U.S. Constitution Exam or HIST 117 U.S. History to 1870 or POLS 120 Introduction to American Politics or equivalent that specifically covers the U.S. Constitution (course must include US history between 1776 and 1800)
- Pass the CSET subject matter examination prior to applying to student teach
  or all requirements of the approved math program before student teaching
- Successfully complete a full-time semester of student teaching with seminars (EDUC 491P and EDUC 491S). Admission to the Multiple Subject Credential program does not guarantee acceptance into student teaching.
- Earn a grade of B- or higher in all professional preparation classes
- Earn a grade of C- or higher in all upper-division courses
- Complete all California Credential application papers and pay proper fees

Students are urged to meet regularly with the undergraduate credential advisor, Serena Pariser spariser@sandiego.edu (spariser@sandiego.edu)or (619) 260-7713 and the credential analyst, Andrea Cash andreacash@sandiego.edu or (619) 260-4821, at the School of Leadership and Education Sciences to ensure appropriate course selection and progress toward their credential.

# **Preliminary Education Specialist**

USD offers a Preliminary Education Specialist Credential with Mild to Moderate Authorization that prepares students to teach in kindergarten, grades 1 through 12, and classes organized primarily for adults through age 22 in services across the continuum of program options available. This program may be completed along with the Liberal Studies major, which helps prepare students in the subjects taught in elementary classrooms or along with any other undergraduate major. Depending on the number of units with which students enter USD, it may be necessary for students to take coursework during the Summer Session, Intersession, and/or carry 18 units during several semesters of undergraduate student in order to complete the requirements for the undergraduate major and professional teacher preparation in four years. Students may choose to complete some of their professional preparation coursework, such as student teaching as graduate students. Students will complete their undergraduate major and the following professional preparation coursework:

# Requirements for the Preliminary Education Specialist Credential

Code	Title	Units
Prerequisite for Cre	edential Program (3 units)	
ENGL 377	Development of the English Language	3
Code	Title	Units
EDTE 300P	Diversity, Inclusion & Schooling	3
EDTE 301P	Methods for Language & Literacy	3
EDTE 302P	Elementary Methods I: Math & Science	3
or EDTE 304P	Secondary Methods I	
EDTE 310P	Educational Psychology	3
EDTE 303P	Elementary Methods II: Humanities	3
or EDTE 305P	Secondary Methods II: Social Science	
or EDTE 306P	Secondary Methods II: Science	
or EDTE 307P	Secondary Methods II: Mathematics	
or EDTE 308P	Secondary Methods II: English	

EDTE 200D 0 1 M 4 1 H W 111

or ED1E 309P	Secondary Methods II: World Language	
EDTE 311P	Equity & Advocacy in Educational Systems	3
EDTE 312P	Methods for English Learners	3
EDTE 313P	Positive Behavior Supports for Family, School, and Community Engagement	3
EDTE 317P	Assessment	3
EDSP 490P	Student Teaching Mild to Moderate Disabilities	6
Total Units		33

# Additional Requirements

Students committed to earning an Education Specialist Credential with Mild/Moderate Authorization must complete the following steps:

- · Declare an undergraduate major
- Pass the CBEST(California Basic Educational Skills Test)
- Obtain a Certificate of Clearance from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing
- Formally apply and be admitted to the teacher credential program
- Passing score on the U.S. Constitution Exam or HIST 117 U.S. History to 1870 or POLS 120 Introduction to American Politics or equivalent that specifically covers the U.S. Constitution (course must include US history between 1776 and 1800)
- Pass the RICA (Reading Instruction Competencies Assessment)—to be taken upon completion of EDUC 383P
- Pass the CSET: Multiple Subject three-part examination prior to applying to student teach
- Successfully complete a full-time semester of student teaching EDSP 490P. Admission to the education special credential program does not guarantee acceptance into student teaching
- Earn a grade of B- or higher is required in all professional preparation
- Complete all California credential application papers and pay proper fees

Students are urged to meet regularly with the undergraduate credential advisor, Serena Pariser spariser@sandiego.edu (spariser@sandiego.edu)or (619) 260-7713 and the credential analyst, Andrea Cash andreacash@sandiego.edu or (619) 260-4821, at the School of Leadership and Education Sciences to ensure appropriate course selection and progress toward their credential.

# **Counseling & Marital and Family Therapy**

# Chair

Ann F. Garland, PhD

# **Faculty**

Wendell Callahan, PhD

Erika Nash Cameron, PhD

Todd M. Edwards, PhD

Ana Estrada, PhD

Nedeljko Golubovic, PhD

Kristopher Hall, PhD

Nicholas Ladany, PhD

Florencia Lebensohn-Chialvo, PhD

Ian Martin, EdD

Jo Ellen Patterson, PhD

Lonnie L. Rowell, PhD

Lee Williams, PhD

Susan Zgliczynski, PhD

The department offers several courses at the undergraduate level that support students who are interested in pursuing graduate degrees in Counseling & Marital and Family Therapy. These courses provide an introduction to a range of theoretical approaches and clinical applications to promote positive health, especially mental health, and wellness in culturally diverse populations.

# MFTS 365 | CURRENT APPROACHES TO PEER ASSISTANCE Units: 3

Students taking this course will learn about the practical application of theoretical concepts and empirical data related to student wellness, academic success, adaptation to college and peer counseling. Examples of college student areas to explore include substance abuse, academic and learning skill development, relationship management, and theories related to college student development, persistence and success. Students will learn basic counseling skills, (e.g., encouraging, paraphrasing, reflecting, summarizing, confronting), campus and community resources, crisis intervention, ethics, diversity dimensions, and skills to apply this knowledge as peer counselors. Students currently enrolled in, or who have successfully completed this course will be eligible to apply for peer program positions offered by the university.

# MFTS 366 | APPLIED EXPERIENCE IN PEER ASSISTANCE Units: 2 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: MFTS 365

This course is an innovative and collaborative partnership between Academic Affairs and Student Affairs. It will provide peer support and peer counseling for USD students. Track one students will serve as peer coaches for students identified "at-risk" (e.g. students on academic probation, those who have received mid-term deficiency grades, or have been identified though early intervention alert systems; collaboration through the Center for Student Success and Student Wellness). Track two students will provide peer education and support regarding sexual violence (collaboration through the Women's Center and Student Wellness). Undergraduate students selected for this course through an application procedure (MFTS 365 – Current Approaches to Peer Assistance is a prerequisite).

# MFTS 400 | INTRODUCTION TO MARITAL AND FAMILY THERAPY Units: 3

Introduction to the theories and methods of marital and family therapy through lecture, discussion, and experiential activities. This course is designed for students interesting in pursuing careers in mental health services and medicine.

# **Shiley-Marcos School of Engineering**

## Dean

Chell A. Roberts, PhD

# **Administration**

John Glick, PhD, Chair, Computer Science and General Engineering

Frank G. Jacobitz, PhD, Chair, Department of Mechanical Engineering

Susan M. Lord, PhD, Chair, Department of General Engineering

Mikaya L. D. Lumori, PhD, Chair, Department of Electrical Engineering

Rick T. Olson, PhD, Associate Dean

Truc T. Ngo, PhD, Chair, Department of Industrial and Systems Engineering

# **Faculty**

Caroline Baillie, DEng

Bradley Chase, PhD, MPH

Diana Chen, PhD

Daniel S. Codd, PhD

G. Bryan Cornwall, PhD, PEng

Odesma Dalrymple, PhD

Saturnino Garcia, PhD

Melissa Gibbons, PhD

John Glick, PhD

Mark Heckman, PhD

Gordon Hoople, PhD

Ming Z. Huang, PhD, PE

Frank G. Jacobitz, PhD

Eric Jiang, PhD

Imane Khalil, PhD

Ernest M. Kim, PhD, PE

Jae D. Kim, PhD

James G. Kohl, PhD

Kathleen A. Kramer, PhD

Susan M. Lord, PhD

Mikaya L. D. Lumori, PhD

Matthew T. McGarry, PhD

Joel Alejandro Mejia, PhD

Michael S. Morse, PhD, JD

Truc T. Ngo, PhD

Rick T. Olson, PhD

Leonard A. Perry, PhD

Chell A Roberts, PhD

Thomas F. Schubert, Jr, PhD, PE

Gordon Romney, PhD

Subramanian Shastri, PhD

# Vision

The Shiley-Marcos School of Engineering is a community of scholars recognized for developing engineers with technical excellence, global perspective and social awareness

# Mission

The Shiley-Marcos School of Engineering is distinguished by student-centered education that emphasizes modern engineering skills and development of the whole person. We are dedicated to effective teaching, meaningful scholarship and compassionate service.

Our engineering programs are crafted to meet the traditions of USD for quality undergraduate education, the need for a more broadly-educated engineer capable of meeting the future demands and challenges of changing technology in a global economy and society, and the curriculum requirements for professional accreditation. The programs are nine-semester, integrated programs of study leading to a Bachelor of Science/Bachelor of Arts (BS/BA) dual degree in a specified field of engineering. In addition to a sound preparation in engineering science, design, and professional practice, the curricula address written and oral communication, human values and relations, and ethics.

The computer science program is a four-year program rooted in the system of principles and theory which deals with what computers do. As an academic discipline within the liberal arts tradition, computer science has ties with many other disciplines including mathematics, the natural sciences and engineering.

# **Unique Features**

The engineering programs are undergraduate programs culminating in a unique dual BS/BA degree that is a consequence of the combination of intensive technical education and the USD emphasis on a broad liberal education. Each engineering program has breadth and depth in the engineering discipline, including an extensive laboratory component in outstanding laboratory facilities dedicated to undergraduate instruction. USD engineering students can expect a personalized education in small classes with a curriculum that emphasizes preparation for work in industry and the development of professionalism and values.

# **Professional Accreditation**

The engineering programs are accredited by the Engineering Accreditation Commission (EAC) of ABET, http://www.abet.org, the recognized accreditor of college and university programs in engineering. ABET accreditation demonstrates the engineering programs' commitment to providing its students with a quality education. The university is committed to achieving and maintaining professional accreditation to cover all engineering graduates. The electrical engineering program, the industrial & systems engineering program, and the mechanical engineering program have each achieved this goal and have been accredited since 1992, 2001 and 2008, respectively. The BS/BA in Engineering degree will pursue accreditation when it has awarded it first degrees.

# Academic Advising

All students in the Shiley-Marcos School of Engineering are assigned a faculty advisor who tracks the student's progress toward attaining their degree. The advisor and student work together to ensure that the student is making satisfactory progress toward graduation. First-year students are assigned an advisor when they enroll in an engineering or computer science preceptorial class during their first semester. Transfer students are initially advised by the Associate Dean

of Engineering or the chair of the appropriate program and then assigned a permanent engineering advisor.

# **Recommended Prior Preparation**

To complete an engineering program following a standard pattern, incoming students should be prepared to enroll in calculus, English composition, and the third semester of a second language. Background deficiencies in any of the above areas may be removed at USD, but this will increase the minimum requirements for graduation in an engineering major.

Transfer students and other students seriously considering an engineering major are encouraged to contact the Shiley-Marcos School of Engineering to receive academic advising at the earliest opportunity. The first two years of the engineering programs at USD are closely coordinated with those of many community colleges and state universities in California, making it possible to transfer from such institutions to USD with minimal disruption. While the engineering programs are designed to be completed in 9 semesters, students may be able to complete engineering degree requirements in four years with a combination of prior preparation, AP credit and intersession or summer study.

# Special Restrictions on the Use of the Pass/Fail Option

For engineering majors, the pass/fail option is not permitted in any course required by specific course prefix and title in the appropriate required program of study, or for the major-required electives. With the foregoing exceptions, the general university pass/fail regulations apply. See Academic Regulations (p. 39) for more information on pass/fail.

# Engineering Residency Requirement

Engineering programs require that a minimum of 24 units of upper division engineering classes be taken at USD.

# Special Program Pattern for NROTC, ROTC and AFROTC Students

NROTC, ROTC and AFROTC requirements add 18 to 21 units to the standard program for engineering majors. To meet the needs of the involved officer training corps and the major, a special program pattern has been constructed utilizing Intersession and Summer Session. The NROTC scholarship covers the full engineering program. However, benefits beyond four years must be requested through the naval science department.

# **Engineering Advisory Board**

The purpose of the Engineering Advisory Board is to help the engineering programs form plans and implement strategies for growth that serve the San Diego technical community while the programs serve the mission of the university. The current board draws its membership from among highly placed leaders in the technical community across several important industries, including telecommunications, energy, aerospace & defense, biotechnology, and semiconductor electronics. Since 1994, the Engineering Advisory Board has helped USD engineering to form plans and implement strategies in the following areas: 1) long-range planning for the continued development of engineering at USD; 2) development and promotion of cooperative programs and relations with industry and the San Diego community; 3) assisting in seeking sources of support for engineering and science programs and facilities; and 4) advising the USD engineering faculty and administration on issues related to the growth and evolution of the engineering program.

# Center for Cyber Security Engineering and Technology

The University of San Diego's Center for Cyber Security Engineering and Technology (CCSET) is designed to develop and coordinate opportunities for world-class education, research and service to address threats to information systems. CCSET assists business, government, law enforcement, and private citizens to better prepare and respond to highly motivated, highly trained adversaries who are responsible for billions in lost revenue each year; catastrophic disruptions in service; terrorism and activism; a dark web of criminal activity; and constant peril to critical infrastructure.

University of San Diego's Center for Cyber Security Engineering and Technology is committed to mitigating cyber security risks developing and coordinating opportunities for education, research, outreach, and service to secure the future prosperity and freedom of in the digital realm. This effort combines the best technology, world-class curriculum and programs, and the mindset to approach the challenge holistically. Stakeholders from engineering, technology, law, policy, business and major industry sectors will all play a role in improving cyber security. USD is committed to uniting these communities to find real solutions, and changing the mentality in cyber security from reactive to proactive.

# **Computer Science**

# Chair

John Glick, PhD

# **Faculty**

Saturnino Garcia, PhD

John Glick, PhD

Mark Heckman, PhD

Eric Jiang, PhD

Gordon Romney, PhD

Computer science is the system of principles and theory which deals with what computers do. It studies the nature of computation. For any given problem, it asks whether the answer can be computed, and, if so, what are the most efficient and practical ways to do the computation. (Often the methods that are best for machines are quite different from those that are practical for human beings.)

Computers are machines that manipulate abstract symbols according to specified rules. Therefore, computer science relies heavily on abstract reasoning and mathematics. The mathematics involved is usually quite different, however, from traditional mathematics. Much of it has been developed recently in response to the development of computers.

As an academic discipline within the liberal arts tradition, computer science has ties with many other disciplines. The natural sciences provide the physical principles upon which computers are built. Computer science serves the sciences, engineering and business in providing the means to perform complex calculations and to analyze large amounts of data. Psychology and philosophy share with computer science the desire to understand the nature of reason, language and intelligence

The most important skills needed by a prospective computer scientist are an excellent command of one's native language and the ability to think in a mathematical way.

# The Computer Science Major (BS)

# Preparation for the Major

Code	Title	Units
Required Cours	ses	
COMP 110	Computational Problem Solving	3.5
COMP 120	Programming Abstractions and Methodologies	3.5
COMP 230	Advanced Computational Problem Modeling	3.5
COMP 280	Introduction to Computer Systems	3.5
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
MATH 222	Discrete Mathematics	3
MATH 320	Linear Algebra	3
ISYE 330	Engineering Probability and Statistics	3
Total Units		31

# Major Requirements

Code	Title	Units
Required Core	Computer Science Courses	
COMP 305	Object-Oriented Design and Programming	3
COMP 370	Automata, Computability and Formal Languages	3
COMP 480	Algorithms	3
COMP 491	Senior Project I	3
COMP 492	Senior Project II	3
Systems Courses	s	
Select two of the	following courses:	7
COMP 300	Principles of Digital Hardware	
COMP 310	Operating Systems	
COMP 375	Networking	
<b>Upper-Division</b>	Elective Courses	
Select nine upper	-division units from the following:	9
COMP 340	Numerical Analysis	
COMP 341	Numerical Analysis II	
COMP 345	Database Management Systems Design	
COMP 350	Computer Graphics	
COMP 360	Principles of Programming Languages	
COMP 365	Principles of Information Security	
COMP 380	Neural Networks	
COMP 382	Introduction to Data Mining	
COMP 421	Embedded Software Development	
COMP 422	Advanced Embedded Software Development	
COMP 494	Special Topics	
COMP 499	Independent Study	
CYBR 500	Foundations of Cyber Security (6 units)	
Total Units		31

# Notes:

- 1) At least 15 of the the upper-division units in the the major must be completed at USD.
- 2) Students may not receive credit towards their undergraduate degree for both COMP 365 and CYBR 500.

# Recommended Program of Study: Computer Science (BS)

## First Year

First Year		
Semester I		Units
COMP 110	Computational Problem Solving	3.5
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
Core Curriculum		9
Semester II		
COMP 120	Programming Abstractions and Methodologies	3.5
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
MATH 222	Discrete Mathematics	3
Core Curriculum		6
Second Year		
Semester I		
COMP 280	Introduction to Computer Systems	3.5
ISYE 330	Engineering Probability and Statistics	3
Core Curriculum		9.5-11.5
Semester II		
COMP 230	Advanced Computational Problem Modeling	3.5
COMP Systems Course		3.5
MATH 320	Linear Algebra	3
Core Curriculum and El	lectives	6.5-8.5
Third Year		
Semester I		
COMP 305	Object-Oriented Design and Programming	3
COMP Systems Course	or Upper-Division COMP Elective	3-3.5
Core Curriculum and El	ectives	9-12
Semester II		
COMP 370	Automata, Computability and Formal Languages	3
COMP Systems Course	or Upper-Division COMP Elective	3-3.5
Upper-Division COMP		3
Core Curriculum and El		6
Senior Year		
Semester I		
COMP 480	Algorithms	3
COMP 491	Senior Project I	3
Core Curriculum and El		9-12
Semester II		
COMP 492	Senior Project II	3
Upper-Division COMP	· ·	3
Core Curriculum and El		9-12

# Concentrations in Computer Science (9 - 9.5 units)

Concentrations allow majors to develop a level of depth in a particular area of computer science. Courses taken toward a concentration may also apply to the upper-division elective requirements of the major. Concentrations are optional, and so are not required by the computer science major.

Code	Title	Units
Concentration	n in Embedded Software Development	
COMP 421	Embedded Software Development	3

COMP 422	Advanced Embedded Software Development	3
One of the follow	ing courses:	3-3.5
COMP 365	Principles of Information Security	
COMP 375	Networking	
Total Units		9-9.5
Code	Title	Units
Concentration in	Cyber Security	
CYBR 500	Foundations of Cyber Security	6
One of the follow	ing:	3-3.5
COMP 375	Networking	
An additional	CYBR course	
Total Units		9-9.5

#### Notes:

- 1) Students choosing the Embedded Software Development, or Cyber Security concentration may not use COMP 375 to satisfy the Systems Course requirement in the Computer Science major.
- 2) Students completing the Cyber Security concentration by taking nine units of 500-level CYBR classes must be enrolled in the Combined Undergraduate Computer Science and MS in Cyber Security Engineering program at the time the second CYBR course is taken.

# Combined BS or BA Computer Science and Master of Science in Cyber Security Engineering (MSCSE) Program

A student who has applied, accepted, and indicated that they will enter the MSCSE program, can apply up to twelve 500-level CYBR units to both their undergraduate degree requirements in Computer Science, and to the requirements of the MSCSE program. Those units shall include CYBR 500 and any of the following: CYBR courses: 520, 530, 540, 550, 560, 570, 580, 590.

The MSCSE program requires 30 units (computer science majors do not need to take a 6-unit course in software fundamentals that would bring the unit count to 36), and MSCSE students take 6 units per semester. So a student who completes 12 units as an undergraduate can complete the remaining 18 units in three terms (summer, fall, and spring). Thus, a student can earn a BS or BA in computer science plus an MS in Cyber Security Engineering in 4 years of undergraduate coursework plus 1 year of graduate coursework.

# The Computer Science Major (BA) Preparation for the Major

Code	Title	Units
Required Courses		
COMP 110	Computational Problem Solving	3.5
COMP 120	Programming Abstractions and Methodologies	3.5
COMP 230	Advanced Computational Problem Modeling	3.5
COMP 280	Introduction to Computer Systems	3.5
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
MATH 222	Discrete Mathematics	3
<b>Elective Math Con</b>	urse	
Select one of the fo	ollowing:	3
ISYE 330	Engineering Probability and Statistics	
MATH 320	Linear Algebra	
Total Units		24

# **Major Requirements**

Code	Title	Unit
Required Core Co	emputer Science Courses	
COMP 305	Object-Oriented Design and Programming	3
COMP 480	Algorithms	3
COMP 491	Senior Project I	3
COMP 492	Senior Project II	3
<b>Systems Course</b>		
Select one of the fo	llowing courses:	3.5
COMP 300	Principles of Digital Hardware	
COMP 310	Operating Systems	
COMP 375	Networking	
<b>Upper-Division El</b>	ective Courses	
Select nine upper-d	ivision units from the following:	9
COMP 340	Numerical Analysis	
COMP 341	Numerical Analysis II	
COMP 345	Database Management Systems Design	
COMP 350	Computer Graphics	
COMP 360	Principles of Programming Languages	
COMP 365	Principles of Information Security	
COMP 370	Automata, Computability and Formal Languages	
COMP 380	Neural Networks	
COMP 382	Introduction to Data Mining	
COMP 421	Embedded Software Development	
COMP 422	Advanced Embedded Software Development	

Total Units 24.5

Foundations of Cyber Security

Special Topics

Independent Study

# Notes:

**COMP 494** 

**COMP 499** 

**CYBR 500** 

 At least 15 of the upper-division units in the major must be completed at USD.
 Students may not receive credit towards their undergraduate degree for both COMP 365 and CYBR 500.

# Recommended Program of Study: Computer Science (BA)

## First Year

Semester I		Units
COMP 110	Computational Problem Solving	3.5
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
Core Curriculum		9
Semester II		
COMP 120	Programming Abstractions and Methodologies	3.5
MATH 222	Discrete Mathematics	3
Core Curriculum		9
Second Year		
Semester I		
COMP 280	Introduction to Computer Systems	3.5
ISYE 330	Engineering Probability and Statistics	3
or MATH 320	Linear Algebra	
CC		9-11.5

## Semester II

COMP 230	Advanced Computational Problem Modeling	3.5
Core Curriculum and	Electives	12-14.5
Third Year		
Semester I		
COMP 305	Object-Oriented Design and Programming	3
COMP Systems Cours	se or Upper-Division COMP Elective	3
Core Curriculum and	Electives	10-12
Semester II		
COMP Systems Course or Upper-Division COMP Elective		3
Upper-Division COMP Elective		3
Core Curriculum and Electives		10-12
Senior Year		
Semester I		
COMP 480	Algorithms	3
COMP 491	Senior Project I	3
Core Curriculum and Electives		9-12

# Concentrations in Computer Science (9 - 9.5 units)

Senior Project II

Concentrations allow majors to develop a level of depth in a particular area of computer science. Courses taken toward a concentration may also apply to the upper-division elective requirements of the major. Concentrations are optional, and so are not required by the computer science major.

COMP 365 Principles of Information Security  COMP 375 Networking  Total Units 9-9.5  Code Title Unit  Concentration in Cyber Security  CYBR 500 Foundations of Cyber Security 6	Code	Title	Units
COMP 422 Advanced Embedded Software Development 3 One of the following courses: 3-3.5 COMP 365 Principles of Information Security COMP 375 Networking  Total Units 9-9.5  Code Title Unit Concentration in Cyber Security  CYBR 500 Foundations of Cyber Security 6 One of the following: 3-3.5 COMP 375 Networking An additional CYBR course numbered CYBR 520 or higher	Concentration in	n Embedded Software Development	
One of the following courses:  COMP 365 Principles of Information Security  COMP 375 Networking  Total Units 9-9.5  Code Title Unit  Concentration in Cyber Security  CYBR 500 Foundations of Cyber Security  One of the following: 3-3.5  COMP 375 Networking  An additional CYBR course numbered CYBR 520 or higher	COMP 421	Embedded Software Development	3
COMP 365 Principles of Information Security  COMP 375 Networking  Total Units 9-9.5  Code Title Unit  Concentration in Cyber Security  CYBR 500 Foundations of Cyber Security 6  One of the following: 3-3.5  COMP 375 Networking  An additional CYBR course numbered CYBR 520 or higher	COMP 422	Advanced Embedded Software Development	3
COMP 375 Networking  Total Units 9-9.5  Code Title Unit  Concentration in Cyber Security  CYBR 500 Foundations of Cyber Security 6  One of the following: 3-3.5  COMP 375 Networking  An additional CYBR course numbered CYBR 520 or higher	One of the follow	ring courses:	3-3.5
Total Units  Code Title Unit Concentration in Cyber Security  CYBR 500 Foundations of Cyber Security  6 One of the following: COMP 375 Networking An additional CYBR course numbered CYBR 520 or higher	COMP 365	Principles of Information Security	
Code Title Unit Concentration in Cyber Security  CYBR 500 Foundations of Cyber Security 6 One of the following: 3-3.5  COMP 375 Networking An additional CYBR course numbered CYBR 520 or higher	COMP 375	Networking	
Concentration in Cyber Security  CYBR 500 Foundations of Cyber Security 6  One of the following: 3-3.5  COMP 375 Networking  An additional CYBR course numbered CYBR 520 or higher	Total Units		9-9.5
CYBR 500 Foundations of Cyber Security 6 One of the following: 3-3.5 COMP 375 Networking An additional CYBR course numbered CYBR 520 or higher	Code	Title	Units
One of the following: 3-3.5  COMP 375 Networking  An additional CYBR course numbered CYBR 520 or higher	Concentration in	n Cyber Security	
COMP 375 Networking  An additional CYBR course numbered CYBR 520 or higher	CYBR 500	Foundations of Cyber Security	6
An additional CYBR course numbered CYBR 520 or higher	One of the follow	ring:	3-3.5
	COMP 375	Networking	
Total Units 9-9.5	An additional	CYBR course numbered CYBR 520 or higher	
	Total Units		0.05

## Notes:

Semester II

**COMP 492** 

Upper-Division COMP Elective

Core Curriculum and Electives

Title

- 1) Students choosing the Embedded Software Development, or Cyber Security concentration may not use COMP 375 to satisfy the Systems Course requirement in the Computer Science major.
- 2) Students completing the Cyber Security concentration by taking nine units of 500-level CYBR classes must be enrolled in the Combined Undergraduate Computer Science and MS in Cyber Security Engineering program at the time the second CYBR course is taken.

# Combined BS or BA Computer Science and Master of Science in Cyber Security Engineering (MSCSE) Program

A student who has applied, accepted, and indicated that they will enter the MSCSE program, can apply up to twelve 500-level CYBR units to both their undergraduate degree requirements in Computer Science, and to the requirements of the MSCSE program. Those units shall include CYBR 500 and any of the following: CYBR courses: 520, 530, 540, 550, 560, 570, 580, 590.

The MSCSE program requires 30 units (computer science majors do not need to take a 6-unit course in software fundamentals that would bring the unit count to 36), and MSCSE students take 6 units per semester. So a student who completes 12 units as an undergraduate can complete the remaining 18 units in three terms (summer, fall, and spring). Thus, a student can earn a BS or BA in computer science plus an MS in Cyber Security Engineering in 4 years of undergraduate coursework plus 1 year of graduate coursework.

# The Computer Science Minors

Students wishing to major in another field while also developing competency in the use of computers are encouraged to choose one of the minors described below.

# The Minor in Computer Science

3 The computer science minor is intended for students who have a general interest 3 in the workings and uses of computers. Minimum requirements for the minor in computer science are: 9-12

Code	Title	Hours
COMP 150	Computer Programming I	3
COMP 151	Computer Programming II	3
12 additional uni	its <sup>1</sup>	12

At least 9 of which are in upper division courses, excluding COMP 498. One course at most from ELEC 310, ELEC 340, ELEC 410, and ELEC 450 can count toward these 12 units. COMP 300 and ELEC 310 cannot both apply toward the 12 units.

Note: Neither COMP 100 nor COMP 498 may be applied toward the requirements for the minor in computer science.

# The Minor in Information Science

The information science minor is intended for students who have a special interest in the analysis, design, implementation, and use of computer-based information systems and organizations. Minimum requirements for the minor in information science are:

Code	Title	Hours
COMP 150	Computer Programming I	3
COMP 151	Computer Programming II	3
COMP 285	Data Structures & Algorithms	3
ITMG 350	Management Information Systems	3
Nine additional	l units <sup>1</sup>	9

- At least 6 of which are in upper division courses chosen from:
  - 1. the computer science offerings listed in this course catalog, excluding COMP 100 and COMP 498. COMP 345 is highly recommended.
  - 2. ITMG 350 Management Information Systems

# COMP 100 | INTRODUCTORY COMPUTER PROGRAMMING Units: 3 Repeatability: No

An elementary introduction to computer programming and applications for non-majors and non-minors. Computer organization; problem solving; algorithms; structured programming in a simple computer language; computer applications; and current issues and trends in computer science. This course does not satisfy any of the requirements for the computer science major or minor and is not a substitute for COMP 150.

## COMP 110 | COMPUTATIONAL PROBLEM SOLVING

Units: 3.5 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MATH 115

An introduction to computational problem solving using the Python programming language. Students will learn the basic elements of programming (e.g. conditionals, loops, inputs/outputs), modular program design, and the basics of data abstraction through object-oriented programming.

# COMP 120 | PROGRAMMING ABSTRACTIONS AND METHODOLOGIES

Units: 3.5 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: COMP 110

A continued exploration of computational problem solving, with a focus on using abstraction to manage program complexity. Students will learn to use both functional and data abstractions, analyze the time and space complexity of algorithms, and utilize functional, object-oriented, and event-driven paradigms within their programs.

# COMP 150 | COMPUTER PROGRAMMING I

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 115 or Passing the appropriate departmental placement test within the previous year or MATH 130 or MATH 150  $\,$ 

Algorithms and programming in a selected computer language; expressions, statements, basic data types; sequence, decision, iteration; functions and procedures; arrays; recursion; file input and output; loop invariants; syntax analysis; and program design, documentation, validation, and debugging. Prereq: MATH 115 with a minimum grade of C-, or pass Level 2 mathematics placement exam. COMP 100 is not a prerequisite.

# COMP 151 | COMPUTER PROGRAMMING II

Units: 3-4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: COMP 150

Continuation of COMP 150. Basic data structures, including lists, stacks, queues, and binary trees; abstract data types; sorting and searching algorithms; exception handling; event driven programming;.

## COMP 160 | PROGRAMMING LANGUAGES

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: COMP 150

Introduction to a particular high-level programming language such as C, C++, Python, Ruby, MATLAB, and Maple. Programming assignments appropriate to the language studied. Prereq: COMP 150 with a grade of C- or better. This course does not satisfy any of the requirements for the major in computer science.

# COMP 230 | ADVANCED COMPUTATIONAL PROBLEM MODELING Units: 3.5 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: COMP 120

Advanced data structures (e.g. graphs, priority queues, quad trees, etc.) from the perspective of solving advanced computational problems. Students will learn to program in the Java programming language using object-oriented features such as inheritance, interfaces and generics.

# COMP 280 | INTRODUCTION TO COMPUTER SYSTEMS

Units: 3.5 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: COMP 120

Introduction to computer systems; data representation; machine/assembly languages; memory organization; virtual memory; and concurrency.

## **COMP 285 | DATA STRUCTURES & ALGORITHMS**

Units: 3

Prerequisites: (COMP 151 and MATH 160)

Data structures, algorithm analysis and general programming design and applications; balanced trees, hashing, priority queues, sets, and graphs; more on sorting and searching; Prereq: COMP 151 with a grade of C- or better and MATH 160 with a grade of C- or better.

### COMP 300 | PRINCIPLES OF DIGITAL HARDWARE

Units: 3.5 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MATH 160 and COMP 280

Combinational and sequential logic, registers, arithmetic units. Introduction to computer architecture. Three lectures and one laboratory per week.

# COMP 305 | OBJECT-ORIENTED DESIGN AND PROGRAMMING Units: 3

Prerequisites: COMP 285

Classes, encapsulation, inheritance, polymorphism, class derivation, abstract classes, namespaces, function overloading and overriding, function name overload resolution, container classes, template classes; unified modeling language (UML); constructing conceptual models, system sequence diagrams; design patterns; case studies. Prereq: COMP 285 with a grade of C- or better.

### **COMP 310 | OPERATING SYSTEMS**

Units: 3.5-4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: COMP 280

Principles of computer operating systems; process management; memory management; file systems; protection; deadlock. Concurrent programming.

## **COMP 340 | NUMERICAL ANALYSIS**

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 151 and COMP 150

Approximate computations and round-off errors; Taylor expansions; numerical solution of equations and systems of equations; systems of linear equations; numerical integration; numerical solution of differential equations; interpolation; and problem solving on the computer. Prereq: COMP 150 with a grade of C- or better and MATH 151 with a grade of C- or better. Cross-listed as MATH 340.

# COMP 341 | NUMERICAL ANALYSIS II

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 250 and MATH 320 and MATH 330 (Can be taken Concurrently) and COMP 340

Estimation of eigenvalues and eigenvectors of matrices; numerical solutions of differential equations, existence, and stability theory; and computer lab assignments. Prereq: MATH 250, 320, 330 (may be taken concurrently), and COMP 340, all with a grade of C- or better. Cross-listed as MATH 341.

## COMP 345 | DATABASE MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS DESIGN

**Units: 3-4** 

Prerequisites: COMP 285

Introduction to database concepts; data models; query facilities; and file organization and security. Prereq: COMP 285 with a grade of C- or better.

# COMP 350 | COMPUTER GRAPHICS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 151 and COMP 285

The development of high-level, device-independent graphics routines; basic line drawing algorithms, text design, and other graphics primitives; 2-D representations of coordinate systems, image segmentation, and windowing. Prereq: COMP 285 with a grade of C- or better and MATH 151 with a grade of C- or better.

## COMP 355 | DIGITAL MODELING AND SIMULATION

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 151 and COMP 305

Mathematical modeling; probabilistic and deterministic simulations; pseudorandom number generators; event generators; queuing theory; game theory; and continuous models involving ordinary and partial differential equations. Prereq: COMP 305 with a grade of C- or better and MATH 151 with a grade of C- or better.

# COMP 360 | PRINCIPLES OF PROGRAMMING LANGUAGES

**Units: 3-4** 

Prerequisites: COMP 285

The organization of programming languages with emphasis on language semantics; language definition, data types, and control structures of various languages. Prereq: COMP 285 with a grade of C- or better; COMP 280 is recommended.

# COMP 365 | PRINCIPLES OF INFORMATION SECURITY

**Units: 3 Repeatability: No** 

Prerequisites: COMP 280

Introduction to fundamental concepts in cyber security: policies, threats, vulnerabilities, risk and controls; Identification and authentication; Access control; Cryptographic mechanisms: Ciphers, hashes, message authentication codes, and digital certificates; Malware, infection vectors, and mitigations; Attacks on various application domains, such as web applications; Tools and techniques for developing secure software.

# COMP 370 | AUTOMATA, COMPUTABILITY AND FORMAL LANGUAGES

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (COMP 230 or COMP 285) and MATH 222

Finite state machines; formal grammars; computability and Turing machines.

# COMP 375 | NETWORKING Units: 3.5 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: COMP 280

Introduction to the design and implementation of computer and communication networks. The focus is on the concepts and the fundamental design principles that have contributed to the global Internet's success. Topics covered will include MAC layer design (Ethernet/802.11), the TCP/IP protocol stack, routing algorithms, congestion control and reliability, and applications (HTTP, FTP, etc.) and advanced topics such as peer-to-peer networks and network simulation tools. Recent trends in networking such as multimedia networking, mobile/cellular networks and sensor networks will also be discussed. Prereq: COMP 280 with a grade of C- or better.

## COMP 380 | NEURAL NETWORKS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: COMP 285 and MATH 151

A study of the fundamental concepts, architectures, learning algorithms and applications of various artificial neural networks, including perceptron, Kohonen self organizing maps, learning vector quantization, backpropagation, and radial basis functions. Prereq: COMP 285 with a grade of C- or better and MATH 151 with a grade of C- or better.

# COMP 382 | INTRODUCTION TO DATA MINING

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: COMP 230

The course provides a comprehensive introduction to data mining with a primary focus on fundamental concepts, algorithms and applications of association analysis, classification and clustering modeling. It will also cover ethical issues related to data mining.

## **COMP 385 | COMPILER CONSTRUCTION**

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: COMP 300 and COMP 310

Students in this class will implement a scanner, a compiler, and an interpreter. The goal of this course is to establish a competence in data transformation and translation within the context of computer language compilation and interpretation. Students will exercise their individual contribution capabilities and teamwork skills while implementing a trio of software systems that will require a significant associated verification/test effort. Every Spring.

### COMP 421 | EMBEDDED SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: COMP 280

Development of "bare metal" embedded software, running on a microcontroller with no operating system support. Real-time requirements for finishing tasks within a fixed interval of time and for responding to asynchronous events are emphasized, along with techniques for writing reliable code for a memory-constrained microcontroller. All code is written in C using freely available development tools.

# COMP 422 | ADVANCED EMBEDDED SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: COMP 421 or GENG 421

Development of embedded software (firmware) using a real-time operating system (RTOS). Development of an application as a set of independent threads that communicate with each other via message queues and semaphores.

## **COMP 465W | SOFTWARE ENGINEERING**

Units: 3

**Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: COMP 305

Theoretical and practical aspects of software development; project planning; requirements and specification; general and detailed design; implementation; validation and verification; formal documentation. Students will participate in developing documentation for a large software project. Prereq: COMP 305 with a grade of C- or better.

## COMP 480 | ALGORITHMS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 151 and COMP 285

Advanced theory of algorithms. Topics may include: algorithm analysis; algorithm design techniques; and computational complexity. Prereq: COMP 285 with a grade of C- or better and MATH 151 with a grade of C- or better.

## COMP 491 | SENIOR PROJECT I

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: COMP 305

Students will develop professional skills in realistic software design and engineering, including human/computer interface design techniques, software architecture, teamwork, and project management, incorporating technical and non-technical considerations. Work will prepare students for implementing, testing and documenting the project in COMP 492, Senior Project II.

## COMP 492 | SENIOR PROJECT II

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: COMP 491

This course is the culmination of the senior project. Students will implement, test and document the software project based on the plan developed in COMP 491. Students will present the results of their project in both oral and written form.

## COMP 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS

Units: 3-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: COMP 305

Topics of special interest chosen by the instructor. Prereq: COMP 305 with a grade of C- or better and consent of the instructor. COMP 494 may be repeated for credit with a different topic.

## **COMP 495 | SENIOR PROJECT**

Units: 2

Prerequisites: COMP 465W

The course involves participation in a capstone senior project of substantial interest to computer scientists. Emphasis is on the design and implementation of computer systems for real-world problems. A final written report and oral presentation in the presence of other students and faculty are required. Prereq: COMP 465W with a grade of C- or better and senior standing.

#### **COMP 498 | INTERNSHIP**

**Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)** 

Core Attributes: Law - Experiential

Practical experience in the application of the principles of computer science. Students will be involved in a software or hardware project. Enrollment is arranged on an individual basis according to the student's interest, background, and the availability of positions. A written report is required. Units may not normally be applied toward the major or minor in computer science. COMP 498 may be repeated for a total of three units.

### **COMP 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY**

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

**Core Attributes: Law - Experiential** 

Prerequisites: COMP 151

Individual study including library or laboratory research or program writing. A written report is required. Prereq: COMP 151 and consent of instructor. COMP 499 may be repeated for a total of three units.

# **Electrical Engineering**

# Chair

Mikaya L. D. Lumori, PhD

# **Faculty**

Ernest M. Kim, PhD, PE

Kathleen A. Kramer, PhD

Michael S. Morse, PhD, JD

Thomas F. Schubert, Jr., PhD, PE

Subramanian Shastri, PhD

Electrical engineering (EE) is a profession that uses science, mathematics, computers and other technology, coupled with problem solving skills, to design, construct and maintain products, services and systems using electricity and electronics. Electrical engineers research, design, develop and operate the many electrical systems and components that run our world. Electrical engineers are often associated with computer chips, power generation or telecommunications. However, electrical engineers also specialize in such work as circuit design, computers and automatic control systems, microelectronics, electronic photography and television, energy sources and systems, and solid-state materials and devices. Electrical engineers work in the communications, aerospace, computer, electrical power, medical, semiconductor and consumer electronics industries. Electrical engineering is a field with diverse challenges and many opportunities.

The EE program at USD encompasses a breadth of traditional fields and provides depth in electronics, signal analysis and digital systems. In addition, students complete the broad range of core curriculum requirements that lead to a unique dual BS/BA degree in electrical engineering. Within the curriculum, special emphasis is placed upon engineering design and the use of the computer both as an engineering tool and as an integral component in systems. Both emphases are

integrated throughout the curriculum with basic concepts introduced during the first two years followed by increasing levels of application complexity throughout the upper division courses.

# **Educational Objectives**

- Are able to apply their electrical engineering and broad academic backgrounds in their professional and personal endeavors
- · Can adapt to evolving job responsibilities
- Can contribute effectively on a team and provide leadership in their professional careers

To achieve these objectives, the EE program has been designed to ensure that graduates have achieved the following outcomes:

- · an ability to apply knowledge of mathematics, science and engineering
- an ability to design and conduct experiments, as well as to analyze and interpret data
- an ability to design a system, component, or process to meet desired needs
  within realistic constraints such as economic, environmental, social, political,
  ethical, health and safety, manufacturability and sustainability
- · an ability to function on multi-disciplinary teams
- an ability to identify, formulate and solve engineering problems
- an understanding of professional and ethical responsibility
- · an ability to communicate effectively
- the broad education necessary to understand the impact of engineering solutions in a global, economic, environmental and societal context
- · a recognition of the need for, and an ability to engage in life-long learning
- a knowledge of contemporary issues [in the profession]
- an ability to use the techniques, skills and modern engineering tools necessary for engineering practice.
- an ability to apply knowledge of probability and statistics to applications in electrical engineering.

Fast-changing technologies in the field of electrical engineering mean that lifelong learning is a necessity for members of the profession. The significance of electrical engineering technologies in affecting the quality of life throughout the world creates additional professional responsibilities. As part of these professional obligations, all EE majors are expected to maintain student membership in the Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers, Inc. (IEEE).

# **Electrical Engineering Advisory Board**

The Electrical Engineering Advisory Board (EEAB) was organized in Summer 2001 to represent the interests of the electrical engineering industry and alumni to the electrical engineering program. The board, composed of representatives from companies such as SAIC, General Atomics, ViaSat Inc., and SDGE, serves, serves to expand the level and role of industry affiliates in the continued development of the electrical engineering program and in the promotion of cooperative programs and relations with industry and the San Diego community.

# **Available Minors**

The electrical engineering standard pattern qualifies students for a minor in mathematics without any additional courses. Interested majors should apply to the mathematics department for specific approval of the minor. Minors are possible in other areas, particularly computer science or physics, but also business administration, etc., by the addition of courses not included in the engineering standard patterns. The interested student should consult this course catalog or the specific department for guidance, as well as an engineering advisor for career-oriented advice.

# The Electrical Engineering Major **Preparation for Major**

The mathematics, science, and engineering courses listed below also satisfy the core curriculum requirements in mathematics competency, natural sciences, and upper division writing. In support of the professional practice of engineering, there are requirements for knowledge of communication and engineering ethics.

These courses also fulfill university core requirements. In addition, economics (ECON 101 or 102) is recommended.

Code	Title	Units
Mathematics and	Science Requirements	
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
MATH 250	Calculus III	4
MATH 310	Applied Mathematics for Science and Engineering I	3
MATH 311	Applied Mathematics for Science and Engineering II	3
ISYE 330	Engineering Probability and Statistics	3
or MATH 315	Applied Probability and Statistics	
PHYS 270	Introduction to Mechanics	4
& 270L	and Mechanics Lab	
PHYS 271	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism	4
& 271L	and Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism Lab	
CHEM 151	General Chemistry I	4
& 151L	and General Chemistry I Laboratory	
Life Science Electi	ve	3
Total Mathematics	and Science Units	36
<b>Engineering Core</b>	Requirements	
ENGR 101	Introduction to Engineering	3
ENGR 102	Introduction to Electromechanical System Design	3
ENGR 103	User-Centered Design	3
ENGR 121	Engineering Programming	3
or COMP 150	Computer Programming I	
MENG 210	Statics	3
MENG 260	Introduction to Thermal Sciences	3
or PHYS 272	Introduction to Modern Physics	
Total Engineering Core Units		18
<b>Engineering Profe</b>	essional Practice Requirements	
COMM 203	Public Speaking <sup>1</sup>	3
PHIL 342	Engineering Ethics	3
Total Professional	Practice Requirements	6

# **Electrical Engineering Requirements**

These courses include units in electrical engineering science and design. These classes are required by the major:

Code	Title	Units
ELEC 201	Electrical Circuits	4
ELEC 201L	Electrical Circuits Lab	0
ELEC 301	Electronics I	4
ELEC 302	Electronics II	4
ELEC 310	Embedded Systems Design	4
ELEC 311	Semiconductor Electronic Devices	3
ELEC 320	Principles of Electrical Power	3
ELEC 340	Digital Design	4

ELEC 350	Signals and Systems	3
ELEC 430	Applied Electromagnetics	4
ELEC 460	Control Systems Engineering	4
ELEC 470	Communication Principles and Circuits	4
ELEC 491W	Electrical Engineering Design and Practice I	4
ELEC 492	Electrical Engineering Design and Practice II	3
Approved Elective	es	
	following approved electives (including at least two 3 or 4	6
unit courses):		
ELEC 403	Advanced Electronic Circuit Design	
ELEC 410	Microcomputer-Based Systems Design	
ELEC 432	Radio Frequency and Microwave Engineering	
ELEC 450	Digital Signal Processing and Applications	
ELEC 456	Biomedical Instrumentation	
ENGR 465	Forensic Engineering	
ELEC 472	Wireless and Digital Communications	
ELEC 480	Optoelectronic Materials and Devices	
ELEC 494	Special Topics in Electrical Engineering	
COMP 340	Numerical Analysis	
COMP 375	Networking	
COMP 380	Neural Networks	
Total Units		54

New elective offerings are often made available; a complete list of approved electives can be obtained from the chair of electrical engineering.

# Core Curriculum Requirements (33 or more additional units):

All electrical engineering majors must satisfy the core curriculum specified by the university.

# Required Program of Study: Electrical **Engineering**

## First Year

Semester I		Units
ENGR 101	Introduction to Engineering	3
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
CHEM 151	General Chemistry I	4
& 151L		
Or		
ENGR 121	Engineering Programming	3
or COMP 150	Computer Programming I	
CC Electives		6
Semester II		
ENGR 102	Introduction to Electromechanical System	3
or 103	Design	
	User-Centered Design	
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
ENGR 121	Engineering Programming	3
or COMP 150	Computer Programming I	
Or		
CHEM 151	General Chemistry I	4
& 151L		

PHYS 270 & 270L	Introduction to Mechanics	4	ELEC 102   INTRODUCTION TO ELECTRO-TECHNOLOGY PRACTICE
CC Elective		3	Units: 3
Sophomore Year			Core Attributes: Physical Science-Pre F17 CORE
Semester I			Introduction to the underlying scientific principles of electrical and electronic technologies encountered in our daily lives. This course answers how and why
ENGR 102	Introduction to Electromechanical System	3	for the student with minimal background in physical science. Foundations of
or 103	Design User-Centered Design		both historic and emerging technologies, and how they affect our environment and society are presented. This course fulfills a non-laboratory core curriculum
MATH 310	Applied Mathematics for Science and Engineering I	3	Physical Science requirement for non-majors. Three hours lecture-recitation-demonstration per week.
PHYS 271 & 271L	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism	4	ELEC 201   ELECTRICAL CIRCUITS Units: 4 Repeatability: No
CC Electives		6	Prerequisites: and ELEC 201L (Can be taken Concurrently) ELEC 201L (Can be
Semester II			taken Concurrently) and MATH 310 (Can be taken Concurrently) and PHYS 271
ELEC 201	Electrical Circuits	4	Electrical element physical behavior and component models; network laws and
MATH 250	Calculus III	4	analysis techniques; time and frequency domain techniques for the analysis of linear networks; computer-aided analysis using SPICE or approved equivalent;
ISYE 330	Engineering Probability and Statistics	3	introduction to AC power; laboratory circuit design, testing, and verification.
MENG 210	Statics	3	Three hours lecture and one three-hour laboratory weekly. Fall and spring
PHYS 272	Introduction to Modern Physics	3	semesters.
or MENG 260	Introduction to Thermal Sciences		ELEC 201L   ELECTRICAL CIRCUITS LAB
Junior Year			Units: 0 Repeatability: No
Semester I			Core Attributes: Lab
ELEC 301	Electronics I	4	Prerequisites: ELEC 201 (Can be taken Concurrently) Laboratory for ELEC 201.
ELEC 340	Digital Design	4	•
ELEC 311	Semiconductor Electronic Devices	3	ELEC 301   ELECTRONICS I Units: 4
MATH 311	Applied Mathematics for Science and	3	Prerequisites: ELEC 201
	Engineering II		Analysis and design of analog and digital electronic devices, circuits and
CC elective		3	systems including single and multiple transistor amplifiers, logic gates and other
Semester II			digital logic building block elements; low frequency models of bipolar junction
ELEC 302	Electronics II	4	transistors and field effect transistors; design features and characteristics of
ELEC 310	Embedded Systems Design	4	integrated circuit operational amplifiers; computer-aided analysis and design using SPICE; laboratory design, testing and verification. Three hours lecture and
ELEC 350	Signals and Systems	3	one three-hour laboratory weekly. Fall semester.
CC elective		6	ELEC 302   ELECTRONICS II
Senior Year			Units: 4
Semester I			Prerequisites: ELEC 301 and ELEC 350 (Can be taken Concurrently)
ELEC 320	Principles of Electrical Power	3	Electronic circuit design including integrated circuit realizations; computer-aided
ELEC 430	Applied Electromagnetics	4	design using SPICE; power amplifiers and output stages; design of feedback amplifiers and active filters; frequency response including high frequency models
ELEC 470	Communication Principles and Circuits	4	of electronic devices; laboratory design, testing and verification. Three hours
ELEC 491W	Electrical Engineering Design and Practice I	4	lecture and one three-hour laboratory weekly. Spring semester.
Semester II			ELEC 310   EMBEDDED SYSTEMS DESIGN
ELEC 460	Control Systems Engineering	4	Units: 4
ELEC 400 ELEC 492	Electrical Engineering Design and Practice II	3	Prerequisites: (ENGR 121 or COMP 150) and ELEC 340
ELEC 492 ELEC elective	Electrical Engineering Design and Fractice II	3	Introduction to a basic microprocessor and its applications; microcomputer
CC elective			systems organization; memory and I/O device interfacing; assembly language
Senior Year 2		6	programming of a basic microprocessor; use of assemblers and other development tools. Three hours lecture and one three-hour laboratory weekly. Spring semester.
			ELEC 310L   INTRODUCTION TO MICROCOMPUTERS
Semester I		2	Units: 1
ELEC elective		3	Core Attributes: Lab
CC electives		12	

## ELEC 311 | SEMICONDUCTOR ELECTRONIC DEVICES

## Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: CHEM 151 and CHEM 151L and MATH 151 and PHYS 271 Semiconductor fundamentals comprising crystals and energy bands, charge carriers, doping, and transport, (drift and diffusion); unipolar devices with the MOS field effect transistor as a logic device including circuit considerations; basic concepts of generation-recombination and the p-n junction as capacitors and current rectifier with applications; bipolar transistors as amplifiers and switching three-terminal devices. Fall Semester.

# ELEC 320 | PRINCIPLES OF ELECTRICAL POWER

## Units: 3

Prerequisites: ELEC 201

Fundamentals of electrical power circuits and devices; electromechanical energy conversion; theory and analysis of magnetic circuits and transformers; theory and analysis of DC and AC electric machines including steady-state and dynamic characteristics. Three hours lecture weekly. Fall semester.

# ELEC 340 | DIGITAL DESIGN

#### Units: 4

Prerequisites: (ENGR 121 or COMP 150) and ELEC 201

Analysis and design of combinational and sequential digital circuits; digital circuit design using MSI, LSI, and VLSI; digital systems design using programmable logic devices; design and simulation using a hardware description language; asynchronous sequential logic; digital electronics. Three hours lecture and one three-hour laboratory weekly. Fall semester.

## ELEC 350 | SIGNALS AND SYSTEMS

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: (COMP 150 or ENGR 121) and MATH 310 and ELEC 201 and MATH 311 (Can be taken Concurrently)

Methods of analysis for linear, time-invariant systems; time and frequency domain analysis; Fourier series; Laplace and Fourier Transform methods of analysis; state variable representation; sampling theorem; simulation diagrams and system realization; introduction to discrete-time approximations and analysis; computer-aided analysis and simulation using MATLAB or equivalent. Three hours lecture weekly. Spring semester.

# ELEC 403 | ADVANCED ELECTRONIC CIRCUIT DESIGN Units: 3

Prerequisites: ELEC 302

Analysis and design of analog and digital electronic circuits and systems including: oscillators, waveform generation, communication circuits, power electronics, and digital gates; computer-aided analysis and design; lecture/recitation and occasional lab/demonstration.

# ELEC 410 | MICROCOMPUTER-BASED SYSTEMS DESIGN Units: 4

Prerequisites: ELEC 310

Use of microcomputer as an engineering system component in design; systems characteristics and programming of microprocessors, microcontrollers and related architectures; data acquisition, control, timing, I/O, and interfacing; use of computer-aided tools for design and evaluation of microcomputer-based systems; design projects.

# ELEC 430 | APPLIED ELECTROMAGNETICS

## Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MATH 311 and PHYS 271 and ELEC 350

Principles of electromagnetic fields, propagation, and transmission; Maxwell's equations and classical solutions using boundary conditions; microwave transmission line principles and applications; waveguides; introduction to antennas. Computer-aided analysis and design. Fall semester.

# ELEC 432 | RADIO FREQUENCY AND MICROWAVE ENGINEERING Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 311 and ELEC 302 and ELEC 430 (Can be taken Concurrently)

An introduction to the design and analysis of active and passive radio frequency and microwave circuits. Topics include radio frequency and microwave circuit analysis, measurement methods, transmission line structures, matching networks, oscillators, and mixers. Computer-aided analysis and design.

# ELEC 450 | DIGITAL SIGNAL PROCESSING AND APPLICATIONS Units: 3

Prerequisites: ELEC 350 and (ISYE 330 (Can be taken Concurrently) or MATH 315 (Can be taken Concurrently))

Analysis and design of sampled-data and discrete-time systems; z-transform and state-space techniques; introduction to hardware implementation; principles of digital signal processing and control including noise considerations; computeraided analysis and design.

# ELEC 456 | BIOMEDICAL INSTRUMENTATION

### Units: 3

Prerequisites: ELEC 302

Techniques and equipment used by engineers in biomedical signal acquisition, biomedical signal analysis, and medical environment. Theory and application of biomedical technology. Basics of and requirements for biosignal transducing, amplification, and processing. Topics include current biomedical imaging technology, biomedical safety, and biomedical ethics.

# ELEC 460 | CONTROL SYSTEMS ENGINEERING

Units: 4

Prerequisites: ELEC 320 and ELEC 350 and MATH 311

Analysis and design of linear feedback systems; control components; time, frequency, and transform domain representations and design techniques; systems specifications, performance indices, evaluation and testing; controller and compensator design; complex frequency and state-variable techniques. Introduction to sampled-data systems. Computer-aided design and simulation. Three hours lecture and one three-hour laboratory weekly. Spring semester.

# ELEC 470 | COMMUNICATION PRINCIPLES AND CIRCUITS Units: 4

Prerequisites: ELEC 302 and ELEC 350 and MATH 311 and (ISYE 330 (Can be taken Concurrently) or MATH 315 (Can be taken Concurrently))

Signal analysis; analog and digital modulation and detection techniques; modern communication circuits and devices. Application of probability theory and random processes to communication systems. Three hours lecture and one three-hour laboratory weekly. Fall semester.

# ELEC 472 | WIRELESS AND DIGITAL COMMUNICATIONS Units: 3

Prerequisites: ELEC 470

Digital and wireless communication systems and modulation techniques. Schemes for multiplexing and multiple access in wireless networks. Propagation and channel coding issues. Practical issues in the design and development of cellular, satellite-based, and other wireless communication systems.

# ELEC 472L $\mid$ WIRELESS AND DIIGITAL COMMUNICATIONS LAB Units: 1

Prerequisites: ELEC 470 and ELEC 472 (Can be taken Concurrently)

# ELEC 480 | OPTOELECTRONIC MATERIALS AND DEVICES Units: 3

Prerequisites: ENGR 311 and ELEC 301

Introduction to the operation and design of optoelectronic materials and devices including compound semiconductors, fabrication, crystal growth, and devices such as lasers, LEDs, and detectors.

## ELEC 491W | ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING DESIGN AND PRACTICE I

## Units: 4 Repeatability: No

## Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency

Prerequisites: ELEC 302 and ELEC 310 and ELEC 350

Proposal and concept design phase of a capstone project culminating in a documented and approved project to be implemented in Electrical Engineering Design and Practice II (ELEC 492). Working as a multidisciplinary team, an iterative design process is applied to a major design experience based on the knowledge and skills acquired in earlier course work. Stages of design include problem identification, formulation of requirements, research and analysis, evaluation of alternatives, use of modern design methods and engineering techniques that incorporate realistic constraints, project planning, testing and proof-of-concept. Societal, ethical, and professional practice considerations are integrated into the design process. Three hours lecture-recitation and one three-hour laboratory weekly. Fall semester.

## ELEC 492 | ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING DESIGN AND PRACTICE II

## Units: 3 Repeatability: No

### **Core Attributes: Advanced Integration**

Prerequisites: ELEC 491W

Principles of engineering design culminating in a project that applies and integrates topics in electrical and electronic circuits, signals, and systems; technical and non-technical considerations; research, planning, analysis, detail design, prototyping, implementation, testing, evaluation, and documentation of an engineering design project; design reviews including written reports and oral presentations to multiple audiences. Two hours of lecture and four hours of laboratory weekly. Spring semester.

# ELEC 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING

## **Units: 1-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)**

Special topics seminar in areas of special interest to current engineering practice in electrical/electronics/computer engineering. May be repeated for credit.

## ELEC 496 | UNDERGRADUATE RESEARCH

## Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Faculty-directed undergraduate research in engineering. Problem proposal must be submitted and approved prior to enrollment. Written report required. Upper division standing in the EE major. Prior approval by the department chair is required.

# ELEC 498 | INTERNSHIP/CO-OP EXPERIENCE

## Units: 1-3

Directed upper division level internship/ co-operative experience in engineering research, design, development, manufacturing, or the engineering activity. Written report required. Credit not applicable to minimum program graduation requirement. Placement contingent upon approval of participating organization. May be repeated for credit.

## **ELEC 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY**

## **Units: 1-3**

Individual project in creative design and synthesis under the general supervision of a participating professor. Project proposal must be submitted and approved prior to enrollment.

# **Engineering**

## Courses

## **ENGR 101 | INTRODUCTION TO ENGINEERING**

## Units: 3-4 Repeatability: No

### Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area

Prerequisites: MATH 150 (Can be taken Concurrently)

Introduction to the field of engineering. Students work in small teams to solve open-ended interdisciplinary design problems, including concept generation, analysis, computer aided design (CAD) modeling, construction, testing, development, and documentation. The project work is enhanced with lectures, activities, and reading on design, manufacturing, and engineering tools. Intended for majors in engineering or those exploring careers in engineering. Four hours lecture-laboratory weekly.

# ENGR 102 | INTRODUCTION TO ELECTROMECHANICAL SYSTEM DESIGN

## Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ENGR 101 and MATH 150 and MATH 151 (Can be taken Concurrently) and (ENGR 121 or COMP 150) and PHYS 270 (Can be taken Concurrently)

Introduction to the use of sensors, actuators, controllers, and computer interfaces for the use with electro-mechanical systems. Application of the engineering design process culminating in a team-based design project.

## **ENGR 103 | USER-CENTERED DESIGN**

## Units: 3 Repeatability: No

## **Core Attributes: Domestic Diversity level 1**

Prerequisites: ENGR 101 and MATH 150 and MATH 151 (Can be taken Concurrently)

Introduction to strategies for developing designs that emphasize how users will interact with the final product. Iterative design methods to elicit user requirements, generate alternative designs, develop low-fidelity prototypes, and evaluate designs from the user's perspective. Individual and collaborative strategies for design thinking, concept development, and functional evaluation.

## ENGR 110 | THE DESIGN OF COFFEE

## Units: 3 Repeatability: No

## Core Attributes: Science/Tech Inquiry area, Lab

This course serves as an introduction to how engineers approach and solve problems, demonstrated by the process of roasting and brewing coffee. Students will be introduced to basic principles of engineering analysis and design, and guided through a series of laboratory experiments testing the effect of design choices on the sensory quality of coffee. Both qualitative and quantitative concepts will be included in the course, along with discussion on the implications of coffee production and harvesting on land use, agriculture industry, labor force, economies, and societies. This course fulfills a Scientific and Technological Inquiry core curriculum requirement for non-majors. Concurrent registration in MATH 115 or higher recommended.

## **ENGR 121 | ENGINEERING PROGRAMMING**

## Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MATH 150 (Can be taken Concurrently)

Fundamentals of computer usage and programming in a structured, high-level language as commonly used in engineering systems development and applications; modular programming principles; use of the operating system and language constructs for program input/output; object-oriented programming. Three hours lecture weekly.

## **ENGR 294 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN ENGINEERING**

## Units: 1-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Special topics in various areas of engineering science theory and practice, including laboratory. May be used to correct certain deficiencies in transfer work or for special projects.

University of San Diego

## **ENGR 296 | UNDERGRADUATE RESEARCH**

## Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Faculty-directed undergraduate research in engineering. Problem selected after consultation with faculty. Written report required. Prior approval by department chair or dean is required.

### ENGR 298 | INTERNSHIP/CO-OP EXPERIENCE

### Units: 1-3

Directed lower division internship or co-operative experience in an engineering or related activity. Usually involves a three-month summer work assignment with industrial firms or government agencies. Written report required. Credit not applicable to minimum engineering program graduation requirements. May be repeated for credit.

## **ENGR 311 | ENGINEERING MATERIALS SCIENCE**

## Units: 3-4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (CHEM 151 and CHEM 151L) and MATH 151 and PHYS 271 Basic concepts of material structure and its relation to properties; atomic structure; mechanical, electrical, and magnetic properties; engineering applications; introduction to semiconductor physics. Three hours lecture weekly. Fall semester.

## ENGR 421 | EMBEDDED SYSTEMS PERFORMANCE

## Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: COMP 385

This course will focus on the application of all available processing power to implement system solutions. Parallel processing, core sequestration, processor affinity, CPU programming, DSP programming, and the integration of disparate processing elements via OpenCL will all be addressed in this course. The impact of coherent and non-coherent memory models will be addressed and the notion of data hazards in non-coherent systems will be detailed. We will also consider the application specific impacts of the relative power efficiency of alternative processing models. Every Spring.

# ENGR 465 | FORENSIC ENGINEERING

## Units: 3

This course deals with the interaction between the engineering and legal communities. Through case studies, students will learn about the legalities associated with being an engineer. The analysis stage of the engineering design process will be dissected and viewed as it is interpreted by the courts. Standard of care and legal standards for review of engineering design will be discussed. Duties of the engineer, the manufacturer, and the end user will be compared and contrasted. Students will perform forensic analyses of product failure cases. Legal concepts will be conveyed via case studies and Law Review articles.

## **ENGR 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN ENGINEERING**

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

# ENGR 496 | UNDERGRADUATE RESEARCH

# Units: 0.5-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Faculty-directed undergraduate research in engineering. Problem proposal must be submitted and approved prior to enrollment. Written report required. Upper division standing in engineering. Prior approval by department chair or dean is required.

# ENGR 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: (MATH 130 or MATH 150)

# **General Engineering**

# Chair

Susan Lord, PhD

# **Faculty**

Caroline Baillie, DEng

Diana Chen, PhD

Gordon Hoople, PhD

Joel Alejandro Mejia, PhD

The BS/BA in Engineering degree (GENG) provides students with a unique education in the field of engineering by both educating students across multiple areas of engineering and allowing them to focus on a particular area of interest. Unlike most engineering majors that develop deep knowledge in one discipline, the GENG degree encourages students to complement their comprehensive liberal arts education with a broad technical experience. This provides students with the interdisciplinary perspective and problem-solving skills needed to succeed in a wide range of engineering and non-engineering careers. The general engineering program should appeal to students that have broad interests and desire to explore more than one disciplinary area.

The GENG program has three main components:

- math, science, and engineering fundamentals provide a core base of knowledge to support further work in engineering design and analysis
- a concentration or individual plan of study that allows students to develop specialized skills
- additional electives allow students to either take more courses in their concentration area or pursue complementary interests in other areas that will help them achieve long-term career and educational goals

There are currently two concentrations available in the program. The first is Embedded Software (ESW). Embedded software focuses on software development to control or monitor devices that are typically part of a larger system. For example, ESW graduates might develop software to control autonomous vehicles, monitor power systems, or control communication networks. The second concentration is an Independent Plan of Study that allows students to with their advisor to develop an individual plan of study (IPS) that meets their specific educational and professional goals.

Beginning in Fall 2019, two additional concentrations will be offered in Sustainability and in Engineering and the Law. The sustainability concentration will help students develop the skills and perspectives needed to develop solutions that meet current needs in a way that does not leave a lasting impact on future generations. Engineering and the Law will provide students with a broad perspective of the intersection of the field engineering and the legal frameworks within which engineering is often applied. Students who are interested in careers related to patents and intellectual property, forensic engineering, or the nexus of public policy and technology might be interested in this concentration. A fifth concentration in Biomedical engineering is under development. It is anticipated that it will be offered to first-year students enrolling in Fall 2019. Contact the school for the latest information on these programs.

The educational objectives of the USD BS/BA in Engineering program are to develop graduates who:

- are able to apply their broad engineering and broad liberal arts backgrounds in their professional and personal endeavors
- can adapt to evolving job responsibilities
- collaborate with others as members or leaders of engineering or multidisciplinary teams

To achieve these objectives, the GENG program has been designed to ensure that graduates have achieved the following outcomes:

- an ability to identify, formulate, and solve complex engineering problems by applying principles of engineering, science and mathematics
- an ability to apply engineering design to produce solutions that meet specified needs with consideration of public health, safety, and welfare, as well as global, cultural, social, environmental and economic factors
- · an ability to communicate effectively with a range of audiences
- an ability to recognize ethical and professional responsibilities in engineering situations and make informed judgments, which must consider the impact of engineering solutions in global, economic, environmental and societal contexts
- an ability to function effectively on a team whose members together provide leadership, create a collaborative and inclusive environment, establish goals, plan tasks and meet objectives
- an ability to develop and conduct appropriate experimentation, analyze and interpret data and use engineering judgment to draw conclusions
- an ability to acquire and apply new knowledge as needed, using appropriate learning strategies

# The Engineering Major

All general engineering majors must satisfy the core curriculum specified by the university. The mathematics, science, and engineering courses listed below also satisfy the core curriculum requirements in mathematical reasoning, scientific and technological inquiry, quantitative reasoning, advanced writing, and levels 1 and 2 diversity, inclusion, and social justice (DISJ).

# Preparation for the Major

Code	Title	Units
Mathematics and	Science Requirements	
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
MATH 250	Calculus III <sup>1</sup>	4
MATH 310	Applied Mathematics for Science and Engineering I	3
ISYE 330	Engineering Probability and Statistics	3
PHYS 270 & 270L	Introduction to Mechanics and Mechanics Lab	4
PHYS 271 & 271L	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism and Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism Lab	4
CHEM 151 & 151L	General Chemistry I and General Chemistry I Laboratory	4
Add'l Math or Scien	nce <sup>2</sup>	3
Total Math and Sci	ence Units	32-33
<b>Engineering Core</b>	Requirements	
ENGR 101	Introduction to Engineering	3
ENGR 102	Introduction to Electromechanical System Design	3
ENGR 103	User-Centered Design	3
ENGR 121	Engineering Programming	3
or COMP 150	Computer Programming I	
Total Engineering Core Units		12
Total Units		45

Students selecting the embedded software concentration must take MATH 222. Consult an academic adviser for more information.

The additional Math or Science class will depend on the concentration selected. Consult an academic adviser for more information.

# Major Requirements

Students selecting the BS/BA in Engineering fulfill the requirement for the major by completing a set of common engineering breadth courses required by all students in the major, and by either 1) completing the requirements in a concentration or 2) working with an advisor to develop a plan of study that includes classes from several disciplines to meet individual professional goals.

# Required Engineering Breadth Courses for all General Engineering Options

Code	Title	Units
ELEC 201	Electrical Circuits	4
& 201L	and Electrical Circuits Lab	
ENGR 311	Engineering Materials Science	3
COMP 280	Introduction to Computer Systems (or any upper division engineering course)	3.5
ISYE 380	Sustainability and Engineering	3
MENG 210	Statics	3
MENG 260	Introduction to Thermal Sciences	3
GENG 221	Software Foundations	3
GENG 350	Engineering and Social Justice	3
GENG 360	Experimental Engineering	3
GENG 491	Engineering Senior Design I	4
GENG 492	Engineering Senior Design II	3
Total Units		35.5

# Option 1: Individual Plan of Study (IPS)

Students may work with a faculty adviser to define a curriculum plan that meets their specific educational and professional goals. In addition to the BS/BA in Engineering required classes, students must develop a plan that includes at least 24 units of coursework including at least 18 upper division units with at least 6 units of upper division engineering.

Code	Title	Units
Approved E	ingineering classes	6
Approved IF	PS electives	18
Total Units		24

# Option 2: Embedded Software Concentration (ESW)

Embedded software engineering focuses on software development to control or monitor devices that are typically part of a larger system. For example, ESW graduates might develop software to control autonomous vehicles, monitor power systems, or control communication networks.

Code	Title	Units
COMP 300	Principles of Digital Hardware	3.5
COMP 310	Operating Systems	3.5
COMP 365	Principles of Information Security	3
COMP 375	Networking	3.5
GENG 421	Embedded Systems Performance	3
GENG 422	Advanced Embedded Software Development	3
Approved Conce	entration Electives	6
Total Units		25.5

# **Option 3: Sustainability**

The Brundtland Report describes sustainable development as "development that meets the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs." This Sustainability Concentration will help you develop the skills needed to apply a sustainability mindset in any field you choose to work in. In addition to the BS/BA in Engineering required classes, students must develop a plan that includes at least 24 units of coursework including at least 18 upper division units. See a General Engineering faculty member for a list of approved courses in Groups A, B, and C.

Code	Title	Units
Group A Choo	ose 3 courses	9
Group A or B	Choose 3 courses	9
Group A, B, o	r C Choose 2 courses	6
Total Units		24

# Option 4: Engineering and the Law

Interested in working as a patent agent or attorney? In this concentration, courses taught by engineers, lawyers, political scientists, and others will prepare students for a range of careers at the intersection of engineering and law. Students will have the opportunity to take courses at USD's School of Law. In addition to the BS/BA in Engineering required classes, students must develop a plan that includes at least 24 units of coursework related to Engineering and the Law including at least 18 upper division units. See a General Engineering faculty member for a list of approved courses in the law related groups. Note that classes in USD's School of Law are not on the same academic calendar as USD undergraduate courses.

Code	Title	Unit
Upper Division	on Engineering Courses Choose 4	12
Law related C	Courses Choose 4.	12
At least 2	from same group, at least 1 outside of that	group.
Total Units		24

# Recommended Program of Study.

Individual Plan of Ctudy	
Individual Plan of Study	

First Year		
Semester I		Units
ENGR 101	Introduction to Engineering	3
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
CHEM 151	General Chemistry I	4
& 151L		
Or		
ENGR 121	Engineering Programming	3
or COMP 150	Computer Programming I	
CC Electives		6
Semester II		
ENGR 102	Introduction to Electromechanical System	3
or 103	Design	
	User-Centered Design	
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
ENGR 121	Engineering Programming	3
or COMP 150	Computer Programming I	
Or		
CHEM 151	General Chemistry I	4
& 151L		

PHYS 270	Introduction to Mechanics	4
& 270L		2
CC Elective		3
Sophomore Year		
Semester I		
ENGR 103	User-Centered Design	3
or 102	Introduction to Electromechanical System Design	
MATH 310	Applied Mathematics for Science and Engineering I	3
PHYS 271 & 271L	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism	4
CC Electives		6
Semester II		
ELEC 201	Electrical Circuits	4
GENG 221	Software Foundations	3
MENG 210	Statics	3
MENG 260	Introduction to Thermal Sciences	3
MATH 250	Calculus III	4
Junior Year		
Semester I		
ENGR 311	Engineering Materials Science	3
GENG 350	Engineering and Social Justice	3
ISYE 330	Engineering Probability and Statistics	3
COMP 280	Introduction to Computer Systems (or any upper-division engineering course)	3.5
IPS Elective		3
Semester II		
GENG 360	Experimental Engineering	3
ISYE 380	Sustainability and Engineering	3
IPS Elective (upper division engineering)		3
IPS Elective (upper div	ision)	3
CC Elective		3
Senior Year		
Semester I		

CC LICCUVC		3
Senior Year		
Semester I		
GENG 491	Engineering Senior Design I	4
IPS Elective (up	3	
IPS Elective (up	oper division engineering)	3
CC Electives		6
Semester II		
GENG 492	Engineering Senior Design II	3
IPS Electives (u	6	
CC Electives		6
Senior Year 2		
Semester I		
IPS Elective		3
Math/Sci Electiv	ve	3
CC Elective		3
Free Electives		9

	ded Program of Study, Software Concentration		GENG 421 CC Elective Senior Year	Embedded Systems Performance	3
Semester I		Units	Semester I		
ENGR 101	Introduction to Engineering		GENG 491	Engineering Senior Design I	4
		3	GENG 422	Advanced Embedded Software Development	3
MATH 150 CHEM 151	Calculus I	4	COMP 300	Principles of Digital Hardware	3.5
& 151L	General Chemistry I	4	CC Elective		3
Or			Concentration Elective		3
ENGR 121	Engineering Programming	3	Semester II		
or COMP 150	Computer Programming I		GENG 492	Engineering Senior Design II	3
CC Electives		6	COMP 365	Principles of Information Security	3
Semester II			COMP 375	Networking	3.5
ENGR 102	Introduction to Electromechanical System	3	CC Electives		6
or 103	Design		Senior Year 2		
	User-Centered Design		Semester I		
MATH 151	Calculus II	4	Concentration Elective		3
ENGR 121	Engineering Programming	3	Math/Sci Elective		3
or COMP 150	Computer Programming I		CC Elective		3
Or			Free Electives		9
CHEM 151	General Chemistry I	4			
& 151L			Recommended Program of Study, Sustainability		
PHYS 270 & 270L	Introduction to Mechanics	4	Concentration First Year		
CC Elective		3	Semester I		Units
Sophomore Year			ENGR 101	Introduction to Engineering	3
Semester I			MATH 150	Calculus I	4
ENGR 103	User-Centered Design	3	CHEM 151	General Chemistry I	4
or 102	Introduction to Electromechanical System Design		& 151L	General Chemistry I	7
MATH 310	Applied Mathematics for Science and	3	Or		
	Engineering I		ENGR 121	Engineering Programming	3
PHYS 271	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism	4	or COMP 150	Computer Programming I	
& 271L			CC Electives		6
CC Electives		6	Semester II		
Semester II			ENGR 102	Introduction to Electromechanical System	3
ELEC 201	Electrical Circuits	4	or 103	Design User-Centered Design	
GENG 221	Software Foundations	3	MATH 151	Calculus II	4
MENG 210	Statics	3	ENGR 121	Engineering Programming	3
MENG 260	Introduction to Thermal Sciences	3	or COMP 150	Computer Programming I	3
MATH 222	Discrete Mathematics	3	Or		
Junior Year			CHEM 151	General Chemistry I	4
Semester I			& 151L		
ENGR 311	Engineering Materials Science	3	PHYS 270	Introduction to Mechanics	4
GENG 350	Engineering and Social Justice	3	& 270L		
ISYE 330	Engineering Probability and Statistics	3	CC Elective		3
COMP 280	Introduction to Computer Systems	3.5	Sophomore Year		
CC Elective		3	Semester I		
Semester II			ENGR 103	User-Centered Design	3
GENG 360	Experimental Engineering	3	or 102	Introduction to Electromechanical System	
ISYE 380	Sustainability and Engineering	3		Design	
COMP 310	Operating Systems	3.5	MATH 310	Applied Mathematics for Science and Engineering I	3

D			66 Ft		
PHYS 271 & 271L	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism	4	CC Electives		6
CC Electives		6	Semester II		
Semester II		O	ENGR 102	Introduction to Electromechanical System	3
ELEC 201	Electrical Circuits	4	or 103	Design User-Centered Design	
GENG 221	Software Foundations	3	MATH 151	Calculus II	4
MENG 210	Statics Statics	3	ENGR 121	Engineering Programming	3
MENG 260	Introduction to Thermal Sciences	3	or COMP 150	Computer Programming I	
MATH 250	Calculus III	4	Or		
Junior Year	Calculus III	-	CHEM 151	General Chemistry I	4
Semester I			& 151L		
ENGR 311	Engineering Materials Science	3	PHYS 270	Introduction to Mechanics	4
GENG 350	Engineering and Social Justice	3	& 270L		
ISYE 330	Engineering Probability and Statistics	3	CC Elective		3
COMP 280	Introduction to Computer Systems (or any	3.5	Sophomore Year		
COMI 200	upper-division engineering course)	3.3	Semester I		
Concentration-Group	A	3	ENGR 103	User-Centered Design	3
Semester II			or 102	Introduction to Electromechanical System Design	
GENG 360	Experimental Engineering	3	MATH 310	Applied Mathematics for Science and	3
ISYE 380	Sustainability and Engineering	3	141111111111111111111111111111111111111	Engineering I	3
Concentration-Group		3	PHYS 271	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism	4
Concentration-Group		3	& 271L		
CC Elective		3	CC Electives		6
Senior Year			Semester II		
Semester I			ELEC 201	Electrical Circuits	4
GENG 491	Engineering Senior Design I	4	GENG 221	Software Foundations	3
Concentration-Group		6	MENG 210	Statics	3
CC Electives		6	MENG 260	Introduction to Thermal Sciences	3
Semester II			MATH 222	Discrete Mathematics	3
GENG 492	Engineering Senior Design II	3	Junior Year		
Concentration-Group		3	Semester I		
Concentration-Group		3	ENGR 311	Engineering Materials Science	3
CC Electives		6	GENG 350	Engineering and Social Justice	3
Senior Year 2			ISYE 330	Engineering Probability and Statistics	3
Semester I			COMP 280	Introduction to Computer Systems	3.5
Concentration-Group	A. B. or C	3	ENGR 465	Forensic Engineering	3
Math/Sci Elective	,,	3	Semester II		
CC Elective		3	GENG 360	Experimental Engineering	3
Free Electives		9	ISYE 380	Sustainability and Engineering	3
			Concentration		3
Recommen	nded Program of Study,		Concentration-Uppe	er Division Enginering	3
Engineering and the Law Concentration			CC Elective		3
	g and the Law Concentrat	.1011	Senior Year		
First Year			Semester I		
Semester I		Units	GENG 491	Engineering Senior Design I	4
ENGR 101	Introduction to Engineering	3	Concentration-Law	_	3
MATH 150	Calculus I	4	Concentration-Opper Division Engineering		3
CHEM 151 & 151L	General Chemistry I	4	CC Elective		6
Or			Semester II		
ENGR 121	Engineering Programming	3	GENG 492	Engineering Senior Design II	3
or COMP 150	Computer Programming I		Concentration		6

### CC Electives

### Senior Year 2

### Semester I

Concentration Elective

Math/Sci Elective

CC Elective

Free Electives

### **GENG 221 | SOFTWARE FOUNDATIONS**

## Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ENGR 101 and ENGR 121 and MATH 150 and MATH 151 (Can be taken Concurrently) and PHYS 270 (Can be taken Concurrently)

Introduction to Object Oriented Programming in Python. Implementation and use of data structures including arrays, structures, classes, stacks, lists, and trees in C and Python.

### GENG 350 | ENGINEERING AND SOCIAL JUSTICE

### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Domestic Diversity level 2 $\,$

Prerequisites: ENGR 103

This course aims to support students understanding of engineering in relation to social justice. It will help students develop critical thinking skills and to apply these to the context of engineering practices and systems. Students will consider the historical and contemporary contexts and impacts of the designs, systems, processes and products surrounding and involving engineering and engineers. The course will be taught in intensive mode, with interactive lectures, workshops and seminars, together with a team project, where students will apply their learning to research a local community need.

## GENG 360 | EXPERIMENTAL ENGINEERING

## Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ENGR 102 and ELEC 201 and MENG 210 and MENG 260 (Can be taken Concurrently) and GENG 221 and ENGR 311 and MATH 310 and ISYE 330 (Can be taken Concurrently)

Engineers rely heavily on data when making decisions. This is a course about how engineers collect, analyze, and present data. In this course, students will be introduced to fundamental principles of measurement and instrumentation through a series of hands on experiments in several engineering contexts, including designing your own experiment. Technical communication skills are an integral part of sharing data, therefore both written and oral communication will be taught this class. Every Spring.

# GENG 383 | CITY DESIGN, ORGANIZATIONAL RESOURCES, AND COMMUNITY EFFECTS

## Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MATH 115 or MATH 150 or MATH 151 or MATH 250
This course explores how urban infrastructure design and the nonprofit sector impacts community health and resiliency through links to public health measures and social welfare outcomes. Students will learn to use Geographic Information Systems (GIS) to explore the impact of the placement of resources within a region. Students will choose an open-ended design project to explore the social fabric of cities through the analysis of spatial data and explore whether these issues can be alleviated through engineering planning approaches.

# 5 GENG 384 | REMEDIATION AND TREATMENT SEPARATION PROCESSES

# Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: CHEM 151 and MATH 250

- This course aims to provide an understanding of the principles of fluid separation
- 3 processes and to develop skills in the design of fluid separation equipment in
- $_{\rm 3}$   $\,$  the context of sustainability and social justice. Physical and chemical processes
- are presented, including fundamentals of solid-liquid suspension, flocculation, coagulation, flotation, clarification, dewatering and gravity sedimentation processes for the remediation and treatment of water for different purposes.

### GENG 421 | EMBEDDED SYSTEMS PERFORMANCE

## Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: COMP 280

This course will focus on the application of all available processing power to implement system solutions. Parallel processing, core sequestration, processor affinity, CPU programming, DSP programming, and the integration of disparate processing elements via OpenCL will all be addressed in this course. The impact of coherent and non-coherent memory models will be addressed and the notion of data hazards in non-coherent systems will be detailed. We will also consider the application specific impacts of the relative power efficiency of alternative processing models.

# GENG 422 | ADVANCED EMBEDDED SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: GENG 421

Development of embedded software (firmware) using a real-time operating system (RTOS). Development of an application as a set of independent threads that communicate with each other via message queues and semaphores.

## GENG 460 | LAW FOR ENGINEERS

## Units: 3 Repeatability: No

This course introduces engineering students to the many facets of the law and litigation that are relevant to a career in engineering. Through targeted readings, case studies, and independent legal research students will learn about the legalities associated with a career in engineering, engineering design, contracts, and intellectual property.

# GENG 482 | PHOTOVOLTAIC SOLAR ENERGY

## Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ENGR 311 and GENG 350 (Can be taken Concurrently) and GENG 360 (Can be taken Concurrently)

Introduction to photovoltaic (PV) solar energy including materials and device physics of solar cell operation, crystalline silicon technologies, PV systems and applications, and economic and environmental considerations. The course also aims to aid the students' professional development by addressing issues such as the ability to critically evaluate technical papers, conduct effective literature research, and express information orally and in writing.

## GENG 491 | ENGINEERING SENIOR DESIGN I Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (GENG 350 and GENG 360) or (ELEC 302 and ELEC 310 and ELEC 350) or (MENG 430 and MENG 435)

Proposal and design phase of a capstone project culminating in a documented and approved engineering design project to be implemented in ENGR 492. Computer-aided electrical, mechanical, software, math, science and other discipline design techniques are used to study design alternatives and support the final design selection: evaluation of ethical, cultural, economic, societal, and safety considerations in the design process. The development of individual and group written and oral communication skills. This course prepares students to approach an engineering design project in a small team. Topics include project selection, research methods on chosen project, a review of the design process, including concept generation, concept selection, construction, testing, and evaluation. Fall semester.

# GENG 492 | ENGINEERING SENIOR DESIGN II

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: GENG 491

Engineering capstone design experience in a realistic engineering environment that applies and integrates engineering and nonengineering topics. Students work in teams, in collaboration with engineering faculty and/or engineering professionals from industry, on an open-ended design project. This involves design, construction, testing and evaluation as well as consideration of issues related to culture, ethics, economics, social justice, safety and professional practice. Course also includes documentation of design project including written reports and oral presentations to multiple audiences. Spring semester.

# Industrial & Systems Engineering

# **Department Chair**

Truc T. Ngo, PhD, Chair

# **Faculty**

Bradley Chase, PhD, MPH

Odesma Dalrymple, PhD

Jae D. Kim, PhD

Leonard A. Perry, PhD

Rick T. Olson, PhD

Chell A. Roberts, PhD

Industrial & Systems Engineering (ISyE) applies basic engineering skills from mathematics and the physical sciences, specialized analysis techniques and an understanding of how people interact with machines and each other to design and evaluate the performance of systems in industry and in the service sector. Examples of the types of systems that may be analyzed by ISyEs include health care delivery systems, product distribution systems and manufacturing systems. The factor that most distinguishes ISyE from other engineering disciplines is the attention devoted to human involvement in the systems being analyzed.

# **Educational Objectives**

The ISyE program seeks to develop graduates who:

- Have established careers in Industrial & Systems Engineering in industry, service, consulting or government organizations
- Design, develop, implement and improve integrated industrial and service systems to achieve organizational goals
- Collaborate with others as members or leaders of engineering or multidisciplinary teams
- Continue to develop skills in engineering, business, management or other Industrial & Systems Engineering related fields.

To achieve these objectives, the ISyE program has been designed to ensure that graduates have achieved the following outcomes:

- · an ability to apply knowledge of mathematics, science and engineering
- an ability to design and conduct experiments, as well as to analyze and interpret data
- an ability to design a system, component, or process to meet desired needs
  within realistic constraints such as economic, environmental, social, political,
  ethical, health and safety, manufacturability and sustainability

- · an ability to function on multi-disciplinary teams
- an ability to identify, formulate and solve engineering problems
- · an understanding of professional and ethical responsibility
- · an ability to communicate effectively
- the broad education necessary to understand the impact of engineering solutions in a global, economic, environmental and societal context
- · a recognition of the need for, and an ability to engage in life-long learning
- a knowledge of contemporary issues [in the profession]
- an ability to use the techniques, skills and modern engineering tools necessary for engineering practice.

Coursework in the ISyE program emphasizes the process of developing analytical models for systems and using computer-based techniques to explore ways in which the systems can be made to function more efficiently. The upper-division ISyE courses emphasize the general principles of designing and evaluating systems and the application of these principles to many different types of systems.

The ISyE major student is expected to be involved in professional aspects of the field. Since the engineering profession places a high value on professional society involvement, students enrolled in the Industrial & Systems Engineering major are expected to be active student members of the Institute of Industrial and Systems Engineers (IISE).

# Industrial & Systems Engineering Advisory Board

The Industrial & Systems Engineering Advisory Board (ISyEAB) was organized in Summer 2001 to represent the interests of the Industrial & Systems Engineering industry and alumni to the industrial and systems engineering program. The board, composed of representatives from companies such as Northrop Grumman, Thermo Fisher Scientific, Sharp Healthcare, Scripps Health, BAE Systems, SPAWAR Systems Center, and the Kiran Group, serves to expand the level and role of industry affiliates in the continued development of the program and in the promotion of cooperative programs and relations with industry and the San Diego community.

# The ISYE Major

**ENGR 103** 

# Preparation for the Major

Preparation for the major requirements are the completion of the following courses with a grade point average of 2.0 or better.

Code	Title	Units
Mathematics an		Cints
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
MATH 310	Applied Mathematics for Science and Engineering I	3
Math Elective <sup>1</sup>		3-4
PHYS 270 & 270L	Introduction to Mechanics and Mechanics Lab	4
PHYS 271 & 271L	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism and Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism Lab	4
CHEM 151 & 151L	General Chemistry I and General Chemistry I Laboratory	4
Total Mathematic	cs and Science Units	26-27
<b>Engineering Con</b>	re:	
ENGR 101	Introduction to Engineering	3
ENGR 102	Introduction to Electromechanical System Design	3

User-Centered Design

**PHIL 342** 

Practice

Total Preparation for Major Units

**Engineering Ethics** 

ENGR 121	Engineering Programming	3
MENG 210	Statics	3
Engineering Elect	ive <sup>2</sup>	3-4
Total Engineering	Core Units	18-19
<b>Engineering Prof</b>	essional Practice Requirements	
ISYE 391W	Industrial and Systems Engineering Professional	3

- MATH 250, MATH 320 or other mathematics class approved by ISyE chair.
- ELEC 201, MENG 260 or other engineering course approved by ISyE chair.

# *Industrial & Systems Engineering Requirements*

These courses include units in ISyE science and design. These classes are required by the major:

Code	Title	Units
ENGR 311	Engineering Materials Science	3
ISYE 220	Engineering Economics	3
ISYE 310	Work Analysis and Design	4
ISYE 320	Introduction to Systems Engineering	3
ISYE 335	Statistical Process Control	4
ISYE 340	Operations Research I	3
ISYE 350	Manufacturing Processes	4
& 350L	and Manufacturing Processes Laboratory	
ISYE 420	Simulation of Production and Service Systems	4
ISYE 430	Design and Analysis of Engineering Experiments	3
ISYE 440	Operations Research II	3
ISYE 460	Operations and Supply Chain Management	3
ISYE 470	Facilities Planning	3
ISYE 492	Industrial and Systems Engineering Design Project	3
ISYE 330	Engineering Probability and Statistics	3
ISYE Electives <sup>3</sup>		15
Total Units		61

Students must select 15 units of ISyE program electives. Nine units of these electives must be upper division within the school of engineering. Three of the remaining six units must be upper division. The current approved engineering upper division electives include ISYE 380, ISYE 410, ISYE 450, and most ISYE 494 special topics courses. Consult with the ISyE chair for other approved electives.

Students must select 15 units of ISyE program electives. Nine units of these electives must be upper division within the school of engineering. Three of the remaining six units must be upper division. The current approved engineering upper division electives include ISYE 380, ISYE 410, ISYE 450, and most ISYE 494 special topics courses. Consult with the ISyE chair for other approved electives.

# Core Curriculum Requirements:

All ISyE majors must satisfy the core curriculum specified by the university.

Note: Most engineering, and many mathematics and science courses, required by the engineering program are offered only in the fall or spring semester, but not both. Consult individual course sections for semester offering pattern, or see an engineering advisor.

# Recommended Program of Study: Industrial & Systems Engineering

Units

First	Year
Seme	ster I

3

51

Semester 1		Ullits
ENGR 101	Introduction to Engineering	3
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
CHEM 151	General Chemistry I	4
& 151L		
Or		
ENGR 121	Engineering Programming	3
CC Electives		6
Semester II		
ENGR 103	User-Centered Design	3
or 102	Introduction to Electromechanical System Design	
ENGR 121	Engineering Programming	3
Or		
CHEM 151	General Chemistry I	4
& 151L	•	
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
PHYS 270	Introduction to Mechanics	4
& 270L		
CC Elective		3
Sophomore Year		
Semester I		
ENGR 103	User-Centered Design	3
or 102	Introduction to Electromechanical System Design	
MATH 310	Applied Mathematics for Science and	3
PHYS 271	Engineering I	4
& 271L	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism	4
CC Electives		6
Semester II		
ISYE 330	Engineering Probability and Statistics	3
MENG 210	Statics	3
Math Elective	Statics	3-4
Engineering Elective		3-4
CC Elective		3
Junior Year		3
Semester I		
ENGR 311	Engineering Materials Science	3
ISYE 220	Engineering Economics	3
ISYE 310	Work Analysis and Design	4
ISYE 340	Operations Research I	3
ISYE 391W	Industrial and Systems Engineering Professional	3
BTE 371 W	Practice	3
Semester II		
ISYE 320	Introduction to Systems Engineering	3
ISYE 335	Statistical Process Control	4
ISYE 350	Manufacturing Processes	4
& 350L		

ISYE 440 Operations Research II

ISyE Program Elective I

#### Senior Year

#### Semester I

ISYE 420 Simulation of Production and Service Systems

ISYE 430 Design and Analysis of Engineering

Experiments

ISYE 470 Facilities Planning

ISyE Program Elective II

PHIL 342 Engineering Ethics

#### Semester II

ISYE 460 Operations and Supply Chain Management ISYE 492 Industrial and Systems Engineering Design

Project

ISyE Program Elective III ISyE Program Elective IV

CC electives
Senior Year 2

# Semester I

CC electives

ISyE Program Elective V

ISYE 220 | ENGINEERING ECONOMICS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ISYE 330 (Can be taken Concurrently)

Principles of financial analysis appropriate for evaluating the economic impact of engineering projects. Three hours lecture weekly.

# ISYE 310 | WORK ANALYSIS AND DESIGN

# Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ISYE 330 (Can be taken Concurrently)

Introduction to the fundamental methods for analyzing and designing procedures to perform operations in the workplace. Includes time and motion study, methods improvement and workplace design. Three hours lecture and one three-hour laboratory weekly. Junior standing in engineering. Fall semester.

# ISYE 320 | INTRODUCTION TO SYSTEMS ENGINEERING

# Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ISYE 330 and ISYE 391W

Introduction to the theory and methods used to design and analyze systems. Principles of the system life-cycle including problem identification, description, modeling, solution and implementation. Three hours lecture weekly. Spring semester.

#### ISYE 330 | ENGINEERING PROBABILITY AND STATISTICS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Quantitative reasoning comp

Prerequisites: MATH 151 (Can be taken Concurrently)

Introduction to probability and applied statistics within an engineering context. Topics include probability, discrete and continuous probability distributions, and statistical tests and confidence intervals for one and two samples. Three hours lecture weekly. Fall and Spring semesters.

#### 3 ISYE 335 | STATISTICAL PROCESS CONTROL

# Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ISYE 310 and ISYE 330

Application of statistics to improving quality and productivity. Both traditional and modern methods are presented, including state-of-the-art techniques for

- 4 statistical process monitoring and control. Introduction to Six Sigma quality
- 3 methodology and the DMAIC (define, measure, analyze, improve, and control) problem-solving strategy for continuous quality improvement. Three hours lecture
- $_{\mbox{\scriptsize 3}}$   $\,$  and one three-hour laboratory weekly. Spring semester.

# 3 ISYE 340 | OPERATIONS RESEARCH I

# 3 Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (MATH 310 or MATH 320)

Methods for developing and analyzing deterministic operations research models.

- 3 Topics include linear programming, networks, and Integer programming. Three
- 3 hours lecture weekly. Fall semester.

#### ISYE 350 | MANUFACTURING PROCESSES

- 3 Units: 3
- 3 Prerequisites: MENG 210 and ENGR 311
- 3 Corequisites: ISYE 350L

Description, classification and analysis of manufacturing processes used in the transformation of metal, polymers, and ceramics into consumer or capital goods. Topics include: analysis of variables that affect process operations, performance,

- 15 quality and cost, and the design of process plans. Three hours lecture weekly.
- 3 Spring semester.

# ISYE 350L | MANUFACTURING PROCESSES LABORATORY

#### Units: 1

Corequisites: ISYE 350

A laboratory course to compliment the lecture material presented in ISYE 350. One three-hour laboratory weekly. Spring Semester.

# ISYE 380 | SUSTAINABILITY AND ENGINEERING

Units: 3

The course provides an interdisciplinary overview of the engineering roles and opportunities to improve the sustainability of engineering products, processes and systems. Topics include carbon footprint, life cycle assessment, design for sustainability, wastes and recycling, energy, and water.

# ISYE 391W | INDUSTRIAL AND SYSTEMS ENGINEERING PROFESSIONAL PRACTICE

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

# Core Attributes: Advanced writing competency, Oral communication competency

Prerequisites: ISYE 310 (Can be taken Concurrently)

Development of skills and knowledge needed to successfully manage projects in ISyE. Topics include project management, teamwork, the role of ISyE in an organization, career planning, formal memo writing, oral and written reports incorporating peer review, iterative drafting techniques, and formal final multimedia presentation incorporating peer review. Three hours lecture weekly.

#### ISYE 410 | HUMAN FACTORS

# Units: 3

Prerequisites: ISYE 330

An introduction to the field of ergonomics/human factors engineering. Principles of workplace and environmental design to conform to the physical and mental abilities and limitations of people are presented. Three hours lecture weekly. Spring semester.

# ISYE 410L | HUMAN FACTORS LABORATORY

#### Units: 1

Corequisites: ISYE 410

Laboratory for ISYE 410. Three hour laboratory weekly. Spring semester.

# ISYE 420 | SIMULATION OF PRODUCTION AND SERVICE SYSTEMS Units: 4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (ENGR 121 or COMP 150) and ISYE 440

Modeling and analysis of systems using computer-based discrete event simulation. Principles of modeling, validation, and output analysis are developed using high-level simulation languages. Three hours lecture and one three-hour laboratory weekly. Fall semester.

# ISYE 430 | DESIGN AND ANALYSIS OF ENGINEERING EXPERIMENTS

Prerequisites: ISYE 330 and ISYE 335

Systematic application of statistical techniques to the design and analysis of engineering experiments. Application of experimental design to the improvement of products, processes, and services. Topics will include analysis of variance, single factor experiments, factorial and fractional factorial experimental designs, robust design, and response surface methods. Three hours lecture weekly. Fall semester.

#### ISYE 440 | OPERATIONS RESEARCH II

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ISYE 330 and ISYE 340

Methods for developing and analyzing stochastic operations research models. Topics include Poisson processes, Markov processes, queuing, and decision theory. Three hours lecture weekly. Spring semester.

## ISYE 450 | MANUFACTURING SYSTEMS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: (ENGR 121 or COMP 150) and ISYE 350

Introduction to principles of manufacturing automation and analysis of automated systems. Topics include process and machine control, control systems, programmable logic controllers, robotics, computer vision and material handling systems. Two hours lecture and one three-hour laboratory weekly. Fall semester.

# ISYE 460 | OPERATIONS AND SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT Units: 3

Prerequisites: ISYE 220 and ISYE 340

Concepts in planning, controlling, and managing the operations function of manufacturing and service firms. Topics include operations strategy, forecasting, capacity, production planning and control, and trends in operations and supply chain management. Emphasis on the development and use of mathematical models and algorithms used to analyze and improve the use of material, labor and information in various processes. Three hours lecture weekly. Spring semester.

# ISYE 470 | FACILITIES PLANNING

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ISYE 310 and ISYE 340

Analysis and design of production and service facilities. Analytical and computerbased techniques to assist with strategic planning, process design, material handling and flow, layout and facility location. Three hours lecture weekly. Fall semester

# ISYE 492 | INDUSTRIAL AND SYSTEMS ENGINEERING DESIGN PROJECT

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: ISYE 310 and ISYE 320 and ISYE 335 and ISYE 350 and ISYE 391W and ISYE 420 and ISYE 470  $\,$ 

Capstone Senior design project. Application of principles of Industrial & Systems Engineering from throughout the curriculum to a design project. Written and oral reports, design reviews, final project report and presentation. Six hours of laboratory weekly. Spring semester.

# ISYE 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN INDUSTRIAL AND SYSTEMS ENGINEERING

Units: 1-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Special topics seminar in areas of special interest to current engineering practice in Industrial & Systems Engineering. May be repeated for credit. Upper division standing in the ISYE major.

#### ISYE 496 | UNDERGRADUATE RESEARCH

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Faculty-directed undergraduate research in engineering. Problem proposal must be submitted and approved prior to enrollment. Written report required. Upper division standing in the ISYE major. Prior approval by the department chair is required.

#### ISYE 498 | INTERNSHIP/CO-OP EXPERIENCE

**Units: 1-3** 

Directed upper division level internship/ co-operative experience in engineering research, design, development, manufacturing, or the engineering activity. Written report required. Credit not applicable to minimum program graduation requirement. Placement contingent upon approval of participating organization. May be repeated for credit.

# ISYE 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

**Units: 1-3** 

Individual project in creative design and synthesis under the general supervision of a participating professor. Project proposal must be submitted and approved prior to enrollment.

# **Mechanical Engineering**

# Chair

Frank G. Jacobitz, PhD

# **Faculty**

Daniel Codd, PhD

G. Bryan Cornwall, PhD, PEng

Melissa Gibbons, PhD

Ming Z. Huang, PhD, PE

Imane Khalil, PhD

James G. Kohl, PhD

Matthew T. McGarry, PhD

Mechanical Engineering (ME) is a profession that applies the principles of mathematics, science and engineering for analysis, design, manufacturing, and maintenance of mechanical systems. Mechanical engineers research, develop, design and manufacture engines, machines, and other mechanical devices for the benefit of society. They work on power-producing machines such as automobile and jet engines. They also develop power-using machines such as airconditioners, robots, machine tools and manufacturing equipment. Mechanical engineers are also at the forefront of newly developed technologies such as bioengineering, nanoengineering, environmental engineering and renewable energy.

Our mechanical engineering curriculum includes study in the following areas:

 Thermal sciences, including thermodynamics, fluid mechanics and heat transfer with applications in the efficient conversion of energy that allows the development of commercial power plants, environmentally friendly lawn mower engines, and cryogenic medical devices used to treat cancer.

- Mechanics and materials, including the analysis of machine elements, materials and dynamics to improve products such as artificial knees, automobile suspensions and space vehicles.
- Design and manufacturing, including application of manufacturing processes and integration of engineering fundamentals from the thermal science, mechanics and materials areas in analysis and synthesis of mechanisms and machinery.

The USD mechanical engineering curriculum is broad-based, hands-on and design-oriented. We emphasize a student-centered education in small classes with a liberal arts foundation. The mechanical engineering program prepares program graduates to work for small or large companies in most industries throughout Southern California, the United States and internationally. Graduates may work in most industries, including aerospace, automotive, bioengineering, environmental, product design and manufacturing industries. The program also prepares graduates for a career in government, to enter graduate school in an area related to mechanical engineering, as well as to pursue a professional degree, for example in business, law or medicine. Student will be qualified to take the fundamentals of engineering exam as the first step toward professional registration.

Students majoring in mechanical engineering are expected to advance the integrity, honor and dignity of their chosen profession. As part of these professional obligations, all ME majors are encouraged to maintain student membership in the American Society of Mechanical Engineers (ASME).

# **Educational Objectives**

The mechanical engineering program seeks to develop graduates who are able to:

- Apply their mechanical engineering and broad academic backgrounds in their professional and personal endeavors
- · Adapt to evolving job responsibilities
- · Communicate effectively
- Contribute and provide leadership in a team environment.

To achieve these objectives, the ME program has been designed to ensure that graduates have achieved the following outcomes:

- an ability to apply knowledge of mathematics, science and engineering
- an ability to design and conduct experiments, as well as to analyze and interpret data
- an ability to design a system, component, or process to meet desired needs
  within realistic constraints such as economic, environmental, social, political,
  ethical, health and safety, manufacturability and sustainability
- an ability to function on multi-disciplinary teams
- an ability to identify, formulate and solve engineering problems
- · an understanding of professional and ethical responsibility
- · an ability to communicate effectively
- the broad education necessary to understand the impact of engineering solutions in a global, economic, environmental and societal context
- · a recognition of the need for, and an ability to engage in life-long learning
- a knowledge of contemporary issues [in the profession]
- an ability to use the techniques, skills and modern engineering tools necessary for engineering practice.

# Mechanical Engineering Advisory Board

The Mechanical Engineering Advisory Board was established in 2005 with members representing current students, alumni, parents, higher education and local industries. The board, composed of representatives from companies such as Hamilton-Sunstrand, Asymtek, Hewlett-Packard, Trane and others, contributes to

the on-going development of the mechanical engineering program, and provides mentorship and internship opportunities to our students.

# Requirements for the Mechanical Engineering Major: 147 semester units

# Preparation for the Major

The mathematics, science, and engineering courses listed below satisfy the core curriculum requirements in mathematics competency, scientific and technological inquiry, advanced writing, and the level 1 diversity, inclusion and social justice (DISJ) requirement.

Code	Title	Units
Mathematics and	Science Requirements (33 units)	
MATH 150	Calculus I	4
MATH 151	Calculus II	4
MATH 250	Calculus III	4
MATH 310	Applied Mathematics for Science and Engineering I	3
ISYE 330	Engineering Probability and Statistics	3
or MATH 315	Applied Probability and Statistics	
PHYS 270 & 270L	Introduction to Mechanics and Mechanics Lab	4
PHYS 271 & 271L	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism and Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism Lab	4
CHEM 151 & 151L	General Chemistry I and General Chemistry I Laboratory	4
Additional Math of	r Science <sup>1</sup>	3
<b>Engineering Core</b>	Requirements (22 units)	
MENG 210	Statics	3
ENGR 101	Introduction to Engineering	3
ENGR 102	Introduction to Electromechanical System Design	3
ENGR 103	User-Centered Design	3
ENGR 121	Engineering Programming	3
or COMP 150	Computer Programming I	
MENG 260	Introduction to Thermal Sciences	3
ELEC 201	Electrical Circuits	4
ELEC 201L	Electrical Circuits Lab	0
<b>Engineering Prof</b>	essional Practice Requirements (12 units)	
ECON 101	Principles of Microeconomics	3-4
or ECON 102	Principles of Macroeconomics	
or ISYE 220	Engineering Economics	
PHIL 342	Engineering Ethics	3
COMM 203	Public Speaking <sup>2</sup>	3
ENGL 304W	Advanced Composition	3
Total Units		67-68

- The additional Math or Science course should be either MATH 311, or PHYS 272, or CHEM 152, or BIOL 240.
- ROTC Students may substitute NAVS 201, MILS 301, or SDSU AS 300A for COMM 203 in the engineering program. These classes will not satisfy university core requirements.

# Mechanical Engineering Requirements

These courses include units in mechanical engineering science, laboratory, and design. These classes are required by the major:

Semester I

Code	Title	Units	ENGR 102	Introduction to Electromechanical System	3
MENG 300	Applied Thermodynamics	3	or 103	Design	
MENG 311	Materials Science and Engineering	3		User-Centered Design	
ISYE 350	Manufacturing Processes	3	MATH 310	Applied Mathematics for Science and	3
MENG 351	Machine Shop Practices	1	D	Engineering I	
MENG 352	CAD Practices	1	PHYS 271 & 271L	Introduction to Electricity and Magnetism	4
MENG 360	Fluid Mechanics	4	& 271L ECON 101, 102,	Principles of Microeconomics	3-4
& 360L	and Fluid Mechanics Laboratory		or ISYE 220	Principles of Macroeconomics  Principles of Macroeconomics	3-4
<b>MENG 370</b>	Mechanics of Materials	4	0.101220	Engineering Economics	
& 370L	and Mechanics of Materials Laboratory		CC Electives		3
MENG 375	Dynamics	3	Semester II		
MENG 400	Heat Transfer	4	ELEC 201	Electrical Circuits	4
& 400L	and Heat Transfer Laboratory	0	& 201L	Ziota da Cartai	•
MENG 430	Design of Machine Elements	3	MATH 250	Calculus III	4
MENG 491	Senior Design Project I	3	MENG 210	Statics	3
MENG 492	Senior Design Project II	3	MENG 260	Introduction to Thermal Sciences	3
	neering Simulation Elective <sup>3</sup>	3	COMM 203 <sup>3</sup>	Public Speaking	3
Mechanical Engir	neering Professional Elective <sup>3</sup>	12	Junior Year	Table Speaking	
3 Students selec	et one required simulation-based course and four additi	ional	Semester I		
	regimeering elective courses. A list of approved mechani		MENG 311	Materials Science and Engineering	2
	lectives is available from the chair of mechanical enging				3
			MENG 300	Applied Thermodynamics	3
Core Curricu	lum Requirements		MENG 351	Machine Shop Practices	1
All mechanical en	gineering majors must satisfy the core curriculum spec	cified by	MENG 352	CAD Practices	1
the university.			MENG 375	Dynamics	3
Poquired	Program of Study: Mechani	ical	ISYE 330	Engineering Probability and Statistics	3
neuuneu					
•	•	car	BIOL 240)	ve (MATH 311 or PHYS 272 or CHEM 152 or	3
Engineer	•	Car		ve (MAIH 311 or PHYS 2/2 or CHEM 152 or	3
Engineer	•		BIOL 240)	Manufacturing Processes	3
Engineer First Year Semester I	ing	Units	BIOL 240) Semester II ISYE 350 MENG 360		
Engineer First Year Semester I ENGR 101	Introduction to Engineering	Units 3	BIOL 240) Semester II ISYE 350 MENG 360 & 360L	Manufacturing Processes Fluid Mechanics	3
Engineer First Year Semester I ENGR 101 MATH 150	Introduction to Engineering Calculus I	<b>Units</b> 3 4	BIOL 240) Semester II ISYE 350 MENG 360 & 360L MENG 370	Manufacturing Processes	3
Engineer First Year Semester I ENGR 101 MATH 150 CHEM 151	Introduction to Engineering	Units 3	BIOL 240) Semester II ISYE 350 MENG 360 & 360L MENG 370 & 370L	Manufacturing Processes Fluid Mechanics Mechanics of Materials	3 4
Engineer First Year Semester I ENGR 101 MATH 150 CHEM 151 & 151L	Introduction to Engineering Calculus I	<b>Units</b> 3 4	Semester II ISYE 350 MENG 360 & 360L MENG 370 & 370L ENGL 304W	Manufacturing Processes Fluid Mechanics	3 4 4 3
Engineer First Year Semester I ENGR 101 MATH 150 CHEM 151 & 151L Or	Introduction to Engineering Calculus I General Chemistry I	<b>Units</b> 3 4 4	Semester II ISYE 350 MENG 360 & 360L MENG 370 & 370L ENGL 304W MENG Elective	Manufacturing Processes Fluid Mechanics Mechanics of Materials	3 4
Engineer First Year Semester I ENGR 101 MATH 150 CHEM 151 & 151L	Introduction to Engineering Calculus I General Chemistry I  Engineering Programming	<b>Units</b> 3 4	BIOL 240) Semester II ISYE 350 MENG 360 & 360L MENG 370 & 370L ENGL 304W	Manufacturing Processes Fluid Mechanics Mechanics of Materials	3 4 4 3
Engineer First Year Semester I ENGR 101 MATH 150 CHEM 151 & 151L Or ENGR 121 or COMP 150	Introduction to Engineering Calculus I General Chemistry I	<b>Units</b> 3 4 4 3	Semester II ISYE 350 MENG 360 & 360L MENG 370 & 370L ENGL 304W MENG Elective	Manufacturing Processes Fluid Mechanics Mechanics of Materials	3 4 4 3
Engineer First Year Semester I ENGR 101 MATH 150 CHEM 151 & 151L Or ENGR 121 or COMP 150 CC Electives	Introduction to Engineering Calculus I General Chemistry I  Engineering Programming	<b>Units</b> 3 4 4	BIOL 240) Semester II ISYE 350 MENG 360 & 360L MENG 370 & 370L ENGL 304W MENG Elective Senior Year Semester I MENG 400	Manufacturing Processes Fluid Mechanics Mechanics of Materials	3 4 4 3
Engineer First Year Semester I ENGR 101 MATH 150 CHEM 151 & 151L Or ENGR 121 or COMP 150 CC Electives Semester II	Introduction to Engineering Calculus I General Chemistry I  Engineering Programming Computer Programming I	Units 3 4 4 6	BIOL 240) Semester II ISYE 350 MENG 360 & 360L MENG 370 & 370L ENGL 304W MENG Elective Senior Year Semester I MENG 400 & 400L	Manufacturing Processes Fluid Mechanics Mechanics of Materials Advanced Composition Heat Transfer	3 4 4 3 3
Engineer First Year Semester I ENGR 101 MATH 150 CHEM 151 & 151L Or ENGR 121 or COMP 150 CC Electives Semester II ENGR 102	Introduction to Engineering Calculus I General Chemistry I  Engineering Programming Computer Programming I  Introduction to Electromechanical System	<b>Units</b> 3 4 4 3	BIOL 240) Semester II ISYE 350 MENG 360 & 360L MENG 370 & 370L ENGL 304W MENG Elective Senior Year Semester I MENG 400 & 400L MENG 430	Manufacturing Processes Fluid Mechanics Mechanics of Materials Advanced Composition  Heat Transfer Design of Machine Elements	3 4 4 3 3 4
Engineer First Year Semester I ENGR 101 MATH 150 CHEM 151 & 151L Or ENGR 121 or COMP 150 CC Electives Semester II	Introduction to Engineering Calculus I General Chemistry I  Engineering Programming Computer Programming I	Units 3 4 4 6	BIOL 240) Semester II ISYE 350 MENG 360 & 360L MENG 370 & 370L ENGL 304W MENG Elective Senior Year Semester I MENG 400 & 400L MENG 430 MENG 491	Manufacturing Processes Fluid Mechanics  Mechanics of Materials  Advanced Composition  Heat Transfer  Design of Machine Elements Senior Design Project I	3 4 4 3 3 3
Engineer First Year Semester I ENGR 101 MATH 150 CHEM 151 & 151L Or ENGR 121 or COMP 150 CC Electives Semester II ENGR 102	Introduction to Engineering Calculus I General Chemistry I  Engineering Programming Computer Programming I  Introduction to Electromechanical System Design	Units 3 4 4 6	BIOL 240) Semester II ISYE 350 MENG 360 & 360L MENG 370 & 370L ENGL 304W MENG Elective Senior Year Semester I MENG 400 & 400L MENG 430	Manufacturing Processes Fluid Mechanics Mechanics of Materials Advanced Composition  Heat Transfer Design of Machine Elements	3 4 4 3 3 4
Engineer First Year Semester I ENGR 101 MATH 150 CHEM 151 & 151L Or ENGR 121 or COMP 150 CC Electives Semester II ENGR 102 or 103	Introduction to Engineering Calculus I General Chemistry I  Engineering Programming Computer Programming I  Introduction to Electromechanical System Design User-Centered Design Calculus II	Units 3 4 4 3 6 3	BIOL 240) Semester II ISYE 350 MENG 360 & 360L MENG 370 & 370L ENGL 304W MENG Elective Senior Year Semester I MENG 400 & 400L MENG 430 MENG 491	Manufacturing Processes Fluid Mechanics  Mechanics of Materials  Advanced Composition  Heat Transfer  Design of Machine Elements Senior Design Project I	3 4 4 3 3 3
Engineer First Year Semester I ENGR 101 MATH 150 CHEM 151 & 151L Or ENGR 121 or COMP 150 CC Electives Semester II ENGR 102 or 103 MATH 151	Introduction to Engineering Calculus I General Chemistry I  Engineering Programming Computer Programming I  Introduction to Electromechanical System Design User-Centered Design	Units 3 4 4 3 6	BIOL 240) Semester II ISYE 350 MENG 360 & 360L MENG 370 & 370L ENGL 304W MENG Elective Senior Year Semester I MENG 400 & 400L MENG 430 MENG 491 PHIL 342	Manufacturing Processes Fluid Mechanics  Mechanics of Materials  Advanced Composition  Heat Transfer  Design of Machine Elements Senior Design Project I	3 4 4 3 3 3 3
Engineer First Year Semester I ENGR 101 MATH 150 CHEM 151 & 151L Or ENGR 121 or COMP 150 CC Electives Semester II ENGR 102 or 103 MATH 151 ENGR 121	Introduction to Engineering Calculus I General Chemistry I  Engineering Programming Computer Programming I  Introduction to Electromechanical System Design User-Centered Design Calculus II Engineering Programming	Units 3 4 4 3 6 3	BIOL 240) Semester II ISYE 350 MENG 360 & 360L MENG 370 & 370L ENGL 304W MENG Elective Senior Year Semester I MENG 400 & 400L MENG 430 MENG 491 PHIL 342 MENG Elective	Manufacturing Processes Fluid Mechanics  Mechanics of Materials  Advanced Composition  Heat Transfer  Design of Machine Elements Senior Design Project I	3 4 4 3 3 3 3
Engineer First Year Semester I ENGR 101 MATH 150 CHEM 151 & 151L Or ENGR 121 or COMP 150 CC Electives Semester II ENGR 102 or 103 MATH 151 ENGR 121 or COMP 150	Introduction to Engineering Calculus I General Chemistry I  Engineering Programming Computer Programming I  Introduction to Electromechanical System Design User-Centered Design Calculus II Engineering Programming	Units 3 4 4 3 6 3	BIOL 240) Semester II ISYE 350 MENG 360 & 360L MENG 370 & 370L ENGL 304W MENG Elective Senior Year Semester I MENG 400 & 400L MENG 430 MENG 491 PHIL 342 MENG Elective Semester II	Manufacturing Processes Fluid Mechanics Mechanics of Materials Advanced Composition  Heat Transfer  Design of Machine Elements Senior Design Project I Engineering Ethics	3 4 4 3 3 3 3 3
Engineer First Year Semester I ENGR 101 MATH 150 CHEM 151 & 151L Or ENGR 121 or COMP 150 CC Electives Semester II ENGR 102 or 103 MATH 151 ENGR 121 or COMP 150 or	Introduction to Engineering Calculus I General Chemistry I  Engineering Programming Computer Programming I  Introduction to Electromechanical System Design User-Centered Design Calculus II Engineering Programming Computer Programming Computer Programming I	Units 3 4 4 3 6 3 4 3	BIOL 240) Semester II ISYE 350 MENG 360 & 360L MENG 370 & 370L ENGL 304W MENG Elective Semior Year Semester I MENG 400 & 400L MENG 430 MENG 491 PHIL 342 MENG Elective Semester II MENG 492	Manufacturing Processes Fluid Mechanics Mechanics of Materials Advanced Composition  Heat Transfer  Design of Machine Elements Senior Design Project I Engineering Ethics	3 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3
Engineer First Year Semester I ENGR 101 MATH 150 CHEM 151 & 151L Or ENGR 121 or COMP 150 CC Electives Semester II ENGR 102 or 103 MATH 151 ENGR 121 or COMP 150 or CHEM 151	Introduction to Engineering Calculus I General Chemistry I  Engineering Programming Computer Programming I  Introduction to Electromechanical System Design User-Centered Design Calculus II Engineering Programming Computer Programming Computer Programming I	Units 3 4 4 3 6 3 4 3	BIOL 240) Semester II ISYE 350 MENG 360 & 360L MENG 370 & 370L ENGL 304W MENG Elective Senior Year Semester I MENG 400 & 400L MENG 491 PHIL 342 MENG Elective Semester II MENG 492 MENG 492 MENG electives	Manufacturing Processes Fluid Mechanics Mechanics of Materials Advanced Composition  Heat Transfer  Design of Machine Elements Senior Design Project I Engineering Ethics	3 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 6
Engineer First Year Semester I ENGR 101 MATH 150 CHEM 151 & 151L Or ENGR 121 or COMP 150 CC Electives Semester II ENGR 102 or 103 MATH 151 ENGR 121 or COMP 150 or CHEM 151 & 151L	Introduction to Engineering Calculus I General Chemistry I  Engineering Programming Computer Programming I  Introduction to Electromechanical System Design User-Centered Design Calculus II Engineering Programming Computer Programming Computer Programming General Chemistry I	Units 3 4 4 3 6 3 4 4 3	BIOL 240) Semester II ISYE 350 MENG 360 & 360L MENG 370 & 370L ENGL 304W MENG Elective Senior Year Semester I MENG 400 & 400L MENG 430 MENG 491 PHIL 342 MENG Elective Semester II MENG 492 MENG 492 MENG electives CC electives	Manufacturing Processes Fluid Mechanics Mechanics of Materials Advanced Composition  Heat Transfer  Design of Machine Elements Senior Design Project I Engineering Ethics	3 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 6
Engineer First Year Semester I ENGR 101 MATH 150 CHEM 151 & 151L Or ENGR 121 or COMP 150 CC Electives Semester II ENGR 102 or 103 MATH 151 ENGR 121 or COMP 150 or CHEM 151 & 151L PHYS 270	Introduction to Engineering Calculus I General Chemistry I  Engineering Programming Computer Programming I  Introduction to Electromechanical System Design User-Centered Design Calculus II Engineering Programming Computer Programming Computer Programming I  General Chemistry I  Introduction to Mechanics	Units 3 4 4 3 6 3 4 3 4 3	BIOL 240) Semester II ISYE 350 MENG 360 & 360L MENG 370 & 370L ENGL 304W MENG Elective Senior Year Semester I MENG 400 & 400L MENG 430 MENG 491 PHIL 342 MENG Elective Semester II MENG 492 MENG 492 MENG electives CC electives Senior Year 2	Manufacturing Processes Fluid Mechanics Mechanics of Materials Advanced Composition  Heat Transfer  Design of Machine Elements Senior Design Project I Engineering Ethics	3 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 6

CC electives

12

ROTC students may substitute NAVS 201, MILS 301, or SDSU AS 300A for COMM 203 in the engineering program. These classes will not satisfy university core requirements

#### MENG 210 | STATICS

# Units: 3-4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: PHYS 270 and MATH 150

Equilibrium analysis of particles and rigid bodies using vector analysis of forces and moments in two and three dimensions; free body diagrams; friction; analysis of trusses; distributed forces; basics of shear and moment diagrams; centroids; and moments of inertia. Three hours lecture weekly. Fall and spring semesters.

#### MENG 260 | INTRODUCTION TO THERMAL SCIENCES

#### Units: 3-4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MATH 151 and PHYS 270

Introduction to basic engineering thermodynamics, fluid mechanics, and heat transfer. Applications to engineering systems. Three hours lecture weekly. Fall and spring semesters.

# MENG 300 | APPLIED THERMODYNAMICS

#### **Units: 3-4**

Prerequisites: MENG 260

Further developments of concepts from classical thermodynamics. Application of laws of thermodynamics to gas and vapor power cycles, mixtures of gases and vapors, and refrigeration cycles. Moist air analysis and chemically reacting systems. Three hours lecture weekly. Fall semester.

#### MENG 311 | MATERIALS SCIENCE AND ENGINEERING

# Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: CHEM 151 and CHEM 151L and MATH 151

Basic concepts of material structure and its relation to properties; atomic structure; mechanical properties; engineering applications; introduction to semiconductor materials.

#### MENG 350 | MANUFACTURING PROCESSES

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: ENGR 311 and MENG 210

Corequisites: MENG 350L

Description, classification and analysis of manufacturing processes used in the transformation of metal, polymers, and ceramics into consumer or capital goods. Topics include analysis of variables that affect process operations, performance, quality and cost, and the design of process plans. Three hours lecture and one three-hour laboratory weekly. Spring semester.

# MENG 350L | MANUFACTURING PROCESSES LABORATORY

#### Units: 1

Corequisites: MENG 350

A laboratory course to compliment the lecture material presented in ISYE 350. One three-hour laboratory weekly. Spring Semester.

# MENG 351 | MACHINE SHOP PRACTICES

#### Units: 1 Repeatability: No

Introduction to metal and wood working machines and practices, with emphasis on development of basic competence and safety. Three-hour laboratory weekly. Sophomore standing in Mechanical engineering. Fall semester.

# MENG 352 | CAD PRACTICES

#### Units: 1 Repeatability: No

Introduction to 3D computer-aided design of components and assemblies using modern solid modeling tools. Three-hour laboratory weekly. Sophomore standing in Mechanical engineering. Fall semester.

#### MENG 360 | FLUID MECHANICS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: MENG 260 or MATH 250 or MATH 310

Corequisites: MENG 360L

Basic laws of fluid mechanics with applications to engineering problems, including dimensional analysis and similitude, boundary layer analysis, internal and external flows, and turbomachinery analysis. Three hours lecture. Spring semester.

#### MENG 360L | FLUID MECHANICS LABORATORY

#### Units: 1

Prerequisites: MENG 260 and MATH 310

Corequisites: MENG 360

Laboratory for MENG 360. Three hours laboratory weekly. Spring semester.

#### MENG 370 | MECHANICS OF MATERIALS

#### Units: 3-4

Prerequisites: MENG 210 Corequisites: MENG 370L

Analytical methods for determining stress and strain, torsion, bending of beams, shearing stress in beams, combined stresses, principal stresses, and deflection in beams. Three hours lecture weekly. Spring semester.

#### MENG 370L | MECHANICS OF MATERIALS LABORATORY

# Units: 1

Corequisites: MENG 370

Laboratory for MENG 370. Three-hour laboratory weekly. Spring semester.

#### **MENG 375 | DYNAMICS**

# Units: 3-4 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MENG 210

Analysis of dynamics of particles and rigid bodies using vector methods in two and three dimensions. Topics include kinematics and kinetics of translational and rotational motion, energy and momentum methods. Three hours lecture weekly. Fall semester.

# MENG 380 | KINEMATICS AND DESIGN OF MACHINERY

#### Units: 3

Prerequisites: MENG 375

Kinematics and dynamic analysis of machinery; mechanism synthesis techniques for function, motion, path generators; and design applications with linkages, cams, and gears. Three hours lecture weekly. Spring semester.

#### MENG 400 | HEAT TRANSFER

# Units: 3

Prerequisites: MENG 360 Corequisites: MENG 400L

Heat transfer by conduction, convection, radiation, and combinations thereof. Introduction to heat exchanger analysis and design, along with other applications. Three hours lecture and three-hour laboratory weekly. Fall semester.

#### MENG 400L | HEAT TRANSFER LABORATORY

# Units: 1

**Core Attributes: Lab** Corequisites: MENG 400

Laboratory for MENG 400. Three laboratory weekly. Fall semester.

#### MENG 410 | ALTERNATIVE ENERGY SYSTYEMS

# Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: MENG 300

Thermodynamics of traditional fossil fuels and bio fuel combustion. Analysis of solar, wind, wave, and tidal power systems. Introduction to fuel cells and advanced battery technology. Discussion of the current technological limitation of each topic listed above. Three hours of lecture weekly.

# MENG 420 | COMPUTER APPLICATIONS IN MECHANICAL ENGINEERING

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MATH 250 and MATH 310 and MENG 370 and MENG 352 and (ENGR 121 or COMP 150)

Mechanical design and analysis using commercially available solid modeling, kinematics, and FEA computer software. Numerical methods and their applications using root solving, optimization, regression analysis, numerical differentiation and integration will be covered. An introduction to finite difference and finite element methods will also be presented. Two hours lecture and one three-hour laboratory weekly. Fall semester.

# MENG 430 | DESIGN OF MACHINE ELEMENTS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MENG 370

Analysis and design of mechanical components against failures under steady and fatigue loads. Design applications of various machine elements, such as shafts, bearings, gears, springs, and fasteners. These are integrated into mini-design projects required of all students. Three hours lecture weekly. Spring semester.

#### MENG 445 | INTRODUCTION TO ROBOTICS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MENG 375

This course covers introductory materials related to the subject of robotics. The course is designed to encompass theories as well as practices, intended for both the user and the designer of a robotic system. Topics include modeling and analyses of the mechanics of robots, actuators, sensors, and vision systems.

# MENG 460 | SYSTEM DYNAMICS AND VIBRATIONS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MENG 375

Analysis and design of dynamic systems in various engineering domains; modeling of mechanical and electrical systems, free and forced responses, time and frequency domain analysis, applications in isolation and control of mechanical vibrations, and vibration measuring instruments. Three hours lecture weekly. Spring semester.

# MENG 460L | SYSTEM DYNAMICS AND VIBRATIONS LABORATORY Units: 1

Prerequisites: MENG 460 (Can be taken Concurrently)

Laboratory for MENG 460. Three-hour laboratory weekly. Spring semester.

# MENG 462 | TOPICS IN FLUID MECHANICS

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Prerequisites: MENG 360

Additional topics in fluid mechanics, including the differential description of fluid flow, its application to channel flow, pipe flow, and boundary layers, scaling of the equations, methods in computational fluid dynamics, and an introduction to turbulence. Three hours lecture weekly.

# MENG 465 | INTRODUCTION TO COMPUTATIONAL FLUID DYNAMICS

Units: 3

Prerequisites: MENG 360

Topics in fluid mechanics, including the differential description of fluid flow, its application to channel flow, pipe flow, and boundary layers, scaling of the equations, methods in computational fluid dynamics, and an introduction to turbulence.

#### MENG 470 | FINITE ELEMENT ANALYSIS

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MATH 310 and MENG 351 and MENG 370

Finite element based solutions to engineering problems with an emphasis on elastostatic problems in structural mechanics. The power and pitfalls associated with the finite element method highlighted through practical modeling assignments. Modeling and practical applications using commercial finite element codes. Three hours lecture weekly.

#### MENG 491 | SENIOR DESIGN PROJECT I

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE

Prerequisites: (MENG 311 or ENGR 311) and ENGL 304 and MENG 351 and MENG 352 (Can be taken Concurrently) and MENG 400 (Can be taken Concurrently) and MENG 400L (Can be taken Concurrently) and MENG 430 (Can be taken Concurrently) and COMM 203 (Can be taken Concurrently) Mechanical engineering capstone design experience in a simulated industrial environment. Students work in teams, in collaboration with an engineering faculty and/or an engineering professional from industry, on an open-ended design project. This involves designing, construction, testing, and evaluation as well as consideration of issues related to ethics, economics, safety and professional practice. Two-hour lecture and four-hour laboratory weekly.

#### MENG 491W | SENIOR DESIGN PROJECT I

Units: 4 Repeatability: No

**Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE** 

Prerequisites: COMM 203 and ENGR 311 and MENG 351 and MENG 352 and MENG 400 (Can be taken Concurrently) and MENG 430 (Can be taken Concurrently)

This course prepares students to approach an engineering design project in a small team. Topics include project selection, research methods on chosen project, a review of the design process, including concept generation, concept selection, construction, testing, and evaluation, as well written and oral presentation skills. Three-hour lecture recitation and one three-hour laboratory weekly. Fall semester.

#### MENG 492 | SENIOR DESIGN PROJECT II

Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Prerequisites: MENG 491W

Mechanical engineering capstone design experience in a simulated industrial environment. Students work in teams, in collaboration with an engineering faculty and/or an engineering professional from industry, on an open-ended design project. This involves designing, construction, testing and evaluation as well as consideration of issues related to ethics, economics, safety and professional practice. Two hours of lecture and four hours of laboratory weekly. Spring semester.

#### MENG 494 | SPECIAL TOPICS IN MECHANICAL ENGINEERING

Units: 1-4 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Special topics seminar in areas of special interest to current engineering practice in Mechanical Engineering. May be repeated for credit.

# MENG 496 | UNDERGRADUATE RESEARCH

# Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Faculty-directed undergraduate research in engineering. Problem proposal must be submitted and approved prior to enrollment. Written report required.

#### MENG 498 | INTERNSHIP/CO-OP EXPERIENCE

**Units: 1-3** 

Directed upper division level internship/co-operative experience in engineering research, design, development, manufacturing, or the engineering activity. Written report required. Credit not applicable to minimum program graduation requirement. Placement contingent upon approval of participating organization. May be repeated for credit.

Units

#### **MENG 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY**

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Individual design or research project under the general supervision of participating professor. Project proposal must be submitted and approved prior to enrollment.

# Joan B. Kroc School of Peace Studies

The University of San Diego's Joan B. Kroc School of Peace Studies is dedicated to building and sustaining peace and justice through innovative learning, interdisciplinary analysis, advanced practice and engaged public policy.

Through its Institute for Peace and Justice the faculty, staff and students of the School are working with populations to achieve peace and justice in places around the world. Working with its Trans-Border Institute, they are addressing urgent transnational issues affecting the people of Mexico and the United States, as well as peace and justice questions that transcend other key borders. At the Kroc School, students from around the world receive an interdisciplinary academic and practice-oriented education.

The Peace and Justice Studies minor creatively promotes conflict resolution, cross cultural understanding and social justice by introducing students to an integrated, multidisciplinary program. With a minor in Peace and Justice Studies, you'll learn the historical and contemporary perspectives on the nature of conflict, the conditions of sustainable development and strategies to achieve a more just society.

# Peacebuilding and Social Innovation

# **Administration**

Patricia Márquez, PhD, Dean

Jessica López, MA, Academic Programs Manager

Louis Cappella, Assistant Dean for Administration and Operations

Andrew Blum, PhD, Director, Joan B. Kroc Institute for Peace and Justice

Everard Meade, PhD, Director, Trans-Border Institute

Miranda Williamson, MS, Assistant Director, Graduate Student Services

# **Faculty**

Ami Carpenter, PhD

Austin Choi-Fitzpatrick, PhD

William R. Headley, CSSp, PhD

Cynthia Irmer, PhD

Christopher McDougal, PhD

Dustin Sharp, PhD, JD

Necla Tschirgi, PhD

# The Peacebuilding and Social Innovation Minor

Peace means more than merely the absence of war. It requires creating the conditions for humans to flourish - access to food, clean water and shelter; education for all; freedom from harm and other human rights. Today's big problems require innovative solutions to improve people's well being, security, access to justice, economic opportunities and participation in governance. The minor is designed around the study of violence, oppression and injustice as well as innovative strategies for peacebuilding, which enable students to become effective agents of positive social change.

The new minor in Peacebuilding and Social Innovation consists of 18 units divided among a lower division prerequisite (three units) and upper-division distribution requirements (15 units). Both the lower-division prerequisite and nine units under the new minor will be courses offered by the Kroc School. However, you will also be able to take two upper-level units from any relevant discipline. The new minor does not require a capstone. Instead, we encourage you to take advantage of various practical experiences including internships (http://www.sandiego.edu/peacestudies/institutes/ipj/about/interns), community service learning and study abroad programs which count towards the minor.

# The Peacebuilding and Social Innovation Minor

Title

Couc	11010	0 11110
<b>Required Course</b>	s	
PJS 101	Introduction to Peace and Justice Studies	3
Nine upper-level I including an intern	Peace and Justice Studies units (or approved substitutes, aship)	9
Electives		
Six upper-level (3) and Justice Studie	00-400) units from relevant discipline (approved by Peace s Advisor)	6
Peace and Justice	e Studies Undergraduate-Level Courses	
PJS 494	Topics in Peace, Justice and Social Innovation	1-3
PJS 498	Internship	3
PJS 499	Independent Study	1-3
Total Units		23-27

# PJS 101 | INTRODUCTION TO PEACE AND JUSTICE STUDIES Units: 3 Repeatability: No

#### Core Attributes: Law - Experiential, Domestic Diversity level 1

This course provides historical and contemporary perspectives on the nature of conflict, the conditions of sustainable development, and strategies for global order. Students will explore the links among these issues as a means for understanding the obstacles to, and opportunities for, peace and justice.

#### PJS 417 | ENGINEERING PEACE

# Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Code

This course has been designed to address how teams collaborate through a project-based approach designed to cultivate empathy across disciplinary boundaries. This will help position students to be discipline-bridging changemakers. Drones present technical and ethical challenges that cannot be addressed in isolation. The course involves designing and building the device (a clear engineering challenge) with the more conceptual work of planning for its integration into pro-social organizational processes (a clear peace and justice challenge).

#### PJS 431 | APPLIED PEACE EDUCATION IN MEXICO

# Units: 3 Repeatability: No

How can universities teach peacebuilding to people in dangerous situations without resorting to hand-wringing paternalism or simply using other people's misfortunes as teachable material? This is the guiding question behind: "Teaching Applied Peace Education in Mexico." Students serve as facilitators for the Trans-Border Institute's "diplomado" [certificate program] in Applied Peace Education, given in collaboration with local educational institutions and civil society organizations in the areas of Mexico most affected by the drug war. The program is designed for the leaders of non-governmental organizations, civil servants, and local university students interested in building sustainable peace in Mexico. The USD student facilitators travel to Mexico with TBI staff and attend the seminars, where they learn a broad interdisciplinary curriculum in Applied Peace Education along with the local participants. The curriculum presents seven interconnected paths to sustainable peace: human rights, citizenship, history and memory, conflict resolution, social innovation, digital technology, and ecology. The student facilitators lead group exercises and discussions that reinforce the course material and assess its local relevance. In weekly meetings between each seminar, the student facilitators help TBI staff to tailor the material to local demands, to design and redesign the group exercises to maximize their effectiveness, and hone their own skills as discussion leaders and facilitators. Each diplomado program carries out a collaborative or "hive model" research project, where TBI leverages the local insight, experience, and connections of the seminar participants to produce useful knowledge about the most pressing local problems of peace and justice. The student facilitators participate in the design, implementation, and analysis of the research project and produce a final report for publication in collaboration with TBI. In the process, the student facilitators receive formal training in conducting ethical and effective interview-based research and intensive mentoring from TBI staff.

# PJS 441 | WAR, GENDER AND PEACEBUILDING

# Units: 3 Repeatability: No

On the ground and in the global hotspots, Kurdish women are fighting ISIS, Liberian women locked a dictator and rebel leaders into a negotiating room, and a Filipino woman called for a ceasefire and then created the first civilian team to monitor it. Yet in mass media and in history books these stories often go untold. In the first course of its kind, students learn from and work with four courageous women peacebuilders and human rights defenders who will be in residence at USD in the fall.

# PJS 479 | IMMIGRATION AND ASYLUM IN PRACTICE Units: 3 Repeatability: No

The course begins with a comprehensive review of the origins and substance of U.S. immigration and asylum law, with a special emphasis on how they interface with the broader history of international humanitarian and human rights norms. Students will then work with staff of the Trans-Border Institute (TBI) to provide expert testimony for asylum claims filed by individuals fleeing persecution in contemporary Mexico and Central America. Working with the most important national and local networks of pro bono immigration attorneys in the country, the students will assist TBI staff in verifying and reinforcing the most important facts and claims in each case, and preparing effective, thorough, and welldocumented expert testimony. Students will mobilize the underlying research and their experience working on the individual cases to develop policy briefs of specific aspects of immigration and asylum policy. Each student will produce a significant written contribution to at least one actual asylum case, one fact sheet, and one policy brief to be published by TBI. In addition to a broad introduction to immigration and asylum law grounded in the practice of real-world cases, the students will learn to work collaboratively, designing and dividing up particular research tasks on hard deadlines, and they will learn to ask effective questions of the lawyers, the asylum seekers, and a variety of experts. The course will meet once per week for 3 hours, and students will be expected to complete approximately 10 hours per week of reading and research.

# PJS 494 | TOPICS IN PEACE, JUSTICE AND SOCIAL INNOVATION

#### Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Repeatable if topic differs)

A specialized course focusing on a topic in conflict analysis, peacebuilding, justice, human rights, development or social innovation. May be repeated for credit if the topic changes.

#### PJS 495W | PEACE AND JUSTICE CAPSTONE

#### Units: 3

#### Core Attributes: Writing-Pre F17 CORE

This course integrates the knowledge and skills students have acquired through coursework and experience. The course also provides a foundation for possible future engagement with peace and justice concerns through graduate work, career choice, or volunteer activities. Under the supervision of the course instructor, students will develop a research project or paper designed to illuminate the dynamics of domestic and international peace, sustainability, cooperation, and justice. Completed projects will become part of a student archive designed to provide guidance and inspiration for future students of peace and justice.

#### PJS 498 | INTERNSHIP

#### Units: 3 Repeatability: No

Practical experience under professional supervision under the broad theme of conflict, social justice, peacebuilding and social innovation. Internships can be pursued with Kroc School faculty, the Institute for Peace and Justice (IPJ), the Trans-border Institute (TBI), the Center for Peace and Commerce (CPC), the Mulvaney Center or other relevant units at USD. Internships are intended to allow students to gain hands-on experience in a particular area within a structured work program. Accordingly, the supervisor and the intern need to develop a concrete work program with assigned tasks, learning goals, desired outcomes, and time commitment. The internship needs to be approved by the student's faculty advisor and the faculty advisor for the minor before the student can formally register. Only a total of 3 internship units may be used toward the minor.

# PJS 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

# Units: 1-3 Repeatability: No

An independent study for up to a total of three units provides students an opportunity to research a topic of particular interest to them relevant to Peacebuilding and Social Innovation under the supervision of a faculty member, including staff with teaching responsibilities. Students can pursue an independent study within the Kroc School or other departments at USD. As with internships, the faculty supervisor and the student need to develop a concrete work program with assigned tasks, learning goals, end product and time commitment. The student's faculty advisor and the faculty advisor for the minor must approve the independent study proposal before the student can formally register.

# **Library Science**

# LIBR 101 | RESEARCH METHODS

# Units: 1.5-3

The goal of this course is to instruct students in the use of an academic library's printed and electronic resources to find and evaluate critical information for all disciplines both within libraries and on the Internet. Students are encouraged to think about how information is structured and disseminated as well as the ethical use of information in society.

# LIBR 103 | INFORMATION LITERACY AND RESEARCH STRATEGIES Units: 3

This course will teach the skills needed to effectively gather information to support educational and research needs in diverse formats. Topics include formulating research questions, the evaluation and presentation of information, ethical uses of information, effective search methods, citation practices, exploration of multiple literacies, and relevant readings and writings with discussions prompted by current issues.

# LIBR 499 | INDEPENDENT STUDY

Units: 1-3 Repeatability: Yes (Can be repeated for Credit)

Individual study and written research working in close collaboration with a library

faculty. Pre-requisite consent of instructor.

# **FACULTY**

# Faculty Emeriti

#### Joan B. Anderson

Professor Emerita of Economics

BA, San Diego State University; MA, Stanford University; PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Fred R. Bahr

Professor Emeritus of Business Policy and Strategic Assessment BA, MA, DBA, George Washington University

# Eren H. Branch

Professor Emerita of English

AB, Bryn Mawr College; MA, PhD, Stanford University

#### **Dennis Briscoe**

Professor Emeritus of Management

BA, MBA, Washington State University; PhD, Michigan State University

#### James M. Burns

Dean Emeritus and Professor Emeritus of Business

BS, MS, San Diego State University; DBA, Harvard University

#### David N. Burt

Professor Emeritus of Supply Chain Management

BA, University of Colorado; MS, University of Michigan; PhD, Stanford University

#### Curtis W. Cook

Dean Emeritus and Professor Emeritus of Business

BA, University of Redlands; MBA, DBA, University of Southern California

#### Robert R. Corbeil

Professor Emeritus of Computer Science

BSEd, Gorham State Teachers College, University of Maine; MS, University of Maine; PhD, University of Toronto, Canada

# Edward F. DeRoche

Professor Emeritus and Dean Emeritus of Education

BS, University of Maine; MEd, Eastern Connecticut State University; MA, PhD, University of Connecticut

## Ross E. Dingman

Professor Emeritus of Biology

BS, Long Beach State College; MS, PhD, University of Arizona

#### **Anne Donnellan**

Professor Emerita of Education

BA, Queens College, The City University of New York; MA, San Diego State University; PhD, University of California, Santa Barbara

# Patrick F. Drinan

Dean Emeritus and Professor Emeritus of Political Science BA, Loras College; MA, PhD, University of Virginia

#### Gerald N. Estberg

Professor Emeritus of Physics

BA, Reed College; PhD, Cornell University

#### E. Clare Friedman

Professor Emerita of Mathematics

BA, St. Hugh's College, Oxford University; DPhil, Oxford University

#### Gregory M. Gazda

Professor Emeritus of Marketing

BA, Occidental College; MBA, University of Michigan; PhD, Arizona State University

#### Lee Gerlach

Professor Emeritus of English

BA, MA, University of Wisconsin; PhD, University of Michigan

#### Marjo A. Gray

Associate Professor Emerita, Copley Library

BS, Loyola University; MSLS, University of Illinois, Urbana-Champaign

#### Janet K. Harrison

Professor Emerita of Nursing

BSN, MSN, University of Maryland; EdD, University of Southern California

#### **Marjorie Hart**

Professor Emerita of Music

BM, University of Iowa; MA, San Diego State College

# Mary Ann Hautman

Professor Emerita of Nursing

BSN, College of Mt. St. Joseph; MSN, Wayne State University; PhD, University of Texas, Austin

#### Alice B. Hayes

President Emerita and Professor Emerita of Biology

BS, Mundelein College; MS, University of Illinois-Urbana; PhD, Northwestern University

#### Lawrence M. Hinman

Professor Emeritus of Philosophy

BA, MA, PhD, Loyola University of Chicago

#### Marian Holleman

University Librarian Emerita

BA, MA, MLS, University of Toronto, Canada

#### Patrick J. Hurley

Professor Emeritus of Philosophy

BS, Gonzaga University; PhD, St. Louis University; JD, University of San Diego

#### Philip O. Hwang

Professor Emeritus of Counseling & Marital and Family Therapy

AB, Berchamans College, Philippines; MA, Ateneo de Manila University,

Philippines; PhD, Marquette University

# Robert L. Infantino

Professor Emeritus of Education

BS, MS, Canisius College; EdD, State University of New York, Buffalo

#### Robert R. Johnson

Professor Emeritus of Economics

BA, Moorhead State College; MA, PhD, University of Oregon

# Kenneth D. Keith

Professor Emeritus of Psychology

BA, Northwest Missouri State University; MS, Kansas State College; PhD, University of Nebraska-Lincoln

#### **Henry Kolar**

Professor Emeritus of Music

BM, DePaul University; MM, Northwestern University; DMA, University of Colorado

#### Eugene M. Labovitz

Professor Emeritus of Sociology

BA, California State University, Northridge; MA, University of California, Santa Barbara; PhD, University of California, Riverside

#### Phoebe J.B. Lee

Professor Emerita of Nursing

BS, Stanford University; MS, University of California, Los Angeles

#### Ian Martin

Associate Professor of Counseling

BS, Loyola Marymount University; MEd, Lewis and Clark College; EdD,

Massachusetts, Amherst

#### John P. McDermott

Professor Emeritus of Chemistry

BS, University of Portland; MS, PhD, University of Notre Dame

#### Jack R. Morrison

Professor Emeritus of Education

BS, MS, Pennsylvania State University; PhD, Northwestern University

#### Janet H. Murphy

Associate Professor Emerita of Library Science

BA, University of Colorado; MSLS, University of Denver

#### Robert O'Neil

Professor Emeritus of Economics

BS, Fairfield University; MBA, New York University; PhD, Fordham University

#### Irene S. Palmer

Dean Emerita and Professor Emerita of Nursing

BS, New Jersey State Teachers College; MA, PhD, New York University

#### Gail Perez

Professor Emerita of English and Ethnic Studies

BA, University of San Diego; MA, University of Michigan; PhD, Stanford University

# The Reverend Monsignor John R. Portman

Professor Emeritus of Theology and Religious Studies

BA, University of San Diego; STL, Pontifical Gregorian University, Rome; STD, Pontifical University of St. Thomas Aquinas, Rome

#### **Gregory Pregill**

Professor Emeritus of Biology

BA, Baylor University; MS, San Diego State University; PhD, University of Kansas

# Mary P. Quayhagen

Professor Emerita of Nursing

BS, Spalding College; MS, University of California, Los Angeles; DNSc, University of California, San Francisco

#### Mary A. Quinn

Professor Emerita of English

BA, MA, Simmons College; MA, PhD, University of California, Santa Barbara

## Louise M. Rauckhorst

Professor Emerita of Nursing

BSN, St. Joseph College; MSN, Catholic University of America; EdD, Columbia University

#### Reverend Norbert J. Rigali, S.J.

Professor Emeritus of Theology and Religious Studies

AB, MA, Gonzaga University; STL, University of Innsbruck, Austria; PhD, University of Munich, Germany

#### Janet A. Rodgers

Dean Emerita and Professor Emerita of Nursing

BS, Wagner College; MA, PhD, New York University

## Sister Alicia Sarre, RSCJ

Professor Emerita of Spanish

BA, Barat College; MA, Marquette University; PhD, Stanford University

# Mary Woods Scherr

Professor Emerita of Leadership Studies

BA, MA, San Diego State University; PhD, Claremont Graduate School/San Diego State University

#### Rev. Delwin Byron Schneider

Professor Emeritus of Theology and Religious Studies

AB, Concordia College; BD, Concordia Seminary; MA, Pepperdine University; PhD, Rikkyo University, Japan

#### Steven E. Schoenherr

Professor Emeritus of History

BA, Indiana University; MA, PhD, University of Delaware

#### Sister Patricia Shaffer, RSCJ

Professor Emerita of Chemistry

BA, San Francisco College for Women; MS, Stanford University; PhD,

University of California, San Diego

# Lynne Small

Professor Emerita of Mathematics and Computer Science

BA, Reed College; MA, PhD, Yale University

#### Michael P. Soroka

Professor Emeritus of Sociology

BA, Villanova University; MA, PhD, Princeton University

# Gerald Sperrazzo

Professor Emeritus of Psychology

BA, University of Idaho; MA, St. Louis University; PhD, University of Ottawa, Canada

#### John W. Swanke

Professor Emeritus of Philosophy

AA, St. Lawrence College; MA, St. Thomas College; PhD, University of Ottawa, Canada

# Patricia S. Traylor

Professor Emerita of Chemistry

BA, University of California, Berkeley; MS, University of Wisconsin; PhD, Harvard University

# John Valois

Professor Emeritus of Psychology

Seminaire de Philosophie, Montreal, Canada, Diplome en etudes speciales de philosophie; MA, PhD, Catholic University of America

#### Therese Truitt Whitcomb

Professor Emerita of Art

BA, San Diego College for Women; MA, San Diego State University

#### Ray H. White

Professor Emeritus of Physics and Computer Science

BS, California Institute of Technology; PhD, University of California, Berkeley

#### Gary G. Whitney

**Professor Emeritus Business** 

BS, California Polytechnic San Luis Obispo; MBA, University of California, Los Angeles; PhD, University of Washington

# **Undergraduate Faculty**

# Ryan Abrecht (2015)

Assistant Professor of History

BA, Boston College; MA, Pennsylvania State University; PhD, University of California, Santa Barbara

#### Biljana N. Adebambo (2012)

Assistant Professor of Finance

BS, Braca Karic University, Belgrade, Serbia; PhD, University of Missouri

#### Martha Adkins (2011)

Assistant Professor, Copley Library

BA, University of Texas, Austin; MA, Yale Divinity School; MLIS, University of North Texas

#### Christopher Adler (1999)

Professor of Music

BS, Massachusetts Institute of Technology; MA, PhD, Duke University

#### Viviana Alexandrowicz (1994)

Associate Professor of Education

BA, Universidad Catolica de Chile; MA, San Diego State University; PhD, Claremont Graduate School

#### Andrew T. Allen (1984)

Professor of Economics

BS, MS, PhD, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign

#### Emilie Amrein (2014)

Assistant Professor of Music

BS, Indiana University; MM, University of Arizona; DMA, University of Minnesota

#### Rae Anderson (2009)

Associate Professor of Physics and Biophysics

BS, Georgetown University; MS, PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Clara Azevedo (2016)

Assistant Professor of Spanish

BA, Universidad Complutense, Madrid, Spain; MA, Michigan State University, PhD Candidate, University of Wisconsin

#### Harriet E. Baber (1982)

Professor of Philosophy

BA, Lake Forest College; MA, PhD, Johns Hopkins University

#### Susie Paulik Babka (2007)

Associate Professor of Theology and Religious Studies

BA, Notre Dame University; MTS, Duke University; MA, PhD, University of Notre Dame

#### Lisa Anne Morrison Baird (1988)

Professor of Biology

AB, Smith College; MS, PhD, University of California, Davis

#### Craig B. Barkacs (1991)

Professor of Business Law

BA, Kenyon College; MBA, JD, University of San Diego

#### Linda Barkacs (2008)

Professor of Business Law

BA, San Diego State University; JD, University of San Diego

#### Corey Barnes (1987)

Assistant Professor of Philosophy

BA, Fisk University; MA, Union Theological Seminary; MA, Howard University; MA, PhD, University of Memphis

#### Donna Barnes (1987)

Associate Professor of Education

BA, Duke University; MS, Oregon College of Education; PhD, University of Oregon

#### Thomas Barton (2007)

Associate Professor of History

BA, Princeton University; PhD, Yale University

#### Kenneth Bates (2009)

Associate Professor of Marketing

BSBA, PhD, University of Arkansas, Fayetteville

#### Adina Batnitzky (2011)

Associate Professor of Sociology

BA, Barnard College, Columbia University; MA, PhD, Brown University

# Dwight R. Bean (1973)

Professor of Mathematics

BA, Harvey Mudd College; MA, PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Anthony J. Bell, Jr. (2016)

Assistant Professor of Chemistry and Biochemistry

BA, Millsaps College; MS, PhD, New York University

#### Jessica Bell (2014)

Assistant Professor of Chemistry and Biochemistry

BA, Gustavus Adolphus College; PhD, University of Minnesota

#### Lauren Benz (2009)

Associate Professor of Chemistry and Biochemistry

BS, University of Rhode Island; PhD, University of California, Santa Barbara

# Amy Besnoy (2002)

Associate Professor, Copley Library

BA, Sonoma State University; MLS, Syracuse University; MA, University of San Diego

#### Can Bilsel (2002)

Professor of Architecture and History of Art and Architecture

BArch, Middle East Technical University; SMArchS, Massachusetts Institute of Technology; PhD, Princeton University

#### Terry H. Bird (2005)

Associate Professor of Biology

BSc, PhD, University of British Columbia

# Malachi Black (2014)

Assistant Professor of English

BA, Gallatin School; MFA, University of Texas; PhD, University of Utah

#### Rachel Blaser (2008)

Associate Professor of Psychological Sciences

BA, Reed College; MA, PhD, University of Hawaii at Manoa

#### Barbara Bliss (2013)

Assistant Professor of Finance

BS, PhD, Florida State University

#### Kate S. Boersma (2016)

Assistant Professor of Biology

BA, Northwestern University; MS, PhD, Oregon State University

#### James P. Bolender (1996)

Associate Professor of Chemistry and Biochemistry

BA, Wittenberg University; PhD, University of Virginia

# Bradley Bond (2012)

Assistant Professor of Communication Studies

BA, Bradley University; MA, PhD, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign

#### Michel A. Boudrias (1996)

Associate Professor of Environmental and Ocean Sciences

BSc, McGill University; MSc, Oregon State University; PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Jonathan M. Bowman (2007)

Professor of Communication Studies

BA, University of California, Davis; MA, PhD, Michigan State University

#### Sandy Buczynski (2002)

Associate Professor of Education

BA, University of Texas, Austin; MPH, University of Texas, Houston; PhD, University of Hawaii, Manoa

#### Hugh Burkhart (2008)

Associate Professor, Copley Library

BA, MA, University of Windsor; MLS, University of Western Ontario

#### Brian Byrnes (2012)

Associate Professor of Theatre

BA, University of Iowa; MFA, University of Pittsburgh

#### Michelle Madsen Camacho (2002)

Professor of Sociology

BA, Loyola Marymount University; MA, PhD, University of California, Irvine

# Erika Nash Cameron (2009)

Associate Professor of Counseling

BS, Bradley University; MEd, University of Hawaii; PhD, University of Missouri, St. Louis

#### Julia Miller Cantzler (2011)

Associate Professor of Sociology

BA, MA, JD, University of Colorado; PhD, The Ohio State University

# Victor Carmona (2017)

Assistant Professor of Theology and Religious Studies

BSFS, Georgetown University; MTS, PhD, University of Notre Dame

#### Ami Carpenter (2008)

Associate Professor of Peace Studies

BA, MA, New Mexico State University; PhD, George Mason University

#### Derrick R. Cartwright (2016)

Associate Professor of Art History

Director of University Galleries

AB, University of California, Berkeley; MA, University of California, Los Angeles; PhD, University of Michigan

#### Cynthia Caywood (1984)

Professor of English

BA, University of Kansas; MA, University of Exeter, England; PhD, Duke University

# Ray Chambers (2009)

Associate Professor of Theatre

BS, Ball State University

## Bradley Chase (1999)

Associate Professor of Industrial & Systems Engineering

BA, MS, PhD, University of Louisville; MPH, San Diego State University

#### Diana Chen (2016)

Assistant Professor of General Engineering

BS General Engineering Havey Mudd College; MS, PhD Civil Engineering Clemson University

#### Leeva C. Chung (1998)

**Professor of Communication Studies** 

BA, San Francisco State University; MA, California State University, Fullerton; PhD, University of Oklahoma

#### Brian R. Clack (2007)

Professor of Philosophy

BA, King's College, London; MSc, University College, London; PhD, King's College, London

#### Timothy Clark (2011)

Associate Professor of Chemistry and Biochemistry

BA, University of San Diego; PhD, University of California, Irvine

#### Dennis M. Clausen (1972)

Professor of English

BA, MA, University of Minnesota; PhD, University of California, Riverside

#### Daniel Codd (2014)

Assistant Professor of Mechanical Engineering

BS, University of California, San Diego; MS, Stanford University; PhD,

Massachusetts Institute of Technology

#### Stephen J. Conroy (2004)

Professor of Economics

BA, Creighton University; MA, PhD, University of Southern California

#### Paula A. Cordeiro (1998)

Professor of Leadership Studies

BA, Bridgewater State College; MEd, Rhode Island College; EdD, University of Houston

#### Simon Croom (2005)

Professor of Supply Chain Management

BA, Lanchester Polytechnic; MS, PhD, University of Warwick

# Jack S. Crumley II (1992)

Professor of Philosophy

BA, California State University, Sacramento; MA, PhD, Tulane University

#### Evelyn Diaz Cruz (2005)

Associate Professor of Theatre Arts

BA, San Diego State University; MFA, University of California, Los Angeles

#### Christopher J.A. Daley (2007)

Associate Professor of Chemistry and Biochemistry

BSc, McGill University; PhD, University of Alberta

#### Odesma Dalrymple (2014)

Assistant Professor of Industrial & Systems Engineering

BS, MEng, Morgan State University; PhD, Purdue University

#### Thomas M Dalton (1992)

Professor of Accountancy

BS, MS, San Diego State University; PhD, University of Houston

#### Nicole Danos (2016)

Assistant Professor of Biology

BA, University of California, Berkeley; MS, University of Massachusetts, Amherst; PhD, Harvard University

#### Bahar Davary (2005)

Associate Professor of Theology and Religious Studies

BA, MA, University of Tehran; PhD, Catholic University of America

#### David O. De Haan (2001)

Professor of Chemistry and Biochemistry

BS, Calvin College; PhD, University of Colorado, Boulder

#### Esteban del Rio (2006)

Associate Professor of Communication Studies

BA, MEd, University of San Diego; PhD, University of Massachusetts Amherst

#### Shreesh D. Deshpande (1988)

Professor of Finance

BE (Mech), Birla Institute of Technology and Science, Pilani, India; MBA, Clarkson University, New York; PhD, Pennsylvania State University, University Park

# Satyan L. Devadoss (2016)

Professor of Mathematics and Computer Science

Fletcher Jones Chair of Applied Mathematics

BS, North Central College; PhD, Johns Hopkins University

#### Ted Dezen (2015)

Assistant Professor of Physics

BS, University of California, Los Angeles; MA, PhD, University of California, Santa Barbara

#### Josen Diaz (2016)

Assistant Professor of Ethnic Studies

BA, MA, PhD, University of California, San Diego

# Delavan Dickson (1987)

Professor of Political Science and International Relations

BA, Humboldt State University; MA, University of Southern California; JD, University of California, Los Angeles; PhD, University of Southern California

#### Loredana DiMartino (2010)

Associate Professor of Italian

MA, University of Aberdeen, Scotland; MA, University of Washington; SESA, Istituto Universitario Orientale, Naples, Italy; PhD, University of Washington

#### Denise Dimon (1983)

Professor of Economics

BA, University of Colorado; MS, PhD, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign

#### Mary Doak (2007)

Professor of Theology and Religious Studies

BA, Loyola University of Chicago; MA, PhD, The Divinity School, University of Chicago

#### Casey Dominguez (2005)

Associate Professor of Political Science and International Relations

BA, MA, PhD, University of California, Berkeley

# Robert Donmoyer (2000)

Professor of Leadership Studies

BA, Susquehanna University; MS, City College of New York; MA, PhD, Stanford University

#### Kokila P. Doshi (1988)

Professor of Economics

BA, MA, University of Bombay, India; MA, PhD, University of Rochester, New York

#### Halina Duraj (2010)

Associate Professor of English

BS, MA, University of California, Davis; PhD, University of Utah

#### Mary Durkin (2015)

Assistant Professor of Accounting

BS, University of Connecticut; PhD, Bentley University

#### **Tammy J. Dwyer (1994)**

Professor of Chemistry and Biochemistry

BS, California Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo; MS, PhD, University of California, San Diego

# Emily Edmonds-Poli (2001)

Associate Professor of Political Science and International Relations

BA, Middlebury College; MA, University of Texas, Austin; PhD, University of California, San Diego

# Todd Edwards (1998)

Professor of Marital and Family Therapy

BA, Arizona State University; MA, University of Arizona; PhD, Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University

#### Kimberly A. Eherenman (1990)

Professor of Spanish

BA, MA, University of Nevada; PhD, University of California, Irvine

#### **Hugh I. Ellis (1980)**

Professor of Biology

AB, University of California, Berkeley; MS, California State University, Northridge; PhD, University of Florida

#### Seth R. Ellis (1989)

Associate Professor of Marketing

BS, MBA, Idaho State University; PhD, University of Arizona

# Michael J. Epstein (2001)

Associate Professor, Copley Library

BA, Fordham University; MA, State University of New York, Buffalo; MLS, Rutgers University

#### Orlando O. Espín (1991)

Professor of Theology and Religious Studies

BA, MDiv, MT, St. Vincent de Paul Regional Seminary; ThD, Pontifical Catholic University of Rio de Janeiro, Brazil

#### Ana Estrada (2002)

Associate Professor of Counseling

BA, University of the Pacific; MS, PhD, University of Utah

#### James Fabionar (2017)

Assistant Professor of Education

BA, University of California, San Diego; PhD, University of California, Davis

#### Justine Rapp Farrell (2012)

Assistant Professor of Marketing

BS, MBA, Villanova University; PhD, University of Nebraska, Lincoln

#### Colin Fisher (2002)

Professor of History

BA, Lawrence University; MA, PhD, University of California, Irvine

#### Austin Fitzpatrick (2015)

Assistant Professor of Peace Studies

BS, Middle Tennessee State University; MA, University of Denver; MA, PhD, University of Notre Dame

#### Arietta Fleming-Davies (2017)

Assistant Professor of Biology

BS, Stanford University; PhD, Duke University

#### Carlton D. Floyd (2002)

Associate Professor of English

BA, Amherst College; MA, University of Idaho; PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Andrea Flynn (2012)

Associate Professor of Marketing

BE, McGill University; MBA, Babson College; PhD, University of Texas, Austin

# Jane E. Friedman (1991)

Professor of Mathematics

BA, Swarthmore College; PhD, Temple University

#### Erik Drew Fritsvold (2007)

Associate Professor of Sociology

BA, University of San Diego; MA, PhD, University of California, Irvine

#### May Fu (2009)

Associate Professor of Ethnic Studies

BA, University of California, Los Angeles; MA, University of Minnesota; MA, PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Victoria Fu (2012)

Assistant Professor of Art

BA, Stanford University; MA, University of Southern California; MFA, California Institute of the Arts

## Russell Fuller (1992)

Professor of Theology and Religious Studies

BA, State University of New York at Albany; MA, Columbia University; PhD, Harvard University

#### Fred Galloway (1999)

Professor of Leadership Studies

BA, MA, University of California, San Diego; EdD, Harvard Graduate School of Education

#### Veronica V. Galvan (2007)

Associate Professor of Psychological Sciences

BA, University of Texas, Austin; PhD, University of California, Irvine

#### Saturnino Garcia (2013)

Assistant Professor of Computer Science

BS, Drexel University; MS, PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Ann Garland (2012)

Professor of Counseling & Marital and Family Therapy

BA, University of California, Berkeley; MA, Columbia University; PhD, Yale University

#### Cheryl Getz (2003)

Associate Professor of Leadership Studies

BS, University of Cincinnati; MA, Central Michigan University; EdD, University of San Diego

### Maura Giles-Watson (2012)

Assistant Professor of English

ALB, Harvard University; MA, University of Massachusetts, Boston; MEd, National University; PhD, University of Nebraska, Lincoln

#### Eleanor I. Gillette (2017)

Assistant Professor of Chemistry and Biochemistry

BS, University of Pittsburgh; PhD, University of Maryland at College Park

#### Florence Morgan Gillman (1986)

Professor of Theology and Religious Studies

BA, MA, Catholic University of America; MA, STB, STL, PhD, STD, Catholic University of Louvain, Belgium

# **Alan Gin (1988)**

Associate Professor of Economics

BS, California Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo; MA, PhD, University of California, Santa Barbara

#### Jan Gist (2011)

Professor of Theatre

BFA, Carnegie Mellon University; MFA, Wayne State University

## John H. Glick (1993)

Professor of Computer Science

BS, University of Kansas; MS, Northwestern University; MS, PhD, University of Minnesota

#### Nadav Goldschmied (2011)

Associate Professor of Psychological Sciences

BA, Bar-Ilan University; MS, Canisius College; MA, PhD, University of South Florida

#### Nedeljko Golubovic

Assistant Professor of Counseling

BA, California State University, Fresno; MS, California State University, Fresno; PhD, Georgia State University

#### Michael Gonzalez (1995)

Professor of History

BA, Yale University; MA, PhD, University of California, Berkeley

#### Richard J. Gonzalez (1992)

Professor of Biology

BS, University of Kansas; PhD, Pennsylvania State University

# Cory Gooding (2016)

Assistant Professor of Political Science and International Relations BA, Haverford College; MA, PhD, University of California, Los Angeles

#### Sarah C. Gray (1992)

Professor of Environmental and Ocean Sciences

BA, University of Colorado; PhD, University of California, Santa Cruz

#### Jennifer M. Greenwood (2004)

Associate Professor of Mathematics

BS, University of California, Irvine; MS, PhD, University of Notre Dame

#### Michelle Gilmore Grier (1993)

Professor of Philosophy

BA, MA, CPhil, PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Aaron Gross (2009)

Associate Professor of Theology and Religious Studies

BA, Grinnell College; MTS, Harvard Divinity School; CPhil, PhD, University of California, Santa Barbara

#### Kevin Guerrieri (2002)

Associate Professor of Spanish

BA, Western State Colorado University; MA, University of Colorado at Boulder; PhD, University of California, Riverside

#### **James O. Gump (1981)**

Professor of History

BA, University of Nebraska; MA, University of Auckland, New Zealand; PhD, University of Nebraska

#### Adam Haberman (2013)

Assistant Professor of Biology

BS, University of Texas, Austin; PhD, The Johns Hopkins University

# John Halaka (1991)

Professor of Art

BA, City University of New York; MFA, University of Houston

# Jena Hales (2015)

Assistant Professor of Psychological Sciences

BA, Bowdoin College; PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Jerome Lynn Hall (2002)

Associate Professor of Anthropology

BS, Abilene Christian University; MS, Nova Southeastern University; PhD, Texas A&M University

#### Kristopher Hall (2014)

Assistant Professor of Counseling

BS, St. Augustine's College; MA, Seton Hall University; PhD, University of Central Florida

## C. Bobbi Hansen (1993)

Associate Professor of Education

BS, Valparaiso University; MS, University of Wisconsin; EdD, University of Southern California

# John D. Hanson (2005)

Associate Professor of Supply Chain Management

BASc, University of Toronto; MBA, PhD, Michigan State University

#### David Harnish (2011)

Professor of Music

BA, University of the Pacific; MA, University of Hawaii; PhD, University of California, Los Angeles

#### William R. Headley (2007)

Professor of Peace Studies

BA, BD, St. Mary's Seminary; MEd University of South Carolina; MA, Atlanta University; PhD, New York University

#### Thomas R. Herrinton (1987)

Associate Professor of Chemistry and Biochemistry

BA, University of California, Irvine; PhD, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign

#### Julia Hess (2013)

Assistant Professor, Copley Library

BA, Taylor University; MLS, MIS, Indiana University, Bloomington

#### Lieutenant Colonel Scot Hodgdon (2015)

Professor of Military Science

BA, Norwich University; MS, USAF Air University

#### Diane Hoffoss (2001)

Associate Professor of Mathematics

BS, Virginia Tech; MA, PhD, University of California, Santa Barbara

#### Valerie S. Hohman (1999)

Associate Professor of Biology

BS, University of California, Irvine; PhD, University of Arizona

# Gordon Hoople (2016)

Assistant Professor of General Engineering

BS General Engineering Harvey Mudd College; MS, PhD University of California, Berkeley

#### Judith A. Hora (1998)

Associate Professor of Accountancy

BA, University of California, Los Angeles; MS, Texas Tech University; PhD, Virginia Commonwealth University

#### Sister Mary Hotz, RSCJ (1996)

Associate Professor of English

BA, College of St. Catherine; MA, PhD, The University of Chicago

#### Ming Z. Huang (2005)

Professor of Mechanical Engineering

BS, National Taiwan University; MS, University of Rhode Island; PhD, The Ohio State University

# Lea Hubbard (2003)

Professor of Education and Leadership Studies

BA, MA, PhD, University of California, San Diego

## Johanna Steggert Hunsaker (1981)

Professor of Organizational Behavior and Management

BS, University of Wisconsin, Madison; MS, PhD, University of Wisconsin, Milwaukee

#### Phillip L. Hunsaker (1977)

Professor of Management

BS, MS, San Diego State University; MBA, DBA, University of Southern California

#### Carole L. Huston (1989)

Professor of Communication Studies

BA, California State University, Northridge; MA, California State University, Fresno; PhD, University of Washington

#### Michael A. Ichiyama (1995)

Associate Professor of Psychological Sciences

BA, California State University, Fresno; MA, PhD, University of Cincinnati

#### Rebecca Ingram (2009)

Associate Professor of Spanish

BA, Emory University; PhD, Duke University

#### Peter M. Iovine (2002)

Professor of Chemistry and Biochemistry

BS, Villanova University; PhD, University of Pennsylvania

#### Aarti Ivanic (2010)

Associate Professor of Marketing

BS, MS, Purdue University; PhD, University of Southern California

#### Frank G. Jacobitz (2003)

Professor of Mechanical Engineering

Diplom, Georg-August Universität, Göttingen, Germany; MS, PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Rebekka Jez (2017)

Assistant Professor of Education

BA, University of Washington; MA, EdD, University of San Francisco

#### Eric P. Jiang (1998)

Professor of Computer Science

BS, Shanghai Chiao-Tong University; MA, MS, University of Georgia; PhD, University of Tennessee

#### Clinton Johnson (Lieutenant, USN) (2005)

Assistant Professor of Naval Science

BS, University of Maryland

# **Gary E. Jones (1981)**

Professor of Philosophy

BA, University of California, Berkeley; MA, PhD, University of California, Santa Barbara; JD, University of San Diego

# Edwin D. Kaiser (Captain, USN)

Chair of Naval Science Department and Professor of Naval Science BS, Texas A&M University; MS, Naval War College

#### Maya Kalyanpur (2014)

Professor of Education

BA, St. Stephen's College, Delhi University, Delhi, India; MA, Jawaharlal Nehru University, New Delhi India; PhD, Syracuse University, Syracuse, NY

# Rangapriya Kannan-Narasimhan (2011)

Associate Professor of Management

B.Comm, University of Bombay; MA, Tata Institute of Social Sciences, Mumbai; MS, San Jose State University; PhD, University of California, Los Angeles

# Ronald S. Kaufmann (1997)

Professor of Environmental and Ocean Sciences

BS, University of Minnesota; PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Diane Keeling (2013)

Assistant Professor of Communication Studies

BA, Ripon College; MA, Colorado State University; PhD, University of Colorado at Boulder

#### Timothy P. Kelley (1983)

Professor of Accounting

BS, Loyola Marymount University; MBA, California State University, Long Beach; PhD, University of Houston

# Michael R. Kelly (2013)

Assistant Professor of Philosophy

BA, Connecticut College; MA, MPhil, PhD, Fordham University

## Imane Khalil (2014)

Assistant Professor of Mechanical Engineering

BS, MS, PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Ernest M. Kim (1990)

Professor of Electrical Engineering

BS, University of Hawaii; MS, PhD, New Mexico State University

#### Jae Kim (2014)

Assistant Professor of Industrial and Systems Engineering

BS, MS, University of California, Berkeley; MS, PhD, University of Southern California

#### Koonyong Kim (2013)

Assistant Professor of English

BA, MA, Yonsei University, Seoul, South Korea; MA, PhD, Duke University

#### Evelyn Kirkley (1995)

Associate Professor of Theology and Religious Studies

AB, College of William and Mary; MDiv, Union Theological Seminary; PhD, Duke University

#### Chad Kishimoto (2017)

Assistant Professor of Physics and Biophysics

BA, California Institute of Technology; MS, PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Maria Kniazeva (2003)

Professor of Marketing

BA, MA, Leningrad State University, Russia; MBA, PhD, University of California, Irvine

# Anne M. Koenig (2007)

Associate Professor of Psychological Sciences

BS Iowa State University; MS, PhD, Northwestern University

# James G. Kohl (2004)

Professor of Mechanical Engineering

BS, Western New England College; MS, University of Massachusetts Amherst; PhD, Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute

# Louis Komjathy (2009)

Associate Professor of Theology and Religious Studies

BA, University of California, San Diego; PhD, Boston University

## Patricia Kowalski (1989)

Professor of Psychological Sciences

BA, San Diego State University; MA, California State University, Fullerton; PhD, University of Denver

#### Kathleen A. Kramer (1991)

Professor of Electrical Engineering

BS, Loyola Marymount University; MS, PhD, California Institute of Technology

#### **Jeremy S. Kua** (2004)

Professor of Chemistry and Biochemistry

BS, Reed College; PhD, California Institute of Technology

#### Alexander Kull (2016)

Assistant Professor of Marketing

BBA, MBA, Gonzaga University; PhD, University of South Florida

#### Nicholas Ladany (1992)

Professor of Counseling & Marital and Family Therapy

BS, University of Maryland; PhD, University of Albany, State University of New York

#### Marcus Lam (2016)

Assistant Professor of Leadership Studies

BA, Occidental College; MPP, PhD, University of California, Los Angeles

#### Marc Lampe (1989)

Professor of Business Law and Social Responsibility

BA, University of Wisconsin, Madison; MBA, San Francisco State University; JD, University of San Francisco

#### Stacy Langton (1978)

Professor of Mathematics

BS, California Institute of Technology; AM, PhD, Harvard University

# Florencia Lebensohn-Chialvo (2015)

Assistant Professor of Marital and Family Therapy

BA, MA, PhD, University of Arizona

#### Lu-peji Liao (1983)

Professor of Mathematics

BS, Tsing-Hua University, Taiwan; PhD, Washington University

#### C. David Light (1981)

Professor of Marketing

BS, Arkansas State University; MBA, PhD, University of North Texas

#### Yen-Ting Lin (2011)

Associate Professor of Operations Management

BSc, National Chiao Tung University, Taiwan; MSc, Stanford University; PhD, University of North Carolina

#### Judith Liu (1984)

Professor of Sociology

BA, University of California, San Diego; MA, San Diego State University; PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Curtis M. Loer (1997)

Professor of Biology

Fletcher Jones Chair of Biology

BS, Stanford University; PhD, University of California, San Diego

## Daniel Lopez-Perez (2009)

Associate Professor of Architecture

AA Diploma, Architectural Association, London; MS, Columbia University; PhD, Princeton University

# Susan M. Lord (1997)

Professor of Electrical Engineering

BS, Cornell University; MS, PhD, Stanford University

#### Barbara A. Lougee (2007)

Associate Professor of Accounting

BA, Colgate University; MBA, MS, PhD, Cornell University

#### Mary Sue Lowery (1990)

Professor of Biology

BS, Mississippi State University; PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Mikaya L. D. Lumori (2000)

Professor of Electrical Engineering

BS, MS, The University of Manchester Institute of Science and Technology; PhD, University of Arizona

#### Sarah Lyon (2014)

Assistant Professor of Accountancy

BS, University of California, Davis; MS, University of San Diego; PhD, University of California, Irvine

#### Mary E. Lyons (2003)

Professor of Theology and Religious Studies

BA, Sonoma State University; MA, San Jose State University; PhD, University of California, Berkeley

# Alyson C. Ma (2004)

Professor of Economics

BA, Boston University; MS, Oregon State University; PhD, University of California, Davis

#### Marcelle Maese-Cohen (2013)

Assistant Professor of English

BA, MA, University of California, Berkeley; MA, University of California, Irvine; PhD, University of California, Berkeley

# Michèle Magnin (1990)

Professor of French

Trilingual translator's diploma, Interpreter's School, Geneva, Switzerland; MA, PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Diane Maher (1994)

Associate Professor, Copley Library

BA, MA, San Diego State University; MLS, University of California, Los Angeles

#### Amanda Makula (2017)

Assistant Professor, Digital Initiatives Librarian

BA, Goshen College; MA, University of Iowa

#### Mitchell R. Malachowski (1984)

Professor of Chemistry and Biochemistry

BS, Rhode Island College; PhD, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

#### Jeffrey Malecki (2016)

Assistant Professor of Music

BME, Central Michigan University; MME, VanderCook College of Music; DMA, University of Nevada, Las Vegas

#### Loren L. Margheim (1984)

Professor of Accountancy

BS, MAcc, University of Denver; PhD, Arizona State University

# Patricia Marquez (2009)

Associate Professor of Management

BA, Bowdoin College; MA, PhD, University of California, Berkeley

#### Ian Martin (2009)

Associate Professor of Counseling

BA, Loyola Marymount University; MEd, Lewis and Clark College; EdD, University of Massachusetts, Amherst

#### Cid Martinez (2013)

Assistant Professor of Sociology

BA, MA, PhD, University of California, Berkeley

#### Juliana Maxim (2006)

Associate Professor of History of Art and Architecture

BA, BArch, MA, Laval University; PhD, Massachusetts Institute of Technology

#### Michael S. Mayer (1994)

Professor of Biology

BA, MA, Humboldt State University; PhD, Washington State University

#### Kristen M. McCabe (2000)

Professor of Psychological Sciences

BA, University of Michigan; MA, PhD, Wayne State University

#### Timothy McCarty (2015)

Assistant Professor of Political Science and International Relations

BA, Michigan State University; PhD, Brandeis University

#### Molly A. McClain (1995)

Professor of History

BA, The University of Chicago; MA, PhD, Yale University

#### Christopher McDougal (2009)

Associate Professor of Peace Studies

BA, Swarthmore College; MS, University of New Mexico; PhD, Massachusetts Institute of Technology

#### Matthew T. McGarry (2006)

Associate Professor of Mechanical Engineering

BS, Georgia Institute of Technology; MS, University of Delaware; PhD, University of Vermont

# Ryan McGorty (2015)

Assistant Professor of Physics and Biophysics

BS, University of Massachusetts; PhD, Harvard University

#### Joseph McGowan (1993)

Associate Professor of English

BA, Villanova University; PhD, University of Pennsylvania

#### Lynn C. McGrath (2002)

Associate Professor of Mathematics

BS, State University of New York, Stony Brook; MS, PhD, University of Rhode Island

#### Ryan McKeon (2009)

Associate Professor of Finance

BCommerce; Honors, Finance, University of Natal, Durban, S. Africa; PhD, University of Georgia

# Julia Medina (2010)

Associate Professor of Spanish

BA, PhD, University of California, Davis

#### Joel Mejia (2017)

Assistant Professor of General Engineering

BS, University of Texas, El Paso; MS, University of Utah; PhD, Utah State University

#### **Bradley Melekian (2015)**

Assistant Professor of English

BA, University of San Diego; MPW, University of Southern California

#### Peter Anthony Mena (2017)

Assistant Professor of Theology and Religious Studies

BA, University of Texas, Austin; MA, St. Edward's University; MA, Union

Theological Seminary; PhD, Drew Theological School

#### Antonieta Mercado (2012)

Assistant Professor of Communication Studies

BA, National Autonomous University of Mexico; MA, San Diego State

University; PhD, University of California, San Diego

# Alejandro Meter (2001)

Professor of Spanish

BA, California State University, Northridge; MA, University of Nebraska,

Lincoln; PhD, University of Pittsburgh

#### Norman Miller (2011)

Professor of Real Estate

BS, MA, PhD, The Ohio State University

#### Jesse Mills (2006)

Associate Professor of Ethnic Studies

BA, Sonoma State University; MA, University of California, Los Angeles; MA,

PhD University of California, San Diego

#### Sarina Chugani Molina (2011)

Associate Professor of Education

BA, MA, University of Hawaii at Manoa; EdD, University of San Diego

#### Adriana Molitor-Siegl (2001)

Associate Professor of Psychological Sciences

BA, University of California, Riverside; MA, PhD, Duke University

#### Rico G. Monge (2013)

Assistant Professor of Theology and Religious Studies

BA, Pomona College; MDiv, Saint Vladimir's Orthodox Theological Seminary;

PhD, University of California, Santa Barbara

#### Theresa Monroe, RSCJ (2001)

Associate Professor of Leadership Studies

BA, University of Arizona; MDiv, ThM, Western Jesuit School of Theology; MPA, Harvard University; JCL, Catholic University of America; EdD, Harvard

University

#### Kristin C. Moran (1999)

Professor of Communication Studies

BA, University of San Diego; MA, PhD, University of Washington

#### Geoffrey Morse (2008)

Associate Professor of Biology

BA, Carleton College; PhD, Harvard University

# Michael S. Morse (1990)

Professor of Electrical Engineering

BS, MS, Tulane University; PhD, Clemson University; JD, University of San Diego

## Amanda Moulder (2016)

Assistant Professor of English

BA, Goucher College; MA, PhD, University of Texas

#### Jennifer Mueller (2012)

Associate Professor of Management

BA, Southern Methodist University; PhD, Brandeis University

#### Perla Myers (2001)

Professor of Mathematics

BS, University of Houston; MA, PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Vidya Nadkarni (1990)

Professor of Political Science and International Relations

BA, St. Xavier's College, University of Bombay, India; MA, Jawaharlal Nehru University, India; PhD, University of British Columbia, Canada

# Afsaneh Nahavandi (2013)

Professor of Leadership Studies

BA, University of Denver; MA, PhD, University of Utah

# Alejandra Nann (2013)

Assistant Professor, Copley Library

BA, University of California, San Diego; MLIS, San Jose State University

#### Andrew J. Narwold (1990)

Professor of Economics

BA, University of Virginia, Charlottesville; MBA, Virginia Commonwealth University, Richmond; PhD, University of California, Santa Barbara

#### Michael Nelson (Major, USMC) (2000)

Assistant Professor of Naval Science

BBA, University of Oklahoma

#### Lance E. Nelson (1993)

Professor of Theology and Religious Studies

BA, State University of New York, Albany; MA, University of San Diego; PhD, McMaster University

#### Turner Nevitt (2015)

Assistant Professor of Philosophy

BA, University of St. Thomas, TX; MA, MPhil, PhD, Fordham University

## Svlvie Ngilla (2012)

Assistant Professor of French

MA, Université Ouest Nanterre La Defénse, France; PhD, University of Minnesota and Université Paris III, Sorbonne Nouvelle, France

#### Truc T. Ngo (2009)

Associate Professor of Industrial & Systems Engineering

BS, PhD, Georgia Institute of Technology

# Noelle Norton (1994)

Professor of Political Science and International Relations

BA, University of California, Los Angeles; MS, PhD, University of California, Santa Barbara

# Captain Darrick M. Noah (2018)

Assistant Professor of Military Science

BA, Hawaii Pacific University

## **Lisa Nunn (2009)**

Associate Professor of Sociology

BA, Whittier College; MA, PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Clara Oberle (2008)

Associate Professor of History

BA, Wellesley College; MA, PhD, Princeton University

#### **Rick T. Olson (1996)**

Professor of Industrial & Systems Engineering

BS, MS, PhD, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign

#### Angelo R. Orona (1973)

Associate Professor of Anthropology

BA, University of California, Santa Barbara; MA, PhD, University of California, Los Angeles

#### Alma C. Ortega (2003)

Assistant Professor, Copley Library

BA, University of California, Berkeley; MLIS, MA, University of California, Los Angeles

#### Ivan Ortiz (2013)

Assistant Professor of English

BA, Stanford University; MA, PhD, Princeton University

#### Bethany O'Shea (2010)

Associate Professor of Environmental and Ocean Sciences

BS, PhD, University of New South Wales

#### Saba Oskoui (1989)

Associate Professor of Art

BFA, MFA, University of Oregon

#### Lee Ann Otto (1984)

Professor of Political Science and International Relations

BA, Lawrence University; MA, Northern Illinois University; PhD, University of British Columbia, Canada

#### O. Volkan Ozbek (2016)

Assistant Professor of Management

BS, Turkish Naval Academy; MS, Turkish Naval Science and Engineering Institute:

MBA, Saginaw Valley State University; MS, University of Wisconsin-Madison; PhD.

University of Texas- Arlington

#### Roger C. Pace (1987)

Professor of Communication Studies

BA, MA, Brigham Young University; PhD, Pennsylvania State University

#### Nate Parde (2015)

Assistant Professor of Theatre Arts

BFA, Abilene Christian University; MFA, University of Texas at Austin

#### Cameron Parker (2003)

Professor of Mathematics

BS, University of Redlands; MA, PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Jennifer Parkinson (2015)

Assistant Professor of Anthropology

BA, University of Washington; MPhil, University of Cambridge; PhD, City University of New York

#### Marjorie Patrick (2003)

Associate Professor of Biology

BSc, MSc, McMaster University; PhD, University of California, Irvine

#### Jessica Patterson (2010)

Associate Professor of History of Art and Architecture

BA, Reed College; MA, PhD, University of California, Berkeley

#### Jo Ellen Patterson (1988)

Professor of Marital and Family Therapy

BS, Baylor University; MEd, Wake Forest University; PhD, University of North Carolina, Greensboro

#### Diane D. Pattison (1986)

Professor of Accountancy

BS, University of Oregon; MBA, California State University, Hayward; PhD, University of Washington

#### Rodney G. Peffer (1986)

Professor of Philosophy

BA, Iowa State University; MA, PhD, University of Arizona

#### Johan Perols (2008)

Associate Professor of Accounting

BS, Colorado Christian University; MBA, University of Colorado at Denver; PhD, University of South Florida

#### Leonard A. Perry (2000)

Associate Professor of Industrial & Systems Engineering

BS, Ohio University; MS, Clemson University; PhD, Arizona State University

#### Amanda Petersen (2008)

Associate Professor of Spanish

BA, MA, Wichita State University; PhD, University of Colorado at Boulder

#### Marianne R. Pfau (1990)

Professor of Music

SMP, Diplom, Musikhochschule, Hamburg, Germany; LGSM, Music Therapy, Guildhall School of Music and Drama; MM, Southern Illinois University; MA, PhD, State University of New York, Stony Brook

#### Michael R. Pfau (1989)

Associate Professor of Political Science and International Relations Vordiplom, Universität Hamburg, Germany; MA, Southern Illinois University; MA, PhD, State University of New York, Stony Brook

#### Atreyee Phukan (2006)

Associate Professor of English

BA, MA, Delhi University; MA, Carnegie Mellon University; MA, PhD, Rutgers University

#### Eric C. Pierson (1999)

Professor of Communication Studies

BFA, PhD, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign

#### Ann L. Pirruccello (1992)

Professor of Philosophy

BA, California State University, Los Angeles; MA, PhD, Purdue University

#### Jack Wilson Pope (1972)

Professor of Mathematics

BA, College of Holy Cross; MS, PhD, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

#### Jennifer Prairie (2014)

Assistant Professor of Environmental and Ocean Sciences

BA, Dartmouth College; MS, PhD, University of California, San Diego

## Candice Price (2016)

Assistant Professor of Mathematics

BS, California State University, Chico; MA, San Francisco State University; PhD, University of Iowa

#### Samuel (Greg) Prieto (2013)

Assistant Professor of Sociology

BA, Whittier College; MA, PhD, University of California, Santa Barbara

#### Joseph Provost (2013)

Professor of Chemistry and Biochemistry

BS, Bemidji State University; PhD, University of North Dakota

#### Lukasz Pruski (1983)

Professor of Mathematics

MScEng, PhD, Warsaw Technical University, Poland

#### Alberto López Pulido (2003)

Professor of Ethnic Studies

BA, University of California, San Diego; MA, PhD, University of Notre Dame

# David F. Pyke (2008)

Professor of Operations Management

BA, Haversford College; MBA, Drexel University; MA, University of Pennsylvania; PhD, Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania

#### Reyes L. Quezada (1999)

Professor of Education

BA, San Jose State University; MEd, University of San Diego; MA, San Diego State University; EdD, Northern Arizona University

#### Manzur Rahman (1991)

Professor of Finance

AB, BS, Lafayette College; PhD, University of South Carolina; JD, University of San Diego

#### Ryan Ratcliff (2008)

Associate Professor of Economics

AB, Stanford University; PhD, University of California, Berkeley

#### Carl M. Rebman Jr. (2001)

Professor of Information Technology and Electronic Commerce BA, University of Arizona; MBA, PhD, University of Mississippi

# Thomas E. Reifer (2004)

Professor of Sociology

BA, University of California, Santa Cruz; MA, PhD, State University of New York, Binghamton

#### Emily Reimer-Barry (2008)

Associate Professor of Theology and Religious Studies

BA, University of Notre Dame; MTS, Weston Jesuit School of Theology; PhD, Loyola University Chicago

#### Martin Repinecz (2013)

Assistant Professor of Spanish

BA, Washington University, St. Louis; MA, PhD, Duke University

## Nathalie Reyns (2008)

Associate Professor of Environmental and Ocean Sciences

BS, University of Arizona; MS, Stony Brook University; PhD, North Carolina State University

#### **Matt Rich (2017)**

Assistant Professor of Art

BA, Brown University; MFA, School of the Art Institute of Chicago

# Nicholas Riggle (2015)

Assistant Professor of Philosophy

BA, University of California, Berkeley; PhD, New York University

#### Scott Ripley (2016)

Associate Professor of Theatre

BS, US Naval Academy; MFA, University of California, San Diego

#### Daniel A. Rivetti (1986)

Associate Professor of Finance

BS, Pennsylvania State University; DBA, Kent State University

#### Chell A. Roberts (2013)

Professor of Industrial & Systems Engineering BS, MS, University of Utah; PhD, Virginia Tech

#### Fred M. Robinson (1991)

Professor of English

BA, University of Redlands; MA, PhD, University of Washington

#### Miriam Rothman (1984)

Professor of Human Resource Management

BA, City University of New York; MS, San Diego State University; PhD, University of Washington

#### Lonnie L. Rowell (1995)

Associate Professor of Counseling

BA, MS, San Diego State University; PhD, University of Southern California

#### Amanda Ruiz (2014)

Assistant Professor of Mathematics

BA, University of California, Berkeley; MA, San Francisco State University; PhD, Binghamton University

#### Maria Cecilia Ruiz (1990)

Associate Professor of Spanish

BA, PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Tara Salinas (2008)

Associate Professor of Business Ethics

BA, University of Pittsburgh; MA, University of Limerick, Ireland; PhD, University of Washington

## Alison Sanchez (2016)

Assistant Professor of Economics

BA, MA, PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Jonathan Sandy (1986)

Professor of Economics

BA, San Diego State University; MA, PhD, University of California, Santa Barbara

# Joan Schellinger (2014)

Assistant Professor of Chemistry and Biochemistry

BS, University of the Philippines; PhD, University of California, Davis

#### Hans Peter Schmitz (2014)

Associate Professor of Leadership Studies

MA, Eberhard-Karls-University, Tuebingen, Germany; PhD, European University Institute, San Domenico di Fiesole, Italy

## Thomas F. Schubert, Jr. (1987)

Professor of Electrical Engineering

BS, MS, PhD, University of California, Irvine

#### Kenneth P. Serbin (1993)

Professor of History

BA, Yale University; MA, PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Gregory D. Severn (1987)

Professor of Physics

BS, University of California, Los Angeles; PhD, University of Wisconsin, Madison

#### Sandra A. Sgoutas-Emch (1993)

Professor of Psychological Sciences

BA, Emory University; MS, PhD, University of Georgia

#### Dustin Sharp (2010)

Assistant Professor of Peace Studies BA, University of Utah; JD, Harvard

#### Daniel P. Sheehan (1989)

Professor of Physics

BS, Santa Clara University; PhD, University of California, Irvine

#### Ruixia Shi (2016)

Associate Professor of Operations

BEng, Shanghai Jiao Tong University, China; MS, PhD, University of Texas at

#### David Shirk (2003)

Professor of Political Science and International Relations

BA, Lock Haven University; MA, PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Michael Shulman (2013)

Assistant Professor of Mathematics

BS, California Institute of Technology; Master of Advanced Study, Cambridge University; MS, PhD, University of Chicago

# Leonora Simonovis-Brown (2007)

Associate Professor of Spanish

Licenciatura, MA, Universidad Central de Venezuela; PhD, Washington University

#### Divya Sitaraman (2014)

Assistant Professor of Psychological Sciences

BS, University of Delhi; MS, Indian Institute of Technology; PhD, University of Missouri

# James K. Smith (2001)

Professor of Accountancy

BS, MBA, JD, Tulane University; LLM, University of San Diego; PhD, University of

Arizona

#### Tyagarajan N. Somasundaram (1988)

Associate Professor of Marketing

BA, University of Delhi, India; MBA, Panjab University, India; MBA, University of Saskatchewan, Canada; PhD, University of Wisconsin, Milwaukee

## Curt W. Spanis (1965)

Professor of Biology

BA, Queens University, Canada; MA, PhD, University of California, Los Angeles

#### Joi A. Spencer (2006)

Associate Professor of Education

BA, MA, Stanford University; PhD, University of California, Los Angeles

# Avi Spiegel (2011)

Associate Professor of Political Science and International Relations BA, Georgetown University; MTS, Harvard Divinity School; JD, New York University; PhD, Oxford University

#### Steven W. Staninger (1991)

Professor, Copley Library

BA, University of California, San Diego; MLS, University of Arizona; MA, University of San Diego

#### Shannon Starkey (2015)

Assistant Professor of Art, Architecture + Art History

BArch, Wentworth Institute of Technology, MA; PhD Candidate, University of California, Los Angeles

# Kathryn C. Statler (1999)

Professor of History

BA, MA, PhD, University of California, Santa Barbara

#### Susannah Stern (2004)

**Professor of Communication Studies** 

BS, Northwestern University; MA, University of Washington; PhD, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

#### Abraham Stoll (2000)

Professor of English

BA, Yale University; MA, PhD, Princeton University

#### Suzanne Stolz (2017)

Assistant Professor of Education

BA, Friends University; MA, EdD, University of California, San Diego

#### Richard J. Stroik (1991)

Associate Professor of French

BA, University of Wisconsin; MA, PhD, New York University

#### Monica Stufft (2008)

Associate Professor of Theatre

BA, Muhlenberg College; PhD, University of California, Berkeley

#### David B. Sullivan (1992)

Associate Professor of Communication Studies

BA, MA, University of Hartford; PhD, University of Massachusetts Amherst

# Steven W. Sumner (2003)

Professor of Economics

BA, Calvin College; MA, PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Yi Sun (1997)

Associate Professor of History

BA, Nankai University, China; MA, PhD, Washington State University

#### Marko Svetina (2008)

Associate Professor of Finance

BA, University of Northern Iowa; MS, Iowa State University; PhD, Arizona State University

#### Drew Talley (2008)

Associate Professor of Environmental and Ocean Sciences

BSc, San Diego State University; PhD, University of California, San Diego

#### Steve Tammelleo (2013)

Assistant Professor of Philosophy

BS, Lewis and Clark College; PhD, University of Memphis

# Annette Taylor (1990)

Professor of Psychological Sciences

BA, MA, California State University, Long Beach; PhD, University of Southern California

#### Karen M. Teel (2007)

Associate Professor of Theology and Religious Studies BA, Gonzaga University; MA, PhD, Boston College

#### Charles J. Teplitz (1982)

Professor of Decision Sciences

BBA, Cleveland State University; MBA, DBA, Kent State University

#### Andrew Tirrell (2015)

Assistant Professor of Political Science and International Relations BA, Brandeis University; JD, Columbia University; MALD, PhD, Tufts University

#### Karma Lekshe Tsomo (2000)

Professor of Theology and Religious Studies

BA, University of California, Berkeley; MA, PhD, University of Hawai'i, Manoa

#### Charles C. Tu (2004)

Professor of Real Estate

BS, National Chao-Tung University; MBA, PhD, George Washington University

## Jillian Tullis (2015)

Assistant Professor of Communication Studies

BA, MA, California State University, Sacramento; PhD, University of South Florida

#### Laura Turner (2012)

Assistant Professor, Copley Library

BA, Virginia Tech; MLS, University of Texas, Austin

#### Adriana Vamosiu (2013)

Assistant Professor of Economics

BA, Whittier College; PhD, University of Maryland at College Park

#### Stefan Vander Elst (2009)

Associate Professor of English

Licentiate, University of Leuven, Belgium; MA, PhD, Princeton University

#### Ani P. Velo (2002)

Professor of Mathematics

MSc, University of Tirana, Albania; PhD, Worcester Polytechnic Institute

#### Michael F. Wagner (1980)

Professor of Philosophy

BA, Texas A&M University; MA, PhD, The Ohio State University

# Suzanne Walther (2015)

Assistant Professor of Environmental and Ocean Sciences

BA, University of California, Santa Barbara; MS, University of Virginia; MS,

PhD, University of Oregon

## Mitch Warachka (2016)

Professor of Finance

HBA, University of Western Ontario; MBA, University of Chicago; PhD, Cornell University

#### Lori Watson (2007)

Professor of Philosophy

BA, MA, Virginia Tech; PhD, University of Illinois, Chicago

# James M. Weyant (1980)

Professor of Psychological Sciences

BA, Rider College; MA, University of Dayton; PhD, Florida State University

#### Allison Wiese (2007)

Associate Professor of Art

BA, Brown University; MFA, University of California, San Diego

#### Irene Williams (1982)

Professor of English

BA, Bennington College; MA, PhD, Columbia University

#### J. Michael Williams (2003)

Associate Professor of Political Science and International Relations BA, University of San Diego; JD, The American University; PhD, University of

Wisconsin

#### Lee Williams (1993)

Professor of Marital and Family Therapy

BS, Georgia Institute of Technology; MS, PhD, Purdue University

#### Larry A. Williamson (1982)

Professor of Communication Studies

BA, MA, San Diego State University; PhD, Purdue University

#### Randy Willoughby (1988)

Professor of Political Science and International Relations

BA, University of California, Los Angeles; MA, PhD, University of California, Berkeley

#### Mark Woods (1997)

Professor of Philosophy

BA, Moorhead State University; MA, PhD, University of Colorado

#### Wenli Xiao (2012)

Assistant Professor of Operations Management

BS, University of Science and Technology of China; MSc, Fudan University,

Shanghai; PhD, Georgia Institute of Technology

#### Dirk S. Yandell (1981)

Professor of Economics

BA, University of San Diego; MS, PhD, Purdue University

#### **Mei Yang (2015)**

Assistant Professor of Chinese

BA, MA, Beijing Normal University; MA, University of Illinois at Urbana-

Champaign; PhD, University of Oregon

#### Íñigo Yanguas (2012)

Associate Professor of Spanish Linguistics

Licenciatura, Universidad de Granada; MA, Louisiana State University; MS, PhD,

Georgetown University

#### Sally E. Yard (1989)

Professor of History of Art and Architecture

AB, Harvard University; MFA, PhD, Princeton University

## Angela Yeung (1994)

Associate Professor of Music

BMus, Wilfrid Laurier University, Canada; MA and Concert Diploma, McGill

University, Canada; MPhil, PhD, Columbia University

## Zhi-Yong Yin (2003)

Professor of Environmental and Ocean Sciences

BS, MS, Peking University, Beijing, China; PhD, University of Georgia

# Susan M. Zgliczynski (1980)

Associate Professor of Counseling

BS, MS, Purdue University; PhD, Texas A&M University

#### Peng Cheng (Phil) Zhu (2013)

Associate Professor of Finance

BBA, Shanghai Institute of Foreign Trade; MBA, PhD, Carleton University

#### Carsten Zimmerman (2008)

Associate Professor of Management

BA, Berlin School of Economics; MPhil, PhD, University of Cambridge

#### Dennis Zocco (1983)

Professor of Finance

BS, Pennsylvania State University; MA, PhD, Lehigh University

#### Jennifer Zwolinski (2004)

Associate Professor of Psychological Sciences

BS, Santa Clara University; MS, San Diego State University; PhD, University of California, San Diego

## Matt Zwolinski (2003)

Professor of Philosophy

BA, BS, Santa Clara University; PhD, University of Arizona

# **INDEX**

# 2018-2019 Academic Calendar
A
About the University of San Diego
Academic Integrity Policy
Academic Programs
Academic Regulations
Academic Services
Academic Support
Accountancy
Accounting Minor
Accreditation8
Admission to Freshman Standing
Admissions46
Advanced Placement
Advanced Standing46
Anthropology61
Application Fee
Application Procedure
Arabic
Architecture
Arcintecture
Art, Architecture + Art History
Art, Architecture + Art History64
Art, Architecture + Art History
Art, Architecture + Art History       64         Art History       68         Asian Studies       79         Asian Studies       143         B       Bachelor's Degree       27
Art, Architecture + Art History       64         Art History       68         Asian Studies       79         Asian Studies       143         B       Bachelor's Degree       27         Behavioral Neuroscience       80
Art, Architecture + Art History       64         Art History       68         Asian Studies       79         Asian Studies       143         B       Bachelor's Degree       27         Behavioral Neuroscience       80         Behavioral Neuroscience       224
Art, Architecture + Art History       64         Art History       68         Asian Studies       79         Asian Studies       143         B       Bachelor's Degree       27         Behavioral Neuroscience       80         Behavioral Neuroscience       224         Biochemistry       80
Art, Architecture + Art History       64         Art History       68         Asian Studies       79         Asian Studies       143         B       Bachelor's Degree       27         Behavioral Neuroscience       80         Behavioral Neuroscience       224         Biochemistry       80         Biochemistry       91
Art, Architecture + Art History       64         Art History       68         Asian Studies       79         Asian Studies       143         B       Bachelor's Degree       27         Behavioral Neuroscience       80         Behavioral Neuroscience       224         Biochemistry       80         Biochemistry       91         Biology       80
Art, Architecture + Art History       64         Art History       68         Asian Studies       79         Asian Studies       143         B       Bachelor's Degree       27         Behavioral Neuroscience       80         Behavioral Neuroscience       224         Biochemistry       80         Biochemistry       91         Biology       80         Biomedical Ethics       89
Art, Architecture + Art History       64         Art History       68         Asian Studies       79         Asian Studies       143         B       Bachelor's Degree       27         Behavioral Neuroscience       80         Behavioral Neuroscience       224         Biochemistry       80         Biochemistry       91         Biology       80         Biomedical Ethics       89         Biomedical Ethics       143
Art, Architecture + Art History       64         Art History       68         Asian Studies       79         Asian Studies       143         B       Bachelor's Degree       27         Behavioral Neuroscience       80         Behavioral Neuroscience       224         Biochemistry       80         Biochemistry       91         Biology       80         Biomedical Ethics       89         Biomedical Ethics       143         Biophysics       89
Art, Architecture + Art History       64         Art History       68         Asian Studies       79         Asian Studies       143         B       Bachelor's Degree       27         Behavioral Neuroscience       80         Behavioral Neuroscience       224         Biochemistry       80         Biochemistry       91         Biology       80         Biomedical Ethics       89         Biomedical Ethics       143         Biophysics       89         Biophysics       89         Biophysics       89
Art, Architecture + Art History       64         Art History       68         Asian Studies       79         Asian Studies       143         B       Bachelor's Degree       27         Behavioral Neuroscience       80         Behavioral Neuroscience       224         Biochemistry       80         Biochemistry       91         Biology       80         Biomedical Ethics       89         Biomedical Ethics       143         Biophysics       89         Biophysics       202         Black Student Resource Center       57
Art, Architecture + Art History       64         Art History       68         Asian Studies       79         Asian Studies       143         B       Bachelor's Degree       27         Behavioral Neuroscience       80         Behavioral Neuroscience       224         Biochemistry       80         Biochemistry       91         Biology       80         Biomedical Ethics       89         Biomedical Ethics       143         Biophysics       89         Biophysics       202         Black Student Resource Center       57         Business Administration       257

C	
Campus Life	18
Campus Recreation and Sports	18
Career Development Center	58
Changemaking	89
Changemaking	143
Chemistry	96
Chemistry and Biochemistry	90
Child Development Center	19
Chinese	146
Classical Greek	148
Classical Studies	102
Classical Studies	143
College and Schools	60
College of Arts and Sciences	60
College-Level Examination Program	46
Combined BA/MEd Teacher Education Program (CTEP)	302
Communication Studies	
Community Service-Learning	58
Computer Science	306
Core Curriculum	
Counseling & Marital and Family Therapy	304
Credit and Grading System	
D	
Deadlines	56
Declaring the Major	41
Deposit Fees	48
Dining Services	19
E	
Economics	259
Economics Minor	265
Education Recreation	109
Electrical Engineering	312
Email Accounts	42
Engineering	316
English	111
Entrepreneurship Minor	266
Environmental and Ocean Sciences	116
Ethnic Studies	128
Expenses	48
F	
Faculty	334
Film Studies	132
Film Studies	143

Finance	260	Leadership Studies Minor and Nonprofit Leadership and Manageme	
Finance Minor	266		
Financial Aid	51	Learning and Teaching	
First Year Experience	31	Leave of Absence and Withdrawal	43
French	149	Liberal Studies	166
G General Engineering	317	Library Science  Loans	
General Information	42	M	
General Requirements for Bachelor's Degree	29	Mail Center	19
German	152	Management Minor	267
Graduation and Commencement	42	Marketing	263
Н		Marketing Minor	267
History	133	Mathematics	172
Honor Societies	15	Mechanical Engineering	326
Honors	43	Medieval and Renaissance Studies	143
Honors Program	30	Medieval and Renaissance Studies	178
1		Memberships	8
Industrial & Systems Engineering	323	Military Science	35
Information Resources and Facilities	58	Mission and Core Values	7
Information Technology Management Minor	266	Music	179
Institute of College Initiatives	59	N	
Interdisciplinary Humanities	142	Naval Science	36
Interdisciplinary Minors	143	Nonprofit Leadership and Management Certificate Program	293
International Baccalaureate	46	Nonprofit Social Enterprise and Philanthropy Minor	290
International Business	261	0	
International Business Minor	267	One Stop Student Center	19
International Relations	144	Other Fees	48
International Relations	213	P	10
International Students	47	Parking Services and Transportation	
International Students and Scholars	57	Payment Plans	
Intersession and Summer Sessions	37	Peacebuilding and Social Innovation	
Italian Studies	154	Performing Arts Entrepreneurship	
1		Performing Arts Entrepreneurship	
Japanese	157	Philosophy	
Joan B. Kroc School of Peace Studies	331	Philosophy, Politics and Economics	
L		Philosophy, Politics and Economics	199
Languages, Cultures and Literatures	144	Physics	206
Latin	159	Physics and Biophysics	201
Latin American Studies	143	Policies	10
Latin American Studies	164	Political Science	217
Law and Ethics Minor	267	Political Science and International Relations	212
Leadership Studies	284	Preliminary Education Specialist	303
Leadership Studies Minor	287	Preliminary Multiple Subject	302
		Preliminary Single Subject	303

Preparation for Law School and Health Profession Programs	32
Psychological Sciences	224
Psychology	227
Public Safety	19
Real Estate	264
Real Estate Minor	268
Refund Policies	49
Registration	44
Registration/Fee Payment Policy	49
Requirements for Major and Minor Concentrations	28
Residence Requirement	44
Residential Life	19
Room and Meal Plans	50
ROTC Programs	33
Scholarships and Grants	51
Scholastic Probation and Disqualification	44
School of Business	250
School of Business Courses	268
School of Business Minors	265
School of Leadership and Education Sciences	282
Second Year Experience	31
Shiley-Marcos School of Engineering	304
Sociology	234
Spanish	160
Student Employment	55
Student Government and Organizations	20
Student Load	45
Student Wellness	23
Study Abroad Opportunities	32
Supply Chain Management Minor	268
The Campus	7
Theatre Arts and Performance Studies	238
Theology and Religious Studies	242
Torero ID Card	24
Torero Store	24
Tuition	50
U Undergraduate	4
Unit and Grade Point Requirements	45
United Front Multicultural Center	25

25
25
15
47
58
74
249
144
249
26